
1 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: July 1, 2020  

TO: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

FROM: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Draft RFP for Architectural and Design Services for Public 
Property 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Downtown Birmingham 2016 Plan adopted by the City Commission included a comprehensive 
list of recommendations for improvements to Downtown Birmingham, including eight specific 
redevelopment sites.  Each site was studied, and conceptual recommendations were outlined in 
the 2016 Plan.  The public property north of Willits and west of N. Old Woodward currently used 
for public property was identified as a redevelopment site, and labelled Specific Project 6:  The 
Willits Block. 

BACKGROUND: 
The City Commission previously studied the public property known as Specific Project 6, and 
supported a conceptual plan for this property, commonly referred to as The North Old Woodward 
Project.  The following is an outline of the prior history and study of the area over the past several 
years by the City. 

In the summer of 2013 parking demand in the downtown began to exceed available capacity 
within the parking system.  As a result, both long term and short term initiatives were enacted to 
address the new demand.  Since 2013, the Advisory Parking Committee (APC) has been evaluating 
and enacting more immediate actions within the system to address the increased demand.  In 
addition to the short term strategies that were implemented, there was also a long term initiative 
that was developed at that time.   

In March of 2014, the City Commission authorized the creation of an Ad Hoc Parking Study 
Committee (AHPSC) to study the following: 

1. The current demand for parking in both the Central Business District (CBD)* and
the Triangle District; 

2. The expected future demands for parking in both areas given current zoning
regulations; 

3. Development of a recommendation for future projects to address shortfalls, if
appropriate. 

6C



2 

* For purposes of their study, the boundary used for the Central Business District replicated the
boundary of the Downtown Parking Assessment District.  

This committee was comprised of the following members: 
1. Richard Astrein, Birmingham Shopping District
2. JC Cataldo, Corridor Improvement Authority
3. Gilian Lazar, Planning Board
4. Susan Peabody, Advisory Parking Committee
5. Johanna Slanga, Multi-Modal Transportation Board

In March of 2015, the AHPSC presented their findings to the City Commission in the form of a 
final report.  The report identified the expected future demands for parking in the CBD to have a 
long term deficit of approximately 705 parking spaces.  This number represented 278 spaces for 
the north portion of the CBD and 427 spaces for the south portion of the CBD.   

The Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee provided the following recommendation: 

To accept the report of the Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee estimating that a long term 
deficit of 278 parking spaces is expected in the long term for the north portion of the 
Central Business District.  Further, to direct staff to conduct further planning studies for 
the North Old Woodward Avenue parking structure and lot that will maximize the creation 
of parking spaces while adhering to the original concepts presented in the Downtown 
Birmingham 2016 Plan. 

And, as a secondary priority, to accept the report of the Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee 
estimating that a long term deficit of 427 parking spaces is expected in the long term for 
the south portion of the Central Business District.  Further, to endorse the expansion of 
the Pierce Street parking structure by two levels, thereby creating an additional 280 public 
parking spaces in the parking system. 

On March 16, 2015, the City Commission accepted the findings of the AHPSC, and further 
authorized the creation of an Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee (AHPDC) for the purpose 
of determining the next steps for addressing the parking shortfalls identified by the AHPSC.  The 
purpose and goals of the AHPDC were to: 

 Review previous Studies and Plans;
 Concentrate on Parking in Downtown;
 Review Costs and Finance Alternatives;
 Consider hiring an outside Consultant;
 Goal – Provide a Recommendation;

The AHPDC began meeting in June 2015. 



3 

DEVELOPMENT OF CONCEPT PLANS 

In September of 2015, at the recommendation of the AHPDC, the City issued a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for a consultant team comprised of an architectural firm and a parking consultant 
to provide conceptual drawings and cost estimates related to the expansion of two municipal 
parking facilities owned by the City.  In working with the consultant team to evaluate alternatives 
and costs, the AHPDC concluded the primary focus for their efforts was to replace the North Old 
Woodward parking structure and maximize the total number of new spaces available at this site 
given the adjoining parking lot next to the existing structure.  This study was completed in 2016. 

The consulting team of Saroki Architecture and Carl Walker were selected to develop a concept 
plan and vision for the redevelopment of the N. Old Woodward parking structure and the 
surrounding area.  The team presented numerous options to the AHPDC, and the committee 
eventual ly selected Option 1A as the preferred concept plan to be included in a 
future RFP to solicit development teams.  

DEVELOPMENT OF THE REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

In 2016, the AHPDC completed a draft Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) seeking a developer or 
a development team to undertake the collective redevelopment the Bates Street property to 
include removal of the N. Old Woodward parking deck, construction of an expanded public parking 
facility, the extension of Bates Street and the private development of commercial and residential 
space. The City’s objective was to solicit creative and innovative development plans, consistent 
with Option 1A,  from qualified developers that would partner with the City to extend Bates Street 
from Willits to North Old Woodward and redevelop the remainder of the site by constructing a 
parking facility that provides a minimum of 1150 parking spaces to replace the 770 parking spaces 
currently on the N. Old Woodward / Bates Street site, introducing residential, commercial and/or 
mixed uses to create an activated, pedestrian-oriented urban streetscape and provide public 
access to the Rouge River and Booth Park to the north.  

After reviewing the draft RFQ in 2016, the AHPDC requested that the Planning Division seek an 
independent review of the RFQ by a qualified consultant prior to its release to the general 
public. To this end, the City engaged Tim Kay of Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL), which is a national 
commercial real estate strategy, services and support firm.  JLL provides a wide range of services 
related to commercial real estate throughout the United States, including project and 
development services. Tim Kay is the Managing Director of the Project and Development 
Services Division for the Detroit branch of JLL.  Mr. Kay of JLL has completed his review of the 
RFQ, and provided a letter outlining his comments.   

On January 6, 2017, the AHPDC reviewed the draft RFQ and the comments provided by JLL.  The 
Committee requested that a note be added to the RFQ that there is construction currently 
underway adjacent to the project area for Brookside Terrace, and then voted unanimously to 
forward the RFQ to the City Commission for their review.  



4 

On March 13, 2017, the City Commission directed staff to issue the RFQ consistent with the terms and 
parameters defined in Option 1A.  The RFQ was issued on March 16, 2017 seeking 
qualified developers interested in the N. Old Woodward Parking / Bates Street Extension project.   

The City received submittals from the following four development teams: 
 Morningside Group;
 Redico;
 TIR Equities;  and
 Walbridge / Woodward Bates.

STAFF EVALUATION: RFQ 

All four responses were reviewed by City staff and all four met the qualifications contained in the 
RFQ.  Accordingly, the City Attorney reviewed the financial documentation and determined that 
all four development teams were financially qualified to proceed to the next step and were thus 
invited to respond to the Request for Proposals.  The AHPDC concurred that all four 
development teams were qualified to proceed to the RFP stage. 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

During the summer of 2017, the AHPDC worked with staff to finalize a draft RFP for review and 
approval by the City Commission.  On September 11, 2017, the City Commission approved the 
issuance of the RFP recommended by the AHPDC consistent with the terms and parameters 
defined in Option 1A.   

The City received three proposals in response to the RFP from the following development teams: 
 Redico;
 TIR Equities;  and
 Walbridge / Woodward Bates Partners.

Although qualified to submit a proposal, the Morningside Group notified the City that they did 
not intend to submit a response to the RFP.  Three responses were submitted in response 
to the RFP in January 2018. 

STAFF EVALUATION: RFP 

Each of the three development proposals received in response to the RFP were reviewed by City 
staff to determine if all of the requirements of the RFP were met.  A summary review chart of all 
responses was prepared to compare each of the three proposals side by side. The 
AHPDC reviewed the chart and discussed each proposal at length.  In order to perform a true 
comparison between each of the responses, the AHPDC requested staff to send letters to each of 



5 

the three teams requesting additional information regarding the financials that supported 
each proposal. 

Each of the three development teams responded to the City’s request for additional information, 
although Redico responded by stating their desire to withdraw from consideration.  Detailed 
responses were received from TIR Equities and Walbridge / Woodwa r d  B a t e s .   

On March 7, 2018, the AHPDC interviewed the two remaining development teams of TIR Equities 
and the Walbridge / Woodward Bates team.  At the conclusion of the interviews, committee 
members scored the proposals. Score were as follows:  

 TIR Equities – 690 total points
 Walbridge / Woodward Bates – 992 total points.

After the interviews were conducted, the AHPDC discussed at length the two different 
development concepts that were proposed, and conducted a detailed analysis of the two 
proposals.  Staff evaluation involved the following five key categories: 

 Compliance with the RFP, as issued;
 Assumptions regarding local property tax generation;
 Parking structure cost differentials;
 Financial obligations for the City; and
 Project build-out requirements.

Compliance with RFP 
The RFP called for new construction that is compatible with the existing building fabric on page 
seven (7).  The first paragraph of page eight (8) further emphasizes that the objectives of the 
RFP “should be a fundamental part of any development proposal” and references the Downtown 
Birmingham 2016 Report as the source for these objectives.  Additionally, Attachment E of the 
RFP provides a Conceptual Illustration of the Development Area.  The rendering outlines an above 
ground parking deck and mixed used buildings that do not exceed a height beyond five (5) stories.  
There was extensive discussion amongst the committee regarding the proposal that involves a 
potential fifteen (15) story building as proposed by TIR Equities.  The RFP illustrated a conceptual 
plan to be used as the basis for future development.   

The RFP, under the financial heading on page nine (9) states that no City subsidies will be made 
available for a potential development.  The TIR Equities team indicated during their interview 
process that the proposal they submitted would be at no cost the City.  Staff inquired further and 
learned that as part of the proposal, TIR Equities anticipated the use of a Tax Increment Finance 
district and revenues from the parking structure that the City could use to pay for the 
development.  A TIF district is the equivalent of a subsidy.  Additionally, the parking revenue 



6 

assumed $3.5 million in annual revenue to support this pay back.  The current structure, with 
half of the proposed spaces is expected to generate $1.2 million in revenue annually.  At best, 
staff projects a doubling of revenue, approximately $2.6 million, with the new development 
(taking the two hour free parking into consideration).   

The spirit and intent of the RFP is to ensure an open and competitive environment that results in 
proposals that can be compared feature for feature.  The two proposals under consideration 
cannot be compared feature to feature. 

Assumptions Regarding Local Property Tax Generation 
Staff met with the two development teams per the committee’s request to further the 
understanding of the financials associated with each proposal.  The area of taxable value 
calculations became the focus of this discussion.  The Woodward Bates team suggested a possible 
$203,000 in increased property tax generation, while the TIR Equities team indicated a possible 
increase of $2,690,000.  The Woodward Bates team indicated and provided email evidence of an 
email exchange with the Oakland County Assessor’s office using comparable developments to 
arrive at their final number.  The TIR Equities team indicated that they developed their 
calculations based on other comparable developments in areas outside of the Oakland County 
boundary and relied on a more straight line calculation.  

A comparison of financial details reviewed for each of the proposals is attached as Exhibit I.  
The Old Woodward Total Cost Developer Comparison worksheet presents the total cost of the 
project and how long it will take to repay the City's public contribution based on the increase in 
property taxes and lease payments on the new development proposed by each respondent.  The 
figures included in the worksheet were taken directly from each proposal. 

Parking Structure Cost Differential 
In 2016, a preliminary estimate determined that the cost of a new parking structure would be 
approximately $28,299 per parking space.  The Woodward Bates proposal presents a per space 
cost of approximately $37,000, while the TIR Equities team proposed a cost per parking space of 
$57,000.  The primary difference in these costs is associated with the number of underground 
parking levels.  The Woodward Bates team added an additional underground level for parking to 
limit the overall height of the garage. The TIR Equities team proposed the entire structure as an 
underground development.  Both of the development teams’ proposals required the City to pay 
for the entire cost of the parking structure. 

Financial Obligations for the City 
The total cost of the public elements for the Woodward Bates proposal was $54 million.  The total 
cost of the public elements for the TIR Equities proposal was $70 million.  Both of the teams 
expressed willingness and an interest to reduce the costs associated with the public elements, 
where possible.  However, the ideas involved possible savings for the public elements 
independent of the parking structure. 



7 

Project Build-Out Requirements 
Staff discussed the build out requirements with each of the development teams in greater detail 
since the date of the AHPDC interviews.  The Woodward Bates proposal is constructed in a way 
that allows for independent construction of each building and the parking structure.  The TIR 
Equities proposal has an interdependency that exists between the construction of the parking 
structure and the private elements.  The project relies on leveraging a public investment to 
support a private development. 

Staff also conducted a high level environmental scan to share potential risks with the committee 
associated with delayed decision making regarding a large scale development in a period of 
uncertainty with respect to trade policy, other existing and planned large scale developments in 
southeast Michigan, the level of economic activity in surrounding municipalities attracting 
development dollars, and our need to address the issue of rising demand on the parking system 
in the Central Business District.   

On May 2, 2018, the AHPDC met and reviewed all of the analysis outlined above for the remaining 
two proposals.  The committee considered three options for moving forward.  The first option 
they considered recognized that of the two proposals under consideration only one of them is 
directly responsive to the RFP, and thus this option suggested moving forward only with the 
development team with the proposal that was responsive to the RFP.  The second option that the 
committee considered was to reject both of the proposals and recommend that the Commission 
direct staff to reissue an RFP with expanded parameters.  The third and final option considered 
was to proceed with the build out of the parking structure independent of any surrounding 
development and allow for additional development around the structure at a later time.   

After much discussion, the AHPDC voted to recommend to the City Commission that the City 
continue discussion with the Walbridge / Woodward Bates team to advance their proposal for 
increased parking and the development of the extension of Bates Street to ensure that progress 
continues to be made to address a critical need for the City with respect to parking infrastructure 
and increased capacity. 

Relevant meeting minutes of the City Commission related to the above are also attached after 
all other documents in this report, in chronological order. 

Ultimately, the proposed plans for a public-private partnership that included the redevelopment 
of this site were placed on the ballot in August 2019 for a vote of the people.  The initiative was 
turned down by the voters. 

On June 22, 2020, the City Commission discussed the future study of the public property at Willits 
and N. Old Woodward and directed staff to prepare a draft RFP for review and consideration by 
the City Commission to establish a process to review and revisit a strategic vision for this area. 



8 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the draft RFP. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
No funds are currently budgeted in FY 20-21 for architectural and design services for the creation 
of a strategic vision plan for the public property at Willits and N. Old Woodward.  Based on 
previous expenditures for a conceptual plan for this area as well as the Pierce Street parking deck 
property, an estimated cost of $40,000 is anticipated for this project that includes the Willits and 
N. Old Woodard property only.  However, the cost will vary depending on the scope of work 
proposed by the City Commission.   

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The July 13, 2020 meeting of the City Commission will be the first extensive public discussion to 
consider hiring consultants to provide architectural and design services to prepare a strategic 
vision plan for the public property north of Willits and west of N. Old Woodward since the vote in 
2019. 

SUMMARY: 
The City Commission may wish to review the attached draft RFP for Architectural & Design 
Services for Public Property North of Willits and West of N. Old Woodward for the creation of a 
strategic design plan and provide direction to staff. 

ATTACHMENTS:   
 Draft RFP for Architectural & Design Services for Public Property North of Willits and West

of N. Old Woodward; and 
 Other related documents (noted as Exhibits A through K above).

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To direct staff to make revisions to the draft RFP for Architectural & Design Services for Public 
Property North of Willits and West of N. Old Woodward as discussed at the July 13, 2020 meeting 
and bring it back to the City Commission for further review and comment; 

OR 

To approve the draft RFP for Architectural & Design Services for Public Property North of Willits 
and West of N. Old Woodward and direct staff to prepare an outline for an ad hoc committee to 
review and provide comments on the draft RFP. 



1 

Architectural & Design Services for Public Property  
North of Willits and West of N. Old Woodward 

Sealed proposals endorsed “ARCHITECTURAL & DESIGN SERVICES FOR PUBLIC 
PROPERTY”, will be received at the Office of the City Clerk, 151 Martin Street, PO Box 3001, 
Birmingham, Michigan, 48012; until ______________ at 3:00pm after which time bids will 
be publicly opened and read.  

The City of Birmingham, Michigan is accepting sealed bid proposals from qualified professional 
firms to conduct public engagement activities to formulate a vision for the site, and achieve 
consensus on the desired elements of a development plan, to prioritize infrastructure investment 
for the site and prepare a strategic vision document for the property.  This work must be 
performed as specified in accordance with the specifications contained in the Request For 
Proposals (RFP).   

The RFP, including the Specifications, may be obtained online from the Michigan Inter-
governmental Trade Network at http://www.mitn.info or at the City of Birmingham, 151 Martin 
St., Birmingham, Michigan, ATTENTION: Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director.   

The acceptance of any proposal made pursuant to this invitation shall not be binding upon the 
City until an agreement has been executed. 

Submitted to MITN: __________________________ 
Deadline for Submissions:  __________________________ 
Contact Person:  Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 

P.O. Box 3001, 151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 
Phone: 248-530-1841 
Email: jecker@bhamgov.org 



 

2 
 

INTRODUCTION: 
For purposes of this request for proposals the City of Birmingham will hereby be referred to as 
“City” and the private consulting firm or firms will hereby be referred to as “Contractor.” 
 
The City of Birmingham, Michigan is seeking proposals from qualified professional consultants 
(Contractors) to review the recommendations in prior planning documents, the findings and 
analysis contained in parking and development studies for the N. Old Woodward parking structure 
site, as well as the surrounding public property, and to solicit extensive input from the public to 
create a strategic vision plan for the area.   
 
Currently, a five level 560 space parking structure constructed in 1966 occupies the easterly 
section of a large parcel that has frontage on N. Old Woodward Ave.  The remainder of the parcel 
contains an open municipal parking lot as well as a sloped natural area fronting the adjacent 
Rouge River.  A recent survey of parcel dimensions for the public property to be studied is included 
in Attachment A.  It should be noted that there is an existing Vehicle Access Easement that 
runs through the public property as described in Attachment B.  The current zoning 
classifications for the property to be studied are shown in Attachments C and D.   
 
The City’s master planning document for the downtown, known as the Downtown Birmingham 
2016 Report (DB2016 Report), identifies the N. Old Woodward / Bates Street site as a proposed 
location for redevelopment and provides conceptual illustrations of proposed modifications.  The 
concept from the DB2016 Report referencing this area is provided for reference below in Figure 
1.  

 
Figure 1. 
 

 
 
In addition, the City also adopted a master planning document for alleys and passages entitled 
Activating Urban Space:  A Strategy for Alleys & Passages (Alleys & Passages Plan) in 2012. 
Contractors will be expected to present creative concepts for the site that incorporate the 



3 

objectives and guidelines outlined in the DB2016 Report and the Alleys & Passages Plan. 

Finally, the City also adopted a Parks and Recreation Master Plan that envisions a connection to 
Booth Park through the public property at Willits and N. Old Woodward.  An excerpt illustrating 
this connection is shown in Attachment E.  
The selected professional firm(s) would review all of the previous documents, plans and 
studies relevant to the property (Attachments F - I) and conduct public engagement activities 
to formula te  a  v i s ion  fo r  the  s i te ,  and achieve consensus on the desired elements of a 
development plan.  Elements such as the desired mix of land uses (retai l ,  residential ,  
off ice, open space etc.), the desire to expand the current parking capacity of the site, the 
creation of additional public space, the enhancement of mult-modal connections to and from 
the site and/or the prioritization of other infrastructure investment options for the site should 
be considered.  Based on the findings of the review and public input processes, the 
Contractor will prepare a strategic vision document for the property.  A detailed scope of  
work is  out l ined below.  The Ci ty is  seeking proposals  f rom profess ional  
f i rm(s) that include planning professionals, urban design professionals, and architects 
working together as a team.  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Extensive public participation is vital to developing a strategic vision document for the use and 
design of public property.  During the review and development of a strategic vision for the 
property, the Contractor will solicit and garner the input of the public on the future vision for the 
public property shown in Attachment A and build consensus to provide the basis for a conceptual 
design plan.  Extensive public input will be encouraged throughout the process, including specific 
discussions on desired uses, multi-modal connections and urban design.  The selected Contractor 
will be required to submit a detailed community engagement plan as a part of this RFP that allows 
for public input throughout the entire process, utilizing contemporary technologies.   

SCOPE OF WORK: 
The scope of work for this project includes the following: 

1. A review of existing site and structure conditions;
2. A review of prior planning documents, including but not limited to:

 The Birmingham Plan (1980),
 The Downtown Birmingham 2016 Plan,
 The Alleys and Passages Plan,
 The Multi-Modal Transportation Plan,
 The 2018 Downtown Retail Study,
 The Parks and Recreation Master Plan, and
 The current DRAFT Version of the 2040 Master Plan.

3. A review of previous studies completed regarding the subject property by the City,
including but not limited to:

 Parking occupancy studies and parking needs assessments:
 Structural reports on the N. Old Woodward parking structure;
 Conceptual development plans for the site; and
 Feasibility studies.

4. Identification of current trends and best practices for infill sites in other dense, traditional,
walkable downtowns;

jecker
Typewritten Text



4 

5. Conducting presentations to review existing site conditions, best practices for similar sites
and locations and prior findings and recommendations regarding the potential
improvement of the site;

6. Creation of a detailed Community Engagement Plan to encourage and facilitate ongoing
public participation including a visioning process, interactive workshops, surveys, walking
tours and/or other such methods that have been demonstrated to stimulate public
discourse to gather input from residents, business owners (property owners and tenants)
and elected and appointed boards and commissions;

7. Development of public consensus on a strategic vision for the potential improvement of
the site, including whether or not to integrate the following elements:

a) Transportation infrastructure (vehicle travel lanes, bicycle infrastructure,
sidewalks and pedestrian crossings etc.);

b) Parking infrastructure (increase, decrease or maintain existing parking supply
on the site) and the type of parking system preferred (surface lots, structured
parking above or below grade, automated systems etc.);

c) The creation of one or more parcels for public or private redevelopment;
d) Large or small scale retail development;
e) Office, commercial or other mixed use development;
f) Residential uses (low intensity, “missing middle” medium intensity, or high

intensity, integration with other uses etc.),
g) Public plaza or park space, connections to existing public spaces or trails;  and
h) Civic elements such as a civic destination, public art, festival space etc.;

8. Attendance at all relevant board and commission meetings, public engagement activities,
meetings with City staff and public hearings; and

9. Preparation of a strategic vision document that outlines the vision, goals and desired
elements to be included in the future redevelopment of the site for future use in the
creation of a conceptual design plan.

Please note the scope of work outlined above is not necessarily all-inclusive and the professional 
firm proposing to undertake this project shall include in the proposal any other tasks and services 
deemed necessary.   

DELIVERABLES 
The Contractor shall provide a detailed strategic vision plan for the property, including the 
extensive use of illustrations, photos, and case studies that clearly depict the vision and 
implementation in the following formats: 

1. One (1) reproducible PDF digital file and twenty (20) hard copies of the strategic vision
plan;

2. One (1) reproducible PDF digital file of the final Plan for publication on the web and social
media;  and

3. One page infographic outlining the vision, goals and recommendations of the strategic
vision plan.

All data, illustrations and projections created or compiled throughout the project shall become 
the sole property of the City of Birmingham. 

TIME SCHEDULE AND COST PROPOSAL 
All proposals must include a proposed time schedule for completion of the project and a fixed 
price agreement with an associated fee schedule for extra meeting costs, should they be required. 
Reimbursable expenses will be billed at direct cost plus a 10% administrative charge. Normal 



5 

reimbursable expenses associated with the project are to be included in the estimated fees as 
outlined in the proposal.   

The Contractor shall perform all services outlined in this RFP in accordance with the requirements 
as defined and noted herein. 

INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL 
Proposals shall be submitted no later than ____________, 2020 at 3:00pm to: 

City of Birmingham 
Attn: City Clerk 

151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, Michigan  48009 

One (1) electronic copy and ten (10) hard copies of the proposal must be submitted. The proposal 
should be firmly sealed in an envelope, which shall be clearly marked on the outside, 
“ARCHITECTURAL & DESIGN SERVICES FOR PUBLIC PROPERTY”.  Any proposal received 
after the due date cannot be accepted and will be rejected and returned, unopened, to the 
proposer.  Proposer may submit more than one proposal provided each proposal meets the 
functional requirements. 

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 
All proposals to be considered must contain the following: 

(1) Cover Letter;  
(2) Outline of qualifications of the Contractor and of the key employees that will be 

involved in the project, including an organizational chart of the roles and 
responsibilities of each team member, and references for the team leader(s).  The 
project team should include each of the following skill sets: 

 Urban design;
 Multi-modal transportation and parking;
 Urban planning;
 Architecture;
 Landscape architecture; and
 Public engagement.

(3) Outline of Contractor(s) experience with the preparation of similar strategic vision 
plans, including references from at least two relevant communities where you have 
completed such plans. (Portions of sample plans prepared by the Contractor should 
be submitted with the proposal, up to a maximum of twenty-five (25) pages); 

(4) Outline presenting a description of the scope of work to be completed and a proposed 
time frame for completion;  

(5) A statement of any additional services that you recommend, if any.  Define hourly 
rates for additional services by discipline. 

(6) Cover Sheet (Attachment J); 
(7) Bidders Agreement (Attachment K); 
(8) Cost Proposal (Attachment L);   
(9) Iran Sanctions Act Vendor Certification (Attachment M);  and                     
(10) Agreement (Attachment N) – only if selected by the City). 



6 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
1. Any and all forms requesting information from the bidder must be completed on the

attached forms contained herein (see Contractor’s Responsibilities).  If more than one
bid is submitted, a separate bid proposal form must be used for each.

2. Any request for clarification of this RFP shall be made in writing and delivered to: Jana
L. Ecker, Planning Director, 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI, or via email to
jecker@bhamgov.org.   Such request for clarification shall be delivered, in writing, no
later than 5 days prior to the deadline for submissions. Email requests must contain
in their subject line “Request for Clarification”. 

3. All proposals must be submitted following the RFP format as stated in this document
and shall be subject to all requirements of this document including the instruction to
respondents and general information sections. All proposals must be regular in every
respect and no interlineations, excisions, or special conditions shall be made or
included in the RFP format by the respondent.

4. The contract will be awarded by the City of Birmingham to the most responsive and
responsible bidder and the contract will require the completion of the work pursuant
to these documents.

5. Each respondent shall include in their proposal, in the format requested, the cost of
performing the work. Municipalities are exempt from Michigan State Sales and Federal
Excise taxes.  Do not include such taxes in the proposal figure.  The City will furnish
the successful company with tax exemption information when requested.

6. Each respondent shall include in their proposal the following information:  Firm name,
address, city, state, zip code, telephone number, and fax number. The company shall
also provide the name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of an individual
in their organization to whom notices and inquiries by the City should be directed as
part of their proposal.

EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA 
The City will utilize a qualifications-based selection process in choosing a Contractor for the 
completion of this work.  The evaluation panel will consist of City staff, board members, and/or 
any other person(s) designated by the City who will evaluate the proposals based on, but not 
limited to, the following criteria: 

 Ability to provide services as outlined.
 Experience of the Contractor with similar projects.
 Professional qualification of key employees assigned to the project.
 Public Involvement Process.
 Content of Proposal.
 Cost of Services.
 Timeline and Schedule for Completion.
 References.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
1. The City reserves the right to reject any or all proposals received, waive informalities, or

accept any proposal, in whole or in part, it deems best.  The City reserves the right to



7 

award the contract to the next most qualified Contractor if the successful Contractor does 
not execute a contract within ten (10) days after the award of the proposal. 

2. The City reserves the right to request clarification of information submitted and to request
additional information of one or more Contractors.

3. The City reserves the right to terminate the contract at its discretion should it be
determined that the services provided do not meet the specifications contained herein.
The City may terminate this Agreement at any point in the process upon notice to
Contractor sufficient to indicate the City’s desire to do so.  In the case of such a stoppage,
the City agrees to pay Contractor for services rendered to the time of notice, subject to
the contract maximum amount.

4. Any proposal may be withdrawn up until the date and time set above for the opening of
the proposals.  Any proposals not so withdrawn shall constitute an irrevocable offer, for a
period of ninety (90) days, to provide the services set forth in the proposal.

5. The cost of preparing and submitting a proposal is the responsibility of the Contractor and
shall not be chargeable in any manner to the City.

6. Payment will be made within thirty (30) days after invoice. Acceptance by the City is
defined as authorization by the designated City representative to this project that all the
criteria requested under the Scope of Work contained herein have been provided. Invoices
are to be rendered each month following the date of execution of an Agreement with the
City.

7. The Contractor will not exceed the timelines established for the completion of this project.

8. The successful bidder shall enter into and will execute the contract as set forth and
attached as Attachment A.

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
Each bidder shall provide the following as part of their proposal: 

1. Complete and sign all forms requested for completion within this RFP.
a. Cover Sheet (Attachment F)
b. Bidder’s Agreement (Attachment G)
c. Cost Proposal (Attachment H)
d. Iran Sanctions Act Vendor Certification Form (Attachment I)
e. Agreement (Attachment J) – only if selected by the City).

2. Provide a description of completed projects that demonstrate the firm’s ability to
complete projects of similar scope, size, and purpose, and in a timely manner, and
within budget.

3. Provide a written plan detailing the anticipated timeline for completion of the tasks set
forth in the Scope of Work.

4. The Contractor will be responsible for any changes necessary for the plans to be
approved by the City of Birmingham.



8 

5. Provide a description of the firm, including resumes and professional qualifications of
the principals involved in administering the project.

6. Provide a list of sub-contractors and their qualifications, if applicable.

7. Provide three (3) client references from past projects, include current phone numbers.
At least two (2) of the client references should be for similar projects.

8. Provide a project timeline addressing each section within the Scope of Work and a
description of the overall project approach.  Include a statement that the Contractor
will be available according to the proposed timeline.

CITY RESPONSIBILITY 
The City will provide a designated representative to work with the Contractor to coordinate both 
the City’s and Contractor’s efforts and to review and approve any work performed by the 
Contractor. 

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES 
The successful bidder agrees to certain dispute resolution avenues/limitations.  Please refer to 
paragraph 17 of the Agreement attached as Attachment E for the details and what is required of 
the successful bidder. 

INSURANCE 
The successful bidder is required to procure and maintain certain types of insurances.  Please 
refer to paragraph 12 of the Agreement attached as Attachment E for the details and what is 
required of the successful bidder. 

CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE 
The Contractor also agrees to provide all insurance coverages as specified.  Upon failure of the 
Contractor to obtain or maintain such insurance coverage for the term of the agreement, the City 
may, at its option, purchase such coverage and subtract the cost of obtaining such coverage from 
the contract amount.  In obtaining such coverage, Birmingham shall have no obligation to procure 
the most cost effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage. 

EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
The bidder whose proposal is accepted shall be required to execute the contract and to furnish 
all insurance coverages as specified within ten (10) days after receiving notice of such acceptance. 
Any contract awarded pursuant to any bid shall not be binding upon the City until a written 
contract has been executed by both parties.  Failure or refusal to execute the contract shall be 
considered an abandonment of all rights and interest in the award and the contract may be 
awarded to another.  The successful bidder agrees to enter into and will execute the contract as 
set forth and attached as Attachment A. 

INDEMNIFICATION  
The successful bidder agrees to indemnify the City and various associated persons.  Please refer 
to paragraph 13 of the Agreement attached as Attachment E for the details and what is required 
of the successful bidder. 



 

9 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
The successful bidder is subject to certain conflict of interest requirements/restrictions.  Please 
refer to paragraph 14 of the Agreement attached as Attachment E for the details and what is 
required of the successful bidder. 

EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS 
The submission of a proposal shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the Contractor 
that it has investigated all aspects of the RFP, that it is aware of the applicable facts pertaining 
to the RFP process and its procedures and requirements, and that it has read and understands 
the RFP.  Statistical information which may be contained in the RFP or any addendum thereto is 
for informational purposes only. 

PROJECT TIMELINE (MAXIMUM) 
Evaluate Respondents    ______________ 
Interview Contractors    ______________ 
Award Contract    ______________ 
Project Kick Off Meeting   ______________ 
50% Completion of strategic vision plan ______________ 
Final Draft of Plan Completed   ______________ 
 
The Contractor will not exceed the timelines established for the completion of this project.   A 
shorter timeline is encouraged and preferred. 
 



City of Birmingham, Michigan 16 Request for Proposals 

ATTACHMENT A 



N. Old Woodward / Bates Parking & Site Development

City of Birmingham, Michigan 22 Request for Developer Qualifications

ATTACHMENT B 
Easement Benefitting 325 N. Old Woodward 



N. Old Woodward / Bates Parking & Site Development

City of Birmingham, Michigan 17 Request for Developer Qualifications

ATTACHMENT C 



N. Old Woodward / Bates Parking & Site Development

City of Birmingham, Michigan 18 Request for Developer Qualifications

ATTACHMENT D 



N. Old Woodward / Bates Parking & Site Development

City of Birmingham, Michigan 23 Request for Developer Qualifications

Booth Park trail 
connection to 

Bates Street site. 

ATTACHMENT E 
Booth Park Trail 

Connection 



BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

WILLITS ST

(R.O.W. WIDTH VARIES)

N. BATES ST.
(60' WIDE R.O.W.)

N
. B

A
T

E
S

 S
T

.

(5
0'

 W
ID

E
 R

.O
.W

.)

N
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

(R
.O

.W
. VAR

IES)

ROUGE RIVER

GAS MAIN

CAUTION!!

"
4

Topographic / ALTA
NSPS  Survey

1

01020 10 20 30

1" = 20'

NF

N

R. Peery

Part of the Southwest  1 4
of Section 25
T. 2N, R. 10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

City of Birmingham
151 Martin Street
P.O. Box 3001
Birmingham, MI 48012-3001
(248)530-1800
Contact:
Mr. Paul O'Meara, P.E.,
City Engineer

Redevelopment of Parking
Structure No. 5

07-02-15

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

REVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

I565
NFE JOB NO.

SCALE:

NF

N

Location  Map

 UTILITY NOTE

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE

EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE

SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL

AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.

THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR

IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY

THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

B. Buchholz / K. Navaroli

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (TITLE COMMITMENT):

TITLE COMMITMENT NO. 63-18611484-SCM, WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF 09-04-2018, ISSUED

BY ATA NATIONAL TITLE GROUP

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS SURVEYED):

”

“

Site

PARKING LOT 173

GARAGE 572

TOTAL 745

EXISTING PARKING SPACES:

LEGEND
CATCH BASIN

REAR YARD BASIN

STORM SEWER MANHOLE

END SECTION

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT

COMBINED SEWER MANHOLE

GATE VALVE & WELL

HYDRANT

WATER SHUT OFF

WELL

NOT FOUND

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

TELEPHONE MANHOLE

UTILITY POLE

GUY POLE

GUY WIRE

LIGHT POLE

PUBLIC TELEPHONE

ELECTRIC METER

GAS METER

GAS VALVE

GAS MARKER

SIGN

GUARD POST/BOLLARD

PARKING METER

MAIL BOX

ROCK/BOULDER

SPRINKLER VALVE BOX

SPRINKLER HEAD

FOUND PROPERTY MARKER

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

WATER MAIN

GAS MAIN

OVERHEAD CABLES

UNDERGROUND CABLES

SET PROPERTY MARKER

DOWNSPOUT

LANDSCAPED AREA

PINE TREE

DECIDUOUS TREE

FOUND SECTION CORNER

ASPH PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

HANDICAP PARKING SPACE

FLAG POLE

WALL MOUNTED LIGHT

FOUND PK NAIL

FLOOD HAZARD NOTE

FLOODWAY AREA

SEWER STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

SURVEY NOTES

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

ATTACHMENT F



ATA National Title Group, LLC
42651 Woodward Ave.

Bloomfield Hills, MI  48304
Ph:(248) 338-7135 Fax:(248) 338-3045

Record Search furnished to:
Beier Howlett
3001 West Big Beaver, Ste. 200
Troy, MI  48084
Tim Currier

File No. 63-18611484-SCM

TITLE INFORMATION REPORT

DESCRIPTION OF REAL ESTATE

Situated in the City of Birmingham,  County of Oakland, State of Michigan, as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT A

Re:  333 N Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, MI 48009
Tax Item No.  19-25-376-097

Owner(s): City of Birmingham, a Municipal Corporation

Easement Agreement recorded in Liber 63 Miscellaneous Records, Page 476, Oakland County Records.1.

Sewer Easement Agreement as recorded in Liber 1761, Page 399, Oakland County Records.2.

Deed for highway purposes to the City of Birmingham recorded in Liber 3527, Page 62, Oakland County3.
Records and reverter recited therein, as to the Southerly portion of Lots 1 and 2.

Easement for ingress and egress over Lots 11 and 12 as reserved in Warranty Deed recorded in Liber 4850,4.
Page 50, Oakland County Records.

Easement Agreement recorded in Liber 4865, Page 474, Oakland County Records.5.

Terms, Conditions and Provisions of Agreement for the Construction and Maintenance of Vehicular Access6.
recorded January 23, 1995 in Liber 15216 on Page 362, Oakland County Records.

Terms, Conditions and Provisions of Consolidating Easement and Restriction recorded February 22, 2006 in7.
Liber 37149 on Page 204, which reference and incorporate the following  Agreements recorded in Liber 3557 on
Page 11, Liber 3562 on Page 307, Liber 3622 on Page 220, and in Liber 4845 on Page 79, Oakland County
Records.

Terms, Conditions and Provisions of Parking Agreement recorded  June 1, 2006 in Liber 37645 on Page 91,8.
Oakland County Records.

Agreement and Declaration recorded in Liber 51502, Page 425, Oakland County Records.9.

Rights, if any, of the United States government, the State of Michigan, any other governmental entity, riparian10.
owners, the public or private persons existing in or with respect to the present and past bed, banks, bottomland
and waters of River Rouge.

Any adverse claim based upon the assertion that some portion of the Land is bottom land or has been created11.
by artificial means or has accreted to such portion so created.

COUNTERSIGNED:
ATA NATIONAL TITLE GROUP, LLC

Elie Kaplan
AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY

This information compiled as of an effective date of   September 4, 2018   at 8:00 A.M.

Wednesday, September 26, 2018       Examined By:  Eliezer Kaplan

jecker
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT G

jecker
Typewritten Text



PAYMENT OF TAXES:                                   Tax Parcel No.: 19-25-376-09712.

   2017 December Taxes are Exempt

   2018 July Taxes are Exempt

   Special Assessments:  Exempt

   The amounts shown as due do not include collection fees, penalties or interest.

Terms and Conditions

This document is a search only. It is neither an insurance product nor an opinion of law or title and should not be relied1.
upon as such. In addition, it runs only to the named customer and should not be relied upon for any purpose by any
person or entity other than the named customer and/or its duly appointed representatives and agents.

By receiving and using this product, the customer agrees that the liability of the Company, its subsidiaries and2.
affiliates, for any direct or indirect loss shall be limited to either the amount of the loss or the amount paid for this
search, whichever is less.



EXHIBIT "A"

The land referred to in this search is described as follows: City of Birmingham,  County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Lots 1 through 8 inclusive, of Schlaack Subdivision as recorded in Liber 8, Page 8 of Plats, Oakland County Records,
EXCEPT that part of Lots 3 and 4 beginning at the most Easterly corner of Lot 3; thence South 67 degrees 34 minutes 20
seconds West 50.53 feet; thence North 14 degrees 06 minutes 00 seconds West 50.32 feet; thence North 59 degrees 26
minutes 20 seconds East to the East line of Lot 4; thence Southeasterly along said line to beginning, ALSO EXCEPT the
South 24 feet of Lot 8, ALSO that part of vacated Bates Street adjacent to said Lots, and Part of Lot 10, Assessor's Plat
No. 27, as recorded in Liber 6, Page 46 of Plats, Oakland County Records described as beginning at the Northwest Lot
corner; thence Northeasterly 64.11 feet along the North Lot line; thence South 59 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds West
to the West Lot line; thence Northwesterly to beginning, ALSO all of Lots 11 through 15 inclusive, ALSO Lot 16 EXCEPT
the North 40 feet thereof, ALSO All of Lot 19, ALSO EXCEPT part of Lots 3 and 4 of Schlaack Subdivision as recorded in
Liber 8, Page 8 of Plats, Oakland County Records, and Part of Lots 10 and 11 of Assessor's Plat No 27, as recorded in
Liber 6, Page 46 of Plats, Oakland County Records in parcel described as beginning at a point distant South 63 degrees
11 minutes 50 seconds West 16.85 feet from the Southeast corner of said  Lot 11; thence South 63 degrees 11 minutes
50 seconds West 103.15 feet; thence South 59 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds West 99.61 feet; thence North 14
degrees 06 minutes 00 seconds West 6.42 feet; thence North 59 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds East 217.53 feet;
thence South 30 degrees 33 minutes 40 seconds East 4.01 feet; thence South 63 degrees 11 minutes 50 seconds West
16.19 feet; thence South 26 degrees 48 minutes 10 seconds East 10 feet to the point of beginning, ALSO EXCEPT that
part of Lot 11 of Assessor's Plat No. 27, as recorded in Liber 6, Page 46, of Plats, Oakland County Records, described as
beginning at the Southeast Lot corner; thence South 63 degrees 11 minutes 50 seconds West 16.85 feet; thence North
26 degrees 48 minutes 10 seconds West 10 feet; thence North 63 degrees 11 minutes 50 seconds East 16.19 feet;
thence South 30 degrees 33 minutes 40 seconds East 10 feet to the point of beginning.



PHASE I  
ENVIRONMENTAL 
SITE ASSESSMENT 
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, Michigan 

PREPARED FOR 

PROJECT # 

DATE 

City of Birmingham 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009 

13661F‐1‐17 

September 28, 2018 

ATTACHMENT H



Table of Contents  

 

 

I

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .......................................................................................................................... I 

1.0  INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1  PURPOSE ................................................................................................................................. 1 

1.2  SCOPE OF SERVICES ................................................................................................................ 2 

1.3  LIMITING CONDITIONS AND EXCEPTIONS .............................................................................. 2 

1.4  SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS ......................................................................................... 2 

1.5  RELIANCE................................................................................................................................. 2 

2.0  USER AND/OR CLIENT PROVIDED INFORMATION ........................................................................ 2 

2.1  ENVIRONMENTAL LIENS OR ACTIVITY AND USE LIMITATIONS ............................................... 3 

2.2  SPECIALIZED KNOWLEDGE OR EXPERIENCE OF THE USER ..................................................... 3 

2.3  ACTUAL KNOWLEDGE OF THE USER ....................................................................................... 3 

2.4  VALUE REDUCTION DUE TO CONTAMINATION ....................................................................... 3 

2.5  COMMONLY KNOWN OR REASONABLY ASCERTAINABLE INFORMATION ............................... 4 

2.6  PRESENCE OR LIKELY PRESENCE OF CONTAMINATION ........................................................... 4 

2.7  REASON FOR PERFORMING THIS PHASE I ESA ........................................................................ 4 

3.0  SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION ............................................................................................... 4 

3.1  LOCATION AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION ...................................................................................... 4 

3.2  SUBJECT PROPERTY AND VICINITY CHARACTERISTICS ............................................................ 5 

3.3  DESCRIPTION OF STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS ............................................... 5 

3.4  CURRENT USE OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY ............................................................................ 5 

3.5  UTILITIES AND MUNICIPAL SERVICES ...................................................................................... 6 

3.6  CURRENT USES OF THE ADJOINING PROPERTIES ................................................................... 7 

4.0  RECORDS REVIEW ....................................................................................................................... 8 

4.1  PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCES .................................................................................................. 8 

4.2  STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORD SOURCES ................................................................... 9 

4.2.1  Subject Property Listings ...................................................................................... 10 

4.2.2  Adjoining Properties ............................................................................................. 10 

4.2.3  Nearby Sites.......................................................................................................... 10 

4.3  REGULATORY AGENCY FILE AND RECORDS REVIEW ............................................................. 11 

4.3.1  MDEQ Waste Management and Radiological Protection Division (WMRPD) ...... 11 

4.3.2  MDEQ Remediation and Redevelopment Division (RRD) ..................................... 11 

4.3.3  Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA) ...................... 11 

4.3.4  MDEQ Office of Oil, Gas and Minerals (OOGM) ................................................... 12 

4.3.5  MDEQ Air Quality Division (AQD) ......................................................................... 12 



Table of Contents (continued)   

ii 

4.3.6  MDEQ Water Resources Division (WRD) .............................................................. 12 

4.4  ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORD SOURCES .............................................................. 12 

4.4.1  Local Health Department ..................................................................................... 12 

4.4.2  Local Fire Department .......................................................................................... 12 

4.4.3  Previous Environmental Reports .......................................................................... 13 

4.5  HISTORICAL USE INFORMATION ........................................................................................... 13 

4.5.1  Aerial Photographs ............................................................................................... 14 

4.5.2  Fire Insurance Maps ............................................................................................. 15 

4.5.3  City Directories ..................................................................................................... 17 

4.5.4  Assessing Department Records ............................................................................ 19 

4.5.5  Building Department Records .............................................................................. 19 

4.5.6  Recorded Land Title Records ................................................................................ 19 

4.5.7  Other Historical Information ................................................................................ 19 

5.0  INTERVIEWS .............................................................................................................................. 20 

5.1  INTERVIEW WITH SUBJECT PROPERTY OWNER .................................................................... 20 

5.2  INTERVIEW WITH KEY SITE MANAGER ................................................................................. 20 

5.3  INTERVIEW WITH SUBJECT PROPERTY OCCUPANT(S) .......................................................... 20 

5.4  INTERVIEW(S) WITH OTHERS ................................................................................................ 20 

6.0  SUBJECT PROPERTY RECONNAISSANCE ..................................................................................... 20 

6.1  METHODOLOGY AND LIMITING CONDITIONS ...................................................................... 20 

6.2  GENERAL SUBJECT PROPERTY SETTING AND OPERATIONS .................................................. 21 

6.3  OBSERVATIONS ..................................................................................................................... 21 

6.3.1  Hazardous Substances and Petroleum Products .................................................. 21 

6.3.2  Hazardous and Non‐Hazardous Waste ................................................................. 21 

6.3.3  Storage Tanks ........................................................................................................ 21 

6.3.4  Unidentified Substances/Containers .................................................................... 21 

6.3.5  Potential Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) Containing Electrical Equipment ........ 21 

6.3.6  Interior Staining/Corrosion .................................................................................. 22 

6.3.7  Drains and Sumps ................................................................................................. 22 

6.3.8  Discharge Features ............................................................................................... 22 

6.3.9  Pits, Ponds, and Lagoons ...................................................................................... 22 

6.3.10  Solid Waste Dumping/Landfilling ......................................................................... 22 

6.3.11  Stained Soil, Stressed Vegetation, Stained Pavement .......................................... 22 

6.3.12  Well and Septic Systems ....................................................................................... 23 

6.3.13  Other Observations .............................................................................................. 23 

6.3.14  Adjoining Properties ............................................................................................. 23 

6.4  NON‐ASTM SCOPE CONSIDERATIONS ................................................................................... 23 

7.0  FINDINGS, OPINIONS, AND CONCLUSIONS ................................................................................ 24 



Table of Contents (continued)       

 

iii 
 

7.1  RECOGNIZED ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS ...................................................................... 24 

7.2  CONTROLLED RECOGNIZED ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS ............................................... 25 

7.3  HISTORICAL RECOGNIZED ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS .................................................. 25 

7.4  DE MINIMIS CONDITIONS ..................................................................................................... 25 

7.5  AREAS OF POTENTIAL ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERN ............................................................. 25 

8.0  DEVIATIONS .............................................................................................................................. 26 

9.0  DATA GAPS ................................................................................................................................ 26 

10.0  PROJECT RESOURCES AND REFERENCES..................................................................................... 26 

11.0  SIGNATURES OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS .................................................................. 26 

 

QUALIFICATIONS 

FIGURES 

Figure 1 ................................................................................................................ Topographic Location Map 

Figure 2 ........................................................................................................................ Subject Property Map 

Figure 3 ......................................................................................................... Subject Property Location Map 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A ............................................................................................. General Limitations and Exceptions 

Appendix B .......................................................................................... Property Description and Parcel Map 

Appendix C ....................................................................................................... Reconnaissance Photographs 

Appendix D ....................................................................... Standard Environmental Record Database Report 

Appendix E ............................................................................................... Aerial Photograph Documentation 

Appendix F ............................................................................................. Fire Insurance Map Documentation 

Appendix G ................................................................................................... Other Relevant Documentation 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page i 

 

PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT 
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, Michigan 
AKT Peerless Project No. 13661F‐1‐17 

Executive Summary 
AKT Peerless conducted a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) for the subject property as 
described below in accordance with United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Standards 
and Practices for All Appropriate Inquires [(AAI), 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 312] and 
ASTM International Standard Practice E 1527‐13 (ASTM Practice E 1527). This Phase I ESA was performed 
for City of Birmingham (Client) in connection with a possible redevelopment of the subject property by 
way of a ground lease. 

Subject Property Description 

Address  333 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, Michigan 

Land Area  Approximately 3.9 acres 

Parcel ID Number(s)  08‐19‐25‐376‐097 

Number of Building(s)  One 

Date(s) of Construction  1966 

Building Square Footage  Approximately 40,000 square feet (footprint) 

Current Use  Ground level parking lot and four‐story (five‐deck) parking deck 

Current Occupants  City of Birmingham 

Past Use  Residential, commercial 

Adjoining Property Uses 

North: Booth Park 
Northeast: Undeveloped land; Brookside Residences (under 
construction) 
East: Steinhardt Pesick & Cohen, P.C.; The Law Firm of John F. 
Schaefer; Strength Capital Partners; Morganroth & Morganroth, PLLC; 
SAIC USA 
Southeast: UBS; Fleming’s Prime Steakhouse & Wine Bar; Beal Bank; 
Poggen Pohl; Centigrade; Tilt; Google Inc. 
South: Cameron’s Steakhouse; other street level and commercial 
office space occupants not identified 
Southwest: McCann Detroit; First Baptist Church 
West: Single‐family residential 
Northwest: Booth Park 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page ii 

 

Address  333 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, Michigan 

Inferred Groundwater Flow Direction  West 

Approximate Groundwater Depth  Unknown 

OPINIONS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Recognized Environmental Conditions (RECs) 

This assessment has revealed no evidence of known RECs in connection with the subject property, 
except for the following: 

REC 1 ‐  According to fire insurance maps, the subject property formerly included 12 developed lots, in 
addition to one undeveloped lot, an apparent alley, and a portion of an adjoining developed lot. 
Between approximately 1915 and 1960, up to 12 residential and/or commercial structures were 
located entirely on the subject property. Municipal records and fire insurance maps indicate that 
at least three of these structures, located at 244 and 292 Willits Street and 248 N. Bates Street, 
may have included basements. The origin of the fill material used to fill basements of former 
structures at the subject property, if any, prior to conversion of the southern portion of the 
subject property to a street level parking lot in the mid‐1950s to early‐1960s is unknown. The 
unknown origin of such fill material represents an REC. 

REC 2 ‐  According to fire insurance maps and city directories, a dry cleaner operated on an eastern 
adjoining property located at 324‐332 N. Old Woodward Avenue from at least 1944 until at least 
1960. Historical dry‐cleaning operations typically involved the use of petroleum and/or 
chlorinated solvents. In addition, the eastern adjoining property located at 322 N. Old 
Woodward Avenue was identified as a Part 201 site in the regulatory database report. Part 201 
sites are Michigan sites at which contamination has been identified at concentrations exceeding 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) Generic Cleanup Criteria. No further 
information regarding the Part 201 site status of the eastern adjoining property was identified. 
The subject property is located at an inferred hydraulically down‐gradient position relative to the 
eastern adjoining property. Therefore, the potential for migration of contamination from the 
eastern adjoining property toward the subject property represents an REC. 

It is important to note that, under Part 201 of the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act (NREPA) Section 20126(4)(c), a property owner is not liable for contamination 
migrating from an off‐site source, unless the owner is responsible for an activity causing the 
release that is the source of the contamination. However, if contamination is identified on the 
subject property, the subject property owner may be required to comply with certain Due Care 
obligations pursuant to Section 20107a(1). 

Further assessment is warranted to evaluate the nature, extent, magnitude, and materiality of the 
above‐identified RECs. 

Controlled Recognized Environmental Conditions (CRECs) 

This assessment has revealed no evidence of known CRECs in connection with the subject property. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page iii 

 

Historical Recognized Environmental Conditions (HRECs) 

This assessment has revealed no evidence of known HRECs in connection with the subject property. 

The Executive Summary above is an overview of the opinions and conclusions of this Phase I ESA and 
shall not be considered apart from the entire report, which contains the rationale and qualifications used 
by AKT Peerless in making the opinions and conclusions presented herein. Furthermore, non‐ASTM 
scope considerations, if any, are reported in Section 6.4 and Other Potential Environmental Concerns 
(PECs), if any, are reported in Section 7.5. These conditions are not included in this Executive Summary.



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 1 

 

1.0 Introduction 
City of Birmingham (Client) retained AKT Peerless to conduct a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
(ESA) of the property located at 333 N. Old Woodward Avenue in Birmingham, Oakland County, Michigan 
(the subject property). This Phase I ESA was conducted in accordance with: (1) United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Standards and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries [(AAI), 40 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 312] and (2) guidelines established by ASTM International (ASTM) 
in the Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment 
Process / Designation E 1527‐13 (ASTM Practice E 1527). 

For the purpose of this Phase I ESA, the Client is the party that retained AKT Peerless to complete this 
Phase I ESA. AKT Peerless has not made an independent determination if its Client is also a User that 
intends to rely on this Phase I ESA to qualify for Landowner Liability Protection (LLP) under the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) of 1980. In 
accordance with ASTM Practice E 1527, a User is the party seeking to use ASTM Practice E 1527 to 
complete an environmental site assessment of the subject property. A User may include, without 
limitation, a potential purchaser of property, a potential tenant of property, an owner of property, a 
lender, or a property manager. Furthermore, a User seeking to qualify for an LLP to CERCLA liability has 
specific obligations for completing a successful application of this practice. AKT Peerless’ scope of work 
does not include an evaluation or completion of these specific user obligations under ASTM Practice E 
1527, unless otherwise noted. 

1.1 Purpose 
The purpose of this Phase I ESA was to evaluate the current and historical conditions of the subject 
property in an effort to identify recognized environmental conditions (RECs)1, controlled recognized 
environmental conditions (CRECs)2, historical recognized environmental conditions (HRECs)3, and de 
minimis conditions4 in connection with the subject property. Moreover, this practice may permit certain 
users of this Phase I ESA to satisfy environmental due diligence requirements to qualify for the bona fide 
prospective purchaser, contiguous landowner, or innocent landowner limitations under CERCLA, the 
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA) of 1986, and the Small Business Liability and 
Brownfields Revitalization Act (Brownfields Amendments) of 2002. This Phase I ESA is intended to 
reduce, but not eliminate, uncertainty regarding the potential for environmental conditions in 
connection with the subject property. 

                                                            

 

1 ASTM Standard Practice E 1527‐13 defines the term REC as the presence or likely presence of any hazardous substance or 
petroleum product in, on, or at a property: (1) due to any release to the environment; (2) under conditions indicative of a 
release to the environment; or (3) under conditions that pose a material threat of a future release to the environment.   
2 ASTM Standard Practice E 1527‐13 defines the term CREC as a REC resulting from a past release of hazardous substances or 
petroleum products that has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory authority, with hazardous 
substances or petroleum products allowed to remain in place subject to the implementation of required controls.  
3 ASTM Standard Practice E 1527‐13 defines the term HREC as a past release of any hazardous substance or petroleum products 
that has occurred in connection with the property and has been addressed to the satisfaction of the applicable regulatory 
authority or meeting unrestricted residential use criteria established by a regulatory authority, without subjecting the property 
to any required controls.  
4 ASTM Standard Practice E 1527‐13 defines the term de minimis condition as a condition that generally does not present a 
threat to human health or the environment and that generally would not be subject to an enforcement action if brought to the 
attention of appropriate government agencies.  



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 2 

 

1.2 Scope of Services 
AKT Peerless’ scope‐of‐services is based on its proposal PF‐23095, dated August 16, 2018, and the terms 
and conditions of that agreement. This Phase I ESA included the following: 

 An inquiry of environmental conditions by an Environmental Professional. 

 A review of specialized knowledge reported by the Client. 

 A review of relevant public and historical records, including those maintained by federal, state, 
tribal, and local government agencies. 

 Interviews with relevant regulatory officials and personnel associated or knowledgeable with the 
subject property, including as appropriate past and present owners, or neighbors if the subject 
property is abandoned. 

 A reconnaissance of the subject property. The adjoining properties were observed from the 
subject property and from readily accessible public rights‐of‐way. 

1.3 Limiting Conditions and Exceptions 

A list of general limitations and exceptions typically encountered when completing Phase I ESAs is 
provided in Appendix A. In certain instances, limiting conditions, data failures, or data gaps, as defined by 
ASTM, may prevent adherence to all ASTM Practice E 1527 requirements. In such cases, the limiting 
conditions, data gaps, or data failures are discussed in the appropriate sections of this report. 

Should additional information become available to the Client that differs significantly from our 
understanding of conditions presented in this report, AKT Peerless requests that such information be 
forwarded immediately to our attention, so that we may reassess the conclusions provided herein and 
amend this project’s scope of services as necessary and appropriate. 

1.4 Special Terms and Conditions 

To the best of AKT Peerless’ knowledge, no special terms or conditions, or client‐imposed constraints, 
apply to the preparation of this Phase I ESA. 

1.5 Reliance 
AKT Peerless performed this Phase I ESA for the benefit of its Client, City of Birmingham. AKT Peerless 
acknowledges that this party may rely on the contents and conclusions presented in this report. Unless 
stated otherwise in writing, AKT Peerless makes no other warranty, representation, or extension of 
reliance upon the findings of this report to any other entity or third party. 

2.0 User and/or Client Provided Information 
In order to qualify for one of the LLPs offered by the Brownfields Amendments, a User must conduct 
certain inquiries as described in 40 CFR 312. If the Client intends to use ASTM Practice E 1527 to qualify 
for an LLP to CERCLA liability, then AAI requires that certain tasks be performed by – or on behalf of – 
that party. As appropriate, these inquiries must also be conducted by USEPA Brownfield Assessment and 
Characterization grantees. While such information is not required to be provided to the Environmental 
Professional, AKT Peerless requested this information from its Client in the form of a Questionnaire, 
Document Request Form, and Interviews as such information can assist the Environmental Professional 
in identifying environmental conditions. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 3 

 

AKT Peerless provided a Questionnaire and Document Request Form to Ms. Tiffany Gunter, Assistant City 
Manager for the City of Birmingham. As appropriate, AKT Peerless conducted follow‐up interviews with 
Ms. Gunter. The following subsections summarize the information and responses provided by the Client. 
The completed Questionnaire is provided in Appendix G. 

2.1 Environmental Liens or Activity and Use Limitations 

ASTM Practice E 1527 Section 6.2 and AAI (40 CFR 312.20, 25, and 26) require that Users search 
recorded title and judicial records for registered Environmental Liens or/and Activity and Use Limitations 
(AULs). The results of the User’s search should be communicated to the Environmental Professional. This 
search is in addition to the review of environmental liens and AULs conducted by the Environmental 
Professional (refer to Section 4.3.2 of this Phase I ESA). 

The Client did not report (1) environmental cleanup liens against the subject property that are filed or 
recorded under federal, tribal, state, or local law; (2) AULs, such as engineering controls, land use 
restrictions or institutional controls, that are in place at the subject property and/or have been filed or 
recorded in a registry under federal, tribal, state, or local law; or (3) recorded land title or judicial 
records, except for land title records documenting an ingress/egress easement for Burton‐Katzman 
associated with access to a private parking deck located beneath the commercial building on the 
southeastern adjoining property. The Client provided these land title records for AKT Peerless’ review. 
Refer to Section 4.5.6 for additional information. 

2.2 Specialized Knowledge or Experience of the User 
ASTM Practice E 1527 Section 6.3 and AAI (40 CFR 312.28) require that the User take into account their 
specialized knowledge to identify conditions indicative of releases or threatened releases associated 
with the subject property, and suggest this information be communicated to the Environmental 
Professional before the site reconnaissance.  

The Client did not report specialized knowledge or experience regarding the environmental condition of 
the subject property. 

2.3 Actual Knowledge of the User 
ASTM Practice E 1527 Section 6.4 suggests that the User communicate actual knowledge of any 
environmental lien or AULs associated with the subject property to the Environmental Professional. 

The Client did not report actual knowledge of environmental liens or AULs associated with the subject 
property. 

2.4 Value Reduction Due to Contamination 

For transactions involving the purchase of commercial real estate, ASTM Practice E 1527 Section 6.5 and 
AAI (40 CFR 312.29) require the User to consider the relationship of the purchase price to the fair market 
value of the subject property as an indicator of potential contamination and make a written record of 
that explanation. 

The Client did not report knowledge of, or reason to anticipate, a reduction in the value of the subject 
property for environmental issues. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 4 

 

2.5 Commonly Known or Reasonably Ascertainable Information 

ASTM Practice E 1527 Section 6.6 and AAI (40 CFR 312.30) require the User to take into account 
commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information within the local community about the subject 
property. 

The Client did not report such commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information. 

2.6 Presence or Likely Presence of Contamination 

ASTM Practice E 1527 Section 6.7 and AAI (40 CFR 312.31) require the User to consider the degree of 
obviousness of the presence or likely presence of contamination at the subject property, and the ability 
to detect the contamination by appropriate investigation. 

The Client did not report on the degree of obviousness of the presence or likely presence of 
contamination at the subject property or the ability to detect the contamination by appropriate 
investigations. 

2.7 Reason for Performing this Phase I ESA 

ASTM Practice E 1527 requires that the User provide the Environmental Professional with the reason for 
performing the Phase I ESA. 

The Client reported that this Phase I ESA was conducted as part of environmental due diligence related 
to a possible redevelopment of the subject property by way of a ground lease. 

3.0 Subject Property Description 

3.1 Location and Legal Description 
The subject property is located in the southwest ¼ of Section 25 in Birmingham (T.2N./R.10E.), Oakland 
County, Michigan. The subject property is located on the west side of N. Old Woodward Avenue, north of 
Willits Street. See the following table for additional subject property details: 

Subject Property Identifiers 

Address 
Tax Identification 

Number 
Owner of Record 

Approximate 
Acreage 

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue*  08‐19‐25‐376‐097  City of Birmingham  3.9 acres 

*Note: According to Oakland County Equalization Division, the subject property lacks a legal address. 

The subject property has historically been associated with the following addresses: 

 331, 343, 351, 361, and 363 N. Old Woodward (post‐1920s); 
 213, 217, 221, 227, and 229 N. Woodard (pre‐1920s); 
 190, 244, and 292 Willits (post‐1920s); 
 114, 120, and 124 Willetts (1920s); 
 117, 119, and 121 Willetts (c. 1915) 
 205, 206, and 207 Willetts (pre‐1910s); 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 5 

 

 247, 248, 251, 263, 264, 266, 275, 276, and 277 N. Bates (post‐1920s); and 
 211, 212, 214, 216, 217, 218, and 219 N. Bates (pre‐1920s). 

Refer to Figure 1, Topographic Location Map; Figure 2, Subject Property Map; and Figure 3, Subject 
Property Location Map. The legal description of the subject property is presented in Appendix B. 

3.2 Subject Property and Vicinity Characteristics 
The subject property is currently zoned Public Property (PP) and is located in an area of Birmingham that 
is characterized by commercial and residential properties, a church, surface roadways, municipal sanitary 
sewer and water, and electric and gas utilities. 

3.3 Description of Structures and Other Improvements 

General information regarding the on‐site building is presented in the following table: 

Subject Building: 333 N. Old Woodward Avenue (Parking Deck) 

General Construction  Four‐story (five‐deck) parking deck, concrete and steel frame, masonry exterior, 
concrete slab on grade foundation, two elevator pits, no basement 

Predominant Interior Finish  Concrete floors, walls, ceiling; paint, metal, glass 

Square Footage 
(footprint) 

Approximately 40,000 square feet 

Construction and Other 
Improvement Dates 

Constructed in 1966 

Interior Areas   Four‐story parking deck; first‐level restroom and second‐level fire suppression 
pump room at northeast tower; first‐level elevator pit at southeast tower; first‐
level elevator pit and storage closet with oil separator at southwest tower; full‐
height snow chute/first‐level empty garage with one overhead door at northwest 
tower. 

The exterior of the subject property consists of asphalt street‐level parking areas and wooded areas 
within the Rouge River floodplain. Block/brick walls and/or fencing surround the street‐level parking 
area. Vehicular access to the subject property is restricted by traffic control gates. 

Photographs taken during AKT Peerless’ subject property reconnaissance are provided in Appendix C. 

3.4 Current Use of the Subject Property 
The subject property is used for street‐level parking and the subject building consists of a four‐story 
parking deck. The subject property is accessible to vehicular traffic by traffic control gates fronting N. Old 
Woodward Avenue and N. Bates Street. The undeveloped floodplain on the northwestern portion of the 
subject property is not used for a significant or obvious purpose.  



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 6 

 

3.5 Utilities and Municipal Services 

AKT Peerless identified the type and supplier of utilities provided to the subject property. These services 
are described in the following table: 

Subject Property Utility Data 

Utility / 
Service 

Type  Utility Company 
or Municipality 

Comments/Historical Services 

Heat  Natural Gas  Consumers 
Energy 

According to Consumers Energy records, natural gas 
service has been available to the area of the subject 
property since at least 1949. However, heat appears to be 
provided to the three stair towers by an electric heating 
system. Only limited information regarding heating fuel 
source(s) utilized on‐site prior to construction of the 
subject building was identified. 

Potable 
water 

Municipal 
 

City of 
Birmingham 

According to the City of Birmingham, municipal water 
service was connected to the subject building during 
construction in 1966. Only limited information regarding 
potable water sources utilized on‐site prior to construction 
of the subject building was identified.  

Electricity  Electric lines/ 
transformer 

DTE Energy  Electricity is connected to the subject property.  

Sewage 
disposal 

Municipal  City of 
Birmingham 

According to the City of Birmingham, municipal sanitary 
sewer service was connected to the subject building during 
construction in 1966. Only limited information regarding 
sewage disposal systems utilized on‐site prior to the 
construction of the subject building was identified.  

Storm water  Not identified  Not identified  Storm water utilities are available to the subject property. 

AKT Peerless’ review of readily available standard and other historical sources provided only limited 
information regarding heating fuel sources associated with the former residential and commercial 
structures present on the subject property from prior to 1893 up to 1963. The possibility exists that 
alternative heating fuels (i.e. steam, propane, wood, electric, coal, and/or fuel oil) were used by previous 
occupants of the subject property prior to the availability of natural gas.  

The potential for the past use of fuel oil underground storage tanks (USTs) on the subject property was 
considered. Based on a review of available information and observations during the completion of this 
Phase I ESA, AKT Peerless did not identify evidence of fuel oil USTs on the subject property. However, as 
the available information was not exhaustive, the potential remains for fuel oil USTs associated with 
historical residential and/or commercial structures to be present at the subject property. In AKT Peerless’ 
opinion, if heating oil containers are identified or encountered during future redevelopment activities, 
they should be decommissioned, removed, and/or disposed in accordance with applicable federal, state, 
and local regulations.  



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 7 

 

AKT Peerless’ review of readily available standard and other historical sources provided only limited 
information regarding water and sanitary sewer utilities associated with the former residential and/or 
commercial structures present on the subject property from prior to 1893 up to 1963. 

According to fire insurance maps, municipal water service has been available to the area of the subject 
property since at least 1893. Water service connection dates to former residential and/or commercial 
structures were not identified. The date of installation of the municipal sanitary sewer system was not 
identified. Sewer service connection dates to former residential and/or commercial structures were also 
not identified, except for the former dwellings located at 275 and 277 N. Bates Street, which were 
connected to sanitary sewer service in the early‐ to mid‐1940s. The former dwelling located at 275 N. 
Bates Street reportedly utilized septic tank(s) and a septic field prior to connection.  

Previous residential and/or commercial structures associated with the subject property may therefore 
have utilized on‐site potable water wells or private septic systems. While it is likely these features would 
have been identified and removed during conversion of the southern portion of the subject property to a 
surface parking lot, in AKT Peerless’ opinion, if drinking water wells or septic systems are identified or 
encountered during future redevelopment activities, they should be decommissioned, removed, and/or 
disposed in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local regulations. It is also AKT Peerless’ 
opinion that, given the historical residential and/or commercial use of the subject property, the former 
use of septic systems does not represent an environmental concern. 

3.6 Current Uses of the Adjoining Properties 
The following table describes the current uses and/or occupants of the adjoining properties, as identified 
during this Phase I ESA: 

Adjoining Property Data 

Direction   Address  Current Use / Occupant 

North  No address identified  Recreation / Booth Park 

Northeast  No address identified  Undeveloped land 

369 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Condominiums / Brookside Residences (under construction) 

East  380 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Commercial / Steinhardt Pesick & Cohen, P.C.; The Law Firm of 
John F. Schaefer 

350 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Commercial / Strength Capital Partners 

344 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Commercial / Morganroth & Morganroth, PLLC 

320 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Commercial / SAIC USA 

Southeast  325 N. Old Woodward Avenue 
and 108‐114 Willits Street 

Commercial / UBS; Fleming’s Prime Steakhouse & Wine Bar; Beal 
Bank; Poggen Pohl; Centigrade; Tilt; Google Inc. 

South  111‐117 Willits Street  Commercial / Cameron’s Steakhouse; other street level and 
commercial office space occupants not identified 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 8 

 

Direction   Address  Current Use / Occupant 

Southwest  336 W. Maple Road  Commercial / McCann Detroit 

300 Willits Street  First Baptist Church 

No address identified   Undeveloped land 

West  300 Warren Court  Single‐family residential / not identified 

Northwest  No address identified  Recreation / Booth Park 

4.0 Records Review 
The objective of the records review is to evaluate reasonably ascertainable databases, historical records, 
and physical setting records to help identify RECs at the subject property and, to the extent identifiable, 
at surrounding properties. 

4.1 Physical Setting Sources 
AKT Peerless reviewed various available physical setting sources about the geologic, hydrogeologic, 
hydrologic, and topographic characteristics that may affect potential contaminant migration to the 
subject property, or within or from the subject property. The results of AKT Peerless' review are 
presented in the following table: 

Physical Setting Data 

Physical Setting Information  Data Sources 

General Topography and Hydrogeology 

Subject Property 
Elevation 

767 feet above the National Geodetic Vertical 
Datum 

United States Geological Survey 
(USGS) Topographic Map of the 
Birmingham, Michigan 
Quadrangle (1968, photo 
revised 1981) 

Topographic Gradient  Slope toward the Rouge River, which transects 
the northern portion of the subject property 

Closest Surface Water  Rouge River, transecting the northern portion of 
the subject property 

General Soil and Geology 

Bedrock  Coldwater Shale of an unassigned group, which is 
included in the Kinderhookian series within the 
Mississippian system of the Paleozoic Era. 

Michigan Department of 
Natural Resources (MDNR) 
Geological Survey Division’s 
publication, Bedrock Geology of 
Southern Michigan (1987) 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 9 

 

Physical Setting Information  Data Sources 

Quaternary Soils 
Description 

Lacustrine clay and silt, described as gray to dark 
reddish brown and varved in some localities. The 
soil chiefly underlies extensive, flat, low‐lying 
areas formerly inundated by glacial Great Lakes. 
Soil thickness ranges from 10 to 30 feet. Typically, 
lacustrine clay and silt are associated with low 
hydraulic permeability and restrict the movement 
of groundwater. 

MDNR Geological Survey 
Division’s publication, 
Quaternary Geology of 
Southern Michigan (1982) 

County Soil Survey 
Description 

Urban land‐Marlette‐Capac association, 
described as "urban land and nearly level to hilly, 
well drained to somewhat poorly drained loamy 
soils; on till plains and moraines." Photo Sheet 
106 of the soil survey depicts the subject 
property within an area described as "urban 
land” and “Cohoctah‐Fox association.” 

United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) Soil 
Conservation Service’s (SCS’s) 
publication, Soil Survey of 
Oakland County, Michigan 
(1982) 

Site‐Specific Geology and Hydrogeology 

Soil and bedrock 
characteristics 

No site‐specific soil or bedrock information was 
identified. 

Not applicable 

Groundwater 
characteristics 

No site‐specific groundwater information was 
identified. 

Not applicable 

Based on the information presented above, AKT Peerless infers that groundwater in the vicinity of the 
subject property flows toward the west, with potential influence from the Rouge River. However, local 
manmade structures (e.g., buildings, roads, sewer systems, and utility service lines) may influence both 
surface water and groundwater flow. AKT Peerless was unable to precisely document the groundwater 
flow direction beneath the subject property. To determine the site‐specific groundwater flow direction, 
subsurface information would be necessary. 

AKT Peerless did not identify water supply wells or monitoring wells at the subject property. 
Groundwater from the area of the subject property does not serve as the primary drinking water source 
for properties in the City of Birmingham, which obtains its municipal water from the Great Lakes Water 
Authority (GLWA) by way of the Southeastern Oakland County Water Authority (SOCWA). 

4.2 Standard Environmental Record Sources 

AKT Peerless retained a third‐party vendor to provide current environmental database information 
compiled by a variety of federal and state regulatory agencies. The purpose of obtaining these data was 
to evaluate potential environmental risks associated with the subject property, adjoining properties, and 
nearby sites that are: (1) identified on target lists, and (2) within varying distances of up to one mile from 
the subject property. Refer to the database report included as Appendix D for information regarding 
database descriptions, search radii, and most recent dates the database information was updated by the 
vendor. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 10 

 

4.2.1 Subject Property Listings 
The database report does not identify the subject property on the referenced databases. 

4.2.2 Adjoining Properties 
The database report does not identify the adjoining properties on the referenced databases, except for 
the following: 

Detail Table for Eastern Adjoining Property (322 N. Old Woodward Avenue) 

Address  Name  Distance/Direction 
Known/Inferred Groundwater 

Flow Direction: 

322 N. Old 
Woodward Avenue 

Comerica Bank 
Birmingham 

Adjoining/east  Inferred west 

Databases 

Michigan Inventory of Facilities (Inventory) 
This eastern adjoining property is listed on the Inventory database. The Inventory database identifies facilities 
where state‐funded or private response activities have taken place (Part 201 Projects), facilities under Part 213, 
Leaking Underground Storage Tanks (LUSTs), and facilities identified through submittal of Baseline 
Environmental Assessments (BEAs) under Part 201 or Part 213 of the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act (NREPA), Michigan Public Act 451, 1994, as amended. According to the database report, this 
eastern adjoining property appears on the Inventory database as a Part 201 Project. No further information was 
provided. 
 
Regulatory agency records were not identified for the eastern adjoining property. Refer to Sections 4.5.2 and 
4.5.3 for additional information pertaining to the eastern adjoining property. 

4.2.3 Nearby Sites 
AKT Peerless’ review of the referenced databases also considered the potential or likelihood of 
contamination from nearby sites. To evaluate which of the nearby sites identified in the database report 
present an environmental risk to the subject property, AKT Peerless considered the following criteria: 

 Type of database on which the site is identified. 

 Topographic position of the identified site relative to the subject property. 

 Direction and distance of the identified site from the subject property. 

 Local soil conditions in the subject property area. 

 Known or inferred groundwater flow direction in the subject property area. 

 Status of the respective regulatory agency‐required investigation(s) of the identified site, if any. 

 Surface and subsurface obstructions and diversions (e.g., buildings, roads, sewer systems, utility 
service lines, rivers, lakes, and ditches) located between the identified site and the subject 
property. 

Only those nearby sites that are judged to present a potential environmental risk to the subject property 
are further evaluated by reviewing agency file information. Using the above criteria, and based upon a 
review of readily available information contained within the database report, AKT Peerless did not 
identify nearby sites that present a potential environmental risk to the subject property. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 11 

 

4.3 Regulatory Agency File and Records Review 

4.3.1 MDEQ Waste Management and Radiological Protection Division (WMRPD) 

AKT Peerless submitted a request to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) 
WMRPD to review available file information regarding waste management activities, permits, 
inspections and violations associated with the subject property and the eastern adjoining property. 

AKT Peerless also reviewed the MDEQ Waste Data System (WDS) for information regarding waste 
disposal operations at the subject property and the eastern adjoining property. The WDS tracks activities 
at facilities regulated by the Solid Waste, Scrap Tire, Hazardous Waste, and Liquid Industrial Waste 
programs. 

Subject Property 

According to MDEQ WMRPD, no file information pertaining to the subject property was identified. In 
addition, the subject property was not identified on the WDS. 

Adjoining Properties 

According to MDEQ WMRPD, no file information pertaining to the eastern adjoining property was 
identified. In addition, the eastern adjoining property was not identified on the WDS. 

4.3.2 MDEQ Remediation and Redevelopment Division (RRD) 

AKT Peerless reviewed the RRD’s Perfected Lien List, dated May 4, 2018, to determine if environmental 
cleanup liens had been filed against the subject property.  

AKT Peerless also referenced the MDEQ Storage Tank Information Database (SID) for information 
regarding the subject property and the eastern adjoining property. 

In addition, AKT Peerless submitted a request to MDEQ RRD to review available file information 
regarding USTs, LUSTs, or other environmental records pertaining to the subject property and the 
eastern adjoining property. 

Subject Property 

According to the Perfected Lien List, the MDEQ does not have record of environmental cleanup liens filed 
against the subject property. In addition, the subject property was not identified on the SID. 
Furthermore, according to MDEQ RRD, no file information pertaining to the subject property was 
identified. 

Adjoining Properties 

The eastern adjoining property was not identified on the MDEQ SID. In addition, according to MDEQ 
RRD, no file information pertaining to the eastern adjoining property was identified. 

4.3.3 Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA) 

AKT Peerless reviewed LARA’s Active and Closed UST lists and contacted LARA’s Storage Tank Division 
(STD) for records regarding registered storage tanks associated with the subject property and the eastern 
adjoining property. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 12 

 

Subject Property 

No information pertaining to the subject property was identified in LARA’s Active or Closed UST lists. In 
addition, according to LARA STD, no file information pertaining to the subject property was identified. 

Adjoining Properties 

No information pertaining to the eastern adjoining property was identified on LARA’s Active or Closed 
UST lists. In addition, according to LARA STD, no file information pertaining to the eastern adjoining 
property was identified. 

4.3.4 MDEQ Office of Oil, Gas and Minerals (OOGM) 

AKT Peerless reviewed the MDEQ’s GeoWebFace online geologic mapping program for oil and gas well 
records associated with the subject property. No oil and gas well records pertaining to the subject 
property were identified. 

4.3.5 MDEQ Air Quality Division (AQD) 

AKT Peerless contacted MDEQ AQD to review available records regarding environmental information 
and/or air permits associated with the subject property. According to MDEQ AQD, no file information 
pertaining to the subject property was identified.  

4.3.6 MDEQ Water Resources Division (WRD) 

AKT Peerless contacted MDEQ WRD to review available records regarding environmental information 
associated with the subject property. According to MDEQ WRD, no file information pertaining to the 
subject property was identified. 

4.4 Additional Environmental Record Sources 

4.4.1 Local Health Department 

AKT Peerless submitted a request to the Oakland County Health Department to review information 
pertaining to landfilling, dumping, chemical releases, and hazardous waste sites in connection with the 
subject property, as well as available information regarding wells and/or septic systems associated with 
the subject property. According to Mr. Richard Peresky, Public Health Senior Sanitarian for the 
Environmental Health Services Division, no records pertaining to the subject property were identified. 

4.4.2 Local Fire Department 

AKT Peerless submitted a request to the Birmingham Fire Department to review information pertaining 
to storage tanks, chemical storage, spills/releases, and landfilling/dumping at the subject property. 

The Birmingham Fire Department records for the subject property indicate that a fire was set by an 
arsonist beneath a vehicle parked on the fourth level of the subject building in 1967; the fire was 
extinguished with carbon dioxide by City staff. In addition, the fire department responded to the subject 
building in connection with a leaking vehicle fuel tank in 1971; the vehicle was removed from the subject 
building and the fire department washed down the gasoline that had leaked on to the parking deck with 
approximately 100 gallons of water. No other information material to identifying RECs in connection with 
the subject property was identified in the records. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 13 

 

4.4.3 Previous Environmental Reports 

AKT Peerless was not provided with copies of reports that document previous investigations or 
assessments of the subject property, nor did AKT Peerless identify the existence of such documents 
during this assessment. 

4.5 Historical Use Information 

The objective of reviewing historical sources is to: (1) develop a history of previous uses or specific 
occupancies of the subject property, (2) identify those uses or specific occupancies that are likely to have 
led to potential environmental concerns at the subject property, and to the extent identifiable, at 
adjoining properties, and (3) identify obvious uses of the subject property from the present, back to the 
property’s obvious first developed use, or back to 1940, whichever is earlier. 

Historical Summary – Subject Property 

The following table summarizes the general development and use of the subject property, as identified 
by AKT Peerless based on the referenced data sources: 

Subject Property Historical Use Summary 

Time Period  Improvements  Use  Owner / Occupant  Data Source(s) 

1893‐1952  Residential and/or 
commercial 
structures (up to 12 
main structures) 

Residential and/or 
commercial 

Unknown / Refer to Section 
4.5.3 for a list of occupants 

Fire insurance maps 
Aerial photographs 
City directories 
Municipal records 

1956‐1960  Residential and/or 
commercial 
structures (up to 
three) 
Parking lot  

Residential and/or 
commercial; 
parking 

Unknown / Refer to Section 
4.5.3 for a list of occupants 

Fire insurance maps 
Aerial photographs 
City directories 
Municipal records 

1963‐1965  Parking lot  Parking  Unknown / National Garages 
Inc. 

Aerial photographs 
City directories 
Municipal records 

1966‐2018  Parking deck 
(subject building); 
parking lot 

Parking  Unknown; City of 
Birmingham / National 
Garages Inc.; Municipal 
Parking 

Aerial photographs 
City directories 
Municipal records 
Interviews 
Site reconnaissance 

AKT Peerless was unable to determine the use of the subject property prior to 1893. According to 
records reviewed during this assessment, the subject property was developed with a portion of a 
residential structure as of 1893. As such, AKT Peerless was unable to identify the first developed use of 
the subject property and was therefore unable to achieve the historical research objectives identified in 
ASTM Practice E 1527 even after reviewing the standard historical sources identified in ASTM Practice E 
1527 that were reasonably ascertainable and likely to be useful. AKT Peerless excluded certain standard 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 14 

 

historical sources from its review since past experience indicates that such standard historical sources 
are not likely to be sufficiently useful, accurate, or complete in terms of satisfying the historical research 
objectives. However, this data failure is not considered likely to have a material impact upon the findings 
and conclusions of this report due to the residential nature of the first identifiable use of the subject 
property and, therefore, does not constitute a significant data gap. 

Historical Summary – Adjoining Properties 

The adjoining properties have included various residential and commercial developments since at least 
1893. As discussed in Sections 4.5.2 and 4.5.3, the eastern adjoining property located at 332 N. Old 
Woodward Avenue was used as a dry‐cleaning operation from at least 1944 until at least 1960. 

4.5.1 Aerial Photographs 
AKT Peerless obtained aerial photographs for the subject property from Oakland County Property 
Gateway and Wayne State University. AKT Peerless’ observations noted during the review of these 
photographs are summarized in the following table. Photocopies of select aerial photographs are 
presented as Appendix E. 

Subject Property Aerial Photography Summary 

Photograph 
Dates 

Observations  
(Subject Property) 

Potential Environmental 
Concerns 

1940  The southern portion of the subject property appears to be developed 
with multiple residential and/or commercial structures; however, due 
to poor photograph resolution, details regarding these features were 
not identified. The northwestern portion of the subject property 
appears to consist of wooded land. 

None observed 

1949‐1952  The southern portion of the subject property appears to be developed 
with as many as 12 residential and/or commercial structures. The 
northwestern portion of the subject property appears to consist of 
wooded land. 

None observed 

1956  The southern portion of the subject property appears to be developed 
with up to three residential and/or commercial structures. The 
remainder of the southern portion of the subject property appears to 
have been converted to a paved surface parking lot. The northwestern 
portion of the subject property appears to consist of wooded land. 

None observed 

1963  The southern portion of the subject property appears to consist of a 
single paved surface parking lot. The northwestern portion of the 
subject property appears to consist of wooded land. 

None observed 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 15 

 

Photograph 
Dates 

Observations  
(Subject Property) 

Potential Environmental 
Concerns 

1974, 1980, 
1990, 1997, 
2000, 2002, 
2005, 2006, 
2008, 2010, 
2012, 2014, 
2015, 2017 

The southern portion of the subject property appears to be developed 
with a parking deck (the subject building) fronting N. Old Woodward 
Avenue, and a paved surface parking lot covering the remainder of the 
southern portion of the subject property. The northwestern portion of 
the subject property appears to consist of wooded land. The subject 
property, as depicted in the referenced photographs, appears 
consistent with current conditions, except for the 2005 and 2006 
photographs, in which the far southern portion of the subject property 
appears to be used as a staging area for construction materials and 
equipment associated with the construction of a commercial office 
building on the southeastern adjoining property. 

None observed 

AKT Peerless’ review of historical aerial photographs of the adjoining properties is summarized in the 
following table. 

Adjoining Property Aerial Photography Summary 

Photograph 
Dates 

Potential Environmental Concerns 
(Adjoining Properties) 

1940‐2017  No obvious evidence or indications of environmental concerns were noted with respect to the 
adjoining properties and nearby sites during AKT Peerless’ review of the referenced aerial 
photographs. 

4.5.2 Fire Insurance Maps 

AKT Peerless obtained fire insurance maps for the subject property from Environmental Data Resources 
(EDR). AKT Peerless’ observations noted during the review of these maps are summarized in the 
following table. Photocopies of the referenced maps are presented in Appendix F. 

Subject Property Fire Insurance Maps Observations 

Map 
Dates 

Observations 
(Subject Property) 

Potential Environmental 
Concerns 

1893, 1900, 1910  The majority of the subject property appears to lie beyond 
the scope of fire insurance map coverage. However, the far 
southern portion of the subject property appears to include a 
portion of a dwelling located on what is now the 
southeastern adjoining property. 

None observed 

1915  The majority of the subject property appears to lie beyond 
the scope of fire insurance map coverage. However, the 
southern portion of the subject property appears to include 
two dwellings plus a portion of a dwelling located on what is 
now the southeastern adjoining property. 

None observed 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 16 

 

Map 
Dates 

Observations 
(Subject Property) 

Potential Environmental 
Concerns 

1921  The subject property is depicted as containing portions of up 
to 14 land parcels and an apparent alley running parallel to 
N. Woodward Avenue (now N. Old Woodward Avenue). In 
total, eight dwellings and a portion of a ninth dwelling, along 
with two detached storage sheds, are depicted on the 
subject property. 

None observed 

1926  The subject property is depicted as containing portions of up 
to 14 land parcels and an apparent alley running parallel to 
N. Woodward Avenue (now N. Old Woodward Avenue). In 
total, eight dwellings and a portion of a ninth dwelling, one 
store, three flats, two detached storage sheds, and four 
automobile storage garages are depicted on the subject 
property. Basements are indicated for the two dwellings 
fronting Willetts Street (now Willits Street, addresses 244 
and 292), first depicted in the 1915 map. 

Basements 

1931  The subject property is depicted as containing portions of up 
to 14 land parcels and an apparent alley running parallel to 
N. Woodward Avenue (now N. Old Woodward Avenue). In 
total, five dwellings and a portion of a sixth dwelling, three 
stores, four flats, one detached storage shed, and eight 
detached automobile storage garages are depicted on the 
subject property. 

None observed 

1949  The subject property is depicted as containing portions of up 
to 14 land parcels and an apparent alley running parallel to 
N. Woodward Avenue (now N. Old Woodward Avenue). In 
total, six dwellings, one store, a portion of a dwelling/store, 
five flats, one detached storage shed, and seven detached 
automobile storage garages are depicted on the subject 
property. 

None observed 

1960  The subject property is depicted as containing portions of up 
to 14 land parcels and an apparent alley running parallel to 
Woodward Avenue (now N. Old Woodward Avenue). The 
southeastern portion of the subject property is depicted as 
parking, with only one office, one detached automobile 
storage garage, and one dwelling remaining on the subject 
property. 

None observed 

As indicated in the table above, two former dwellings located along Willits Street were depicted as 
having basements in the 1926 fire insurance map. These dwellings were not depicted as having 
basements in other maps in which they were identified. It is possible that other dwellings, flats, or stores 
formerly located on the subject property may have had basements as well (see also Section 4.5.5). The 
City of Birmingham does not maintain records pertaining to the fill material that may have been used to 
fill former basements located on the subject property. The potential use of fill material of unknown 
origin at the subject property represents an REC in connection with the subject property. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 17 

 

AKT Peerless’ review of historical fire insurance maps of the adjoining properties is summarized in the 
following table: 

Adjoining Properties Fire Insurance Maps Observations 

Map 
Dates 

Potential Environmental Concerns 
(Adjoining Properties) 

1893‐1960  No obvious evidence or indications of RECs or other potential environmental concerns were 
noted with respect to the adjoining properties during AKT Peerless’ review of the referenced 
maps, except for a dry‐cleaning operation depicted on the eastern adjoining property (324‐330 
N. Old Woodward Avenue). 

Refer to Section 4.5.3 for further discussion of the former dry‐cleaning operation located on the eastern 
adjoining property. 

4.5.3 City Directories 
City directories from various years between 1944 through 2014 were reviewed as provided by EDR. The 
purpose of this review was to determine the past occupancy of the subject property. Directories were 
reviewed in approximately 5‐year intervals, or as available. Directories were searched for the subject 
property’s current address as well as the historical addresses listed in Section 3.1 appropriate for the 
time interval for which city directories were available. The subject property was identified in city 
directories for N. Woodward Avenue and not in those for N. Old Woodward Avenue. In the interest of 
brevity, only those addresses for which listings were identified are summarized in the table below. 

City Directories Data 

Year  Address  Listing 

1944  331 N. Woodward Avenue  Bosworth Geo H 

343 N. Woodward Avenue  Adams Floyd E; Bullick H Paul; Hurd Acel V 

351 N. Woodward Avenue  Johnstone Wilbur U 

361 N. Woodward Avenue  Mudge Electric; Mudge Harry A; Rice Harold M; Stecker Ethel 
B Mrs 

244 Willits Street  Olsen Wm G 

292 Willits Street  Smith Mary Mrs 

247 N. Bates Street  Nelson Jos O Rev 

248 N. Bates Street  Gracey Clayton H; Walton Eug; Bennett Clyde C; Payton Earl G 

251 N. Bates Street  Inkster John 

263 N. Bates Street  Burkman Winnifred Mrs 

264 N. Bates Street  Collins Lester L; Collins Roy E 

266 N. Bates Street  Dolin Mary A Mrs 

275 N. Bates Street  Orth Arth J 

1951  331 N. Woodward Avenue  Whitney Silver Shop silversmith; Whitney Wm; Booth Fred jr 

343 N. Woodward Avenue  Bassett Myra H Mrs; Purcell R Cath; Myer Jas J 

351 N. Woodward Avenue  Johnstone Wilbur U 

361 N. Woodward Avenue  Mudge Electric; Mudge Harry A; Meldrum Ethel Mrs; Jelinek 
Cecelia 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 18 

 

Year  Address  Listing 

244 Willits Street  Colvin Chesley 

247 N. Bates Street  Kontz Emil Rev 

248 N. Bates Street  Apartments 

251 N. Bates Street  Markhov Gregory 

263 N. Bates Street  Burkman Winnifred Mrs; Johnston Mary E Mrs 

264 N. Bates Street  Rasmussen Clair D 

266 N. Bates Street  Dolin Mary A Mrs 

275 N. Bates Street  Hamilton Allen G 

277 N. Bates Street  Frost Wallace archt 

1956  345 N. Woodward Avenue  Park & Shop Serv No 3 auto parking 

351 N. Woodward Avenue  Glover Geo H Inc contrs; Johnstone & Johnstone Inc real est 

361 N. Woodward Avenue  Reynolds Robt; Popplestone Donald; VanHorn Chas J ins; 
Detroit Bldg & Realty Co; VanHorn Chas J Inc real est 

277 N. Bates Street  Frost Wallace archt 

1960  345 N. Woodward Avenue   Natl Garages Inc (Park & Shop Serv No 3) 

351 N. Woodward Avenue   Republican Committee of Oakland County; Republican 
Finance Committee of Oakland County; Holmes John E lwyr 

277 N. Bates Street  Frost Wallace archt 

1965  345 N. Woodward Avenue  National Garages Inc (Park & Shop Serv No 3) 

1970  345 N. Woodward Avenue  National Garages Inc (Park & Shop Service No 5) 

1975  345 N. Woodward Avenue  Municipal Parking 

1980  345 N. Woodward Avenue  Municipal Parking 

1992  333 N. Woodward Avenue  No listing 

345 N. Woodward Avenue  No listing 

1995, 2000, 
2005, 2010, 
2014 

333 N. Woodward Avenue  No listing 

AKT Peerless also reviewed city directories for select adjoining and nearby properties to determine their 
past occupancy. No obvious or potential environmental concerns associated with historical occupants of 
the adjoining properties were noted, except for the following: 

 322 N. Woodward Avenue, eastern adjoining property, was listed as Comerica Bank‐Detroit in 
the 1992 directory. 

 332 N. Woodward Avenue, eastern adjoining property, was listed as Beck Cleaners & Dyers Inc 
and similar in the 1944 through 1960 directories. 

As discussed in Section 4.2.2, the eastern adjoining property located at 322 N. Old Woodward Avenue 
was identified as a Part 201 site in the regulatory database report. Part 201 sites are Michigan sites at 
which contamination has been identified at concentrations exceeding MDEQ Generic Cleanup Criteria. 
No further information regarding the Part 201 site status of the eastern adjoining property was 
identified. Fire insurance maps indicate that the location of Beck Cleaners & Dyers Inc  on the eastern 
adjoining property was used as a dry‐cleaning operation from at least 1944 until at least 1960. Historical 
dry‐cleaning operations typically involved the use of petroleum and/or chlorinated solvents. While it 
could not be determined whether the Part 201 site status of the eastern adjoining property is related to 
its historical use as a dry cleaner, the eastern adjoining property, in AKT Peerless’ opinion, represents an 
REC in connection with the subject property.  



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 19 

 

It is important to note that, under Part 201 of the NREPA Section 20126(4)(c), a property owner is not 
liable for contamination migrating from an off‐site source, unless the owner is responsible for an activity 
causing the release that is the source of the contamination. However, if contamination is identified on 
the subject property, the subject property owner may be required to comply with certain Due Care 
obligations pursuant to Section 20107a(1). 

4.5.4 Assessing Department Records 

AKT Peerless reviewed tax assessment records for the subject property provided by the Oakland County 
Equalization Division. According to the records, the subject property boundaries are the result of 
split/combinations of multiple parent parcels executed in 1993 and 2005. The City of Birmingham 
appears to have owned the subject property since 2007. No information material to identifying RECs in 
connection with the subject property was identified. 

4.5.5 Building Department Records 

AKT Peerless reviewed records pertaining to the subject property from the Birmingham Building and 
Engineering Departments. Records consisted of various building permits issued in relation to 
construction, demolition, and utility service connections at the subject property. The following 
information was identified during a review of the records provided: 

 The former dwelling located at 244 Willits Street, wrecked in 1954, reportedly had a basement.  

 The former flats located at 248 N. Bates Street, wrecked in 1954, reportedly had a basement. 

 The former dwelling located at 275 N. Bates Street reportedly utilized septic tank(s) and septic 
field as of the early‐ to mid‐1940s, when this dwelling and another dwelling located at 277 N. 
Bates Street were connected to the municipal sanitary sewer system. 

As discussed in Section 4.5.2, the potential use of fill material of unknown origin to backfill former 
basements at the subject property represents an REC in connection with the subject property. 
Furthermore, as discussed in Section 3.5, it is likely that historical septic systems were identified and 
removed during conversion of the southern portion of the subject property to a surface parking lot in 
the mid‐1950s, if septic systems are identified or encountered during future redevelopment activities, 
they should be decommissioned, removed, and/or disposed in accordance with applicable federal, state, 
and local regulations. However, given the historical residential and/or commercial use of the subject 
property, the former use of septic systems does not represent an environmental concern. 

4.5.6 Recorded Land Title Records 
AKT Peerless was provided land title records pertaining to the subject property from the City of 
Birmingham. Based on a review of the title records, the City has granted easements across portions of 
the subject property to allow access to an underground parking garage under the commercial building 
on the southeastern adjoining property and to allow access to the construction site on the northeastern 
adjoining property. No information material to identifying RECs in connection with the subject property 
were identified in the title records. 

4.5.7 Other Historical Information 

AKT Peerless did not identify other relevant historical information for the subject property. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 20 

 

5.0 Interviews 

5.1 Interview with Subject Property Owner 

AKT Peerless interviewed Ms. Tiffany Gunter, Assistant City Manager for the City of Birmingham, 
regarding her knowledge of the subject property and provided an owner questionnaire. The owner 
questionnaire was completed by Mr. Bruce T. Johnson, Building Official for the City of Birmingham. AKT 
Peerless also interviewed City staff at the subject property for details pertaining to certain features 
observed at the subject property. No information was reported that would be considered material to 
identifying RECs in connection with the subject property, except for the presence of two hydraulic 
elevators and an associated sump pump and oil separator. Refer to Sections 6.3.7 and 6.3.13 for further 
discussion of these features. 

5.2 Interview with Key Site Manager 

Refer to Section 5.1. 

5.3 Interview with Subject Property Occupant(s) 

Refer to Section 5.1. 

5.4 Interview(s) with Others 
AKT Peerless did not conduct interviews with others during this assessment because the historical use of 
the subject property has been identified. Furthermore, interviews with the occupants of adjoining and 
nearby properties were not conducted because the subject property is not considered abandoned, as 
referenced by ASTM. 

6.0 Subject Property Reconnaissance 

6.1 Methodology and Limiting Conditions 

The subject property reconnaissance consisted of visual and physical observations of the subject 
property. AKT Peerless visually and/or physically observed the periphery of the subject property. In 
addition, AKT Peerless observed the subject property from all adjacent public thoroughfares. AKT 
Peerless viewed the subject property following a grid pattern designed to cover representative portions 
of the subject property. 

Mr. Scott Wasielewski of AKT Peerless conducted the subject property reconnaissance on September 25, 
2018. AKT Peerless encountered the following project specific facts or conditions that limited our ability 
to access the subject property: 

 Visual observations of the subject building's interior were limited by the presence of parked 
automobiles. AKT Peerless also did not access the restroom or upper‐level storage closets within 
the subject building during the site reconnaissance. 

 Visual observations of the subject building’s exterior were limited by the presences of parked 
automobiles in the street level parking area and by forest vegetation on the floodplain on the 
northwestern portion of the subject property. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 21 

 

6.2 General Subject Property Setting and Operations  
The subject property is used for street‐level parking and the subject building consists of a four‐story 
parking deck. The subject property is accessible to vehicular traffic by traffic control gates fronting N. Old 
Woodward Avenue and N. Bates Street. The undeveloped floodplain on the northwestern portion of the 
subject property is not used for a significant or obvious purpose. 

6.3 Observations 

6.3.1 Hazardous Substances and Petroleum Products 

AKT Peerless did not observe hazardous substances or petroleum products at the subject property 
except for the following: 

Hazardous Substances and Petroleum Products 

Use / Location  Material  Quantity  Observations 

Elevators / elevator pits 
accessible at first levels of 
southeast and southwest 
towers of subject building 

Hydraulic oil  Reservoir 
capacities 

The hydraulic oil was contained 
within the elevator equipment 
reservoirs. No evidence of a 
release was observed. 

6.3.2 Hazardous and Non‐Hazardous Waste 

AKT Peerless did not observe hazardous or non‐hazardous waste at the subject property with the 
exception of general refuse stored within on‐site trash bins and dumpsters located within a corral near 
the northwest exterior corner of the subject building. The general refuse appears to be collected on a 
regular basis. No evidence of improper waste disposal was observed.  

6.3.3 Storage Tanks 
AKT Peerless did not observe evidence of current or former UST systems (e.g., vent pipes, fill ports, 
dispensing pumps, patched pavement, etc.) at the subject property.  

AKT Peerless did not observe evidence of current or former aboveground storage tank (AST) systems 
(e.g., stands, secondary containments, etc.) at the subject property. 

6.3.4 Unidentified Substances/Containers 
AKT Peerless did not observe evidence of unidentified substances or other suspect containers on the 
subject property. 

6.3.5 Potential Polychlorinated Biphenyl (PCB) Containing Electrical Equipment 

AKT Peerless inspected the subject property for the presence of liquid‐cooled electrical units such as 
transformers and large capacitors. Such units are notable since they may be potential sources of PCBs. 
AKT Peerless did not observe suspect PCB‐containing electrical equipment at the subject property, 
except for the following: 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 22 

 

Potential PCB‐Containing Electrical Equipment 

Source Description  Source Location  Responsibility  Observations 

One pad‐mounted 
transformer 

Southwestern exterior corner of 
the subject building 

DTE Energy  No evidence of a 
release 

AKT Peerless observed one pad‐mounted transformer near the southwestern exterior corner of the 
subject building. The transformer appears to be the responsibility of DTE Energy. In the event of a 
release incident, DTE Energy will repair the damaged or leaking electrical unit, and return the quality of 
the affected soil and groundwater, if any, to its pre‐release condition. AKT Peerless did not observe 
evidence or indication of oil stains, leaks, or spills near the transformer. 

6.3.6 Interior Staining/Corrosion 
AKT Peerless did not observe interior staining or corrosion within the subject building, except for some 
oxidation of iron‐containing surfaces in the elevator pit at the southwest tower of the subject building. 

6.3.7 Drains and Sumps 

AKT Peerless did not observe drains or sumps in the subject building, except for multiple roof drains and 
storm water drains located within the subject building, storm water drains located across the paved 
surface parking lot, and a sump pump located in the elevator pit at the southwest tower of the subject 
building. According to City staff, the southwest tower elevator pit is prone to flooding. The roof and 
storm water drains discharge to a municipal storm water system, while the sump pump discharges to an 
oil separator located in a storage closet on the first level of the subject building, which then discharges 
the filtered water to the paved surface cover of the first floor of the parking deck where it is ultimately 
collected by a storm water drain near the southwest entrance to the parking deck. Refer to Section 
6.3.13 for additional information. 

6.3.8 Discharge Features 
Storm water that falls upon the subject property appears to evaporate, be collected from impervious 
cover into roof/storm water drains located across the subject property, be collected by the sump pump 
in the elevator pit at the southwest tower of the subject building and ultimately discharged to a storm 
water drain, percolate directly into the ground, and/or discharge to the Rouge River, which transects the 
northern portion of the subject property. 

6.3.9 Pits, Ponds, and Lagoons 
AKT Peerless did not observe pits, ponds, or lagoons in connection with waste treatment or waste 
disposal at the subject property. 

6.3.10 Solid Waste Dumping/Landfilling 

AKT Peerless did not observe evidence of solid waste dumping or landfilling at the subject property. 

6.3.11 Stained Soil, Stressed Vegetation, Stained Pavement 

AKT Peerless did not observe evidence of stained soil, stressed vegetation, or stained pavement at the 
subject property. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 23 

 

6.3.12 Well and Septic Systems 

AKT Peerless did not observe physical evidence or indication of active wells or septic systems at the 
subject property. 

6.3.13 Other Observations 
AKT Peerless did not observe evidence of other potential environmental concerns at the subject 
property, except for the following: 

Other Observations 

Description  Location  Observed Environmental Concerns 

Elevators  First levels of the 
southeast and 
southwest towers of 
the subject building 

Two hydraulic elevators are located within the subject building. 
The hydraulic equipment is located in pits accessible from the 
first levels of the southeast and southwest towers of the 
subject building. No evidence of releases was observed within 
the pits, although the elevator pit in the southwest tower is 
prone to flooding and has been retrofitted with a sump pump 
that discharges to an oil separator located in a storage closet on 
the first level of the subject building. Each elevator is equipped 
with a leak detection system. 

Oil separator  First level storage 
closet at the 
southwest tower of 
the subject building 

The oil separator accepts water from the sump pump in the 
elevator pit at the southwest tower of the subject building. Oil 
is separated from the water by a sand filter. Filtered water is 
discharged onto the paved surface cover of the first level of the 
parking deck and is ultimately collected by a storm drain at the 
southwest entrance to the subject building. Kone, the elevator 
service contractor retained by the City of Birmingham, is 
responsible for the maintenance of the elevators and the oil 
separator. 

The elevator pits are constructed of poured concrete, which appeared to be in good repair. Although no 
evidence of major releases was identified within either elevator pit, if impacted soils are identified 
during future redevelopment activities, an environmental consultant should be retained to evaluate the 
release(s) and characterize the impacted soils to ensure proper management and disposal. 

6.3.14 Adjoining Properties 
Based on AKT Peerless’ visual observations, the current uses of the adjoining properties do not appear to 
pose an environmental concern to the subject property. 

6.4 Non‐ASTM Scope Considerations 

AKT Peerless did not evaluate other potential environmental conditions (i.e., further areas of possible 
business/environmental concern and/or liability) that are outside the scope of ASTM Practice E 1527. 
Examples of such potential environmental conditions that were beyond the scope of this Phase I ESA 
include: asbestos containing materials (ACMs), cultural and historic resources, ecological resources, 
endangered species, health and safety, high‐voltage power lines, indoor air quality, industrial hygiene, 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 24 

 

lead‐based paints (LBPs), lead in drinking water, moisture intrusion/suspect mold growth, noise 
pollution, radon, regulatory compliance/non‐compliance and/or wetlands. 

Users of this document who wish to obtain an evaluation of the subject property relative to any of the 
aforementioned non‐ASTM scope issues may contact AKT Peerless to provide these services. 

7.0 Findings, Opinions, and Conclusions 
AKT Peerless has performed a Phase I ESA in conformance with the scope and limitations of ASTM 
Practice E 1527 of the property located at 333 N. Old Woodward Avenue in Birmingham, Oakland 
County, Michigan (the subject property). Any exceptions to, or deletions from, this practice are described 
in Section 8.0 of this report. AKT Peerless' findings and opinions with respect to potential RECs are 
presented throughout this report, including discussion and analysis of potential RECs that, after further 
consideration and research, were not determined to be RECs, CRECs, or HRECs. Such findings and 
opinions are discussed in the appropriate sections of this report. 

7.1 Recognized Environmental Conditions 

This assessment has revealed no evidence of known RECs in connection with the subject property, 
except for the following: 

REC 1 ‐  According to fire insurance maps, the subject property formerly included 12 developed lots, in 
addition to one undeveloped lot, an apparent alley, and a portion of an adjoining developed lot. 
Between approximately 1915 and 1960, up to 12 residential and/or commercial structures were 
located entirely on the subject property. Municipal records and fire insurance maps indicate that 
at least three of these structures, located at 244 and 292 Willits Street and 248 N. Bates Street, 
may have included basements. The origin of the fill material used to fill basements of former 
structures at the subject property, if any, prior to conversion of the southern portion of the 
subject property to a street level parking lot in the mid‐1950s to early‐1960s is unknown. The 
unknown origin of such fill material represents an REC. 

REC 2 ‐  According to fire insurance maps and city directories, a dry cleaner operated on an eastern 
adjoining property located at 324‐332 N. Old Woodward Avenue from at least 1944 until at least 
1960. Historical dry‐cleaning operations typically involved the use of petroleum and/or 
chlorinated solvents. In addition, the eastern adjoining property located at 322 N. Old 
Woodward Avenue was identified as a Part 201 site in the regulatory database report. Part 201 
sites are Michigan sites at which contamination has been identified at concentrations exceeding 
MDEQ Generic Cleanup Criteria. No further information regarding the Part 201 site status of the 
eastern adjoining property was identified. The subject property is located at an inferred 
hydraulically down‐gradient position relative to the eastern adjoining property. Therefore, the 
potential for migration of contamination from the eastern adjoining property toward the subject 
property represents an REC. 

It is important to note that, under Part 201 of the NREPA Section 20126(4)(c), a property owner 
is not liable for contamination migrating from an off‐site source, unless the owner is responsible 
for an activity causing the release that is the source of the contamination. However, if 
contamination is identified on the subject property, the subject property owner may be required 
to comply with certain Due Care obligations pursuant to Section 20107a(1). 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 25 

 

Further assessment is warranted to evaluate the nature, extent, magnitude, and materiality of the 
above‐identified RECs. 

7.2 Controlled Recognized Environmental Conditions 

This assessment has revealed no evidence of known CRECs in connection with the subject property. 

7.3 Historical Recognized Environmental Conditions 

This assessment has revealed no evidence of known HRECs in connection with the subject property. 

7.4 De Minimis Conditions 

During the course of Phase I ESAs, AKT Peerless often encounters conditions that generally do not 
present a threat to human health or the environment and that generally would not be the subject of an 
enforcement action if brought to the attention of appropriate governmental agencies. These conditions 
are not considered RECs, HRECs, or CRECs, but are defined by ASTM Standard E1527 as de minimis 
conditions. In the interest of brevity, AKT Peerless did not develop a full list of de minimis conditions in 
this section, but rather evaluated and identified these conditions in the appropriate sections of this 
report. 

7.5 Areas of Potential Environmental Concern 

AKT Peerless did not identify other potential environmental concerns (PECs) in connection with the 
subject property during the course of this Phase I ESA, except for the following: 

 The possibility exists that alternative heating fuels (i.e. steam, propane, wood, electric, coal, 
and/or fuel oil) were used at former residential and/or commercial structures located on the 
subject property prior to the availability of natural gas.  
Based on a review of available information and observations during the completion of this Phase 
I ESA, AKT Peerless did not identify evidence of fuel oil USTs on the subject property. However, as 
the available information was not exhaustive, the potential remains for fuel oil USTs associated 
with historical residential and/or commercial structures at the subject property. In AKT Peerless’ 
opinion, if heating oil containers are identified or encountered during future development 
activities, they should be decommissioned, removed, and/or disposed in accordance with 
applicable federal, state, and local regulations.  

 According to fire insurance maps, municipal water service has been available to the area of the 
subject property since at least 1893. Water connection dates to former residential and/or 
commercial structures were not identified. The date of installation of the municipal sanitary 
sewer system was not identified. Sewer connection dates to former residential and/or 
commercial structures were also not identified, except for the former dwellings located at 275 
and 277 N. Bates Street, which were connected to sanitary sewer service in the early‐ to mid‐
1940s. The former dwelling located at 275 N. Bates Street reportedly utilized septic tank(s) and a 
septic field prior to connection. 
Previous residential and/or commercial structures associated with the subject property may 
therefore have utilized on‐site potable water wells or private septic systems. While it is likely 
these features would have been identified and removed during redevelopment of the subject 
property, in AKT Peerless’ opinion, if septic systems or drinking water wells are identified or 
encountered during future redevelopment activities, they should be decommissioned, removed, 
and/or disposed in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local regulations. 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 26 

 

 The subject building contains two hydraulic elevators. The hydraulic reservoirs for these 
elevators are located within solid concrete elevator pits accessible to the first level of the parking 
deck. The reservoirs are connected to a leak detection system and absorbent pads are used to 
contain minor leaks or spills from the hydraulic equipment. 
According to the City of Birmingham, the elevator pit in the southwest tower of the subject 
building is prone to flooding and has been retrofitted with a sump pump, which collects flood 
water and discharges flood water to an oil separator located within a storage closet on the first 
level of the parking deck. Filtered water is then discharged to the paved surface cover of the 
parking deck and collected by a storm drain located near the southwest entrance to the parking 
deck.  
Although no evidence of major releases was identified within either elevator pit, if impacted 
soils are identified during future redevelopment activities, an environmental consultant should 
be retained to evaluate the release(s) and characterize the impacted soils to ensure proper 
management and disposal. 

8.0 Deviations 
AKT Peerless did not deviate from ASTM Practice E 1527 when performing this Phase I ESA (i.e., no 
components of that practice were deleted, and no additions to it were made). 

9.0 Data Gaps 
AKT Peerless did not identify or encounter instances of significant data gaps during the course of this 
Phase I ESA. 

10.0 Project Resources and References 
AKT Peerless referred to the following resources between August 31, 2018 and September 28, 2018 to 
complete its Phase I ESA: 

 USEPA 

 USGS 

 USDA SCS 

 MDEQ 

 LARA 

 Oakland County Health Department and Equalization Division 

 Birmingham Government Sources (building, public works, engineering, fire departments) 

 EDR 

 Interviews and Questionnaire Responses 

Other individuals and resources are cited in the appropriate sections of this report. 

11.0 Signatures of Environmental Professionals 
We declare that, to the best of our professional knowledge and belief, we meet the definition of 
Environmental Professional as defined in §312.10 of this part. We have the specific qualifications based 



 

PHASE I ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 27 

 

on education, training, and experience to assess a property of the nature, history, and setting of the 
subject property. We have developed and performed the all appropriate inquiries in conformance with 
the standards and practices set forth in 40 CFR Part 312. 

DRAFT    DRAFT 

Scott Wasielewski 
Senior Environmental Consultant 
AKT Peerless 
Farmington, Michigan Office 
Phone: 248‐615‐1333 
Fax: 248‐615‐1334 
wasielewskis@aktpeerless.com 

  Jessica T. Cory 
Senior Project Manager – Group Leader 
AKT Peerless 
Farmington, Michigan Office 
Phone: 248‐615‐1333 
Fax: 248‐615‐1334 
coryj@aktpeerless.com 

 



 

 

Qualifications



  

Scott Wasielewski 
Senior Environmental Consultant  

Mr. Wasielewski has more than three years of experience in environmental due 
diligence, subsurface investigations, environmental construction oversight, and vapor 
mitigation system installation/inspection, along with knowledge and understanding of 
many geologic disciplines and processes.  

EDUCATION 

MS: Environmental Science, 2014 / University of Michigan – Dearborn  

BS: Environmental Biology/Microbiology, 2007 / Michigan State University   

CERTIFICATIONS 

40-Hour Hazardous Waste Operations & Emergency Response / OSHA, 29 CFR 1910.120 

2-Hour Asbestos Awareness / EPA, 40 CFR Part 763; OSHA, 29 CFR 1926.1101 

Certified Vapor Intrusion Inspector / Land Science Technologies (Geo-Seal®); CETCO® (Liquid Boot®) 

EXPERIENCE 

Senior Environmental Consultant  
AKT Peerless (current)  

Environmental Consultant  
AKT Peerless (2013-2017)  

SKILLS 

 Phase I and Phase II Environmental Site Assessments 
 Baseline Environmental Assessments 
 Inspection of vapor intrusion mitigation system installations and associated system monitoring and testing in 

residential and commercial settings 
 Quarterly groundwater monitoring in active industrial setting 
 Academic background in aqueous geochemistry, glacial geology, contaminant hydrogeology, and groundwater 

modeling; research background in environmental monitoring of heavy metals associated with urban land use in lake 
sediments and shallow groundwater 



  

Jessica T. Cory 
Senior Project Manager / Group Leader 

Ms. Cory has over 13 years of professional consulting experience focusing on 
environmental investigations and federal environmental grant programs.  

EDUCATION 

BS: Environmental Studies and Applications, 2003 / Michigan State University, East Lansing, MI   

CERTIFICATIONS 

Michigan Asbestos Inspector / Accreditation Number A34295   

Hazardous Waste Operations Training / OSHA 29 CFR 1910.120- 40-Hour 

AHERA Asbestos Inspector Course  

AHERA Asbestos Management Planner Course  

EXPERIENCE 

Senior Project Manager/Group Leader  
AKT Peerless Environmental Services (current)  

Project Scientist  
Innovative Environmental Solutions, Inc.  

SKILLS 

Part 201 environmental due diligence, including Phase I Environmental Site Assessments (ESAs), Phase II Subsurface 
Investigations, Baseline Environmental Assessments (BEAs), and Due Care Evaluations  

Evaluating the potential environmental risk at commercial, industrial, and residential property  

Coordination and technical oversight of environmental assessments 

Management of federal environmental grant programs 

Liaison with regulatory agencies  

Asbestos and hazardous material building inspections 



 

 

Figures



333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F-1-17

TOPOGRAPHIC LOCATION MAP DRAWN BY:

DATE:
OGO

09/26/2018

FIGURE 1

BIRMINGHAM QUADRANGLE
MICHIGAN - OAKLAND COUNTY

7.5 MINUTE SERIES (TOPOGRAPHIC)

T.2 N.-R.10 E.

1 MILE

1 KILOMETER

7000 FEET100001000

01

01

MICHIGAN
QUADRANGLE LOCATION

IMAGE TAKEN FROM 1968 U.S.G.S. TOPOGRAPHIC MAP
PHOTOREVISED 1981

2000 3000 4000 5000 6000

www.aktpeerless.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



BOOTH PARK

UNDEVELOPED
LAND

BROOKSIDE RESIDENCES
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

369 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

BOOTH PARK

SINGLE- FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
300 WARREN COURT

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
 300 WILLITS STREET

WILLITS STREET

MCCANN DETROIT
336 W. MAPLE ROAD

CAMERON'S STEAKHOUSE;
OTHER STREET LEVEL AND COMMERCIAL OFFICE SPACE

OCCUPANTS NOT IDENTIFIED
111-117 WILLITS STREET

UBS; FLEMING'S PRIME STEAKHOUSE & WINE BAR; BEAL BANK;
POGGEN POHL; CENTIGRADE; TILT; GOOGLE INC.

325 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
AND 108-114 WILLITS STREET

STEINHARDT PESICK & COHEN, P.C.;
THE LAW FIRM OF JOHN F. SCHAEFER

380 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

STRENGTH CAPITAL PARTNERS
350 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

MORGANROTH & MORGANROTH, PLLC
344 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

SAIC USA
320 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

(INVENTORY; FORMER DRY CLEANERS, c. 1944-1960)

RIVER ROUGE  N. OLD W
OODW

ARD AVENUE

 O
AKL

AND AVEN
UE

SNOW CHUTE TOWER

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
ELECTRIC ROOM, LEVEL 1

STAIR/ELEVATOR TOWER;
ELEVATOR PIT WITH HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT AND SUMP,

AND  STORAGE CLOSET WITH OIL SEPARATOR, ACCESSIBLE AT LEVEL 1

STAIR/ELEVATOR TOWER;
ELEVATOR PIT WITH HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT
ACCESSIBLE AT LEVEL 1

STAIR TOWER; RESTROOM AT LEVEL 1;
FIRE SUPPRESSION PUMP ROOM AT LEVEL 2

SUBJECT BUILDING
333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

FORMER DWELLING
WITH BASEMENT
(c.1915-1940)

FORMER DWELLING
WITH BASEMENT
(c.1915-1954)

FORMER FLATS
WITH BASEMENT

(c.1926-1954)

WOODED
LAND

ASPHALT PARKING LOT

33
3 

N
. O

LD
 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
U

E
BI

RM
IN

GH
AM

, M
IC

HI
GA

N
PR

O
JE

CT
 N

U
M

BE
R:

 1
36

61
F-

1-
17

SU
BJ

EC
T 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
M

AP
DR

AW
N

 B
Y:

DA
TE

:
O

GO

09
/2

6/
20

18

FI
G

U
RE

 2

80
40

0
SC

AL
E:

1"
 =

 8
0'

LEGEND

w
w

w
.
a
k
t
p
e
e
r
l
e
s
s
.
c
o
m

= PROPERTY LINE
= PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F-1-17

SUBJECT PROPERTY LOCATION MAP DRAWN BY:
DATE:

OGO

09/26/2018

FIGURE 3

LEGEND

www.aktpeerless.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



 

 

Appendix A 

General Limitations and Exceptions



 

 

General Limitations and Exceptions 

Subject to the proposal, scope‐of‐services, and the related terms and conditions referenced in Section 
1.0 of this Phase I ESA, AKT Peerless accepts responsibility for the competent performance of its duties in 
executing the assignment and preparing reports in accordance with the normal standards of the 
profession, but disclaims any responsibility for consequential damages. 

Although AKT Peerless believes that the findings, opinions, and recommendations contained herein are 
reliable and appropriate, AKT Peerless cannot warrant or guarantee that the information provided is 
exhaustive, or that the information obtained from any data sources is complete or accurate. 

Along with the inherent limitations set forth in various sections of ASTM Standard Practice E 1527‐13 
(ASTM Practice E 1527), the accuracy and completeness of this report may be limited by the following 
facts or conditions: 

 Due to the poor scale of the historical aerial photographs, the presence or absence of small 
features (e.g., individual drums, fuel dispensers) could not be discerned reliably. 

 The poor resolution and/or illegibility of fire insurance map documentation provided to AKT 
Peerless may have limited accurate interpretation of the historical uses of the subject and 
adjoining properties. 

 AKT Peerless made reasonable efforts to determine if USTs or related equipment (collectively 
referred to as UST systems) are or have been present at the subject property. AKT Peerless 
defines reasonable efforts as obtaining and evaluating information from visual observations of 
unobstructed areas and from the secondary sources cited in this report. AKT Peerless recognizes, 
and suggests users of this assessment acknowledge, that the accuracy of our conclusions relative 
to the on‐site presence or use of UST systems may be directly affected by the presence of 
physical obstructions at the time of the reconnaissance, or affected by our receipt and 
evaluation of incorrect information. 

 AKT Peerless’ evaluation of soil and groundwater features at and near the subject property was 
based only on published maps and other readily available information. AKT Peerless used this 
information to assess soil types and groundwater flow directions to determine if conditions at 
any nearby sites present an environmental threat to the subject property. 

 Unless specifically noted otherwise, invasive investigation of any kind has not been performed 
during this Phase I ESA, nor has observation under floors, above ceilings, behind walls, within the 
surface and subsurface soil, within groundwater, within confined spaces, roof tops, or 
inaccessible areas been performed. 

 AKT Peerless did not conduct sampling or analysis of air, soil, groundwater, soil gas, surface 
water, or building materials as part of this Phase I ESA, unless specifically noted otherwise. 

 This Phase I ESA did not include a physical inspection of the adjoining properties, which AKT 
Peerless observed from the subject property and from readily accessible public rights‐of‐way. 

 Client understands that in the event AKT Peerless determines a regulatory agency file review is 
necessary for the subject, adjoining, and nearby properties, and such files are not reasonably 
ascertainable as defined under ASTM Practice E 1527, that at an additional cost, the Client may 
elect to retain AKT Peerless for additional tasks to attempt to secure such regulatory agency files 
or seek information from alternative sources. 

 Client understands that a User seeking to qualify for an LLP to CERCLA liability has specific 
obligations for completing a successful application of this Phase I ESA.  AKT Peerless’ scope of 



 

 

work does not include an evaluation or completion of these specific user obligations under 
ASTM Practice E 1527. 

 AKT Peerless’ scope of services did not include conducting a review of property title 
documentation. AKT Peerless requested property title documentation and environmental 
cleanup liens from the Client, but was not provided this information, unless specifically noted 
otherwise.  

 Unless specifically noted, this assessment did not include a review or audit of operational 
environmental compliance issues, or of any environmental management systems, that may be 
associated with the subject property.  Furthermore, this Phase I ESA does not address 
requirements of any state or local laws or of any federal laws other than the all appropriate 
inquiry provisions of the LLPs.  Users are cautioned that federal, state, and local laws may impose 
environmental assessment obligations that are beyond the scope of this Phase I ESA. Users 
should also be aware that there are likely to be other legal obligations. 

 Unless specifically noted, this Phase I ESA did not include any investigation or evaluation of 
issues not specifically related to petroleum products or hazardous substances as defined in 
CERCLA (i.e., other areas of potential business environmental risk such as radon, lead in drinking 
water, etc.). 

 The information and opinions contained in the report are given in light of this assignment. The 
report must be reviewed and relied upon only in conjunction with the terms and conditions 
expressly agreed‐upon by the parties and as limited therein. 

 Although AKT Peerless believes the results contained in herein are reliable, AKT Peerless cannot 
warrant or guarantee that the information provided is exhaustive, or that the information 
provided by the Client, individuals, regulatory agency representatives, environmental database 
vendors, third parties, or the secondary information sources cited in this report is complete or 
accurate. 

 AKT Peerless is not in a position to provide an opinion regarding the Fair Market Value of the 
subject property. Therefore, a comparison of the purchase price of the subject property to other 
similar real estate transactions was not conducted during this assessment. 

 Nothing in this report constitutes a legal opinion or legal advice.  Furthermore, AKT Peerless’ 
Phase I ESA is not intended to provide legal advice or guidance to qualify for Landowner Liability 
Protections (LLPs) to CERCLA liability.  AKT Peerless recommends Client seek legal counsel and 
advice to evaluate and determine the requirements to qualify for an LLP to CERCLA liability. 

 AKT Peerless relied upon specific or common knowledge of the Client, or information provided 
to the Client, to identify environmental liens, institutional controls, activity use limitations, or 
property valuation issues.  As possible within the time frame and cost of this project, AKT 
Peerless looked for any obvious environmental information regarding these issues made readily 
available during the course of this ESA. 

 Environmental conditions and regulations are subject to constant change and reinterpretation.  
One should not assume that any on‐site conditions and/or regulatory statutes or rules will 
remain constant in the future, after AKT Peerless has completed the scope of work for this 
project.  Furthermore, because of the facts stated in this report are subject to professional 
interpretation, differing conclusions could be reached by other professionals.  

 The information and opinions presented in this report are for the exclusive use of the Client.  No 
distribution to or reliance by other parties may occur without the express written permission of 
AKT Peerless.  AKT Peerless will not distribute this report without written consent from the 
Client, or as required by law or by a Court order. 



 

 

 Any third parties to whom the right to rely on the contents of this report have been granted by 
AKT Peerless, which is explicitly required prior to any third‐party release, expressly agrees to be 
bound by the original terms and conditions entered into by AKT Peerless and the Client. 

 Any reports, field data, field notes, laboratory testing, calculations, estimates or other 
documents prepared by or relied upon by AKT Peerless are the property of AKT Peerless. If any 
of these documents are released or obtained by a party other than the client, AKT Peerless may 
not discuss the project with that party unless the original contracted client notifies AKT Peerless 
of the same and AKT Peerless is authorized to disclose the information and to discuss the project 
with others.  AKT Peerless further states that it disclaims any duty of any kind or nature to any 
person or entity other than the client in preparing this report, except as otherwise agreed with 
the Client. 



 

 

Appendix B 

Property Description and Parcel Map



EXHIBIT "A"

The land referred to in this search is described as follows: City of Birmingham,  County of Oakland, State of Michigan

Lots 1 through 8 inclusive, of Schlaack Subdivision as recorded in Liber 8, Page 8 of Plats, Oakland County Records,
EXCEPT that part of Lots 3 and 4 beginning at the most Easterly corner of Lot 3; thence South 67 degrees 34 minutes 20
seconds West 50.53 feet; thence North 14 degrees 06 minutes 00 seconds West 50.32 feet; thence North 59 degrees 26
minutes 20 seconds East to the East line of Lot 4; thence Southeasterly along said line to beginning, ALSO EXCEPT the
South 24 feet of Lot 8, ALSO that part of vacated Bates Street adjacent to said Lots, and Part of Lot 10, Assessor's Plat
No. 27, as recorded in Liber 6, Page 46 of Plats, Oakland County Records described as beginning at the Northwest Lot
corner; thence Northeasterly 64.11 feet along the North Lot line; thence South 59 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds West
to the West Lot line; thence Northwesterly to beginning, ALSO all of Lots 11 through 15 inclusive, ALSO Lot 16 EXCEPT
the North 40 feet thereof, ALSO All of Lot 19, ALSO EXCEPT part of Lots 3 and 4 of Schlaack Subdivision as recorded in
Liber 8, Page 8 of Plats, Oakland County Records, and Part of Lots 10 and 11 of Assessor's Plat No 27, as recorded in
Liber 6, Page 46 of Plats, Oakland County Records in parcel described as beginning at a point distant South 63 degrees
11 minutes 50 seconds West 16.85 feet from the Southeast corner of said  Lot 11; thence South 63 degrees 11 minutes
50 seconds West 103.15 feet; thence South 59 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds West 99.61 feet; thence North 14
degrees 06 minutes 00 seconds West 6.42 feet; thence North 59 degrees 26 minutes 20 seconds East 217.53 feet;
thence South 30 degrees 33 minutes 40 seconds East 4.01 feet; thence South 63 degrees 11 minutes 50 seconds West
16.19 feet; thence South 26 degrees 48 minutes 10 seconds East 10 feet to the point of beginning, ALSO EXCEPT that
part of Lot 11 of Assessor's Plat No. 27, as recorded in Liber 6, Page 46, of Plats, Oakland County Records, described as
beginning at the Southeast Lot corner; thence South 63 degrees 11 minutes 50 seconds West 16.85 feet; thence North
26 degrees 48 minutes 10 seconds West 10 feet; thence North 63 degrees 11 minutes 50 seconds East 16.19 feet;
thence South 30 degrees 33 minutes 40 seconds East 10 feet to the point of beginning.



!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

k

O A K  G R O V E  A D D

A S S E S S O R 'S  P L AT  N O  2 7

W IL L E T S  A D D

M E R R IL L 'S  P L AT

W A R R E N S  R E P L AT

W IL L IT S , T H E

PA R K  S U B

Birmingham19-25-376-078 19-25-376-097

19-25-376-051

19-25-356-022

19-25-454-004

19-
25-

377
-00

6

19-25-378-028

19-25-380-007

19-25-453-011

19-36-126-016

19-25-378-023

19-25-382-001

19-25-454-011

19-
25-

453
-01

0
19-25-379-024

19
-25

-37
6-0

59

19-36-206-001

19
-25

-37
6-0

09

19
-25

-37
6-0

11

19-25-376-034
19-25-356-023

19-25-376-082

19
-25

-37
6-0

30

W Maple Rd

N
Old Woodward Ave

Oakland Ave

E Maple RdPierce
St

Willit s St

Park St

Ferndale Ave

Euclid Ave

Toot ing
Ln

W i l l its Aly

Hamilton Row

Harmon St

Bonnie Brier St

N Bates St
S

Ba tes
S t

¬«1

¬«1

River Rouge

Parcel Map

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

D ate  C re a te d : 9 /6 /2 0 1 8

N
1 in ch  =  2 0 0  fe et

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

D is c la im e r:  T he  in fo rm a tion  p ro v id e d  h e re w ith  h a s be e n  c o m p ile d  fro m  rec o rd e d
de e d s , p lats , ta x  m a p s, su rv e ys  a n d  o th e r  p u b lic  re co rd s.  It is  n o t a  le g a lly  re co rd ed
m a p  o r su rv e y a n d  is  n o t in te n d e d  to  b e  u s e d  a s  o n e .  U s e rs  s h o uld  co n su lt th e
in fo rm a tio n  so u rce s  m e n tion e d  a b o ve  w h e n  qu e s tio n s  a r is e . F E M A F lo o p la in  d a ta  m a y
no t a lw a ys  b e  p re se n t in  th e  m a p .

2 F o ot C o n to u rs
5 F o ot C o n to u rs
F E M A  B a s e  F lo o d  E le v a tio n s
F E M A  C ro ss  S e c tio n s

10 0  y r - F E M A F lo o d p la in
10 0  y r (d e ta ile d ) -  F E M A  F lo o d p la in
50 0  y r - F E M A F lo o d p la in
F L O O D W AY  -  F E M A  F lo o d p la in



 

 

Appendix C 

Reconnaissance Photographs



 

 

VIEW OF SUBJECT PROPERTY FACING NORTH 

 

VIEW OF SUBJECT PROPERTY FACING EAST 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 

 

VIEW OF SUBJECT PROPERTY FACING SOUTH 

 

VIEW OF NORTHWESTERN PORTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY AND TRANSECTING ROUGE RIVER 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
 

 

VIEW OF SUBJECT BUILDING FACING NORTH 

 

VIEW OF SUBJECT BUILDING FACING EAST 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
 

 

VIEW OF SUBJECT BUILDING FACING SOUTH (INCLUDING SNOW CHUTE OVERHEAD DOOR AT RIGHT) 

 

VIEW OF SUBJECT BUILDING FACING WEST 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
 

 

TYPICAL VIEW OF FIFTH DECK OF SUBJECT BUILDING 

 

TYPICAL VIEW OF STAIR / ELEVATOR TOWER AT FIFTH DECK OF SUBJECT BUILDING 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
 

 

TYPICAL VIEW OF MID‐LEVEL DECK OF SUBJECT BUILDING 

 

TYPICAL VIEW OF ELEVATOR IN SUBJECT BUILDING 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
 

 

VIEW OF ELEVATOR HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT AND SUMP PUMP (LOWER LEFT) IN SOUTHWEST TOWER  
OF SUBJECT BUILDING 

 

VIEW OF FIRE SUPPRESSION PUMP ROOM, SECOND FLOOR OF NORTHEAST TOWER  

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
 

 

VIEW OF NORTHERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (BOOTH PARK) 

 

VIEW OF NORTHEASTERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (UNDEVELOPED LAND, NO ADDRESS IDENTIFIED) 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
   

 

VIEW OF NORTHEASTERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (369 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE) 

 

VIEW OF EASTERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (380 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE)  

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
   

 

VIEW OF EASTERN ADJOINING PROPERTIES (350 AND 344 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE) 

 

VIEW OF EASTERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (320 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE)  

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
   

 

VIEW OF SOUTHEASTERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (325 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE AND 108‐114 WILLITS STREET) 

 

VIEW OF SOUTHERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (111‐117 WILLITS STREET)  

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 
   

 

VIEW OF SOUTHWESTERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (300 WILLITS STREET) 

 

VIEW OF WESTERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (300 WARREN COURT)  

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 

 

VIEW OF NORTHWESTERN ADJOINING PROPERTY (BOOTH PARK) 

 

 

 

PROPERTY PHOTOGRAPHS 
 

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE 
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 

TAKEN BY: S. 
WASIELEWSKI 

DATE: 9/25/2018 

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F 



 

 

Appendix D 

Standard Environmental Record Database Report



FORM-NULL-PVC

 tropeR paM suidaR yrammuS RDE

6 Armstrong Road, 4th floor
Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 800.352.0050
www.edrnet.com

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
Birmingham, MI  48009

Inquiry Number: 5415516.2s
September 06, 2018



SECTION PAGE

Executive Summary ES1

Overview Map 2

Detail Map 3

Map Findings Summary 4

Map Findings 8

Orphan Summary 173

Government Records Searched/Data Currency Tracking GR-1

GEOCHECK ADDENDUM

Physical Setting Source Addendum A-1

Physical Setting Source Summary A-2

Physical Setting SSURGO Soil Map A-5

Physical Setting Source Map A-10

Physical Setting Source Map Findings A-12

Physical Setting Source Records Searched PSGR-1

TC5415516.2s   Page 1

Thank you for your business.
Please contact EDR at 1-800-352-0050

with any questions or comments.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Environmental Data
Resources, Inc. It cannot be concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and surrounding properties does not exist from
other sources. NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL
DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE,
ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OF DAMAGE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY
LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID FOR THIS REPORT. Purchaser accepts this Report "AS IS". Any analyses, estimates, ratings,
environmental risk levels or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to provide, nor
should they be interpreted as providing any facts regarding, or prediction or forecast of, any environmental risk for any property. Only a Phase I
Environmental Site Assessment performed by an environmental professional can provide information regarding the environmental risk for any
property. Additionally, the information provided in this Report is not to be construed as legal advice.

Copyright 2018 by Environmental Data Resources, Inc. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any media or format, in whole
or in part, of any report or map of Environmental Data Resources, Inc., or its affiliates, is prohibited without prior written permission.

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates. All other
trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners.

TABLE OF CONTENTS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5415516.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1

A search of available environmental records was conducted by Environmental Data Resources, Inc (EDR).
The report was designed to assist parties seeking to meet the search requirements of EPA’s Standards
and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries (40 CFR Part 312), the ASTM Standard Practice for
Environmental Site Assessments (E 1527-13), the ASTM Standard Practice for Environmental Site
Assessments for Forestland or Rural Property (E 2247-16), the ASTM Standard Practice for Limited
Environmental Due Diligence: Transaction Screen Process (E 1528-14) or custom requirements developed
for the evaluation of environmental risk associated with a parcel of real estate.

TARGET PROPERTY INFORMATION

ADDRESS

333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

COORDINATES

42.5483340 - 42˚ 32’ 54.00’’Latitude (North): 
83.2168400 - 83˚ 13’ 0.62’’Longitude (West): 
Zone 17Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
317982.2UTM X (Meters): 
4712827.5UTM Y (Meters): 
767 ft. above sea levelElevation:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ASSOCIATED WITH TARGET PROPERTY

TP Target Property:
U.S. Geological SurveySource:

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY IN THIS REPORT

20140721, 20140628Portions of Photo from:
USDASource:



5415516.2s   Page  2

J39 AMOCO #5791 35975 WOODWARD INVENTORY Lower 1672, 0.317, NNW

J38 SIMON LAND DEVELOPME 35975 WOODWARD AVE LUST, UST, AUL, INVENTORY, BEA, WDS Lower 1672, 0.317, NNW

J37 AMOCO STATION #5791 35975 WOODWARD AVENU INVENTORY Lower 1646, 0.312, NNW

36 JAX KAR WASH #048 34745 WOODWARD AVE LUST, UST, INVENTORY, BEA, WDS Higher 1624, 0.308, SE

I35 WEISS SAMONA 34901 WOODWARD AVENU US BROWNFIELDS, FINDS Higher 1524, 0.289, ESE

I34 WOODWARD BROWN ASSOC 34901 WOODWARD AVENU BEA Higher 1524, 0.289, ESE

I33 WOODWARD BROWN ASSOC 34901 WOODWARD INVENTORY Higher 1524, 0.289, ESE

I32 WOODWARD BROWN ASSOC 34901 WOODWARD AVENU INVENTORY Higher 1504, 0.285, ESE

J31 CHINESE RESTAURANT 856 NORTH OLD WOODWA BEA Lower 1492, 0.283, NNW

J30 FLS PROPERTIES #5 LL 856 N. OLD WOODWARD INVENTORY, WDS Lower 1492, 0.283, NNW

29 BROWN STREET OFFICE 200 EAST BROWN BEA Higher 1450, 0.275, SSE

I28 34965 WOODWARD AVENU 34965 WOODWARD AVENU INVENTORY Higher 1382, 0.262, ESE

G27 SHELL - HUNTER 34977 WOODWARD AVE LUST, UST, INVENTORY Higher 1285, 0.243, ESE

G26 CATALYST DEVELOPMENT 34977 WOODWARD AVE RCRA-CESQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 1285, 0.243, ESE

G25 CATALYST DEVELOPMENT 34977 WOODWARD AVE AUL, SPILLS, BEA, WDS Higher 1285, 0.243, ESE

G24 CATALYST DEVELOPMENT 34977 WOODWARD AVENU INVENTORY Higher 1254, 0.237, ESE

H23 ESSCO OF BIRMINGHAM 255 S OLD WOODWARD A RCRA-CESQG Higher 1230, 0.233, SE

H22 UPTOWN ENTERTAINMENT 211 S OLD WOODWARD A RCRA NonGen / NLR Higher 1191, 0.226, SE

G21 SUNOCO #0008-4178 35001 WOODWARD AVE LUST, UST, INVENTORY, BEA, WDS Higher 1139, 0.216, ESE

G20 SUNOCO SERVICE STATI 35001 WOODWARD AVE RCRA NonGen / NLR, FINDS, ECHO Higher 1139, 0.216, ESE

19 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SC 550 W MERRILL LUST, INVENTORY Higher 1112, 0.211, SSW

18 BURTON KATZMAN 336 E MAPLE RD RCRA NonGen / NLR Higher 1015, 0.192, ESE

D17 BIRMINGHAM CAMERA SH 168 S OLD WOODWARD A RCRA NonGen / NLR, FINDS, ECHO Higher 863, 0.163, SE

F16 PROPOSED BALDWIN HOU 200 CHESTER ST LUST, UST, WDS Higher 850, 0.161, SSW

F15 BALDWIN HOUSE 200 CHESTER ST RCRA-CESQG Higher 850, 0.161, SSW

14 CENTRAL PARKING SYST 180 CHESTER ST RCRA-CESQG Higher 759, 0.144, SW

E13 ERIC GHEEN 272 RAVINE RD INVENTORY, WDS Lower 735, 0.139, NNE

E12 ERIC GHEEN 272 RAVINE RD RCRA NonGen / NLR Lower 735, 0.139, NNE

D11 FULLER CENTRAL PARK 111 S OLD WOODWARD RCRA-CESQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 726, 0.138, SE

C10 DAKOTA 280 HARMON ST RCRA NonGen / NLR Lower 656, 0.124, NNW

B9 165 - 217 PIERCE STR 165 - 217 PIERCE STR INVENTORY Higher 630, 0.119, SSE

C8 ISADORE FRANK M 511 N WOODWARD AVE EDR Hist Auto Lower 614, 0.116, NNW

B7 CENTURION CARPET & U 155 HENRIETTA ST EDR Hist Cleaner Higher 528, 0.100, SSE

B6 BIRMINGHAM CO (M5711 155 HENRIETTA ST UST Higher 528, 0.100, SSE

B5 MICHIGAN BELL TELEPH 155 HENRIETTA ST RCRA-CESQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 528, 0.100, SSE

4 FIRST CHURCH OF CHRI 191 N. CHESTER ST. INVENTORY Higher 422, 0.080, SW

A3 JFK INVESTMENT COMPA 280 N OLD WOODWARD A RCRA-CESQG, FINDS, ECHO Higher 319, 0.060, ESE

A2 HOLLYWOOD SHERIDAN A 185 OAKLAND AVE RCRA NonGen / NLR Higher 273, 0.052, ENE

A1 COMERICA BANK BIRMIN 322 N. OLD WOODWARD INVENTORY Higher 153, 0.029, East

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5415516.2s   Page  3

N56 BUDGET RENT-A-CAR 1000 E MAPLE RD LUST, UST, INVENTORY, WDS Lower 2495, 0.473, ESE

55 MAPLE GAS INC 1065 W MAPLE RD LUST, UST, AUL, INVENTORY, Financial Assurance Lower 2483, 0.470, WSW

O54 GOLLING MOTORS, INC. 34500 WOODWARD AVENU INVENTORY Lower 2479, 0.470, SE

O53 GOLLING MOTORS, INC. 34500 WOODWARD AVENU INVENTORY, BEA Lower 2479, 0.470, SE

N52 OSOS TONTOS LLC 985 EAST MAPLE BEA Higher 2377, 0.450, ESE

N51 PARKING LOT (DIETZ C 985 E MAPLE RD LUST, UST Higher 2344, 0.444, East

N50 PARKING LOT (DIETZ C 985 E MAPLE RD INVENTORY, BEA Higher 2344, 0.444, East

M49 ELMWOOD PROPERTIES I 920-970 EAST MAPLE R BEA Higher 2281, 0.432, ESE

L48 CARMAN TILLARD 910 N HUNTER BLVD LUST, UST Lower 2157, 0.409, ESE

M47 HAMILTON FUNERAL HOM 820 EAST MAPLE ROAD INVENTORY, BEA Higher 2080, 0.394, ESE

L46 MALLY, C . LANE PROP 575 SOUTH HUNTER BLV BEA Lower 2079, 0.394, ESE

45 GHAFARI PROPERTIES I 36101 WOODWARD AVE LUST, UST, AUL, INVENTORY, Financial Assurance Lower 1959, 0.371, NNW

L44 SPEEDWAY LLC 34750 WOODWARD AVE RCRA-CESQG, LUST, UST, INVENTORY, FINDS, ECHO Higher 1954, 0.370, ESE

K43 ESTATE MOTORS 464 S WOODWARD AVE LUST, UST Lower 1907, 0.361, SE

K42 GREEN’S ART SUPPLY 400 SOUTH OLD WOODWA INVENTORY Higher 1763, 0.334, SE

K41 GREEN’S ART SUPPLY 400 SOUTH OLD WOODWA US BROWNFIELDS Higher 1763, 0.334, SE

J40 AMOCO #5791 (FORMER) 35975 WOODWARD AVENU INVENTORY Lower 1672, 0.317, NNW

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5415516.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4

TARGET PROPERTY SEARCH RESULTS

The target property was not listed in any of the databases searched by EDR.

SURROUNDING SITES: SEARCH RESULTS

Surrounding sites were identified in the following databases.

Elevations have been determined from the USGS Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated on
a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
should be field verified. Sites with an elevation equal to or higher than the target property have been
differentiated below from sites with an elevation lower than the target property.
Page numbers and map identification numbers refer to the EDR Radius Map report where detailed
data on individual sites can be reviewed.

Sites listed in bold italics are in multiple databases.

Unmappable (orphan) sites are not considered in the foregoing analysis.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal RCRA generators list

RCRA-CESQG: A review of the RCRA-CESQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/01/2018 has revealed
that there are 7 RCRA-CESQG sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     JFK INVESTMENT COMPA   280 N OLD WOODWARD A ESE 0 - 1/8 (0.060 mi.) A3 8
EPA ID:: MIK244262911

     MICHIGAN BELL TELEPH   155 HENRIETTA ST SSE 0 - 1/8 (0.100 mi.) B5 9
EPA ID:: MIT270013519

     FULLER CENTRAL PARK   111 S OLD WOODWARD SE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.138 mi.) D11 10
EPA ID:: MIK478599987

     CENTRAL PARKING SYST   180 CHESTER ST SW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.144 mi.) 14 11
EPA ID:: MIK937473619

     BALDWIN HOUSE   200 CHESTER ST SSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.161 mi.) F15 11
EPA ID:: MIK756294448

     ESSCO OF BIRMINGHAM   255 S OLD WOODWARD A SE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.233 mi.) H23 13
EPA ID:: MIK656803600

     CATALYST DEVELOPMENT   34977 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.243 mi.) G26 14
EPA ID:: MIR000044230

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

LUST: A review of the LUST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 05/03/2018 has revealed that there are



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5415516.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 5

13 LUST sites within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PROPOSED BALDWIN HOU   200 CHESTER ST SSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.161 mi.) F16 11
Release Status: Closed
Substance Release: Heating Oil
Facility Id: 00037464

     BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SC   550 W MERRILL SSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.211 mi.) 19 12
Release Status: Open
Facility Id: 50000584

     SUNOCO #0008-4178   35001 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.216 mi.) G21 13
Release Status: Closed
Substance Release: Unknown
Facility Id: 00005935

     SHELL - HUNTER   34977 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.243 mi.) G27 14
Release Status: Closed
Release Status: Open
Substance Release: Unknown,Unknown
Substance Release: Gasoline
Substance Release: Used Oil
Facility Id: 00002267

     JAX KAR WASH #048   34745 WOODWARD AVE SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.308 mi.) 36 16
Release Status: Open
Substance Release: Unknown
Facility Id: 00001952

     SPEEDWAY LLC   34750 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.370 mi.) L44 19
Release Status: Closed
Release Status: Open
Substance Release: Unknown
Substance Release: Gasoline,Gasoline,Gasoline,Diesel
Facility Id: 00016370

     PARKING LOT (DIETZ C   985 E MAPLE RD E 1/4 - 1/2 (0.444 mi.) N51 21
Release Status: Open
Substance Release: Unknown
Facility Id: 50002129

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SIMON LAND DEVELOPME   35975 WOODWARD AVE NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.317 mi.) J38 17
Release Status: Open
Facility Id: 00005681

     ESTATE MOTORS   464 S WOODWARD AVE SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.361 mi.) K43 18
Release Status: Closed
Substance Release: Gasoline
Substance Release: Unknown
Facility Id: 00015180

     GHAFARI PROPERTIES I   36101 WOODWARD AVE NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.371 mi.) 45 19
Release Status: Closed
Substance Release: Gasoline,Gasoline,Gasoline,Gasoline
Facility Id: 00034940

     CARMAN TILLARD   910 N HUNTER BLVD ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.409 mi.) L48 20
Release Status: Closed



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5415516.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 6

Facility Id: 50001216

     MAPLE GAS INC   1065 W MAPLE RD WSW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.470 mi.) 55 22
Release Status: Closed
Substance Release: Used Oil,Gasoline
Substance Release: Gasoline,Gasoline,Gasoline,Used Oil
Substance Release: Unknown
Facility Id: 00016689

     BUDGET RENT-A-CAR   1000 E MAPLE RD ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.473 mi.) N56 22
Release Status: Open
Facility Id: 00007720

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

UST: A review of the UST list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 4 UST sites within
approximately  0.25 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     BIRMINGHAM CO (M5711   155 HENRIETTA ST SSE 0 - 1/8 (0.100 mi.) B6 9
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/13/2017
Tank Status: Currently In Use
Facility Type: ACTIVE
Facility Id: 00011669

     PROPOSED BALDWIN HOU   200 CHESTER ST SSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.161 mi.) F16 11
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/13/2017
Tank Status: Closed in Ground
Facility Type: CLOSED
Facility Id: 00037464

     SUNOCO #0008-4178   35001 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.216 mi.) G21 13
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/13/2017
Tank Status: Removed from Ground
Facility Type: CLOSED
Facility Id: 00005935

     SHELL - HUNTER   34977 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.243 mi.) G27 14
Database: UST, Date of Government Version: 09/13/2017
Tank Status: Removed from Ground
Facility Type: CLOSED
Facility Id: 00002267

State and tribal institutional control / engineering control registries

AUL: A review of the AUL list, as provided by EDR, and dated 05/25/2018 has revealed that there are 4
AUL sites within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CATALYST DEVELOPMENT   34977 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.243 mi.) G25 14



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5415516.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 7

Facility ID: 00002267

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SIMON LAND DEVELOPME   35975 WOODWARD AVE NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.317 mi.) J38 17
Facility ID: 00005681

     GHAFARI PROPERTIES I   36101 WOODWARD AVE NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.371 mi.) 45 19
Facility ID: 00034940

     MAPLE GAS INC   1065 W MAPLE RD WSW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.470 mi.) 55 22
Facility ID: 00016689

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS: A review of the US BROWNFIELDS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/19/2018 has
revealed that there are 2 US BROWNFIELDS sites within approximately  0.5 miles of the target
property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     WEISS SAMONA   34901 WOODWARD AVENU ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.289 mi.) I35 16
ACRES property ID: 115761

     GREEN’S ART SUPPLY   400 SOUTH OLD WOODWA SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.334 mi.) K41 18
ACRES property ID: 170095

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

INVENTORY: A review of the INVENTORY list, as provided by EDR, and dated 07/23/2018 has revealed that
there are 26 INVENTORY sites within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     COMERICA BANK BIRMIN   322 N. OLD WOODWARD E 0 - 1/8 (0.029 mi.) A1 8
Facility ID: 63005254

     FIRST CHURCH OF CHRI   191 N. CHESTER ST. SW 0 - 1/8 (0.080 mi.) 4 8
Facility ID: 63005278

     165 - 217 PIERCE STR   165 - 217 PIERCE STR SSE 0 - 1/8 (0.119 mi.) B9 10
     BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SC   550 W MERRILL SSW 1/8 - 1/4 (0.211 mi.) 19 12

Facility ID: 50000584

     SUNOCO #0008-4178   35001 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.216 mi.) G21 13
     CATALYST DEVELOPMENT   34977 WOODWARD AVENU ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.237 mi.) G24 13

Facility ID: 63005889

     SHELL - HUNTER   34977 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.243 mi.) G27 14
Facility ID: 00002267

     34965 WOODWARD AVENU   34965 WOODWARD AVENU ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.262 mi.) I28 15



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5415516.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 8

Facility ID: 63006065

     WOODWARD BROWN ASSOC   34901 WOODWARD AVENU ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.285 mi.) I32 15
Facility ID: 63005920

     WOODWARD BROWN ASSOC   34901 WOODWARD ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.289 mi.) I33 16
Facility ID: 63005920

     JAX KAR WASH #048   34745 WOODWARD AVE SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.308 mi.) 36 16
Facility ID: 00001952

     GREEN’S ART SUPPLY   400 SOUTH OLD WOODWA SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.334 mi.) K42 18
     SPEEDWAY LLC   34750 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.370 mi.) L44 19

Facility ID: 00016370

     HAMILTON FUNERAL HOM   820 EAST MAPLE ROAD ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.394 mi.) M47 20
     PARKING LOT (DIETZ C   985 E MAPLE RD E 1/4 - 1/2 (0.444 mi.) N50 21

Facility ID: 50002129

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     ERIC GHEEN   272 RAVINE RD NNE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.139 mi.) E13 10
Facility ID: 63006037

     FLS PROPERTIES #5 LL   856 N. OLD WOODWARD NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.283 mi.) J30 15
Facility ID: 63006064

     AMOCO STATION #5791   35975 WOODWARD AVENU NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.312 mi.) J37 17
     SIMON LAND DEVELOPME   35975 WOODWARD AVE NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.317 mi.) J38 17

Facility ID: 00005681

     AMOCO #5791   35975 WOODWARD NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.317 mi.) J39 17
     AMOCO #5791 (FORMER)   35975 WOODWARD AVENU NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.317 mi.) J40 18

Facility ID: 63006077

     GHAFARI PROPERTIES I   36101 WOODWARD AVE NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.371 mi.) 45 19
Facility ID: 00034940

     GOLLING MOTORS, INC.   34500 WOODWARD AVENU SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.470 mi.) O53 21
Facility ID: 63005949

     GOLLING MOTORS, INC.   34500 WOODWARD AVENU SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.470 mi.) O54 21
Facility ID: 63005949

     MAPLE GAS INC   1065 W MAPLE RD WSW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.470 mi.) 55 22
Facility ID: 00016689

     BUDGET RENT-A-CAR   1000 E MAPLE RD ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.473 mi.) N56 22
Facility ID: 00007720

Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR: A review of the RCRA NonGen / NLR list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/01/2018
has revealed that there are 7 RCRA NonGen / NLR sites within approximately  0.25 miles of the target
property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HOLLYWOOD SHERIDAN A   185 OAKLAND AVE ENE 0 - 1/8 (0.052 mi.) A2 8
EPA ID:: MIK674636881

     BIRMINGHAM CAMERA SH   168 S OLD WOODWARD A SE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.163 mi.) D17 12



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5415516.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 9

EPA ID:: MID985652064

     BURTON KATZMAN   336 E MAPLE RD ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.192 mi.) 18 12
EPA ID:: MIK851343467

     SUNOCO SERVICE STATI   35001 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.216 mi.) G20 12
EPA ID:: MID087750204

     UPTOWN ENTERTAINMENT   211 S OLD WOODWARD A SE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.226 mi.) H22 13
EPA ID:: MIK151544753

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     DAKOTA   280 HARMON ST NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.124 mi.) C10 10
EPA ID:: MIK718658982

     ERIC GHEEN   272 RAVINE RD NNE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.139 mi.) E12 10
EPA ID:: MIK407668698

BEA: A review of the BEA list, as provided by EDR, and dated 08/21/2013 has revealed that there are
13 BEA sites within approximately  0.5 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SUNOCO #0008-4178   35001 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.216 mi.) G21 13
     CATALYST DEVELOPMENT   34977 WOODWARD AVE ESE 1/8 - 1/4 (0.243 mi.) G25 14
     BROWN STREET OFFICE   200 EAST BROWN SSE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.275 mi.) 29 15
     WOODWARD BROWN ASSOC   34901 WOODWARD AVENU ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.289 mi.) I34 16
     JAX KAR WASH #048   34745 WOODWARD AVE SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.308 mi.) 36 16
     HAMILTON FUNERAL HOM   820 EAST MAPLE ROAD ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.394 mi.) M47 20
     ELMWOOD PROPERTIES I   920-970 EAST MAPLE R ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.432 mi.) M49 20
     PARKING LOT (DIETZ C   985 E MAPLE RD E 1/4 - 1/2 (0.444 mi.) N50 21
     OSOS TONTOS LLC   985 EAST MAPLE ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.450 mi.) N52 21

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHINESE RESTAURANT   856 NORTH OLD WOODWA NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.283 mi.) J31 15
     SIMON LAND DEVELOPME   35975 WOODWARD AVE NNW 1/4 - 1/2 (0.317 mi.) J38 17
     MALLY, C . LANE PROP   575 SOUTH HUNTER BLV ESE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.394 mi.) L46 20
     GOLLING MOTORS, INC.   34500 WOODWARD AVENU SE 1/4 - 1/2 (0.470 mi.) O53 21

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR Hist Auto: A review of the EDR Hist Auto list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there is 1
EDR Hist Auto site  within approximately  0.125 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     ISADORE FRANK M   511 N WOODWARD AVE NNW 0 - 1/8 (0.116 mi.) C8 9



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5415516.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 10

EDR Hist Cleaner: A review of the EDR Hist Cleaner list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there
is 1 EDR Hist Cleaner site  within approximately  0.125 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CENTURION CARPET & U   155 HENRIETTA ST SSE 0 - 1/8 (0.100 mi.) B7 9



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

O
R

P
H

A
N

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

C
ity

E
D

R
 ID

S
ite

 N
am

e
S

ite
 A

dd
re

ss
Z

ip
D

at
ab

as
e(

s)

C
ou

nt
: 0

 r
ec

or
ds

.

N
O

 S
IT

E
S

 F
O

U
N

D

T
C

54
15

51
6.

2s
   

P
ag

e 
17

3



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

80
0

76
0

76
0

760
760

760

720

720



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

760



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000NPL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Proposed NPL
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001NPL LIENS

Federal Delisted NPL site list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000Delisted NPL

Federal CERCLIS list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500FEDERAL FACILITY
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SEMS

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SEMS-ARCHIVE

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CORRACTS

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500RCRA-TSDF

Federal RCRA generators list

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA-LQG
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250RCRA-SQG
    7  NR   NR    NR      5    2 0.250RCRA-CESQG

Federal institutional controls /
engineering controls registries

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500LUCIS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US ENG CONTROLS
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500US INST CONTROL

Federal ERNS list

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ERNS

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000SHWS

State and tribal landfill and/or
solid waste disposal site lists

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SWF/LF

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

   13  NR   NR      9      4    0 0.500LUST
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN LUST

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FEMA UST

TC5415516.2s   Page 4



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    4  NR   NR    NR      3    1 0.250UST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250AST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250INDIAN UST

State and tribal institutional
control / engineering control registries

    4  NR   NR      3      1    0 0.500AUL

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN VCP

State and tribal Brownfields sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500BROWNFIELDS

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

    2  NR   NR      2      0    0 0.500US BROWNFIELDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid
Waste Disposal Sites

    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SWRCY
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500HIST LF
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500INDIAN ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500ODI
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500DEBRIS REGION 9
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500IHS OPEN DUMPS

Local Lists of Hazardous waste /
Contaminated Sites

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001US HIST CDL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000PART 201
   26  NR   NR     18      5    3 0.500INVENTORY
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001CDL
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000DEL PART 201
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001US CDL

Local Land Records

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001LIENS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001LIENS 2

Records of Emergency Release Reports

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001HMIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001SPILLS

Other Ascertainable Records

    7  NR   NR    NR      5    2 0.250RCRA NonGen / NLR
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000FUDS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000DOD
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500SCRD DRYCLEANERS

TC5415516.2s   Page 5



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001US FIN ASSUR
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001EPA WATCH LIST
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.2502020 COR ACTION
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001TSCA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001TRIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001SSTS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000ROD
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RMP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RAATS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PRP
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PADS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ICIS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001FTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001MLTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001COAL ASH DOE
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500COAL ASH EPA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001PCB TRANSFORMER
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RADINFO
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001HIST FTTS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001DOT OPS
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000CONSENT
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001INDIAN RESERV
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000FUSRAP
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500UMTRA
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001LEAD SMELTERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001US AIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250US MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ABANDONED MINES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001FINDS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001DOCKET HWC
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ECHO
    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000UXO
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250FUELS PROGRAM
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001AIRS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001ASBESTOS
   13  NR   NR     11      2    0 0.500BEA
    0  NR   NR      0      0    0 0.500COAL ASH
    0  NR   NR    NR      0    0 0.250DRYCLEANERS
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001Financial Assurance
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001LEAD
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001NPDES
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001UIC
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001WDS

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

    0  NR     0      0      0    0 1.000EDR MGP
    1  NR   NR    NR    NR    1 0.125EDR Hist Auto
    1  NR   NR    NR    NR    1 0.125EDR Hist Cleaner

TC5415516.2s   Page 6



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RGA PART 201
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RGA LF
    0  NR   NR    NR    NR    0 0.001RGA LUST

   78    0    0   43   25   10    0- Totals --

NOTES:

   TP = Target Property

   NR = Not Requested at this Search Distance

   Sites may be listed in more than one database

TC5415516.2s   Page 7



TC5415516.2s  Page 8

4 INVENTORYFIRST CHURCH OF CHRIST S114028648
SW 191 N. CHESTER ST.    N/A
< 1/8 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.080 mi.
422 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63005278

A3 RCRA-CESQGJFK INVESTMENT COMPANY LLC 1016676570
ESE FINDS280 N OLD WOODWARD AVE MIK244262911
< 1/8 ECHOBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.060 mi.
319 ft.

RCRA-CESQG
    EPA Id: MIK244262911

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110058887744

ECHO
    Registry ID: 110058887744

A2 RCRA NonGen / NLRHOLLYWOOD SHERIDAN ASSOCIATES LLC 1014392513
ENE 185 OAKLAND AVE MIK674636881
< 1/8 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.052 mi.
273 ft.

RCRA NonGen / NLR
    EPA Id: MIK674636881

A1 INVENTORYCOMERICA BANK BIRMINGHAM S114028625
East 322 N. OLD WOODWARD    N/A
< 1/8 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.029 mi.
153 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63005254

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 9

C8 EDR Hist AutoISADORE FRANK M 1021028771
NNW 511 N WOODWARD AVE    N/A
< 1/8 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48011

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.116 mi.
614 ft.

B7 EDR Hist CleanerCENTURION CARPET & UPHL CLRS 1018638122
SSE 155 HENRIETTA ST    N/A
< 1/8 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.100 mi.
528 ft.

B6 USTBIRMINGHAM CO (M57110) U003322266
SSE 155 HENRIETTA ST    N/A
< 1/8 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.100 mi.
528 ft.

UST
    Tank Status: Currently In Use
    Facility Type: ACTIVE
    Facility Id: 00011669

B5 RCRA-CESQGMICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY 1000237764
SSE FINDS155 HENRIETTA ST MIT270013519
< 1/8 ECHOBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.100 mi.
528 ft.

RCRA-CESQG
    EPA Id: MIT270013519

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110003719183

ECHO
    Registry ID: 110003719183

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 10

E13 INVENTORYERIC GHEEN S117057927
NNE WDS272 RAVINE RD    N/A
1/8-1/4 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.139 mi.
735 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63006037

E12 RCRA NonGen / NLRERIC GHEEN 1016958314
NNE 272 RAVINE RD MIK407668698
1/8-1/4 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.139 mi.
735 ft.

RCRA NonGen / NLR
    EPA Id: MIK407668698

D11 RCRA-CESQGFULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES LLC 1016142307
SE FINDS111 S OLD WOODWARD MIK478599987
1/8-1/4 ECHOBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.138 mi.
726 ft.

RCRA-CESQG
    EPA Id: MIK478599987

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110055448608

ECHO
    Registry ID: 110055448608

C10 RCRA NonGen / NLRDAKOTA 1007099707
NNW 280 HARMON ST MIK718658982
< 1/8 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.124 mi.
656 ft.

RCRA NonGen / NLR
    EPA Id: MIK718658982

B9 INVENTORY165 - 217 PIERCE STREET S120851764
SSE 165 - 217 PIERCE STREET    N/A
< 1/8 OAKLAND (County), MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.119 mi.
630 ft.

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 11

F16 LUSTPROPOSED BALDWIN HOUSE SITE U001777213
SSW UST200 CHESTER ST    N/A
1/8-1/4 WDSBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.161 mi.
850 ft.

LUST
    Release Status: Closed
    Facility Id: 00037464
    Substance Release: Heating Oil

UST
    Tank Status: Closed in Ground
    Facility Type: CLOSED
    Facility Id: 00037464

WDS
    WMD Id: 489340
    Site Id: MIK756294448

F15 RCRA-CESQGBALDWIN HOUSE 1014925103
SSW 200 CHESTER ST MIK756294448
1/8-1/4 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.161 mi.
850 ft.

RCRA-CESQG
    EPA Id: MIK756294448

14 RCRA-CESQGCENTRAL PARKING SYSTEM 1010321290
SW 180 CHESTER ST MIK937473619
1/8-1/4 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.144 mi.
759 ft.

RCRA-CESQG
    EPA Id: MIK937473619

ERIC GHEEN  (Continued) S117057927

WDS
    WMD Id: 493758
    Site Id: MIK407668698

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 12

G20 RCRA NonGen / NLRSUNOCO SERVICE STATION 84178 1004722718
ESE FINDS35001 WOODWARD AVE MID087750204
1/8-1/4 ECHOBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.216 mi.
1139 ft.

RCRA NonGen / NLR
    EPA Id: MID087750204

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110003607124

ECHO

19 LUSTBIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS S102851783
SSW INVENTORY550 W MERRILL    N/A
1/8-1/4 BIRMINGHAM, MI  99999

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.211 mi.
1112 ft.

LUST
    Release Status: Open
    Facility Id: 50000584

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 50000584

18 RCRA NonGen / NLRBURTON KATZMAN 1007990194
ESE 336 E MAPLE RD MIK851343467
1/8-1/4 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.192 mi.
1015 ft.

RCRA NonGen / NLR
    EPA Id: MIK851343467

D17 RCRA NonGen / NLRBIRMINGHAM CAMERA SHOP 1000828149
SE FINDS168 S OLD WOODWARD AVE MID985652064
1/8-1/4 ECHOBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.163 mi.
863 ft.

RCRA NonGen / NLR
    EPA Id: MID985652064

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110003675443

ECHO
    Registry ID: 110003675443

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 13

G24 INVENTORYCATALYST DEVELOPMENT CO. 8, LLC S114029235
ESE 34977 WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/8-1/4 OAKLAND (County), MI  

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.237 mi.
1254 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63005889

H23 RCRA-CESQGESSCO OF BIRMINGHAM LLC 1017770828
SE 255 S OLD WOODWARD AVE MIK656803600
1/8-1/4 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.233 mi.
1230 ft.

RCRA-CESQG
    EPA Id: MIK656803600

H22 RCRA NonGen / NLRUPTOWN ENTERTAINMENT 1016958103
SE 211 S OLD WOODWARD AVE MIK151544753
1/8-1/4 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.226 mi.
1191 ft.

RCRA NonGen / NLR
    EPA Id: MIK151544753

G21 LUSTSUNOCO #0008-4178 U003320721
ESE UST35001 WOODWARD AVE    N/A
1/8-1/4 INVENTORYBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.216 mi. BEA
1139 ft. WDS

LUST
    Release Status: Closed
    Facility Id: 00005935
    Substance Release: Unknown

UST
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Facility Type: CLOSED
    Facility Id: 00005935

WDS
    WMD Id: 397695
    Site Id: MID087750204

SUNOCO SERVICE STATION 84178  (Continued) 1004722718

    Registry ID: 110003607124

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 14

G27 LUSTSHELL - HUNTER U003319719
ESE UST34977 WOODWARD AVE    N/A
1/8-1/4 INVENTORYBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.243 mi.
1285 ft.

LUST
    Release Status: Closed
    Release Status: Open
    Facility Id: 00002267
    Substance Release: Unknown,Unknown
    Substance Release: Gasoline
    Substance Release: Used Oil

UST
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Facility Type: CLOSED
    Facility Id: 00002267

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 00002267

G26 RCRA-CESQGCATALYST DEVELOPMENT CO 8 LLC 1001961007
ESE FINDS34977 WOODWARD AVE MIR000044230
1/8-1/4 ECHOBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.243 mi.
1285 ft.

RCRA-CESQG
    EPA Id: MIR000044230

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110006413087

ECHO
    Registry ID: 110006413087

G25 AULCATALYST DEVELOPMENT CO 8 LLC S104912434
ESE SPILLS34977 WOODWARD AVE    N/A
1/8-1/4 BEABIRMINGHAM, MI  48104

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.243 mi. WDS
1285 ft.

AUL
    Facility ID: 00002267

WDS
    WMD Id: 413573
    Site Id: MIR000044230

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 15

I32 INVENTORYWOODWARD BROWN ASSOCIATES, LLC S114029255
ESE 34901 WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 OAKLAND (County), MI  48073

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.285 mi.
1504 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63005920

J31 BEACHINESE RESTAURANT S108236717
NNW 856 NORTH OLD WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.283 mi.
1492 ft.

J30 INVENTORYFLS PROPERTIES #5 LLC S118188653
NNW WDS856 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.283 mi.
1492 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63006064

WDS
    WMD Id: 497000
    Site Id: MIK101349406

29 BEABROWN STREET OFFICE BUILDING S109094147
SSE 200 EAST BROWN    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.275 mi.
1450 ft.

I28 INVENTORY34965 WOODWARD AVENUE S118622157
ESE 34965 WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.262 mi.
1382 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63006065

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 16

36 LUSTJAX KAR WASH #048 U003319644
SE UST34745 WOODWARD AVE    N/A
1/4-1/2 INVENTORYBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.308 mi. BEA
1624 ft. WDS

LUST
    Release Status: Open
    Facility Id: 00001952
    Substance Release: Unknown

UST
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Facility Type: CLOSED
    Facility Id: 00001952

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 00001952

WDS

I35 US BROWNFIELDSWEISS SAMONA 1016357344
ESE FINDS34901 WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.289 mi.
1524 ft.

US BROWNFIELDS
    ACRES property ID: 115761

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110043085050

I34 BEAWOODWARD BROWN ASSOCIATES, LLC S110624723
ESE 34901 WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48073

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.289 mi.
1524 ft.

I33 INVENTORYWOODWARD BROWN ASSOC LLC S114029254
ESE 34901 WOODWARD    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.289 mi.
1524 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63005920

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 17

J39 INVENTORYAMOCO #5791 S120852487
NNW 35975 WOODWARD    N/A
1/4-1/2 OAKLAND (County), MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.317 mi.
1672 ft.

J38 LUSTSIMON LAND DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC U003320634
NNW UST35975 WOODWARD AVE    N/A
1/4-1/2 AULBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.317 mi. INVENTORY
1672 ft. BEA

WDS

LUST
    Release Status: Open
    Facility Id: 00005681

UST
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Facility Type: CLOSED
    Facility Id: 00005681

AUL
    Facility ID: 00005681

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 00005681

WDS
    WMD Id: 404537
    Site Id: MID985606458

J37 INVENTORYAMOCO STATION #5791 (FORMER) S114032539
NNW 35975 WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 OAKLAND (County), MI  

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.312 mi.
1646 ft.

JAX KAR WASH #048  (Continued) U003319644

    WMD Id: 429618
    Site Id: MIG000026887

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 18

K43 LUSTESTATE MOTORS U004181541
SE UST464 S WOODWARD AVE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48011

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.361 mi.
1907 ft.

LUST
    Release Status: Closed
    Facility Id: 00015180
    Substance Release: Gasoline
    Substance Release: Unknown

UST
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Facility ID: 00015180
    Facility Type: CLOSED
    Facility Id: 00015180

K42 INVENTORYGREEN’S ART SUPPLY S116710702
SE 400 SOUTH OLD WOODWARD    N/A
1/4-1/2 OAKLAND (County), MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.334 mi.
1763 ft.

K41 US BROWNFIELDSGREEN’S ART SUPPLY 1016603767
SE 400 SOUTH OLD WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.334 mi.
1763 ft.

US BROWNFIELDS
    ACRES property ID: 170095

J40 INVENTORYAMOCO #5791 (FORMER) S121186466
NNW 35975 WOODWARD AVENUE FORMERLY 905 HUNTER    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.317 mi.
1672 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63006077

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 19

45 LUSTGHAFARI PROPERTIES INC U003426133
NNW UST36101 WOODWARD AVE    N/A
1/4-1/2 AULBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.371 mi. INVENTORY
1959 ft. Financial Assurance

LUST
    Release Status: Closed
    Facility Id: 00034940
    Substance Release: Gasoline,Gasoline,Gasoline,Gasoline

UST
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Tank Status: Currently In Use
    Facility Type: ACTIVE
    Facility Id: 00034940

AUL

L44 RCRA-CESQGSPEEDWAY LLC 1000844604
ESE LUST34750 WOODWARD AVE MID985666387
1/4-1/2 USTBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.370 mi. INVENTORY
1954 ft. FINDS

ECHO

RCRA-CESQG
    EPA Id: MID985666387

LUST
    Release Status: Closed
    Release Status: Open
    Facility Id: 00016370
    Substance Release: Unknown
    Substance Release: Gasoline,Gasoline,Gasoline,Diesel

UST
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Tank Status: Currently In Use
    Facility Type: ACTIVE
    Facility Id: 00016370

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 00016370

FINDS
    Registry ID:: 110003685968

ECHO
    Registry ID: 110003685968

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 20

M49 BEAELMWOOD PROPERTIES I, LLC S104912490
ESE 920-970 EAST MAPLE ROAD    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.432 mi.
2281 ft.

L48 LUSTCARMAN TILLARD U004275219
ESE UST910 N HUNTER BLVD    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.409 mi.
2157 ft.

LUST
    Release Status: Closed
    Facility Id: 50001216

UST
    Facility ID: 50001216

M47 INVENTORYHAMILTON FUNERAL HOME PROPERTY S111832674
ESE BEA820 EAST MAPLE ROAD    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.394 mi.
2080 ft.

L46 BEAMALLY, C . LANE PROPERTY S104910029
ESE 575 SOUTH HUNTER BLVD.    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.394 mi.
2079 ft.

GHAFARI PROPERTIES INC  (Continued) U003426133

    Facility ID: 00034940

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 00034940

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 21

O54 INVENTORYGOLLING MOTORS, INC. S114029283
SE 34500 WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 OAKLAND (County), MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.470 mi.
2479 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63005949

O53 INVENTORYGOLLING MOTORS, INC. S111333595
SE BEA34500 WOODWARD AVENUE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.470 mi.
2479 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 63005949

N52 BEAOSOS TONTOS LLC S113828182
ESE 985 EAST MAPLE    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48104

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.450 mi.
2377 ft.

N51 LUSTPARKING LOT (DIETZ CORP) U004275225
East UST985 E MAPLE RD    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.444 mi.
2344 ft.

LUST
    Release Status: Open
    Facility Id: 50002129
    Substance Release: Unknown

UST
    Facility ID: 50002129

N50 INVENTORYPARKING LOT (DIETZ CORP) S102851965
East BEA985 E MAPLE RD    N/A
1/4-1/2 BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Higher

Click here for full text details

0.444 mi.
2344 ft.

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 50002129

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



TC5415516.2s  Page 22

N56 LUSTBUDGET RENT-A-CAR U000261651
ESE UST1000 E MAPLE RD    N/A
1/4-1/2 INVENTORYBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.473 mi. WDS
2495 ft.

LUST
    Release Status: Open
    Facility Id: 00007720

UST
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Facility Type: CLOSED
    Facility Id: 00007720

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 00007720

WDS
    WMD Id: 453923
    Site Id: MIG000018867

55 LUSTMAPLE GAS INC U004117527
WSW UST1065 W MAPLE RD    N/A
1/4-1/2 AULBIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Relative:
Lower

Click here for full text details

0.470 mi. INVENTORY
2483 ft. Financial Assurance

LUST
    Release Status: Closed
    Facility Id: 00016689
    Substance Release: Used Oil,Gasoline
    Substance Release: Gasoline,Gasoline,Gasoline,Used Oil
    Substance Release: Unknown

UST
    Tank Status: Currently In Use
    Tank Status: Removed from Ground
    Facility Type: ACTIVE
    Facility Id: 00016689

AUL
    Facility ID: 00016689

INVENTORY
    Facility ID: 00016689

MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation



E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

E
D

R
 Inc.

MI AIRS Permit and Emissions Inventory Data Dept of Environmental Quality 06/21/2018 06/26/2018 07/31/2018
MI ASBESTOS Asbestos Notification Listing Department of Licensing & Regulatory Affairs 04/30/2018 05/04/2018 06/26/2018
MI AST Aboveground Tanks Department of Licensing & Regulatory Affairs 06/14/2018 06/19/2018 07/31/2018
MI AUL Engineering and Institutional Controls Dept of Environmental Quality 05/25/2018 05/29/2018 06/27/2018
MI BEA Baseline Environmental Assessment Database Dept of Environmental Quality 08/21/2013 08/23/2013 09/12/2013
MI BROWNFIELDS Brownfields and USTfield Site Database Dept of Environmental Quality 01/15/2016 02/02/2016 04/04/2016
MI BROWNFIELDS 2 Brownfields Building and Land Site Locations Economic Development Corporation 04/09/2007 04/10/2007 05/01/2007
MI CDL Clandestine Drug Lab Listing Department of Community Health 12/31/2016 02/17/2017 04/18/2017
MI COAL ASH Coal Ash Disposal Sites Dept of Environmental Quality 10/20/2016 02/02/2017 04/20/2017
MI DEL PART 201 Delisted List of Contaminated Sites Dept of Environmental Quality 08/01/2013 08/01/2013 09/11/2013
MI DRYCLEANERS Drycleaning Establishments Dept of Environmental Quality 04/13/2018 05/02/2018 06/27/2018
MI FINANCIAL ASSURANCE 3 Financial Assurance Information Listing Department of Licensing & Regulatory Affairs 08/24/2017 08/24/2017 10/27/2017
MI Financial Assurance 1 Financial Assurance Information Listing Dept of Environmental Quality 07/01/2018 07/06/2018 08/14/2018
MI Financial Assurance 2 Financial Assurance Information Listing Dept of Environmental Quality 03/29/2018 04/03/2018 05/17/2018
MI HIST LF Inactive Solid Waste Facilities Dept of Environmental Quality 03/01/1997 02/28/2003 03/06/2003
MI INVENTORY Inventory of Facilities Department of Environmental Quality 07/23/2018 07/26/2018 07/31/2018
MI LEAD CERT Lead Safe Housing Registry Department of Community Health 09/15/2015 09/16/2015 09/30/2015
MI LIENS Lien List Dept of Environmental Quality 05/04/2018 07/24/2018 08/01/2018
MI LUST Leaking Underground Storage Tank Sites Dept of Environmental Quality 05/03/2018 05/16/2018 06/27/2018
MI NPDES List of Active NPDES Permits Dept of Environmental Quality 04/17/2018 07/05/2018 08/01/2018
MI PART 201 Part 201 Site List Department of Environmental Quality 10/01/2013 10/03/2014 10/03/2014
MI PEAS Pollution Emergency Alerting System Dept of Environmental Quality 07/10/2018 07/26/2018 08/01/2018
MI RGA LF Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List Department of Environmental Quality 07/01/2013 01/13/2014
MI RGA LUST Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tan Department of Environmental Quality 07/01/2013 12/24/2013
MI RGA PART 201 Recovered Government Archive State Hazardous Waste Facilitie Department of Environmental Quality 07/01/2013 12/24/2013
MI SHWS This state does not maintain a SHWS list. See the Federal CE Dept of Environmental Quality 10/31/2013 11/20/2013
MI SWF/LF Solid Waste Facilities Database Dept of Environmental Quality 06/25/2018 06/27/2018 08/01/2018
MI SWRCY Recycling Facilities Dept of Environmental Quality 01/11/2018 01/16/2018 01/26/2018
MI UIC Underground Injection Wells Database Dept of Environmental Quality 03/30/2018 04/11/2018 05/07/2018
MI UST Underground Storage Tank Facility List Department of Licensing & Regulatory Affairs 09/13/2017 02/01/2018 02/08/2018
MI UST 2 Underground Storage Tank Listing Department of Licensing & Regulatory Affairs 04/23/2018 04/25/2018 06/27/2018
MI WDS Waste Data System Dept of Environmental Quality 05/05/2018 05/07/2018 05/09/2018
US 2020 COR ACTION 2020 Corrective Action Program List Environmental Protection Agency 09/30/2017 05/08/2018 07/20/2018
US ABANDONED MINES Abandoned Mines Department of Interior 03/08/2018 03/13/2018 06/08/2018
US BRS Biennial Reporting System EPA/NTIS 12/31/2015 02/22/2017 09/28/2017
US COAL ASH DOE Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data Department of Energy 12/31/2005 08/07/2009 10/22/2009
US COAL ASH EPA Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List Environmental Protection Agency 07/01/2014 09/10/2014 10/20/2014
US CONSENT Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees Department of Justice, Consent Decree Library 03/31/2018 04/16/2018 06/29/2018
US CORRACTS Corrective Action Report EPA 03/01/2018 03/28/2018 06/22/2018
US DEBRIS REGION 9 Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations EPA, Region 9 01/12/2009 05/07/2009 09/21/2009
US DOCKET HWC Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Listing Environmental Protection Agency 01/04/2018 01/19/2018 04/13/2018
US DOD Department of Defense Sites USGS 12/31/2005 11/10/2006 01/11/2007
US DOT OPS Incident and Accident Data Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeli 07/31/2012 08/07/2012 09/18/2012
US Delisted NPL National Priority List Deletions EPA 05/13/2018 05/30/2018 06/22/2018
US ECHO Enforcement & Compliance History Information Environmental Protection Agency 02/25/2018 03/17/2018 06/08/2018
US EDR Hist Auto EDR Exclusive Historical Auto Stations EDR, Inc.
US EDR Hist Cleaner EDR Exclusive Historical Cleaners EDR, Inc.

TC5415516.2s     Page GR-1

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

St Acronym Full Name Government Agency Gov Date Arvl. Date Active Date



US EDR MGP EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants EDR, Inc.
US EPA WATCH LIST EPA WATCH LIST Environmental Protection Agency 08/30/2013 03/21/2014 06/17/2014
US ERNS Emergency Response Notification System National Response Center, United States Coast 03/19/2018 03/27/2018 06/08/2018
US FEDERAL FACILITY Federal Facility Site Information listing Environmental Protection Agency 11/07/2016 01/05/2017 04/07/2017
US FEDLAND Federal and Indian Lands U.S. Geological Survey 12/31/2005 02/06/2006 01/11/2007
US FEMA UST Underground Storage Tank Listing FEMA 05/15/2017 05/30/2017 10/13/2017
US FINDS Facility Index System/Facility Registry System EPA 02/21/2018 02/23/2018 03/23/2018
US FTTS FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fu EPA/Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxi 04/09/2009 04/16/2009 05/11/2009
US FTTS INSP FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fu EPA 04/09/2009 04/16/2009 05/11/2009
US FUDS Formerly Used Defense Sites U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 01/31/2015 07/08/2015 10/13/2015
US FUELS PROGRAM EPA Fuels Program Registered Listing EPA 02/20/2018 02/21/2018 03/23/2018
US FUSRAP Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program Department of Energy 12/23/2016 12/27/2016 02/17/2017
US HIST FTTS FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing Environmental Protection Agency 10/19/2006 03/01/2007 04/10/2007
US HIST FTTS INSP FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Inspection & Enforcement Case Lis Environmental Protection Agency 10/19/2006 03/01/2007 04/10/2007
US HMIRS Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System U.S. Department of Transportation 03/26/2018 03/27/2018 06/08/2018
US ICIS Integrated Compliance Information System Environmental Protection Agency 11/18/2016 11/23/2016 02/10/2017
US IHS OPEN DUMPS Open Dumps on Indian Land Department of Health & Human Serivces, Indian 04/01/2014 08/06/2014 01/29/2015
US INDIAN LUST R1 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 1 04/13/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN LUST R10 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 10 04/12/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN LUST R4 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 4 05/08/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN LUST R5 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA, Region 5 04/12/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN LUST R6 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 6 04/01/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN LUST R7 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 7 04/24/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN LUST R8 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 8 04/25/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN LUST R9 Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land Environmental Protection Agency 04/10/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN ODI Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands Environmental Protection Agency 12/31/1998 12/03/2007 01/24/2008
US INDIAN RESERV Indian Reservations USGS 12/31/2014 07/14/2015 01/10/2017
US INDIAN UST R1 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA, Region 1 04/13/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN UST R10 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 10 04/12/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN UST R4 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 4 05/08/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN UST R5 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 5 04/12/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN UST R6 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 6 04/01/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN UST R7 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 7 04/24/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN UST R8 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 8 04/25/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN UST R9 Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land EPA Region 9 04/10/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US INDIAN VCP R1 Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing EPA, Region 1 07/27/2015 09/29/2015 02/18/2016
US INDIAN VCP R7 Voluntary Cleanup Priority Lisitng EPA, Region 7 03/20/2008 04/22/2008 05/19/2008
US LEAD SMELTER 1 Lead Smelter Sites Environmental Protection Agency 05/13/2018 05/30/2018 06/29/2018
US LEAD SMELTER 2 Lead Smelter Sites American Journal of Public Health 04/05/2001 10/27/2010 12/02/2010
US LIENS 2 CERCLA Lien Information Environmental Protection Agency 05/13/2018 05/30/2018 06/29/2018
US LUCIS Land Use Control Information System Department of the Navy 05/14/2018 05/18/2018 07/20/2018
US MLTS Material Licensing Tracking System Nuclear Regulatory Commission 08/30/2016 09/08/2016 10/21/2016
US NPL National Priority List EPA 05/13/2018 05/30/2018 06/22/2018
US NPL LIENS Federal Superfund Liens EPA 10/15/1991 02/02/1994 03/30/1994
US ODI Open Dump Inventory Environmental Protection Agency 06/30/1985 08/09/2004 09/17/2004
US PADS PCB Activity Database System EPA 06/01/2017 06/09/2017 10/13/2017
US PCB TRANSFORMER PCB Transformer Registration Database Environmental Protection Agency 05/24/2017 11/30/2017 12/15/2017

TC5415516.2s     Page GR-2

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

St Acronym Full Name Government Agency Gov Date Arvl. Date Active Date



US PRP Potentially Responsible Parties EPA 10/25/2013 10/17/2014 10/20/2014
US Proposed NPL Proposed National Priority List Sites EPA 05/13/2018 05/30/2018 06/22/2018
US RAATS RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System EPA 04/17/1995 07/03/1995 08/07/1995
US RADINFO Radiation Information Database Environmental Protection Agency 04/03/2018 04/05/2018 06/29/2018
US RCRA NonGen / NLR RCRA - Non Generators / No Longer Regulated Environmental Protection Agency 03/01/2018 03/28/2018 06/22/2018
US RCRA-CESQG RCRA - Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators Environmental Protection Agency 03/01/2018 03/28/2018 06/22/2018
US RCRA-LQG RCRA - Large Quantity Generators Environmental Protection Agency 03/01/2018 03/28/2018 06/22/2018
US RCRA-SQG RCRA - Small Quantity Generators Environmental Protection Agency 03/01/2018 03/28/2018 06/22/2018
US RCRA-TSDF RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal Environmental Protection Agency 03/01/2018 03/28/2018 06/22/2018
US RMP Risk Management Plans Environmental Protection Agency 11/02/2017 11/17/2017 12/08/2017
US ROD Records Of Decision EPA 05/13/2018 05/30/2018 06/29/2018
US SCRD DRYCLEANERS State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing Environmental Protection Agency 01/01/2017 02/03/2017 04/07/2017
US SEMS Superfund Enterprise Management System EPA 05/18/2018 05/30/2018 06/22/2018
US SEMS-ARCHIVE Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive EPA 05/18/2018 05/30/2018 06/22/2018
US SSTS Section 7 Tracking Systems EPA 12/31/2009 12/10/2010 02/25/2011
US TRIS Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System EPA 12/31/2016 01/10/2018 01/12/2018
US TSCA Toxic Substances Control Act EPA 12/31/2016 06/21/2017 01/05/2018
US UMTRA Uranium Mill Tailings Sites Department of Energy 06/23/2017 10/11/2017 11/03/2017
US US AIRS (AFS) Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem ( EPA 10/12/2016 10/26/2016 02/03/2017
US US AIRS MINOR Air Facility System Data EPA 10/12/2016 10/26/2016 02/03/2017
US US BROWNFIELDS A Listing of Brownfields Sites Environmental Protection Agency 03/19/2018 03/21/2018 06/08/2018
US US CDL Clandestine Drug Labs Drug Enforcement Administration 02/22/2018 03/01/2018 05/11/2018
US US ENG CONTROLS Engineering Controls Sites List Environmental Protection Agency 02/13/2018 02/27/2018 05/11/2018
US US FIN ASSUR Financial Assurance Information Environmental Protection Agency 03/01/2018 03/27/2018 06/22/2018
US US HIST CDL National Clandestine Laboratory Register Drug Enforcement Administration 02/22/2018 03/01/2018 05/11/2018
US US INST CONTROL Sites with Institutional Controls Environmental Protection Agency 02/13/2018 02/27/2018 05/11/2018
US US MINES Mines Master Index File Department of Labor, Mine Safety and Health A 05/03/2018 05/31/2018 06/29/2018
US US MINES 2 Ferrous and Nonferrous Metal Mines Database Listing USGS 12/05/2005 02/29/2008 04/18/2008
US US MINES 3 Active Mines & Mineral Plants Database Listing USGS 04/14/2011 06/08/2011 09/13/2011
US UXO Unexploded Ordnance Sites Department of Defense 09/30/2016 10/31/2017 01/12/2018

CT CT MANIFEST Hazardous Waste Manifest Data Department of Energy & Environmental Protecti 01/03/2018 02/14/2018 03/22/2018
NJ NJ MANIFEST Manifest Information Department of Environmental Protection 12/31/2017 07/13/2018 08/01/2018
NY NY MANIFEST Facility and Manifest Data Department of Environmental Conservation 07/01/2018 08/01/2018 08/31/2018
PA PA MANIFEST Manifest Information Department of Environmental Protection 12/31/2016 07/25/2017 09/25/2017
RI RI MANIFEST Manifest information Department of Environmental Management 12/31/2017 02/23/2018 04/09/2018
WI WI MANIFEST Manifest Information Department of Natural Resources 12/31/2017 06/15/2018 07/09/2018

TC5415516.2s     Page GR-3

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

St Acronym Full Name Government Agency Gov Date Arvl. Date Active Date



US AHA Hospitals Sensitive Receptor: AHA Hospitals American Hospital Association, Inc.
US Medical Centers Sensitive Receptor: Medical Centers Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
US Nursing Homes Sensitive Receptor: Nursing Homes National Institutes of Health
US Public Schools Sensitive Receptor: Public Schools National Center for Education Statistics
US Private Schools Sensitive Receptor: Private Schools National Center for Education Statistics
MI Daycare Centers Sensitive Receptor: Day Care Centers, Group & Family Homes Bureau of REgulatory Services

US Flood Zones 100-year and 500-year flood zones Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
US NWI National Wetlands Inventory U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
MI State Wetlands Wetlands Inventory Department of Natural Resources
US Topographic Map U.S. Geological Survey
US Oil/Gas Pipelines PennWell Corporation
US Electric Power Transmission Line Data PennWell Corporation

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2015 TomTom North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC5415516.2s     Page GR−4

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING

St Acronym Full Name Government Agency Gov Date Arvl. Date Active Date



TC5415516.2s   Page A-1

geologic strata.
of the soil, and nearby wells.  Groundwater flow velocity is generally impacted by the nature of the
Groundwater flow direction may be impacted by surface topography, hydrology, hydrogeology, characteristics

  2.  Groundwater flow velocity.
  1.  Groundwater flow direction, and

Assessment of the impact of contaminant migration generally has two principle investigative components:

forming an opinion about the impact of potential contaminant migration.
EDR’s GeoCheck Physical Setting Source Addendum is provided to assist the environmental professional in

2014Version Date:
6066350 BIRMINGHAM, MITarget Property Map:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

767 ft. above sea levelElevation:
4712827.5UTM Y (Meters): 
317982.2UTM X (Meters): 
Zone 17Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
83.21684 - 83˚ 13’ 0.62’’Longitude (West): 
42.548334 - 42˚ 32’ 54.00’’Latitude (North): 

TARGET PROPERTY COORDINATES

BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009
333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

TARGET PROPERTY ADDRESS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE ADDENDUM®



TC5415516.2s   Page A-2

should be field verified.
on a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
Source: Topography has been determined from the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated

SURROUNDING TOPOGRAPHY: ELEVATION PROFILES

E
le

va
tio

n 
(f

t)
E

le
va

tio
n 

(f
t)

TP

TP
0 1/2 1 Miles

✩Target Property Elevation: 767 ft.

North South

West East

759

761

763

765

767

770

774

780

782

767739

734

754733

732

745

739

751

761
761

761

760

758 734

740

750 731

728

767

777

779

782

780

771

766

762

759

756

General NWGeneral Topographic Gradient:
TARGET PROPERTY TOPOGRAPHY

should contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
assist the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or,
Surface topography may be indicative of the direction of surficial groundwater flow.  This information can be used to
TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

collected on nearby properties, and regional groundwater flow information (from deep aquifers).
sources of information, such as surface topographic information, hydrologic information, hydrogeologic data
using site-specific well data. If such data is not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary to rely on other
Groundwater flow direction for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW DIRECTION INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5415516.2s   Page A-3

Not Reported

GENERAL DIRECTIONLOCATION
GROUNDWATER FLOWFROM TPMAP ID

hydrogeologically, and the depth to water table.
authorities at select sites and has extracted the date of the report, groundwater flow direction as determined
flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted by environmental professionals to regulatory
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

AQUIFLOW®

 Search Radius: 1.000 Mile.

Not found     Status:
1.25 miles     Search Radius:

Site-Specific Hydrogeological Data*:

* ©1996 Site−specific hydrogeological data gathered by CERCLIS Alerts, Inc., Bainbridge Island, WA.  All rights reserved.  All of the information and opinions presented are those of the cited EPA report(s), which were completed under
a Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) investigation.

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
of groundwater flow direction in the immediate area.  Such hydrogeologic information can be used to assist the
Hydrogeologic information obtained by installation of wells on a specific site can often be an indicator
HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

YES - refer to the Overview Map and Detail MapBIRMINGHAM

NATIONAL WETLAND INVENTORY
NWI Electronic
Data CoverageNWI Quad at Target Property

 FEMA FIRM Flood data26125C0536F  
 FEMA FIRM Flood data26125C0529F  
 FEMA FIRM Flood data26125C0528F  

Additional Panels in search area: FEMA Source Type

 FEMA FIRM Flood data26125C0537F  

Flood Plain Panel at Target Property FEMA Source Type

FEMA FLOOD ZONE

and bodies of water).
Refer to the Physical Setting Source Map following this summary for hydrologic information (major waterways

contamination exist on the target property, what downgradient sites might be impacted.
the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the impact of nearby contaminated properties or, should
Surface water can act as a hydrologic barrier to groundwater flow.  Such hydrologic information can be used to assist
HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5415516.2s   Page A-4

Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).
of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - a digital representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman
Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology

ROCK STRATIGRAPHIC UNIT GEOLOGIC AGE IDENTIFICATION

Stratified SequenceCategory:PaleozoicEra:
DevonianSystem:
Upper DevonianSeries:
D3Code:    (decoded above as Era, System & Series)

at which contaminant migration may be occurring.
Geologic information can be used by the environmental professional in forming an opinion about the relative speed
GEOLOGIC INFORMATION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

move more quickly through sandy-gravelly types of soils than silty-clayey types of soils.
characteristics data collected on nearby properties and regional soil information. In general, contaminant plumes
to rely on other sources of information, including geologic age identification, rock stratigraphic unit and soil
using site specific geologic and soil strata data. If such data are not reasonably ascertainable, it may be necessary
Groundwater flow velocity information for a particular site is best determined by a qualified environmental professional
GROUNDWATER FLOW VELOCITY INFORMATION

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

3

2
1

5 6

2

4

1

2

2

5

0   1/16   1/8   1/4 Miles



TC5415516.2s   Page A-6
 

Poorly drainedSoil Drainage Class:

drained and are classified.
Class B/D - Drained/undrained hydrology class of soils that can beHydrologic Group:

fine sandy loamSoil Surface Texture:

CohoctahSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 3

No Layer Information available.
 

> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

Not ReportedCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Unknown
Soil Drainage Class:

Not reportedHydrologic Group:
Soil Surface Texture:

Urban landSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 2

No Layer Information available.
 

> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

Not ReportedCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Unknown
Soil Drainage Class:

Not reportedHydrologic Group:
Soil Surface Texture:

Urban landSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 1

in a landscape. The following information is based on Soil Conservation Service SSURGO data.
for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation of soil patterns
Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil survey information
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS) leads the National Cooperative Soil

DOMINANT SOIL COMPOSITION IN GENERAL AREA OF TARGET PROPERTY

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5415516.2s   Page A-7

No Layer Information available.
 

> 130 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

Not ReportedCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Unknown
Soil Drainage Class:

drained and are classified.
Class B/D - Drained/undrained hydrology class of soils that can beHydrologic Group:

fine sandy loamSoil Surface Texture:

Urban landSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 4

Min: 7.4
Max: 8.4

Min: 141
Max: 141   

sand.
Poorly graded
Clean Sands,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claygravelly sand59 inches48 inches 3

Min: 7.4
Max: 8.4

Min: 141
Max: 141   

sand.
Poorly graded
Clean Sands,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Claysandy loam48 inches11 inches 2

Min: 7.4
Max: 8.4

Min: 141
Max: 141   

sand.
Poorly graded
Clean Sands,
SOILS, Sands,
COARSE-GRAINED

Soils.
200), Silty
passing No.
than 35 pct.
Materials (more
Silt-Clayfine sandy loam11 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

HighCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Partially hydric

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5415516.2s   Page A-8

Max:  Min: 
Min: 
Max:    Not reportedNot reportedvariable59 inches 0 inches 1

Soil Layer Information           

Boundary Classification Saturated
hydraulic
conductivity
micro m/sec

Layer Upper Lower Soil Texture Class AASHTO Group Unified Soil Soil Reaction
(pH)

 
> 0 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

Not ReportedCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: All hydric

Very poorly drainedSoil Drainage Class:

water table, or are shallow to an impervious layer.
Class D - Very slow infiltration rates. Soils are clayey, have a highHydrologic Group:

variableSoil Surface Texture:

AquentsSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 6

No Layer Information available.
 

> 46 inchesDepth to Watertable Min:

> 0 inchesDepth to Bedrock Min:

Not ReportedCorrosion Potential - Uncoated Steel:

Hydric Status: Partially hydric
Soil Drainage Class:

drained and are classified.
Class B/D - Drained/undrained hydrology class of soils that can beHydrologic Group:

fine sandy loamSoil Surface Texture:

Urban landSoil Component Name:

Soil Map ID: 5

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5415516.2s   Page A-9

1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000319402   F21
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000319669   F20
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000288466   E18
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000318837   E17
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000322960   E16
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000288463   D15
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000288469   C14
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000318767   C13
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000288464   D12
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000288461   C11
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000310737   C10
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000288465   D9
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000288467   C8
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000320226   B7
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000321366   B6
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000288468   A5
1/2 - 1 Mile NNEMI4000000313467   A4
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000288462   3

STATE DATABASE WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

Note: PWS System location is not always the same as well location.

No PWS System Found

FEDERAL FRDS PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1/2 - 1 Mile NWUSGS40000482207   19
1/4 - 1/2 Mile WSWUSGS40000482170   2
1/4 - 1/2 Mile WSWUSGS40000482179   1

FEDERAL USGS WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

1.000State Database
Nearest PWS within 0.001 milesFederal FRDS PWS
1.000Federal USGS

WELL SEARCH DISTANCE INFORMATION

SEARCH DISTANCE (miles)DATABASE

opinion about the impact of contaminant migration on nearby drinking water wells.
professional in assessing sources that may impact ground water flow direction, and in forming an
EDR Local/Regional Water Agency records provide water well information to assist the environmental

LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



TC5415516.2s   Page A-10

1/2 - 1 Mile NEMI4000000288576   24
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000323550   G23
1/2 - 1 Mile NorthMI4000000323421   G22

STATE DATABASE WELL INFORMATION

LOCATION
FROM TPWELL IDMAP ID

®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE SUMMARY®



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

80
0

80
0

76
0

76
0

760
760

760

720

720

MI



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

1
WSW
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Lower

USGS40000482179FED USGSClick here for full text details

2
WSW
1/4 - 1/2 Mile
Lower

USGS40000482170FED USGSClick here for full text details

3
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000288462MI WELLSClick here for full text details

A4
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000313467MI WELLSClick here for full text details

A5
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000288468MI WELLSClick here for full text details

B6
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000321366MI WELLSClick here for full text details

B7
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000320226MI WELLSClick here for full text details

C8
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000288467MI WELLSClick here for full text details

 Page: 1



®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

D9
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000288465MI WELLSClick here for full text details

C10
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000310737MI WELLSClick here for full text details

C11
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000288461MI WELLSClick here for full text details

D12
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000288464MI WELLSClick here for full text details

C13
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000318767MI WELLSClick here for full text details

C14
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000288469MI WELLSClick here for full text details

D15
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000288463MI WELLSClick here for full text details

E16
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000322960MI WELLSClick here for full text details

E17
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000318837MI WELLSClick here for full text details

 Page: 2



®GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS®

Map ID
Direction
Distance
Elevation EDR ID NumberDatabase

E18
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000288466MI WELLSClick here for full text details

19
NW
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

USGS40000482207FED USGSClick here for full text details

F20
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000319669MI WELLSClick here for full text details

F21
NNE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000319402MI WELLSClick here for full text details

G22
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000323421MI WELLSClick here for full text details

G23
North
1/2 - 1 Mile
Lower

MI4000000323550MI WELLSClick here for full text details

24
NE
1/2 - 1 Mile
Higher

MI4000000288576MI WELLSClick here for full text details

 Page: 3



48009
1.94/3/200948009
1.92/27/200948009
1.910/27/200048009
1.910/13/200848009
1.83/11/200348009
1.94/20/199848009
1.911/15/200148009
1.92/2/200648009
1.92/16/200548009
1.02/26/199948009
1.07/3/199548009
1.12/2/200948009
1.06/8/200248009
1.13/7/200848009
1.13/22/200448009
1.12/2/200948009
1.22/14/200948009
1.22/17/200948009
1.21/24/200948009
1.21/27/200948009
1.12/24/200348009
1.15/31/200248009
1.15/10/200248009
1.17/1/199848009
1.110/13/199548009
1.22/8/200548009
1.23/26/200448009
1.23/26/200448009
1.23/26/200448009
1.25/24/200248009
1.28/22/200248009
1.21/6/199748009
1.31/24/200948009
1.35/28/200348009
1.412/4/200648009
1.44/7/200648009
1.41/29/200948009
1.45/29/200148009
1.510/19/200948009
1.57/27/200948009
1.47/29/200448009
1.44/12/200248009
1.54/7/200648009
1.57/14/200448009
1.51/14/200848009
1.54/21/200748009

_________________________
ResultLT SignTest DateZipcode

Radon Test Results                                                                                 

State Database: MI Radon                                                                           

AREA RADON INFORMATION

GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS
RADON

®

TC5415516.2s   Page 4



48009
0.64/13/200248009
0.63/19/200348009
0.77/1/199848009
0.92/3/200948009
0.61/24/200948009
0.82/7/200948009
0.81/24/200948009
0.62/20/200948009
0.73/13/200948009
0.61/29/200948009
0.61/15/200848009
0.61/21/200848009
0.911/10/200648009
0.92/21/200448009
0.92/9/200448009
0.910/9/200448009
0.83/24/200648009
0.64/17/200448009
0.83/29/200448009
0.83/19/200348009
0.73/15/200448009
0.87/3/199548009
0.81/20/199848009
0.3<1/15/200748009
0.3<4/15/200248009
0.3<5/23/200248009
0.3<5/10/200248009
0.3<5/20/200348009
0.3<1/22/200848009
0.3<2/18/199948009
0.3<9/26/199848009
0.53/18/199448009
0.53/18/199448009
0.3<11/16/200448009
0.58/30/199948009
0.53/21/200748009
0.3<6/2/200448009
0.3<4/7/200648009
0.3<1/12/200448009
0.3<1/29/200448009
0.53/8/200448009
0.55/7/200548009
0.3<5/11/200748009
1.71/29/200948009
1.72/7/200948009
1.612/30/200348009
1.611/22/200348009
1.71/28/200348009
1.71/18/200348009
1.710/31/200248009
1.74/29/200248009
1.77/29/200348009
1.710/13/199548009
1.811/20/200748009
1.82/21/199548009
1.81/13/1996

AREA RADON INFORMATION

GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS
RADON

®

TC5415516.2s   Page 5



48009
22.49/17/200148009
2.05/8/200248009
2.04/12/200248009
7.77/6/200748009
6.76/9/200848009
4.65/27/200248009
4.63/13/200248009
5.09/29/200748009
5.010/20/200848009
4.76/12/200448009
5.91/24/200948009
5.57/16/199948009
5.67/16/200748009
3.611/22/199748009
3.86/9/200348009
3.81/14/200248009
3.81/4/199748009
0.3<1/25/201048009
3.711/11/200348009
0.3<1/24/200948009
3.211/10/200748009
3.34/9/200448009
3.22/25/200448009
3.411/6/200848009
3.59/8/200948009
3.51/2/201048009
3.54/28/200348009
3.55/21/200448009
3.67/28/200848009
3.811/7/200748009
2.711/3/200748009
2.81/3/200448009
3.010/31/200948009
2.61/13/200648009
2.76/10/200248009
2.611/14/200348009
2.712/2/200248009
2.12/25/200248009
2.31/8/200748009
2.22/7/200348009
2.24/29/200248009
2.24/23/200248009
2.212/3/199448009
2.31/26/200948009
2.43/23/200948009
2.210/30/200648009
2.49/28/199948009
2.411/9/200748009
2.411/23/200748009
2.51/7/200248009
2.81/22/200948009
2.61/26/200948009
0.64/22/200348009
0.54/24/200248009
0.91/26/200948009
0.64/1/2002

AREA RADON INFORMATION

GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS
RADON

®

TC5415516.2s   Page 6



0%0%100%1.780 pCi/LBasement
Not ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedLiving Area - 2nd Floor
Not ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedNot ReportedLiving Area - 1st Floor

% >20 pCi/L% 4-20 pCi/L% <4 pCi/LAverage ActivityArea

Number of sites tested: 5

Federal Area Radon Information for Zip Code:   48009

             : Zone 3 indoor average level < 2 pCi/L.
             : Zone 2 indoor average level >= 2 pCi/L and <= 4 pCi/L.
     Note: Zone 1 indoor average level > 4 pCi/L.

Federal EPA Radon Zone for OAKLAND County:  2 

4.510/23/200748009
4.52/1/200848009
4.18/19/200848009
4.210/10/200648009
4.211/7/200848009
2.11/24/200948009
8.67/24/199948009
10.86/24/200248009
8.05/27/200248009
12.62/7/200948009
14.43/5/2009

AREA RADON INFORMATION

GEOCHECK   - PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE MAP FINDINGS
RADON

®

TC5415516.2s   Page 7



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model (DEM)
Source: United States Geologic Survey
EDR acquired the USGS 7.5’ Digital Elevation Model in 2002 and updated it in 2006. The 7.5 minute DEM corresponds
to the USGS 1:24,000- and 1:25,000-scale topographic quadrangle maps. The DEM provides elevation data
with consistent elevation units and projection.

Source: U.S. Geological Survey

HYDROLOGIC INFORMATION

Flood Zone Data: This data was obtained from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). It depicts 100-year and
500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA. It includes the National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) which incorporates Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) data and Q3 data from FEMA in areas not covered by NFHL.

Source: FEMA
Telephone: 877-336-2627
Date of Government Version: 2003, 2015

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005 and 2010 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

State Wetlands Data: Wetlands Inventory
Source: Department of Natural Resources
Telephone: 517-241-2254

HYDROGEOLOGIC INFORMATION

AQUIFLOW       Information SystemR

Source:  EDR proprietary database of groundwater flow information
EDR has developed the AQUIFLOW Information System (AIS) to provide data on the general direction of groundwater

flow at specific points. EDR has reviewed reports submitted to regulatory authorities at select sites and has
extracted the date of the report, hydrogeologically determined groundwater flow direction and depth to water table
information.

GEOLOGIC INFORMATION

Geologic Age and Rock Stratigraphic Unit
Source: P.G. Schruben, R.E. Arndt and W.J. Bawiec, Geology of the Conterminous U.S. at 1:2,500,000 Scale - A digital
representation of the 1974 P.B. King and H.M. Beikman Map, USGS Digital Data Series DDS - 11 (1994).

STATSGO: State Soil Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)
The U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) leads the national
Conservation Soil Survey (NCSS) and is responsible for collecting, storing, maintaining and distributing soil
survey information for privately owned lands in the United States. A soil map in a soil survey is a representation
of soil patterns in a landscape. Soil maps for STATSGO are compiled by generalizing more detailed (SSURGO)
soil survey maps.

SSURGO: Soil Survey Geographic Database
Source:  Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS)
Telephone:  800-672-5559
SSURGO is the most detailed level of mapping done by the Natural Resources Conservation Service, mapping
scales generally range from 1:12,000 to 1:63,360. Field mapping methods using national standards are used to
construct the soil maps in the Soil Survey Geographic (SSURGO) database. SSURGO digitizing duplicates the
original soil survey maps. This level of mapping is designed for use by landowners, townships and county
natural resource planning and management.

TC5415516.2s     Page PSGR-1

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



LOCAL / REGIONAL WATER AGENCY RECORDS

FEDERAL WATER WELLS

PWS: Public Water Systems
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Public Water System data from the Federal Reporting Data System.  A PWS is any water system which provides water to at

least 25 people for at least 60 days annually.  PWSs provide water from wells, rivers and other sources.

PWS ENF: Public Water Systems Violation and Enforcement Data
Source:  EPA/Office of Drinking Water
Telephone:  202-564-3750
Violation and Enforcement data for Public Water Systems from the Safe Drinking Water Information System (SDWIS) after

August 1995.  Prior to August 1995, the data came from the Federal Reporting Data System (FRDS).

USGS Water Wells: USGS National Water Inventory System (NWIS)
This database contains descriptive information on sites where the USGS collects or has collected data on surface
water and/or groundwater. The groundwater data includes information on wells, springs, and other sources of groundwater.

STATE RECORDS

Water Well Data
Source:  Department of Environmental Quality
Telephone:  517-335-9218
The data in this file was obtained from Wellogic, the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality Statewide Groundwater

Database (SGWD). Wellogic contains approximately 425,000 water well records found within the State of Michigan,
and although it represents the best available data, it cannot be considered a complete database of all the wells
or well records in existence.

OTHER STATE DATABASE INFORMATION

Michigan Oil and Gas Wells
Source:  Department of Environmental Quality
Telephone:  517-241-1528
Locations of oil and gas wells are compiled from permit records on file at the Geological Survey Division (GSD),

Michigan Department of Natural Resources.

RADON

State Database: MI Radon
Source: Department of Environmental Quality
Telephone: 517-335-9551
Radon Test Results

Michigan Radon Test Results
Source: Department of Environmental Quality
Telephone: 517-335-8037
These results are from test kits distributed by the local health departments and used by
Michigan residents. There is no way of knowing whether the devices were used properly, whether there are duplicates
(or repeat verification) test (i.e., more than one sample per home), etc.

Area Radon Information
Source: USGS
Telephone:  703-356-4020
The National Radon Database has been developed by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA) and is a compilation of the EPA/State Residential Radon Survey and the National Residential Radon Survey.
The study covers the years 1986 - 1992. Where necessary data has been supplemented by information collected at
private sources such as universities and research institutions.

TC5415516.2s     Page PSGR-2

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



EPA Radon Zones
Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-356-4020
Sections 307 & 309 of IRAA directed EPA to list and identify areas of U.S. with the potential for elevated indoor
radon levels.

OTHER

Airport Landing Facilities: Private and public use landing facilities
Source:  Federal Aviation Administration, 800-457-6656

Epicenters: World earthquake epicenters, Richter 5 or greater
Source:  Department of Commerce, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

Earthquake Fault Lines: The fault lines displayed on EDR’s Topographic map are digitized quaternary faultlines, prepared
in 1975 by the United State Geological Survey

STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2015 TomTom North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC5415516.2s     Page PSGR-3

PHYSICAL SETTING SOURCE RECORDS SEARCHED



 

 

Appendix E 

Aerial Photograph Documentation



1940

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



1963

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



1974

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



1980

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



1990

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



1997

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2000

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2002

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2005

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2006

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2008

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2010

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2012

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2014

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2015

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



2017

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 9/27/2018

N
1 inch = 200 feet

L. Brooks Patterson
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map.



 

     

     

Appendix F 

Fire Insurance Map Documentation



Certified Sanborn® Map Report

Inquiry Number:

6 Armstrong Road, 4th floor 
Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 800.352.0050 
www.edrnet.com

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

September 07, 2018

5415516.3



Certified Sanborn® Map Report 

Certified Sanborn Results:

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates. All other trademarks used herein 
are the property of their respective owners.

page-

The Sanborn Library includes more than 1.2 million
fire insurance maps from Sanborn, Bromley, Perris &
Browne, Hopkins, Barlow and others which track
historical property usage in approximately 12,000
American cities and towns.  Collections searched:

Library of Congress

University Publications of America

EDR Private Collection

The Sanborn Library LLC Since 1866™

Limited Permission To Make Copies

Sanborn® Library search results 

Contact:EDR Inquiry # 

Site Name: Client Name:

 Certification #

PO #

Project

1960

1949

1931

1926

1921

1915

1910

1900

1893

09/07/18

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue AKT Environmental Consultants

22725 Orchard Lake Road
Birmingham, MI 48009

5415516.3
Farmington Hills, MI 48336

Scott Wasielewski
The Sanborn Library has been searched by EDR and maps covering the target property location as provided by AKT Environmental
Consultants were identified for the years listed below. The Sanborn Library is the largest, most complete collection of fire insurance maps.
The collection includes maps from Sanborn, Bromley, Perris & Browne, Hopkins, Barlow, and others.  Only Environmental Data Resources
Inc. (EDR) is authorized to grant rights for commercial reproduction of maps by the Sanborn Library LLC, the copyright holder for the
collection.  Results can be authenticated by visiting www.edrnet.com/sanborn.

The Sanborn Library is continually enhanced with newly identified map archives. This report accesses all maps in the collection as of the
day this report was generated.

7C0D-4B19-A5F2
13661F-1-17

Maps Provided:

City of Birmingham

Certification #: 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

AKT Environmental Consultants  (the client) is permitted to make up to FIVE photocopies of this Sanborn Map transmittal and each fire insurance map accompanying
this report solely for the limited use of its customer. No one other than the client is authorized to make copies. Upon request made directly to an EDR Account
Executive, the client may be permitted to make a limited number of additional photocopies. This permission is conditioned upon compliance by the client, its customer
and their agents with EDR's copyright policy; a copy of which is available upon request.

This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Environmental Data Resources, Inc. It cannot
be concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and surrounding properties does not exist from other sources. NO WARRANTY
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY
DISCLAIMS THE MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE
OR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE,
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE, ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OF DAMAGE, INCLUDING,
WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL
DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID FOR THIS REPORT. Purchaser accepts this Report "AS IS". Any
analyses, estimates, ratings, environmental risk levels or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to
provide, nor should they be interpreted as providing any facts regarding, or prediction or forecast of, any environmental risk for any property. Only a Phase I
Environmental Site Assessment performed by an environmental professional can provide information regarding the environmental risk for any property.
Additionally, the information provided in this Report is not to be construed as legal advice.
Copyright 2018 by Environmental Data Resources, Inc. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any media or format, in whole or in part, of any report or map of
Environmental Data Resources, Inc., or its affiliates, is prohibited without prior written permission.

5415516 3 2



page-

Sanborn Sheet Key
This Certified Sanborn Map Report is based upon the following Sanborn
Fire Insurance map sheets.

1960 Source Sheets

1960
Volume 1, Sheet 2

1960
Volume 1, Sheet 23

1949 Source Sheets

1949
Volume 1, Sheet 2

1949
Volume 1, Sheet 23

1931 Source Sheets

1931
Volume 1, Sheet 2

1931
Volume 1, Sheet 23

1926 Source Sheets

1926
Volume 1, Sheet 2

1926
Volume 1, Sheet 6

5415516 3 3



page-

Sanborn Sheet Key
This Certified Sanborn Map Report is based upon the following Sanborn
Fire Insurance map sheets.

1921 Source Sheets

1921
Volume 1, Sheet Keymap/Sheet1

1921
Volume 1, Sheet 3

1915 Source Sheets

1915
Volume 1, Sheet 2

1910 Source Sheets

1910
Volume 1, Sheet 1

1900 Source Sheets

1900
Volume 1, Sheet 1

5415516 3 4



page-

Sanborn Sheet Key
This Certified Sanborn Map Report is based upon the following Sanborn
Fire Insurance map sheets.

1893 Source Sheets

1893
Volume 1, Sheet 1

5415516 3 5



This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1960

1960

Volume 1, Sheet 23
Volume 1, Sheet 2

5415516 3 6





This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1949

1949

Volume 1, Sheet 23
Volume 1, Sheet 2

5415516 3 7





This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1931

1931

Volume 1, Sheet 23
Volume 1, Sheet 2

5415516 3 8





This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1926

1926

Volume 1, Sheet 6
Volume 1, Sheet 2

5415516 3 9





This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1921

1921

Volume 1, Sheet 3
Volume 1, Sheet Keymap/Sheet1

5415516 3 10





This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1915

1915

Volume 1, Sheet 2

5415516 3 11





This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1910

1910

Volume 1, Sheet 1

5415516 3 12





This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1900

1900

Volume 1, Sheet 1

5415516 3 13





This Certified Sanborn Map combines the following sheets.
Outlined areas indicate map sheets within the collection. 0 Feet 150 300 600

         -     page 

Certified Sanborn® Map
Site Name:

Address:

City, ST, ZIP:

Client: AKT Environmental Consultants

EDR Inquiry: 5415516.3

Order Date: 09/07/2018

Certification # 7C0D-4B19-A5F2

7C
0D

-4
B

19
-A

5F
2

Copyright

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

1893

1893

Volume 1, Sheet 1

5415516 3 14





 

     

     

Appendix G 

Other Relevant Documentation 



333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
Birmingham, MI 48009

Inquiry Number: 5415516.5
September 12, 2018

The EDR-City Directory Image Report

6 Armstrong Road
Shelton, CT 06484
800.352.0050
www.edrnet.comEnvironmental Data Resources IncEnvironmental Data Resources IncEnvironmental Data Resources IncEnvironmental Data Resources Inc



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION

Executive Summary

Findings

City Directory Images

Thank you for your business. 
Please contact EDR at  1-800-352-0050 

with any questions or comments.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to 
Environmental Data Resources, Inc. It cannot be concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and 
surrounding properties does not exist from other sources. NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE 
WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY 
DISCLAIMS THE MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY 
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL 
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF ERRORS OR 
OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE, ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OR DAMAGE, INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON 
THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT 
PAID FOR THIS REPORT. Purchaser accepts this Report "AS IS". Any analyses, estimates, ratings, environmental risk 
levels or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to provide, nor 
should they be interpreted as providing any facts regarding, or prediction orforecast of, any environmental risk for any 
property. Only a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment performed by an environmental professional can provide 
information regarding the environmental risk for any property. Additionally, the information provided in this Report is not to 
be construed as legal advice.

Copyright 2017 by Environmental Data Resources, Inc.  All rights reserved.  Reproduction in any media or format, in whole or in  
part, of any report or map of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates is prohibited without prior written permission.   

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates. 
All other trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners.



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

DESCRIPTION

Environmental Data Resources, Inc.’s (EDR) City Directory Report is a screening tool designed to assist 
environmental professionals in evaluating potential liability on a target property resulting from past activities.  
EDR’s City Directory Report includes a search of available city directory data at 5 year intervals. 

RECORD SOURCES

EDR's Digital Archive combines historical directory listings from sources such as Cole Information and Dun 
& Bradstreet. These standard sources of property information complement and enhance each other to 
provide a more comprehensive report.

EDR is licensed to reproduce certain City Directory works by the copyright holders of those works. The 
purchaser of this EDR City Directory Report may include it in report(s) delivered to a customer. 
Reproduction of City Directories without permission of the publisher or licensed vendor may be a violation of 
copyright.

RESEARCH SUMMARY

The following research sources were consulted in the preparation of this report. A check mark indicates 
where information was identified in the source and provided in this report.

Year Target Street Cross Street Source

2014 þ þ EDR Digital Archive

2010 þ þ EDR Digital Archive

2005 þ þ EDR Digital Archive

2000 þ þ EDR Digital Archive

1995 þ þ EDR Digital Archive

1992 þ þ EDR Digital Archive

1985 þ ¨ POLK DIRECTORY CO

1980 þ ¨ POLK DIRECTORY CO

1975 þ ¨ POLK DIRECTORY CO

1970 þ ¨ POLK DIRECTORY CO

1965 þ ¨ POLK DIRECTORY CO

1960 þ ¨ POLK DIRECTORY CO

1956 þ þ POLK DIRECTORY CO

1951 þ þ POLK DIRECTORY CO

1944 þ þ POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516- 5 Page 1



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Year Target Street Cross Street Source

5415516- 5 Page 2



FINDINGS

TARGET PROPERTY STREET

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
Birmingham, MI   48009     

Year CD Image Source

N OLD WOODWARD AVE

2014 pg A1 EDR Digital Archive

2010 pg A7 EDR Digital Archive

2005 pg A14 EDR Digital Archive

2000 pg A20 EDR Digital Archive

N WOODWARD AVE

2014 pg A2 EDR Digital Archive

2010 pg A8 EDR Digital Archive

2005 pg A15 EDR Digital Archive

2000 pg A21 EDR Digital Archive

1995 pg A24 EDR Digital Archive

1992 pg A28 EDR Digital Archive

1985 pg A32 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1980 pg A35 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1980 pg A36 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1975 pg A39 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1975 pg A40 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1970 pg A42 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1965 pg A45 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1965 pg A46 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1960 pg A50 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1960 pg A51 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1956 pg A55 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1956 pg A56 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1951 pg A60 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1951 pg A61 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1944 pg A64 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1944 pg A65 POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516- 5 Page 3



FINDINGS

CROSS STREETS

Year CD Image Source

N BATES ST

2014 - EDR Digital Archive Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

2010 - EDR Digital Archive Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

2005 - EDR Digital Archive Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

2000 - EDR Digital Archive Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

1995 - EDR Digital Archive Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

1992 - EDR Digital Archive Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

1985 - POLK DIRECTORY CO Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

1980 - POLK DIRECTORY CO Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

1975 - POLK DIRECTORY CO Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

1970 - POLK DIRECTORY CO Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

1965 - POLK DIRECTORY CO Target and Adjoining not listed in Source

1960 pg. A49 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1956 pg. A54 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1951 pg. A59 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1944 pg. A63 POLK DIRECTORY CO

WILLITS ST

2014 pg. A5 EDR Digital Archive

2010 pg. A12 EDR Digital Archive

2005 pg. A18 EDR Digital Archive

2000 pg. A23 EDR Digital Archive

1995 pg. A27 EDR Digital Archive

1992 pg. A31 EDR Digital Archive

1985 pg. A33 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1985 pg. A34 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1980 pg. A37 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1980 pg. A38 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1975 pg. A41 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1970 pg. A43 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1970 pg. A44 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1965 pg. A47 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1965 pg. A48 POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516- 5 Page 4



Year Uses Source

FINDINGS

Year CD Image Source

1960 pg. A52 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1960 pg. A53 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1956 pg. A57 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1956 pg. A58 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1951 pg. A62 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1944 pg. A66 POLK DIRECTORY CO

1944 pg. A67 POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516- 5 Page 5



City Directory Images



-

N OLD WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A1

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2014

237 PATTERSON, JANET A
SCHUMACHER, CARTER

327 DAVIS, JAMES M
ETKIN, DOUGLAS M
MONIGOLD, STEPHEN A
ROMANS, DEBORAH A
TAUBMAN, ALEXANDER A

350 AIKENS, ROBERT
371 SCHMALZRIED, RICHARD W
373 KNAFFLA, JOHN M
377 HOWE, CYNTHIA K

LAFOND, STEPHANIE A
SULLIVAN, ERIN N
THIEL, ROBERT

381 HAMLIN, MARY A
385 DECKER, WILLIAM W
389 NIEDZINSKI, JAMES C

WINGARD, DAN W
WNEK, CAITLIN R



-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A2

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2014

233 STACKED DELI
237 ADULTS & ADOLESCENTS IN MOTION

CONVENIENT MANAGEMENT INC
PANRIMO LLC
PATHWAYS TO SELF DTRMNTION LLC
SCHUMACHER CARTER PHD PC
VALUE VANTAGE HEALTH PLAN LLC

239 PITA CAFE OF BIRMINGHAM
260 CHEN CHOW BRASSERIE
265 FIGO
275 ETHAN ALLEN RETAIL INC
280 AF JONNA DEVELOPMENT LLC

AMS BIOTEK
BARNETT RARITIES CORPORATION
BARONE DEFENSE FIRM
CHAPEL OAKS ASSOC LTD PARTNR
CORBY ELIZABETH
DARE SALON
DARLENE SOSNICK MA
DAVID R HOUGH ACSW DCSW PC
FACEBOOK INC
FIDELITA INVESTMENTS
FINANCIAL ADVISORS INC
FINANCIAL RESULTS LLC
FMR LLC
FULKERSON GROUP
GENEMEDICS HEALTH INSTITUTE
GENESIS HEALTH INSTITUTE
HENRY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
HOWLETT CHRIS MD
IPG
J & E COMMUNITY HOMES LTD
J G FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SVC
JACOBSON BROTHERS
JADDA CAPITAL MARKETS LLC
JIOF INVESTMENTS LLC
KIENBAUM OPPERWALL HARDY &
LANDON COMPANIES
LANDON MANAGEMENT INC
LAW OFFCES JNATHON KOENIGSBERG
LEWIS BENEFITS
MACU HEALTH LLC
MANOR HOMES INC
MARANON CAPITAL ADVISORS LLC
MARSH GRETCHEN M
MICHAEL B SERLING PC
MICHIGAN DRUNK DRIVING LAWYER
NATIONAL FINANCIAL SVCS LLC
NEWPORT REALTY HOLDINGS
OPPENHEIMER & CO INC



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A3

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2014

280 OXFORD FINANCIAL CORP
PHILIP J GOODMAN PC
RDS MACHINE
RETAIL CAPITAL
SALON SOLEI LLC
SCHNELZ WELLS PC
SMITH SCHURMAN ASSOCIATES INC
STRAITH GALE H
VEZINA LAW
WEISS ROBERT M

301 BEAL BANK USA
322 FINK NEIL H LAW OFFICES

HENRY BASKIN PC
HURON COMPOSTING & RECYCL LLC
LEONARD & COMPANY INC
M D O T INVESTMENTS LLC
SAIC USA INC
SELLERS JOHN A ATTY
SHANGHAI AUTO INDUST CORP

323 OSI RESTAURANT PARTNERS LLC
325 BEAL BANK USA

OPPENHEIMER & CO INC
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES INC
U S REIF THREE TWENTY FIVE N O
UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES INC

344 AMERICAN CURRENCY EXCHANGE
CAD KITCHEN PLANS
LAW OFFICES OF PATRICK C HALL
MORGANROTH & MORGANROTH
THREE FRTY FOUR N WDWARD ASSOC

350 ADVANTAGE GROUP SERVICES INC
AIKENS ROBERT B & ASSOC LLC
BIRETA COMPANY INC
COVINGTON HOLDING CO LLC
CREATIVE CMPENSATION GROUP INC
ECHO HOLDINGS LLC
MACOMB HOMESTEAD LTD PARTNR
MEADOWBROOK PROPERTIES INC
MITTEN MALL PARTNERS LLC
STRENGTH CAPITAL PARTNERS
STRENGTH CAPITAL PARTNERS LLC
STRENGTH PROPERTY PARTNERS LP
VIBRANT MEDIA

377 UNITED HEATING & COOLG CO LLC
380 ARSENAL INDUSTRIES LLC

AVENIR GROUP INC
BENOIT MICHAEL W
BICK ROBERT S
DYNAMIC SYNERGY LLC
ESSAD ERNIE E



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A4

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2014

380 FILTER TERRANCE PHD
GOOD GLENN E
JOHN F SCHAEFER PLLC
LEXINGTON BCH LTD PRTNR - 1989
MACADDINO KEVIN S
MCDONALD AGAPE FOUNDATION
PACIFIC ADVISORY SERVICES INC
PANDORA MEDIA INC
PATRICE DUQUETTE MD PC
RATTNER RICHARD D
SELECTINVENTORY
STARTUPNATION MEDIA GROUP INC
STEINHARDT PESICK COHEN
TALAN BEVERLY S PHD
VAUGHAN VILLAGE MOBILE HOME
WANTIFY INC

381 HAMLIN MARY ANN
430 AHERN FLEURY P C

DEFENSIVE HIRE LLC
SAROKI VCTOR ASSOC ARCHTCTS PC

450 BLUE FILAMENT LAW PLLC
MIENK LAW

460 JUNIOR LEAGUE BIRMINGHAM MI
470 E TIMES FOUR

WILLOTT CORP
474 MARKET NORTH END
505 SALVATORE SCALLOPINI ITALIAN

WITT ELLEN HOPE
523 FOOT SOLUTIONS
525 CORIANDER KITCHENS INC

LUXE BAR GRILL
OLD WOOODWARD VENTURES LLC
VALERIE L MAC FARLANE



-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A5

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2014

101 DARAKJIAN JEWELERS INC
PRECISE TIME

104 DESIGNS UNLIMITED
EDUCATIONAL RESOURCE TUTORS

108 THEFRAMEWORKS INC
110 INCWELL LLC
111 ALIOTO MICHAEL

ALIOTO, MARY A
ALRAWI, MUHSIN M
BARFIELD, JON E
BARR, MICHELE
BARTHOLOMEW, DOROTHY P
BERRY, DAVID E
BLANCK, STUART H
BRZUCHOWSKI, ROBERT E
CARPENTER, VIVIAN L
CLARK, GLEN L
CUNNINGTON, THOMAS W
DEMARE, DO
DOLIK, MICHAEL N
DUBRINSKY, MICHELE E
EVANS, IVOR J
FELDMAN, MARTY G
FRITZ, BARBARA J
KENNY, LINDA J
MCDONALD, EDWARD
OPIE, JOHN D
OWEN, MARY M
PENNA, FRANK J
RICHIE, LEROY C
ROSE, DAVID H
ROSENBERG, PAUL
ROSIN, ROBERT M
ROSSMAN, KATIE
SASSON, ENRIKO E
SASSON, STEFENIE D
SISCO, DAN L
STARLITE RETENTION SVCS LLC
STEINBERG, LEE B
STEVENS, DEREK J
WARK, CINDY
WIENER, GAIL H
WILLITS
YELLEN, JORDAN

114 GOOGLE INC
115 RUTHS HOSPITALITY GROUP INC
117 RUTHS HOSPITALITY GROUP INC
300 FIRST RGLR BPTST CHRCH & SCTY

GATEWAY MONTESSORI SCHOOL
380 KUKES, MICHAEL I



(Cont'd)

-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A6

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2014

382 RUBIN, LAURENCE E
412 KURAJIAN, GEORGE M
424 KAUFMAN, STUART M
448 GARDNER, MARY M
468 HODGSON, DEREK F
487 MILLER-SHAW BUNNY MSW BCD

SHAW, MELVIN P
488 KELLEY INVESTMENTS LLC

SPENCER, WILLIAM F
504 AMWAY HOME PRODUCTS

SOEDING INTERNATIONAL INC
SOEDING, OTTO H

520 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
532 CITRIN, ROBERT M



-

N OLD WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A7

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2010

237 SCHUMACHER, CARTER
327 MARJORIE, G R

ROSE, MARG
367 ADDISON-KAFTON, L L
369 OSTDIEK, DAVID
371 SCHMALZRIED, RICHARD W
377 THIEL, CHARLES L
380 MATLEN, TERRY
385 BENECCHI, ANTONIO



-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A8

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2010

233 STACKED DELI
237 ABOODY-KERR ASSOCIATES

CONVENIENT MANAGEMENT INC
MEDICAL VLG ASSOC II LTD PRTNR
MILL POINT ASSOC LTD PARTNR
PITA CAFE OF BIRMINGHAM
PURE NRG LLC
SCHUMACHER CARTER PHD PC
VALUE VANTAGE HEALTH PLAN LLC

250 UPTOWN PALLADIUM 12 THEATRE
260 CHEN CHOW BRASSERIE
265 FIGO
275 ETHAN ALLEN RETAIL INC
280 ADVANCED SLEEP DISORDER CENTER

BARNETT RARITIES CORPORATION
BARONE DEFENSE FIRM
BIRMINGHAM DELI
BRIDGESTONE CAPITAL
CHAPEL OAKS ASSOC LTD PARTNR
CORBY ELIZABETH DR
DARLENE SOSNICK MA
DAVID R HOUGH ACSW DCSW PC
EMPIRE HOSPITALITY PRPTS LLC
FACEBOOK INC
FIDELITA INVESTMENTS
FINANCIAL ADVISORS INC
FMR LLC
HENRY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
HOWLETT CHRIS MD
INTERNAL MEDICINE PRIMARY CARE
J & E COMMUNITY HOMES LTD
J G FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SVC
JACOBSON BROTHERS
JADDA CAPITAL MARKETS LLC
JIOF INVESTMENTS LLC
KIENBAUM OPPERWALL HARDY &
LAW OFFCES JNATHON KOENIGSBERG
LITTELFUSE INC
LOIZON JOHN N PC
MARANON CAPITAL ADVISORS LLC
MAZY GILLIS
MICHAEL B SERLING PC
NATIONAL FINANCIAL SVCS LLC
OMNI INVESTMENT GROUP
OPPENHEIMER & CO INC
OXFORD FINANCIAL CORP
PHILIP J GOODMAN PC
R J S PROPERTIES
SCHNELZ WELLS PC
SPEEDSHAPE INC



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A9

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2010

280 STONECLIFFE ENTERTAINMENT INC
STRAITH GALE H
SUNSAIR
SURGITECH SURGICAL SVCS INC
TARNOW KNOWS DOORS
ULTIMAX CEMENT INCORPORATED
WEISS ROBERT M

301 BEAL SERVICE CORP
322 BINAH SYSTEMS INC

DAVID B GUNSBERG PC
FINK NEIL H LAW OFFICES
HENRY BASKIN PC
HURON COMPOSTING & RECYCL LLC
HYMAN LIPPITT P C
M D O T INVESTMENTS LLC
MAGNESIUM TECHNOLOGIES CORP
MILLIMAN MICHAEL G
POWELL MURPHY & ADOLF PLLC
RJG FAMILY HOLDINGS LLC
SCHLUSSEL & SCHEFMAN PLLC
SHIREGROUP LLC
TMK PROPERTY MANAGEMENT L

323 FLEMINGS PRIME STEAKHOUSE
325 BURTON CATZMAN DEVELOPMENT

RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES INC
U S REIF THREE TWENTY FIVE N O
UBS FINANCIAL SERVICES INC

344 AMERICAN CURRENCY EXCHANGE
GOLDEN LIMOSINE
LAW OFFICES OF PATRICK C HALL
THREE FRTY FOUR N WDWARD ASSOC

350 ADVANTAGE GROUP SERVICES INC
AIKENS ROBERT B & ASSOC LLC
ALLYACK LLC
BIRETA COMPANY INC
COVINGTON HOLDING CO LLC
CREATIVE CMPENSATION GROUP INC
EMMI INVESTIGATIONS
EVS INC
LASALLE SYSTEMS LEASING I
MACOMB HOMESTEAD LTD PARTNR
MEADOWBROOK PROPERTIES INC
POSTLE OPERATING LLC
PREC WEST LLC
STRENGTH CAPITAL PARTNERS LLC
STRUCTURED INFORMATION
TEMPLE OPERATING LLC C/O STRE
VIBRANT MEDIA

373 KEITH MERIEDETH AND ASSOCIATES
377 UNITED HEATING & COOLG CO LLC



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A10

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2010

380 AVENIR GROUP INC
BALLPARK PRODUCTIONS LLC
BC PHASE II INC
BICK ROBERT S
BIRMINGHAM BLOOMFIELD CHAI CTR
CHASE LAKE LLC
CHECKPOINT SOFTWARE
COUNTRYSIDE II LTD PARTNERSHIP
ELIA & ASSOCIATES PC
FILTER TERRANCE PHD
FORD RODNEY K ACSW BCD
FUSE COMMUNICATION LTD
GOOD GLENN E
JAMISON MANAGEMENT COMPANY
JOHN F SCHAEFER PLLC
KLM PHARMACY INC
KRELL IP INTERNATIONAL LLC
LEXINGTON BCH LTD PRTNR - 1989
MACADDINO KEVIN S
MELA DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
MID CONTINTAL DEV GP LTD PRT
MIDDLMRKET CPITL MNAGMENTT LLC
NOVECK DANIEL ATTORNEY AT LAW
PACIFIC ADVISORY SERVICES INC
PATRICE DUQUETTE MD PC
PINGITORE TAMMY MSW
PORTER ENGINEERED SYSTEMS OHIO
PREPAID COMMUNICATIONS SVC LLC
PROGREEN PROPERTIES INC
RH BLUESTEIN & CO
SILLMAN ENTERPRISES INC
STAHL ASSOC INC
STEINHARDT PESICK COHEN
TALAN BEVERLY S PHD
TORUS CAPITAL LLC
UNIVERSITY GROUP INC
VAUGHAN VILLAGE MOBILE HOME

430 AHERN FLEURY P C
LEONARD & COMPANY INC
SAROKI VCTOR ASSOC ARCHTCTS PC
STRATEGIC STAFFING GROUP LLC

450 BORMAN PAUL CO
BRODY DOMUS VENTURES A MICHIGA
CHERRY HILL DENTON GROUP LLC
ICE HOUSE 220 LLC

460 BAMAL CORP
JUNIOR LEAGUE BIRMINGHAM MI
WALKERSEARCHGROUP

470 E TIMES FOUR
MARTIN & LLOYD ENTERPRISES COR



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A11

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2010

470 NIAGARA MURANO
TOUCH INC
WILLOTT CORP

474 ROOT SPROUT
505 BIRMINGHAM VENTURES INC

ROUSH INDUSTRIES
WITT ELLEN HOPE

523 FOOT SOLUTIONS



-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A12

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2010

104 DESIGNS UNLIMITED
108 SNAP FITNESS
111 ALIOTO MICHAEL

ALIOTO, MICHAEL D
ALLEN, WILLIAM R
ATWATER FOUNDATION
BARNETT, RICHARD K
BARTHOLOMEW, DOROTHY P
BLANCK, STUART H
BRUCE KAPLAN
CARPENTER, VIVIAN L
CLARK, GLEN L
CREIGHTON, LORENZO D
DEANA, BENADERET
DOROTHY, GRAEBNER
DUBRINSKY, MICHELE E
FELDMAN, MARTIN G
FRITZ, BARBARA J
GILROY, MARCIA E
GODARD, WHITNEY
GOLDSMITH, RICHARD A
GRAEBNER, SUSAN J
HARRIS, STEVEN J
HOGAN, CHRIS
JUNG, JERROLD M
KAPLAN, ROBERT
KUZIEMKO, CHET F
LEVINE, SINDY
MCDERMOTT, RICHARD P
MCDONALD, BRUCE E
OSBORNE, LISA J
PICEU, BONNIE S
RATTNER, LILIANE R
ROSENBERG, PAUL
ROSIN, ROBERT M
ROSSMAN, KATIE
SANDWEISS, SHELDON W
SARETSKY, GARY M
SASSON, ENRIKO E
SASSON, STEFENIE D
STARLITE RETENTION SVCS LLC
STEINBERG, LEE B
STEVEN J HARRIS COMMUNICATIONS
STEVENS, DEREK J
THOMAS, CUNNINGTON
WARK, CINDY
WARK, RICK
WASSERMAN, GARY
WEBSTER, MICHAEL E
WIENER, GAIL H



(Cont'd)

-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A13

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2010

111 WILLITS
WOODY, KIM P

114 GOOGLE INC
115 RUTHS HOSPITALITY GROUP INC
117 RUTHS HOSPITALITY GROUP INC
300 FIRST RGLR BPTST CHRCH & SCTY

GATEWAY MONTESSORI HOUSE INC
GATEWAY MONTESSORI SCHOOL

376 ROBERT, F
382 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
412 KURAJIAN, GEORGE M
424 KAUFMAN, STUART M
468 HODGSON, DEREK F
487 MILLER-SHAW BUNNY MSW BCD

SHAW, MELVIN P
488 SPENCER, WILLIAM F
504 AMWAY HOME PRODUCTS

SOEDING INTERNATIONAL INC
SOEDING, OTTO H

520 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
532 CITRIN, ROBERT M



-

N OLD WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A14

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2005

209 ERIC, CHARLES
211 KILLIAN, BRIAN J
237 KOLASA, LAWRENCE F

SCHUMACHER, CARTER
280 WEILLE, EDWARD J
367 ADDISON-KAFTON, L L
369 SCHMALZRIED, RICHARD W
371 BOYER, MICHAEL M
377 OBERSKI, JENNIFER
380 BLOCH, BRIAN M
381 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
385 BENECCHI, ANTONIO
389 KOSS, HAROLD J



-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A15

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2005

233 GOOMBAHS PIZZERIA
237 ABOODY-KERR ASSOCIATES

ART OF LEADERSHIP FOUNDATION
PITA CAFE OF BIRMINGHAM
VALUE VANTAGE HEALTH PLAN LLC
VANDERWORP DESIGN GROUP

239 MAJIC LAMP
250 UPTOWN PALLADIUM 12 THEATRE
260 PAMPAS CHURRASCARIA
265 FIGO
275 ETHAN ALLEN INC
280 BARONE DEFENSE FIRM

BAYBERRY TROY LLC
BERMAN LEON E MD
BIRMINGHAM DELI
BLOOMFIELD FINE ART GALLERY
CANTON I LP
CANTON ONE LLC
CORBY ELIZABETH DR
DETROIT ART SERVICES INC
EMPIRE HOSPITALITY PRPTS LLC
GOODMAN PHILIP J PC
HIDDEN GLEN APARTMENTS CANTON
HOUGH DAVID R ACSW DCSW PC
HOWLETT CHRIS MD
J F K INVESTMENT
KNOWLEDGE BASED SOLUTIONS
LIFE SETTLEMENT SERVICES
LITTELFUSE INC
LOIZON JOHN N PC
MAZY GILLIS
OXFORD PARK TOWERS OF BERKLEY
PALLADIN GROUP INC
PATRICK T BARONE PLLC
R & J WAVERLY LLC
SAND BAR
SEDGWICK OPTICIANS
SPEED SHAPE
SPEEDSHAPE INC
WEISS ROBERT M

296 R J SWOPE/ASSOCIATES
322 DAVID B GUNSBERG PC

FLORIDA COAST PROPERTIES LLC
HYMAN LIPPITT P C
LAW OFFCES BRYAN SCHEFMAN PLLC
LAW OFFICES OF DAVID MEND
M D O T INVESTMENTS LLC
MAGNESIUM TECHNOLOGIES CORP
TACTICAL ALLOCATION GROUP LLC
TMK PROPERTY MANAGEMENT L



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A16

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2005

325 BROGAN PRTNERS ADVG CNSULTANCY
BURTON CATZMAN DEVELOPMENT

344 ABC FUNDING CORP
KATO CONSTRUCTION INC
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES
THREE FRTY FOUR N WDWARD ASSOC

350 ADVANTAGE GROUP
ASSOCIATES OF BIRMINGHAM INC
CYMERC EXCHANGE INC
DEMERY COMPANY
EMMI INVESTIGATIONS
HENRY FORD HEALTH SYSTEM
INTERNATIONAL MERGERS & ACQUIS
LASALLE SYSTEMS LEASING I
MAYFAIR INSURANCE AGENCY INC
MEADOWBROOK PROPERTIES INC
METZLER LOCICERLIEO SERRA & CO
PLASMA DISPLAY SYSTEMS LLC

380 480 PIERCE ASSOC LTD PART
ALLSTATE REALTY
ALTERNATIVE FUTURES INC
AVENIR GROUP INC
BIRMINGHAM BLOOMFIELD CHAI CEN
CCR INVESTMENTS LLC
CHASE LAKE LLC
CHECKPOINT SOFTWARE
COUNTRYSIDE II LTD PARTNERSHIP
DEEPVIEW SYSTEMS
FUSE COMMUNICATION
GOOD GLENN E
HERITAGE SQUARE PHASE 2 LLCA
JAMISON MANAGEMENT COMPANY
JIMCAM INC
KLM PHARMACY INC
KP HOLDINGS LLC
LABE ROBERT B PC
LESLIE GROUP LTD PARTNERSHIP
MID CONTINTAL DEV GP LTD PRT
MIDDLMRKET CPITL MNAGMENTT LLC
MIYAKO GLC INC
NOVECK DANIEL ATTORNEY AT LAW
PATRICE DUQUETTE MD PC
PEBBLE CREEK LTD PARTNR 1992
PINGITORE TAMMY MSW
PLATINUM ASSOC
PORTER ENGINEERED SYSTEMS OHIO
PREPAID COMMUNICATIONS SVC LLC
RELATIONAL LLC
SANDY STONEHILL LLC
SHELBY PROPERTY INVESTORS LLC



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A17

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2005

380 SILLMAN ENTERPRISES INC
SOUTH CREEK VILLAGE LTD PARTNR
STAHL ASSOC INC
UNIVERSITY GROUP INC
VAUGHAN VILLAGE MOBILE HOME
VS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
WESTMINSTER CERAMICS LLC
WILDER ROAD PLAZA INC

430 AEREOUS
ATWOOD K A INC
DIGITAL DETROIT LLC
MAIN STREET USA INSURANCE LLC
SAROKI VCTOR ASSOC ARCHTCTS PC

450 BRODY DOMUS VENTURES A MICHIGA
BROWN PROPERTIES CORP
CHERRY HILL DENTON GROUP LLC
ICE HOUSE 220 LLC
SHAH SHOBHA MD

460 JUNIOR LEAGUE BIRMINGHAM MI
470 SANDRA COLLINS INC

WILLOTT CORP
474 ARKITEKTURA SHOWROOMS INC
500 MIRO MIRO & WEINER
505 BIRMINGHAM VENTURES INC
523 FOOT SOLUTIONS

POSNER GALLERY



-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A18

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2005

101 ILLUSIONS BY SHERRI INC
JAMES SYMINGTON

111 ALIOTO MICHAEL
ALIOTO, MICHAEL
ANDERSON, MATTHEW L
ASARO, ANDREW J
BARNETT, RICHARD K
BARR, BRIAN
BENADERET, STEVEN T
BIRETA, LAWRENCE
BLANCK, STUART H
BUDMAN, HELEN W
CLARK, PHYLLIS A
CUMMINGS, PETER
CUNNINGTON, THOMAS W
DAVIS, MARK W
DAWES, ALAN
DOROTHY, GRAEBNER
DUBRINSKY, MAX M
ERB, FRED
FRITZ, BARBARA J
GILROY, MARCIA K
GODARD, NICOLE P
HARRIS, STEVEN J
HENDERSON, JAMES L
INTERDISCIPLINARY MEDICAL MGT
JORDAN, ARTHUR E
KAPLAN, BRUCE M
KOLARCHICK, PATRICK A
KUZIEMKO, CHET F
MCDONALD, BRUCE E
MOORADIAN, DENNIS J
RATTNER, LILIANE R
RICHIE, LEROY C
ROCHERT, JUERGEN M
ROGERS, CHARLES B
ROSE, ROBERT C
ROSIN, ROBERT M
ROSSMAN, KATIE
SANDWEISS, SHELDON W
SHORE, NOAH J
STEINBERG, LEE B
STEVEN J HARRIS COMMUNICATIONS
STEVENS, DEREK J
STYCHNO, NESTOR A
WEBSTER, MICHAEL E
WILLITS MARKETING CENTER

115 CAMERON STEAKHOUSE
117 CAMERON MITCHELL RESTAURANTS L

MITCHELLS FISH MARKET



(Cont'd)

-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A19

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2005

237 FAB
300 FIRST RGLR BPTST CHRCH & SCTY

GATEWAY MONTESSORI SCHOOL
376 ROBERT, F
380 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
382 NEDERLANDER, RICKI M
412 BERKOV, S M
424 KAUFMAN, STUART M
448 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
468 HODGSON, DEREK F
487 MILLER-SHAW BUNNY MSW BCD

MILLER-SHAW, BERNETTA
488 JACOB, ANDREW C
504 SIGL, ANDREAS
520 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
532 CITRIN, ROBERT M



-

N OLD WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A20

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2000

191 COHEN, ALLEN
REITZ, GRAYDON

237 SCHUMACHER, C
255 LEWIS, HILL
280 BEAUDOEN, R

BLAESING, LOIS C
CARLSEN, MARION H
CLARK, JOHN N
DUBIN, MORRIE L
DUBRINSKY, M
FLOREK, M
HOUGH, DAVID R
HOWLETT, C
MICHAELS, MELODEE A
PELTON, H
SERLING, M
SOSNICK, D

350 FELDMAN, SHARON M
369 BROWN, ANTHONY S
371 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
373 CODY, F K
380 AMISS, LEWIS T

BANKS, SHARON A
BATEY, T
CHAPLA, J M
COHEN, E
FORD, RODNEY K
FREILICH, SHELDON L
FRIEDMAN, H
GLUSKI, J
KURVI, ANNIKKI A
MATLEN, TERRY A
PARKER, SANDRA W
PINGITORE, TAMMY M
ROWLAND, JANE
RUBY, BRIAN D
SCHOUTEN, J
VALENTINE, NATALIE M
WEINBERG, LANCE M
WILLIAMS, J
WILLS, ROBERT M
YOCHIM, WILLIAM A
YONKEE, MARY P

381 BRADICK, D G
385 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
389 GORDON, ABRAHAM S



-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A21

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2000

237 ABOODY-KERR ASSOCIATES
IMMIGRATION LAW CENTER
KOLASA LAWRENCE F
PITA CAFE OF BIRMINGHAM
VALUE VANTAGE HEALTH PLAN LLC

265 FIGARO
275 ETHAN ALLEN INC
280 BARNETT RARITIES CORPORATION

BERMAN LEON E MD
BIRMINGHAM VISION CARE INC
BLASING LOUIS C PC
BLOOMFIELD FINE ART GALLERY
CANTON I LTP
CANTON ONE LLC
D RESTAURANTS INC
DHS MANAGMENT COMPANY LLC
EUROPEAN FACIAL STUDIO INC
FAHNESTOCK & CO INC
FIDELITY BROKERAGE SERVICES
FINANCIAL ADVISORS INC
GETSOFF MICHAEL T
GIFFORD KRASS GROH SMIEREC
GOODMAN PHILIP J PC
HIDDEN GLEN APARTMENTS CANTON
HOMECORP LLC
HOWLETT CHRIS MD
J & E COMMUNITY HOMES LTD
J G FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SVC
LOIZON LOIZOS JOHN W ARCH
LOIZON-LOIZOS JOHN W ARCHITEC
MFL LLC
PALLADIN GROUP INC
REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT ASSOC
ROSSETTI ASSOCIATES INC
SAND BAR
SERLING MICHAEL B PC
WASHTENAW COMMERCIAL LAND INV
WEISS ROBERT M

344 ABC FUNDING CORP
RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES
SULLIVAN & ASSOCIATES INC
THREE FRTY FOUR N WDWARD ASSOC

350 ASSOCIATES OF BIRMINGHAM INC
BIRETA COMPANY INC
EVS INC
HENRY FORD HEALTH SYSTEM
INTERNATIONAL MERGERS & ACQUIS
RDM HOLDINGS LTD

380 4-D PHARMACY MGT SYSTEMS
480 PIERCE ASSOC LTD PART



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A22

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2000

380 ALTERNATIVE FUTURES INC
ASSOC PSYCHOTHERAPISTS P
AVENIR GROUP INC
AVENIR INC
BRENTWOOD GROUP LTD
CENTER FOR PER GRWTH DVELOPMEN
CREATIVE IDEAS UNLIMITED INC
FCG ENTERPRISES INC
FORD RODNEY K ACSW BCD
GEM RESEARCH LABORATORY INC
GOOD GLENN E
HENDERSON MELINDA PHD
JAMISON MANAGEMENT COMPANY
JIMCAM A MI CO PARTNERSHIP
JIMCAM INC
JOHN F SCHAEFER ESQ
KEYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
KNIGHT PRESCRIPTION SERVICES
KNIGHT SERVICE CO INC
LANCE INVESTMENT CO
MIDDLEMARKET CAPITAL MGT CO LC
NOVECK DANIEL
PACIFIC ADVISORY SVCS INC
PREPAID COMMUNICATIONS SVC LLC
STAHL ASSOC INC
UNIVERSITY GROUP INC
VAUGHAN VILLAGE MOBILE HOME
WILLIAMS WILLIAMS RUBY
WILLS ROBERT M ACSW

430 DIGITAL DETROIT LLC
OK HARRIS WORKS OF ART

450 SHAH SHOBHA MD
460 JOHN THOMAS MAYFAIR INSUR AGCY
470 BANDER GUNS & AMMO

RED SALON
SANDRA COLLINS INC
TOCCALINO COSMETIC STUDIO

474 ARKITEKTURA SHOWROOMS INC
505 BIRMINGHAM VENTURES INC
525 SAROKI VCTOR ASSOC ARCHTCTS PC



-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A23

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

2000

300 FIRST RGLR BPTST CHRCH & SCTY
GATEWAY MONTESSORI SCHOOL
TEAM CENTER

380 KUKES, MICHAEL I
382 NEDERLANDER, RITA
412 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
424 KAUFMAN, STUART M
448 GOLDMAN, SIDNEY
468 HODGSON, DEREK F
487 MILLERSHAW, B
488 MAYNE, M M
504 CAVANAUGH, PATRICK H
520 REGHANTI, VIOLET J
532 OCCUPANT UNKNOWN,
544 COHEN, ERIC



-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A24

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1995

209 CHICAGO SOCIAL CLUB INC
IN HOUSE ADVERTISING LTD

211 BRIAN KILLIAN & COMPANY INC
START GALLERY INC

215 MONASEE CORP (NOT INC)
217 LUOMO TUXEDO
233 TOTAL CREATIVE
237 ABOODY-KERR ASSOCIATES

KAYS IRVING DRAP & BEDSPREADS
MAGIC LAMP CAFE
NATIONAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES
RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE CORP
TAYLOR AMIE
TOTAL CREATIVE

280 ATA ASSOCIATES LTD PARTNERSHIP
BAINBRIDGE LTD
BERMAN LEON E MD
BETTY GRABER MSW
BIG RAPIDS BLDG CO LTD PARTNR
BIRMINGHAM VISION CARE INC
BLOOMFIELD FINE ART GALLERY
BURL COMPANY THE
CASTLE PARTNERS LTD PARTNR
CLINTON MANOR ASSOCIATES
D RESTAURANTS INC
DAVID R HOUGH ACW DCW PC
FAMILY SYSTEMS PC
FIDELITY BROKERAGE SERVICES
FINANCIAL ADVISORS INC
FIRST OF MICHIGAN CORPORATION
FISHFUN ENTERPRISES INC
FREIER M L MD PC
GETSOFF MICHAEL T
GIFFORD GROH SPRINKLE
GOODMAN PHILIP J PC
GORDON MANAGEMENT COMPANY INC
GRANT MARTIN D
GRINSTEIN R JWLY & DESIGN INC
GRUBB & ELLIS COMPANY
J & E COMMUNITY HOMES LTD
J G FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SVC
LAW OFFICES FRED GORDON PC
MARGOTS EROPEAN FACIAL STUDIO
MARKETING CONCEPTS INTL
MOROF LEE H
OAKLAND PROPERTIES INC
R J S PROPERTIES
R T R OPERATING CORPORATION
REAL ESTATE FINANCIAL CORP
REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT ASSN



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A25

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1995

280 RIDGEWOOD ASSOC LTD PARTNR
ROGERS LAWRENCE
ROSSETTI ASSOCIATES INC
SERLING MICHAEL B PC
TECHNICAL WRITING AND ENGRG CO
WASHTENAW COMMERCIAL LAND INV
WATSON-SWOPE GRPHIC CMMNCTIONS
WEISS ROBERT M
WILLIAM BARISH ATY
WOLFE WARREN E MD PC INC
WOODS CHARLES J MD PC
WORDEN & COMPANY INC

308 OSHEA & ASSOCIATES
344 ABC FUNDING CORP

KOJAIAN MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
P R JINGOZIAN & ASSOCIATES
RONEY WILLIAM C & CO
SULLIVAN & ASSOCIATES INC
THREE FRTY FOUR N WDWARD ASSOC

350 380 CORPORATION
BIRETA COMPANY INC
DAVISON PARK ONE INC
FAMILY TIME RESTAURANT INC
GATEWAY COMMERCE CENTER INC
HENRY FORD HEALTH SYSTEM
HOFER & BEATTY INC
MACALOON DONALD J
METZLER LOCRICCHIO & CO PC
THE 350 GROUP LLC
WELLINGTON PLACE APARTMENTS

377 COMPONENT SYSTEMS MANAGEMENT
380 4-D PHARMACY MGT SYSTEMS

ATLANTIC HOLDINGS INCORPORATED
AUDLEY GROUP
BAEUMONT FOUNDATION
BEAUMONT FOUNDATION (INC)
BLOCH BROTHERS CORPORATION
BLOCH REALTY GROUP INC
BLUESTEIN R H INC
BRENTWOOD GROUP LTD
BRIAN REALTY INC
BROADWAY HOLDINGS INC
CASCADES VILLAGE LTD PARTNR
CREATIVE IDEAS UNLIMITED INC
DR GOOD
FIRST CNTNTL SCRTS CORP AM
FULLER REALTY CO
GEM RESEARCH LABORATORY INC
GEM RESEARCH REPLACEMENT SVCS
HENDERSON MELINDA PHD



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A26

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1995

380 JAMISON MANAGEMENT COMPANY
JIMCAM
JIMCAM A MI CO PARTNERSHIP
KEYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
KNIGHT SERVICE CO INC
LAND CONCEPTS GROUP
NOVECK DANIEL
PINEWOOD CREEK ASSOCIATES
STAHL ASSOC INC
TROY MEDICAL PLAZA PHARMACY
UNIVERSITY GROUP INC
WILLIAMS SCHFER RUBY WLLAMS PC

430 BETSYM INC
CENTER FOR PER GRWTH DVELOPMEN
CONSOLIDATED INDUSTRIAL CORP
FORBES G H ASSOC ARCHITECTS PC
KLEIN GALLERIES LTD THE
OK HARRIS WORKS OF ART
ROBINSON RICHARD A JEWELRY
SMART START CONSULTING INC

450 B MD PC CHODORKOFF
BORNSTEIN MELVIN MD PC
IRON & METALS RES & DEV CO
KULISH NANCY PHD
MILETIC MICHAEL MD
SPIVAK DON A

460 JOHN THOMAS MAYFAIR INSURANCE
470 BANDER GUNS & AMMO

GRAY WILLIAM F ASSOCIATES
SANDRA COLLINS INC

474 ARKITEKTURA SHOWROOMS INC
KASSABIAN BUILDERS

505 BIRMINGHAM VENTURES INC
GILES THOMAS V AND ASSOC

523 HAMPTON HOUSE LTD-INTRS ANTIQ



-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A27

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1995

243 NATIONAL GARAGES
300 FIRST BAPTST CHURCH BIRMINGHAM
380 KUKES & ASSOCIATES INC
382 NEDERLANDER, RITA
412 OCCUPANT UNKNOWNN
424 TOWNSEND, LYNN
448 GOLDMAN, SIDNEY H
468 HODGSON, DEREK F
488 MAYNE, M M
520 REGHANTI, THOMAS J
532 CITRIN, ROBERT M
544 WOODROW WILSON & CROSS INC

WOODROW, BARRY



-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A28

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1992

209 DUKE GALLERY
IN HOUSE ADVERTISING INC

211 BRIAN KILLIAN & COMPANY INC
215 MONASEE CORP (NOT INC)
217 LUOMO TUXEDO
237 ABOODY-KEER ASSOCIATES

KAYS IRVING DRAP & BEDSPREADS
NATIONAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES
TALBERT DICK & ASSOCIATES
WZACNY CHRISTOPHER & ASSOC

275 JACOBSON STORES INC
280 ADVICE INC

AMBER PHOTOGRAPHICS
ATA ASSOCIATES LTD PARTNERSHIP
ATTIC SHOP
BAINBRIDGE LTD
BERMAN LEON E MD
BETTY GRABER MSW
BIG RAPIDS BLDG CO LTD PARTNR
BIRMINGHAM BEAD STORE
BIRMINGHAM VISION CARE INC
BURL COMPANY THE
CLINTON MANOR ASSOCIATES
D RESTAURANTS INC
DENNIS MEIERS PRODUCTIONS
FAMILY SYSTEMS INC
FIRST OF MICHIGAN CORPORATION
FREIER M L MD PC
GETSOFF MICHAEL
GIFFOD VN O S S P C
GORDON MANAGEMENT COMPANY INC
GREENVILLE COMMERCIAL DEV CORP
GREG DIETBERG
GRINSTEIN R JWLY & DESIGN INC
GRUBB & ELLIS COMPANY
J & E COMMUNITY HOMES LTD
J G FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SVC
LAW OFFICES FRED GORDON PC
MARGOTS EROPEAN FACIAL STUDIO
MARKETING CONCEPTS INTL
MOROF LEE H
MULTI-FAMILY PRPRTS ASSOC
NORTH PNT-LAKEWOOD CLINIC P C
PARK SHELTON CO
PONTIAC SHOPPING CENTER DEV
R J S PROPERTIES
R T R OPERATING CORPORATION
REAL ESTATE FINANCIAL CORP
REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT ASSN
RICHMOND COMMERCIAL LAND DEV



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A29

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1992

280 ROGERS LAWRENCE
ROSSETTI ASSOCIATES INC
SERLING MICHAEL B PC
SHERMAN SHOES INC
SPECIAL BAKERIES OF MICHIGAN
TECHNICAL WRITING & ENGRG CO
TRAYNE INVESTMENT CORPORATION
TRU-FIT INTERNATIONAL
TRUE FAUX JEWELRY STORE
WASHTENAW COMMERCIAL LAND INV
WATSON-SWOPE GRPHIC CMMNCTIONS
WILLIAM BARISH ATY
WOLFE WARREN E MD PC
WOODS CHARLES J MD PC
WORDEN & CO INC
YATES PHYLLIS J PHD

308 OSHEA & ASSOCIATES
322 COMERICA BANK-DETROIT
334 RONEY WILLIAM C & CO
344 HERTZBERG AND GOLDEN PC

SULLIVAN & ASSOCIATES INC
THREE FRTY FOUR N WDWARD ASSOC
WOODWARD SECURITIES CORP

350 380 CORPORATION
CURRIE ROBERT M PC
DAVISON PARK ONE INC
FAMILY TIME RESTAURANT INC
GATEWAY COMMERCE CENTER INC
HOFER & BEATTY INC
LAW OFFICE OF ATTORN
MACALOON DONALD J
METZLER LOCRICCHIO & CO PC
PARCHOC RICHARD G
PONTIAC TRAIL ASSOC LTD PARTNR
SALEMAKERS INC

380 4 D PHARMACY MGT SYSTEMS
AUDLEY GROUP
BEAUMONT FOUNDATION
BIG TREES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
BLOCH BROTHERS CORPORATION
BLOCH REALTY GROUP INC
BLUESTEIN R H
BRIAN REALTY INC
BROADWAY HOLDINGS INC
CASCADES VLG LTD PARTNERSHIP
CREATIVE IDEAS UNLIMITED INC
DELTA ASSOCIATES
DR GOOD
FIRST CNTNTL SCRTS CORP AM
GEM RESEARCH LABORATORY INC



(Cont'd)

-

N WOODWARD AVE

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A30

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1992

380 JAMISON MANAGEMENT COMPANY
JIMCAM
KEYSTONE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
KNIGHT SERVICE CO
NOVECK DANIEL
UNIVERSITY GROUP INC
UTDC CORPORATION
WILLIAMS SCHFER RUBY WLLAMS PC

381 TITANUS INC
430 BETSYM INC

CONSOLIDATED INDUSTRIAL CORP
FORBES G H ASSOC ARCHITECTS PC
KLEIN GALLERIES LTD
OK HARRIS WORKS OF ART
ROBINSON RICHARD A JEWELRY
SMART START CONSULTING INC
YOUNG BROTHERS AND CO INC

450 B MD PC CHODORKOFF
BORNSTEIN MELVIN MD PC
IRON & METALS RES & DEV CO
MILETIC MICHAEL MD
SAMET NORMAN T MD PC
SPIVAK DON A

470 BANDER GUNS & AMMO
COPPER DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION
SANDRA COLLINS INC

474 ADARIA INC
505 BIRMINGHAM VENTURES INC
523 HAMPTON HOUSE LTD-INTRS ANTIQ
525 CONSIGNMENT BROKERS



-

WILLITS ST

EDR Digital Archive

5415516.5   Page: A31

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1992

243 NATIONAL GARAGES
300 FIRST BAPTST CHURCH BIRMINGHAM
412 LARK, JOHN K
424 TOWNSEND, LYNN
448 GOLDMAN, SIDNEY H
520 REGHANTI, THOMAS J
532 CITRIN, ROBERT M
544 WOODROW, BARRY



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A32

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1985



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A33

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1985



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A34

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1985



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A35

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1980



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A36

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1980



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A37

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1980



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A38

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1980



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A39

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1975



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A40

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1975



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A41

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1975



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A42

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1970



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A43

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1970



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A44

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1970



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A45

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1965



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A46

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1965



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A47

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1965



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A48

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1965



-

N BATES ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A49

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1960



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A50

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1960



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A51

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1960



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A52

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1960



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A53

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1960



-

N BATES ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A54

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1956



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A55

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1956



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A56

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1956



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A57

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1956



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A58

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1956



-

N BATES ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A59

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1951



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A60

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1951



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A61

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1951



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A62

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1951



-

N BATES ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A63

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1944



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A64

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1944



-

N WOODWARD AVE

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A65

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1944



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A66

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1944



-

WILLITS ST

POLK DIRECTORY CO

5415516.5   Page: A67

SourceTarget Street Cross Street

1944















































































































































08- 19 -25- 376 -097 333 N OLD WOODWARD AVE Subdivision: 

Birmingham MI, 48009 Lot: Block: 

Name Information ^     a  : `  .  ? 4, , '..:  •  

Owner: CITY OF BIRMINGHAM Phone: 

Occupant: Phone: 

Applicant: Phone: 

Architect: Phone: 

GProlect Information ` ` a

Date Started: 08/ 09/ 2011 Date Finished: 04/ 10/ 2013 Status: Finished

Description: 

Plumb Stand Alone ( Comm) 

Final. Plumbing. Inspection , j Mike Labriole

Status: Completed Result: Approved

Scheduled: 04/ 11/ 2013 12: 00 AM Completed: 04/ 10/ 2013 12: 00 AM

Comments: 

Scheduling Comment DAVE 248 - 541 -0819. 



Cty of Birmingham
A bt/alkable Camnaunily

Applicant: 

NELSON BROS SEWER & PLBG / RI

1115 E 11 MILE

ROYAL OAK MI 48067

Status: ISSUED

Community Development Department
151 Main Street

Birmingham, MI 48012 -3001

248) 530 -1850

INSPECTION LINE # ( 248) 530 -1860

Permit Number: 

Plumbing PAC11- 

009
Applied: 08/ 09/ 2011

Type Issued: 08/ 09/ 2011

Expires: 02/ 05/ 2012

Finaled: 

LOCATION OWNER CONTRACTOR

0 333 N OLD WOODWARD AVE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM NELSON BROS SEWER & PLB

08- 19 -25- 376 -097
151 MARTIN ST 1115E 11 MILE

Zoning District: 
BIRMINGHAM MI 48009 - 3368 ROYAL OAK MI 48067

Phone: Phone: ( 248) 541 -0819
Special District: 

Fax: Fax: 

TAT- A- T - A7 T) T) T` T -- TT T Tl1A !' TT\/ T AT) T / TT T/- C' TT) T T!- TT TTiC AT/ l U-CUC

T Vll\ Ll. DllltJllVll• VAt. l \lLVYY 11 \ L YL1Y 11V1Y1V1 \ t.1111a11 i\ 11YV Vi1 v.. a v+ u. aYV auuv

Stipulations: 

Primary Constructions Type: Primary Zoning District: 

Primary Use Group: Project: JPAC11 - 0003

Permit Item Work Type Fee Basis Item Total

Issued By: 44rmm- 
ee

0. 00 0. 00

Fee Total: 

Amount Paid: 

Balance Due: 

Date: 08/ 09/ 2011



Revised: 2/ 14/ 2010 luJ u

PLUMBING APPLICATION

AUG 0 g 2011
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

151 Martin P. O. Box 3001 CITTOF BIRMINGHAM

IPhone: ( 248) 530 -1850 Birmingham, Michigan 48012- 0ttmi piE® h'1tfAClEMw I Q =1860

www. bhamgov. org

PERMIT # DATE: 

Application is here 6y made for a permit to INSTALL, ALTER, REPLACE the plumbing, sewers, drains or water on the
property herein described: IN ACCORDANCE WITH I. P. C. 1997 SECTION 312: ALL PLUMBING SYSTEM

PIPING SHALL BE TESTED WITH WATER OR AIR. n

LOCATION: s Z

Sidwell No: 

NAME OF APPLICANT: NG t_ 5OfJ , Rwas LUY4116 I ;`/ Phone: aye- Syl l g

Address: Fax:: Z elt -5_ 1'd y6
Number Street City Zip

OWNER OF PROPERTY: C t T- kl( cr/' Phone: 

Address: 

Number Street C

SIGNATURE OF

Class of Work: NEW ( ) ALTER ( ) TEMPORARY ( ) REPAIR ( 

Building Occupancy
Is this permit in conjunction with a building permit? 

Auto Washer 15. 00

Backflow Prev /Bidg._L_25. 00
Bathtub 15.00

Catch Basin 50.00

Dental Chair 15. 00

Dishwasher 20. 00

Drains to 6" 25.00

Drains over 6" 40.00

Drinking Fountain 15. 00

Floor Drain 15. 00

Garbage Disposal 15. 00

Grease Trap 30. 00

Hose Bibs 15. 00

Humidifier 15. 00

Inside Drain ( Weep) 15.00

Laundry Tray 15. 00

Backwater Valves 10. 00

Fax: 

YES /NO If YES, what is the permit number? 

Lavatory 15. 00

Lawn Sprklr. 50.00

Misc. Equip. 15. 00

Reinspection Fee 50. 00

Roof Sump 15. 00

Safe Waste 15. 00

Sewers to 6" 50.00

Sewers to 8" 60.00

Sewers to 10" 75.00

Sewers to 12" 100. 00

Sewers over 12" 100. 00

Shower Trap 15.00

Sink 8. 00

Stacks /Conductors 15. 00

Stand Pipe 15. 00

Sump with Pump 30. 00

Water Closet 15. 00

Water Dist.%" 30. 00

1 " 30. 00

1 - 1/ 4" 35. 00

1 - 1/ 2" 35.00

2" 45. 00

3" 60. 00

4" 70. 00

Over 4" 75. 00

Urinal 15. 00

Water Heater 15. 00

Water Service
191

65. 00

1 - 1/ 2, 65. 00

2" 65. 00

Over 2" 125. 00

BASE FEE: $ 50. 00

Registration Fee: $ 15. 00

Regular Fee: 

Total Fee: - 

6119188 - NOTE. Effective immediately, the use of solder or flux exceeding 0. 2% lead conten pipes and fittings

exceeding 8% lead content is prohibited in new installation and repairs or public water supply systems, or in any

plumbing in residential or non - residential facilities providing water for human consumption which is connected to a
public water system. 

















ADDITION - COMMERCIAL BUILDING

Description:

FinishedStatus:03/20/2018Date Finished:03/14/2018Date Started:

Project Information

Phone:Architect:

Phone:Applicant:

Phone:Occupant:

Phone:CITY OF BIRMINGHAMOwner:

Name Information

Block:Lot:Birmingham MI, 48009

Subdivision:333 N OLD WOODWARD AVE08-19-25-376-097

Property Information

Addition - Commercial Building Permit | JACB18-0001

03/20/2018 03:11 PMCompleted:03/20/2018 12:00 AMScheduled:

ApprovedResult:CompletedStatus:

Final Building Inspection | Mike Morad

03/19/2018 12:00 AMCompleted:03/16/2018 09:00 AMScheduled:

ApprovedResult:CompletedStatus:

Final Electrical Inspection | Edward Rosett

03/16/2018 09:42 AMCompleted:03/16/2018 12:00 AMScheduled:

ApprovedResult:CompletedStatus:

Building Inspection | RALPH WELTON

03/16/2018 09:45 AMCompleted:03/16/2018 12:00 AMScheduled:

ApprovedResult:CompletedStatus:

Final Inspection | RALPH WELTON



   Inspection  Requests:  www.accessmygov.com

FINALED

JACB18-0001

KEEGO HARBOR MI 48320
3033 GLENBROKE

BRIXNSTONE LLC

Item TotalFee BasisWork TypePermit Item

Stipulations:

NEW BLOCK ENCLOSURE WITH 36" ENTRANCE DOOR FOR A NEW OIL SEPARATOR

NO FEES FOR CITY PROPERTY

Work Description:

Fax:  
Special District: Phone:  

Zoning District: BIRMINGHAM MI  48009-3368

Fax:

08-19-25-376-097 151 MARTIN ST

Phone:  (248) 545 0108

0 333 N OLD WOODWARD AVE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

CONTRACTOROWNERLOCATION

Expires:

Issued:KEEGO HARBOR MI  48320

PB18-0143

3033 GLENBROKE

Permit Number:  

BRIXNSTONE LLC

(248) 530-1850

Birmingham, MI 48012-3001

151 Martin Street

Community Development Department

Finaled:

Type

Applied:

Primary Constructions Type:

Primary Use Group:

Primary Zoning District:

Project:

Status:

Applicant:

Building
03/14/2018

03/19/2018

09/16/2018

03/20/2018

JACB18-0001

$0.00Permit Fee - Const Value $1 - $100K Building Permits 0.00

0.00 

0.00 

Fee Total:

Balance Due:

Amount Paid:

0.00 

09/13/2018Building Official Approval: Date:



ADDRESS: 333 N OLD WOODWARD

AVE

FOLDER NAME: DEMO - 

MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURE

PROJECT# JDMS13 -0003

DOC TITLE: PROJECT DOCUMENTS



Demo; - Miscellaneous Stiructure Permits . 7DMS13 



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

151 MARTIN STREET

P. O. BOX 3001
BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

Receipt: 142833 06/ 04/ 13

Cashier: TKLOBUCAR

Received Of : R L SHERIDAN LLC

32125 BLOCK
GARDEN CITY MI 48135

The sum of: 430. 00

BDINV 00098722 145. 00

BDINV 00098725 65. 00

BDINV 00098723 155. 00

BDINV 00098726 65. 00

Total 430. 00

NONCASH PAYME

Signed: 

430. 00



Community Development Department

city q1- B ffmingham 151 Martin Street

rlk .bl Com, nr 7zry Birmingham, MI 48012 -3001

248) 530 - 1850

INSPECTION LINE # ( 248) 530 -1860

Permit Number: 
Applicant: 

PD13 -0024
R L SHERIDAN LLC Demolition JDBC13 - 0003

32125 BLOCK Applied: 03/ 28/ 2013

GARDEN CITY MI 48135 Type Issued: 06/ 04/ 2013

Status: ISSUED Expires: 12/ 01/ 2013

Finaled: 

LOCATION I OWNER I CONTRACTOR

0 333 N OLD WOODWARD AVE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM R L SHERIDAN LLC

08- 19 -25- 376 -097 PO BOX 3001 32125 BLOCK

Zoning District: BIRMINGHAM MI 48012 GARDEN CITY MI 48135

Special District: Phone: Phone: ( 734) 422 6400

Fax: Fax: 

Work Description: 

Stipulations: 

Primary Constructions Type: 

Primary Use Group: 

Primary Zoning District: 

Project: JDBC13 - 0003

Permit Item Work Type Fee Basis Item Total

Permit Fee - Const Value $ 1 - $ 100K Building Permits

Building Official Approval: T_ 

6, 175. 00 $ 145. 00

Fee Total: 145. 00

Amount Paid: 145. 00

Balance Due: 0. 00

Date: 06/ 04/ 2013



Date: 

City of Birmingham
Community Development Department
P. O. Box 3001, Birmingham, MI 48012

Ph# 248 - 530 - 1850 www.bhamgov. org Inspection Line# 248 - 530 -1860

Bldg. Permit No: / 3- V 3

BUILDING PERMIT

Application is hereby made for a permit to CONSTRUCT / ENLARG TER /REPAIR or DEMOLISH a building, structure, 
or parking lot. 

LOCATION Street and Nuff vJ c' c 7

Community Development Dept. assigns new addresses for new construction) 

SIDWELL NO. 

t NAME OF APPLICANT iZ - • ^  cP.. r G Phone: ( 734) 

Fax: ( ) 

Address: 3 à- t o S- 7 A v C_ \ L (" VZD4K) C { la t 3 S
Street) ( City) ( Zip) 

OWNER OF PROPERTY i r a r t n^^ , Phone:( ) 

Address: 1 S ( 
Street) ( City) 

Construction Type

1_ 

Use Group

Code Edition

zip) 

Sq. Ft. of New Construction: 

Sq. Ft. of Existing Construction: _ 

Total Square Footage: 

Nature of Work ( Describe in Detail) --_—> ", \" 0 - s 4 e 1- r' a K h k° k- 

Exterior Changes ( Describe in Detail) 

Fence inspection ( Demolition only, for office use only) 

Requires Planning Approval / / Yes / / No

Revised: 211412010 2

Approved by: 



19- 
City of Birmingham

Community Development Department

APPLICATION FOR A

BUILDING/ DEMOLITION

PERMIT

Applicant develops preliminary plans. 
Topographical elevations are required on all certified surveys ( minimum four corners). 

The complete plans and application are submitted to the Community Development Department for review. 

Two complete sets of construction drawings for residential or four architecturally sealed sets for commercial, 
a certified survey, and all pertinent information, such as job specification, must be submitted at the time of
application. 

A Site Evaluation application is also required for a new house, addition or accessory structure. 

Compliance with the attached " Requirements for Permit Approval for Residential Demolition" is required. 

A PHOTOGRAPH of the house you intend to demolish is required. 

Once plans have been reviewed, the applicant is contacted and either asked to make the required changes to

the plans or, to pick up the building /demolition permit. 

Fees made payable to the " The City of Birmingham" 

All plumbing, heating, refrigeration and electrical alterations require separate permits. 

All building applications must include a copy of a current Builders License. 

All Plot Plans submitted must include location of City Trees in Right of Way. 

It's the owner' s responsibility to check local deed restrictions prior to
construction

Revised: 211412010 1

J



Zon ng , 

Check One: 

Single Family
Two Family / Multiple Family
Commercial

Estimated Value of the Proposed Construction

Meter Size FEE

Water for Construction FEE

Water Trench FEE

Water Inspection FEE

Sewer Bond FEE

Sewer Trench FEE

Historic Designation

Permit Fee

Plan Review Fee $ 

JL

J'f5

TOTAL $ 

Bond $ 

Registration Fee ($ 25. 00) $ 

TOTAL $ 

Sewer Inspection FEE

Stop Box ( Refunded if not Damaged) FEE

It's the owner' s responsibility to check local deed restrictions prior to construction. 

As the owner of record, I hereby authorize the proposed construction noted on this
application, 

s

Print Name: l i d y`j fig - 

Required signature of owner: 

Date) 

As the applicant, I have been authorized by the owner to make this application as his
authorized agent. 

Print Name: \- -- ,- 5 L- C-- ,  - 

Signature of Applicant Q Z 8 Mwr2 Z° 3

Title) ( Date) 

License Number Company Name 1- • S \, -, 

License Expiration Date: 

APPROVAL ^ 

Building Inspector Date

Revised: 211412010 3



A. 
I A

MW 4S[ 67; 7,\ 1 pill zI

TO: All Licensed Contractors

FROM: Bruce R. Johnson, Building Official

RE: Public Act 135 of 1989

The above Act, effective October 1, 1989, amends the State Construction Code Act, PA 230 of 172, requiring certain items of
information be obtained on permit applications filed by residential builders or other licensed applicants. 

The Act mandates that ALL construction code applicants require: 

1. The Occupational License Number of all applicants, and, expiration date of license. 

Occupational License Number) Expiration Date) 

2. The name of each carrier providing worker' s disability compensation insurance to the applicant or, the
reason for exemption. 

3. 

4. 

Insurance Company) Expiration Date) 

The Internal Revenue Code Employer Identification Number, or, the reason for exemption

The IR Code Employer ID Number begins with a " 38 ") 

Reason for Exemption

The Michigan Employment Security Commission Employer Number, or, the reason for exemption

Reason for Exemption

The Act also requires that the following statement be in 8 -point boldface type above the location for the applicant' s signature: 

Section 23a of the State Construction Codes Act of 1972, Act No. 230 of Public Acts of 1972, being
Section 125.1523a of the Michigan Compiled Laws, prohibits a person from conspiring to circumvent
the licensing requirements of this State relating to persons who perform work on residential buildings
or a residential structure. Violators of Section 223a are subjected to civil fines." 

Applicant' s Signature

Company. Name\ 

Revised: 211412010 4

a



p, k 

oi i zn jzam
A Walkabk Community

FENCING FOR CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

Fences to enclose construction projects are to be chain link and a minimum
of six ( 6) feet in height measured from the ground on which they are
located. The fence is to be located on the property and not directly on or
beyond property lines. The distance to the sidewalk is to be maintained by
the property owner. 

There is to be a gate provided. The gate should open into the property and
not across the sidewalk blocking passage. Gates are required to be secured
when there is no one on the site. 

Fences are to be properly supported
building official. 

Fences are to be approved by the

Removal of a construction fence requires building official approval. 

All items are discussed with the applicant prior to permit release

Signature: 

k L \ 5 C e 

Print name: 

Revised: 211412010 5



BUILDING PERMITS FEES: 

Total Valuation: 

1. 00 - $ 1, 000. 00

1, 001. 00 - $ 100, 000

100, 001 and up

Fee: 

85. 00

85. 00 Plus $ 10. 00 per each additional thousand or

fraction thereof up to $ 100, 000. 

15. 00 per each additional thousand or fraction thereof. 

The construction fee is determined from the total construction value as shown in the most recent edition of the ICC Building
Evaluation Data Square foot construction costs. For all use groups except one and two family residential, the square foot
construction cost is 100% of the value shown in construction costs table; for renovations the square foot construction costs is
50% of the value shown in the table. For residential one and two family structures, the square foot construction cost is $ 125. 

PLAN EXAMINATION FEES: When the valuation for the proposed construction exceeds $ 1000 and a

plan is required to be submitted, a plan checking fee shall be paid at the
time of submitting plans and specifications for checking. Said plan
examination shall be a minimum of $ 85. 00 up to a valuation cost of
construction of $ 10, 000. All other plan examination fees shall be based on

the cost of construction valuation of the building. 

For Buildings valued between

10, 001 - $ 500, 000 The plan review fee is . 0020 times the value, or a minimum of $ 150. 00. 

For Buildings valued over

500, 000 The plan review fee is $ 1, 000 plus . 0010 times the value of construction. 

Mechanical / Plumbing Code
Reviews required Multiply the building code review fee by 1. 25. 

BONDS: All new construction for which a building permit has been issued shall pay, 
in addition to the permit fees, a cash bond as follows: 

Total Valuation Fee

0-$ 10, 000 $ 100. 00

10, 001 - $ 50, 000 $ 200. 00

50, 001 - $ 100, 000 $ 300. 00

100, 001 to $ 500, 000 $ 500. 00

500,001 and up - $ 1, 000. 00

Demolition bond House $ 2, 000. 00

Garage $ 500. 00

All bonds are refundable upon final completion and approval of the project. 

Refunds take approximately 3 -4 weeks for processing. 

REFUNDS: Refunds on any permit are subject to a minimum of twenty -five ( 25 %) for

administrative services with no construction work commencing. After

construction has started, fees will be refunded proportionately as
determined by the Building Official. Any permit fee for construction that is
seventy- five ( 75 %) or more completed will not be refunded. Plan Review
fees are not refundable. 

Revised: 0312112013



y f i rminghczmit
A Ifl4lkable Cony oinih, 

Applicant: 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM LINCOLN

151 MARTIN

BIRMINGHAM MI 480093369

Status: ISSUED

Community Development Department
151 Martin Street

Birmingham, MI 48012 - 3001

248) 530 - 1850

INSPECTION LINE # ( 248) 530 -1860

Permit Number: 

Electrical JDBC 3- 001
Applied: 03/ 28/ 2013

Type Issued: 06/ 04/ 2013

Expires: 12/ 01/ 2013

Finaled: 

LOCATION OWNER CONTRACTOR

0 333 N OLD WOODWARD AVE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM LINCOLN HIL

Electrical Permits

08- 19 -25- 376 -097
151 MARTIN

Zoning District: 
BIRMINGHAM MI 480093369

Special District: 
Phone: Ph 000 000 -0000 Phone: ( 000) 000 - 0000

Fax: Fax: 

L1- lFllu- 

Stipulations: 

Primary Constructions Type: Primary Zoning District: 

Primary Use Group: Project: JDBC13 - 0003

Permit Item Work Type Fee Basis Item Total

First Circuit Electrical Permits

Base Fee Electrical Permits

First Circuit Electrical Permits

47

rf r` 

Issued By: ? 

1. 00 $ 0. 00

1. 00 $ 50. 00

1. 00 $ 15. 00

Fee Total: 65. 00

Amount Paid: 65. 00

Balance Due: 0. 00

Date: 06/ 04/ 2013



Permit # 

I. JOB LOCATION' 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

t 151 Martin Street

D P. 0. Box 3001

BirrNngham, Michigan 48012 -3001

MAR 2 8 2013 - 
E191ctrical Permit Application

Inspection Line: 248 -530 -1860
C,' -1 0' 33;

3`

1 V1NaHAM
community Development: 248 - 530 -1850

COMMUNITY DE',!:- LOZ: v= T DEFARTAi % =', 

AUTHORITY: PA 230 OF 1972. AS AMMENDED

COMPLETION: MANDATORY TO OBTAIN PERMIT

PENALTY: PERMIT CAN NOT BE ISSUED

Name of Owner / Agent Has a building permit been obtained for this project? 

section 23a are subjected to civil fines. 

Yes ONO Not required

St et Address /Job Location ( Street No. a Name) City /Village Phone

Master License Number

r

II. CONTRACTOR / HOMEOWNER INFORMATION f% 

Homeowner

Nam

section 23a are subjected to civil fines. 

Contractor License Number

5;7

Expiration Date

1111 t

Address ( Street No., and Name Master License Number Expiration Date

City State

Telepho e:

2/ p r7 -9 /
B V

Fax: Federal E(m plOyer ID Number ( or reason for exemption) 

CS - 216 ` 
Workers Compensati n Insurance Carrier ( or reason for exemption) MESC Employer Number ( or reason for exemption

III. TYPE OF JOB

FC-3silgle Family New teration Other Special Inspection

IV. PLAN REVIEW REQUIRED

ee below for plan review requirements before completing this section. Plans and specifications must be submitted when the wiring or alteration
to an electrical system is over 400 amps and is in excess of 3, 500 square feet in all buildings. 

What is the rating, of the service or feeder in ampere? 

What is me building size In square feet? 

Have plans been submitted? Dyes ONO Not Required Building Permit No. 

Plans are required for all building types and shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of an architect or engineer licensed pursuant to
Act No. 299 of the Public Acts of 1980, as amended, and shall bear that architect' s or engineer' s signature and seal, except: 

1. When the electrical system rating does not exceed 400 amps and the building is not over 3, 500 square feet in area. 
2. Work completed by a governmental subdivision or state agency costing less than $ 15, 000. 00. 

PLANS MUST BE SUBMITTED BEFORE A PERMIT CAN BE ISSUED. 

V. APPLICANT SIGNATURE

Section 23a of the state construction code act of 1972, 1972 PA 230, MCL 125, 1523A, prohibits a person from conspiring to circumvent the

licensing requirements of this state relating to persons who are to perform work on a residential building or a residential structure. Violators of
section 23a are subjected to civil fines. 

Signature of licensee or homeowner (Homeowner . ture indicates compliance with Section VI Homeowner Affidavit) Date

Revised 312712012

COMPLETE APPLICATION ON BACK SIDE

D M (K 1-9 U WM
MAR 18 2pq

CITY Oi: 91RMINGHAM

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

7



VI. HOMEOWNER AFFIDAVIT
r

I hereby certify the electrical work described on this permit application shall be installed by myself In my own home in which I am living or about
to occupy. All work shall be installed in accordance with the State Electrical Code and shall not be enclosed, covered up, or put into operation

until it has been inspected and approved by the Electrical Inspector. I will cooperate with the Electrical Inspector and assume the responsibility to

arrange for necessary Inspections. 

VII. FEE CHART

Enter the number of items being installed, multiply by the unit fee for total price. 

4

FFee
Items

Total

1. Base Fee ( non - refundable) 50. 00 1 50. 00

2. Service: Up to 200 Amps. 35. 00

3. 201 Amp. thru 400 Amps 50.00

4 Over 401 Amps 100. 00

5. Temp. Service to 200 Amps 40. 00

6. AC interrupt Service 20.00

7. 1st 25 Lights/ Switch / Receptacles 20. 00

8. Each Add. set of 20 15. 00

9. Each Residential AC 35. 00

10. Furnace - Unit Heater 20. 00

11. Appliances / Disposals / dishwasher 10.00

12. Power Outlets ( ranges, dryers, etc.) 20. 00

13. Signs: Sidewalk Inspection Required 50. 00

14. Each Addn. Sign / Neon ea. 25 ft 20. 00

15. Pools / Hot Tubs /Spas 50.00

16. Feeders -Buss Ducts, etc - per 50* 25. 00

17. Res. Smoke detectors up to 8 units, 
120 volts

20. 00

18. Low Voltage Smoke Alarm with

Panel

50. 00

TOTAL FEES4

An administrative fee equal to the permit fee may be charged in addition to the permit fee when work is started and / or completed without first
obtaining the permit. 

Revised 312712012

Please make check payable to " City of Birmingham" 

COMMERCIAL FIRE ALARMS REQUIRE 48 - HOUR NOTICE* 

Please call the Electrical Inspector to " schedule: ( 248) 530 - 1858

j

J

s' 

Fee

Items

Total

19. Residential Smoke Alarm Less Than

50 Volts with Panel

50.00

20. Each Sub Panel ( 30 -200 Amps) 35. 00

21. Sub Panel Over 200 Amps 50.00

22. Motors: 1/ 4 HP to 10 HP each 25. 00

23. Over 10 HP to 30 HP each 40.00

24. Over 30 HP 60.00

25. Fire Alarm Panel 30. 00

26. Each Alarm Device 10. 00

27. First Circuit 15. 00

28. Each Additional Circuit 8.00

29. Energy Retrofit - Temp- Control 45. 00

30. Additional / Special / Safety Insp. 35. 00

31. Commercial HVAC 5 tons or less 50. 00

32. Commercial HVAC over 5 tons 75.00

33. Safety Inspection / Low Voltage 35.00

34. Reinspection Fee 50.00

Registration Fee 25. 00

TOTAL FEES

An administrative fee equal to the permit fee may be charged in addition to the permit fee when work is started and / or completed without first
obtaining the permit. 

Revised 312712012

Please make check payable to " City of Birmingham" 

COMMERCIAL FIRE ALARMS REQUIRE 48 - HOUR NOTICE* 

Please call the Electrical Inspector to " schedule: ( 248) 530 - 1858

j

J

s' 



Demo,- Miscellaneous Structure Permit If JDMS13- 0003

Property Information

08- 19 -25- 376 -097 333 N OLD WOODWARD AVE Subdivision: 

Birmingham MI, 48009 Lot: Block: 

Name Information

Owner: CITY OF BIRMINGHAM Phone: 

Occupant: Phone: 

Applicant: Phone: 

Architect: Phone: 

Project Information

Date Started: 06/ 06/ 2013 Date Finished: 06/ 07/ 2013 Status: Finished

Description: 

Demo - Miscellaneous Structure

Final Electrical Inspection I Edward Rosett

Status: Completed Result: Approved

Scheduled: 06/ 07/ 2013 12: 00 AM Completed: 06/ 07/ 2013 12: 00 AM

Comments: 

Scheduling Comment CLOSE OUT PERMIT FOR DEMOLITION OF PARKING STRUCTURE BOOTH

Final Inspection I Ken Cooper

Status: Completed Result: Approved

Scheduled: 06/ 07/ 2013 12: 00 AM Completed: 06/ 07/ 2013 12: 00 AM

Comments: 

Scheduling Comment CLOSE OUT PERMIT FOR DEMOLITION OF PARKING STRUCTURE BOOTH. 

Building Inspection I Ken Cooper

Status: Completed Result: Approved

Scheduled: 04/ 15/ 2013 12: 00 AM Completed: 04/ 15/ 2013 12: 00 AM

Final Inspection ( Ken Cooper

Status: Completed Result: Approved

Scheduled: 04/ 15/ 2013 12: 00 AM Completed: 04/ 15/ 2013 12: 00 AM



LEE & ASSOCIATES CO INC Electrical

 Inspection Requests:  www.accessmygov.com

FINALED

JACB18-0001

TROY MI 48098
6444 E MALVERN DR

LEE & ASSOCIATES CO INC 

S-2

2A

Item TotalFee BasisWork TypePermit Item

Stipulations:

PARKING GARGE CIRCUITS FOR ELEVATOR - FEE CITY WORKWork Description:

Fax:  
Special District: Phone:  

Zoning District: BIRMINGHAM MI  48009-3368

Fax: (248) 494 4559

08-19-25-376-097 151 MARTIN ST

Phone:  (248) 884 5800

0 333 N OLD WOODWARD AVE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

CONTRACTOROWNERLOCATION

Expires:

Issued:

PE18-0183
Permit Number:  

(248) 530-1850
Birmingham, MI 48012-3001

151 Martin Street

Community Development Department

Finaled:

Type

Applied:

Primary Constructions Type:

Primary Use Group:

Primary Zoning District:

Project:

Status:

Applicant:

03/15/2018

03/15/2018

09/15/2018

03/19/2018

JACB18-0001

6444 E MALVERN DR

TROY MI 48098

$0.00First Circuit Electrical Permits 1.00
$0.00Each Additional Circuit Electrical Permits 2.00

Fee Total:

Date:Issued By:

0.00 

0.00 

Balance Due:

Amount Paid:

0.00 

09/13/2018



Date Submitted 12—,
421' // 

Date Approved

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

HISTORIC DISTRICT AND DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION

SIGN REVIEW PETITION

THE SIGN APPLICATION IS TO BE FILLED OUT COMPLETELY

AND ACCOMPANIED WITH THE FOLLOWING: 

1. A Review Fee of $ 150. 0 0. 
2. Samples or swatches of all materials affecting exterior appearances to be used ( ALL MATERIALS

MUST BE LABELED). 
3. Photographs of site and existing buildings. 
4. Nine ( 9) copies of the proposed sign design plan to the Community Development Department in the

Municipal Building. 
5. THE SIGN DESIGN PLAN MUST BE DRAWN TO SCALE ON THE BUILDING ELEVATION WITH

ALL DIMENSIONS AND MATERIALS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. IF THERE IS MORE THAN ONE
PAGE PER EACH SET OF PLANS ALL PLANS MUST BE STAPLED TOGETHER. ALL PLANS
MUST BE FOLDED. 

6. A color plan /rendering mounted on foam board is required at time of submitting materials to
Community Development Department. 

7. The fees for design review, site plan review, historic review and special land use permits shall be
double the listed amounts in the event the proposed project is commenced prior to filing of an
application for review by the city. 

The Community Development Department will review the petition, assign a date for Historic District and
Design Review Commission review and notify the applicant. 

1. Owner of Property/ Building ( Note! Not business owner) 

Name 1 / 

Street Address city zip

Telephone Number

2. Builder

Fax: 

Name _ z9 * rl / f' 

Street Address City zip.. 

Telephone Number ZW 3 e _ aol5o Fax: 2 L



14. MATERIALS - Metal _ A«/%% %// /V Wood

Glass

15. SIGN( S) READ( S) 

16. COLORS

No. of Display Faces

Plastic / z /KdG/ S

17. ILLUMINATION
No

A. Type /color __ 

B. Wattage /Output T dzf"F' UnIly

18. TOTAL NO. OF SQ. FEET OF SAME TYPE OF SIGN EXISTING ON PROPERTY. 
No, Ft. 14b,", 

19. HISTORIC DESIGNATION

I have read the Sign Review Ordinance and the Procedures for Design Review and have complied with all
requested information. I will be in attendance at the meeting when this item will be discussed. 

Signature of

Property Owner

Print Name

The owner of the property must sign the application, no exceptions. 

Signature of

Architect/ Designer

Print Name

Signature of // Up

Applicant 4W1 // 4
Print Name

3



3. Applicant (if other than above) 

Name

Street Address: 
City Zip

Telephone Number
Fax: 

4. If property is leased, length of lease

5. Property is zoned- 

6. Property is located at ,/,/, 3 // & L/9

A p(

insert legal description if there is no street address) 

7. Use of building

8. Street Frontage: Width _ AjD ' length height of building. 

9. Detailed description of all work to be done ( listing of materials and colors specifically). 
49 ZiLMV

2. / 17Dl- ' / 71(/ rs ail/ 

3. ', l/J° / Ci cDrl/ri/ cTi'or 

4. 

5. 

10. Location of All Signs //' 5. CD/f %zX

11. TYPE - Ground

Wall

Marquee

Projecting

IF A WALL SIGN, INDICATE WALL TO BE USED

Front X Rear Side

Roof

12. SIZE - , e , X_ /. =.. 9 SQUARE FEET. 

13. HEIGHT OF LETTERING - 

Vi



AGENDA

BIRMINGHAM HISTORIC DISTRICT AND DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION
MUNICIPAL BUILDING — COMMISSION ROOM — 151 MARTIN STREET

WEDNESDAY —APRIL 5, 2000

7. 30 PM * * * * * * * * * * * * * ** 

Roll Call

Postponed Agenda Items: 

33495 Woodward — "Birmingham Imports / Image Soft" 

Historic Review: 

148 Pierce — Telephone Exchange Building Landmark — "Gibbs Planning Group" 

4. Design Review: 

111 Henrietta — " Brooklyn Pizza" 

Sign Review: 

13 -33 =N. Old Woodward= " North Old Woodward' Parking Structure

1603 E. 14 Mile— "Busy Body Home Fitness" 

2006 Cole— " Carnovale and Associates" 

6. Approval of the Minutes of March 15, 2000

7. Other Business: 

A. Downtown Birmingham 2016 Update: 

Newsrack Implementation Update — Status Report

B. City Commission — HDDRC Priority List
Residence Park Neighborhood — Status Report

C. Woodward Avenue Median Improvement Project— Status Report

D. Historic Preservation Awards Committee Report

E. Sign Design Criteria / Standards —Report

F. Historic Marker Program — Status Report

G. Next HDDRC Agenda

Adjournment

Notice: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this
meeting should contact the City Clerk' s Office at (248) 644 -1800, ext. 282 (voice) or (248) 644- 
5115 ( TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance. 

PETITIONERS MUST BE PRESENT OR HAVE A REPRESENTATIVE WHO CAN ACT ON
HIS /HER BEHALF, AT THE MEETING. 



333 N. Old Woodward

MEMORANDUM

Date: March 29, 2000

To: HDDRC Commission Members

From: 

C. James Sabo, City Planner

Approved: 

Patricia McCullough, Communi evelopment Director

RE: Sign Review — 333 N. Old Woodward — " North Old Woodward Parking
Structure" 

Zoning PP, Public Property

Existing Use Parking Structure

Proposal

The applicant proposes the installation of a new vertically oriented wall sign. There is
currently a parking entrance sign on the structure on the north elevation. The existing
Green P" sign will be removed from the building. 

Note: This proposal was postponed at the February 2 meeting to allow the petitioner an

opportunity to address concerns raised at the meeting. 

Signage

The total linear building frontage is 195 feet permitting 195 square feet of sign area. The
proposed projecting sign measures 21" x 143" or 21 square feet in area per side for a total
of 42 square feet of sign area, which conforms to the provisions of the sign ordinance for
public property districts with respect to vertically oriented wall signs. In accordance with
Section 86 -28( 5) of the revised sign ordinance, the HDDRC may allow a vertically
oriented wall sign if the sign otherwise meets the provisions of the wall sign chapter. 

The signage will consist of two internally illuminated 21" wide painted aluminum cabinet
signs with 12 inches between the sign faces. The sign construction will consist of "Ivory" 
Plexiglas, " White" lexan acrylic, and " Gold" vinyl sign faces. A majority of both sign
faces will be painted black spruce ( PMS 5605). The Planning and Engineering Divisions
have provided the sign manufacturer with the specifications for Black Spruce. The sign
will be bolt mounted to the building fagade. The sign reads " P -logo Parking, Full, First 2
Hours free." The wording " full" can be illuminated for informational purposes. The " full" 

CH SRV1 \ VOL1 \ USERS \ CD ENG\ Shared \ CDD\ HDDRC\ 333noldww. sgn. doc



333 N. Old Woodward

area of the sign consists of clear red neon letters behind a clear Plexiglas face insert with
a diffusing day /night vinyl film. This will allow the word " full' to appear invisible. 
Additionally, the lettering on the sign was changed to " First" 2 Hours instead of "Is"' and

the sign boxes have been reconnected to reduce the opportunity for bird nesting. 

Illumination

The lighting proposed for the sign is a combination of internal neon and internal
florescent, which conforms to the provisions ofthe sign ordinancefor commercial and
office districts. 

Recommendation

Generally, the proposed signage is in keeping with surrounding architecture and the
overall character of the North Old Woodward commercial district. The proposed sign
provides better directional visibility for patrons wishing to use the parking structure. 
However, there should be an overall design plan for the City parking decks. The HDDRC
has recommended that the petitioner develop a sign plan for city parking decks and would
allow the proposed sign as a one time sign. The Planning Division continues to
recommend that the HDDRC request a comprehensive parking structure sign plan for city
decks to be part of a signage wayfinding program. 

When reviewing the project against the standards of Section 86 -3 of the City of
Birmingham Sign Ordinance, staff makes the following observations: 

1. The appearance color and texture of the sign materials being used will likely
preserve and not adversely affect property values in the immediate neighborhood. 
The sign will likely reduce confusion regarding the location of the entrance to the
structure. 

2. The appearance of the building exterior with the signage will not detract from the
general harmony and compatibility of existing buildings in the immediate
neighborhood. The sign is well suited for the neighborhood and the petitioner has
complied with the recommendationfor more liberal use ofBlack Spruce Green as
opposed to striping. 

The building exterior with the signage is not offensive or otherwise garish in
appearance. 

The Planning Division recommends that the Commission consider a motion to approve
the sign review application for " N. Old Woodward Parking Structure" 333 N. Old
Woodward subject to the following conditions: 

1. The applicant should address the overall parking structure sign designs plans. 

2. The sign would be approved as a one -time only sign. 

2

CH SRV1 \VOL1 \USERS \CD ENG\ Shared \CDD\HDDRC\ 333noldww. sgn. doc



Historic District and Design Review Commission Proceedings

February 2, 2000
Page 2

02 -17 -00

ISTORIC REVIEW

21". Old Woodward

Husto " uilding Landmark - " McInerney and Remick Antiques" 

The applican roposes the installation of a new name letter sign. a existing " Cristions" name
letter sign will b removed from the building. The signage will consis of two letter sizes, 13. 56
sq. ft. of sign area. he main copy is 9 -in. black compressed foam let en and reads, 

McInerney and Rem' k." The secondary copy lettering is 2 1/ 4 in. burp compressed foam

lettering and reads, " An ' ues - Accessories." 

Mr. Sabo indicated that manu \

sounding

pecifications would be needed for the bur undy color. 

The sign is in keeping with th architecture and character of the Histori Central

Business District. He noted tionmight wish to request that building facade epairs be
completed prior to a motion f

scussion brought out that the " Cristions" n could be administratively approved once it is' 
mo ed to the store just to the south. The com ssion discussed the proposed sign with Ms. 

Heidi clnerney, the business owner. Mr. Jickli observed that the overall dimensions of the

sign are eeded on the drawing. Chairman McDan 1 added it is helpful as part of the
presentati to know how the sign is mounted. 

Motion by Mr. ickling
Supported by Ms. owbottom to approve the sign. Specificat ns on the small lettering are

needed and the faca is to be repaired after the " Cristions" sign omes down and before the new
sign is affixed. 

Motion carried 7 -0. 

02 -18 -00

SIGN REVIEW

333 N. Old Woodward - " North Old Woodward Parking Structure" 

The applicant, Advisory Parking Committee ( " APC "), proposes the installation of a new

vertically oriented wall sign. There is currently a parking entrance sign on the structure on the
north elevation. The existing green " P" sign will be removed from the building. 

The signage will consist of two internally illuminated painted aluminum cabinet signs with
42 sq. ft. of sign area. The sign construction will consist of ivory Plexiglas, white lexan acrylic, 



Historic District and Design Review Commission Proceedings

February 2, 2000
Page 3

and gold vinyl sign faces. Color specifications are needed. The sign will also feature black and
black spruce accent striping. The sign reads " P -logo Parking, Full, Is` two hours free." The word

full" can be illuminated for informational purposes. Specifications for the lighting are also
needed. 

Mr. Sabo described the sign as generally in keeping with surrounding architecture and overall
character of the North Old Woodward commercial district. Parking decks within the City are
zoned PP, Public Property. He recommended that as the City moves forward with the
Wayfinding project, the HDDRC might wish to suggest that an overall sign design plan be
developed for the City parking decks. 

Mr. Jickling commented the bottom cabinet might end up being a place for birds to build their
nests. 

Mr. O' Meara explained the purpose of the individual signage was to have the ability to remove
the second sign in the future if necessary, and also to add architectural interest. The APC is
concerned that when the Palladium is constructed, additional parking may be needed. Their
intent was to add signage in order to pull in people to that structure. At this point the committee
has not talked about whether the signage should be extended to other buildings. 

Mr. von Staden initiated discussion to the effect that a Wayfinding policy needs to be set for all
of the parking structures. He feels the sign that this commission approves should be a prototype
for the other structures. Additionally, Mr. von Staden described the safety issue that exists when
cars are exiting the North Woodward structure. Frequently drivers do not look to the south to
check for pedestrians. Mr. Jickling thought the deck number should be identified on the sign and
also noted that generally, parking signs are green. Ms. Stone felt the sign should be simplified, 
as it is difficult to read. The other commissioners echoed that thought. Ms. Rowbottom
suggested removing the word " first" from " 2 hours free." Mr. Horton thought " Park" would be

simpler than " Parking." 

Mr. Dave Hanna, Planet Neon Sign Systems ofNovi, explained he needs to design the sign so
that " full" is not visible unless it is turned on. 

Mr. Stuart Laidlaw spoke from the audience to clarify that exposed neon would not be allowed. 
Also, he quoted JJ & R design specifications from 1988 for the parking structures. He
recommended that the City be encouraged to move forward with its Wayfinding signage system. 

Mr. Keith Vosburg, representative from the APC, clarified this signage is not meant as an overall
prototype for all of the decks. It was the consensus of the discussion that followed that there are
a number of design issues that have been identified tonight that need to be considered. If those
issues are satisfactorily addressed and the sign is brought back for re- submission, the



Historic District and Design Review Commission Proceedings

February 2, 2000
Page 4

commission would approve it as a one -time sign. Mr. Vosburg agreed to take back to his board
all of the comments that were made this evening and then work on modifying the design. 

Motion by Mr. Jickling
Supported by Ms. Rowbottom to table this item to a future meeting. 

Motion carried 6 -1. 

02 -19 -00

APPROVAL OF MINUT FROM THE REGULAR MEETI OF JANUARY 5, 2000

Mr. McKeon said on page 1, Mr. Gary Pirelli should be identified as to s role. Further down, 

Move it back to the right" is t specific. 

Additionally on page 1, Chairman McXaniel inserted " design" after " facade "\ n the last line. 

Mr. McKeon deleted the second " asked" i%the first line on page 2. 

On page 3, last paragraph, third line from the ttom, Chairman McDaniel inserted hick" in

front of " cannot." He added that the full parag hat the bottom of page 5 doesn' t m e sense

and asked staff to fix it. On page 10, " Harvest Br d Co." should be " South Adams Co mons." 

e asked that this item be put on a future agenda al g with color samples. Mr. McKeon
ex ained the colors are not being used in a manner th he recalls the board approved. 

Motio by Ms. Stone
Support by Mr. von Staden to approve the Minutes of J ary 5, 2000 as amended. 

Motion cam d 7 -0. 

02 -20 -00

APPROVAL OF UTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETIN OF JANUARY 19, 2000

Mr. Jickling initiated di ussion about the first motion on page 3. Chai McDaniel was quite

sure the approval was subs ct to Board of Zoning Appeals approval. The c nsensus was that the
wording of the motion shou be changed. 

Mr. McKeon noted staff should Xt back to the commission as to his motion on %
lat

to report

whether the signage on the buildin is within the allowable square footage. The ntence in

the paragraph beginning " The petiti er is proposing" should read, " In accordah the Sign



4

AGENDA
BIRMINGHAM HISTORIC DISTRICT AND DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION

MUNICIPAL BUILDING — COMMISSION ROOM — 151 MARTIN STREET

WEDNESDAY — FEBRUARY 2, 2000

1. Roll Call

2. Historic Review: 

215 N. Old Woodward— Huston Building Landmark — "McInerney and Remick Antiques" 

3. Sign Review: 

333'.N. Old Woodward, " North Old Woodward Parking Structure" 

4. Approval of the Minutes of January 5, 2000 and January 19, 2000

5. Other Business: 

A. Downtown Birmingham 2016 Update: 

Civic Center Improvement Project – Status Report

Newsrack Implementation Update ( 2. 10. 00 meeting) 

B. City Commission — Long Range Planning Session — January 22, 2000 — Report

C. Woodward Avenue Median Improvement Project — Status Report

D. Historic Designation Process Update / 608 Vinewood

E. March Workshop Planning— Residence Park Neighborhood, Historic District

Discussions

F. 180 N. Old Woodward " Shangri - La" Fagade Repair

G. Next HDDRC Agenda

6. Adjournment

Notice: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this
meeting should contact the City Clerk' s Office at (248) 644 -1800, ext. 282 (voice) or (248) 644= 
5115 ( TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance. 

PETITIONERS MUST BE PRESENT OR HAVE A REPRESENTATIVE, WHO CAN ACT ON

HISIBER BEHALF, AT THE MEETING. 



333 N. Old Woodward

MEMORANDUM

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Approved: 

RE: 

December 29, 1999

Commission Members

C. Jar A Sabo, City Planner

Patricia McCullough, 

L ' 

ty Development Director

Sign Review — 333 N. Old Woodward — " North Old Woodward Parking
Structure" 

Zoning PP, Public Property

Existing Use Parking Structure

Proposal

The applicant proposes the installation of a new vertically oriented wall sign. There is
currently a parking entrance sign on the structure on the north elevation. The existing

Green P" sign will be removed from the building. 

Signage

The total linear building frontage is 195 feet permitting 195 square feet of sign area. The
proposed projecting sign measures 21" x 144" or 21 square feet in area per side for a total
of 42 square feet of sign area, which conforms to the provisions of the sign ordinancefor
public property districts with respect to vertically oriented wall signs. In accordance with
Section 86 -28( 5) of the revised sign ordinance, the HDDRC may allow a vertically
oriented wall sign if the sign otherwise meets the provisions of the wall sign chapter. 

The signage will consist of two internally illuminated 21" painted aluminum cabinet
signs with 12 inches between the sign faces. The sign construction will consist of "Ivory" 
Plexiglas, " White" lexan acrylic, and " Gold" vinyl sign faces. The applicant must provide

color specifications for the Ivoryy, White, and Gold colors used in the sign. The sign will
also feature black and black spruce accent striping for the body of the sign. The Planning
and Engineering Divisions have provided the sign manufacturer with the specifications
for Black Spruce. The sign will be bolt mounted to the building fagade. The sign reads

P -logo Parking, Full, 
1St

two hours free." The wording " full" can be illuminated for
informational purposes. 

H:\ Shared\ CDD\ HDDRC\ 333noldww. sgn. doc



333 N. Old Woodward

Illumination

The lighting proposed for the sign is internal florescent, which conforms to the provisions
of the sign ordinance for commercial and office districts. However, the applicant must
provide wattage specifications for the lighting. 

Recommendation

Generally, the proposed signage is in keeping with surrounding architecture and the
overall character of the North Old Woodward commercial district. The proposed sign

provides better directional visibility for patrons wishing to use the parking structure. 
However, there should be an overall design plan for the City parking decks. As the City
and the Planning Division move forward with the Wayfinding recommendations of the
2016 Report, the HDDRC may wish to suggest that a comprehensive parking structure
sign plan be developed. Additionally, the Commission may wish to clarify whether or not
the proposed sign is part of an overall sign design for city structures. 

When reviewing the project against the standards of Section 86 -3 of the City of
Birmingham Sign Ordinance, staff makes the following observations: 

The appearance color and texture of the sign materials being used will likely
preserve and not adversely affect property values in the immediate neighborhood. 
The sign will likely reduce confusion regarding the location of the entrance to the
structure. 

2. The appearance of the building exterior with the signage will not detract from the
general harmony and compatibility of existing buildings in the immediate
neighborhood. The sign is well suitedfor the neighborhood. The Commission may
wish to request a more liberal use ofBlack Spruce Green as opposed to striping. 

3. The building exterior with the signage is not offensive or otherwise garish in
appearance. 

The Planning Division recommends that the Commission consider a motion to approve
the sign review application for "N. Old Woodward Parking Structure" 333 N. Old
Woodward subject to the following conditions: 

The applicant is required to provide color specifications for the sign materials. 

2. The applicant is required to provide wattage specifications for the lighting. 

The applicant should address the parking structure sign design issue. 

N

CH SRV1\ VOLI \ USERS \ CD ENG\ Shared \ CDD \ HDDRC\ 333noldww. sgn. doc



Historic District and Design Review Commission
Minutes of April 5, 2000

Page 6 of 10

Motion by Ms Stone
Supported by Mr. Jickling to approve as submitted for 333 N. Old Woodward. 

Motion carried 5 -0. 

Ms. Stone thanked Mr. O' Meara for his involvement with the lighted pedestrian
crosswalk at N. Old Woodward, and she heard there are some great designs for the north
part ofN. Old Woodward. 

REVIEW

04 -2 & 00

Mile – Busy Body Home Fitness

Mr. Sabo exp ed the applicant proposes the installation of a new name lettprwall sign
for the eastern m t tenant space fronting on 14 Mile Road. The total lin building

frontage is 55. 4 feet ermittmg 55. 4 square feet of sign area; 46.75 a feet is

proposed in sign area. sign band for the building has been de as between the top
of the windows and the a e. 

The signage will consist of tw ternally illuminated c nnel letters, 16 inch and 12

inch. We don' t have specificatio for the red viny • Allied Signs can provide that. 
Illumination is 6500 white

in

wit a 30MA tr former. The sign will read " Busy

Body ( logo) Home Fitness ". 

The recommendation is still for the o er o e property to develop a general sign
design plan. This was discussed at previous eting. 

The recommendation is a mo on to approve with the ndition that the applicant

provides color specificati for the sign materials, and dressing the issue of a sign
design plan. 

anniel ed Mr. Sabo what good a sign design plan wou be in this case. Mr. 

nd if there is sign design plan in place, there could be el letter signs

mg. Mr. von Staden said given some of the problems expen ced in .terms

ses changing and facade repairs, a standard may be set for how t ' are

a building. It could be in such a way so as not to cause much damag o the

is may be something the Planning Board needs to deal with; by the time
HDDRC, it' s too late. The Planning Board should be looking for some k

of sign area that can be re- signed over and over again and can be repaired and painted — 

set up an easily repairable sign band area. 



Historic District and Design Review Commission Proceedings
February 2, 2000
Page 2

02 -17 -00

REVIEW

215 N. Old VVQodwara
Huston Buildin, andmark - " McInerney and Remick Antiques" 

The applicant proposes a installation of a new name letter sign. The existing " Cristions" name
letter sign will be removed m the building. The signage will consist of two letter sizes, 13. 5
sq. ft. of sign area. The main c is 9 -in. black compressed foam lettering and reads, 

McInerney and Remick." The sec ary copy lettering is 2 1/ 4 in. burgundy compre d foam

lettering and reads, "
Antiques - Accesso ' s." 

Mr. Sabo indicated that
manufacturer' s specific a ' s wouldd beaneed rof the Historic

burgundy
Central

color. 

The sign is in keeping with the surrounding
arclutec an

Business District. He noted the
commission might wish est that building facade repairs be

completed prior to a motion for approval. 

Discussion brought out that the " Cristions" 
moved to the store just to the south. The
McInerney, the business owner. Mr. J' ii

needed on the drawing. Chairman cDani

know how the sign is mounted

could be
administrXprosed

ed once it is- 

umssion discussedthnwith Ms. Heidi
observed that the ov

s of the sign are

added it is helpful as
sentation to

Motion by Mr. Jickling
Supported by Ms. bottom to approve the sign. 

Specifications the small

and before the

needed and the f ade is to be repaired after the Cn sign

sign is affixe

7 -0. 

02 -1 & 00

SIGN REVIEW

333 N. Old Woodward - " North Old Woodward Parking Structure" 

proposes the installation of a new vertically
The applicant, Advisory Parking

Committee ( "  " ana sign on the structure on the north
oriented wall sign. There is currently a parking

gn

elevation. The existing green " P" sign will be removed from the building. 



Historic District and Design Review Commission Proceedings
February 2, 2000
Page 3

The signage will consist of two internally illuminated painted aluminum cabinet signs with
42 sq. ft. of sign area. The sign construction will consist of ivory Plexiglas, white lexan acrylic, 
and gold vinyl sign faces. Color specifications are needed. The sign will also feature black and
black spruce accent striping. The sign reads " P -logo Parking, Full, 1' two hours free." The word

full" can be illuminated for informational purposes. Specifications for the lighting are also
needed. 

Mr. Sabo described the sign as generally in keeping with surrounding architecture and overall
character of the North Old Woodward commercial district. Parking decks within the City are
zoned PP, Public Property. He recommended that as the City moves forward with the
Wayfinding project, the HDDRC might wish to suggest that an overall sign design plan be
developed for the City parking decks. 

Mr. Jickling commented the bottom cabinet might end up being a place for birds to build their
nests. 

Mr. O' Meara explained the purpose of the individual signage was to have the ability to remove
the second sign in the future if necessary, and also to add architectural interest. The APC is
concerned that when the Palladium is constructed, additional parking may be needed. Their intent
was to add signage in order to pull in people to that structure. At this point the committee has
not talked about whether the signage should be extended to other buildings. 

Mr. von Staden initiated discussion to the effect that a Wayfinding policy needs to be set for all of
the parking structures. He feels the sign that this commission approves should be a prototype for
the other structures. Additionally, Mr. von Staden described the safety issue that exists when cars
are exiting the North Woodward structure. Frequently drivers do not look to the south to check
for pedestrians. Mr. Jickling thought the deck number should be identified on the sign and also
noted that generally, parking signs are green. Ms. Stone felt the sign should be simplified, as it is
difficult to read. The other commissioners echoed that thought. Ms. Rowbottom suggested
removing the word " first" from " 2 hours free." Mr. Horton thought " Park" would be simpler than

Parking." 

Mr. Dave Hanna, Planet Neon Sign Systems ofNovi, explained he needs to design the sign so
that " full" is not visible unless it is turned on. 

Mr. Stuart Laidlaw spoke from the audience to clarify that exposed neon would not be allowed. 
Also, he quoted JJ & R design specifications from 1988 for the parking structures. He
recommended that the City be encouraged to move forward with its Wayfinding signage system. 

Mr. Keith Vosburg, representative from the APC, clarified this signage is not meant as an overall

N



Historic District and Design Review Commission Proceedings

February 2, 2000
Page 4

prototype for all of the decks. It was the consensus of the discussion that followed that there are
a number of design issues that have been identified tonight that need to be considered. If those
issues are satisfactorily addressed and the sign is brought back for re- submission, the commission
would approve it as a one -time sign. Mr. Vosburg agreed to take back to his board all of the
comments that were made this evening and then work on modifying the design. 

Motion by Mr. Jickling
Supported by Ms. Rowbottom to table this item to a future meeting. 

Motion carried 6 -1. 

02 -19 -00

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY'', 2000

Mr. McKeon s ' d on page 1, Mr. Gary Pirelli should be identified as to his role. F er down, 

Move it back the right" is not specific. 

Additionally on page 1, airman McDaniel inserted " design" after " fac e" in the last line. 

Mr. McKeon deleted the seccgd " asked" in the first line on page

On page 3, last paragraph, third li from the bottom, Ch ' an McDaniel inserted " which" in

front of " cannot." He added that th full paragraph at a bottom of page 5 doesn' t make sense

and asked staff to fix it. On page 10, ` arvest Bre

ongCgwith ." 

should be " South Adams Commons." 

He asked that this item be put on a future enda color samples. Mr. McKeon

explained the colors are not being used in a Mer that he recalls the board approved. 

Motion by Ms. Stone
Supported by Mr. von Staden to appr a the Minu s of January 5, 2000 as amended. 

Motion carried 7 -0. 

02 -20 -00

APPROVAL OF MIXUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEE G OF JANUARY 19, 2000

Mr. Jickling initiated discussion about the first motion on page 3. Chai an McDaniel was quite

sure the approval was subject to Board of Zoning Appeals approval. The nsensus was that the

EJ wording of the motion should be changed. 



Front View 21 _ Side View
12" 

TW7

ti

I

0

V

O
yv

00
O  

o0

O

Elevation at 318" = P- - 0" Scale

LL., 

Qty: 1
21 SgFt Total

314" = P- 0" Scale

2 Illuminated Projecting DIF
Wall Signs with Lexan Faces

Opaque Face Backgrounds and Transluscent

White Letters

FULL' Area ofParkinglFull Sign: 
Illuminated Capsule with

Independent On/ OffSwitch

Colors TBD

Nal' lllon PLANET

11 SOSN N E O N

46593 GRAND RIVER NO I, MI 48374

248 348 . 8150 FAX 240. 348, 4917
I

THIS SESIGC 6 EPSIUE RC IS SUN TILO AS OUR PAOPIISAL
6 TEIL; UP P =. GI fiSa ; XC i,';, V[ L4 1MIR ACI IfO
6 PROVED 0y NUN[. ® COPOA NT 1999

ORAWIAO# 

11906-1C
AAAWOAO / DATE DFY

2120M
EILEOAAIE JOA OflOIE / LOCATIOA

NrP AKIr J M OF BINWHAM
0111. CUW00DMUIiO

DAVE HANNA BFNNC>WW



Front View

aw

i

Ivory Lett

I

7N

Oo

N-- A

V\ 

O
W

White Letter, 

r 
V

O
w

O
00

ao
O

Qty: 1
21 SgFt Total

3/ 4" = P- 0" Scale

Illuminated Projecting DIF
Wall Sign with Routered Faces, 

Opaque Face Backgrounds with Transluscent

Ivory Letters

FULL' Area OfSign: 
Illuminated Cabinet with Routered Face, 

6500 White Neon Arrow and Clear Red

Neon 'FULL' ( 10mm) Letters Behind

Clear Plex Face Insert with 3M Diffuser

Day/Night Vinyl Film # 3635 -91 Applied
2nd Surface

Colors Noted on Drawing Details

I

Harmon PLANET

NEON

48663 GRAND RNER NOVI, MI 48374

A8. 998. 8760 FAX 248. SIB . 4317

iNS o c9 a foclAEG Is AmnG As Gua PAGSL

6 IS 1G AH0 UN PORNPAOPERPJ fXI1llSNfL4 A1111 ACCEPI$ I
6 APPAOV{ D Ay PUACHAS1. D CAP9AIGHT 1999

GAAWWG#  OAAWAA9 /( IAtE D
11906 - 1D 3Ci100 11001HE><O( Ib _. 

FlLEAAAIE j JAAWIAf / LGCATIGO

PARKING --- 1R1- CRY OF BIRMNGHAM
flFSAL — 33314. 01LDW000YVARD

i- Dt{ ve 1jAddPLI LmFt—m INGHAM, MI























































I ., / ', ' 1 1
fir. - 

1 r 1 :., , ,.. ; _.
M1

I, - :/' 1
f.. ,

11. 

II ! "'',
f r

r , >

t . - - 

r „ , : , 

11

3, f+ + 1 J;, 

E t
i:. ' 

I

ar .
d +:':. - :. t ..; a, i., ,. _,ax .. :.:.':., ., ,.. , , , . d ,+_. ....,.. _ 1 h w ,, s ., . 

21:. 1

r, ... _ -- . - -. .. a _ 

r _ ., .'_ .. 
lYc. .. >..... + V a, e:. al. d., dl ti., :, M'.., ....,, w,,, a....:.,; h ,. ,

w I

y -
dl,. . i.'1

I
11 ,

i. / o

l

d //

D ( G, 1
N ° ;_ • _:_ Q d. a , I r r , _ •_ __ yid - I r

1 _ p

Ir '/, ` `+ f _• - .•,• ._.. .,^ r _, , :;, ... _ .. _ :.:., __......,__ ..._
LLB.. +'_^__. ,: A °... ,. 1, r - ._._.__ 

f 3 t, .... ... ._ _. „.__..._ .. .._... r.. _ _. i) . - .. _ 

r

FL

1. 

11. I

i ., 1. , . 1. :. Pof, rJ/' rt+w+ 1
p i , :, A:,` 

i . 
a 1 ., V , .  r - I t• a i ' 

1' I t a !! , 1 i 1 A. A i /+,,r "" r•- r , tr I
t

d r { , 

r '

a. 9 { # 

1
C

M . b
I j' . 1 , i, 

rr i I . 
x ;, I, i I. I t I ' f I o i , 

I

1
I

1 1' ! ! I I i , If f P' 
1 r ! Et , r „. ;

I
I

rr^r r It 1 Y ; . } : ' r. 

J ., 1 { f i ( t } .
7r.\,;) i "t, /• I .. IV, „ s ; ! :

r ' tr'. + `
1 ,'.' rrI ° w , ,, 1 i r t ( 1 : 1 y 1Y f i j i . ; 

1 I I t 1 1 i r,: 1 i . r. .
d, IrRI. Y I1 . f w ! 3 1

V , 11 jy { 
I , , ^ fa /. rd ,.,,: , n n. I

p, :( d' 1 1 } 
3 , 

1 .- t_- i' ,'; , :_. I I - '..! 1 t :: t „ t" it

I

r

11 '

k f' I ! 1 I   , ,. Q Ij, + s t 1 $, 1 , , - •
J::. r„ li 1' R,,+ c•./ 1 -;'+ ;' 1 t -' • t s i , t ` s . 

1

jM 
j 9 i I  11, d' . , 

I
I 4/ ._ I 1 I 1 / IC

1r J7• . ra Cr' C' / - 1 Y7 1 t, • fi01r c: i.: r1, O' d . A A .. ' V . tl •' 
1'.... • i "I , f G 1r -t

1. ' 

N. I riy I ! t- 
1' P i 1 { 

r I - i -t : Aji '! r • 1 , f {/ ` ` 
t

I i' i ( 
i -, 

I , 

S 1 -' 1, ' u6 _ { t r, ,. , } . I a .... ••'......___ - / ... :: a '. 

Qw
1. 1 ri i

t

I , 

1 f , & 1 _, . I ., 

e,- 
I

1. 

i - :_ , f iI1 1. i
1 f , r'f - .,: 1 ,, I ,- . f1_ , _ _ _ ....... _ ...:... - _ _.: f ,. , 1r iit

I . 

r'!. ! it sl -

1
Q 1 r ` r. . i/ ' I

f ." -< I 1
11 . 

I - A L' f , __ L__ -` . 1 -. , . w 1 n . " ,: I• r 1i ,. ' , , \ r.: ' t0
Y - d t I. r! a . . r ._ , 

I
t _ - _...,.. _ _ 

I  
I .; l

I _ _. _ _ 

r.. _ _,, i

1. . I
I ;  

i1 

P " OVEO by Bl WAl ham ri! i StanI

Commission sub e, ( 
a , .. v

C . .• ; La a.,. 13 f`' 4 .',. , l , r• .Y , 4' 1ti • i ,, G(` 

i , °
au ,. '.:

r:.4o <k_  a • .:. , .. , :, ,,, 1 . -  i. 
n .   d 1 In4' G d na l., _ , , 

a - s . men 1 his ap 0
Y

a. l
imoplhs Yrnm "ttils °'date; vo3d' thereallc , ,; 

L,7 `, 
i   

4.`¢ , 1 . _ 

V  r / 
t Slar, atute

I

LD a

y" w ; 
u

Ir, a f, , 

t

r

ri. ,- ems , i .... - !. .;: I ;. ! ); /.. i "/a i r .: -. • I. 
r, 

w,: 3,,, : . ,.,,. a. j4+. ' t +N,t , a:' rrr 11 r L. 
11 _ _ h„ 

e7tf, Ctn - _ '-- r_- , - - -.-- -.-- _- - _,_-- .- _.__..»._ _.._ `
Y- '_._" l . 

iI , ", f•! r
r , rf

it -•- i "
a , .

C. -.. 
11 , ,, 

1, • . y. , , - _ T font.. 

is - 
1. 

1tw'y 171 ? i r, ll.. ••, r. r r... ,, i, rl •, r <tiIS/ r

a LL

J- 

1 , 
r: 

a '- • ( t
I . 

0' X• -x. ,- r c . I . 4 t- 4' A .* I,.1 -. , r

t, 

il

t r

t

3
t

a: rY - d:. 

I r . f
It" /- .`' 

i' t 4 d t, , 
m

C, , 
rI . , r, lr• 1 ! ? 

1

i * 1 3
w =.. 

t G • r._t a ., r  o U` s t . # +_ j
ra

i } 
11 I

It
I . ' 

11 , : , : ,
Mf

t i
a " : 

t _ ! , d.. jsS. 

h V Y .._. p ,' 1 , f. .. t . r- - t, -.. •_ - , .. 2 - _ _• _._...___ _ ` r ___. _.
G.. • / a• r:, n , 

e ld ru . t t [ _ _. 1 1.;... ___ _ _.. 
t' 

4- rI11 , 

Y. 
f

I'

ll
1 , i

61
f  St

I , 
I- _ __ _ _ _ ._.__.,_- - - - -_. _. - . _ 

r:' , -.. -.. 1. -' ' 7a. a: ; r ::,° + 14' . cL.....
aC}.•: rl is = tr "'_,. n, 

1 _ _ _ .. 

d • h
It it

I' ,;, : , . t, 
r /. - 

i 1
A `/ , 

I,, 

i3 .. - :- s , . "', a :, i•' 'rr dr, - i r
w/ 1`- .'• lrrl;:. 1 ' 

y' 

i !,' 1 1 / ffrrr /,hi
t

y •, 

I

1

r•.. *

I.. , _,_ _. _ .. _. ., .... 

r __ M, pr4. • Y
r rdt , f - F1 j , i <, al. _ i

I ! z , - 
r _ ,.__.. 

1 ;. t 1 }} 3 ;:. .. rt ..., 
Y; . ._' T TT-' 1 .! 

t- 
1, 

1

I

T.11
t ( i .. i _ l_ e... Krf , 

j ! 

i i

r' - 1 f
1 ): 

A: I , -' ; .. _ .... _., ._... ,.. - , I : ., „'' ( . -+ 9 i s r, ^ Y • e-' " - 
ns•. t , ` . ,

FY I I • , C ilfY.. T d
d / f!". w„ f+.v... . lrt• 1r.{ 

I
111.. x " 

j - 1

r7 _ auti =•` 

t

I/ 

3 _ 
L 

I S` +.•. r"ar. . ".- . = = 1C

r

i
Z x  r , 

1 - - 

t r' c v

r-;-
7 -;---=- --.::-- - s , _ -,__,- -- ,- -- ___._

I _ _ __ _ __ .__.._.__... 

f
11

F __,._ -. r.  

i

d,; t .._ 3 , . , , 1 ( l.. 1 1 3 I I ' - / O ` r, I , ,
r/. 

r

f I ;T. fr• 1i '. - - 
C

tt

f/ 
cW - , '; 

I r ,. 1 t , t i. ( i i.. /' .,:_...:- .. f. I... ., , __ ""` 
1. ,.•` / ?+ 4

4 1 /

y

tC', - 7./ d :. 
1 _ - _ _. ,_, „_ - .. _..._ __.,. - -. ai,, .. r,;.. 1 1 .,/

nt - i„ 1 ! i , .. •- - _ 
I

I I 1 1 i - I I - r I, ` . ). 1 f `•, '. • 1 +' ..: 4 -, 

r_'`

v- ..,, ..'

rte.- 
o,.•.: r,..:;,.':. 

F-

I ' r
11

I

i II I' 1 » :_ i . k:. i 1. 1 . z . I .- ._, .: : i i.. I { ! r ! .
rs a. r _,, . 

11 - , _ t

a

i I
r, r , f ' -. 

t

I
I i I

P- 
I - p ,. ! / 

j,. rf # 
r

1 t, » .. . 1. _ 
t` 

t-_._ -__ _ .. .... ,.. - - -.., _.. 

1 .
4  !, . 

I I . 

I . . I [- ..
1- 1. 1- 1 '

r-, , , - - . -

1 1 -

7 - --
1 - -----------

l---. 1- / 

r•.,, ,
I. ;- , , : - - -- -.. -- _- . - -. I I tl LI„ t,. 1f

1i I I -„ _ _ _ I. f . a / 4-.- 
M ..__,_ ' - ,_. _, -- _. 

I. „_ -. -.- _.,,_._•__, -- ----- - --,_ --..., .- _ , -- t i. 1:...  .

e / r.•,' 

1 ..,- . - T t 1
Ln

r• , 

I« aw

r

I' 

r ._ 

1

r v . 
I , ' - - . I

r',.,. I ,mro, ...'.: 
f.. .,, I ! I " - 

i -, ?,', ! ..

h r.. ,

e+ .• , , __.. 
rrr., o rn .

1 r t -, .•,. l / 4- 7 , r 7.- ., - - -- --- Ii _--' 1r. t: t. it : Y r ! 

r-.:,_ , i ___ -.. :;, a _ i. =
r ,; ors a, r,!' il.,l

rte' f M r ti ' L .:.... ai .;+ rr.an' ,. ,- -'„ 
a , , ,, , « , . ,, . '

i2
l• 1''. , . . I

d , A r" ,, r
r, ;. '•' Y`./ 1' j, ---` _, . ta. f .", I ; r • IrC r'..,, ', 1 1 I, 

l

I+, I.. 1, .,.,..• . i . ` u ' d

1 _,.- ! 
it f

a. ! -. - 

µ

t, Of
r Y4, ) /rrar ;' r,• /dd. d, / r, . "., J,:,, , » r; ` 1 . + V' t..... s

gi' 
g p. h n. 0

t, `.. »: /

areol;/., r . O

a %• '`'•: 

r . d.•. F. ,
tin +' nr-- • / ic•. -:-

11' 
r

w, - r;

r , r. I - t' . .-. a.. - 
Lj[ . fd• 

w.' +- 
Y . 1 r „- ..:-- 1 1 , rl ItI. , 1A.; :< .. Y /r44',

f i.•,',. 1 " -::>_
4.-{ - . :,- ,a-. a e++l,

i: i
I ,'

y• .. ".•.3. w- 
a_ - 1._^ "'

1 ! 
I f «lJ Yi..•,., a '^-.. ,,. 1:!.. `V V., ,_ _ .. 

1 ' I ,•. fix, _ ' . 1 I y 
nn,.) 

r //" 

r
r. - -. :

J - I.^ . - - 1. _ y._ ti.. -ra.. r..ir. a . C, ' 7l + r'' L:, . R..

t•, 

1- - • -: _. 
r -, ' ; . s, t•,, - 

r y-.. «. -' , jr,.:•+ `-'._.! G. re'., re,) r. r.;`. -, i "- . , , 

h + .. +' d

r y'
1.. .: , 

I 1 , l.'Y. dl[.. 77?.. ._. ff • â- j'
O..'"' ' .. - %

r1I -,.  . t 3.. - _ . _. .. 1 `F- J { `"` 
R

y rlr • 

f' t  » 
v % ) !

I ! .' I 1 e. t» 1 ^ rYl . h•

Y _ j, .. •, .,..,..._ ,_., ...` 4
r.'. ,,._Cf f r'. /11 ;`"f ll i .: f'. _ 

ti.' .... `. . 1, :.J .':" f ._.. L.  
jiji 4. r- r) i r. +' -• .:.,- ..e~.,. 1..., _,. j _:!_..._,. - _ l `"wi.;, 1. ) ". ,, <, 

a ,, ' , I ',' 1
I

r. _ --..
rr tt r

NN_: 

i 
I,.....,, y

1aYll' 
1 „ 

4 p I , d ,. ."''''`s• IU' f'reI t. 4 . i ,
r «- __ = / r •_

a , .,_ fn +.. r'  '.'..._ 
1

1 _ _ _ CIT

r __ 
f I ,, J• .. ' f, r , , . 11 _,' , x,_:, r.- „ „:,. .... ,. , nl

r: , , ,... .. . ,... , -1 , x._ -, a.. -, --. 1-

A.", . - -.. _ d ,' . , . , • ,.,1 ro, . I ' f rI n  r
1 - - -, . 

r, 1II . rrl T"C f /  r f

r
I

i 1 % l ra " ,,

1 /. 
I

11 ,+ . .

t

Fa 4 rr, tY.,nlr. f!

rf 4r /
r „- ., i lr .rr lrCn. v T.. ,',f ri„ J i, ;.,, ,rr l '• • : i ' 

aQt' 

il • r.• 

r, a f• r-• ,
I . . /^, 

f.+_ ». ..... ,,. - _., -.. _,- _.,.._.- +.,,., .. . '' !,
a ...._..---- ___,..,_,,,.,,,._ ,_•_____„_..,,. -,  -_.- -. , 

d
1 . _ __.  •., 

r

I , 
1

y Hr• .` ", !' /.*27 ,K7 + r. tla') 1 :'' 1, i''l rJi rr - At r, w +.. ,:. /., .,. .,
A I, "

p I ., -

r. f _. . . r_, 
1 . .,. .. ., ... t TIU' i1 f, , r .+, 

r _ _ _ _ 
1 ... ,! , • .,* /ti,. erM '" 110 f.,j 1. v " C_,  f':i, V I a" 4 % r•' hl , • 

r •, ,

ill- .. .. :• r -' .'
1 - rw ^_..

I .•..- ......'.
s,.__. :.

5 w,. r_,a.
w, «_.-.M.. rr,... - a-... r.rr a_.aw«. w. ---•, ww,,.,_.. « a

ti.. -. , r. «, --.- Y „ ,,:r -,
a , 

Y, /. . \ I, fr ' 4., V- , 
r _ -... •_ww.. ». rw. . a_. r .., T. 

w._. 

aI- , J l.' r. -. /• f I

4` a

t ,, .. : ) 
i

rr . , t: l:«
i

I , pfd 1 .

i

r
Z

yb7•i -
jic, 

1 , :.:

r , 

I . . , 
1 a.

cra_ - _- _- -... , ,..._- _..
r . - .- ..- _..... .,,. w.. r+...+ w,. l...,.., ,-,- ..- „1,.., «._....•- .

r.. --. 

I , 



RVOM
7

W

51 M7
WWItv77

Wo
y—x

W

4 r i), W- 

0 " i"'; 
I

I , ,- 

i  

1,  , 
I, ", , 

I I . 
I , I",  1 - 1 . 

1 1 11
n

f . I
I "  

V

Ak

A

Z

0

AO

ir -

4 4 W. 

A

06

0
T

dig.. 
ej

it

Op

LS

4b
8. 

ttf

40 -t .-A 1- 

5- KO

WAV

Tt

IAINRAW" 

74

7.' 7 7

oi





Op

11
ITk

4 , 14

qp- 

r+. 

p

yarY• 

r, r.., .. 
t • p,,,'',, -•

r ..=- r.•+r,. •r.+'rr„+. w : w• M .. rra .., y . r.. .. +. 
w

N` , 1  
1

r 

1 \ *,: ' f ! 

1

1*. ,
rwtlllYrr., 

y,j," „ r.... r - +, a4"» .'   
y

0.4A 24 4̀4

r  , 

t• {

N  ,, - . , 

Y+ r Ah

I
M1

r 

j
411, 

r

i, t

IAlY
e .. ' i. -- 4 . 1' , ; ,,..,.. .- w-.,. ',

r• r- ..,,,,,, .' :.*  . •"'. ?, , (., , M i'• 5I . l ? 

o e

1  ...... "; ., 
N   " •'

a ', 
aw,7 ' T ,. 1` dl I +, , 

Y

dlr!• r ./ 

M
Y ' } " ! 

eo'' tl a o /  ` F :
C., 

r ` 
ww. .

I.

x 

i ", • " 
4 4, a. ," r

l '. 

r 1 _   !.  

f' Ye ° '
M' _. _,   . i , i •, r. I ,"

r ,  ,  ,
r' .., 

I   ! 11 " { I

Lo.
v

05 4PW49

L 0

1 ! 1

41

r J , 

l GAll

r /,

t4+/'( 

1

i    ' 1  r , • „   ,..,,. ^  _ ,

r `I' -',' ' j') , .. . r f. wr- , '' . ' f"' k•   

11 , r'.

1 '  r

i , • j" • ., ', YfF Y L' ` , 
r  ,, {  '

Ii.+•rr ' , k ` + H '.,.,. • + 4 M./ r

y

I  . 

t,+ rw Y i- _ 
r • 4   • .....,, . " „' . r ..., .. -_. 

7 17 • a/ rr „• ,'.' 7.. ," r ,
n r , y"..

w
n

t A

e
K• 1 • 

rfI .:.,

rw•rw,r

1.  • - . _•,, 1i    ', 
7'  +, y' l7pidw"' 6r  ,/ Ifr X t{  ' %'

r..:.' ,/'+' /. • . • , 1  . 
1  ' li  

Ar C

4
J +, 

yY
I  ,` J ,

y/• ,

yM1, 
I \

I

jWr '% 
f '  

I '” #. ,/ r  V l I • f1

I

l / '' , 

y 
Y/ i

4,

ey '.. n / ++
J/ / 

wry ' } ( 
u ' 

1 ' 111.  
n

T ,  „
r" 

h { ' `

11
4. iR. M.A fn.• • 4 I R"* / I ! 

M , 

4 " i I Fv 1 / d # a
JK

Ii FAQ. ' % V4 % - 
1 /// JyI^ / ' i - 

a , ... ' , . 

x'

1

I
i '  \ er JGI 7I;l IQ Iii , ,OVAR ,  , • 

r , 

41( o C,4,9 A10 jf
ALM

Al

y i
r  •

1
I + ', jj

Illamill * WWI

11
4•lil i.•+ ! 

N    

i - 
s' +

k  i y J 
i

II  , '' 7  ., 
h ' a 1 Y :, 

11 ,   '  

I
w

F  .. . 
1   

4r
1 ^ r, r '/' • I

f'   u ', 

1. 1 i w f N r , a :' 1 IN

Ar

1 ,  , 

V'  , 1  ! 
Y I`. * . ••+ , L / I I , v III'. , +' ' i''' 1

1
1

e

n { 

I

IP

4 M

yyyyyy

Y , {'  
1  ^ ' • w'

wYr "
F' ^, • , 

f
i

r,'

1. ' •  

i + • MMP H
i ' 

r" '' ' .._ ...

m... r --.. 

II _ .
1 .  7  { 1 i 1 . 

77
I' r1 4  

1 • 

tl

A, 

M,' _  , ,+
F f   

111 -  ! 
4 '  a i ,',, ,' • , ", 

Y1

yN, Y'' I/ ,, 

i . 6 11144111  , • r  
1 ,. i' _ `,' ".

i, 
1 • , I

Ir +/ • • ' —

gyp, , ' ,,

1J' ^ ' 
14

4

y 4 

I

I
A' 

r

a 
wn, 1T'' I+ r' r .. . - w. r - e„ ir,.. rfn, Y r, ., n

M, ,., - 

Y "1.. $,., ?• rll ^'{, y, '.' r.' r• vF 
r Y

i '   y ' i' " "'¢':, ", . 

r ,"' 
4  r . r'  ^' «   " R/ ` M* pM,1M'' y,,.,, y] 4 a • yMNw i w 1" '+ Ate"" " a^"rI' •^(

M' Y  
7 JI ' 

M ' , 
M 1,  

N 1 ,. 

4
x..  rr • 

I , / 
ll i  l  1 Y











































GoNG. SLAP=, 
sV

v

O L111 tnlllVlJ I! GS
CTYn1 L) 4 L+ 114 =_ RArr.P 4 A RAaP 5 -- 

r
Reap 4 _.... .

c_ 5' rHDEC, c IL_ 4y - 
4T: IN  oun>= •rxtonls .cee. 1EL. 793 -'- o" - -. - -: r. \ `' __:. ` _ - :

c.. ._ "' . TYf. POLL a1LL

R_A U• P 3A IL4 /n P ¢ I - " -' - GIS Ii QOETsY$`. O

1
7 I O -d 10 K 1 ST L Fk. 

o yap a
1NL D L TO . 71L. 

RD /nP 3 - \ 1-' I, EG,L ii I ! I W/( a ANLIJDCP.>OL.T
3¢6 DEc - 

it, P . 
IsiD cL.K• 

R

2 DE.cra

RA/nP2

3  

E2., 
EC r- 

I
r t 6L. T71. 4v

IR

57
R / n i> I - \,`` 

s
J 2,' a Dec.; DEC LWN-N, 

I _ DEC, C 6L ' 100 -0• '. 

ILLU/ iSINATEP SIGNS - Y - 1GN Col Trb. 2sr ei_...'t' 11' - 41' - - SEE TLaI.JS TN155wF_e_T i=-ot7 -• LC7G.a- t- te b _ 

ELEVATIONS ' 4H0\VN
ARE Lz W POINTS of - - - 
r-AdH .QEGK AT EAST

1 4I , ? 

C.)' U • j .: 

O

o+ G rj < 
Chi . J

2

ISO /4L1 (21C OlAG 2A_ //Y . ANo sVE'bT BND -:.-  A

1 , 1 I t,. 
f " 1  

3
l9D O „ 

4 O  ! 

e
iwly . 

D
t) V

w
7 ' 

I  
7 ; Q0 - 

u:: ; Cfl, rf-. -e ! + 4: 1F - it: a ".' I*:.. 1 _  lu
I - 

r - - - - - k., M- U 1 b I. I* - .. - _ - - 1 r ... } t i E- . 1 r i ! - 
1oy

1 7

t STi,Q_ G tlo AnYl r l; - - - P R- Fs ._ A b c o r. l c. 2 G .. PP wJ P ,. S_.... .__ 

ro ± 
I ? U \. 1 * 104 _... t' I Top OF.GtlR > -x% - ._.. I. 4 + ”' - _._ - ._____ - __ - - jr ._. ... - __._ -... ._ _____. _. . ____. _ LohFiY SOf oP u¢ 

r:.:t
t ( •

N . c I „ w > b ' J p I' n 1- _ i _ 1:. L. G -4 4 - 
7 .. F-..'; ry,+ 1 ; - _ _ - - t'. - i ' T-' - Is

1r .. 
L. ! IV. _ toj

II I ` _ 1 I, 1•' inArlPOLf t\ q/ ' I

4v ..
r .

o, A'' 
C_ 4 73

n  1! 1' ; / % p ' o Ill
SsAIRC A2 •i1 / Z I

I _ /
I . , : - ! ., k '- itev 100 r _

1v” - - ^/ Nji3 '.  F- 
STnI R c . i

S n Y r t

7 \- SIGN NOy3IZ E,eb ,'.. . 6
1P ' a.1

I. I a/ s SIGN NoLb! I / -! ( N. 
AT 3 a = He,le

IT

RE
bS 

DELK
4

w' / 
414N No. 3 ^ I

i T 4TH 1DEC Flj n LnI

I

r

I  

3`_ Il 01

kD

1

k c c, - Ip

v , V/ ^` A,. ' 1 _ ; ! / ` t /• k/ + i \ i 
p '" V

ii .. F _. 
JEl... li. -._._ : fiyil- _._._,. ___ I` C,27. -_.- r :. __.. -`. ___. >. 

r•':' -:' '; .

G`_- -.._. I 

J6-1

I++ I
u/ . p , ! Ati.J \ 

r.- "

llEl .. '}• '..'_ i. . ?- 
ik ____ li _. • F - - __ _._._... _ l: _. _ I'}'_____ - _ _ 

r_ _.. _.__ _ ._. ....._ ___... I _._. _ i -... • G- 
ToP CF _ G'- { 

4  A.: 
II

I. - ' ToP OF y` J2L

ka ! # 
L rrl' .. k/ -. ^` ' --._- :^> ,.

k.. k_ 

hV IT-°ti :9•q` 2G ^
s_ ..... 

r_ ' _ ... j 91 4̀ i
I ^/ 

n iy I
I

U. 
n

I' 

J ; 

u
IN

i-- - -- -' -- -- —'' L

kk r

i
U d J

I

f _ I _,. 
f

I Iu
W

S 

I.   _ , '_ 
I •`_ ._._. 

L. 

I ` VNEX AvA.T CC , 1 7 . 0 I, , 

L

kE.. 03 RANr. I

I , 
NI

l_.L
r

I
I

I • + y I .' SIGN No. 1

I -. = 
II __...... -

FS,c. I q  i _..  ii T4 - — 
F L / P> !. " - " Y. 

i , 
W' - i _.'- -__ ___ - CrV: - '. 

jtGN No. l! REAOS 2. /nP 211 I - 7 I f I .' _ ' '" r. I

ra i j i j- ., '. ,',: . 
u.    

I - _ 
n  ¢ 15 o.- .i- " -. 

III - _ _. - - iT13 NQ • / /.jaeT 26AC>S / f̂11/ I, 3
y .

6( I• nt is : AT -3¢ PWAP IT REL.D$' FWA P 3, ' : 7] IV rah RLIFIO LIN_ _ ' SIGN NOi1 Y
n

1 ( - 7
AT !} TN- {ZL /AF IT R• iAOĴ "2 - I

I" !
I. .,,: 

AT TH RAGP IT REooh1 11 _ ^ LOM C, 4. lvin I,' 1! 1 OCrN 42 f - I RkLDS RAII("nP I

Z. RE. c1i, i
AT 2NP IZLYnr IT R.6 D3 1 n

R dA/ kP 2A

III AT. '514̀0 IT 'la lz' 1. 5 ^ RA /M 3Lj

e o LI
T

I I
I I  e/A. T to

0

i
L3 1'x!. 

I } I,+ . _.. 4'ti II iL7-. .. i .. -- - . ,. I•_.___.. .._ . -. _. - - I + .. __ ._ ' t _ + ffi ._ - I _ -_ _ __ -._ _....._,__. ..:_..- _ - -. L___ I _ 1 , Q

I I

STICI I
RE O5

r

1 T
rT "T ^ Zn'.• Tn'nitr': 1R•., B••- 

1
0, , I .

1
I

I

r 3l. 1

I  
I

it -.. i
F JRq . UP OF < rl lr6 , \, ! / • i' '

G W1Q°¢ AIL - I ' I1 ) j `. ' 

O. 
t2. 

i O D w \' 
Z_. _ • . O . _. I I _ II * + : II \ y + IW o . 

I _. — ... _ 
FC.1 _ 

4i ' r _. ryy4 - . t... i y' -_" y —__- .. _. .. .. _. ...._ .._._

T J 4
I

L I ' - >.:_ ___.' _ <_ - - i•. =. . -__ __., 1--- ...-- - r=.L ::: 
i

I / I. -  I • - -_,._ _.. :.,- .. _... _ __ -_ - .- _.- __.- __.- _____._ ... _.- ._...__....- -_ '. i  li' v I i

21 - p', 

I  I i IN, 

i 1 1 AT- '.3a° DELKIT R@LDS. EGK 3 - \\, 
r _ III,. 61GN IJ O: 3

IT ZEMaS EGk• 40 , 
I

Il
I' '

I { lD I  .• 51Gn1 No. 3 t .. U ! k '. p I
I

I I , AT h-TU oP K  I \\ I I

n. 4 Dec I + n  

I   ', . '. .. \ I
I y P oP GUR•r 1I V 1  ^ • ry

I _ 

4
lu

4' -_ r.-. L• V3'_:'jn_ . 4 ..__ -___ _ r . 

ka. C_ I +: tt / I

I ,
fy ( 

ilk II '! r, ' F EiEJ. Itl + i SNOW - SHAFT ! I 
V ' ° 1 i .' •! 1 I • 5142 A

O? 
I' ' I I - I 

7 ___  _ IB`I' :'.., , ti , 1 _ ; I _ - - r r v I• I

I

t
O1V. ACT, 

IIi - , I 
i • 

I iI = 110 vy G4Fi J I j
6 I - -. 71 5a - i Y - P1TLN FL. - }. V : d ' s " _. 

Q

I  
3 ._. _ a- 5 :. :. 5i ,.. __ -.. st _- ` 

o w¢. aW.i . ,.

c ; : I 1 ,. 1 ' Z ' I r _ E- : gG. ". -70' - 4.12x ..- 
u•  -- - 

T ..,- -.. 
I , 

I - - I- _ y -u LioY
3

5N 5 s +._ -. --. ".__. -_ _. - - ......_._ I- _._ _ .. _ V. ci. \ I IQ

yI __.. 
r

J 

1 _. 
EGASTIIG ONG•. "P ?NL' - nLt: No. ;, tẀ5. LEVATI4- - - \, ,. r' — ._._.. 

I 

y . 

I T

LLJ

r ' ]  

oVti 2v _ tu 121 10' "1" 12,,. Q ` I
1 ', i

It ..
I eP'oP. 1 IVALL. Fa0/A 16.- 

2-- IH 3 -I ti Q. 
I

I

JQ24'. 0 3 -1d 11 - 6i pL..4P To _/_ 6 - L J- r- ' ----- -- -- - ?- 1- - -- 24 01, L.y
I, 

J 

U

A Me* 

A:   E. L, G 91a - ° \•' ;
OV /, II. 

1

i `
A 1 OOn  . IQ '' s/"  ~' - k C ' i  VJ

N

FOfCdgW 9 PA o
tQ is 61T. PravYnT. —  

1( OTC . 

6Lot7'¢ Altu
b¢ Ei /• . 

T

l : 

1F

TReMSSEE STK- GTLIR SL pR, 6vJING' S POR - 
KPC. NSICirJ ANI,. GO NT2oL ... I OIIJTE. 1 {- t'* PR ors - IMG + RISGRSd

NOTE - ADP iOFJr. O• To ALLr ELF_ V, I` SHEE / 1 Is{ O:. 
ll SNOwN' ol• t. TNIS - P

OAIIJT. DDI'. mom la./. l
egLLI / Arles A` i' f' IF E >< TIhIGLLI NEIk

I
I

7

TYPIC.f .: iEGr4 &: r2Al,:f? P'_ A•nJ ff
G5L6• 

2. 5HO inl
I

Ll t_ ZA. iT. P S 2A, 1 / n. 

FVATIc - . N ZI '• IN' TNU' - 4 ' MUicz._rui

Ir• TnlI Cl
r DEC_ K. L -' / IF 'T. (,+ D IS iyc JF z l'. si AT

L z_e& bQLY AT

Sr r

Fnk FLV r.I _ EL2vATI O. JS AT NEST ENDS. 

LUE PRINT PAPER CO. ! C LA FORM t•) 

A Me* 

A:   E. L, G 91a - ° \•' ;
OV /, II. 

1

i `
A 1 OOn  . IQ '' s/"  ~' - k C ' i  VJ

N

FOfCdgW 9 PA o
tQ is 61T. PravYnT. —  

1( OTC . 

6Lot7'¢ Altu
b¢ Ei /• . 

T

l : 

1F

TReMSSEE STK- GTLIR SL pR, 6vJING' S POR - 
KPC. NSICirJ ANI,. GO NT2oL ... I OIIJTE. 1 {- t'* PR ors - IMG + RISGRSd

NOTE - ADP iOFJr. O• To ALLr ELF_ V, I` SHEE / 1 Is{ O:. 
ll SNOwN' ol• t. TNIS - P

OAIIJT. DDI'. mom la./. l
egLLI / Arles A` i' f' IF E >< TIhIGLLI NEIk

I
I



s

AW

D O O R s C N F- D U l_ E

A, UA /A Dn, rjI c 0M DC) 0Q- F rzA. //l p TCpILSDr: f c
Tl4RE4: LANt(_.. , F-- >* //\ 

1AAT_ QL. &S( ELEV: / AATL 517ELITa TV-AW5 14EAT'3 346) AG . 

1 * 09 LO$ 5Y ST4M' A" 3. 0 ", 7' dk x 134 C 114. / A I \ q: C,'- 1 ; 4I. / A. 

IO.Oq L0.13bY STAICA' 0J "/ 7'• 1' 4, 11 '' 4' " 
TE /A P. SC-E Ext, j

3'• A 4 UA Q, ASS eL.a•/. . I. - 
10 AtU /A..' _ - -'- -- - -- -' - ---- -- 

IOOb LOg.F!. Y STAIC'.d SLEV, EL:EV4TOIL CAg /. 41ATC W/N.YI DC7 e- L1 F2.1 / AE4i 3 ELEV. C - IJTIZ - - - -----' .. -' -- -- - - - - -- 

IQ2 MACHIUE12•/A. 5T%IZ' A" V-&' x7', O' r134. Is 8. /A,' -- I 11. / h. I 22II- - p-b

104 L O56Y S14' 2 ' b" 9. 0' -% 134" G , N. lA W. Gt:... t 2 1 p wln. rt * a
1 5,4!' 

3 " I - Mf 4GE f: >T. 
pl M 1044 LtzlSb I STA) 2' ES'. 9:' o'.x 4'- 54 % 14 A 1. ALJIA q_ tS. & LEY I 11

10
11 ALUX. 

1041pi L066Y 4v TAl4' Ib - F,4. ELE VA T0.2 GA P3, ATG WAY DOC)  FIGAIIA- -- S ; Ib Y LEV: o lei 2, 

105 / AA.G41A1E 2/ A i i2_b" i'•4° x C5' x 134- \ J _ b - 4./ X, I {. u_ /n. - • : -.._. I 3 2 Ily, _ 
Y-*- - r-' - -- --- ' -•' - 

n: 104 L056Y STAIL "c" 3'• O " x 7' 7 x 13 I y , i 2 21 -------- - - - --- -- 4 IL U o . I / A. W. GL ! I u / A. I 3 it AwIA.*_ L -- i
Ctck 0161bY 3 ' •. -- , TSInP. 3 1O _. - -_ 1 - 57AIrt' c" 3 o " x 7' - 0" x 1 4 ) : d A A' -.( tA IG_c_ASs cum-. 1 I

it 11 ALUTA. 

107 TOILST „ W * S, T412.-C - -- b N7 - I x134,- 
u

b . N. / A. I I H, IA.' --- 3. 3 22 I1. _ 1l tiIp JA GIUT DaolZ_ V

Cv. O'[ 3' O " x
lW I4

D Ito C. 
CIA Se

Q 1 ¢. ! '-` 1 a ;'' E• ` S. E.I: PLAN - 3HT 8 - 

Ito ' - tEC. EQUIP. 2 /A. 3'. O "r G'- 2' IL x I : T 7 t µ, /A.' --- ' 1 u:/ n. l - --- I -»-- I. 3 I 3 -" - FIELD, cl -I I op tJ11 -7G

200 ' - OSF Y STA12 ` A" 3 O' g7'_0" Y 134... c N, ln,. \ V. CIL 1. N, J^ '.--- _ _ ?_ 3. ZI II ALU/ A: R, 

200i oh6Y SWEA" ELSE.`/. c' - E V/ TOIZ C P. 4TG.14 VAY Oo ... F A. /A IS- f Y ELE - i. c- C Ijy rz- - 

204 O x' 1 . p'. x 1 . 21 -.. _ 4 - G -- N. / A, 1 \ V. G: I uJ>, II A,_uµ. k 13 n

s  
O LO ST 4 C2 . 4 Is3Y 41¢'+ 3 _^ EJ, E__ VJTOLL_ CAS-, 4 7CN•o/AY OdoR.. t= / AF- kV, IbY ' ELEV COI -ITT. 

206 LObgY STA12 •G, 1j•,[" l'_ 0 " x1;4 C NIA. IV. GI 3 2111 b
i - , T - - - -- - - - _ -- - -- - 

207 . STOILAgE STAI2' C 3'. o x o x I' 4" p, 14 ln, 

T- - ti Boo '_ obfsY sralrA ^A ",- s' - o'' x t' - o " x 13a' c - j H, / A, iVGL I N. IA I -- 2,, 3 21 11 AI_uu• t 

300a Lo646Y• STAsk - "A °_ LEV, E.'_ 61/ 47O2 C. e. , 4, N CNsVA' DO tZ + C- • IL, 4 // E- S. 1p Y" L. B. GOI ' Clz,.. 

304 LonnY - stale " P5' y. 0 "Y7' o " y 134:- C: 14, IA W 6L, 1 nLU/A, R 6
r

1504a L05bY• S-1 AIrL' r+ "ELEV ELEVAT07 GA µ A C. 4\\( Y PO V- 4 F' i? I.tm S }3 ( L-EV. CON e- 

I3" 23 L ry Y STAIR.- % tl 1 N, l . L4 C I  --•  ' 3 I I 4 Tj - 

30.7 STO LA4e• S TOfL G' Y. O" x1' 0" x 14 % FL IA - 1 N, /n I _ 
3" 

I __•__ 
I

400 _ OFS( iY•.STAIR..' IJ" 3'- o X7'.: 0 ' 1 Ile c 4, /A W. r, I I II JA - -- 

H77--f-v- 

UTI

2 3 ZI 11 A'.. uu. 1t lb
400 L- 063Y -STA IQ, -' A. EV ELE.VAT02 CA ;{ TGN\ A^ f DOO FI? A; /A, r= 4 = LH GOJTi 

404 - 0n13Y STAR rs D' - O' x I'• o % 04" O 9, 1A W GL AL4M Y 
w _ -- 

t - 

404- L OI)PPPY • STA1Z' 3' °LEA. BLSyATOTL C P. , 14 • TcH1 AY OO2  FIZA.I //\> =- S _ P' y 8+L>c• _CO 71Z- - 

40<P L 01j' bY_ ST/alre. 6cm. - A 1- 0_/ 1141 - - -__- C } i,/A- W. 41 -_- I qI /A --- - j
ZI

II ALUX. C7

A07 LTG 2..6G - STA 1IL G' Y. O Y 7'• O" x 134" Ib 9, / A. { a, IA, 1 _... yy, 

I  ? 2 1I 15 i - 

i
500 - 0P c, - TA12„Q„ 3'•0' t 7' - a'  ( 34•` C NIA. W. G': I N, / A, , __ _ / o Ib 21 11 aLUM h- 

T` • DOa LD?3fbY- c,TAIfL 4 '=' -E`/ E L_EVATOrL C 31 ATC.44W AV 0_02 < F A /AF; FS >_ L V.. C _WT - - 
r - - -- - - - - _ - - -- - 

SOA t0 bbti'- STAIrt 5. -- 3- fl' Vl- 0 x 114" - -- - C _ H //\ W. CII I - - N, // A,_ U1A.  . - -. -- - __. - 
r t

A - 

A

504A O5- 5y - STA 12 t5 - LE J. c:- I- VATor" C - fS, A-TG$ AY 00 v- f F A/ AI-  1 aL V,' C w - - -- -- 
H 50.(o LOW-6 \, I- STAI/L - „ C.,_ 3'•O'' v1'. 0'.x I- b4" C µ, / l. IV, 41 1 i4. /h.' •• -..*' ^•"":`. .._._ IO

so 7 STo 2.Aq S- STAIfL'C" 3' o' v 7'• o "x 1'' q" h FIJA I ) 1111\ . - 1 3 22v ---- ------ .... _ .. - ------ 

O O / A F I

LJ B O O /A Q A //\ . P-- 00r- 1 . P:f ,a, s W A c= I z_ 1 G ` bTQO' 1? / A t? 1L 5
Ill - /

A A, T= e- t= 11JISLI. JAATS,7_1 ' ; rIW)c w 47
tit

41' 0 I OU _ 

f- 

O
I 0i7 I 7 . J

U u I d J 4 1 ( n P

CI
CoO °_ 112 3 4 Si( cl7 8 97 10' 11 12 11, 14115 16 171°6 1912021 22 232 %52(0 27

loo Lvf,P, r• srAIR4 I I  __ I _ _ 9 10' 
t ' 15 19 q 

I

101 ELE VA, TOIZ' s1 \ IRA" 1
r - -

i 9 110 - 

102 / AACNIQr-- 12- A- STAITL A` 
1

J j1
101, 1- L=_VATOP- - STAIR " 5' 

i

I104 LO FS ISY- STp 12.' 3 I I I - 9 23

y ry s / nAc u 11J =_ e /A. sTA t12 ` E5 1 I f 9 10
a

100 LOP( b1' sTAl2 c 1 9 lo! 15 la Q3
I I

107 TOILET STA; C I` I { 23

u 108 1 I I

109 suo.Y - cWUT 1 I - - - -{ 9 Ipi
110 Etc EGkuIP /&SFJT (L/A

4 q

I

300 LOh b Y S TAI 2. " 1" I .. 9 110 S 19 1 23 27

o LObI3Y STAIQI,„ 1 + - 9 110
i- --; 5 - -- lgt- - -- 

23 _ 27 - - -- - - - - -- 

5ao LOlSP Y s-ro1e. "c" I
I

9' lo f IS T j9, 2,, - -
I 1 27

I S70S2 GG . STAI2' G' 1 9 110 I IS 1
I

I I I 1 I

Q [,> 00 LGJlSP. Y STAIR " A" I 9 110 i 15 I I. 
191 23 27: 

504 L033Y srA7rz "t3' 1 9 lo'  
t -_ ___ - -- - I lad - - -

1- - -- - I  - r2  I ; 47 - 

007 Q7TOR"AgE. STAIIL' G - - 

231 27

9 to - - 
r-- - - 

I5, I9• 23
I

4" 

5TA12 "A" 1 9 10 
I IS i 19 _ 1231 . 

15TA19-- b` 1 9 J0 I' s j 19 23, - - -_ -_ 

2: C, 

SLUE PRINT PAPER CO. " C 2 -6" FORM 103 - 

ll 1

11
Gowe- 

1

G fbEYONp

7 1 Awn f . a -.< w :.. 

s ,
z

ZOZc) 
o 0 L) cl

N W

I
ALU7A. -- $ 4•. 1 " tii' a ,', v „ :° =, i - J- ` oi

G I
o

j TSAR GLi<t , yn; _ I V" /.

1 /
LEVEL: b NI-Y . •' L

v

O O O . O CAJ4K. - L N

Em

2 5 S

0 0 2- T Y P S
I 4N /owi 

G al

xALE 112° 11 op l
3 cA L IL

i
IL

Ala" no. t 55, U /
3'a3''vL4 "Aw /A' L w , 

AL1.LK• , / ' 

In A
IA  

it .. - -- ,:.,!. '' Li;•' r a e0 - 2,fe
ST%_. 

4• a4 2') W STL L.'
r -, .. e__ .. _. / L7: N

rl NoTE ,
L OL ETAILS

ArFLY ' TO 2 " 7142u N

52P DE2 IC- S OWL. Y -- f]j ' 3) W
T ALL 5 AIRS

TlCi 1.. 15 _- ' SGbt_E 112n = 1i_ on Swo\v SHAFT ^ SGGaLE•' 4n_ il_on;:- - ,;. 

I

a

u

I

U U U Q
1q5 _ q" 

A Iii 4e C/ ,, N Y T / AA4GN Y ' 

1 

h o N N
w f

F

ZT4C C . w. ` li j h ! f + ; i '! I . 4 II I t. •,+~i . I j I - y -' sT, c n i t. W

pe

puI' I I I

I

1 b
U) U  

l : 
I sac
I i I WI 0

J{ Y. fir- _ ... __ -- ..._____'•.".. _ F_ ..- 

I

I

j i I V i

oI

a- 

ZII



r

JA

GLI ZIb .. 
GONG. CLIRG. 

IzElaovE ExtsT: '_ 
Ex157 GL1RP. r` 1' J

PC PEAALK

TO:... _ wlhA W _ :_ _. 
V ` L `' 

u # 

QUEW. C.OU G. ciIOEWAI.Y 

s - - - 1

G \ 
ro M y

8AOVE- EXIiT. 
y

N ILc

p

4n' / .
i /_. i"- .

iZEF' L/ GE @KISTING\ GOhi G. GL12e 

i f2Elwve war I
I To nre 2elnOVr- ZF- ,4tOVE.. EXIST. —_% 

GGNG. Gu2Y 
1 - 2 6  _: {

L

12ELOGhTE GnT _ - A 7".r b' -la7a" 
SIT. -rE2 DETEG'j0 fj•S. m . • piR.IGK \`!/+ LL M= w - XL/ IJTING e1R- EA

LEW. GUa{ s' lo IFIEN GuRb :_ 1
pl Era9- --- 71 FUL GURP... 

rte

All

r - 
K I ! ,• I' / / `

T / / %
J i -y' —_,/ / /.-_._ % .

ij /," • / / // 
j / Ed:O  . IhT "G Li { G a- 

I _ •
v _ _ ° 

pROPE¢ -TY / f•; - 7. -/7: iT7 -- 

y E/ / 
to

II L -_l

6a a b a
Y - Z

En

D It C\y00D\V/A2(. !. 1`/ E..' . _ IrD E..) - .. .. _ w

1

r  1 1r: V J

Multi. c C^ VGL `6TOG  
N

I _ 
0 1w II

O

W MSC STAIR LANI IN4IG

I , 

AN
1 .. - - - - - I • -„ 

I

Cd -A. 

4* D° CIL 5TG12 LANDING
TsAtN- I u

A . 
9 . Pi. 7v I < Q

GOI -rTROL JOINTS SGE. ST¢ uGT
z

A

G Q. 

3rt DEGIG. $ TA IZ LAN DhJG - . 

EL.. 766,_ 

n
u

I U

Z

C" C. vIN

I - - .'  '
ll rLyf ul 1•j HGK STA, I' L LA. NPI- -_. N4 

EL. 77 Cu12' t"-- -' 

I

I

G Q. 

3rt DEGIG. $ TA IZ LAN DhJG - . 

EL.. 766,_ 

n
u

I U

Z

C" C. vIN

I - - .'  '
ll rLyf ul 1• j HGK STA, I' L LA. NPI- -_.N4 

EL. 77 Cu12' t"-- -' 



Z or

ML

5L

4

AP

Ww ZC) 
u. >

1 Y It
o L) It

w

Nuu

LL

clLLI

ML

5L

4

Ww ZC) 
u. >

1 Y It
o L) It

w

Nuu

LL

clLLI

If
I WI--- (, I

9 X IL
13 a

N W

1-- u

u C6

U) u

U) X

FLdpaM- 

LLJ

u

rr

YE

IL Cf



N

n

Y• 

p

i • 

J

a

y u

Y

t• 

41

y

1• 

af` -
N • 

70% 

I

i

i

i

n 0\ E

C 2• 63 , FORIA Uf

Z 0

W 0

c• 

i f

W co
ti yW SZ0 uI

O j Y0 U U N r

I

y

W

I

I I, 

JOB NO. 

65 - 19

r- ft 1

SHEET NO. 

I

Ik

I
I

I GONT20L JbINYS
I- 

j
STau T. r> r wc - s. 

yl  ' 
I• 

i

r ' 

c- 

i
I

1 i
r j - I tr

1,

y

I

r

u

if i

I

N

n

Y• 

p

i • 

J

a

y u

Y

t• 

41

y

1• 

af` -
N • 

70% 

I

i

i

i

n 0\ E
H

1) 

I
i

U U

C 2• 63 , FORIA Uf

Z 0

W 0

i f

W co
ti yW SZ0 uI

O j Y0 U U N r

I

y

W

I

I I, 

JOB NO. 

65 - 19

r- ft 1

SHEET NO. 

I

Ik

I
I

I GONT20L JbINYS
I- 

j
STau T. r> r wc - s. 

yl  ' 
I• 

i

i
I

1 i
r j - I tr

I

r if i

Ii I

I la
i II I , I

GONTROL

I-- "__- - -._ _. -_ 

SEE- ST2ltaT G2N4 =_I

I _ 

i.: it

I -. _._ -_ -._ ._ -_•_. _._ 

I

TOr OF CIIZ

j

LI CD 2 7 H E A T I U l

H
1) 

I
i

U U

S O J- H• -- v 1 - %. T l V I 1
LIS

@LUC FIUNT FAPKA CO. C 2• 63 , FORIA Uf

Z 0

W 0

U r4

a

W co
ti yW SZ0 uI

O j Y0 U U N r

i y

W

J.—J N

S O J- H• -- v 1 - %. T l V I 1
LIS

@LUC FIUNT FAPKA CO. C 2• 63 , FORIA Uf

Z 0

W 0

t

N

m

O 

y `n2y
V

3
N Lyl

V

N2
0
N

W

N

a 1, d

N N

w f- 

F U

Q w

U cb
O S

to U

U) X

Q Q

W  
Q
1 

U

z
a

U2

Cr m U

r  7

Wa

L9

U •Z

Jm
cb

W 

J> 
w

o 
z a W ooMZ W

z w

5 ,. w

Oa JZ
1 CO J

W

Q Z

0

0
U) 

rn

Z 0

W 0

az
Q

w> 
W

J.—J N

JOB NO. 

65 - 19

SHEET NO. 

6' 



r

cD U ? 

0

011

A

7

4— 

y, 

U1J

U 0

A

W

J

N. I

Y• 

u

K

d, L w

aI
Wa

y„ s

J w
J

t

cD U ? 

0

011

7

y, 

U1J

U 0

JJym

W

J

N. I

t

cD U ? 

0

011

7

y, 

U1J

U 0

JJym

W

Cn

N. I

u

n 
11

d, L w

1r

Wa

y

J w
J

o= 

i

W m

J

p, 
P

I

d

i

W

A

2

y

is
s • - 

4

H

H. . 

SLUE PRINT PAPER 60. IC 2 -09 FORM 103

1  

IL
1' 

a

O r O C

e A,L_ a _ GHoZ S V G_ Ej, POti. T.. GOq•_. OT11 C1.. A IL . 7 LIZ,L

1

StNGL_ Pos` F0 6oT HG_t1 R. A,2_ IL 1 ". eL_ T}},EU _4 -_. PcLK.... _ S_. FA e.aYG _PO_Si - =.0 4.. E.,. N ouLGC2 R 1. 1 ...' _ N__ - "._. .. -_ - 

DD,: TS INI WE 4T INSG 2Cl - G EE OrT. POST YO CO1_14- W A. 5V' BOLTS Ows T: IU CrON C-, SUEDET. / ANC -404 %OSE TC S : iWAPS' W 7oLT5 WTO VEn4C T4G tCC - SGd 1767, 
ANCNOrz.. wat Tu rSOtH ewrn c Wj"_ -- - -` 

1  , 

I

IT

y
Q

A- 

3y 
I _ 

o . 1

Or

I

1

III
1

q , 

1
1 i1

1
1

i

L -_ __ _ s c Y t 1- 7 " 

s c.•_ 1,•' _ ' _ yr

u:t

I 6

l0 IL p

r
NW

Lo

Q

1 QI' 4t6 o ac.lc EL. - 79, 74, L.  9. 74

1  

J , S b5c ! 7• 

n l!) 

W I- 

I i- U

t W

O

z

tl_ -4 Z

D

U

NOTE W Q
KL96YATIll 5HOVV1.1 2- F TMIS. LOW POIQVr. 
OF Ccl CH oacv_ - 45 FL.. PL• w. NS FOR T. OF

O

4G. " 1' OP.. RoTT, 
MAT. f- CM - KING- , TYP 

cn

cD U ? 

0

011

7

I— U1J

U 0

JJym

W

Cn

N. I

n 
11

1 r

Wa

J w
J

o= 
W m

z

o tj Z

W. 

n O

O 0) 

4G. " 1' OP.. RoTT, 
MAT. f- CM - KING- , TYP 

cn

65 19

0

011

7

I— U1J

U 0

W

Cn

JOB NO; 

65 19
SHEET NO. 

7



p \ 

I

Y

W

In = 

n

I. 

I

II

EDGg oP coLa2

v

In = 

t

e. 

I. 

I

II

EDGg oP coLa2

I
NM

In = 

I. 

I

II

EDGg oP coLa2

I
I sl., tp` v - 5f FT / ti l09

13= 

V
Z

tip6

17'• 4' 

2{ 

Cn1 7 { 
Cod 7  8  

as w
y

p 1z t 4
I

u IV W . x zcq w

Ir

i I I F
s . 

OZZLE _ 

T qFr OI /w S-' tJ51oti 5 PLAN r", F_ Cl.r / n o

iLl
I , I I'• q , - I : i zZLE

Y 3 % 14,, LJ n. L I ALJIA 5A5• II - _.__ _._- - - 

t --- --f_- i. _ ._i _ 
tq

1 .
a.' ' 1 ate= - _ t _._ 4

t .` I  
A _. _ . -- -- - 

A _- .___..
I : y ,; -- - boop mI

jr /. 
II _ p Y /AGGH. LofSio -e 50Cn_ :•;. I ` LOP bY SO4 ; STAIR'•C3 °.

i/ ;'' V. ' i 11 i01 " if, 
QL

Ia-- - - - - -- $ 

A E.A. DOOe
I

W z
t r. '!'. DI I. t - _. `, \." II  I -"'

t '. 

I, / '
I [_ • M\__ a - + iooF' 4LI /n P: i _.__. .__.. Y __ - -_._. _ 

i

II
sl •

41 - -" _ - V
uELO( V Tare I. L; 11 - 

I \ / 4•e`r sto s *LL -'_ I b - _ m I L_ - _ -- --• I, 91GN pl pL0 /n. 
ALOIA. 

I' 
I - ' C46T w GDN C. 

L- --- -_ /.. ..,: 

O - I I .,' LIG I•I . / 1 I' 
p. 3u /n - -

Fi' - I
i I' V 20.7 & . sk b % - I SLI /nP Q _ _- j " 

I
F'J4

a

j Z

LP_ OUF O• f: u ING :. 1
3 / •. 

v ___ 

f3Y -/nUW. L_ ;'. I. - a n !!!•• SEEP

rr \
A11

u /' 

I
17_.. . ... i .. I I - I7( , ter ,

ryla. I :, la' lo ! I- Ir 3110 17' II I .

SOO

1

Z: .: W

j_ 7 PfLA t O

TI1 O' ZJAPVA TyLG - 1 . 2, I - ' i '^,.
1

EGUF1 I• fi 0 _. --" - 
coua

LoPz, 3Y 500 :, SThlf2 °A' 

Floizl.E -._ _.- .__ ...__ \ .. - - t -_. _._ _. _ _ I _..__..._. Y _ IAL
6EEL DI /Al CIO PL&O rzLow '

i D U <, j ( 
r3o I

T N ' 

r - - - -- - -- 

1- 1 - 4o
2

3• 
1

STN DECK fPLA1 1

I

S¢ R 1. 10 + F5 t AD nIT1. 

k

I 1 oN PL. n. «, 1SEL O,•/ 

O
W F•' 

t W
F- 

O x

it, 

I
is i

11 a  

1• o

b, 10 u" 1

I (
n VIyI• , 

t
3

J ALU /A. 

y

11

L- 
w

4 - I Lbf iOO I..  l : JT, 4IQ- C / AFT. ShFCTY No511 w

mE. T SaAFETY NoLI NIGi '''
I• 

M- is " r. l G.. I 2'. 10 L014C, anau ! T2CAD - , f / m

OI
I I P. i. 

t. o.. LoN Ic rl IT rc EAR - _, • I
nwr"! C_' -* _. -: - i LG'' - rbl. 2C• i- ! I. ' S42- rY61 N

1' - S' S 3'• io 4 3 = 10 IT - - I„ I
sn... TY NoSINGS 1 / 

I _ U4 - -- _ GII 2'- 10' LO GA T2HwO) 

oI ! .._,: -- ._.•. \ 20 I - I - >/ ;.
F -] 

i--- =- \- -- : I
cp, Il

I , yJ I _ _ - ..., 1 ' I a' j
2

I' 4 SrJ L. P v, I y_ :_ / J ,:/ 
I,, 

g- 6 a X 4• S . lrI RA _ 1 6i / •/ 

y - q' s, r D. O. 3• O }, d1

yT
I 2U9 ' 2 - 2 - I - t- - -_. 1 ril__ - tI ,. I

200A _ 

yI I I Or _ __.- _ -_._ : 
O : ... q- . Ib . -___ . O.. ._) ', NI j] L  / n. v ._ Z! ,• r 3: o D. o. 3 O• 

U , (- - M. J 9, : (. ,  lk 404, 1I' S1L- .. .., I% .' 

I .:>. L
A'. '

d u / n. 
4 % ;;: d. _ m I _. _. I - %- -- -- r - 

pi

I

lj
I

I' Ft gTL. PLPE

NM

In = 

OVEfL.Y• 1EAG fJO02• 

EDGg oP coLa2

I
I sl., tp` v - 5f FT / ti l09

13= 

y

11

L- 
w

4 - I Lbf iOO I..  l : JT, 4IQ- C / AFT. ShFCTY No511 w

mE. T SaAFETY NoLI NIGi '''
I• 

M- is " r. l G.. I 2'. 10 L014C, anau ! T2CAD - , f / m

OI
I I P. i. 

t. o.. LoN Ic rl IT rc EAR - _, • I
nwr"! C_' -* _. -: - i LG'' - rbl. 2C• i- ! I. ' S42- rY61 N

1' - S' S 3'• io 4 3 = 10 IT - - I„ I
sn... TY NoSINGS 1 / 

I _ U4 - -- _ GII 2'- 10' LO GA T2HwO) 

oI ! .._,: -- ._.•. \ 20 I - I - >/ ;.
F -] 

i--- =- \- -- : I
cp, Il

I , yJ I _ _ - ..., 1 ' I a' j
2

I' 4 SrJ L. P v, I y_ :_ / J ,:/ 
I,, 

g- 6 a X 4• S . lrI RA _ 1 6i / •/ 

y - q' s, r D. O. 3• O }, d1

yT
I 2U9 ' 2 - 2 - I - t- - -_. 1 ril__ - tI ,. I

200A _ 

yI I I Or _ __.- _ -_._ : 
O : ... q- . Ib . -___ . O.. ._) ', NI j] L  / n. v ._ Z! ,• r 3: o D. o. 3 O• 

U , (- - M. J 9, : (. ,  lk 404, 1I' S1L- .. .., I% .' 

I .:>. L
A'. '

d u / n. 
4 % ;;: d. _ m I _. _. I - %- -- -- r - 

pi

I

lj
I

I' Ft gTL. PLPE

i I / l_ \ -: 4- 411
441 I_ I 4 (_, TY1.) "_ 

I I- W  

200 aI :. 
L, i' I' :, STC( ZAGS 20l : ! 131 - 02 TYCj 17 3= 10 f a- 10 J X14 - x. 

I .. 
114. 

b _ In - .  2Hm OVAt3'.• E GoNC, 
J

I `- o r''9 f-jY ZOO
r \ VALE R CV( id - I* 

o • l! I Ie ELE VAT fL STAI rt. 3Z
O

i -i I + to

i f/ t/ 11

1

I

f

OJ : - .• _ ____' 1-_--''_..._- ... - -_ -. -- .-._ _ _.. .-- - __ --- _.._,. : 

I

L U / n. SA

i

sTArli ` 4
T

m 
I / 7, Y /: 

Q.. : O z

I' .', _ . - ___... _ . .._ _. ,. .. . - _ _ ... _.. _ _-__ .__.__ _. _ , . _.. ._ ..__. p i 3• - 1 iG - 3'- 4% 10. L "' II'_ q:, . r • 

m

I $

L

VALE- I•+ ASE ISIC ONE`/ - o / nIT Fog T

11 ALT. wlnl _ 1.._....._ ___..__ __ ____. _..._ _,__ 

141- G• 11 3. 2. ''. a'. i. .- _ - 
Ig. l• -_? if P: c, coNC I= ANELS - oar, wlc. lu'' b•• 4, _:._ - _. - 8'- t o,• - _. ... _ 11" - - 

I I

I, n' pr, ru

I --  4i-' ,_. - ,• t- 
Z•. lo 2o 17" DECK Pl_/ tJ

S!: JO\ V- SHAFT h10 7L1 \ VEST cozi. IGz
I' iL" °,. 3"° 4- r" tJEGIL T' LQN_ O2 2 3 A DEcI PL hl ti• 

p bIC7v. tJ ii
FIRST D° G' L PL- AW l' 1° 

of . N 2 e n " e I s14Vw
J

LA Jlilt " 

toQ

QEGK SN , 

I

d .
NOTE• O / nIT YNI> \ VALE UNTIL   W' O ,_ 1• I

J 1

Y : 12 " G / LO :•- : VJ: it i /' 

14 ° x VII

3cj= l
I

i

hT 36 e WI

OP5t lIh1G. 

I2• C JA / A116
G STRAP- ANo41om- 

To' / n ag oNlcY  - 

t -- 

E L. SO2L012" 

Olpopsv 44P

r

i

t - 

V
r

SLUE PRINT PAPER CO. 2C 2- 5 FORM 1

I

1

I• ,' _ T. L. I,${::. L6rI Ca .. _. _. ___ II .. __ .. __ Y ._ _ _ ____ ___ 
ELEVAT. O fG GbNT4. FJ AS _. 

yI Lr,.._ F. •. 11 - tt P .. .. „

I

INSTALlEO PO \ / 1- @. IJNIT. _ ._..._ _.._ _. _... ..___. _ ". . 
LOGIC. 11 q :. -. 1.. G- b' - 4 uo\ L 3 - I :. L. ISSB L I - 11'¢ II : 6c PAW LSe lib': 54' rn, G 128' ; 3 - I ; L. 3- 9 ma 4 - It 9... -.. L.: ." - I .. _. 

I. ^ STL 1•.... \ v 112 " SS 112 " K 4 Z3- ___ _.,_ .. "_. _._ -- ' y-'- -.- __..._ _.... .., I -- _. .. y. -_--- - . - 1- j.. ,., , 1 _ {• t1 } Oi ,..., to ' rn LL

C; U1V s- 7EFL• EZTorz C/ A. li _ t; I t
P ' 

qI` { I' 
loss \ I ... - _ 110 // a 4GaiJ C. IPhNF_ L!- I _ 

hGT51TIOh1EDA RE4 ,.
r) --- Ui

i. 1• I

t

11

FLT. 
cLls v. TLIis

30 eCUM. TN2ES1. 1a: 0' / -_ I I J I I fL m 743 - b' I

I /  • ' 0 , .!:. 
ALVM. TN2M_ SLO D. %' rl '. 

f /, -.. I

t /

1'' ! L. ,. - ' 2. 0 4, 3t- tt "' •`; ; 7L8, F, b , a• -- 
I

1 

cc

O 4

c o- l' 7 : STnI z 13 o t9P v - - - - _ 
A mLO fa 3 10Ga , r, / I 0. 0 ' .. -

I- vF- - - T -. r. _ I . r 

c

I _, STAIR G2r•, FL. EL. 7G. 7 I, 
0 0 LOrw fS I mo - I

c I / A; GHINE GL //.• 
I I :'. z . - 3 . 4 .. -,:,' - -- - - - __._____- <

I I _ I '.
I , tl .. -' 

rot of 6E, 1 / n;._ /. I _ - - 
I I - --^-, 

f - -,}' --- I: l04 I/ I /. I - 
P TOfL 1. 01

L. T 7G'- 7 i - 

1= E
I R .• _' 

i ', I ___ ' :; y  
v .:..: - ' I d. i' ' j .'' /' E2 - SE¢ I .

I ; e O
1N FL. : 

1 - 1 ._ fi O. VIOP' - AW / n. ' - ,^ rte. « , - _ ,_.__{- _-- / 

P
D

1¢:. !'
uI

1. - • ° rO; -• ry  
772 S t r - __ .. - , LnN - 57A 6'. 

Y r lfC''.>= fLSINE. lV 2 L• 511r _ . i i. '. q! tLcl • /': : 
Lwc "' cr ; _ o0o V I may_ s _ • I; a' I T, ! az'. f.. LE e5C1 ) CIO If / 

GTYF- & - --
t . _ I

0) I.- 

LY- P ALL. :+. I . MI ' hE51Z. t34 N' GG THE DELK: ' 4 :. ; i' 
TY / - - ' h -.__- I. I .. '. o•. . o = rn`' i .. 2 4' P 2

I / I ._..._:.
J 7AIC TOIV HES b k0 :. . 1 : , - y, 

A+. ! _. -: .. _. -.,- y. _ {.• - -.. - .'._. _. 
y• 

V _ ISNELFL 7 1 pl _-_- 
5 A O

n• / N, . 6X1 / ARL6 . REEK 1 L. 
d.. _ - ID? I ,/ 5NOw SL+ APT :... E. IG .-. ,_ : 1041:. ' +- t _ I __.. v :•/ I N / (- I - 

r. O ' I .. Abtl' NT. IW4. 1a 61a1. 1T g_ o1 \. 
P. N I =  N. -, - 1 . i . 

j. . 
I . _ I ' .' i To- P., ci' Tt 7n OS?_ titY. 2J: I '  

I I -. N ALl1/ / :.; . -___ - -_. . -. __ -_._. _. _ - - RUNGS, 2 1 % 3 RAILS _ _ L' ', - t:! I /' cYr IG. C. C. EGaw. AL

1 LEVEL' S'. 
ti IU h. E• r: yd 2

1 RAILS 3 = 0 tlove LOSOV rl: 1 F 1 ! r li 3= 14 -, i, 0. . Q• 2` I .' i U
Ul '' - -

0• . I ,..
ALE TO

I la' ExP.• / AAT' L If ' M', 100 - 

2 C ULK' a. oJO
f I 03  •• I i i - J LOI• s 13Y 102 0, I j: 7LI2

IA
d - 111 sl:. I t1 - ' 7 __ S ' 1

105 ' ., l• I ._ ' I _ i ": _' i -:- EXP: J ?. P, aETIV EI= 1d GURb10_ _:_- 4
I 1 %'

I luM: . I .• 1•- '. 1"%. '/. ..... X
1 ,

r _ _. f 1 , -.., F. F- 1- 7711"  :, ' \ t `' [ r G,• o:, 1T I I l02 __., . 3. 7 1- + 1
o, 64 _ t - I 17. ':...,. .'-\ _. ..._... -- - ._-_ :/ S IVALL L ErP UnT' L.', I dll' 

1 - I- o_._ ` N I - ,:.. i,  ' m' IOm I m', I  ••  1'' FL. e = L ` I lc6-• aQ
Hl r:, f

p
3'' I 4• h• G II 1 • i

CIO Ln

qQqQ \ 

5
OUT PILL_. _ - IS 1° ., -_ -_ __. _ .. j. 2 lT _ 

I - ` 6.. ..-- _. - 

12'! G STn ^ P ' . fI, _ • \.'_. -" -- --'-- -- - " -- - -- -_.. -- -_ -- - 1rL, 
j11 -. III •. - ]; IZt 

li e' - lo 6. 
y.. 

jig

411= -_ -- -- - - -__- __-
b - 

I g - i AI! z " SOUTNEAS "( GO17 . J[_ fL`' -- STA12 A SOU i H \ V 5 1 CO2hJEl Z

nb I 1. 107 E• 7

S. 1Al2 G - t\ IOfJ._ TN) = ASO GJ2h1EI' 2_ STDEGk PLAID C - 61 " 1 cOw1TZ. 70 P2ov1oG 49 IVIr7EA//
AS. t7P• EN' G.  L

2 EAGU 1 = LE\ / A TO Ca OVn2 F02. IrJ S' 1 LL. A71OIJ OP h , / 

S; ELE'. VAT. v, Z DOJfL. PfbArn t45. FIE. t_ II• J r3L OG V- AFT Efc

12nC
JOB' NO " 

SL 763Lo" 

1 SHEET NO. r ' 

4: -- 8 . 

2 1
f

NM

In = 

i I / l_ \ -: 4- 411
441 I_ I 4 (_, TY1.) "_ 

I I- W  

200 aI :. 
L, i' I' :, STC( ZAGS 20l : ! 131 - 02 TYCj 17 3= 10 f a- 10 J X14 - x. 

I .. 
114. 

b _ In - .  2Hm OVAt3'.• E GoNC, 
J

I `- o r''9 f- jY ZOO
r \ VALE R CV( id - I* 

o • l! I Ie ELE VAT fL STAI rt. 3Z
O

i -i I + to

i f/ t/ 11

1

I

f

OJ : - .• _ ____' 1-_--''_..._- ... - -_ -. -- .-._ _ _.. .-- - __ --- _.._,. : 

I

L U / n. SA

i

sTArli ` 4
T

m 
I / 7, Y /: 

Q.. : O z

I' .', _ . - ___... _ . .._ _. ,. .. . - _ _ ... _.. _ _-__ .__.__ _. _ , . _.. ._ ..__. p i 3• - 1 iG - 3'- 4% 10. L "' II'_ q:, . r • 

m

I $

L

VALE- I•+ ASE ISIC ONE`/ - o / nIT Fog T

11 ALT. wlnl _ 1.._....._ ___..__ __ ____. _..._ _,__ 

141- G• 11 3. 2. ''. a'. i. .- _ - 
Ig. l• -_? if P: c, coNC I= ANELS - oar, wlc. lu'' b•• 4, _:._ - _. - 8'- t o,• - _. ... _ 11" - - 

I I

I, n' pr, ru

I --  4i-' ,_. - ,• t- 
Z•. lo 2o 17" DECK Pl_/ tJ

S!: JO\ V- SHAFT h10 7L1 \ VEST cozi. IGz
I' iL" °,. 3"° 4- r" tJEGIL T' LQN_ O2 2 3 A DEcI PL hl ti• 

p bIC7v. tJ ii
FIRST D° G' L PL- AW l' 1° 

of . N 2 e n " e I s14Vw
J

LA Jlilt " 

toQ

QEGK SN , 

I

d .
NOTE• O / nIT YNI> \ VALE UNTIL   W' O ,_ 1• I

J 1

Y : 12 " G / LO :•- : VJ: it i /' 

14 ° x VII

3cj= l
I

i

hT 36 e WI

OP5t lIh1G. 

I2• C JA / A116
G STRAP- ANo41om- 

To' / n ag oNlcY  - 

t -- 

E L. SO2L012" 

Olpopsv 44P

r

i

t - 

V
r

SLUE PRINT PAPER CO. 2C 2- 5 FORM 1

I

1

I• ,' _ T. L. I,${::. L6rI Ca .. _. _. ___ II .. __ .. __ Y ._ _ _ ____ ___ 
ELEVAT. O fG GbNT4. FJ AS _. 

yI Lr,.._ F. •. 11 - tt P .. .. „

I

INSTALlEO PO \ / 1- @. IJNIT. _ ._..._ _.._ _. _... ..___. _ ". . 
LOGIC. 11 q :. -. 1.. G- b' - 4 uo\ L 3 - I :. L. ISSB L I - 11'¢ II : 6c PAW LSe lib': 54' rn, G 128' ; 3 - I ; L. 3- 9 ma 4 - It 9... -.. L.: ." - I .. _. 

I. ^ STL 1•.... \ v 112 " SS 112 " K 4 Z3- ___ _.,_ .. "_. _._ -- ' y-'- -.- __..._ _.... .., I -- _. .. y. -_--- - . - 1- j.. ,., , 1 _ {• t1 } Oi ,..., to ' rn LL

C; U1V s- 7EFL• EZTorz C/ A. li _ t; I t
P ' 

qI` { I' 
loss \ I ... - _ 110 //a 4GaiJ C. IPhNF_ L!- I _ 

hGT51TIOh1EDA RE4 ,.
r) --- Ui

i. 1• I

t

11

FLT. 
cLls v. TLIis

30 eCUM. TN2ES1. 1a: 0' / -_ I I J I I fL m 743 - b' I

I /  • ' 0 , .!:. 
ALVM. TN2M_ SLO D. %' rl '. 

f /, -.. I

t /

1'' ! L. ,. - ' 2. 0 4, 3t- tt "' •`; ; 7L8, F, b , a• -- 
I

1 

cc

O 4

c o-l' 7 : STnI z 13 o t9P v - - - - _ 
A mLO fa 3 10Ga , r, / I 0. 0 ' .. -

I- vF- - - T -. r. _ I . r 

c

I _, STAIR G2r•, FL. EL. 7G. 7 I, 
0 0 LOrw fS I mo - I

c I / A; GHINE GL //.• 
I I :'. z . - 3 . 4 .. -,:,' - -- - - - __._____- <

I I _ I '.
I , tl .. -' 

rot of 6E, 1 / n;._ /. I _ - - 
I I - --^-, 

f - -,}' --- I: l04 I/ I /. I - 
P TOfL 1. 01

L. T 7G'- 7 i - 

1= E
I R .• _' 

i ', I ___ ' :; y  
v .:..: - ' I d. i' ' j .'' /' E2 - SE¢ I .

I ; e O
1N FL. : 

1 - 1 ._ fi O. VIOP' - AW / n. ' - ,^ rte. « , - _ ,_.__{- _-- / 

P
D

1¢:. !'
uI

1. - • ° rO; -• ry  
772 S t r - __ .. - , LnN - 57A 6'. 

Y r lfC''.>= fLSINE. lV 2 L• 511r _ . i i. '. q! tLcl • /': : 
Lwc "' cr ; _ o0o V I may_ s _ • I; a' I T, ! az'. f.. LE e5C1 ) CIO If / 

GTYF- & - --
t . _ I

0) I.- 

LY- P ALL. :+. I . MI ' hE51Z. t34 N' GG THE DELK: ' 4 :. ; i' 
TY / - - ' h -.__- I. I .. '. o•. . o = rn`' i .. 2 4' P 2

I / I ._..._:.
J 7AIC TOIV HES b k0 :. . 1 : , - y, 

A+. ! _. -: .. _. -.,- y. _ {.• - -.. - .'._. _. 
y• 

V _ ISNELFL 7 1 pl _-_- 
5 A O

n• / N, . 6X1 / ARL6 . REEK 1 L. 
d.. _ - ID? I ,/ 5NOw SL+ APT :... E. IG .-. ,_ : 1041:. ' +- t _ I __.. v :•/ I N / (- I - 

r. O ' I .. Abtl' NT. IW4. 1a 61a1. 1T g_ o1 \. 
P. N I =  N. -, - 1 . i . 

j. . 
I . _ I ' .' i To- P., ci' Tt 7n OS?_ titY. 2J: I '  

I I -. N ALl1/ / :.; . -___ - -_. . -. __ -_._. _. _ - - RUNGS, 2 1 % 3 RAILS _ _ L' ', - t:! I /' cYr IG. C. C. EGaw. AL

1 LEVEL' S'. 
ti IU h. E• r: yd 2

1 RAILS 3 = 0 tlove LOSOV rl: 1 F 1 ! r li 3= 14 -, i, 0. . Q• 2` I .' i U
Ul '' - -

0• . I ,..
ALE TO

I la' ExP.• / AAT' L If ' M', 100 - 

2 C ULK' a. oJO
f I 03  •• I i i - J LOI• s 13Y 102 0, I j: 7LI2

IA
d - 111 sl:. I t1 - ' 7 __ S ' 1

105 ' ., l• I ._ ' I _ i ": _' i -:- EXP: J ?. P, aETIV EI= 1d GURb10_ _:_- 4
I 1 %'

I luM: . I .• 1•- '. 1"%. '/. ..... X
1 ,

r _ _. f 1 , -.., F. F- 1- 7711"  :, ' \ t `' [ r G,• o:, 1T I I l02 __., . 3. 7 1- + 1
o, 64 _ t - I 17. ':...,. .'-\ _. ..._... -- - ._-_ :/ S IVALL L ErP UnT' L.', I dll' 

1 - I- o_._ ` N I - ,:.. i,  ' m' IOm I m', I  ••  1'' FL. e = L ` I lc6-• aQ
Hl r:, f

p
3'' I 4• h• G II 1 • i

CIO Ln

qQqQ \ 

5
OUT PILL_. _ - IS 1° ., -_ -_ __. _ .. j. 2 lT _ 

I - ` 6.. ..-- _. - 

12'! G STn ^ P ' . fI, _ • \.'_. -" -- --'-- -- - " -- - -- -_.. -- -_ -- - 1rL, 
j11 -. III •. - ]; IZt 

li e' - lo 6. 
y.. 

jig

411= -_ -- -- - - -__- __-
b - 

I g - i AI! z " SOUTNEAS "( GO17 . J[_ fL`' -- STA12 A SOU i H \ V 5 1 CO2hJEl Z

nb I 1. 107 E• 7

S. 1Al2 G - t\ IOfJ._ TN) = ASO GJ2h1EI' 2_ STDEGk PLAID C - 61 " 1 cOw1TZ. 70 P2ov1oG 49 IVIr7EA//
AS. t7P• EN' G.  L

2 EAGU 1 = LE\ / A TO Ca OVn2 F02. IrJ S' 1 LL. A71OIJ OP h , / 

S; ELE'. VAT. v, Z DOJfL. PfbArn t45. FIE. t_ II• J r3L OG V- AFT Efc

12nC
JOB' NO " 

SL 763Lo" 

1 SHEET NO. r ' 

4: -- 8 . 

2 1
f



U

an F
zz ( o + n

O r-  
U- N

7

POR CONTINUATION OF- = GCTION REFER To. Fb

2I
GONTINUATIOIJ OF SEGT10 L1 fLEPR_IZ T

r . 

F" t- -l1_- H 1_ • S _s- i / A -_ OPP WANDS.EGTION C - 9 %VHIcH 15 51 /A: OPP HAIJ 1 SE IOJ A, 

11

I. ... -   • 
1 . 

ii . I ;
aLO DE O, a STe IR LA L) DIIJ4 p Z

FIrJ. pL. 3Q °PEGtG - 1. - — i - -_ j° 
E, w; 1211b_-- _. - 

I °,
I - ' i- v 7

1 -__ AO
1 ._ _ __. t. '' I _. { -.__. _ it NQ

I -_ 4 RCLILIIJG  II X11

I SEE PLn j.. - .^ ALW/. SnbN - I
Z

I
1

I I' 

I

IY / \ 

bL

DE,:..+t c•rAIfL AN.P11 -l4
II

2ND I - • __. - ._ 
7 I INo

r _'--- ---'- -- 1 - -" -- 

1 - -- EL: 

78oK
6IO -r sY •; 1- '. - -  )'' _ 

i EL bv'- 111z -- e LE V So _- 
111 ,  F— '- ' r iY I - -- EL - 780L1f2° I i._- _ il' '-- - f -- -_-- 

t. -  _  LI I / . I _ w i \) __.
1/._ _ ____.__ -' 1. /`- LJNEL.. L

I .

I•   9 j`i iV. 0
1 , 

I . - - - --- - -- 

d
a L -- - g

FW
PI U Y K

n I•' _ _ _.__._ _-
i_ y ' - 

I I .. f pl .._ 

1  

I .-
1 -.. __. .: q _ Z -emu. I I' ' t) i, I I  _ 

ILI

Ia:, 

zE %P. / AATLcAU  p I I ,, A _:<' . _ _- ___._._ - _- Wpr, 

CI - 

TYP a 11 DOCK

uj
t _ I', _ _ L- ' I

1 ., I < r ___ -"- - --. _... _. . ,.. ELEV 77t' -3 x
I _. _ 1 - .: -.__.. _._.-- -- , _ {. -_.. - I !--, ; br PGCK L GrY !'' -' - -" 

IAr :! 
ii I . 1. - _ - z. Ex P.. /n T' L 1 cti e' - - - . - _.___._ _ _ Q

FILL. PL. 1pECK - %. I

It 1 n- _ ____ - -__- 
G. ._: :.. a l: L. prFlo ELE.v. 77 yi! 0 -dV h_ I 1 : i ... ff, { 7• / 

I- -.... _.__ , F_L_.- 772 -,32 ..! /.' l I. LI ' --- - : - 41Z Et'o.-/ - --/ -
lil -lo' r. 

Ucb

r
r. .... '

9. 1 ;, L% E EV 7l f I o' a' • Z
I ..,

v I I•' 
ctP.. Fi1n•' C 4. 1 , I 1 0 1. _ 

GaNL. - r. : _ _ - 

N U

t ;,  Ynaow>Je: w PL. w, . - '• 1; L 7lo,gj' -41y" ° p

r. W
pt.T, GIL 7

5 I . 
o _ 

N SECTION H- t STAItZ P 
5E CT 101 U ct SI/> 12 ' 

75 TA t3FcilvlJ F °  

SECTIOtr-I J Q ST 412' 6 - --- 
Ga } 2eaP sWnc- 7" 

N' 

U Z
Goa  

Q

I I _ r L.. e le zt% ... 

TPP or / A& 4o1J¢ y'-- - - -- - I - _ '-- -- - _ i ---' 
To op o _ ' - 

j . Y _ 
U

TOP: bF coNC SLA

1 ___
L_  f px

r -_ _ -:• _ i7R -IGIG r _ _: _ -. i STA12La' ELM l̀/ D I O - 11 2 . 
TOP oP Go,•IG.'  -- - -- I / 

IS, i -- - "_.__ i .: 
I 1nd'I -- ' STAUZ ' 6 • c' EL. 815 =3

A. ,. - -- -. -.. -. ..
r - =. t.:.: - f i p / I. I

Goc1 "
i _. _. __ . i EL. Lilo - II2 . -" -- - l ''. _____._ 

Q

1

r

hLO w - p i o - -
t ! I - !: hLOrrlc • i .. 

bnlC -; o{ y oGG

Y

I .,/ .: 
bft•IGK- _ ,.___ I   N - __. -

I. t i i  
t _..... _ _ .. 

is

Low- _ "

F.__ .. _._._._ -_._. - , i  J. m

U11. {= 
PILING / __ _.. 

r .._.._ .. I :_._._._ I .. .._., -- _ - 
Y . I 101 dr _ _ - 

I f: µ¢ llZZLE. _ I
I ;` 4 :. STLC PIP," p - ---. \\ -

JZG) iNG TYP. I CT - 4 L• 

1..'
y --- I

lq i 11 /:;- r -._ .,
I. 1 _. STUbEG; L•' d u1G,

y. -- ,__ _. _ _ ': ' /< - N
cee vtuz LLtilnlua

I \\ 
L _ _ 

i

a - 
Ip{ - I {. 5 PELK Lo16t3Y - i I - y_ :... j, I " 1= L. 80'L': -ZI2 °. _ ._ _ _ - _ . _ 1 C_. - 1\ .:, • ,{ 

I '., I . EL $ OZl - 71 Zn .) -. {.. I _,. .. .. __.._. Y. .. _ - i• E.L. . 6p. l'i• . D \ i' /F14 N

I ,  .:  • Irk '

01
4n 5H . r / -_ ---

i
EL

TYP. En..: I-1 t7 Glc.. / V 0
a

J

p -- r-1 61. , L ' ! I  __ - :. GLtl7n. ' S1Grl `, .. -- - ;' i ' 7`?$' -

321° - 
I

r•rI --- - - --- - ' /' 
Q

I 51?13 I? L AJ- .,: _ - - -- - - - -- - - - / 
ol.tG st -.irs

II1.- 
I _ _..__. 

r_ - _.... : ' 
I  B/n NOYOU R• 1 ' 1 je-6Decic. STAIR LA O, N4 i _. 

i
I

I I -- -_ -_ / yLy'. 1°? PEGK Cc6vY ' I I{ __ _ -. 1 ___ 

III ! - - 
8 -. 1b5 3z  ~_ 

q

I

J

t - 
W . 

TYP 2.aI L11J7C-, CON D1710 L. 1

I I ^ IV
Z V ^ _;_ `-'. _ G IC / 

W1I'_ • I' 
M LOGVi - _ l i _ 11 - - _ _ - ___ -_'__ -_.___ _ 1

I .. ., 

5` pE

11
I •• 

i

1'><a- 
JEtK Lo6DY_ 

71' L't ' f '' ___ - _. 
IZNhVEZe• IQ IS6Y _ _- ' - -__._ y r  I i. \ - a EL 770

t
T7ro' =i1.2+ 

I . _ - .: : I d I I
a'  uj . 11.' 1. ;:•/ SIGN

I
Q - 

F_ . F_V 76

I

Q" (

ol_
Orl IZ loj_p I of I I 0'': 

I. I

Ot yl { .. 1 j \ a, ' LIJ
I

I - - '. 

EUe./ 76. 1• 3i
LACaU Eft C/ A

Gtic Lo&*,r i-.,. r- -. 7 '
f" _ -.._ •'..: 

LL

LK , 
I - 

I 
J

r. Ex'. / AlT' L 3 CAU G _. n ... 1 _.__ I --- t ° - + e., - - - -  . . 
c, •' f

r

EL ,'.-767 7 ' •... . 1[- j

I n _— _ - y -_._ 
li_l I ..>. 

n '' _ _, p _ ULK_ -. > 
u. — .

i  

ay •
1 _  ' 

I I
In

z. I .. 0 .. - 1. - 

C4 .
a4  ;' 

i'. 
l  I ,' i ' ta v' fl Rn. t - .. 1

I ' 
I b• . .: GdNG. -._ I I

III I I• ..   I I I '. b I ,. _ -- I '! I. I •' I / A,LGHIIIF_ R/ n FL

FL I ; ' { 
jELEV 763' h 

LJ .. I : b.. - r° ' nl •° ml .. I I _ I  .. In 11 L1L : 7/ o

G3, gds a: -- 

I. -• 
p: I , n

I- " '" .`  o.'• ' ' 

I' 
5EG I I Ot l 6 - G STA12. A

a .'• A- o" .. r.' .. Q• SE. TIOtJ • A ST/ 12
JOB o. 

2 A - 65- 19
SHEET NO. 

M 9
I

r

FLUE PRINT PAPER CO. ! C f•O. ARN. Iq

r , 



G Z ,. BRO.t/ CE- f/ d PL -- G.a re AL f- ' 

oo

9e3 AT EACHL7FCC "' 

IN _ 

zl

l

5 "A,e,•.A ORA // J

0 " S'rRA14 e-,e /• 2 '" J'T.PA S.,/ 6:C . P /PF P_ /.cep CLAMP. 

I

F H/ 6CA UCk BE w
I

CAal, CGU I P /PE SL EE-vF

AA, 11-i- 

zzt

iy', I - I + I• f /OE OF SLEf F

I
s— ¢ "Gi,2£- M; if'C V" 

CLAMP - 

f

OF COL

5•'-¢.5' — _ _ 
5' i5 "r 4 " Y —% 

I -- GOC F : i {' :'JG. 
I

DFTA L

1'

1'z Uo/e fl eE, / SA //v nE-ZA- D, PA /,v D/c/ o /yc7-o e

10,e 1AV-1

S'G'LL!- /.•_ / l Cam.. 

r a„ 

n• - F,e,aM Mf E "e /:M I / •• -. 4 ,. C! AUPP/ > -: 

4

BOLTS

TAP

11 ° 
f

4' 

SuNG r A/ fGEEtiJiiT /(2 %/ A /Z'//' i

M

v • 
S7-A /,e ' c„ L058Y / Oco I  _ STAIR "„ LOBBY 20c 

ICI' 

1 z crI. _- —_ ' - -. - i , .

i

I I I i - 4 QAL , Sr[. -P /PE, _ 
5701z, 207

i- c1 o v

3 C I HF U G CAdLK 9E.7 EEv

i f - I _ 
I _ -. 

I' 

G

s'4 -E F  CO.t/ u - ..-- d' C E / /CO FLAN!•.E

4

lift, 
f ...... _. 

G AEV FL. --   I % 

I  

I , 

N _ ! _.) ' / 
C /rY of Bi.C'M /u ,/ /MG' CW ON I'. ' i

1 L. _ .. _ _ _ 
r +-- - — i

T , PU F[.. Mf TEE.•. $ •' C [. P /PE 9LEd' Vc --. 
R • ' 

J T _ 

TOlLE7 —_ - -._ \ 
I  _.— ,+•' e/ Pier

PlPINv I ` G' CW ONF /'OM f g CW

AT CLCi. - 

6 •64r A, e- 

E YA.. E
LIP

l

ov

3 - I
i

I

a ( SAL. , 4'i /: _ ° / / l  ^ - _ 

y 6' CW UPS _ F,c?M / rr FLOOp_  

f G • YfArE f/ALYE '. 
r

I
I

r _. __. L " CHECK VAL E- `~  .•
Zw

srLE;'/ L 'J.'1 / 4/ / U fE' T / /E[4 S'T C[ 2/UEe

D/ DD Si1i°) Or' l Fa,P i O D /.E" l

I

OWE PRINT PAPER CO. SC [- U FORM 103

Lf It+'
NN1 •`<, 

UJ

0kLL Z
OVW

ZiN411

N `- 4

ZO

lU

Li

O U tc

U1 N

W F. 

F- U

Q W

U

O. 
n

z' 

f— C) ( n

V

CIS U
cc , -

I

L- 

J { 

W m
Q

O ' w

z j z

O
is

1
r

G

I  

5

A

i\, 



r

2 7 2 l a
a W

v

At
I ' ' 

I « 

W W IZZN* 
a '- 

O U UpJ C ; ter
FOp, COWT. SE°_ 9t /AILA -_ 
SB CTl01 -1 ' A" STAIR-A' 9H* 

S •,`.. 

i'. I .
d - --- -- -- -- •' ila-' - - -- r 3'• IOecl'. STakL ! % y' : 11 / ---- ®- r

AFI I' 

ry. . i '_ - - ,'. S oeclG atar+G i } A,. IbING cL. '• ,; I,,: .. ° - 1 _ - - - - -- -" - — 
S ; y I

rioei P  ¢ oopp 9U ArAi{ . • 
I _ / — - - - -- '

d' - r s1 a
j1 . ;. , r -- - - - --- = 

iLV? A LLL • L!i._ I ''  OI O Z
1

it ._ __ .._. .,. .. _ .
u"•(- _ 

a °' - _ _. ! I

iT
I- _ - '.  

I NIW  

I

tj

I. ._. --' --- O. t __ la-od SsL vlcE I/ " rI,. 
I

1.: 

7___ - -.. •• __ _ 

t-- _____ 

I 2 vac tihla. i - 

f

r. gn DECL.4Tw1E.! GIGK cg_ 4- LrbIWG LF L, N . 

M1

I _ _. I_ .. -._. •. /; ni n6LIG GiA, ft L -- • q LIJc 960 - IIrZ 
Z

LAUDING_.. EL._ 1' - uA'i' EL. ISO•. 11 , Iy
mj

Q
r r

t .
1 ' I'. V' • f b •' J a

70jc 
1V0 • coU C. 3 /A. 

LL

Q00 F P_ A Q S T A l 2- A ', ,' ¢ C7U0. h //°+iDG.CL'_ Ac
VA n

y -- - 
N

2a•• 6° :.. I
Ji

1 4Y, / 1 - -.. 

Y _. _._ -:._ _. ...'' _ '<,•.. t-',

v f ___ .- ___ /

a;

r CO{. 4l -_ 
I' ll DECK. 

5TA121
v

1

12 1 ______ __ -_ - - -_ _ _ -.._ ' 

1 I ST PECK Pf..a v: Y ., k.. 
a_— - DE6K. 4U12 

nl a' t DEGIL ST
o e•.' i . _

Ml 
t`_ LwND L

C. aL .. Q. ` - -____- _ - .- i

I _ 
j __- _- .___ -_ d • 

771`_ d

O. L. 

I
I. ...-- -- -`•- _ ... ,.._ -. y,l I t .. 

1. 

rs -. 

I
1 - _ _ 

i• 
o...: ti <: r,- Lob „ IOfo _ _ r J U

AO ao,• ^'', -- - \- ORRY Imo_ -__. - \. G 9 0t0a ...•.. .•..x• 
3 " x lfa, f10 !' _._ __ T EL.7 Gi'. I•• 

O I : n 1: i/ '.. -.-.- __ -_. . _ aovC. C. ae, • - -_ EOG ::,T _ s± -____ -  

I r - . _ . _ _ _ -._ - _ 

p + 0 - N U

t5(_ / nEacu. II if I I ;; _ il_ D•. I - -- - - -
p -- !

6. t ¢ 

j I . Q• 1 I I I a / Evv. wTh L -. - ' p 7 •'. ` 
I

a Z' 

II e

Sao, _ v' = f o Y n . C I F u
r II C I i 0 f 1 /-',- I 

a

S T / I 
II

C ,
I

5ECTION C - to 5Tl'\112 C SLCTiU I - lo STif C _ 

STL POST/ IZ U) Z
u y" Poor -NdTLH SEG. SPCC.. ,- G•)) j` IA I

I `_
5, t

r

A '   r ;. a, - 
r  FIRE ± K T. C4Tb. 

r - -_ _ 

I ' 

v • (•'. eP _. 1 W ST O. I PIPE' POST / - %__- _ 
II ` G Gb IZ LTL. Po ST- , •  - ._ } I

V

1 , 109. 1. L_' -- /-  ,{ 
I?.'- .} L IL

C< 12' Yla" (.- 

FOIC N.OTtt \
V LO TO .,_ 3., $ TLl ` I I F1C °_ E`( T, CAD: I 661Q,,. 5T'_ POST

I - •+ - - 
I PlrU4 WsSl7 FL: TO I. _ I I { __ i : - •- r c

i i 2p'v 14 ° STRAPAU:LHOtL I I rl
L

71 P c '. _

3 -

4 ° . O SA F? TY No$ 1, JG I1 j
a'• a l2 " x 4' - : ^

Ge1Z 4T`_ ^aiT
c IU N' ` !, II __ _.. . N

I

T ''

I 9 // 

NI 15 - G CANT / -. -__ - {- f-
I - 1

I- 

4" ST. T23 " GUALO GAIL : )\ 
I

s= GTION4 - ' ` Y
4 O rNIN _ 

V , 5 4- °' 
GUL2U 2hIL< 

A, ' I tl j J (n
4/ u L° oP oN

lJ X i Ij I ,. i -- r - - - - I.T '\ - oly'• . IN4a! -.. . I t 4. - - I .. A- - -'- -' -- --- - -- _ •- 
r-1 r - -- -- -- -- - - -- - - - - - 

i A'•2 D ( L I l_ - - -- '! cd
as:Y3 x14 -. 41NTTe  

nr.v
7•, {!, , ) "/ \ 

d
r, -. _: .: 

C1NT5L F. A,CH' G PI' f- 4 54 L 6UGHOC° Q. -_._. _ -- 
rY

a - - , d Oio
FSO- a 2 i t S

GW  
i

f ” 
tjtj0

0 .. • D _ o c,; r —'-- .._ 
1, •• 

O ! '-! _.
t2' 

d-' N
v

v -_ 
r 9

w P OF C

t 9 CO`_ _ rNE __ • 

I. 
I

I : 0 UiMT .- - CK

Wkk µ zM F RBI IALGY_ ( r•

Y'\\_ -_ -.. (

SL L•_ 

Ci'; r ! 1Q'
I- "_ 

JIODt.  \:. " (
J -- 

1 .
a: . of %p d o I•' : • p o

ff, 1 I. 

r

fl
I„ •. 4  . Q  ,• 4

PEAIPOS02
ISO

I I
og DO ST - 

O
J

u_ I "

L

4% LT

4eD V_ wbstzas. _ ' r, O
x. -• 

4. . -- K `` 

i T __
4" ,

U _ 
m

3,7 
z ' W

ryF. 12AIL_ING 4
2

2 O J Z
v' O 11z ". =11 - 0" 3 IZw_ 11_ oli IZn= 11_ on

CI
1- d . m

211 :a 1 II

f- a

i
r - - 

11- •`,. 
1,: i___- -- -: = 

r - _ ___ ;_ . ' I - 4, - - -, ' -• - - 1l _ _ > oN tAr 4 2 4.1 o - I I _ - - - - _= j - I ; I

3• `_ IOI " 
N: 7A. FCNn

I , 

1

I

2 M T AAA r. ; LA r _ - - ` 
Pzl̂TII>AINoU6 „ - L1t741G- = co / ECSeE I_ - - -_- - _ -- - -- — 
I! i 1V // 1 Fi TJ 1 — T _. - - -- I DcctL =`_ iV. `'. = 1 ` ?':, .. 

y .. I .. . .. - .. - :. d•.. .. r J
hLAF'a. ... °• 

I - - ,.;.. .. 
r. ,: -- -- - - - --- " o' -)' O' u _- __ _. -- -_-' ------- ---- --- `------ ^- --•-- - d 'ems- - 

i I .' 0

I

1

I - - -_ 
F- - ^- - - -. - ..- 1;- : f " fG.. -_ - -. .- _ H. /A. F WAS

l.. - - -: _ `. :. c __.-__ __ -_ -_ _. _ _.... _ __ -•! I a - _ -_ ._ 
1

cC 57_t IJ I6 S - C` LT.SfL TA 6' t YWL- PIGpL

1

V / 

1 f o6; 1 ilk
p .. 

0

GLwYEL...': Q L -• L_ -- - ,..: -'' s' -_ 
d

r, _d `, k.' .. r Q
I . GONL. - Oz ErI -NGN :. ".. FL° o4 - _.- - .!- - -- -._ _.._. _... .-- -- - - - - -- •. ..' _ D` CY- ELEV. - y o, o •.::+.,•;:,•_.•` a . , 

y. •: 11,• .. .•, - • w -- --- - -' -- - - -- -- - •_,. - ,. o,.,. V , . 
p. - T- - -- - - - - - - -- - 

f _- W
cn

JOB NO. 

I211 P 65 - 19

Dr N
C. T I • 

SHEET NO i'
r- 

s: 
sctiL lad" 

FLUE PRINT PAPER CO. ! C 1- 65 r. RM 10 - 

I. I' _ -_._ —_ i ' L rl- _ —_'__ _ - -_ ..— _,_+
4r —1— -- t __..-. r_ T_r- •.1_ ---'- - -" - - • f - -" - ---~ -

Y _ _ -' ° ---- - - - - - _ - - - - - - / 

n _. - - - - 



1

6 2

4y
3' -o D 0 ._ 5 14' 

GRo - JILL

rL r̀woorJ l I I ' b 1.' 
CALv- 

TYP. Fog . 40"' I - ALLI& I ° 
U

TN2u 4r" ov_ 1L I J
I - 

THRE5I.JOL
i , / /•. i _ 

I - 1

p
fl• \ '

21

GAULK

CTYF) 

LA
o a W: ' II I . 1 .

a

vWi; '- - -
134x 42 nL -U /n, TUPt)G ' 

GENT' 20(K' 
ISIp- ST o GAU LK 

Q NW a

7WMu E; DEC14 S' - 

IZ

1 _ 

4x16 L' 4 LoNG - ry

FqALL DeclLS - P2ovI t7E

SLOTTMO HOLE iw Vr-r -7rO: 
r'• ° I

b &scut 5.z I
GAULK._. 

h / / 

3

I ' 

i

i- 7 -_ I3 FILL \ V/ LEAN COIJG$ 1¢ \

14
V

bEF_P GA UL14 C̀T f3ET{VGEt_I CLIP 45. \ - - -! 

774. 

6Locr .,- ,, , 

i 14 - , % / ':; i! •- -BAULK _
I

v _._ -_._ —_- UN15TIZUT P • 32.90 - r`.. /, /•! I. 

12 _ 

FILL. 

SHun PANEL
j-.. 

Jr

i » !• 

I ! 
FELON

y \ \\ 
y , •. IY/ LU1.115T2UT. P• 31? i4 CLO5U2E I¢ IOTA

ST2.IP NffT\vCEN CLIP L5. / 

21

o, rmty 21 - TUTS _ wT

I

I
I
I

I / 1V D. FLOC V- IIJG

12 I ' STU RS 1V EL LIEU 10 41X4 K 14i

13. / V rLprJFING OIJ
i CLIP C - • LONG. 2 STUDS PE2 L. 

IZ fzlclo Ir` I ' SJ LpT1 orJ- i

LU /A, GRAVEL 570P CALC04 8"10416) 

SEE NOTES 0E-T. rJ.0. 1 ' -- - r

41 -_ 41 ` IS o LIT IO VI / A AT "L, 

o _ 

a

I ° 

GONTI r -.1: DOVE - A1 L

L $ LGT` - ' LTT' I? 
4, CJ , I / '

o // / - 

I

I. 
j '

U• }
I2   "

I '- (
REGA' iT GOIJ G. PA LIEL

j3, x I ° x Ib c\ u
r!.) Y SASH! CONT2. LI DOWEL TOP P.. FAN L. I. 

A T +F \ VEST \ V/YLLS. FASTENI TG GOIJC, CAIJL L. I To SIDE. FINS N/ ISc'L TI oI,l / A AT L. a II 1 - , 
j

TYP. , ALL r_ aU, Ar_15 /
II S1- TOTEV- tJORTN m F! C) 1- Y I 1 I DotVcLa

SOuTU WALLS TYP, ALLI or- C• IG5 I , Gr 5 GU2E a L 55

I
I

P61GE OF /AA"soN2Y
7

12, CE/ n, PA241Ny I Iti4LU /n, 5P.5r1
L

TYP. ALL WALL: 5

i

2

I

I

4 SLATE 5 cCJo I I' 
j Ii LAN 01 W[ j

i

ALL DE WC.) 

LINTEL J m 0
I Fla 51 -In -1 i SEE 3PM,, DET Llo, A 3

065 C U RE GL. 
Q J. 

OUT5IUE C +L 42 a
CJ // S" x 3,. x SHELF L C/ n 1. TYr i

1 
p p _ 

DECD c4 STA, rd TO \VMWI V, F

SNOW R- E,•,`.O`/ A '._ SHAFT ' 

17 In+ n i

I n

H F' t' r GOUR5Li5 NO'1 SHOW/_1 Q I 
f Gohl , PI O

j5JT (Z. c QU12ao FvF_me, !„ TN CS. ` l J • /. -, , +. . T , 

tlJ 1

p

i u ! 

S' 

joji

1! 
li 1

or'sscUrz_e hJ51o aLAZEO --- 

o' - d 1 +_ 

EAC_N E Foe- 

3':, 

I {

III
I e)! 

t 1

II

1

14 STL FIVE 2 1r• ICy• WALL1
II% 6e.n VET< w0. TYP; 

IIIr
1

SLATE STO,nL :' I' 2. 1t M'» $ 5' N OFD ItS nI

ZuoDEo._ LAIJDIIJ Ci

o. • .• j 1; , ,. I , W ; a I

I

06 SC U 2E. CaL• - U

OUTSIDE G1L EL
d ! 4 ;( i _ - ,., 

i
11Z•. ' 

MC 4

4 - 1

UISOLATIOFI / n, T' L• 
ri I. v' 

p
v

r
A. L) LIL

I I p i j-' •  
ll

I n

SEE NOTES _+ 
DET NO. 9

i

I+ i < m _ 

d! r i ).  -.`.• 5¢ x 12 ALU /n ( jA2 '. 
S

a41 o YLtii
TOP

1 - 1
Q04

l, 

3 • . 12" 
ALU /A, r2Am t7_ 

ALU /h. TN 2E 1. HCL 0! w
I

0r /A of P• IOS

1 STAIR " ti l P I- p iCf. D 

18• X14 S` 1' 8q- 
I' 13

O
P

a _ 

I / -

Ca NC. IVALtG ¢ ° TA12 A
l

I / o ! 1V OC %CJ'+4A. RD Ave ENTI2ANGFfS

F'41R Gf(TfiND. S; vc'.vA L+L C

1 n 4 PITCH 1¢ 
b

o- I '.. b
d

I _, / s• opt-Ia. 01.1E

E_x.P. // AT' L. 

SEE 1JOTBS DET. IJ O.{ _ F&CF_ OF' 1VALL C >E YONZ/ 

D , °.  p04fL G^PEIJI LJ C7

l'  0 \ I/ _ / - ,' /  O .+ ' { • "" I ` 
z o T42EAGEb ANr =HOriS

p {'. 
I/ 

A5 T LU GONG { SAN

aT — - -- f —' -- r =

T

I  mfi .. -. i - -  1o11x 4,rlx.3gnLL \\ 
UNI L Z7o

I -

jII  
I I

1514 EdW - 151C NIEs 14 ISrp. EtV - ISl6 NRS .. j4.' •

4. 

4'' 4oL'! S14• I 154E . w 150I65 14d - - - Y

1'. 1014 - " 10 E b •`V _. 1 - 1014 ' l° E W 11_ 1 OIA

u it; I f S 1 G• rd' N ! 5 _ .._ - - 6 6' N 6S STAI. r2- 

7owEz

O

I I ! O

F ` 
LV I _ 

S. N 6 S5 I
1 '

L I ) .. I, 

1'- 3" PAN E*.L OI /n 6 E457 1 WEST f= LFV T' 25S - PA LIEL DUA, rr. IJORTN SOUTH EE V• 3{  12 E Q { V ." _ I ( o •  - i' EQ mV

T`( PI C.6 FtWFL DI /n. _ 
4

C4, 71 N d 5 '- 1 j J3a

11

Ill PRINT PAPER CO. VC 2 -23 FORM IH - - 

t

I — 

I 1t t

O . • J

I

j0EY,41L 17, T4IIS 54-1EE.T

20

In N
w

F' U

W

UHF- 
O Z

Y

I U

QV

n Wti n6 co s

Z

Ld Q

s`1 U= cj

LL r

U

W f

In N
w

F' U

W

UHF- 
O Z

I U

L  

Z

LdQ

LL r

U

W f

N, yNV

Q

U) z

U

0

n

U) 

w

IInnV

v U
Z

j m

0
j

I\ . 

CL
I-- o

J` 

W

F

In N
w

F' U

W

UHF- 
O Z

I U

L  

LdQ

U

Q U

n WQ
IInnV

v U
Z

j m

1T/ 

CL
I-- o

W

LCD J W
0 D

z w m. 
LD

I 
Z

1 : W

O a 1 z
in j

W

Q

07 



V) w
V) 

K C ,' i', /- J , 71t
2ulj_ x lg4LU / nL 1 5s 114,.. 2

y

p .. 

LA / A. P AnTIc ON
34r PLYIV000 P• G• GoL1c. Poll - - , 7. GErA. ASP. PA1. lEL I  / 1 I •• AlV/ n L

b - D
P. C. GONG PnNt__ L. 14_ jl l r

T

I C0. 

fit .. 
0 2A lV r-L fL 512. F- T o

J F 1Y . aa' I Imo) _)' V . -. -_.. _._ _ rLl _ I _. _ M A' 1 .. __. .. .._... 
J

I'. i --  SFE. 5f -' E: c. 2 REC, + rD __. -_. ____._ - _ ------ .___. __ L. 

TROWELLF_ P

3jkILL J/ A
2 

E FOIL
GOEJM . 

V
A

sWtiS. 
UPLAANTEEO

L I1 24SEE INT. E LE VATI N • 14x1 4 x B ALU / A L
HIGH VT. OF SLA15

I
CoNTIN I % 4 - FnSTtN ' l' O

0 9EE PLAN. TL115
136 % 13+, - Nl TUf3 _ 5 E4CH ENO. AU LK\ 

I 1 ____ - _. -____ - __ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ __ _ _ 1 n

i v V cle,. I  

DoWNSPOVT NozLLE SY lAEGLl•- I ' 
3 F 5L- E DE-(. YH15 - 5l

v

I2° 141 14 - l 4 14- 

71- yl A- SLIMING SD
NAHo

N
I

Y

S'- O 14 II¢ la a. 

SLIDING

I 1.... \ • Il 5 I

F\. 

5L. IDWG 4LU/ n SAaH
G

I I COPE I4 x 4z' TUIbE ' ' - F--_" r 1 I• 
PoELOIV SILL It C: kp TOIII \ Fo rL / A 13 3 • ` GrJ UrJTE IL

O• jll{ 4 % I ¢ TUI' t- , 1! P , 1 `_ 2 " CO NOU< Tcti

N I E

SLI D1rJ C, 8A' 5H
0 J Ilt 01 SI .° - ry' : 41! \ 2• coN ou cTol

D : \\ ' SZY - / hE. C41. ... ,' 

1 I \ \ j I TUISC 3ELUN  LL f

j
1 Mmi

OFFSET c. MO- F SLAB

qll 0 Q - I \ \.% To SU/ nP Af30v F_ 

iIL

CAUL K -"' J ) 
PIL + 

I / \` \ 5 C45T PAID Iz I- fn .- 

TOOWELLD- P' / AARIb t- li U I ' r 1 Z /• \ \ \/ $" 17_ oOF SUGnP APcvr- r

oN z' ce/ n. nss N W In m} a
r

PAY 1hEG14. 

C AL) L IL

t - - - -- u; t I o

P. c: col. lc b D J V

P4LIEL \ : 4 IL

i . , 0 t
a I

la

Y. Ilv' x 12 x IA AW/ n L
C4 _ 

mi 1
N

134 X 134
I

U- 
7 '

Cl sa To
Y. 8 ALU / AL

I .. a i / P c. Pa1J E L_ 

I x x 3a ALU / A P• n Q. ` 
7YP) 

4 - - - - -- " 

D' 
a ' STaP p ( 

r "_ _.. CAUL IC. . 

r

t .._-- --- --- --- --- '— 

A L -- \ C, l CI- 0- 5 G COR_ NERb
E 4. CH COfz_ Nl / 

oALU / n THt2e iH C> LD
V

IZ 12

m

p U ` y
6. 

f3 U 200( PIJ Iz 21G10
D LC 141 NG' x , 

9
BO E P

SoLT TO CoIJC- 3o " O. 0
IN SUL ATI OIJ . 

MI - - -- - - - -- /;- 
ALU // t

A * t- S' 7
STdP J

d

N

U. 

GL\ UL K
1) - 

r
Ul . 

IjrI
VU) 

LJ / AI
1

13 ' 
ISIZ I4 . ZI ! 

C.-,' A . ASP. YoNty/ ,

I

4R34<• -
rO F, 

NW

t
A N

SLIDIFIC' J fl ; 

Ir
134% 4z AL0/ n
Fm& / nom I U! r

fL
0

bI
e

m

n _ 
ROOT OUT I), 15L) 101J  TOP _ 

W
CI

1 Q
d , + 2 13d Itr PJC>_ r_rO / nl OFI Pl. IJEL - Cl I . . f•• U

Y 0: 
4- Y, / IN \ v D. rsgodK', To 2EC6wF_ I I I r ¢ •- O U ¢ TROIV ELL F_ D . AARI. + + 

Old 2' IIJ6Vl_ < SCREWS f101 SUPPO2TG PA1JcLi Ir

CE / n. Q57b. PAJ EL f

i I I
N N

1 EDEE OF P. _. ° i % - 13'} X 1 4 ) e I& ALU / A I _ ' W
PALIP_ L gEYONG ! i. U

Q W

u C8
o

7 to _. • °' , ) ' - _ N {. i

U) X
rol ` SNI, n PANEL 14' 

i
fjITUMINUOU PAVIN CS Q ' Q

0 2 I

12 J 12 ^ Q
12 5 0:•  I 12 _. _. 

I  

U i

U Q

ELEVATION J

m
co z ' ALU / n 2AV L' t_ •; T•=) P -.  12

II

I jll DIl.+ Fy ALV; n I !  I \ J
SA H

Uit
i

I

I I I

P:"' JT NOZZLE I i
I , 

I

i I C I ! I n -- 

W a . 
ELEVATiO_ N_ ELF'_ VAi 1CDf- J U

L1 J J > 
J

a

Z a' Ili 0
r

0 lc J Z
lm J 

W
I - ( S U( Zt(: V oL- ' CEGTom• t- , 

fiJril r. p CH C• GTOR s

Q
7J 6 DTL. PIPE FILL. v Gol - fir_. 

Turs 5HT• 
L

j 

iEE OeY• TN14 SNTI 1j % _ L JO - 1 - 0" AP. ovE cotlCoT cy 3' - 0' DEC_ c =• •_- 

O r r 0
r:. 

j • 

Off. 1-_ - J tP/ 

U1/ GATE S4 1_ 1 T s, 

1 I
A. A

IDOGTH ! 

li *  ' 
I S. •. ATTEFI CAN . r" 15P' 1 R - C %

I
IVi- '- ,. EKP. vY. U

0 AI 0: = i FA, Tara Dn
I

u1

OO'rb .j. I u r; 

IYU `D. 1• 
PL. EL: TO. ab

I , i
r

Y lea. o' - -, 

I :
f 6Q

E % PnJbICV Id

TS4 -\ ^. t 1.

n43..'
I. 

I

1
IN I X21012 ELEVATIUI 1 ! _ _ !- 

G ALE = I. O I ..

r b 3• b• 

1- 

vs. r > :' —" '•' 
yy,, : ' 

s. a. i_ ( ` 
A. ). ET IN C STRUL` I' ItJN CO

11 _.. 
M U 2 - oO' 4• lo v

cc u

RUnr6c D; JTrpTar ' f_ — -- ` oF P, a., TH UPaiC3t_' f [ 9C TOP. Y
x' E ° F e. coTrl _• i O i

rTr

Kr
M A

L_ 1
i

F L Iz: aNl' E PLALQ V/ 
V

k - - - - - - OC D1 \_ A( 2CJ` F_ QT2At JCE

zJOS4 / n $ 4gg2• A3 " = 1 f
NcJTE• G. s7e 5 ] D = PIT`_ rl ARE Ta 3 J07C CAiL" ANP 5 ITTF_ R AtzF_ T bE

LL_ LLJ

j3- C LOG. T E: I> FIU> M PRI; L ENT F' GJh ITt N OPF n [ C> C- r PL'> CI' 1r. AP R' sENT (- 0 ` = 1 G U OFI

I \ 
R' A7 - C . '$' 7; - rb NGW f 0<, ITION P"( O \ V NE2 \ V Or•> G> VVA P. L: AVF - r- O t_ t E. V C. YN L^¢_ 3

c

171l ' 
Li

f

Il 1 •

I - ! _ 
gITUTAIN0005 SURFACC fjY OWNER / 

JOB NO. 

DOW l' SPOUT NGZZLE ED _ 1L - f ' I -- --_ - -• 

65 - 19IIR 1'° \ GO IDUI COJC. fbA5L` _.. 

F > R / A 2 Dr EP. REa L' S5 3' SS> J4t) - E / 
FOR DETECTOR. < OIL - ' 

Colt- FU0. NIpNCD rSYOW1,) 6P.. CCNTR TO 56? IN CfA. JD FILL / f ' -
t

SHEET NE). //AC` tiETIG GCUIL DEi` ECTCIL

BLUE PRINT RAPER W. W FORM 103 - -- 

I 

IIIr
N

Ell
YD DIV1Or lL

4-% V," ALU/ A TU( iE - 

f

V) w
V) 

K C ,' i', /- J , 71t
2ulj_ x lg4LU / nL 1 5s 114,.. 2

y

p .. 

LA / A. P AnTIc ON
34r PLYIV000 P• G• GoL1c. Poll - - , 7. GErA. ASP. PA1. lEL I  / 1 I •• AlV/ n L

b - D
P. C. GONG PnNt__ L. 14_ jl l r

T

I C0. 

fit .. 
0 2A lV r-L fL 512. F- T o

J F 1Y . aa' I Imo) _)' V . -. -_.. _._ _ rLl _ I _. _ M A' 1 .. __. .. .._... 
J

I'. i --  SFE. 5f -' E: c. 2 REC, + rD __. -_. ____._ - _ ------ .___. __ L. 

TROWELLF_ P

3jkILL J/ A
2 

E FOIL
GOEJM . 

V
A

sWtiS. 
UPLAANTEEO

L I1 24SEE INT. E LE VATI N • 14x1 4 x B ALU / A L
HIGH VT. OF SLA15

I
CoNTIN I % 4 - FnSTtN ' l' O

0 9EE PLAN. TL115
136 % 13+, - Nl TUf3 _ 5 E4CH ENO. AU LK\ 

I 1 ____ - _. -____ - __ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ __ _ _ 1 n

i v V cle,. I  

DoWNSPOVT NozLLE SY lAEGLl•- I ' 
3 F 5L- E DE-(. YH15 - 5l

v

I2° 141 14 - l 4 14- 

71- yl A- SLIMING SD
NAHo

N
I

Y

S'- O 14 II¢ la a. 

SLIDING

I 1.... \ • Il 5 I

F\. 

5L. IDWG 4LU/ n SAaH
G

I I COPE I4 x 4z' TUIbE ' ' - F--_" r 1 I• 
PoELOIV SILL It C: kp TOIII \ Fo rL / A 13 3 • ` GrJ UrJTE IL

O• jll{ 4 % I ¢ TUI' t- , 1! P , 1 `_ 2 " CO NOU< Tcti

N I E

SLI D1rJ C, 8A' 5H
0 J Ilt 01 SI .° - ry' : 41! \ 2• coN ou cTol

D : \\ ' SZY - / hE. C41. ... ,' 

1 I \ \ j I TUISC 3ELUN  LL f

j
1 Mmi

OFFSET c. MO- F SLAB

qll 0 Q - I \ \.% To SU/ nP Af30v F_ 

iIL

CAUL K -"' J ) 
PIL + 

I / \` \ 5 C45T PAID Iz I- fn .- 

TOOWELLD- P' / AARIb t- li U I ' r 1 Z /• \ \ \/ $" 17_ oOF SUGnP APcvr- r

oN z' ce/ n. nss N W In m} a
r

PAY 1hEG14. 

C AL) L IL

t - - - -- u; t I o

P. c: col. lc b D J V

P4LIEL \ : 4 IL

i . , 0 t
a I

la

Y. Ilv' x 12 x IA AW/ n L
C4 _ 

mi 1
N

134 X 134
I

U- 
7 '

Cl sa To
Y. 8 ALU / AL

I .. a i / P c. Pa1J E L_ 

I x x 3a ALU / A P• n Q. ` 
7YP) 

4 - - - - -- " 

D' 
a ' STaP p ( 

r "_ _.. CAUL IC. . 

r

t .._-- --- --- --- --- '— 

A L -- \ C, l CI- 0- 5 G COR_ NERb
E 4. CH COfz_ Nl / 

oALU / n THt2e iH C> LD
V

IZ 12

m

p U ` y
6. 

f3 U 200( PIJ Iz 21G10
D LC 141 NG' x , 

9
BO E P

SoLT TO CoIJC- 3o " O. 0
IN SUL ATI OIJ . 

MI - - -- - - - -- /;- 
ALU // t

A * t- S' 7
STdP J

d

N

U. 

GL\ UL K
1) - 

r
Ul . 

IjrI
VU) 

LJ / AI
1

13 ' 
ISIZ I4 . ZI ! 

C.-,' A . ASP. YoNty/ ,

I

4R34<• -
rO F, 

NW

t
A N

SLIDIFIC' J fl ; 

Ir
134% 4z AL0/ n
Fm& / nom I U! r

fL
0

bI
e

m

n _ 
ROOT OUT I), 15L) 101J  TOP _ 

W
CI

1 Q
d , + 2 13d Itr PJC>_ r_ rO / nl OFI Pl. IJEL - Cl I . . f•• U

Y 0: 
4- Y, / IN \ v D. rsgodK', To 2EC6wF_ I I I r ¢ •- O U ¢ TROIV ELL F_ D . AARI. + + 

Old 2' IIJ6Vl_ < SCREWS f101 SUPPO2TG PA1JcLi Ir

CE / n. Q57b. PAJ EL f

i I I
N N

1 EDEE OF P. _. ° i % - 13'} X 1 4 ) e I& ALU / A I _ ' W
PALIP_ L gEYONG ! i. U

Q W

u C8
o

7 to _. • °' , ) ' - _ N {. i

U) X
rol ` SNI, n PANEL 14' 

i
fjITUMINUOU PAVIN CS Q ' Q

0 2 I

12 J 12 ^ Q
12 5 0:•  I 12 _. _. 

I  

U i

U Q

ELEVATION J

m
co z ' ALU / n 2AV L' t_ •; T•=) P -.  12

II

I jll DIl.+ Fy ALV; n I !  I \ J
SA H

Uit
i

I

I I I

P:"' JT NOZZLE I i
I , 

I

i I C I ! I n -- 

W a . 
ELEVATiO_ N_ ELF'_ VAi 1CDf- J U

L1 J J > 
J

a

Z a' Ili 0
r

0 lc J Z
lm J 

W
I - ( S U( Zt(: V oL- ' CEGTom• t- , 

fiJril r. p CH C• GTOR s

Q
7J 6 DTL. PIPE FILL. v Gol - fir_. 

Turs 5HT• 
L

j 

iEE OeY• TN14 SNTI 1j % _ L JO - 1 - 0" AP. ovE cotlCoT cy 3' - 0' DEC_ c =• •_- 

O r r 0
r:. 

j • 

Off. 1-_ - J tP/ 

U1/ GATE S4 1_ 1 T s, 

1 I
A. A

IDOGTH ! 

li *  ' 
I S. •. ATTEFI CAN . r" 15P' 1 R - C %

I
IVi- '- ,. EKP. vY. U

0 AI 0: = i FA, Tara Dn
I

u1

OO' rb .j. I u r; 

IYU `D. 1• 
PL. EL: TO. ab

I , i
r

Y lea. o' - -, 

I :
f 6Q

E % PnJbICV Id

TS4 -\ ^. t 1.

n43..'
I. 

I

1
IN I X21012 ELEVATIUI 1 ! _ _ !- 

G ALE = I. O I ..

r b 3• b• 

1- 

vs. r > :' —" '•' 
yy,, : ' 

s. a.i_ ( ` 
A. ). ET IN C STRUL` I' ItJN CO

11 _.. 
M U 2 - oO' 4• lo v

cc u

RUnr6c D; JTrpTar ' f_ — -- ` oF P, a., TH UPaiC3t_' f [ 9C TOP. Y
x' E ° F e. coTrl _• i O i

rTr

Kr
M A

L_ 1
i

F L Iz: aNl' E PLALQ V/ 
V

k - - - - - - OC D1 \_ A( 2CJ` F_ QT2At JCE

zJOS4 / n $ 4gg2• A3 " = 1 f
NcJTE• G. s7e 5 ] D = PIT`_ rl ARE Ta 3 J07C CAiL" ANP 5 ITTF_ R AtzF_ T bE

LL_ LLJ

j3- C LOG. T E: I> FIU> M PRI; L ENT F' GJh ITt N OPF n [ C> C- r PL'> CI' 1r. AP R' sENT (- 0 ` = 1 G U OFI

I \ 
R' A7 - C . '$' 7; - rb NGW f 0<, ITION P"( O \ V NE2 \ V Or•> G> VVA P. L: AVF - r- O t_ t E. V C. YN L^¢_ 3

c

171l ' 
Li

f

Il 1 •

I - ! _ 
gITUTAIN0005 SURFACC fjY OWNER / 

JOB NO. 

DOW l' SPOUT NGZZLE ED _ 1L - f ' I -- --_ - -• 

65 - 19IIR 1'° \ GO IDUI COJC. fbA5L` _.. 

F > R / A 2 Dr EP. REa L' S5 3' SS> J4t) - E / 
FOR DETECTOR. < OIL - ' 

Colt- FU0. NIpNCD rSYOW1,) 6P.. CCNTR TO 56? IN CfA. JD FILL / f ' -
t

SHEET NE). //AC` tiETIG GCUIL DEi` ECTCIL

BLUE PRINT RAPER W. W FORM 103 - -- 

I 

IIIr
N

Ell
YD DIV1Or lL

4-% V," ALU/ A TU( iE - 

V) w
V) 

K C ,' i', /- J , 71t
2ulj_x lg4LU /nL 1 5s 114,.. 2

y

p .. 

LA /A. P AnTIc ON
34r PLYIV000 P•G• GoL1c. Poll - - , 7. GErA. ASP. PA1.lEL I  / 1 I •• AlV/ n L

b - D
P. C. GONG PnNt__L.14_ jl l r

T

I C0. 

fit .. 
0 2A lV r-L fL 512.F- T o

J F 1Y . aa' I Imo) _)' V . -. -_.. _._ _ rLl _ I _. _ M A' 1 .. __. .. .._... 
J

I'. i --  SFE. 5f -'E: c. 2 REC, +rD __. -_. ____._ - _ ------ .___. __ L. 

TROWELLF_P

3jkILL J/ A
2 

E FOIL
GOEJM . 

V
A

sWtiS. 
UPLAANTEEO

L I1 24SEE INT. E LE VATI N • 14x1 4 x B ALU /A L
HIGH VT. OF SLA15

I
CoNTIN I % 4 - FnSTtN ' l' O

0 9EE PLAN. TL115
136 % 13+, - Nl TUf3 _5 E4CH ENO. AU LK\ 

I 1 ____ - _. -____ - __ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ __ _ _ 1 n

i v V cle,. I  

DoWNSPOVT NozLLE SY lAEGLl•- I ' 
3 F 5L-E DE-(. YH15 - 5l

v

I2° 141 14 - l 4 14- 

71- yl A- SLIMING SD
NAHo

N
I

Y

S'- O 14 II¢ la a. 

SLIDING

I 1.... \ • Il 5 I

F\. 

5L.IDWG 4LU/n SAaH
G

I I COPE I4 x 4z' TUIbE ' ' - F--_" r 1 I• 
PoELOIV SILL It C: kp TOIII \ Fo rL /A 13 3 • ` GrJ UrJTE IL

O• jll{ 4 % I ¢ TUI' t- , 1! P , 1 `_ 2 " CO NOU< Tcti

N I E

SLI D1rJ C, 8A'5H
0 J Ilt 01 SI .° - ry' : 41! \ 2• coN ou cTol

D : \\ ' SZY - /hE.C41. ... ,' 

1 I \ \ j I TUISC 3ELUN  LL f

j
1 Mmi

OFFSET c. MO- F SLAB

qll 0 Q - I \ \.% To SU/nP Af30v F_ 

iIL

CAUL K -"' J ) 
PIL + 

I / \` \ 5 C45T PAID Iz I- fn .- 

TOOWELLD-P' /AARIb t- li U I ' r 1 Z /• \ \ \/ $" 17_ oOF SUGnP APcvr- r

oN z' ce/n. nss N W In m} a
r

PAY 1hEG14. 

C AL) L IL

t - - - -- u; t I o

P. c: col.lc b D J V

P4LIEL \ : 4 IL

i . , 0 t
a I

la

Y. Ilv'x 12 x IA AW/n L
C4 _ 

mi 1
N

134 X 134
I

U- 
7 '

Cl sa To
Y. 8 ALU /AL

I .. a i / P c. Pa1J E L_ 

I x x 3a ALU /A P•n Q. ` 
7YP) 

4 - - - - -- " 

D' 
a ' STaP p ( 

r "_ _.. CAUL IC. . 

r

t .._-- --- --- --- --- '— 

A L -- \ C,l CI- 0- 5 G COR_NERb
E 4.CH COfz_Nl / 

oALU /n THt2e iH C> LD
V

IZ 12

m

p U ` y
6. 

f3 U 200( PIJ Iz 21G10
D LC 141 NG' x , 

9
BO E P

SoLT TO CoIJC- 3o " O. 0
IN SUL ATI OIJ . 

MI - - -- - - - -- /;- 
ALU //t

A * t- S' 7
STdP J

d

N

U. 

GL\ UL K
1) - 

r
Ul . 

IjrI
VU) 

LJ /AI
1

13 ' 
ISIZ I4 .ZI ! 

C.-,' A . ASP. YoNty/ ,

I

4R34<• -
rO F, 

NW

t
A N

SLIDIFIC'J fl ; 

Ir
134% 4z AL0/ n
Fm& /nom I U! r

fL
0

bI
e

m

n _ 
ROOT OUT I), 15L) 101J  TOP _ 

W
CI

1 Q
d , + 2 13d Itr PJC>_r_rO /nl OFI Pl. IJEL - Cl I . . f•• U

Y 0: 
4- Y, / IN \ v D. rsgodK', To 2EC6wF_ I I I r ¢ •- O U ¢ TROIV ELL F_D .AARI. + + 

Old 2' IIJ6Vl_ < SCREWS f101 SUPPO2TG PA1JcLi Ir

CE /n. Q57b. PAJ EL f

i I I
N N

1 EDEE OF P. _. ° i % - 13'} X 1 4 ) e I& ALU /A I _ ' W
PALIP_L gEYONG ! i. U

Q W

u C8
o

7 to _. • °' , ) ' - _ N {. i

U) X
rol ` SNI,n PANEL 14' 

i
fjITUMINUOU PAVIN CS Q ' Q

0 2 I

12 J 12 ^ Q
12 5 0:•  I 12 _. _. 

I  

U i

U Q

ELEVATION J

m
co z ' ALU /n 2AV L' t_ •; T•=)P -.  12

II

I jll DIl.+Fy ALV;n I !  I \ J
SA H

Uit
i

I

I I I

P:"' JT NOZZLE I i
I , 

I

i I C I ! I n -- 

W a . 
ELEVATiO_N_ ELF'_VAi 1CDf-J U

L1 J J > 
J

a

Z a' Ili 0
r

0 lc J Z
lm J 

W
I - ( S U( Zt(: V oL- 'CEGTom•t- , 

fiJril r. p CH C•GTOR s

Q
7J 6 DTL. PIPE FILL. v Gol -fir_. 

Turs 5HT• 
L

j 

iEE OeY• TN14 SNTI 1j % _ L JO - 1 - 0" AP.ovE cotlCoT cy 3' -0' DEC_c =• •_- 

O r r 0
r:. 

j • 

Off. 1-_ - J tP/ 

U1/ GATE S4 1_ 1 T s, 

1 I
A. A

IDOGTH ! 

li *  ' 
I S. •. ATTEFI CAN . r" 15P'1 R - C %

I
IVi- '- ,. EKP. vY. U

0 AI 0: = i FA, Tara Dn
I

u1

OO'rb .j. I u r; 

IYU `D. 1• 
PL. EL:TO. ab

I , i
r

Y lea. o' - -, 

I :
f 6Q

E %PnJbICV Id

TS4 -\ ^. t 1.

n43..'
I. 

I

1
INIX21012 ELEVATIUI 1 ! _ _ !- 

G ALE = I. O I ..

r b 3• b• 

1- 

vs. r > :' —" '•' 
yy,, : ' 

s.a.i_ ( ` 
A. ). ET IN C STRUL Ì' ItJN CO

11 _.. 
M U 2 -oO' 4• lo v

cc u

RUnr6c D; JTrpTar ' f_ — -- ` oF P, a., TH UPaiC3t_' f [9C TOP. Y
x' E ° F e.coTrl _• i O i

rTr

Kr
M A

L_ 1
i

FL Iz:aNl'E PLALQ V/ 
V

k - - - - - - OC D1 \_A(2CJ` F_QT2At JCE

zJOS4 /n $ 4gg2• A3 " = 1 f
NcJTE• G. s7e 5 ] D = PIT`_rl ARE Ta 3 J07C CAiL" ANP 5 ITTF_R AtzF_T bE

LL_ LLJ

j3-C LOG. T E:I> FIU>M PRI; L ENT F'GJh ITt N OPF n [ C> C- r PL'> CI' 1r. AP R' sENT (- 0 ` =1 G U OFI

I \ 
R'A7 -C . '$' 7; - rb NGW f 0<,ITION P"( O \V NE2 \ V Or•>G>VVA P.L: AVF - r- O t_ t E. V C. YN L^¢_ 3

c

171l ' 
Li

f

Il 1 •

I - ! _ 
gITUTAIN0005 SURFACC fjY OWNER / 

JOB NO. 

DOW l' SPOUT NGZZLE ED _ 1L - f ' I -- --_ - -• 

65 -19IIR 1'° \ GO IDUI COJC. fbA5L` _.. 

F > R /A 2 Dr EP. REa L' S5 3' SS>J4t) -E / 
FOR DETECTOR. < OIL - ' 

Colt- FU0.NIpNCD rSYOW1,) 6P.. CCNTR TO 56? IN CfA. JD FILL / f ' -
t

SHEET NE). //AC t̀iETIG GCUIL DEi`ECTCIL

BLUE PRINT RAPER W. W FORM 103 - -- 



4) S
I ( 

6

t, ,\ 
3d' - all 3p' fa' ':

idr - tu

f G, - rte„ i ad' 
R .•_ . A s_.n --__.- _ .__.. _ n f .-'•__ _' r _.—, -a __.. x_ u_rlrrl.^.- ___..__. 1__ ___ _ _._._...__  _.._..._. n_. _ r .__ _ _ A_ I_+ I  ._ r r' 

r A
i " ,  

r +

c... ».xr- ..rvL+.— +. y`,+- _..ar• '. ai. ,.w«. ryp..arw I..Q'_ mom. i owr•T- µ. w -... ..- _.- ... t_.v. v. Ly.. / .
r.. _ _.._. i. _---•. ...- ,- __.._'.- .. - - -. _.. _ v_ - ice _ r ..r.{ i I r _,-!

3' , __ i - '_ 

it111j

1 1
D

CAI ' 

krr i I 1 658
I  .'], r  I ! s' 1 G , " rnL C1``` tag • Ca , 

I
tc,O . , I I

r

rl, L L
1

1 1 / 
I J ( 1

V

Ep

L
f

L_ 
I

L <'
r l

t r

1

r _ 

JY j - r L_.
6L'. t

tr

I }, raji}! _ iiF -3 - !
I Mi

I` t

all

F' 1 F I I F 2
t  I 1

If 1 , , _[, _ _ , 

1 . 1 ' '' 

4D
r

Lr ,

r

L
r ^

A- I_-
Lt 1 1'" 4

L ' { L } , • I
o2arJ TILE

N

f , ; N, 1 Il 1' I } S , -  [ (`' ive' j ( ,  
r   .

l. r ... ". t• 

i — J 1!_' OJ

1t, 
I r , , 

n/ r .
i .. , w -'' f I _ .+ r 2:. '"~

4 •- +
r ... r + r x. -+ /. _ , w:` t. , -..,. .. _ ,. _.. ^ rte  .. s. ..-\ _. rr ..  ` ' -. ..... .... a. _ - ., ln ... ...... ....... _ -_ " 

MAIN

5& ) 0 TeMV

f" 

1' 
f

04 06

1_ \ y Ip V, IVC
LOCATI4N$ 

TAKE F, t \, a

L / r- -- — _ 

111

Q t ; i,. ; 

I

I
I

i1' - C

I

ii

i

I

It1. 

r
I

I

1

I

r ± f1

I

a T n m._ . - - - r. ._- _•_ -,-, n f• ^ R' 1t^ ^ v^... ` 1`_. - n M„' C_ I'. ^.- rrY wrw•, R r«+ ean_ 

a , ' , , i
r •, t , r

r _ 

1

I , 

f i

1 f + 
I zri 4

r
r

I

r

I

I
I

i1' - C

I

ii

i

I

It1. 

r
I

I

1

I

r ± f1

I

a T n m._ . - - - r. ._- _•_ -,-, n f• ^ R' 1t^ ^ v^... ` 1`_. - n M„' C_ I'. ^.- rrY wrw•, R r«+ ean_ 

a , ' , , i
r •, t , r

r _ 

1

I , 

f i

1 f + 
I zri 4

r
r

r

UH

to

i

1 ta,( K2 TCi :' Jf 42 z

y
I

i I ' F' RAP/ if Nt3 SEF
O

I \ I

C

1

d
STAN M R

in

r I c' R'A' v11Vr SEE  I

I

0 AA( a VA

r h IJt t• 1 G,. E E a

I1
I

I

f

I Y

t zl

u, I
I

I

l 

I

I

I I  

IiL

4  

I

I

i

I

I

Ow

I 1

I

Ii I
I

I c 

I

1,' 
r

11 L' 

Lt1r1
i

I

i
I it

II
I , 

1

I

I
I

i1' -C

I

ii

i

I

It1. 

r
I

I

1

I

r ±f1

I

a T n m._ . - - - r. ._- _•_ -,-, n f• ^ R' 1t^ ^ v^... ` 1`_. - n M„' C_ I'. ^.- rrY wrw•, R r«+ ean_ 

a , ' , , i
r •, t , r

r _ 

1

I , 

f i

1 f + 
I zri 4

W F» 

I w

O , x

I a' l U) l3

11 1 l I r
Uf a

j 1 + rC) ( --- r t -- --- -- - ft ', - - - / LLi- c {
t1

i

II I

Ir
i . 

I

I , I ; , 

V

Im

i t LE - a -- _ } r - Ct} - 
V ^ w

r r

0

R< I t I T 1` 1 IT VV V, 

Y -- 
W

X11

D
1

I

I

CO WT. 
I

F 1- 

12 * S' cS• o C? ' a.. j

n r

tT

POUNOATION PLAN  ,!, 

it
SCALE I

i C a IPf4 . / I VU ' G0 - A ', 

Ct T
TYPICAL COM" 5TRUCTIOM J

f. r /

1 [ ( /

wATT, wro, , , , , , , t t - , A' I3m. ArW, nklG, 05 LpwAflGng
A; 440 ' 040 ALtAkIN11114' 

Qfi FOWN !. Ct f f " li i AN -" , 11hT N 1P hiI: S" r3 Atc .._  

L _. e • c, t. p
4LIS PNINr horn! w ro irr,! ortm in

Jy e' B. .•,\' 

r '

t', sj. ' _ 
45 .,' +'} 

m.,' -, ` a, 

r ' f , .. 

I , x n y , 
f e 1t , 

t _  

2 !' iF . rw 1' e ` t ;' pro -• , 1 . n L  4a42x r,'. 4 _ ui  
yva t > t

Y ' ,` 

9'" . fie- ft-: S '" , i r. 

UH

to

i

1 ta,( K2 TCi :' Jf 42 z
I

i I ' F' RAP/ if Nt3 SEF
O

1

in

l 

1 D1

0 AA( a VA

o
r h IJt t• 1 G,. E E a N

I

OwI c 

W F» 

I w

O , x

I a' l U) l3

11 1 l I r
Uf a

j 1 + rC) ( --- r t -- --- -- - ft ', - - - / LLi- c {
t1

i

II I

Ir
i . 

I

I , I ; , 

V

Im

i t LE - a -- _ } r - Ct} - 
V ^ w

r r

0

R< I t I T 1` 1 IT VV V, 

Y -- 
W

X11

D
1

I

I

CO WT. 
I

F 1- 

12 * S' cS• o C? ' a.. j

n r

tT

POUNOATION PLAN  ,!, 

it
SCALE I

i C a IPf4 . / I VU ' G0 - A ', 

Ct T
TYPICAL COM" 5TRUCTIOM J

f. r /

1 [ ( /

wATT, wro, , , , , , , t t - , A' I3m. ArW, nklG, 05 LpwAflGng
A; 440 ' 040 ALtAkIN11114' 

Qfi FOWN !. Ct f f " li i AN -" , 11hT N 1P hiI: S" r3 Atc .._  

L _. e • c, t. p
4LIS PNINr horn! w ro irr,! ortm in

Jy e' B. .•,\' 

r '

t', sj. ' _ 
45 .,' +'} 

m.,' -, ` a, 

r ' f , .. 

I , x n y , 
f e 1t , 

t _  

2 !' iF . rw 1' e ` t ;' pro -• , 1 . n L  4a42x r,'. 4 _ ui  
yva t > t

Y ' ,` 

9'" . fie- ft-: S '" , i r. 

F

I   

DECK { GRADE LEVEE Lu- 

Au S
Ir

1. 1 Ilk Ei{ 

lRTitJ bi1kf - - UT hP jam~ ^" 

105OL. ATiON JOINT 
r

T`• r " QC JTR I. i. " 

UH
i

1 ta,(K2 TCi :'Jf 42 z
I

i I ' F' RAP/ if Nt3 SEF
O

1 l 

0 AA(a VA

F

I   

DECK { GRADE LEVEE Lu- 

Au S
Ir

1. 1 Ilk Ei{ 

lRTitJ bi1kf - - UT hP jam~ ^" 

105OL. ATiON JOINT 
r

T`• r " QC JTR I. i. " 



I 1 , ., I 3d '• D I ' _ iO 3.4 '- 0 I 30 •- 6 34''- O - !- J
j. 0 - 6 34 - O 30 , 0 34- 0 -- - 

o11 . . -
F

I
I

I U. .
a

I I Q : ' 1; 

I I I

1I , rt

I I , II ICI., I' r U
I; , f i I I I ; 1 I .' j U, 9

j a: - 

I

7 I ,. I- - -._-- -. .; - -... -- -- -. _. ., - i- - _- .- --
r - -. _ 

T •.. Z. 

I - - f _ __.. _._ 
I. I : a I ; I I 1 p .11

1 - (. __ • r t 1, I e. ! =, N: i 1. r: i. n1 Cam%. 
I. , 

rl I IC ..; 

I

o-., is c ., { Lgl .', :, i- II
t.'' 1. 1s' 

1

r r I I : 1 a c•7 r: a Tlo a T• /o v tr
I. :: 

t r./b I c T/ o.  Tla c7 I _ I -- -__- _ _ _ _, _ ,. r. iC
1.. I I, NI I : II. - .. I Q1 i I t , t I I i ry ... _ _ .. . .. +, a .: _ t. _- - . 1 - I y. ,. i , I. 1' . 6; I -. . L_. .. 1." _ 1. _ R. » i _ _ _.. /,.• .

11

1

1,, 1 olO c i , I I I I I T- Y /• I T.II _+1 O ti i I' i s I 7// is -.. CP I "', 
q1 4 _ _ 1 I - T N t  - --- - --• ac Z: 

II
w l4 N 1_ - _ L I S_ 1. -- 2 `' ZI. I i_. 

7:'•' s 7
1 __ I I 9

N I s ._ , 1 , , 1 , 0. ' 1 y
Q

1

i fl :. I w . 1 l ,' I r 4 Z' . c a  1/ I $; .$ r' , C t: 1' C1 1 r
V11 - - I o M3 1. 7 -! ¢ u' a 1 1 1 I t 4 V,. ; C: Or i I J > " I ) Q t s. ' 6P- 

I ti M• 3 _ I - - -- ., 
j : D I 1 I I Cll I 1. 1 Q r „ ^

I 

K L 
tt

i I C7 C', f. 1
v I' Cl' : r x! o f I- TO c h N D T K 41i  11 I I 1' I Aooi2 { Coxzlo Pt G Cp, M/ 9 I/ , I, ti

I

I ;* -. 1__ I 21- N

JI
C Amp 2 x b To JE G L f M S _.. - - - 3 - -_ _ -- . - -_ _ _ :__._. ._'_- __ - -- - - - - -- _ S._:. _ tr_: 1 , , 

I I h I t I r I /  F{ / - _ - _ - -- 
u--- r ;1-' s: - plot_ 6- h I• D ., cr I

1 _ J . , f
I : . , _. i.__ . ._ _ I .

I

r.: N I • 

717

I

I ._ I . 
I l

I
I ' I

I * / 142 , GI i T
I' 

I I' 
I... ` ._ 1_ __._ -_

i -. 

T(C4\
n-- •

3
r C1

I

I
L .. - i

I ..` _. . 

r -.+ -. 

I ` 
I

I M/l , Q{. !.. T-2 isz - 

I: 

1- 3-11 ' ! , 10' 
I I

Lu Fi, Co.4 n. t,.,., a. _. V. - -- -.. .(. .._. ... ._. _ r, .. . l _ .
t.. 

C- 5 .. :_.. _..__. _ .. C J 1- V I` 57 -- ' Ik ... r• .. .- _ :.__:. ,{ .. '.:! N_. -'.. h: C vi- .;. I.; . I ',. r r
11 . - -

q : i
I

rt •
Q h 1 %!'' 

I j 7 v' 4 c_ ' 4 7- /. e y * 7 l3 -'° / i' 4" , I a,c ?` 4t7' x'' T
I 7- / ' h ..' ' T as - -- • 111. 

v - I i - .. ,..: ._.. F_..:_: a _ - - _. -.... _:. I, 
4 8 Sx 4 _ a ..:, i...' - L_ aV

77 - - 4. ._.-- ., . 1.. 
I - Q • _ , .. __ - __ ... ..._  .___.. _. .._, 1 _, ... ..- i'-- .. , , . r . . ' 1.,'... _ I {.. _ h . 1: i !., h

1' ' 77; J T' I. J_. i .- T• JI I
o, 

o I I'. F- U. rr . 
I• Ip v O , I I , 

L- a I a I - 11 :. ` I, _. _ 1 I - - - Q Apo Sr. Tr S I _ - LI - - .. r w
1. 

6 / e s I IQ

II \. - -. r, i I; I I I , ' _. _. I i41' I u

r > t I 4Q1 sll. 11 ,.. I , 
P , `} s1 ` o o . x,; 

I, I 1 C, I Tl_ .; 2 Cr T / 1 t C) I I I . / l..'' " c c',, M• T_, 1, C I T? / Ai <,, 7 i
I V T-3 .< MIS - T-3 . I Vi _: M I ' _.__. . _...::__.. __.`_._ .._ .. ._ _ I. - .- - -.-- 1- ...> _ { ., 

t ,, 11I . N rs

I I! I S I i N , 3Q. x' I. o ` 10 E. 
I o Io o, i ,. I N. In a

1. - 

w - r I' I - i a ;" = : '. I! I xCQ a - jj i r uv -"

Y

1 ! f _ .
11

I

I i' « a I m y / - 1 T.. R , a t-_ , - V, a C.., ; T•_, 
I : N 0...... C

I
I ,,.. I ' II-.: _.. t ._ ; .._ .............. Q ... - !..... _.., q .. - I - rt _ -- t- 

n ) . 

I. 

I 1 O
1

I I I 1 I , J Q. - i 1. I qj 1 ./ 

I

I _ _ 1  , _ c

I h 1 _ _ 
t 1 I : t_. t: r' .. N T 1 L' _.. _. _ .. 1 Q vt ._ •. _ L_ I _..{ Ili 1. _ i l I_- _- 1 , 1 f. - .. Ll

u

v

I. \ 

r : i ' i \ 
I

I
I ^ - ` , I ' ' . 

l

III . 
I I i ' 

1
1 Z; 11

V r c A/. I' ' T  I ' i Vt T 1 ` ; ' I 7- ` T l T 1 C) T t 1 1V M- T V T P ,. r 2 3 1 I _ _. I _., _ w U _ _ - - _ 
j .,.... -._ _..,_ -- _ - --- -' - I-_ I f• Q- I' 1_ -- I• ^ r -•- - - {- -- I

I 1
S 1 1' I I 1 I i. i _ i I

i - 

I

I. , UIH

I .... .. -- - -'- - .. : _ _ ... _ . _ _ ._ ,_ , - 
r . - 11 . L, y. ,• r T I- - - '$ n ` - 

1 - 
9 II' f ( 1 1,.» T, r ` . 

a p I a C' .. I I, ( u tt ] I /' T'S? '. 1 ; I I n f T5 , I . :_. 

C 3 J ' r t L r i!' z- 1 I cL 0 _ _ N - r`' _._.. - 
t 4 _ I._., .._. 

r

p I - J E i ] 11 I I I tG 4 I n I gip' I I .. ( fI n I u I I RI I I \. / 
11

I o I 4
1 1 f t 4 ti ir V I! I', F ti ` r ! I1 - + , , ar,'Ir fib. 1'- I1 I t r

r
I I v t IA I 1 1 I_ _..._ _... . I L.. h _ q t ¢ 1. 

H .... 1 - - v, I, ' 
i- 

I
I

I

I ; 111, I Q
I I' lw ) 1

I
III

I'' 
9 \ 1 1 4 1 O 1 ` T. r T.: If C1 n.` t I I,  I i` iI -/ , I 1 / II r 7 ( I 0

Cl) { _ i 1V T• I T3 ( 2' T 3 M•2v > T•I M 2 V' 
1. - . 1 1iI - eI I I , r I I ll I U. 

1 I I II ) 1 II I N f 1

4

j , 1 { aa ` 1 I ' 0 10 3a ? i' I J. 
I I. _ - -- - _ E

q -- - - - -- ` R: r- vi
9 __ ....,:.- I r CL 1 I ! I 9 I -. <. ,• I 1 ,

p ..
I. - 1 - v,. - r

I I ) I , o{ o I I I { to T! C i ! .. , p C 3 ' r C 5. - T 1. y -- I 7 I + 1 C 3 _ ° Q t ( I1 T C 3 * r- C 3 N F -{ __. q_. C' I' I n 4... "'; m'': 

I J

ti w _.__... .... _. 7 ! _. 11. 1 1 - C] t_5 n j ,- o ] a ti 1_ f1j
A ; r 111 ; I p1 1 I ' I I I I ` . 

1rf .. 
1 -. i I" ; - I E \ 

I I Q h i I I v, +' _ I ' H. I' {  I- ! ',
1Ia o : I I - -- I i _ 1.. _. jrI . -- - --- •-' - -- • I -. _ J ,' n L : I i t ' I 10

4

I - - - + -
h. ,. , Il.. I t I a r'., r 7.- 

11 I e b i I . I_ ( -,;_.- t j• , n - f

I , 

1. . - ._ _ _ _ . 

I
t I. , ) 5 -ti. . T -9- Lam,. I I I ; I _ 1 I ; 1

j _. _ _ t \ I n fi _ 1
9

I \ 
I I I: 1 1' cJ j - 1 1 1.' 1 1 , P 41 I I i l 1 g o Cr cl clI r q c a r

I -.: t I . a ' I. . r -' M• V I T•_3 V T•;:' I ti/ I. 7-/ I I , Tl rVl•, [ _, I , T_ ... 1r<' _, , T_ _ V: T•:.' I I h„_ C, ' T' /'' I , I ,. T 3 IT- / 4q - ! L _ -.- - __ Cl v II I - - 
L._ _ ..- _... -`__•. _ ___•.__'•_ ter ..• _•_._. t_. _. ..- _.....: }_. r 1_ I. , r 1 '^ { I f

i _ 
i' i; t.. , '' t 1 . I I i

I
i C I i I i I i i1 I I I i ` I i I c1 1 / y

I I __ f
I. _:. ...._ -- ._ . t L - - 

I

I
s - Ij

1 - 1 Il - I ,: - fl 11 G` . T I I: 1 r- I . f L• 4 l' 11. IT C4 k- ` T(oI
I T I 1 T7 T7 T s CL T i ;! R r I

1 II , I_ I _ I T w

11.
1 }} 

r
1.. 

r.__ t - 1 1. I: - 
I I

I .. 1 I I i 0 1-- . I `•. q I !. I` 1 _. .. - I I • I ¢ Ln i , .,. r, N C•.. t N
I' , L -x11 . , j c s

G

G_ _ _ _. _ , 
L A'r 12- 6 x 21 - 0 Toh /! EAc C'oz, $IM /'oI 1P I

I __ v - I c c',  
m ' I

S -'-- r: ' 
1 ; I 9 I » t 4' I I I 1 , n IL- . i0 Ii 1 1 e1 C t 1

T
1 1 F iai'.: 

1. I

C ' C 1 1 a• °- I1° o r ., 1I. 1 I • S. ri V I , i I p, O .: I. Z n. 1 y1; .. y' }. II + Ya ' I l FI , 1 1 a \ I
O

M u4_ I V - o - li - - 

V U I r n F j 7 i f . ''' ' i Ia + I 1 i I I I U l - I i 1 I 1 I 1 I I I C- I T Q. I . i H xi L M.- , s :, 
1. 

I - x bo l2_ h J_O Lo P / GI - 
I - 

I - . I I j , 
m

I ' 

i
It. :_.._ -.__ :. i __ . L. _.__.___{ _ t n I - 1 -. 

II
I . ` . I T / U , 1 I r 1 Id 9 % l9 { I

T.. r'.;? i t T lG 4 i l! 

11

I
1 - -.

I -._ I I ' I - I . a. I. I e 6 I .( - I C % :..._. L- ...__'___'_ ; •• - _ i __,'_ h ..,. I - .-;.  - -. 
t , I ,_ _ .. l f I + 1 I 1, J N. . It1 _.. _.:__ I. E - I ' I . 1. T__1 _. 

SI 4 II i 4 1' 
f

11- r__ a J, 0 I I , r o ti V t r j
r ., \ / 

W
Y' I J Imo: b! - i N _ _ F; _ . -_ _. I. I -' I I -. /. Z

11 ' . t., . N , __ _ 1 ; . ._ _ ._. r' .. j I " ._. ,. ' 1 L. . _ I ¢ 1 .. 1 A . I, • rE C ., _ . _ 1 . • _ ++ , //'''' 

I I I Ir " 
n 1 y tcn61 '. g. a+ IS ,;. I .., h ..,. r. i 0. I

I , I 1 - +' 8 5r;- i I ) 1 I : I 1 ,. ". J I I _ o iJ E. AM . c •. ;.. 1 ; i l.. - h.l i'., I 4-.. {_..... , I 1.. - a-• - ... " t'. _ { I, - 011 - . 1: { '. t 1. I y( i. I
1; t . L. 11 , _ I. .. r 11 J 1 . I 1, i 1 -

L
i \'ti: 

I
JI I F

1

III

1 
T q

I ._ I . 
I l

t' 

t

I i I I t I _ I_ . I ,_, I

I _ i9 .. : 1 I. I: 

fit, 
r, _ I 2 TN /S BA." IlI I

A T:tIl,S, SAi'' IA. TMII QA' Y1 1

t.e" f'IL _ I ._: r _.. G7. YFICAL ALL MICeI_.. t' r I ' I; :: 
STRiPZS 1. 

L. ! ! .. '_'-' .,.,:.. 

S "' IY[' i Alt I'.RIP is y I

I • 1. - 

34'• O" 3p'• o., 3q' G" 30 %' 3q'- p, . _- . _... --}. 

1- 1 T
I I i

l r : 



va7 n

VY

F., _ 

1

I

L

s

i - J - -- I — 
44

Fv- 4 .. ; n MAIN

I

8 w

W w

th u

f LLJ

it

LC

JP

a

m

NOTE. XLL RS ENQ

L 5'" 0EQK, Se-f

b' RCH. DRW,(.. 1. 

1 i
I I II AI III SIP q IA• A Illn





0

f  • . 

W
J - a



I

t, 

1 1

s

2

S

I

1. 

BR / cK pK i
I  4 " BRICK; +¢ " souu  } . Dxot PA, VEL B, tc.> l

MASONRY UNITS

2uD

IDZCK P4, AV
I

II

h y

I

FL „ 
I

r

o

I °.. 
I  

Sot / D / V4S4 dRY UNITS -' 
i

J
O

l sr D oK , 4Ay
I

I

I I

1

s

D
1

i
I

I
d' I i

N +--- 

ti \ I

lln

2 ' A / DZcK PL AV V

a

N1

xlsr Fj- c, 
a

DOTE; ALL WALLS r0 8E SOLID CLAY OR
SAA4, E 1W4So1VR Y V" Irs, F -"ACE 9R cK
7C, M47oo7, Osz5 C 6zmz t/ j

1146 A10 TAX 6& 4XINS CAPAGIry 7o 6, 5

1/ v

4V
I ;° 

e
nlq I( ti Ism

I  

ti SO6( O ' iASONRY U LITS - 1,' 

I
1 ' r  

1

IV
1I 1` 

EX7sT, Foorl 
ToP EG, 763' - O' 

s1- 4 s: O„ 

J

FOUAIDA %! aA/ P4AAl f
J, e- 1 CC X14 M

SCAC., S ! 1'= 1 - 01
BLUE PRINT PAPER COMPANY 5C - 10 65

I

I

17- op EL, 767 - 0

N

j /  RAA9 EMBEC. a OR
EQUALriRouj AF; Ee
Mo eTAR r/ As ATrA/ wD

iuFPlc/ eNr SreE, vc, rN

S CTloA1 714pu WAIL! A7- 
J. AIDEp, S1DE of 2, 11D 4 3RD DECK; 

T), P/ C AL

X77) NOTE.' N, W, AND S, WI CORNERS
SIMILAR TO S, E, Con t[ R

aUA/ oArjojQ PLAN

r

1

i

1

V` Z` . r ' 

V

1

W l

u LO xzr == 
y. 

p

11111111` 

I

t, 

1 1

s

2

S

I

1. 

BR / cK pK i
I  4 " BRICK; +¢ " souu  } . Dxot PA, VEL B, tc.> l

MASONRY UNITS

2uD

IDZCK P4, AV
I

II

h y

I

FL „ 
I

r

o

I °.. 
I  

Sot / D / V4S4 dRY UNITS -' 
i

J
O

l sr D oK , 4Ay
I

I

I I

1

s

D
1

i
I

I
d' I i

N +--- 

ti \ I

lln

2 ' A / DZcK PL AVV

a

N1

xlsr Fj- c, 
a

DOTE; ALL WALLS r0 8E SOLID CLAY OR
SAA4, E 1W4So1VR Y V" Irs, F -" ACE 9R cK

7C, M47oo7, Osz5 C 6zmz t/ j
1146 A10 TAX 6& 4XINS CAPAGIry 7o 6, 5

1/ v

4V
I ;° 

e
nlq I( ti Ism

I  

ti SO6( O ' iASONRY U LITS - 1,' 

I
1 ' r  

1

IV
1I 1` 

EX7sT, Foorl 
ToP EG, 763' - O' 

s1- 4 s: O„ 

J

FOUAIDA %! aA/ P4AAl f
J, e- 1 CC X14 M
SCAC., S ! 1'= 1 - 01

BLUE PRINT PAPER COMPANY 5C - 10 65

I

I

17- op EL, 767 - 0

N

j /  RAA9 EMBEC. a OR
EQUALriRouj AF; Ee

Mo eTAR r/ As ATrA/ wD
iuFPlc/ eNr SreE, vc, rN

S CTloA1 714pu WAIL! A7- 
J. AIDEp, S1DE of 2, 11D 4 3RD DECK; 

T), P/ C AL

X77) NOTE.' N, W, AND S, WI CORNERS
SIMILAR TO S, E, Con t[ R

aUA/ oArjojQ PLAN

r

1

i

1 „ HI U, 

I

j

V Z̀` . r ' 

V W l

u LO xzr == 
y. 

1
11111111` 

iI
I

v
I

0

to

N
N

I

I

N

0

I

4
W 

v

7

O 1 O U
rc

Q

1

I

t

U) to

F lY
I

U
W

W

i

t +z
I

I - 

U U

Ix z jQ W

c

UI

z
a

U
T r

uI 1

u 1
Qa
Im

Z z

Um i

D
J

I

N 

L N. 

W wJ= 
r

m
w

U z

Z

o

I

1

V
1

t

Ii

1  

I
1

1

n

I

I

JCF NO. 

65 -19
SHEET NO

S- 6

I



t` 

1 + 

1 r

i0

B

rrJ
t

5

r I

1

L

r

t 

v' ^ 

1

I

r , 

I

r

r.. • r mr.mx c

PACK 6TA F, F CO, O0. EgvPL J  

w •'-• \ 

31' 4Adk ` •`' - - `, `'•. _ T I ?" Ip DEK t\ C „ GftVT AF'CkR t•! ID \ -bR

iSr \ 

l 
v_'OT -' OF r

Y +{ 
HA6 A -TT )i1N_ D

aC1 ,•, 

v ^ r. ., 

I ``"_ 

WITH MORA , tLAAP a'` `.- _' '_
r , „

5

1 O • _.. r. irtil llVU C=- t ?
Y' 2>{G ? L.} . t _' I._ SLAL T R

TU
h

w

S ' .. 
r r {` ` 

t - 

c • - t , .-.; ^ 3..`  
7N

Z 1. _.._.._.. --._ I - -•_ ! -___  _-. -_ __ __ '_ 
r l { I \ \' l

l

t_ ,

I ). 

RS /hP ' E'  -` -' ` s" °'  ' -  al J' ; i• 
r 1 ` Pf /A%.l -%'G. I b1.S!. AYES 1 Z. I I EE PLPN I ? N ' fr, '/ I

V .

e '

r r_ •- il j A DQ' C. 1 1 v  z I SEE PL
i,r ! 

4'YY7  1
t -, ! 

0R1CK P16R
cYl" t _ C_, r S1TLL_ \ -_. - _ \ ,/ 

XIP NMO

N Ur1DC 1nT

Mk AP 3A rkA)AP 4' 

y, r
s _ _ `

4) .` i•
y,--""` r , "` i,..._`' - rte_ _ 

4T" .:.
0 "' -__ 

Z t DECK '• , I Z / / 
i / , , 7a , i 1

1\ 

q'p}! 
Q. AI/aP 9 - ` ' _ ^_ .

r s,;_;"• y '.''
ti,^ - "

i9-lr 4  rj 
1/' UUYII C;'!/- L1 r' 

i- 7^ ^_ ^ / 
RA11aP - 4A t1. AlrrP '",-' t I Z. I N J , r) / / . 

64. 
a+x` PFS K, K,' •- . -' ' -' _ - 

f  I I E>LY C' IER. 

c

l

N! CCMCtvI MoT AY. I- 1
toI W / CEMENT MORTARI. 

FRIC, C PIUTf I O J
41 InI --•- 

DL"'I `\ L7 1 L' ' 

ll _ _ ,___ 

I
Q

r W } 
I Y DFGI

j14/ AV 1 `,
ti y.. @L tboG" — 1- 0 ' I' U' FT C+ OUTLINE- _ I

r

c>s̀Try S Ir CT i O SECT t R.I z

s_ GL 71
scALE IL

2Aen 1~ I , - -',`.,•
G,A. I f =-T

1 Z
2LrVArf oN'°..+ sua\\ r - 1 7 .•• - ),

L, 
i , 6" 10 - 5 19' - ti a_o` -1 _ 19 - 4 16'- Z 19'- 4" Z o'- 7" 19' -& 10 - 8 ' N NAiY Ld \V 1t>GlN!,.. 7F i , 1 - -- - -__ ..,_- ____ - -__ -- - __ —__ 

a' - c-- - 

1 "' CGEI UF4K A-r EA°- r w
i ANO \VF:., Chap! r ' \\ 

SpJ4 TrzBC Df ot2/ i - CaLK PIER

i5
tb

i'_ _ —__ -__ _ }_ _-- •_ - -- - - --- - - -- - - - ^_ 
60'  j4'- o

PLhIN COtJG 1 -- - -`- -'—'_- -- -- - I - - - -- _ I. - Co' - 5 IiAIAC > t- Y To /& A OVrl_ __ --- .' _ i WIN

a' LONG n I, - 1 " I \% 1 d v cC Y t a
v I viQ- / 

I  \ • 
Q_ 

rid' v, y ^, I I 4, rt` e

Q\ a Q\ a Q 10 Q ! , 
e\ ' T , . e\ r Q / 0/ . e\ . Q\ Q \ Z

Da _ N

0\ 4j+ 
P 0 I I? , 

i b/ I
Z + I L I \

1i i \ v/ \ \ - - -\ 
2 ' I 2 y 2 2/ 2/' - F + 7/ 

y

tv
I Y,, ' J_ _ T` PICLIL PICK SE_U10 J ; , 

r - ' _ 

v i I \ \ tr I . , 
1 0,', 

A tA r. i, 3 r r - -,_ . 
g_ 

1 {_ 

yy
a q B A ' A if P M 6 1 1 r'- - `_ t'R'"TJ . B, _ _., r_ t _ 

F
f 9 , t U B ' l ' v / . / !/ _ , 

1 ) * 
o o- i a e

IrI I I y1 i'S

f- F __ _  - _  
A

3 - _

L. G- 4 ' - , 

t

I L J ^ 

l A .. I ) + , 
I I -

Lill
I P,t I } 1 ` + 

r IL 6 L. i'i - 2

I

INOTE-` . a ) 4 , i I > u

v`. 

a. l _ 1 } 
r _ 1 ( 

w ViTnP of au,. Ln I rsrcu ttl.,. 

11

I 1 I ' I r e_ , I - 

1 , 

xxIFF ( 
I Y 1. ) Lo-h, l

I
of• GU¢ P. I

LtL_ 
4

It w
i yo-, 

i, aynnt. 0
i . ( ' J"+ 

Ili i^ 
J L L J L L 3 L L J L J v

1, F n Q v I .\ , y r r U:.. CEMENT +^ I ` r ' r° Lr t- u ' frl E
r

MO RT AIZ. - fY V

f,, Ltl
IttIFFFF6666rr , 

v N / 

i sTas¢ C 420 . a R II 47 
vy r IS %% rqvt , L l f t r 1 

4 - v." 1 - Q- F'' L + r -__+ 
y _ +' 

f. 

a i4% 

ff , r`) d /` ', -

I -' _- __- _ 

I ( !!%

G!` '"" 
e - /' ! 

Y _ /, `\ 

t/ /~ 

I 2

4 

dL " ,
r

Y I, 
J ` 

1 / 

T is 4 41 , _ vp , k , 

t7 +
2A •

I 1 ' 1 O '. 

C •!' 1u,., { " FJ/ \ 

ITurAvo ver_ V_ a' Q d
1 , /• IJ 1 l) ' f \ I - I AT 4TM t¢ c IT- )zC.avS" VECK a ° i L `` 1 r - -, -_-- - -_ _- - - 

r-- ` 

P -Onus anctt_ I ' 

mil__ i _ 

a

1,' 
Q\ ! ^'

r

C? •, 9 __-".• t I \` - - __ -"`__ ' - ,- `
y _ _ /.-^

im
r Q- 

bl
1 1

1 \ ' " - ` -- 

N -- 
4 td rr" Q7 Z ` 

2 f / 

r „ 

1 :`
I' ^ / /, A v

I 1
r v _ 1 Dt tl , .. n• •. r' • v I t '

d' Or

Lij

I a- "'^- - „” f  f % r SCI  \ ! , , 
I V / I  '\ 

I  '
Gb`

Q  

Cv}  14 /. ,+  ,' 
@- -- E_ \ ' 1 v A. „• f { ° n- 

19

l.' x

t-- 

er `

r [ t+
r, _ -__ - 

C. C`

j' 9' , i _ __ . 
i •F%<T i

i '- - '
i° , 

I
lYi' I

s' C  /

v I
Y * 

e' h

4 -.- -' _ -___ _- _ __. -_-. _- _ ,n ^ " .

LI

I

1

ToY af- f0. 1 , 
Y/ 

I _ to

1

h, b/ 

11

Q j , r, olr a v• 1 f ^ ' i'J - 
1 }! .: 

ly
r

I I'- 

1 10.., ..,.• wu, .,. - I . W , _ 1 ' ` I I, }
r pUA V:••• • I_ 

1 I ... aaa / ( '• / r v
r H II I ( 

7
GuA zv r11I

n_ 

LQ, I \_{ bi
Z T '; T

I -

a , 
1  J

11J
I

i ' 
1

Y • '

d ( 1 _' 
i - (" ' f - ' f i I $ ><` ° 

I I
i{ I

I

r W V Qi- Fvyrt li. 

0 01

i - ° ". 1 °} a_'' 
P  , R?. c, (

I % 
4

I iI r it ' r ^ III _  
r ,  /,_,_ _ b. —^ /

F` i

1 i - LtG •.f. No. i t 6PPS "¢.s /IW+L' I I yr  1 rlr r) rlcl U. C PS ' za.nP al Lam' \' J '
I

vety,,. r) ' n e_ I_ ut. tluc 170- `

r
1 L' u l. to. l

v ^

7 I' 1

Tr N° 
I

I _ AT ' dRA/ IC 2BG05 " AA+A( >3s
II

i 6a1L / otts I > co < P' TKF_n.ar . l r, a rlloS ) a1 orv. 1 P.. I , y,'• LJAT Q.5.4 I ' RAl.1 P S " F

AT ZVI" { ZA/AR IT ryhAOb •[ ZAa\ 3" 411 I ,
I ! rat , va e. n tars , I AT . tl rLAAP IT VL- Ap7'( LAffiP4' 4i , ! I y i r II , y

i I
Y

I
i

1 e, No. 'IC ¢ v %;+0./ ilF' 1/+:' I' I yi_,j.e I ' 

IP' 
Q f i t I > I " I • i

I jl AT Z tzA)nt- IT x oro I' jLA,(AP 2A i I

PY yjr: n RA /AP tT i2C 06 " RA/ ",, A'I ( t , T
E 

r

r

I' I 
d tl' '  

G.D NC. GUPRa i al
S— 

11
j

i
h

F + I ° I E_` i i I t T r' I II Iil° +) i I i „ D R - ;; f ! I L
v . gyp to

rI I I 1 I  N I I  i
r 

J  ' I `" fr il) , J. G Onk: i"E GaS 1 ' ii I 1 r

i  M . 

i i 1 I + 1 
1

II I • 
1LL I ,<^' ",.'. S: AUJ  ' 17 ;

r ' '^ ! v''i
YY ; 

t j
r

1 ' 

it ) P
I

I I I  t ,, 
r. ! I , l• x'r1 cYa tLrc. , f . 

It

m _ , x m - 

I
i

1 1 ' - \ 4i, 1

I , I
I

bL , ; ,
y .' 1Je< vi•N,. 

I
y , II Q\r"

Q Ir ( *' 1

0 I 1 

Z
if

rA1 / v

Tod
rJo _- Jan ' > r , rqr v I ` I 1 J ` i

r

rW - / 
1 / 

r

J
11

1 , jj j C M
r t^ 

I
V U

i
Djij

L.1•' p -_ r\ i' l r __' J -7'_ a I ' 1_ 

S -__ 
1 & t",X ., 1 

J
rl i___ I ` 

irv,•1i , •.+ I tom'{ - } 
k

rD y4

tKt J. Ij; , L ylr. I --^- - r ' 

iQ.' 
I 1 - '{\ 

y

M1i T9 C 
1' , GC - 

it \'!

t

i '/ 1 \/ ' T ' S,; "/ ,•' , r V ' I 5 1. 7 b V' 

fit` . ,• ,  1  y r I J \ 

r -   

bt   " f' e } T _ 
I

a' 1

3i " , {' 
Q ' 

QA. J ETKI T 

bI VJ
o,c. N 1_I rJ E / ' , A' 

Id(
I

b

L

7Ii` ti i -: 
N 4r I ` J/ i , :`` ` i " 1 i

y -

AT 4s11 bL'Lil_IT IL2rL7h " C7L'Lb.. h' I (/ tQ j +' _ \ V( n , - rf, 
t/ P 

j'. 
11 , 

j ,

rD4.. r I' i 
y, 

1' '/ S

L_ t

I B + 
1 , 

f
R

a• ) 

1.. 3.. 

1 
r Q C.' t' iv td ' 1 4

Pt
I r

1  E f 1 1 ' r i 1 - f' lat•,l ,
v __ 

1} a :, I f 1 __.._. 

r -• 

Ci1ha r- 
If, I I / r I y , T - ,, r_•e. at , sl :f 1' r Q, 

a 1 ". 

v

I \ we- ! 
r I

fF^ 
e f

P   / 

I
1 1 Iy1% -- 

4
i  

J 

NoW .) APT -L Q i i r) , Q\  
1 i, J lal t 4 , / y 1 ' ' r Z 1

1 I• I i   I
2b '

U /   

I (
1 I r } r l t t 1 9 ) 4 rL0/ I y4) Cti • N Q

li \/
O

ii ``. 
t. A , "'}/ '

i•  1 a- 1\ I I'- z' ' ^
r I j h 4y I'+ ' 1 ( 0+ )

J . I,ii L r4// 

eiZ/ 

2' A/6 1 i ' yL: %', ti• _ i11
f1• 

TI
PL A C \ Z/  , ` - _ 2ii_ _, \ r 1 VI ¢
At 4;/ 

r1 , 
r r /

q 9 r- i00" t ` I , '• iJ
j 

y' LOO r - a> S
To rJ,' 

i I t

7
FX]' j

LLJrrt_ a Nl1Lt. .> =__ , f_ _ 
T , . 

V
j.,..,fi• '-_ -_.. .-

i ~ - I  1
1 i- ".'.. . _ I L °.: i+5 i3a1.t C_L 'a- ? L1a I., d TH1 L. UA'T ^ N 

l _____ ' 
I ! - 1 1 1

p,= TO .+ f ''` tI ` 

I

1 • } +. 
1 , 

ra 1/ / -. 1 • ' 1i 1" ,( t iP=% + 1' I %-

oP t P I I , 

r 1 ,. , -- G- fL I 2 4' O J, ' 
t -_ ____ ! r _ _, I • _ _ _ 1 - t r r- , 

4 _ O _ _- ' VLANTW4_ r t 1 / A," 
1 t ..- 

a sLepc TOP ° P 4 1 4° \ A ( 
I ` O lvsLt» i aat, 'tU'•a r • i Id' tl - H \ ! z. v It••y_No 1 . ` l ,, r 1 .'. - t A' { 

1 1 1 P% UP To 4, S! AJ 1 I - - x iJ- L-` x -- - t '` /` - ' -' - --,
1- `• / 

P_L. 7a -4v
e + \ I 4t taTM14NC I'' I I'( aP

cPwsuI
I af ir ~

I t ^• I ! i r

y - 

A¢6A' ) 

1

I j
1i

r
r ' 

1 A/ EL LcSa,.° lla" \ , p 1, I I \ cy,. 111 r >J " _ -_ 
C "_ . 

l9 }. 1̀l' - Y° - -
o-- --- 

19'- 4v_ 23' -S _ 2f4' 8 -_ 2 40n
O. ' l + - _ ' A Z {\ tvD0 - 

o

Ct 

In° c vAi L ua n. u ` 
f lII SL. ` c 12' I -

j ..•+ 1cF. L.._- ' 
I \ 

1 I I'': pv,, i al JI ? V rA'(_',• 

i
ie'.- +'•IrLn "

a , , , j 

IIt„ 2< tt> t...,,_, 1_ r r In . L 2 ',' 1^ s' I _ - O O, 1 v r r ,. . I I r r I i n1 N ` I { I

a ° "- t t... II ,.`•, 7 r., rn It 4 - I, Nn n¢.. -

Q, _ l9' - q' 1— _ L"-- ` - - i - ---L 3 - S _` 2.4 - 0 E - r, . 
n a, 1t xIt

JOB Ca I

FLrv,. 91-, r_ . NC ar.! - rtaua, (,. 4, i ,`ALICn.' 16, I I '` _
i _- _ - 

11"" I -' 
rRtSt ' + r, l6n r

t Tot" C!" I' T C (_ At" 1 , , ' 

a ( ..

t N , 
r

rut, 

T' ` 2 1 1 1 L', * J f t̂Y'- 

LNG. IU
SHEET NO

IY

S--7 ' ! 
1 , 

r !", AIIIT wit%" ^.y. ax, S!- rt, Ntx Ayna7 C11JY I
C, 

Iv ,_ 
I" , 

I ' Ip.t1t * tiT 0,A( itti CO, BC tot YOPM lu



A, 

tt

C/ ry OF 8y
rSl /1M /NTHAN. Clry OF 8JPA411V,* H4&f

T , MAKE
CONN

ro W. 'Al. 

C. A Al

Ale

y L
L ------ z , [-:77 - ---- 

tal  rllollellll — I ' A
A 'E. . 74-S.30

A

kk

I II

V, 

Ij

i. 

J

I +  II

IT- -- ----- - ------- -- 

4 ",r/RE "" 6-R

7
C

A

le

Aa
J__ 

c.c 0. -To,, 

ee
I

419. 

M

L
A, 

X6,40, 

4 Zq IAI

BLUE PRINT PAPER CO. 5C 245 PORM 103

67C A / 47

LEA If Aj /D

m4rek CLOSET — W, C,  

L A VA 7- 0 fe- Y — LA V/ Z: 

WALL HrD" AI7- 
Q

REGIS, '% 

Co4l) W4rdZ — C. W. 

W4576 4 ; IEAIT _ W4 v
Cl_6AA1 CLJT -- c.o. 

49EA DRA114 D. 

Q00' c : 5a" p

Raoic coA1Z) Ljcrcnp_ — R. C. 
FAST, A/   

IA cl) 

11,1V,CRT EL6V,4T10Al — /, E
LQlk

wri

4

7- A A_ 1

4. %
6

4

z0

Lij 

11 Li CL
U

U) U) 

Ltj

U

C? j

0

U) u

It

ry 

U
3: 
u

rr, 

c/) 

z di

CC

c LLJ

W

D

Ln w om
CD I0. 

w

Z' 

J
D < W

r

Q z

0

j

U) 

JOB NO. 

65- 19
SHEET NO. 

M- 1
of

A4

rellyl. r

OX

Ii I

iii

II

A. 

4

7- A A_ 1

4. %
6

4

z0

Lij 

11 Li CL
U

U) U) 

Ltj

U

C? j

0

U) u

It

ry 

U
3: 
u

rr, 

c/) 

z di

CC

c LLJ

W

D

Ln w om
CD I0. 

w

Z' 

J
D < W

r

Q z

0

j

U) 

JOB NO. 

65- 19
SHEET NO. 

M- 1
of



i r J  

i

r

a 

R

r

Y

6

J

1

5

F

y

i

t

n

r

K  

r

F



u

tY

Y, 

r

v

i

1: 

0

u

a

0

t r 

Y

0

i

M

Y

1



5, 

1

I,' , - •
m --+, - Cyr- •-- •—,. ..._- .._ 

I

WC: - ro NEW
G WOOnWARa

y

I

II
I' c

rcC 9
L

1  _ 

5

1

I " c

Fii Ijmm

I
I c-To LP

CKET SPITTEfZ_ 

4

1

r

it
LTG PLAN

LINE OF ROOF

Ltd

111

glW
3n It. 

TALL`( JASH

t2

P ' AB' —  L LOATE
5P-LOW COUNTER
2' -G" TO TOP OF PNL. 

I "C TO ELecT
EQUIP' T RM

1300TH
LTG SEE PLAN ArdOVE

5,000W 2045V lc ELECT
HTR - W'., CI RC S AFS 3

AB- 4- ( 20A -2P

12i C' R] A- ITENDANTS
2>OOTH @ BATES ST

NOTE BRACT LOCATION OF ALL CONDUIT
STUF3 TO 6E. DIRECTED BY OWNER

9

PLAN @ WOOL?WA_RT) ENTRANCE tIORTH

1 / 

1

e

l } 

hW6 mvmv PAPCn c0 ' 9c a O OnM tQ3 , 

0

n

I

I

r . 

T ' y ,  ' , , , t _'
7. --._ ' - 

t _ ) , Y t ' ' r t, i , 4 } t
J f _ , 

r i ' , . I ' t "! " " 1 e' , 5 , 
n • , i ' #.... , r. l  l^ , C , • a'" ,,

q1
y 1 , , i i t + , , 

t) 
t. . + 

i . , ( `, 

i.,t ,
a4,,,.• 5 ,`, ti tl

13o TH
t' _ L E G E N b y V` rT' ` L

d' '!` wt' , l

o °
t ' 

LTG PLAN
AC I

WOODWAR.D AV E" t LINE OF iROOF + I ' 

Nti= W SIGN LOCATION) -- ---- 
T_ - - - -- `` 

GATE- 

i

U

1 / ' 
3000W 206V• 1$ ELEC

HTR " B' CIRCS AC B r SPACE PVIR FUT'K LTG
AC 4 (20A 2p.) i CONTROL PAW HL$ t=MtROL PNL # 2- 

CONTROL PNL  I
BOOTH .. 
LTG, SEE. PLAN ABOV

r

ANNUNCIATO
1' C, TO ELECT =, RK I AC 2

R PANEL

IC
1 FA, SYSTEM P VEF: sUPPLY

LP' AC LOCATE 13ELAW " 1\ I PNL, CIRC X- 12, LOCATE. 

CoUl1TE.R 2' -6' TO To gL

TBoPOOFPNLTER
2' -G' 

OF PNL " 01

SYM PaOL , DD. E S C R.. I P " T 1 O N ! 

E

r

Q IINRANDESC6NT LIGMTIN3 t: tXTUM. M O CLG

IItJCANbE. SCENT, LIGHTING ., PIXTUfZE.,, CP 1VALL

P0LC , mouvt- rmD' OUTAOoR' LIGH' PIUC3 F= IDLTUetE ' 

FFLLIORESCEI. DT, L4C31iTtI. IIC -, FIXT14PM

FLUORESCENT. KITE LIGHT

551N6L6 < PgLE $ WITCH , 

DDRAIN HEATED,, SEE, SHT' E• 5 FOP— DETAIL.' 

Q JJ1JNCTI0W BOX

p JJUNCT I ON 60X FOR-, DECK SIGN SIGN aY OTHERS) 

O Fs E
FIRt3, EXTINGUI3HER, CA2, tNET gY' O7N R{ J: " 

QF FFIR' e• ALARM STATtOW 1 , 

FG FFIRE• ALARM HORN 1 ' 

Q RRELAY

R' II) SCO1JNMcT SWITCH' 

A. 1 CCIRCUIT NO 1, LIGHTI1. 1Gi PANEL A' ; 

A` TTYPE P LIGFITtW( S FIXTURE

WP WWEATHEIZ- PRC7aF '' - ,_ _ . 

SYM PaOL , DD. E S C R.. I P " T 1 O N ! 

E

r

Q I INRANDESC6NT LIGMTIN3 t: tXTUM. M O CLG

I ItJCANbE. SCENT, LIGHTING ., PIXTUfZE.,, CP 1VALL

P0LC , mouvt- rmD' OUTAOoR' LIGH' PIUC3 F= IDLTUetE ' 

F FLLIORESCEI. DT, L4C31iTtI. IIC -, FIXT14PM

FLUORESCENT. KITE LIGHT

5 51N6L6 < PgLE $ WITCH , 

D DRAIN HEATED,, SEE, SHT' E• 5 FOP— DETAIL.' 

Q J J1JNCTI0W BOX

p J JUNCT I ON 60X FOR-, DECK SIGN SIGN aY OTHERS) 

O Fs E
FIRt3, EXTINGUI3HER, CA2, tNET gY' O7N R{ J: " 

QF F FIR' e• ALARM STATtOW 1 , 

FG F FIRE• ALARM HORN 1 ' 

Q R RELAY

R' II) SCO1JNMcT SWITCH' 

A. 1 C CIRCUIT NO 1, LIGHTI1. 1Gi PANEL A' ; 

A` T TYPE P LIGFITtW( S FIXTURE

WP W WEATHEIZ- PRC7aF '' - ,_ _ . 

Y- 

t
r '

u% 

d5 , 
r

z - , 

4

ILI

U Q ,` 

r, ` r
t,, 

I

i I 2VE C To

I ZOOTH@WOOnWAR70

MT HORIZONTALLY INATTENDANTS BOOTH j / BACKSF' L. ASH, AC• 2s• E =- FLOOD'.. PLANS
oN / THIS SHEET / 

1- c ID " Ac I -- 
c < '< 

i / •' -\ \ TICKET SPITTE{ Z

FOR EXIST SIGN SE PLOT
v ,' 

1'< t

Z
FLAM / 

LIGHTING FIXTURE SCHEDULE' t- Z ' 
14OTM' EXACT LOCATION nF ALL COND. , r S ' 

LJ
i / / r r STUP,. D TO RE bI R]`- +. C7ET 3Y OW NC' R. I ( 

t , ' , 

n

r

w dHN" J' T' - 2 1 PLNM @ PATF - 5 ST ENTR, F Wr- E UORTH
vx

PAD MTV. ' D E CO

2WEMj' TY COND

it
y

j \ 

f

Sc- P., v, rN7` PANCC
1 pR O VIMe 0R. AI I+ JAG' L

ATTENDANTS ( 300TH ` --• 
E} FLOOA PLANS ON THt3 SHT

i

NEW CONDLI. IT, TIE INTO ' 
EXISTING CONDUIT r' 

UNDE( LGKOUND PRIMACY
SERVICE F- WTKANC17- 

Cx S "'
A

SEE iZ, ISEtvDIAGRAM
gC Al

Is T F \` - VXIST CONDUIT
POT

P1zop6, sED- 1) a co
CABLE POLE: 

TYPE LAMPS MAIILIFAcTUREfZS OR, eQUAL " R titARlcs

L- FTZT 12/ CW/ HO TRI - PART 1 100 CP PLIZAIGLASS TRI> 1A% LUCEIST - ~
1

A ( 80OMA 277Y HPF. LBN3 AND ALUMI NUM Hou5WG - ` - suRFfaca tdaT 
0° F OPERATION W/ G E 89 Ca 928 5A. LLAST OP- 
BALLAST) 

EQUAL

2 FA8TI2 / CW/ t4o TRI• FAOM X200 CF, PLEXIGLAS
g ( B001M 12oV H p F TIiAN' 6WcGr. NT LEN, 5` AND ALUM HOUSIIJG SURFACE., tA- r, p

20 ° F OPERATION r

BALLAST) W G - E 89  60 S BALLAST ' OP, 

tI -
QuAL ' - 

1 - 25oW, CoLOP• PRESCOLITE 1159 BO F SPECIAL
CORRECTSF3 Ms- RC I ' 

C' 
LAMP CoMPLET> w WITH, B ' b1Anx 10' - 0' N16H ' - 

ALUMINUM POLES TRANSFORMED CONc' aAS' eY

BAIZV - TYPS- , COMPLETE= WITHTH 277 V- 
BALLAST

1 - toow BENJgMIN564f ` ` SLIRFAdE MTV. 

E' I - loow

F z - 6oW ART METAL IF 601 , 5UXr- AI;- m MTV. 

G' 4-- C7 LAMpS' , PERpECLITE ' q1 p3- 37f` -' CLG MTD" 

H' A,- c7 LAMPS , PERFECLITE`+ P5
1 ^ 

4' C 7 LAMPS pErZFE LITE ° PS,- 37 1, 1- 

4- G7 LAMPS PEFRFECLITE? F P5 -,$ 3 t; WeATN>; R.• WALL RMCMSSHD , 

L

RAPID STAP T
AL KC O

4

2 - BOW ` 
M„ ALo 12a,`, 

RAPID START
KCC S

I r '  ' 

N I - IOow ERtr- P- - UTE r- 38S AL t ' ,' RacFassEb

4 00WATTIS HotOPNANB * 4, SG 4/'* 0877 CAST I PQoVI E18WX$' Nx % 6TN1cK
COLAfL Cogpu cTeD ALUw1f7 uPi? zAAC. ke, T , ( 277VOLT) GALV STEELPLATF - to ; 
MERCURY wl i t1 P, d r6' ELCG Tp ! G SELL. SPAN OETWEEN cowam

RNs SEE OVT I t? LOWr, 

J; 

Y' 

It

fi

r

X

It • 
t , 

i, U, . r "

Fill, 
t ^ Y ^ f ",, Ii

w_ I „. r

Rl

N^ r' 

JI. `
rt

n

ITr . 

t n 1

a, , a

M, 4.„. 

r,.. \ ,...,- .- _.._«-- .... -... - _.. -.-.. ...- ......_.+- -•-__• 
rte'_'_ -! _.•.' , ', 

l  '  ` r
L r , t ,' 7  ., Jr

LLJ

t
1

M1 a ' 1 ,,' t' ' f' Jt
f14

t) l

PLOT , iJL: sA N , s '• ~,.  r r'^,- 4. i,'.. -+ •,. "''',.': - 
r' I' r ,

t, 

J`,, - <<, , 
SCALE r I c• 80• // i f r '- `..,,,' _ ., ` - CL. 

l +. /  , ,. ' '< w E; •• ; tea „

fir
ri  

r

r

i x6lX14 qe... v Ti: EXP % 3r3LT Ta GONG' PntJ> LS "'.'' + ; J l ,, ) Z ,( 1 

iEE FLnas' Fot toee Tloui Fo4 TYriE n' FtxYUhE -' ' l01" l`", y

l

if
999

Imp j, 

1 ^

IC. --- - (. -

i0i F" CU 0. Ci r i

r  

1 ' c _ 
l 1J V' a ii' ° 4

I •-- _. L.. ' , ',, 
r ,

l , , . 1 ' 1, ` r- _ t - { . j[ r{ 1 ., 1 ri ' fin r . {: t

1 ,'' D• n , /^$ LA P I 

L' ' - .

il , 
Y ' !, 

P , i . IQQ NV, • ' fe` 1
0  a y _  ' 

1
r l , S' 1 , , i `` r , ' n , , r i - ', SII f'_' t 4 ? iM1

165' I' 1 A R`(' IAL ' SE 71C7.) ' LOc K1IJ CL 5pUY1 - i , <+ ' _' r ; ", 

I '•, i' 

d01I9, tIN
10

l , , l ' Y ' t i la'. , C - ..° 1 i , r , " •' 2, , ,'
y'' ,  , "  „ rr' pC  yam,: (/ 

1 1 ' , , ' ' , l , ' + - , • , , ' ,

r' , " l a I.....
r..- , r , ' r

X4  ` , i ^ " , Iri t! " yr ,
rye iF, ly r_, n., ni -.'+ 

C YBII 1@`¢ i6 , \\ „ ,.''.. . •,+•
i' F",`_- 

J , e ". '. t, .,\ ` i r . t'" 1. 19' , 
v4C Y^' _ t, natf

1 , I f !` ' ' 
1 ' ' I , . , \ , ..

1._ f_ m•._ (' t 5 , ' . t .• , _ - I _ ` 1 •) ''/ 1, •• 1 '• l r,'  < " ,{ 
1r , T t • 

114, + rc ' 1 ` tl K ,'• ,- fin/ , 1., it '-
e'. , 7, t <) ( ' J, rt l' x } i i 5., , , 1" ,'. '• rt -  

arl ii i Y9 },: 
d•.. .., ._ _ -. r _ __.• -.. mow,_ __ u L: .''' . r ' ... ._ d1._ 5`.]'....., -. s... y __.... j. i- +_t. l: l_ ___ + 3+ ai

1._ `..'.'
rus . fl ..(' 

L4r 1, ' r yr -•" '. i t. A, _ ^ 3

i I 2VE C To

I ZOOTH@WOOnWAR70

MT HORIZONTALLY INATTENDANTS BOOTH j / BACKSF' L. ASH, AC• 2s• E =- FLOOD'.. PLANS
oN / THIS SHEET / 

1- c ID " Ac I -- 
c < '< 

i / •' -\ \ TICKET SPITTE{ Z

FOR EXIST SIGN SE PLOT
v ,' 

1'< t

Z
FLAM / 

LIGHTING FIXTURE SCHEDULE' t- Z ' 
14OTM' EXACT LOCATION nF ALL COND. , r S ' 

LJ
i / / r r STUP,.D TO RE bI R]`- +. C7ET 3Y OW NC' R. I ( 

t , ' , 

n

r

w dHN"J' T' - 2 1 PLNM @ PATF - 5 ST ENTR, F Wr- E UORTH
vx

PAD MTV. ' D E CO

2WEMj' TY COND

it
y

j \ 

f

Sc- P., v, rN7` PANCC
1 pR O VIMe 0R. AI I+ JAG' L

ATTENDANTS ( 300TH ` --• 
E} FLOOA PLANS ON THt3 SHT

i

NEW CONDLI. IT, TIE INTO ' 
EXISTING CONDUIT r' 

UNDE( LGKOUND PRIMACY
SERVICE F- WTKANC17- 

Cx S "'
A

SEE iZ, ISEtvDIAGRAM
gC Al

Is T F \` - VXIST CONDUIT
POT

P1zop6, sED- 1) a co
CABLE POLE: 

TYPE LAMPS MAIILIFAcTUREfZS OR, eQUAL " R titARlcs

L- FTZT 12/ CW/ HO TRI - PART 1 100 CP PLIZAIGLASS TRI> 1A% LUCEIST - ~
1

A ( 80OMA 277Y HPF. LBN3 AND ALUMI NUM Hou5WG - ` - suRFfaca tdaT 
0° F OPERATION W/ G E 89 Ca 928 5A. LLAST OP- 

BALLAST) 
EQUAL

2 FA8TI2 / CW/ t4o TRI• FAOM X200 CF, PLEXIGLAS
g ( B001M 12oV H p F TIiAN' 6WcGr. NT LEN, 5` AND ALUM HOUSIIJG SURFACE., tA- r, p

20 ° F OPERATION r

BALLAST) W G - E 89  60 S BALLAST ' OP, 

tI -
QuAL ' - 

1 - 25oW, CoLOP• PRESCOLITE 1159 BO F SPECIAL
CORRECTSF3 Ms- RC I ' 

C' 
LAMP CoMPLET> w WITH, B ' b1Anx 10' - 0' N16H ' - 

ALUMINUM POLES TRANSFORMED CONc' aAS' eY

BAIZV - TYPS- , COMPLETE= WITHTH 277 V- 
BALLAST

1 - toow BENJgMIN564f ` ` SLIRFAdE MTV. 

E' I - loow

F z - 6oW ART METAL IF 601 , 5UXr- AI;- m MTV. 

G' 4-- C7 LAMpS' , PERpECLITE ' q1 p3- 37f` -' CLG MTD" 

H' A,- c7 LAMPS , PERFECLITE`+ P5
1 ^ 

4' C 7 LAMPS pErZFE LITE ° PS,- 37 1, 1- 

4- G7 LAMPS PEFRFECLITE? F P5 -,$ 3 t; WeATN>; R.• WALL RMCMSSHD , 

L

RAPID STAP T
AL KC O

4

2 - BOW ` 
M„ ALo 12a,`, 

RAPID START
KCC S

I r '  ' 

N I - IOow ERtr- P- - UTE r- 38S AL t ' ,' RacFassEb

4 00WATTIS HotOPNANB * 4, SG 4/'* 0877 CAST I PQoVI E18WX$' Nx % 6TN1cK
COLAfL Cogpu cTeD ALUw1f7 uPi? zAAC. ke, T , ( 277VOLT) GALV STEELPLATF - to ; 

MERCURY wl i t1 P, d r6' ELCG Tp ! G SELL. SPAN OETWEEN cowam
RNs SEE OVT I t? LOWr, 

J; 

Y' 

It

fi

r

X

It • 
t , 

i, U, . r "

Fill, 
t ^ Y ^ f ",, Ii

w_ I „. r

Rl

N^ r' 

JI. `
rt

n

ITr . 

t n 1

a, , a

M, 4.„. 

r,.. \ ,...,- .- _.._«-- .... -... - _.. -.-.. ...- ......_.+- -•-__• 
rte'_'_ -! _.•.' , ', 

l  '  ` r
L r , t ,' 7  ., Jr

LLJ

t
1

M1 a ' 1 ,,' t' ' f' Jt
f14

t) l

PLOT , iJL: sA N , s '• ~,.  r r'^,- 4. i,'.. -+ •,. "''',.': - 
r' I' r ,

t, 

J`,, - <<, , 
SCALE r I c• 80• // i f r '- `..,,,' _ ., ` - CL. 

l +. /  , ,. ' '< w E; •• ; tea „

fir
ri  

r

r

i x6lX14 qe... v Ti: EXP % 3r3LT Ta GONG' PntJ> LS "'.'' + ; J l ,, ) Z ,( 1 

iEE FLnas' Fot toee Tloui Fo4 TYriE n' FtxYUhE -' ' l01" l`", y

l

if
999

Imp j, 

1 ^

IC. --- - (. -

i0i F" CU 0. Ci r i

r  

1 ' c _ 
l 1J V' a ii' ° 4

I •-- _. L.. ' , ',, 
r ,

l , , . 1 ' 1, ` r- _ t - { . j[ r{ 1 ., 1 ri ' fin r . {: t

1 ,'' D• n , /^$ LA P I 

L' ' - .

il , 
Y ' !, 

P , i . IQQ NV, • ' fe` 1
0  a y _  ' 

1
r l , S' 1 , , i `` r , ' n , , r i - ', SII f'_' t 4 ? iM1

165' I' 1 A R`(' IAL ' SE 71C7.) ' LOc K1IJ CL 5pUY1 - i , <+ ' _' r ; ", 

I '•, i' 

d01I9, tIN
10

l , , l ' Y ' t i la'. , C - ..° 1 i , r , " •' 2, , ,'
y'' ,  , "  „ rr' pC  yam,: (/ 

1 1 ' , , ' ' , l , ' + - , • , , ' ,

r' , " l a I.....
r..- , r , ' r

X4  ` , i ^ " , Iri t! " yr ,
rye iF, ly r_, n., ni -.'+ 

C YBII 1@`¢ i6 , \\ „ ,.''.. . •,+•
i' F",`_- 

J , e ". '. t, .,\ ` i r . t'" 1. 19' , 
v4C Y^' _ t, natf

1 , I f !` ' ' 
1 ' ' I , . , \ , ..

1._ f_ m•._ (' t 5 , ' . t .• , _ - I _ ` 1 •) ''/ 1, •• 1 '• l r,'  < " ,{ 
1r , T t • 

114, + rc ' 1 ` tl K ,'• ,- fin/ , 1., it '-
e'. , 7, t <) ( ' J, rt l' x } i i 5., , , 1" ,'. '• rt -  

arl ii i Y9 },: 
d•.. .., ._ _ -. r _ __.• -.. mow,_ __ u L: .''' . r ' ... ._ d1._ 5`.]'....., -. s... y __.... j. i- +_t. l:l_ ___ + 3+ ai

1._ `..'.'
rus . fl ..(' 

L4r 1, ' r yr -•" '. i t. A, _ ^ 3

J; 

Y' 

It

fi

r

X

It • 
t , 

i, U, . r "

Fill, 
t ^ Y ^ f ",, Ii

w_I „. r

Rl

N^ r' 

JI. `
rt

n

ITr . 

t n 1

a, , a

M, 4.„. 

r,.. \ ,...,- .- _.._«-- .... -... - _.. -.-.. ...- ......_.+- -•-__• 
rte'_'_ -! _.•.' , ', 

l  '  ` r
L r , t ,' 7  ., Jr

LLJ

t
1

M1 a ' 1 ,,' t' ' f' Jt
f14

t) l

PLOT , iJL: sA N , s '• ~,.  r r'^,- 4. i,'.. -+ •,. "''',.': - 
r' I' r ,

t, 

J`,, - <<, , 
SCALE r I c• 80• // i f r '- `..,,,' _ ., ` - CL. 

l +. /  , ,. ' '< w E; •• ; tea „

fir
ri  

r

r

i x6lX14 qe... v Ti: EXP % 3r3LT Ta GONG' PntJ> LS "'.'' + ; J l ,, ) Z ,( 1 

iEE FLnas' Fot toee Tloui Fo4 TYriE n' FtxYUhE -' ' l01" l`", y

l

if
999

Imp j, 

1 ^

IC. --- - (. -

i0i F" CU 0. Ci r i

r  

1 ' c _ 
l 1J V' a ii' ° 4

I •-- _. L.. ' , ',, 
r ,

l , , . 1 ' 1, ` r- _ t - { . j[ r{ 1 ., 1 ri ' fin r . {: t

1 ,'' D• n , /^$ LA P I 

L' ' - .

il , 
Y ' !, 

P , i . IQQ NV, • ' fe` 1
0  a y _  ' 

1
r l , S' 1 , , i `` r , ' n , , r i - ', SII f'_' t 4 ? iM1

165' I' 1 A R`(' IAL ' SE 71C7.) ' LOc K1IJ CL 5pUY1 - i , <+ ' _' r ; ", 

I '•, i' 

d01I9, tIN
10

l , , l ' Y ' t i la'. , C - ..° 1 i , r , " •' 2, , ,'
y'' ,  , "  „ rr' pC  yam,: (/ 

1 1 ' , , ' ' , l , ' + - , • , , ' ,

r' , " l a I.....
r..- , r , ' r

X4  ` , i ^ " , Iri t! " yr ,
rye iF, ly r_, n., ni -.'+ 

C YBII 1@`¢ i6 , \\ „ ,.''.. . •,+•
i' F",`_- 

J , e ". '. t, .,\ ` i r . t'" 1. 19' , 
v4C Y^' _ t, natf

1 , I f !` ' ' 
1 ' ' I , . , \ , ..

1._ f_ m•._ (' t 5 , ' . t .• , _ - I _ ` 1 •) ''/ 1, •• 1 '• l r,'  < " ,{ 
1r , T t • 

114, + rc ' 1 ` tl K ,'• ,- fin/ , 1., it '-
e'. , 7, t <) ( ' J, rt l' x } i i 5., , , 1" ,'. '• rt -  

arl ii i Y9 },: 
d•.. .., ._ _ -. r _ __.• -.. mow,_ __ u L: .''' . r ' ... ._ d1._ 5`.]'....., -. s... y __.... j. i- +_t. l: l_ ___ + 3+ ai

1._ `..'.'
rus . fl ..(' 

L4r 1, ' r yr -•" '. i t. A, _ ^ 3

r,.. \ ,...,- .- _.._«-- .... -... - _.. -.-.. ...- ......_.+- -•-__• 
rte'_'_ -! _.•.' , ', 

l  '  ` r
L r , t ,' 7  ., Jr

LLJ

t
1

M1 a ' 1 ,,' t' ' f' Jt
f14

t) l

PLOT , iJL: sA N , s '• ~,.  r r'^,- 4. i,'.. -+ •,. "''',.': - 
r' I' r ,

t, 

J`,, - <<, , 
SCALE r I c• 80• // i f r '- `..,,,' _ ., ` - CL. 

l +. /  , ,. ' '< w E; •• ; tea „

fir
ri  

r

r

i x6lX14 qe... v Ti: EXP % 3r3LT Ta GONG' PntJ> LS "'.'' + ; J l ,, ) Z ,( 1 

iEE FLnas' Fot toee Tloui Fo4 TYriE n' FtxYUhE -' ' l01" l`", y

l

if
999

Imp j, 

1 ^

IC. --- - (. -

i0i F" CU 0. Ci r i

r  

1 ' c _ 
l 1J V' a ii' ° 4

I •-- _. L.. ' , ',, 
r ,

l , , . 1 ' 1, ` r- _ t - { . j[ r{ 1 ., 1 ri ' fin r . {: t

1 ,'' D• n , /^$ LA P I 

L' ' - .

il , 
Y ' !, 

P , i . IQQ NV, • ' fe` 1
0  a y _  ' 

1
r l , S' 1 , , i `` r , ' n , , r i - ', SII f'_' t 4 ? iM1

165' I' 1 A R`(' IAL ' SE 71C7.) ' LOc K1IJ CL 5pUY1 - i , <+ ' _' r ; ", 

I '•, i' 

d01I9, tIN
10

l , , l ' Y ' t i la'. , C - ..° 1 i , r , " •' 2, , ,'
y'' ,  , "  „ rr' pC  yam,: (/ 

1 1 ' , , ' ' , l , ' + - , • , , ' ,

r' , " l a I.....
r..- , r , ' r

X4  ` , i ^ " , Iri t! " yr ,
rye iF, ly r_, n., ni -.'+ 

C YBII 1@`¢ i6 , \\ „ ,.''.. . •,+•
i' F",`_- 

J , e ". '. t, .,\ ` i r . t'" 1. 19' , 
v4C Y^' _ t, natf

1 , I f !` ' ' 
1 ' ' I , . , \ , ..

1._ f_ m•._ (' t 5 , ' . t .• , _ - I _ ` 1 •) ''/ 1, •• 1 '• l r,'  < " ,{ 
1r , T t • 

114, + rc ' 1 ` tl K ,'• ,- fin/ , 1., it '-
e'. , 7, t <) ( ' J, rt l' x } i i 5., , , 1" ,'. '• rt -  

arl ii i Y9 },: 
d•.. .., ._ _ -. r _ __.• -.. mow,_ __ u L: .''' . r ' ... ._ d1._ 5`.]'....., -. s... y __.... j. i- +_t. l:l_ ___ + 3+ ai

1._ `..'.'
rus . fl ..(' 

L4r 1, ' r yr -•" '. i t. A, _ ^ 3



i

I



l

I

I , 

4

STA I P- " C" 

0

r x 3 1

LO156Y JOG

0

I T

IT

Film
TLT EXH FAN ( Al R

TL Id — 
KING #WF8CS op _ 

COKITR
13`( ELEC - 

C01.1T CACTO R

F„ AA-5
4 KW 2 7V I+ 
ELEC H- 

FOR 1000W. WATER = CI RC, A• Il
14TR CIRC, AA -23 - - - -- - 
WATEP, " TV- E`f
coN1' R. see SPEc'S _— -- - - - - - _ - - -- -- 

I

Ij

X30
G

I ' 

STAI Z " G' - Q RTH eAST CC P- E12, 
NORTH

IST DECk PLAM
SCALE

A

13TH UEC1'- 

4TH DECK _ - __ ___ P,•LAP —_ 

4TH DECK

3 - -- _ 
3RA DGOK

I S7 DECIe. =- - QAN,p Z -- -- 
2ND bmcC - 

1 50AF -T R I C a!AG -R•A /n

OLOR PgINY1PAPCN 00 IC if POIIM 101
I + 

1

r

t

x2

513Y 10

LSVATOR II 3

STAIP- " e? 

X• 5

MACHINE RM 105

AA 2

L — -- — -- - 100-A-- 00A 3P 5W -- 
cATE ELEVATOR. 

lEV PIT

MAIN D, P, 

S T A I R " FL;' - SOUTH EAST CO2N E P, NORTH

IsT DECD PLAN
SCALEL 14 n l - O

0

G- 1• G 

JI
T
3
O MAIN D P i

I

LOCATE IN
IOOA -3P SWELEV, PIT ((((((''' 
FOR E[LEVA -CO

Ile. 

ELEVATOR. 101

41 MACHINE RM 102

1' r- To TEL, BV- 

12

I
X 4

WEasy loo
F 1 TAI1= ' X

AA_4
L

i

STAIR. SOUT N W E ST COP—W EPL / RTH

IST DE CK- PL A, t- A
SGA LE 14.I= 1'- G" 

3 t 12 544c To

r IPG'5A 7, A S e A 

1

I

STAI C. 

o
SESE P NON THIS SHT I '  Z

qp - 4 - p- P _ - -- -- 
i-- - - --- - -- -- 

pN
p-- fl-- ll - O - Q - p - \ W

j
I I ` SEE PLAN ON  

THIS SHT )
1"  

CIA
J - - - -- — jN, r. Ad• I6 - - - -- - -- 

t }-- - -- - -- - fj- - - - -- y' d• 5 - -- -[ -- f - IT
AA 21

I ST D e c bC I A L2a i I, Q V K S a
ALL FIXTURES TYPE A' I l ' 

O ^ 1  - U d ' f

EXCEPT AS NOTED
I

1 ! 

N N

W I- I , ! 

cd

o x

I' 

I I

I I I
UNEXCAVATED

i

1
I

A421 Dr4 - --- - - ! -- - -- lj}-- -- - -- - --- 

I I

I

z

a

TRANSP T. 

I
I

L

UG s

I SEP- V ICE

Nv i
0 2

1ST DECK

ALL F XTURES T" IP - c- N ' 
s \ I I rl ©I. GI I I EXCEPT AS IN0TE01

L I - -- 

u

cz

Ld

I w , 

NL 0" w2 ( G
IL

a ; 

o- 2
I

t PG
U , 

AA - z4

TELHK, Etib ' / 0

4• < 4• K 3' a. PL OOD

W, 

01,{ DAiZY

m

1111  
I

ENT. 
z F

i — 2 111, 

Q - ((77
Ify J , 

J' a, F R ENT. - OXIT
I AMPLI IaX HOUSING

I

0

Y' 

tl , I, G
STAIR a

C ENf 13• C eMP TO I I
1 _ 

I I
s PLAN ON

I TOIP' X_ MAIN D P, ' THIS 54T s

114P

I } 
1

SLA B AS DIQFr - TaO  

t i.L' TP - C. T OiL _ 
r1I  )

i

r

A  

n

teGr , 

R. c E OR 9LA$ AS DIREGTEp i F r'` 
TOMS D EcTED

OsTUts 'I
j\ OUT 5 = C' Z' 

BEYOND WALL $ '•' , , `.'
1 v "' 

CAPPED FDIR FUT < 

EXTE NSI D N ' , 

PAD MT D TRAM ' SF. 

r r

I ST D E C K. P L A ?. I RAM PIS # I uDR7H U' 

U G. pR' k MAQ: I? SERVICE, Wi C UNaERGR, ON' D n ' 

SEE PLOT PLAN F01Z" JOB NO ` 

COhIT 1 NuAT 10 N '

6, 5- 19' 3

4+ 

1 1 _ 

MI & DAL, LA { NE & SACHS, IBC SHIZET NO , 
CONSULTING ENGINE @RS

1011 AS NINE MILE' RD
t _ OAKqRAfft JqCMIGAN 46¢ 37

j c 0484333

4 9 ' V .` W 1 • Zh

i

i

f0.` 

r , 

I
I ! 1

x
1 , 

u j> 

I

STAI C. 

o
SESE P NON THIS SHT I '  Z

qp - 4 - p- P _ - -- -- 
i-- - - --- - -- -- 

pN
p-- fl-- ll - O - Q - p - \ W

j
I I ` SEE PLAN ON  

THIS SHT )
1"  

CIA
J - - - -- — jN, r. Ad• I6 - - - -- - -- 

t }-- - -- - -- - fj- - - - -- y' d• 5 - -- -[ -- f - IT
AA 21

I ST D e c bC I A L2a i I, Q V K S a
ALL FIXTURES TYPE A' I l ' 

O ^ 1  - U d ' f

EXCEPT AS NOTED
I

1 ! 

N N

W I- I , ! 

cd

o x

I' 

I I

I I I
UNEXCAVATED

i

1
I

A421 Dr4 - --- - - ! -- - -- lj}-- -- - -- - --- 

I I

I

z

a

TRANSP T. 

I
I

L

UG s

I SEP- V ICE

Nv i
0 2

1ST DECK

ALL F XTURES T" IP - c- N ' 
s \ I I rl ©I. GI I I EXCEPT AS IN0TE01

L I - -- 

u

cz

Ld

I w , 

NL 0" w2 ( G
IL

a ; 

o- 2
I

t PG
U , 

AA - z4

TELHK, Etib ' / 0

4• < 4• K 3' a. PL OOD

W, 

01,{ DAiZY

m

1111  
I

ENT. 
z F

i — 2 111, 

Q - ((77
Ify J , 

J' a, F R ENT. - OXIT
I AMPLI IaX HOUSING

I

0

Y' 

tl , I, G
STAIR a

C ENf 13• C eMP TO I I
1 _ 

I I
s PLAN ON

I TOIP' X_ MAIN D P, ' THIS 54T s

114P

I } 
1

SLA B AS DIQFr - TaO  

t i. L' TP - C. T OiL _ 
r1I  )

i

r

A  

n

teGr , 

R. c E OR 9LA$ AS DIREGTEp i F r'` 
TOMS D EcTED

OsTUts 'I
j\ OUT 5 = C' Z' 

BEYOND WALL $ '•' , , `.'
1 v "' 

CAPPED FDIR FUT < 

EXTE NSI D N ' , 

PAD MT D TRAM ' SF. 

r r

I ST D E C K. P L A ?. I RAM PIS # I uDR7H U' 

U G. pR' k MAQ: I? SERVICE, Wi C UNaERGR, ON' D n ' 

SEE PLOT PLAN F01Z" JOB NO ` 

COhIT 1 NuAT 10 N '

6, 5- 19' 3

4+ 

1 1 _ 

MI & DAL, LA { NE & SACHS, IBC SHIZET NO , 
CONSULTING ENGINE @RS

1011 AS NINE MILE' RD
t _ OAKqRAfft JqCMIGAN 46¢ 37

j c 0484333



FLUE PRINT PAPER CO. ! C 1. 65 FORM Rl

r



I  _ _ _ _ __ 
J1Y'- ') 4LL_V W.JU..+ t̂We4nlX "r J. n e y. — .— .. —.. - -- , 

v

r   

1

tl

r
I /

C / 
r   " -  

a

1  

r- 

I

t 

I I

I ' 

f

I 

I ` 

r r

Jl

G C
Z

r ID p v

r

a , 

0

pA 6

4
4 KZ -

G
s

l
i • J -------- -- -' -- - - -

r -- - I r - ffff - - -' , -' - -- - -- M  _ I g - -- I- - -- - - - - -- - - --- -- ---- - --- - - - -- I x` ( Iili' 
STA I fL "' 1 I

I I ° 5TA12 B" STAI R, "G" " t$ LI 5 " ` 

5

I

I° _ 
TAIt' f3 '' CS Cd

TYPE 3" FIXTLIRE j̀ - "£ i
I I

TYPE B" FIXTLLKP.S TYPE ' 5' FIXTWQE9 TYPEaIS" FWI`UME3

Y
v

pI , 
AA

L — 3 Z` a
LA4- I I I . 1./ I V N, C _ 7 - 

F

J F AT MID POI N' 1' OF I I — _ - 
Ir' 

j N,L. AA f L, pA I
AAL21 AA 20 SHAFT FOP_ ELGVATOP- I AAr•21 2ND DECK I - Ag20

3 RD ' D E G K L16 NTINCa, CIRG X 11 3KW Z77V cb EC. I I
ALL FIXTuRE4 TYPE "A" I I r

I r

V

ALL FIXTUtCES TY78 " q' I HTR. " Cj Cl(tC A•2
I E,XCePT AS NOTED -- I

EXCEPT As NOTED

N N { 

w

f— 
d W „

I

u , 1

EC ' FEG FHG '+ 

to

C1P-C A-B 11I
APPROA 25' UP

g. AA 16 7
I ' S "' QM' 10 , k V 1 '' a•,, 

I UHF I II I D.. C1 I, }
W

11 Na I rw F- a I I w

6 w2

5  

8 _ - -- * 

11I __ -
p

4 - - -• 
F{EC - --  F, -- - 

AA - 21 AAZ O

m :Q
z w

f LAA-Za A 1
s

WWW qur - - 

A - A - — ZI - 

z YOtj v r rL FfiC N UI F C • _ 

y/ 
owl

i >< F
1 D[ LL I i

I
JQ +! 

K
a' 

F

I

WXC -.._. _ I PC LL W --
i,— __ •

Q1= 

1 .-. k ,, . - , 

MLn QAA IT
I

I
I  jf AA 11 1 i I 4W g AA 16 J,K , 

El- 

Type 1b, — -- T' m

I 4
y-, 

FEC —; - -_ FEC . 
1

FEC , 

j
ry '` 1fz
co

I

It

3RD DP_Glt. 2ND D6a1c_ 

6LL FIXruP -Ea TYP2 "6r I J 8 AT MIDPOINT OP I
W-L. FIATUR.E5 TYP& "4" Q , 

I
J J

I SHAFT FOR. ELEVATO2 I EXCEPT 45 NOTLD

r " ° 

I , 

N, L, 44, 17
AA 21

EXCEPT Ag NoTLD
AA 20 LGHTINU ' CIRC X - 10 21 20

N L, AA L, AA 16 AA" 5

I
1

r

T'rPe. B" FlxiuR; e9 ST iF _ TYPE ` B' FIXTLLRC$ / i `
TI ' 

I

Q 2

3P-D DECK PLAN - , AM P5 " 3 $ 2A NozTH 2ND DECK, PLAIN - RAM P5 2 IA
GALE , 

16u_ 
1' - O° 56ALE 116 = 1'. pr

bi , 

J
U, 

0_ ; 

0 , Z
N I y a

JOB NO. " 
r

65, 9
INAL, LAVIN $ Acks SHEET NO

ON8 3 } TIf# Evolf4i" s , , r7' r
F016b 'W NI MILE R6` 

1" 

tN W , 11u3, ` A PARK. MI 1 N 7

D AW _• . 1 . tk _ . r I,_. w
wk rnINr rArxn aD

1. 3_>.__.- .- ._. -, _, 1- i_.__.__- _..a_ 1_ 1 -_ -__. _____.__.1_ t =.. __- _.__. -.., 1 .+ __ i__ ___, _. .._.__.1.._,.,___,. __ __,_ - t i. ...._._i. _,_,____. ___ __ ,. -. ___..__ _a__- .... -..". _ » r_.'!_.- ....._ ... _ - .f, ... s.- ...__.._ -._ _, _.. ___..i .. _..__vim._ ._..- LL -_ y_. _. 1.._..___.______ _. fit. .. _.., v_.. - L____= __- -.y.._ _"_____ ._ ____ —._ ____- „
v,,,,,. -) 

t .... -, _ a`_- - - -!>• --- -'- u_ 



w

1. 

i

l' 

1

y

a, 

Y

1

1

4 

v



I

I

I

u

1, 

TYPE. " B FIXTUKES !` Ig( IK I - 

Wp - -- -- r- - - - -- -
I- - - -- - -- - 

5 TH D E C_ K. 

1 • (' a _) - 
i l0

i

t1i. hLw s, 4
I

V

N . 
N , 

2 , 
I

h

lA

f
D  

r

N Q i

xz

a' 

F

x___zjjj''' jjj " $ 9T61R, " 6" STAIR. _ c"     `_ i - '  "
N, 

a  STA. IR.. 6 , NTYPE " g" FIXTURES TYPE 8" F1xTURES   

TYPG. 3" FIXTq 6S
W-- r Y

AA J2
ALL FIXTUKP5 TYPO X' I ' 
EXCEPT AS ISOTED I

cs

N N

II I AA ` I AA I O 2  ' 
i - -- —} 

t— -- 
sa - H -- — - 

F ` Fc
to U q
m a

1`( PEt ^ c,. 

j ce U
r r

I
w

Ss Ii OAA I9 cn Z

LLP - --- — 

I -- - -- - - - - - - - - 
i ! a O , a

IL ja
14n I_ Lo ILI

x- 22 W-/ AA 22 AA 22 d. N O v 1

fL

wk I

I
XQ

CL •_

j

tj

An• 19

Cd 1
I i

I
a ; 

i

5T" DECK. PLAM - 2AMP5' 1' 5 It " 4A

0

CLVR PRINT FAFl: n Co { C x q KonM toj

h
I ` 

ono ,  Lu
u7 J > 

I o
r- ,- -- _ -- o qq  

1
0

4
a CI PiC, A- 3 X 2 m` 

AA I I *' 
TYPE " O' 

r

N — -- - -- — - - - 

dl - -_ - - - - 

A9
APPROX 2dUP _ `    

W` 
t

I
10 ( Y J

H f

DRAIN HBATCi25EE , .- 
DETAIL ON SHT L - S w - - .._ I 004 TYPICAL_) 

Ldn. —

j— 4TH D 0 a; e- Q Z
0

7
ALL FIXTLIRE9 TYPR. " A.' ' n

AA 22
EXCePT AS NOTGO

22AA
A

Nt. © AA I J " L AA

4

5TA. 1tL. - 
STAif..' b." 

r
TYPE. " 6' FrXTt1V: E55

AA 5

W

Ln

7H DECIL PLAN - RAMPS " 4 I ' a 3A  •  ,_' , 
3GALC

bi

t - 
t

r
bi j

if L V - 

t

JO13 NO. , 

r

4

65- 19, ° - i

9I9aet, DYNE d tee c, " x IN SHEET NO . 
CONSULTIN EN6INEE lQ " - J
10156 1M IIjE Mi E WO

OAK f% Wt, 14 Fk16' bN 10. 1
548 -' 009, 

i

u

1, 

TYPE. " B FIXTUKES !` Ig( IK I - 

Wp - -- -- r- - - - -- -
I- - - -- - -- - 

5 TH D E C_ K. 

1 • (' a _) - 
i l0

i

t1i. hLw s, 4
I

V

N . 
N , 

2 , 
I

h

lA

f
D  

r

N Q i

xz

a' 

F

x___zjjj''' jjj " $ 9T61R, " 6" STAIR. _ c"     `_ i - '  "
N, 

a  STA. IR.. 6 , NTYPE " g" FIXTURES TYPE 8" F1xTURES   

TYPG. 3" FIXTq 6S
W-- r Y

AA J2
ALL FIXTUKP5 TYPO X' I ' 

EXCEPT AS ISOTED I

cs

N N

II I AA ` I AA I O 2  ' 
i - -- —} 

t— -- 
sa - H -- — - 

F ` Fc
to U q
m a

1`( PEt ^ c,. 

j ce U
r r

I
w

Ss Ii OAA I9 cn Z

LLP - --- — 

I -- - -- - - - - - - - - 
i ! a O , a

IL ja
14n I_ Lo ILI

x- 22 W-/ AA 22 AA 22 d. N O v 1

fL

wk I

I
XQ

CL •_

j

tj

An• 19

Cd 1
I i

I
a ; 

i

5T" DECK. PLAM - 2AMP5' 1' 5 It " 4A

0

CLVR PRINT FAFl: n Co { C x q KonM toj

h
I ` 

ono ,  Lu
u7 J > 

I o
r- ,- -- _ -- o qq  

1
0

4
a CI PiC, A- 3 X 2 m` 

AA I I *' 
TYPE " O' 

r

N — -- - -- — - - - 

dl - -_ - - - - 

A9
APPROX 2dUP _ `    

W` 
t

I
10 ( Y J

H f

DRAIN HBATCi25EE , .- 
DETAIL ON SHT L - S w - - .._ I 004 TYPICAL_) 

Ldn. —

j— 4TH D 0 a; e- Q Z
0

7
ALL FIXTLIRE9 TYPR. " A.' ' n

AA 22
EXCePT AS NOTGO

22AA
A

Nt. © AA I J " L AA

4

5TA. 1tL. - 
STAif..' b." 

r
TYPE. " 6' FrXTt1V: E55

AA 5

W

Ln

7H DECIL PLAN - RAMPS " 4 I ' a 3A  •  ,_' , 
3GALC

bi

t - 
t

r
bi j

if L V - 

t

JO13 NO. , 

r

4

65- 19, ° - i

9I9aet, DYNE d tee c, " x IN SHEET NO . 
CONSULTIN EN6INEE lQ " - J

10156 1M IIjE Mi E WO
OAK f% Wt, 14 Fk16' bN 10. 1

548 -' 009, 



4 _ _ __ _ _ _ ` _ 1 ____ __ 
r _.   , . , 

I

i ,. 

Y

Y

R

d

c

e

A. l

t

y

t> 

A' 



1

I

Y

LIGHT[ I. IG PANELS SCHEDULE

J

I, 

L~ P „ A" 
s  

48 0 / 2 77 V ' Set, 4N

t000

ESIZ6AK-EIZS

z J

3 GT1YE - 3 5" P 

J d! 

I - 2oA- 3P 62Ea1LER Foic- 114 p, 36, 44ov DooP_ 0Fa;i&T0F_ J,5

ffyy1
pt UT

1 - 50A - 3P BrLE AK.ER. SU15 FE.E•D LIP. "AA, V/ A

NZ 

T;?_AN5F0RMER, 

MN O4

4KVA
OJpN( 0

ISPLIT { 3U5
Y- 

nNimxa

SU5 =b1: GIRC 5 B -I T" 7_U r5 G ^ °' 

a. 02

G_ 2.OA- IP F3REAK.EIZS
ACTIVE, SPARE. 

WITH 30A -3P MAIN ele 22, 

OQxC
NdHd

5U5 * 2! GIRC'S FS - 7 T742U ? 5 -12

R

6 - ZOA - IF & IZSA}[-ER3_ 

Y

STIVE, I SPAfzE_ 
WITH 30A- 3P MAIN f3KR, 

3 WAY SW TO CONTROL

L P. " X" ( 208/ I20V 3,0 4w 1
EMER6ENG`{ PANEL. 

15- 20 A- IP P REAKEtz -S

RELAY P I

IZAcTIVF, 3 Spn. R.E

ScRe W s

I _ $. OA- 9 BKR

5P̀ARfi. FOfz FUTURE ammFkGENCY LTG. 

OOOJOOO

206/ I2o Y 343. 4W

30- 2OA- IP BIZEAKF_P S
2G ACTIVE 4 SPARE

I- 4-0A- 3P % KR SUB - FEED L P ' AB' 
I- 4. OA- 3P gIGR. 5 r3 FEED L -R' AC' 

A14G W >< 4%2' STAINLESS

1

L P. AB'_ ( 206/ 120 V. BO 4W) 

m V

8- 2OA- IP BREAKERS

YI6 W x 12 % ES STAINLESS

2 ACTIVE 6 5PAR. E- 

1 STEEL PLp. TE W/ X16" 

I FSREAK6RR. FOIZ. F_LEGT. HTFL. 

L fl, f 208 /aoV 34 4w.) 

STEEL PLATE WITH Vt6" 

204 IP P_,REAKERS

EFIGRAVED LETTERING

2 ACTIVE, ro SPAR- 
1 - - 40A- 2. P 13REAKE.fL FOR. Auer T HTIZ... 

J

I, 

0

t000 B Fm
z J w

J d! 

ffyy1
pt UT

5

NZ Yloi
MN O4

r

OJpN( 0

nNimxa W

a. 02

OQxC
NdHd

P

R

x2

Y

LP . 0
N ' 

3 WAY SW TO CONTROL u

0

IL P.' 

I

I

600- rH AT

i E. NmANEK

U

p L CObITROL WIRES
T BI_ : t 14

lid

n

I

I

tj

to
t

F

II

Ii

t000 B Fm
z J w

J d! 

ffyy1
pt UT Ny

NZ Yloi
MN O4 07
OJpN( 0

nNimxa W

a. 02

OQxC
NdHd

P

R

x2

LP . 0
N ' 

3 WAY SW TO CONTROL u

o 3 Q OA - 3P

RELAY P I

ur

ScRe W s
OOOJOOO

A14G W >< 4%2' STAINLESS AIR D IT m V I YI6 W x 12 % ES STAINLESS
1 STEEL PLp. TE W/ X16" I I LTG SIGN + STEEL PLATE WITH Vt6" 

EFIGRAVED LETTERING
ENGRAVED LETTERING
AS INDICATED

AS INDICATED
IEMERG LTC N

Jad
i 16. 2 DECK3 I POLE SWITCH TO CONTROL

3RWlAAYR
TO CONT2pL L 0 0

0
p _ m _ i

0

SIGN LTG ON CIRG AA -23

2 0

LTU SIGN l
QU I POLE SNITCH TO COO -M'SL

CONTROL PAM 41
SI(BW LTG ON CIRC1AA- z4

0 _j
0 0 I

3WAY SW TO
CONTROL PILOT Ur , 

RELAY P-3
DRAIN HTR$ 

CoNTItoL. PANEL. ' k2

CONTROL PANELS DETAIL', 

I

IL P.' 

I

I

600- rH AT

i E. NmANEK

U

p L CObITROL WIRES
T BI_ : t 14

lid

n

I

I

tj

to
t

F

II

Ii

r

a

MAIN DISTI2113UT1014

PANE

3

F
60A IOC

3P 3P 3

c T' S METER. 

400 AMP MLO

200A too A 100A

3P 3P 3P

Q4D L d! 0 ° Q
L

J J Elf IL

nILW mW mW

MA1I. 1 DISTP l bUTIOW PAN IF- L
SCHEMATIC DIAGRAM

i

6- 

da

r u X

tx- 
J r

wlj„ xo° LX
OI pN( 1f11 - N 7U1

Q > JU V
NNE a N2q 6 0

O- o rrN

NINQrK.: I

LP' 6' 01 LP " x

t000 B Fm
z J w

J d! 

ffyy1
pt UT Ny

NZ Yloi
MN O4 07

OJpN( 0

nNimxa W

a. 02

OQxC
NdHd

P

R LP . 0
N ' 

A

o 3 Q OA - 3P

r

a

MAIN DISTI2113UT1014

PANE

3

F
60A IOC

3P 3P 3

c T' S METER. 

400 AMP MLO

200A too A 100A

3P 3P 3P

Q4D L d! 0 ° Q
L

J J Elf IL

nILW mW mW

MA1I. 1 DISTP l bUTIOW PAN IF- L
SCHEMATIC DIAGRAM

i

6- 

da

r u X

tx- 
J r

wlj„ xo° LX
OI pN( 1f11 - N 7U1

Q > JU V
NNE a N2q 6 0
O- o rrN

NINQrK.: I

LP' 6' 01 LP " x

H

mW

0 
tLNO

N0
c7

0

NF

0a

to p C. T' S

CL
STUB, OUT 5' - 0' BEYOND H 3Y
DLDW Q. CAp, SEE 5HT 1. 3 " C EMPTY FoRn It EMPTY FOR. \ . Q72- 

E - 2 FOR LOGA710N FUTURE. POl $ LTCi. FUTURE EMERGENCY
Wd ! 

LIGHTINCa _ llama

Pc3 w e P_ R I S E QL D I AG IZ A M
Nm

r

t ' 

I
t

1  

I

OLUR PRINT MP[ R CO OC ! If PORM 101 , , l, , , 

0

n

4

K U33d') y, '
il„ 

GoN P. DUIT TO , ALANCE

A
T- L, 15 

OF OUTLET DOXMS I

5TH' DECK
sEE SHT E 4

tD
AREA DRAIN , ; 

UJ
e ^ v • 

N

0  

a - 2 Oaa
lll QV ' 

4' x4" 0UTLET BOX, SEE: 
5H- r, E - 4- FOR LOCATIoNS

O " 

GALVANIZED E, LANK

COVER PLATE

FSUSHED CENTER HOLE i _ \ 9

z 
ELECTRIC THERMAL TAPE. I ' tip N
AT ELFSOW S - SEE SPECS -

EDGE OF 9 { 

COLUMkI

I

I m
x IL
U I, ' 

TYPI CAL AREN DR. AIKI HEATING DETAIL
1. 1 T. S. •' 

I

I

U NDEI; G ROUND SECONDAZy
SERVICE 1* NTRANCE

2 - 21/ 2 G EACH To coNTAIw
3#' 4/ o RHW
I # I/ o R. Hw

CONNECT IN PARALLEL
3" MIN. GoNC. IZE. TE. ENCASED

N ( n i

W

Ugh - 
O

e D U

U' 

Q - U z

W ` - 

4

I Q
PROPOSE. 0 DECO C0145LE

POLE) SEE PLOT PLAN POR. s

tOCATION
WW

oI LC) J > 

of u U! – 
ofod g

ZV T 7cp1

z w m` ( s;' 
Z

O [ • 

r 3 P N 7 f: 
a 7 O a Z r s

p u1 } J —`— W 1;+ 

a o – tee W _ Zn

JO W II,- CL

N d nfO A
LJ

Z. 

aO4j7v 0_ a: Ofg A
01

W  

3EGONDARY
r. LL

b L

4' GALV COND. 5F7 PAD
MIN VERTICAL SEND
TYPICAL

V 0 06
a_ .. .. 

LL . 

W

3 2 AWG Std L pRp RIMY
COA SLE:, 15 YV PER - D E, CO. SPEC. , 
DS74-, PART 4 LATEST I; EVIS1oN 1/') ' I

INSTAL _%: D_ IN 4 "= MDF. 3" MlN
G0NG2. ETE. E. hICASED Q +-- J ' 

LLJ

Q I- 
I

1 oAr — L

JOB NO

e" 01 0

Ml l, « 1NE4i Cll6, SHEET' NHS. 
t M - 

ft, lAStNFi, 
a rsb1 , f4iff MI

la , ' _ -

J".

r.  ,. -"._ ,  I ..- - •....`_ i! _ r- .._+. w  u J  

1

u _ _ - .. _ u_ v __.
Y i11 -... J - 

V J d! 

ZU

ur

H

mW

0 
tLNO

N0
c7

0

NF

0a

to p C. T' S

CL
STUB, OUT 5' - 0' BEYOND H 3Y
DLDW Q. CAp, SEE 5HT 1. 3 " C EMPTY FoRn It EMPTY FOR. \ . Q72- 

E - 2 FOR LOGA710N FUTURE. POl $ LTCi. FUTURE EMERGENCY
Wd ! 

LIGHTINCa _ llama

Pc3 w e P_ R I S E QL D I AG IZ A M
Nm

r

t ' 

I
t

1  

I

OLUR PRINT MP[ R CO OC ! If PORM 101 , , l, , , 

0

n

4

K U33d') y, '
il„ 

GoN P. DUIT TO , ALANCE

A
T- L, 15 

OF OUTLET DOXMS I

5TH' DECK
sEE SHT E 4

tD
AREA DRAIN , ; 

UJ
e ^ v • 

N

0  

a - 2 Oaa
lll QV ' 

4' x4" 0UTLET BOX, SEE: 
5H- r, E - 4- FOR LOCATIoNS

O " 

GALVANIZED E, LANK

COVER PLATE

FSUSHED CENTER HOLE i _ \ 9

z 
ELECTRIC THERMAL TAPE. I ' tip N

AT ELFSOW S - SEE SPECS -
EDGE OF 9 { 

COLUMkI

I

I m
x IL
U I, ' 

TYPI CAL AREN DR. AIKI HEATING DETAIL
1. 1 T. S. •' 

I

I

U NDEI; G ROUND SECONDAZy
SERVICE 1* NTRANCE

2 - 21/ 2 G EACH To coNTAIw
3#' 4/ o RHW
I # I/ o R. Hw

CONNECT IN PARALLEL
3" MIN. GoNC. IZE. TE. ENCASED

N ( n i

W

Ugh - 
O

e D U

U' 

Q - U z

W ` - 

4

I Q
PROPOSE. 0 DECO C0145LE

POLE) SEE PLOT PLAN POR. s

tOCATION
WW

oI LC) J > 

of u U! – 
ofod g

ZV T 7cp1

z w m` ( s;' 
Z

O [ • 

r 3 P N 7 f: 
a 7 O a Z r s

p u1 } J —`— W 1;+ 

a o – tee W _ Zn

JO W II,- CL

N d nfO A
LJ

Z. 

aO4j7v 0_ a: Ofg A
01

W  

3EGONDARY
r. LL

b L

4' GALV COND. 5F7 PAD
MIN VERTICAL SEND

TYPICAL
V 0 06

a_ .. .. 

LL . 

W

3 2 AWG Std L pRp RIMY
COA SLE:, 15 YV PER - D E, CO. SPEC. , 

DS74-, PART 4 LATEST I; EVIS1oN 1/') ' I

INSTAL _%: D_ IN 4 "= MDF. 3" MlN
G0NG2. ETE. E. hICASED Q +-- J ' 

LLJ

Q I- 
I

1 oAr — L

JOB NO

e" 01 0

Ml l, « 1NE4i Cll6, SHEET' NHS. 
t M - 

ft, lAStNFi, 
a rsb1 , f4iff MI

la , ' _ -

J".

r.  ,. -"._ ,  I ..- - •....`_ i! _ r- .._+. w  u J  

1

u _ _ - .. _ u_ v __.
Y i11 -... J - 



wt rmni rnren eo. ae z -aa e nre m
r  

r ...- y. 
if

r



IrPA
I

0
L _

cl
300 rh/ 

r LTC pLA,V
I I I

I
l u

LINEOFROOF

Ilk

IVIC TONEW5/ 6N
A Woo ovlA,tu

I

i

Z,;, 40 L GCATE
5E1011/ CO1G'lrL P

t TO L P AA
y- -{-- AB .-' 

1
c 10 EIe, I t -- a_% r TC eAT65

E06m, 'T .L' /•lam d ` 7 SE_ 
mar

c 7Y fE_ O LL

I
3 : r/ 1

LTC SE n[ (R/ J,L ` tt

3000W < 08V it F FC r

1 tI_ 

n1,q a CLQC 5 AB 3

f AE^ 9 ( 20A- ? P

I + 
rO FNI EX /-1

J, 3

LPAB
I

TIC CET JP /TTE`,F

I I

I _ 
I

I  

I

fir'/ C
I

i

I I

I

i

OTE- ExACT LCCAT/ ON OF Ala ONOUI T
5TU,5 TO BE D/ R CT'60 ray OWN-CR

PLAN LD WDODV A, QD ENTRAI\ CE N—- 

SCAL F" jA = 1 - O' 

WOODWARD

W SIGN LOCAT ON

I I 
t

I 0G

W
I 

AVE

j

j
r

I'C rO EL Ec T- EQLI /P . iM

LCLATTE JD, 4U,- S OC7TH
SEE FLOOR PLANS

CAI 7' 115 - SHEET

f/ 
I I

Iac  Er- xl
A , lPA rFIf2 ./ B / 

Nors- 
NsT 1<  , J B UNN, Cfi G "U

13v C, NE,,? IN CON VE /L / FNT

LOr AIIO" AV.- 0X / W/ O ot4/ 

V co VO / T , C-UN

I

2 C B, WPTY TO

VO

STUB OUT .5' O CAP

PAD ^, 1rL' 05 20

TE" V-' F0RA7CP

r / FO,e CONT N SE E FL
4T E< 

K
1_ L

I

n

aorN

L TG PLA1V ,
T

I

L /NE OF, E'OOA

r, BOL 5 FOP\ 
AYS, S/ GN LTG

I OA/ rHGT
d/ 4 // fie

TOR,
5 \ 

FA RISE, e  

rOi : 1- 4- " C TO

LPT y - 2y C 

LY ' C TO '` Q) 

GATE
TO FL FCT 1

9 / v % ti %- 

All- 

6W 208V, 1( P FLEC
R ' 8 C / k. CS AC- 3 4 / k pACE Fop- FLIT' P LTG

CONTROL PAN615

CONTROL PAIL # G

CONTROL PNL rt/ 

TG SEE PGA" ^ 901, E AC 1 ) II \\ \ I ANNUNC / 

i? 

O PANEL

PA SYSTEM POWER SUPPLY
PAIL C I RC X - 12 LOCATE

4C LOCATE .& Ee 0 !  I PEZ OW COUN r4- R 2'- 6' TO
Nr- E Ie 21 6 TO r0 I TOP OF AIM

Ur- / o1W

2 V2 C TO ArrENOANT5
I

800TH e WOODWA . 0 I

ENTRANCE 1 k ! f / 

orN0rzlzcN7ALLY bV 1
M? lC KPLASBA $ H  

TICKET SP/ TTERL

I \ \ J
00NO TIE INTO EXIST COTUD 

FOR EX/-- 7- SIGN, SEE PLO;' 
YL A! 

NOTE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL COND
S7u,: A TO 8c BY OWNE, c' 

vR 5TA/ C/ 5 A" FGP_ /- A PL AM ( e GATE 5 ST. ENTR ANC 6- 

SEEI
FA klSEE) ' 

I SCALE = l- O" 

I ' 

E c 9ISLL JIA

II / 

111 /

1 SEE QATES ST PLAN \ 

I 1 A7TENDANT5 SOC
rH M 8 T CO

sr-, rcooa_ PCgn15 ON T! // 5 - 5: 7D -

COn c' GNVEL UPI- / 7 / N  1 I

NEW CONOU / T 7) E INTO

X - XISTIh: CONDU, T

Y

xr rc Me r Co

AT
c ExI5T CONOU/ T- 

S

UG P, E OARY ,/_' ti' /' CE / Sr
EN 7% vc F, SEf- PISEK

O, d:: EAM G, V

x15T SIGN

t - P. POPE4TY L/ N r / 
C/ 16L F Poe E

PLOT PLAN
5 CIA L E I'= 30' 

IN

n

LEGEND

SYM 60 L D E S C 2 I P T I C7 N

MA NU/- AC 7'/, e E25

e_ L G W 7- 

NCANDESCL' rVi L7- 6

a INCANO E' sc6NT LTG, 

1

r, BOL 5 FOP\ 
AYS, S/ GN LTG
I OA/ rHGT

d/ 4 // fie

TOR,
5 \ 

FA RISE, e  

rOi : 1- 4- " C TO

LPT y - 2y C 

LY ' C TO '` Q) 

GATE
TO FL FCT 1

9 / v % ti %- 

All- 

6W 208V, 1( P FLEC
R ' 8 C / k. CS AC- 3 4 / k pACE Fop- FLIT' P LTG

CONTROL PAN615

CONTROL PAIL # G

CONTROL PNL rt/ 

TG SEE PGA" ^ 901, E AC 1 ) II \\ \ I ANNUNC / 

i? 

O PANEL

PA SYSTEM POWER SUPPLY
PAIL C I RC X - 12 LOCATE

4C LOCATE .& Ee 0 !  I PEZ OW COUN r4- R 2'- 6' TO
Nr- E Ie 21 6 TO r0 I TOP OF AIM

Ur- / o1W

2 V2 C TO ArrENOANT5
I

800TH e WOODWA . 0 I

ENTRANCE 1 k ! f / 

orN0rzlzcN7ALLY bV 1
M? lC KPLASBA $ H  

TICKET SP/ TTERL

I \ \ J
00NO TIE INTO EXIST COTUD 

FOR EX/-- 7- SIGN, SEE PLO;' 
YL A! 

NOTE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL COND
S7u,: A TO 8c BY OWNE, c' 

vR 5TA/ C/ 5 A" FGP_ /- A PL AM ( e GATE 5 ST. ENTR ANC 6- 

SEEI
FA klSEE) ' 

I SCALE = l- O" 

I ' 

E c 9ISLL JIA

II / 

111 /

1 SEE QATES ST PLAN \ 

I 1 A7TENDANT5 SOC
rH M 8 T CO

sr-, rcooa_ PCgn15 ON T! // 5 - 5: 7D -

COn c' GNVEL UPI- / 7 / N  1 I

NEW CONOU / T 7) E INTO

X - XISTIh: CONDU, T

Y

xr rc Me r Co

AT
c ExI5T CONOU/ T- 

S

UG P, E OARY ,/_' ti' /' CE / Sr
EN 7% vc F, SEf- PISEK

O, d:: EAM G, V

x15T SIGN

t - P. POPE4TY L/ N r / 
C/ 16L F Poe E

PLOT PLAN
5 CIA L E I'= 30' 

IN

n

LEGEND

SYM 60 L D E S C 2 I P T I C7 N

MA NU/- AC 7'/, e E25

e_ L G W 7- 

O NCANDESCL' rVi L7- 6

a INCANO E' sc6NT LTG, 

LENS ANDALUM1AWAI P

PO 4 E MTO C7urvc o,e

YF 0PEI2AT / ON

FcuO Q, LTG

BALL AST

OUPLEX ,& ECEpT

A- SIB /GLE POLE- SW

D,e AIN NEATE,Q SEE SHlE -S FOR UETA /G

p JUNcrlON~ Box

c^ O ° F OPTRA T / ON

UNCTTOAI 99OX FO,e DEC X SIOIN 5/GN 6Y crgr,95

OFEC
FIRE EYrING U15HFP- C41311VE7' OY 07'HE,F5
ELECT- COAIreACTOR TO P1ZOVIDC , J T3 £ W /Pr 5
FINAL CONAIECT /ON BY OTNF/eS

e5A 22 48 - CPL T

p F /,eE ALARAI NO,eN

RE-L / ly

O, D/. 5 CO NNECT SWITCH

A- I CKT #// L P A

A'< TYOR- A LTG FIXTUreE

W.P. WEATHER -PROOF

00w Or4Y4N7 5228

2- 60 u.) 

LIGHTING FIXTURE SCHEDULE

TYPE LAMPS MA NU/- AC 7'/, e E25

F-12T12/ cW/ 110 T,el- PAgT # IOO CP PLEXIG
An 500/ 7A 279V kPF LENS ANDALUM1AWAI P

YF 0PEI2AT / ON G1 G,E ( 59 G 928 BALL/ 
BALL AST C S'A 2 /7? - CPLT

2-1- 48 7-/ 2IC" IHO TRI -PART 4' 200 CP, 016

b
dooAIA l20\ # PF TRANSLUCENT LENS AND

c^ O ° F OPTRA T / ON
E 89 G 605 BAL L

e5A 22 48 - CPL T

I -250W COL 0,2 R- ESCOLIrE 0593OF, 

C
rED M6RC W13" 014x 10'- O'! 116/ 1 < 

LAMPEC
7-R41V5 BA; c', 2771f

D l - IOOw WEST'NGNOUSE'# QPO

E 00w Or4Y4N7 5228

2- 60 u.) ART METAL 0 6, Ol

G 4 - C7 LAMP5 PER ,- EC L ITE # P5- 3' 

y 4 - C 7 LAMP-5 PE,2PECLl r6' # P5 - 35

l" 4 - C7 LAMPS PE,QFECL / TE# P5 - 3: 

K' Q - C7 1-,9A1P5 PIRFEC41rr 41 PS - 3'_ 

2 -4 Ow, R'S AL /cco ° tf240

N' 00W PE.eFEcL /TE # 1- 385

p 1- 400w MFRCLIey fOLO,PffANE" 4SG u/ /' 

0

STEEL - Z.4r,- 6XO L00CT
INS f -O,p. GOCAT <ON7

OF CU.26

A6

NG 450.U7/f

L 0 t " 5

Parking Stru( jri—r-P, 
Blrnlln ham

I

i

i

I

i

I

I1

I

h

I

i



x-rn  
Baas > = /ou

B

UP IN STA / R CASE- FE. E' /SE•P
APIA SHEET E -7 -, 

AA / 4

TLT EXH FAfI — - AA % 
TLT / 07

BY EL EC J' CGN7; C - L
i

To , eECEPT - SLE RISE, 2 D/ A

3HEE -T - E S

AA 3

AA 3,8, 1

COR / OOOW WA g
lqr  ClPG AA -23 - 

j_

11  
IWATE2 HT,2.. sy ELEC X -3 6 9
CONT ,P-, ' 

y ELEG/ HTR A
C I A l

TO LP- A - l 2

STAIR ` C' IsrDECD PLAN

AA 7

2 Z AA - 13

x-2sa

AA 7l3, C 

7

ELEV RM'/ 43' 

Sh'E6'T E-S FOle 215ER DIA

1 x-s I
UP / N , 

AA- 9
erq lo, 

D' 

AA 2

VOR 64 VALOCArB Inl F0,2 ELEVAT'O'R

ELEV P/ 7

MA ! 4) P

STA 1 Z / sr DECK PLAN
Y,t"= /' -o' 

ELEV # lO/ 

M -p

AA 4, 12 

xGx/ -/ ¢, 
7 110e yo TEL k

AA /2. /2
G

LOBt3Y - - /00

yr
G x I r

up - SEE SHEET E -S F'O.E , QISE.C' , p //77

ATE IN

V, P17- x04 - / "C, 

TOA1411V DP

AA -/ 

O 

4 -4 / 

CM - IDZ

u

iAAA-->
yJ/ - 

N

arnl/ t " r_' 

5EE TN /S SHT

C A5E - SEE- , E' ISE,P_ 0/ 4

SyEG' T E' -S N L AA-  

g- \ 
AA 21

Q

Fti
N

I

2 
z

1. 3
D

o
7- 

TAbe CASE- SEE rQ /SE2 D' A , z

sHEL` 7 - - E -5

SEE SHEET E -7 FOQ O /A, 

5V6`14 -2 "C TO BATES ST 0007w

STA I P_ " A" DEC K PLAN

3'' 1L- 3/4 C TO
20A 3P L',KC
LIRC5 A 7,8,9

I

1  

DFEC AA- ZI d  

I

C 8 A 14, 
a , 

F
Q

B• 
JA/ G, 

9 FOR E' NT - EX/ T
AMPL / F /E2 hJouS/ rdG
C +RC AA 26

R DErecro , e
COIL LOCATE

M

IAI

QE. - j-E'LA3 q5 Dl. D

Fo, -1HP 30, 440V
Doo.Q, 6P- -RAToe
40CATCA5 OIRE[ TED

l) 

9

0

S 2F' cg
ALL FIXTURES 7YPE: 4" 
EXCEPT AS NOTED

U

I` 

r DECKDE cK 

Li

NZ AA - 16

j\ 

FEC

I

J AA- 20
F 

ti

NL 4

Q • A A / 5 a Fqq

c AA_2A

e  I  
TEL BR, O

4 x4 x q' PLYwaoo
Q

Q FE'c

m

Q ti G\ ox9' JB  
rf- a FY v

3. N L
AA 16

B- I

B FOR ENT -EXIT
AMPLIFIEP- HOUS/ NZ. 

clRt, AH- 25

L/, G SECONDARY
SF4 V / CE- E,v

nA nc > ri rna FF

Isr DEC K PL AN A? AM P5
SCA L E

SEE sH6ET e -5- /=OOO ELECT / cam / S4,C G71AGRAAW
OF BRANCH CIRCS, TO EACH FLdOg

9

Lot e5
Parking Structure

BI rmI ngha m

DIR

FOIL' 

9TA 12BI/ZB
SEE r vIs SHT

UP

11 f 7 I I 5EE THIS 5,Y

1

i

1 , 

SEE P4 a r R/ AN FO,a

CONTI NuATI oN

FRED W MOOTS
E LEC`i- 

0

k

i

30
E {ils L"/ 1 VUAw/ N& 

DATE
s - a/ - 4 G

RAWN BY
o` >, r

1' i



I
w_..- ,. rmv ., v. r -. n « -. n r ry - n + - ..« . J .- u rn .+- - t + - +.« r ti ns- - - _.. uui.- .._ r. w. ww , Aror., n,.. Y- r„ 1M1 w... w. w. rv. n ua.« r.. + + -. ti.n rM«-- vr_ w.r .^ ..w, +. w. rn W. wW  w 1n a.. a

L---'_- 
x -3

TA IA j
YPL tl FPXTUP£ 5--' 

AA Ll

N
AA - gm

AA- 17

SRO DEcK- 
ALL P / Y7 ,¢ E5 TYPE A

EXCEPT AS NOTED

r

L

1   
FEC   FEC

I• 
A- 3

PPPR OX 2.1, U-11- } I

i

C- 1 I  I ; 
f   

I  I

i I
I

NL

E7
III- - 

i ILA I r

AA 20 i

El 4 A A 21 ' 1  I L-i

bra
J   J AA 20 Cl

t0. 
I 4 I FEC

N/ 

8 AA l7 AA17
AA - 1, zo r

1 

U

i I I
L  I 

y
6 6

B 7
B- 7

A- 3

O

APP,20X' 25 UP

S, 

6:k /ox4 J,B  

I
F F_C FEC I

Fjij- / 720F2f
S / 2 -/" 

AA-

211
AA 17  

t — 

A _ 
A 20

A A - 17 —Z
S' N L  \  B 88 J  B 7  8' NL

I

j Ro DE

SC A I E

PAMP5 f3 2A / V

f

S

G

i

i

r

n. • rr. -r ..... ._ u._ r......- nna_ w -..w- r- . v.,.- w........._....- . --... .....--..-.... v- w_.« w._ w_ r.....v... v- . rrv........_. rr..... n.. r.._. \ w, v- . v._- r....- ..v....+« 

r

SMAL ' B" 57/ 1/ 2. C' v 40 - 
T>'PL' 6`F /xT[/RE5 TYAF' g f/K tUEfS - - 

f- AA' B

1 
ON

J(3 AT M/ OPOI" T OF
N/ 

7y-- 
SNAFT FOR- EGEVATO. C. AA - 1G / A 2ND DEG

Lrc, C / RC x -// 3 K 277V 0 ELECT ALL F /XTU2E5 TYPE A' 
NTQ C° C C A 2 EXCEPT A5 NOTED

I r- 

yti- -` 

I

1

1
I  i

Cl

AAIS ' 

I

II
AA- 21 ; ' 

N AA ZI  \ 
J _) 

AA 20

k I D
FEC

1 Q

I E AA 15

II
AA- 16

w

i

I

i r_  I D I r_) I u

I

63

cXIOXQ d 11_ 
FEC

I L} 

1 AAl

Z
lc /2r / \ 

J 8 AT MIDPOINT OF
TO E

L71S C /.HC ;" 1'o

AR7.e.. 
AA- 21 –. –. AA -26

L

rIr
N

J
AA- lG zl, LzC

37'A/ FZ A a

TYPE 6 " FwrU,¢E < 4 ' t c- a

i

i

t - 1

2ND DECK PLAN - , 2A M P 5 `' Z t "/ A
SCALE V167 O

5rA1Q 6

TYPE B• FIwrt/ 2E5

5Z. 7- , 2M. 

i

J - j

I

V
r

1

A ' 

i

f ' 

FT ry

1

E N7 7
L

sTAIK. * A

TYPE H- FIVTU. ES

N

it

FRE I W ' MO07E
Parking Structure LECT

Blr- nfngham

i

I

J

EVF Lro– ViNo
I

J

1

DATE, 
I

DRAWN BY



STAIR. ' C' 

TYPE ' BFIXTU.e

mR. 6° 

we '6 "F /xTU.BES

57A /, e % 1" 

TYPE 19" Ic / JR ES

o F
STQ / R C ' 

TYPE B' F /uTUL'ESnn_e

i

e' AA 1/8  
An ZZ

t

t #
Y

E

AA- 10

AA' 22

B ML
AA - 15

3o /Oy2` C- 

I

AA- 1 f

I
1

I 

1 

I

0

4 ry 0
ALL FIV -11R£ 5 T 1TF A' 
EXCFFT' AS NOIEO

g - V e

AA- 11

Y 0)-- FEG

it1

I 

II
i 

jjjj N L
I I

f

tA

t

DXA / N EA1ER3

6X /ox4J5

6

T 
e

B

I

t

1

I  
1

t

I  I

AA -2z <j- 
I  IJ t

ML / I
AA- i 9 {

I

I

t  

i3 012, --V4 0- 

DETAIL ON SNT

7 - - -)' / \
C7' YP /CAC) 

s" IZ YC

4 DECK_ 

AA- ZZ _ 

J

B. AA- 113  -_  _ 

3" / z, 

B -9

y

AA I p

i

VL AA / y

4 —_ 

5TAie B

TYPE B" FIUTU. 6 E5

A - 3

c6 UP

0

NA- 3

APP/ 20X 2es' UP

Lill
7Y" C

A' 

I TYPE B F'f>•'rap ES

F

f

i

STN pLGK PLAN eArti PS '" 5 ¢ A
4TH PECK PLAAI — RAMPS # 4 It
SCALE Yc'° ! — Q

SCA L E / 9 (a - I - O

04

i

evis£ o 77,eAr/ NG  - l3 Grp. 

1

1

C  
i

oz

G  

Lot` 5 FRED W MOOTS
DATE

Parking StructureDRAWN BYELECT ' 
Birmtngham



4' t /2, / "a T, EL Ec T ' em

I

1,4A 8

NO 5 CA!_ E

FAN, ReCE07 e/ LTG

A - 9

IA A

1A 9

3 A 8

4' J /2, /'c / a EtEG

w

e

TYPICAL LTG 4t Rl -C6PT
STAID— /I/AY A- 8" 

I
f I

1

0

C

C

I G

ddL te 56 CoL 6 -0

GCN LTG E /4E.P_, LTG

NO SCALE- 

klS, —R —O% GRAN/ OF f/OMC R< /NSFP.OM EACH G7EGK

Lot #5 FRED W MOOTS
Parking Structure ELECT

Birmingham

o6c K

LrcK

7EGK

o400lr

r

Irl

1

I

i

ii
i

E Y

I
T4 GP / rY ELECT , eNJ { 

I
I

I

a

i

BECK  

r

1

1

i
i

I

a

3 
3

i

Irev /SE4

DATE

DRAWN BY



L16147- 1 NG P/1NEL SCI—IE DLJL E- 

L P S ( 430/ z77V 3o 4 6V, 
2OA - IP eE i_ E

37crIYtr / 3 SPAR":- 
2-CA- 3P G2EHfGc FOR ///,° 3!P 040Y 000.e OPER ATOe c/ 4

J - 50fi - 3P 31c EA J< F Sue FEEJJ L P AA° VIA
4.5 KvA r2ANS, 

L P B 1480/ 277V 3QJ 4V ) 

SPL/ r zzls PANEL J
US r / C /RCS L3 1 7a-I.eu / 3 -G

PC3E' AK. E' S

Ac TI vE , 2 S PA, 2E- 
WirH 30A• 3P1W,411V r;lgre, 

3US # 2 CIRC' S 43 - 7 TH,Q41 131Z
2oA - 1P B/V,es

T- AETIVE, / SPArLE- 

W/ rH 3OA- 3P MANN L3KR

L P L / 206k// 20V 34, 4W 1
EM R, PA fcL J

S- 20A - rP 6k,25

IZACTI VET 3 SPARE

1- 36A- 3p C KJ2 - SPA PE

L P AA' 208 12OV 3 f, 4GLJ

30- 20q -/ P BKC's
26 Ac TrVE 4 SPARE
4OA - 3P Oke S . 5- . SEED- LPA/ 3 , 

1- 40A- 3P, O,e,e SLlB- EE' D - LP AC

L P AL3 ( 26& 11zoV 3 p, 4W
8- 20A - IP E5K, C5

2 AC T7VE 6 SPA/ 2E
1- 2oA - 2 P ,5,<,e Foe ELEC 7- H7 R, 

G P AC ( 2061120V 5,P 4CJ
8- 20f1 - IP 5Kp,$ 

2 ACTIVE, 6 SPA. FE

26A - 2P £3& R FO.e ELECT yT.P

ATTENOANTS QOOTH A - r- 

BATES = + T, QEc` r ENTRANCE

W1

h
V- 

CO/ VTeCL 10A/ VE` L S DE TA l L

ATTENDANTS BOOTH A77

WoaowAF O ENr2ANCE

AB

U

1

J 
a 0 

aemg

N 
F` 
N

6' m 
1

of
N

4
N

02

a

Y  

4

N LP - A

J

1

5oA - 3P

oU

1

0

C 7-' 5 -( M) , vIErER
MAIN L) rST218UTION

PANE
27714BOV 9¢, 4L 
40OA14P, MLO

0 0 O o

3oq 6oA 1, 110, 4 2, 7 / a9A / 9" 

3P 3P 3P 3, p 3P 3P
f

W

J h ib rto7W mW

MA IV D15 7- P- 5uT/ 0 N PA/ VEL, 

Its

eNI N

Z O Jh  

4e4,, 
j

N k

L P B le, I L? z

v

e
Q

0

x

e ° 1
m61

r0hkk
oe

0t

a 

o

m

MAIN

ST, C'. IBu7

PANEL

e, T

L1 W
1

14J

STUB Our 3L0, 6EYOND _ 
Q

OLOG e CAP, 5EE S:! / - 3' C EMPTY Fo, Z / " C EMPTY FO, ti hE - 2 FOQ LO CA 7- 10 N
FI/ ru, Q E PaWE, /; LTG FUTU, PE EMB, fCGENC y

Lr  

a 2
2

PoW ER / S E 2 L7/ A G 12 A M ry"° v

0

5TH DECK

3/ 4 " C

40X40OUTLET aox 5EE

SHr, C - 4 . OAz / OcAr " S

GALVANIZED BLANK

co V E 2 PLfiTE Lo

BusHED HOLE

ELECT THERMAL

TY/ 0/ CAL

i t

UNOERGf ot ND SECONDARY
SE V / C E' ENT. C' ANCE' 

C4, TO < Ovr. 9JN
3 d1 THW

1 '/ 0 TN. J

CC' nfNECr / N PARAL L EL
3 MIN COJVC. QETE ENCASES) 

NV

o 

2 i
V

D 
F 
0

VJ

oN
n: 

ON O u IT TO OA L ANC E
OF OUTLET 30k CS
SEE

AREA ORAIN

EaGE oc

COLUMN

ZEA DIZAIN HEATING UET' AIL- 

NO SCA 4. 16— 

480/ 2' 77 v
3¢ 4W
SECONDARY

Lot ' 5

Parking Structure
BirminQha m

L4

F
y

W 3
u ( V v

Z

4' GAV CONO 3Fr

PA MIN EL L

PROPOSED GE CO CABL L" 
POLE, SEE . oL JT PLAN F0. 2
L OC ATIOrJ - - 

V

v

z 
o 

K
u

0  

4 N
k4

O K

1

0o

W
i9 0

3- / c "' 2 oL YE rHYL ENE
lSKV G' A9LE

IN5TALLFD IN 4 CAA<' LON TYPES
S' MIN, CONC ENVEI O, o6

FRED W MOOTE
ELECT

I, 

r

evlscLr Dt' AUr / NC / / B G6

ap- 

E

AWN BY = 

i

1

1

I

I 1

i

i

r

j

i
i

r

I

r

I

r

I

f

t

t

I

I

1

I

I

I

I

t

1

1

I

t

t

s

POG E SW 70 „ ONYKO L

swAr SW TO coNneo 
G J. Tt OFD. a !; 3 ' Y, 

Ts -" 

DELAY

CaNrAC70.L' rt

077412
DL'. 1 A/ 

EN6RAVED PLATE a, LT

C/" /r'C+C LTG yr Ks e, oe' rS iie• 

3wAY sw 7-0 cnnYful 

R£/AY , 2Z
3 WA, 5w 70 (, O.vrk

3 w, r
TOX. $1 r — Conr7! _) te , DELAY C'3

POC R S v ' U

CONTROL PANEL/ 
S / GnI - ] C- CN OP_ -' IR

CO]VrKOL PANEL n2

ATTENOANTS QOOTH A - r- 

BATES = + T, QEc` r ENTRANCE

W1

h
V- 

CO/ VTeCL 10A/ VE` L S DE TA l L

ATTENDANTS BOOTH A77

WoaowAF O ENr2ANCE

AB

U

1

J 
a 0 

aemg

N 
F` 
N

6' m 
1

of
N

4
N

02

a

Y  

4

N LP - A

J

1

5oA - 3P

oU

1

0

C 7-' 5 -( M) , vIErER
MAIN L) rST218UTION

PANE
27714BOV 9¢, 4L 

40OA14P, MLO

0 0 O o

3oq 6oA 1, 110, 4 2, 7 / a9A / 9" 

3P 3P 3P 3, p 3P 3P
f

W

J h ib rto7W mW

MA IV D15 7- P- 5uT/ 0 N PA/ VEL, 

Its

eNI N

Z O Jh  

4e4,, 
j

N k

L P B le, I L? z

v

e
Q

0

x

e ° 1
m61

r0hkk
oe

0t

a 

o

m

MAIN

ST, C'. IBu7

PANEL

e, T

L1 W
1

14J

STUB Our 3L0, 6EYOND _ 
Q

OLOG e CAP, 5EE S:! / - 3' C EMPTY Fo, Z / " C EMPTY FO, ti hE - 2 FOQ LO CA 7- 10 N
FI/ ru, Q E PaWE, /; LTG FUTU, PE EMB, fCGENC y

Lr  

a 2
2

PoW ER / S E 2 L7/ A G 12 A M ry"° v

0

5TH DECK

3/ 4 " C

40X40OUTLET aox 5EE

SHr, C - 4 . OAz / OcAr " S

GALVANIZED BLANK

co V E 2 PLfiTE Lo

BusHED HOLE

ELECT THERMAL

TY/ 0/ CAL

i t

UNOERGf ot ND SECONDARY
SE V / C E' ENT. C' ANCE' 

C4, TO < Ovr. 9JN
3 d1 THW
1 '/ 0 TN. J

CC' nfNECr / N PARAL L EL
3 MIN COJVC. QETE ENCASES) 

NV

o 

2 i
V

D 
F 
0

VJ

oN
n: 

ON O u IT TO OA L ANC E
OF OUTLET 30k CS

SEE

AREA ORAIN

EaGE oc

COLUMN

ZEA DIZAIN HEATING UET' AIL- 

NO SCA 4. 16— 

480/ 2' 77 v
3¢ 4W

SECONDARY

Lot ' 5

Parking Structure
BirminQha m

L4

F
y

W 3
u ( V v

Z

4' GAV CONO 3Fr

PA MIN EL L

PROPOSED GE CO CABL L" 
POLE, SEE . oL JT PLAN F0. 2

L OC ATIOrJ - - 

V

v

z 
o 

K
u

0  

4 N
k4

O K

1

0o

W
i9 0

3- / c "' 2 oL YE rHYL ENE
lSKV G' A9LE

IN5TALLFD IN 4 CAA<' LON TYPES
S' MIN, CONC ENVEI O, o6

FRED W MOOTE
ELECT

I, 

r

evlscLr Dt' AUr / NC / / B G6

ap- 

E

AWN BY = 

i

1

1

I

I 1

i

i

r

j

i
i

r

I

r

I

r

I

f

t

t

I

I

1

I

I

I

I

t

1

1

I

t

t

s



Po, ee gLA2n1 Con / T/ r o: 

ANNIINC/ A7G, 6 AWC4. 
5EE oerA,- ALjo, e - 

2 EMp7y Caluo 5rup

Our WALL; < qF FDA' 

FUTURE Ek. / S / ON

Q

FRED VV MOOTE

FLF( T
F; RF AL4R[ A

RI`: FR DIAGRAM

m

5ECT / ON

r/, 

l` 

d( ARM O C P

R

DLOG ° 7CC

gNlJuNC / n ' c. 0
JE C7 / Ori  

N n

q' 

blU > ap DEC

q Ccn Twat It ANIVC, 

DETA / L- 

Po, ee gLA2n1 Con / T/ r o: 

ANNIINC/ A7G, 6 AWC4. 
5EE oerA,- ALjo, e - 

2 EMp7y Caluo 5rup

Our WALL; < qF FDA' 

FUTURE Ek. / S / ON

Q

FRED VV MOOTE

FLF( T
F; RF AL4R[ A

RI`: FR DIAGRAM

m

rrrir. gharn — 
r/, 

F, 

R

N n

I

I

r." gh K e , CA MP+ 5 L6

0

3 /// OJ_ E / N B

J

FRED VV MOOTE

FLF( T
F; RF AL4R[ A

RI`: FR DIAGRAM

n

rrrir. gharn — 
r/, 

F, 

R

E

v

1 4 57AT /ON MTV ON
sue rJZ3 covlle

TYP /CAL

I/OJF_" 
AL L coNDL/. T r 4
EXC6FT As / tiOl<< u

4 rr 5=, L  C? P" Fl -/ I t —EL

J L 4 rr,- 

ao2 / v5

4A*
V1f

3So, 

7- C. ;- 

F_- 7

Parkinc " It ructure

FRED VV MOOTE

FLF( T
F; RF AL4R[ A

RI`: FR DIAGRAM

DACE`/ 

pRAW EY
rrrir. gharn — 

r/, 

I



















Topographic / Boundary
Survey

1

01020 10 20 30

1" = 20'

NF

N

R. Peery

Part of the Southwest  1 4
of Section 25
T. 2N, R. 10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

City of Birmingham
151 Martin Street
P.O. Box 3001
Birmingham, MI 48012-3001
(248)530-1800
Contact:
Mr. Paul O'Meara, P.E.,
City Engineer

Redevelopment of Parking
Structure No. 5

SEAL

07-02-15

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

REVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

NF

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

sheet no.

I565
NFE JOB NO.

SCALE:

NF

Location  Map

 UTILITY NOTE

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE

EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE

SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL

AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.

THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR

IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY

THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

B. Buchholz / K. Navaroli

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Site

PARKING LOT 173

GARAGE 572

TOTAL 745

LEGEND
CATCH BASIN

REAR YARD BASIN

STORM SEWER MANHOLE

END SECTION

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT

COMBINED SEWER MANHOLE

GATE VALVE & WELL

HYDRANT

WATER SHUT OFF

WELL

NOT FOUND

ELECTRIC MANHOLE

TELEPHONE MANHOLE

UTILITY POLE

GUY POLE

GUY WIRE

LIGHT POLE

PUBLIC TELEPHONE

ELECTRIC METER

GAS METER

GAS VALVE

GAS MARKER

SIGN

GUARD POST/BOLLARD

PARKING METER

MAIL BOX

ROCK/BOULDER

SPRINKLER VALVE BOX

SPRINKLER HEAD

FOUND PROPERTY MARKER

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

WATER MAIN

GAS MAIN

OVERHEAD CABLES

UNDERGROUND CABLES

SET PROPERTY MARKER

DOWNSPOUT

LANDSCAPED AREA

PINE TREE

DECIDUOUS TREE

FOUND SECTION CORNER

ASPH PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

HANDICAP PARKING SPACE

FLAG POLE

WALL MOUNTED LIGHT

FOUND PK NAIL

BY GRAPHIC PLOTTING ONLY, A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED ON THIS

SURVEY LIES WITHIN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AS DEFINED BY THE FEDERAL

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY; THE PROPERTY LIES WITHIN ZONE(S) AE & X OF

THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP IDENTIFIED AS MAP NO. 26125C0537F BEARING AN

EFFECTIVE DATE OF 9-29-2006.

FLOODWAY AREA

SEWER STRUCTURE SCHEDULE



9/12/2018 AddressView

https://www.consumersenergy.com/sims/AddressView.aspx?seq_nbr=5653567 1/1

Address: 325 N OLD WOODWARD AVE, BIRMINGHAM
 Gas Service Extension:2" P , Inserted: N , Year Installed: 2006

Previous

 

Notice: This information is for design purposes only and is not reliable for construction. All
locations are approximate, facilities may have been added and/or altered after any revision or as-
printed date, and service lines may not be shown. Field staking is available at no charge by calling
MISS DIG (800-482-7171) three working days in advance of the digging, and the precise location
and depth of all underground facilities must be identified in accordance with the MISS DIG Act, PA
174 of 2013 as amended, and any other applicable law or ordinance. Use of these maps does not
relieve the user of any legal duty to comply with all applicable laws or ordinances. Consumers
Energy shall be consulted before any action is taken on the basis of this map, and the map must be
destroyed when no longer needed.



³³

³

³

³

³

³ ³

³

³

³

³

³

³

³

³

CH
UR

CH

433

405

72
5

72
9

288

552

62
4

618

640

666

556

191

160 184

148

29
9

SC
HO

OL

526

536

321 - 325

45
0

1983
30190

1953
W

1952
W

1957
W

1950
W

1957
W

1960
W

1952
W

1951
W

1951
W

1951
W

1948
W

1950
W

1963
63020

1942
W

1954
W

1993
13109

1993
13109

1988
82739

1981
100231950

W

1994
14110

1953
W

1953
W

1957
W

1953
W

1927
0

1927
0

1951
W

1960
W

1951
W

1952
W

1960
W

1993
13116

1951
W

1962
62104

1962
62104

1951
W

1993
13109

1993
13109

1992
12294

1969
69128

1939
0

1939
0

1950
W

1950
W

1993
13111

1993
13111

2003
02099952

M

2003
05724066

R

1994
1463 1

2004
05969829

R

2004
05969829

R

2004
05969829

R

2004
05969829

R

2004
05969829

R

2005
02801004

M

1951
0

200506204703
R

2005
06204703

R

2005
06204703

R

2005
06204703

R

2006
06590151

 

2007
06682411

R

2007
06600902

R

2007
06600902

R2000
4962581

2007
06600902

R

2007
06600902

R

2007
06600902

R

2007
06600902

R

2007
06600902

R

2007
06600902

R

2003
05779275

 

2007
06693214

R

2007
06693214

R

2008
06759380

R

2008
06759380

R

2008
06759380

R

1981
10031

2008
06759380

R

2007
06600902

R

2008
06759380

R

2008
06759380

R

2008
06759380

R

1983
30088

2008
10008498

R

2008
10008498

R

2008
10008498

R

2008
10008498

R

2008
10008498

R

2008
10008498

R

2008
10008498

R

2008
10758650

R

2007
06600902

R

2007
06600902

R

2011
17038522

 

2010
13658829

R2015
26141282

R

2016
27477725

R

2017
29469142

R

2018
32013925

R

2008
06759380

R

1951
0

2018
31948913

R

 5/8 " P

 5/8
 " P

MAPLE ST

OLD WOODWARD AVE

OAK ST

WOODWARD BLVD

MARTIN ST

FERNDALE ST

EUCLID AVE

N 
BA

TE
S S

T

BROOKSIDE DR

N 
CH

ES
TE

R 
ST

WILLITS ST

WO
OD

LA
ND

 AV
E

BONNIE BRIER ST

AT
EN

 C
T

TOOTING LN

VINEWOOD AVE

DEWEY ST

RANDALL ST

BA
LD

WI
N 

CT

HARMON AVE

LA
KE

VIE
W 

AV
E

MI
LL

RA
CE

 R
D

HA
ZE

LW
OO

D 
ST

WIMBLETO
N

GR
EE

NW
OO

D 
AV

E

BA
LD

WI
N 

AV
E

PARK AVE

BA
LD

WI
N 

AV
E

RAVINE RD

EUCLID AVE

11
'

15'
60'

3'

1'

5'

10'11'12' 5'

2"
-97

'

14' PL

30' CL

3' M B

18
' C

L

15
5' 

EL
L

15
5' 

MB

23
4' 

TE
E

20'  PCF

8'T
EE

76'  TE E

33' TE E

12' TE E

75' TE E

63' PL

32
' C

L

44' CL

24
' T

EE

28
' P

L

100' TEE
122' TEE

55' PL

258' TEE

364' TEE

37' TEE

125' TEE

17
6' T

EE

32
5' 

TE
E

15'  PL

4' P L

27' 
ELL

66
' E

LL

37
' T

EE

56' TEE

16' TEE
85' PL

343' TIE IN

17' RED

24' PL

64' PL

286
' EL

L

43' TEE

79
' C

L55' ELL

11
8' 

CL

413' ELL

67' CL

2" SERV

2"S
ER

V

2" P SERV.

2"P-SERV

CHURCH

OFFICE
CHURCH

BALDWIN
HIGH SCHOOL

POST

6"S-MP

2"S-MP

2"S
-M

P
2"S

-M
P

2"S-MP

2"S-MP

4"S-MP

1 1/4"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"S
-M

P

2"S-MP

2"S
-M

P-
TC

2"S-MP

2"S
-M

P 
T&

C

2"S
-M

P 
T&

C

2"P-MP

4"S-MP

2"P-MP

1 1/4"P-MP1 1
/4"

S-
MP

2"S-MP

2"S-MP

2"S
-M

P

2"P-MP

1 1
/4"

P-
MP

2"S-MP

2"S-MP

2"P
-M

P

4"P
-M

P

1 1/4"P-MP

1 1/4 "P-M P

2"S-M
P

2"S-MP

2"
S-

M
P-

TC

6"S-M P

6"P-M P6"S-M P

2"P-MP
2"P-MP

2"P-MP 2"P-MP

1 1
/4"

S-
MP

2"P
-M

P

2"P-MP 2"P-MP
2"P-MP2"P-MP

2"S-MP

2"
P-

M
P

2"
S-

M
P

2"S-M P

2"S
-M

P

2"S-MP

2"S-MP
2"P-MP

2"P
-M

P

2"P
-M

P
2"S

-M
P

2"S-MP

2"S
-M

P

2"S-MP

2"P
-M

P

2"P-MP

2"S
-M

P

2"P-MP
2"S-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"S-MP

2"P-MP

2"S-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP 2"P-MP
2"P-MP 2"S-MP

2"S-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP

6"S-MP

4"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP
4"P-MP

4"P-MP

4"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"P
-M

P

2"S-MP

2"P
-M

P

6"S-MP

2"S-MP

2"P
-M

P

2"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"P-MP

2"P
-MP

2"P-MP

4"S-MP

2"S-MP

2"P-MP

1 1/4"P-MP

2"P
-M

P

2"P-MP

2"P
-M

P

2"P-MP

2"P
-M

P

2"P-MP

2"P
-M

P

2"P-MP

4"S-MP

4"P-MP

4"P-MP

4"P-MP

2"P-MP
6"S-MP

2"P-MP

4"P-MP

6"P-MP

61
'

8'

6'

11
'

11
'

8'

11
'

10'

10'

7'

7'

8'

8'

21'

13'

3'

3'

16
6'

3'

32'

5'

8'

8'

6'

3'

3'

9'

4'

10
'

10
'

11
'

12'

11'

3'

14'

14'

8' 13
'

10'

10'

10'

20' 69'

90
'

6'

10'

10' 8'
1'

5'

2'

10
'

14
'

14
'

13'

7'

20
'

24
'

10
'90

'

10'

391'

8'

2'

150'

229'

52'

4'

185'

7'

7'

330'

11'

11'1'

1'

9' 
PL

14'

10
'

2'

11
'

12
'7'

5'

9'

23'

95'

6'

10
'

10'

5'
4'

1'

13'

6' 27
'

281'

5'

1'

4'

5'

3'

5'
13'

9'

14
' 11

'

3'

14'
6'

14
'

3'

4'
10'

11
'

3'
8'

38'

3'

7'

10'
3'

5'

5'

5'

34'

34'

4'

5'
15'

5'

5'

5'

7'

4'

95'

50'

5'
5'

6'

6'

3'

5'

6'

5'

6'

14'

6'13
'

3'

7'

6'

3' 8'

14'

8'

2'
2'

2'

2'

2'

2'

2'

5'

7'

5'

2'

5'

5'

56'

3'

5'

3' 1' 5'

14'

10'

10'
10'

10'

10'

10'

4'

2'

7'

7'

5'

5'

2' 4'

21
'

2'

6'

28'

3'

4'

157' TEE

WARREN CT(PRIVATE DR)

(T)

(T)

(T)

(T)

(W)(W)

(W)

(PST)

(M B)

(M B)

(M B)
(T)

(T)

(MB)(M B)

(T) (T)

(M B) (T)

(M B)

(T)

(T)

(T)

(T)
(M B)

(T)

(M B)

(M B)

(T)

(T)
(M B)

(T)(M B)

(T)(M B)

(T)

(M B)

(MB)

(T)

(T)

(MB)

(PST)

(PST)

(PST)

(T)(MN)
(MN)

(MN)
(T)

(MB)(T)

(M B)

(T)

(MB)

(T)

(MB) (T)

(T)

74

30

166

168
169

345
346

4

1

174

3

231
230

229
1 2 3 4 7

8

8 9 10

28 15

25

22 21
20

1
5

9

10
11

1
9 2

8

10 5

14 1

59 60
65 66 69

525049

47
45

40

18

30
34

1

1

5

5

7

41

42

19
20

53
54

55
5657

58
2

3

4 5 6

2

3

3

5

3

5

10

15

17

90

85

79

75

70

65
25

91

18 19

20

80

81

82

71

66

67

92

30

35

37
38

60

59

43

49

52

50

17

20

10

12

39
40

44
45

46

1

1

5

9

10

2

3

2 3

15

12

24

5

5

1

1

1

1

15
8

60

65668

33

32

10

10

7

5

10

8

7

11

12

11

9

1011
12

11

2

3

9
10

8

13

15
16

17

1

5

5

8

2

3

70

24

20

69

25

30

35

40

45

46
68

16

1

21

67

47

50

55

56

22 23

23

4
56

7

8

9

10

19

4

5

712

59

1

1
5

51

5

5
24

1

10

1

5

18

6

8

43

646

2
3 4

5

6

7

8
9

13
14

15

2

3

13

27

29

20

25

34

3031 32

35 36

26

14

15
57

12 815
910

13 16 17 4
5

20 21 24
1

1

78
9

10
2

3

15
4

15
0 14
2

14
4

13
8

86

72

58

47

34

30

44

54
55

27

25

16
2119 25

10

30

VACATED

VA
CA

TE
D

VACATED

VACATED

VACATED

19

4

7

DETAIL "C"

DETAIL "F"

DETAIL  "G"

DETAIL  "H"

SEE DETAIL "B"
ON MAP "0260264"

DETA IL "J"

DETA IL "K"

DETA IL "L"
DETA IL "E"

DETA IL "D"

DETA IL "I"

DETA IL"A"

DETA IL "B"

ON MAP "0260253"
SEE DETAIL "C"

SEE DETAIL"F"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL "G"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL "H"
ON MAP"0260253"

DETAIL  "B"

SEE DETAIL "J"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL "K"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL "L"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL "E"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL "D"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL "I"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL "A"
ON MAP "0260253"

SEE DETAIL"B"
ON MAP"0260253"

RO
UG

E R
IVE

R

3'

4'
10' 2"S-MP

2"P
-M

P

(T)
(MB)

33' TEE

3'

14'
6'

2"P
-M

P
2"S

-M
P

(T)
(MB)76' TEE

200506204703
R

14
' 11

'

6'

2"S-MP
2"P-MP

2"P
-M

P

(MB)

(T)

8'T
EE

3'

2"S-MP

2"P-MP(T)(MB)

32
' C

L

2004
05969829

R

2"P-MP(MB) (T)

15
5' 

EL
L

DETAIL "L"

DETAIL "K"

DETAIL "J"

DETAIL "I"

DETAIL "H"

2003
05724066

R

10'

14
'

13'

2"S
-M

P-
TC

6"S-MP

6"P-MP6"S-MP

(MB)(MB)

(T) (T)

30' CL

3' MB

18
' C

L

2003
02099952

M

5'
4'

1'

1 1/4"P-MP

2"S-MP

2"S-MP

(MB)

(MB)
(T)

(T)

3'
8'

2"P-MP

2"S-MP

(T)

(MB)

12' TEE

3'

5'
13'

2"P-MP
2"S-MP

(T)(MB)

75' TEE

³

³

2"-
97

'

1994
14631

2004
05969829

R2004
05969829

R

646

2"P-MP 2"P-MP

1 1
/4"

S-
MP

(T)

(MB)
(T)

2"-
97

'

DETAIL "G"

2008
06759380

R

1951
05'

7'

5'

2"P-MP

4"S-MP

(MB)(T)
15' PL

DETAIL "F"

10'
3'

2"P-MP 2"S-MP(T)

(MB)

DETAIL "E"

DETAIL "D"

DETAIL "C"

DETAIL "B"

DETAIL "A"

02-60-36-2

02
-60

-26
-4

02-60-25-2

02
-60

-25
-4

BLOOMFIELD
OAKLAND

OAKLAND

02-60-25-3

06-19-18 JLF

1-8
77

-24
0-9

60
2

Ga
s I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

06
-19

-18
ISS

UE
D 

BY
ON

    
    

    
   .

  F
AC

ILI
TIE

S M
AY

 H
AV

E B
EE

N 
AD

DE
D 

AF
TE

R 
MA

P P
RI

NT
ED

 D
AT

E T
HE

RE
FO

RE
,

CO
NS

UM
ER

S E
NE

RG
Y S

HA
LL

 BE
 C

ON
SU

LT
ED

BE
FO

RE
 AN

Y A
CT

IO
N 

IS 
TA

KE
N 

ON
 TH

E B
AS

IS
OF

 TH
IS 

MA
P. 

 TH
IS 

MA
P T

O 
BE

 D
ES

TR
OY

ED
WH

EN
 N

O 
LO

NG
ER

 N
EE

DE
D.

72
 H

OU
RS

(3 
W

OR
KI

NG
 D

AY
S)

80
0-4

82
-71

71
(TO

LL
 FR

EE
)

FO
R 

QU
ES

TIO
NS

 C
ON

CE
RN

IN
G 

TH
IS 

MA
P

PL
EA

SE
 C

AL
L

CO
NS

UM
ER

S E
NE

RG
Y

UN
DE

RG
RO

UN
D 

PL
AN

T
AL

L L
OC

AT
IO

NS
 AR

E A
PP

RO
XIM

AT
E.

SE
RV

IC
ES

 AR
E N

OT
 SH

OW
N.

  L
OC

AT
IO

NS
WI

LL
 BE

 VE
RI

FIE
D 

BY
 ST

AK
IN

G 
UP

ON
 R

EQ
UE

ST
.

ALL MEASUREMENTS ARE TAKEN FROM ACTUAL PROPERTY LINES UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
CENTER LINE MEASUREMENTS ARE TAKEN FROM CENTER LINE OF EXISTING ROADWAY, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED, AND MAY NOT  BE CENTER LINE OF R.O.W.

DETAILS
ELEVATIONAL DETAILS ARE NOT TO BE SHOWN

IN THIS SPACE.  THEY WILL BE SHOWN ON
THE MAP, NEAR THE AREA BEING DETAILED

QUARTER SECTION MAP
TOWN - RANGE - SECTION - 1/4

SCALE:  Varies
EXCEPT FOR

by
DETAILS

REQUESTED
BY

REQUEST
DATE

as GAS
DISTRIBUTION

MAPnformation
anagement

This map has been plotted and approved by the GIM Conversion Team:

TOWNSHIP:
COUNTY:
HEADQUARTERS:

NINE PATTERNS/SECTIONS

6 5 4 3 2 1
7 9 10 12
18 17 16 15 14 13
19 20 21 22 23 24
30 28 27 25
31 32 33 34 35 36

Caution:                  Some locations are approximated
for exact location of Gas Transmission Facilities
(CPCO, MGS, T&S, CMS, MCV, NOMECO & Jackson
pipelines & foreign gas main (PEPL), contact Gas Control
in Jackson.





9/17/2018 Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Request :: F004028-09... - Scott Wasielewski

https://outlook.office365.com/owa/?viewmodel=ReadMessageItem&ItemID=AAMkAGY2NDc1MjUxLWZlNTgtNDQyYi04MzI1LTc5M2MxNjM1Y2ZhZABGAAAAA… 1/2

Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Request :: F004028-091018

--- Please respond above this line --- 

 

09/14/2018

 

 

Scott Wasielewski

AKT Peerless

 

22725 Orchard LakeRoad

Farmington, MI 48336

wasielewskis@aktpeerless.com

 

RE:  FOIA  REQUEST 

       39 ADDRESSES

        B IRMINGHAM,  OAKL AND COUNTY,  MI

        PARCEL  #:  1 9-25-376-097 AND 19-25-378-028

        REFERENCE NUMBER:  F004028-091018

 

Dear Scott Wasielewski:

 

Per your request and a review of our records, the Oakland County Health Division (OCHD) has denied your

request because the records understood to be requested do not exist. No information regarding landfills, on-site

sewage disposal permits, water well permits, or well logs were found for the captioned properties. OCHD is not

conducting ongoing monitoring of any groundwater pollutants for the properties, nor are there files for historical

monitoring on these sites. 

 

If you wish to modify your request by providing a complete list of specific concerns and properties, with date

ranges for the information you desire, OCHD will provide available information in compliance with the FOIA.

 
It is recommended that you contact the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality as the agency has regulatory

authority over certain environmental pollutants and monitoring activities. It is advised that you contact the local

water supply and sewer agencies as they may have authority over certain aspects of the captioned properties. If

Oakland County Record Center

Fri 9/14/2018 9:50 AM

To:Scott Wasielewski <WasielewskiS@aktpeerless.com>;



9/17/2018 Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Request :: F004028-09... - Scott Wasielewski

https://outlook.office365.com/owa/?viewmodel=ReadMessageItem&ItemID=AAMkAGY2NDc1MjUxLWZlNTgtNDQyYi04MzI1LTc5M2MxNjM1Y2ZhZABGAAAAA… 2/2

you have any questions, please contact this Division at (248) 858-1312.
 

YOUR FURTHER LEGAL  RIGHTS

To the extent that this response, in your opinion, constitutes a denial of your Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) rights, your

statutory remedies are as follows:

 

For FOIA denials, you may submit to the head of the public body a written appeal that specifically states the word "appeal" and

identifies the reason or reasons for reversal of the denial. Within 10 business days after the head of the public body receives a written

appeal he or she will do one of the following:

1. Reverse the denial.

2. Issue a written notice to you upholding the denial.

3. Reverse the denial in part and issue a written notice to you upholding the denial in part.

4. Under unusual circumstances, issue a notice extending for not more than 10 business days the time to respond.

 

You may begin a civil action in circuit court to compel the public body’s disclosure of the public records within 180 days after a public

body’s final determination to deny a request. 

You have the right to receive attorneys' fees and damages as provided in MCL 15.240 if, after judicial review, the court determines that

the public body has not complied with MCL 15.235 and orders disclosure of all or a portion of a public record.

 

For fee appeals, if the public body requires a fee that, in your opinion, exceeds the amount permitted under its procedures and

guidelines or MCL 15.234, you may submit to the head of the public body a written fee appeal for a fee reduction that specifically

states the word "appeal" and identifies how the required fee exceeds the amount permitted. Within 10 business days after the head of

the public body receives a written fee appeal, he or she will do one of the following:

1. Waive the fee.

2. Reduce the fee and issue a written determination to the requesting person indicating the basis for the remaining fee.

3. Uphold the fee and issue a written determination to the requesting person indicating the basis for upholding the fee. 

4. If necessary, issue a notice extending for not more than 10 business days the time to respond. 

 

Within 45 days after the head of the public body issues a written determination on the fee appeal or if the head of the public body

failed to respond to the fee appeal, you may begin a civil action in circuit court.  

 

Oakland County’s FOIA Procedures and Guidelines, and its Public Summary, can be found at www.oakgov.com/FOIA.

 

Sincerely,

 

OAKL AND COUNTY  HEALTH DIVISION

Depar tment of  Heal th  and Human  Serv ices

 

 

Richard Peresky

Public Health Senior Sanitarian

Environmental Health Services

To monitor the progress or update this request please log into the FOIA Record Center.

http://www.oakgov.com/FOIA
https://oaklandcountymi.mycusthelp.com/WEBAPP/_rs/RequestEdit.aspx?rid=14008&coid=


From: DEQFOIA
To: Scott Wasielewski
Subject: 7243-18 RDE DWMAD
Date: Wednesday, September 12, 2018 10:08:24 AM

Mr. Scott Wasielewski
AKT Peerless Environmental Services
22725 Orchard Lake Road
Farmington, Michigan 48336
 
Dear Mr. Wasielewski:
 
SUBJECT:  FOIA 7243-18: Response from the Drinking Water and Municipal Assistance
Division (DWMAD)
This notice is issued in response to your request for information under the Freedom of
Information Act, 1976 PA 442, as amended (FOIA), received on September 7, 2018. 
 
You requested information on the following site(s) described by you as:  280, 322, 333  N.
Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham; 155 Henrietta Street, Birmingham.
 
Denied: The purpose of the FOIA is to provide the public with access to existing,
nonexempt public records of public bodies. After a search, to the best of this public body’s
knowledge, information, and belief, the public record(s) do not exist (RDE) as described by
you, or by another name or description reasonably known to the public body; therefore,
your request to examine or receive a copy of the documents described above is denied.
 
Under section 10 of the FOIA, the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) is obligated
to inform you of the following:

 
1)   You may appeal this decision in writing to the Administration Deputy Director,
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), P.O. Box 30473, Lansing, Michigan 48909-
7973.  The writing must specifically state the word “appeal” and identify the basis for which
the disclosure determination should be reversed. The Administration Deputy Director, or
her delegated designee, must respond to the appeal within 10 business days of its receipt.
Under unusual circumstances, the time for response to the appeal may be extended by
10 business days.
 
2)   You may commence a civil action in the Court of Claims within 180 days after the date
of the final determination to deny the request. If you prevail in such an action, the court is to
award reasonable attorney fees, costs, and disbursements, and possible damages. 
 
You may access the DEQ’s website that contains information about our FOIA policy and
procedure, public written summary, and several online databases at
www.michigan.gov/deqfoia.   
 
If you have any questions regarding the results of your request, you may contact DEQ
FOIA at 800-662-9278; deqfoia@michigan.gov; or by U.S. Mail at Department of
Environmental Quality, Attention:  FOIA Coordinator, P.O. Box 30473, Lansing, Michigan
48909-7973.
 

mailto:WasielewskiS@aktpeerless.com
http://www.michigan.gov/deqfoia
mailto:deqfoia@michigan.gov


 
Leigh M. Copen, FOIA Coordinator
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
800-662-9278
www.michigan.gov/deqfoia
 
 
 
 

http://www.michigan.gov/deqfoia


From: DEQFOIA
To: Scott Wasielewski
Subject: 7243-18 RDE AQD WMRPD WRD
Date: Thursday, September 13, 2018 3:30:48 PM

Mr. Scott Wasielewski
AKT Peerless Environmental Services
22725 Orchard Lake Road
Farmington, Michigan 48336
 
Dear Mr. Wasielewski:
 
SUBJECT:  FOIA 7243-18: Response from the Air Quality Division (AQD); Waste
Management and Radiological Protection Division (WMRPD); Water Resources Division
(WRD)
 
This notice is issued in response to your request for information under the Freedom of
Information Act, 1976 PA 442, as amended (FOIA), received on September 7, 2018. 
 
You requested information on the following site(s) described by you as:  280, 322, 333  N.
Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham; 155 Henrietta Street, Birmingham.
 
Denied: The purpose of the FOIA is to provide the public with access to existing,
nonexempt public records of public bodies. After a search, to the best of this public body’s
knowledge, information, and belief, the public record(s) do not exist (RDE) as described by
you, or by another name or description reasonably known to the public body; therefore,
your request to examine or receive a copy of the documents described above is denied.
 
Under section 10 of the FOIA, the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) is obligated
to inform you of the following:

 
1)   You may appeal this decision in writing to the Administration Deputy Director,
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ), P.O. Box 30473, Lansing, Michigan 48909-
7973.  The writing must specifically state the word “appeal” and identify the basis for which
the disclosure determination should be reversed. The Administration Deputy Director, or
her delegated designee, must respond to the appeal within 10 business days of its receipt.
Under unusual circumstances, the time for response to the appeal may be extended by
10 business days.
 
2)   You may commence a civil action in the Court of Claims within 180 days after the date
of the final determination to deny the request. If you prevail in such an action, the court is to
award reasonable attorney fees, costs, and disbursements, and possible damages. 
 
You may access the DEQ’s website that contains information about our FOIA policy and
procedure, public written summary, and several online databases at
www.michigan.gov/deqfoia.   
 
If you have any questions regarding the results of your request, you may contact DEQ
FOIA at 800-662-9278; deqfoia@michigan.gov; or by U.S. Mail at Department of
Environmental Quality, Attention:  FOIA Coordinator, P.O. Box 30473, Lansing, Michigan

mailto:WasielewskiS@aktpeerless.com
http://www.michigan.gov/deqfoia
mailto:deqfoia@michigan.gov


48909-7973.
 
 
Leigh M. Copen, FOIA Coordinator
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
800-662-9278
www.michigan.gov/deqfoia
 
 
 

http://www.michigan.gov/deqfoia


1

Scott Wasielewski

From: DEQFOIA <DEQFOIA@michigan.gov>
Sent: Monday, September 17, 2018 11:37 AM
To: Scott Wasielewski
Subject: 7243-18 RDE RRD 

Mr. Scott Wasielewski 
AKT Peerless Environmental Services 
22725 Orchard Lake Road 
Farmington, Michigan 48336 
  
Dear Mr. Wasielewski: 
  
SUBJECT:  FOIA 7243-18: Response from the Remediation and Redevelopment Division (RRD) 
  
This notice is issued in response to your request for information under the Freedom of Information Act, 1976 
PA 442, as amended (FOIA), received on September 7, 2018.   
  
You requested information on the following site(s) described by you as:  280, 322, 333  N. Old Woodward 
Avenue, Birmingham; 155 Henrietta Street, Birmingham.  
  
Denied: The purpose of the FOIA is to provide the public with access to existing, nonexempt public records of 
public bodies. After a search, to the best of this public body’s knowledge, information, and belief, the public 
record(s) do not exist (RDE) as described by you, or by another name or description reasonably known to the 
public body; therefore, your request to examine or receive a copy of the documents described above is denied. 
  
Under section 10 of the FOIA, the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) is obligated to inform you of the 
following: 

  
1)   You may appeal this decision in writing to the Administration Deputy Director, Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ), P.O. Box 30473, Lansing, Michigan 48909-7973.  The writing must specifically 
state the word “appeal” and identify the basis for which the disclosure determination should be reversed. The 
Administration Deputy Director, or her delegated designee, must respond to the appeal within 10 business 
days of its receipt. Under unusual circumstances, the time for response to the appeal may be extended by 
10 business days. 
  
2)   You may commence a civil action in the Court of Claims within 180 days after the date of the final 
determination to deny the request. If you prevail in such an action, the court is to award reasonable attorney 
fees, costs, and disbursements, and possible damages.   
  
You may access the DEQ’s website that contains information about our FOIA policy and procedure, public 
written summary, and several online databases at www.michigan.gov/deqfoia.    
  
If you have any questions regarding the results of your request, you may contact DEQ FOIA at 800-662-9278; 
deqfoia@michigan.gov; or by U.S. Mail at Department of Environmental Quality, Attention:  FOIA Coordinator, 
P.O. Box 30473, Lansing, Michigan 48909-7973. 
  
  
Leigh M. Copen, FOIA Coordinator 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 
800-662-9278 
www.michigan.gov/deqfoia  



 

PHASE II  
ENVIRONMENTAL 
SITE ASSESSMENT 
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, Michigan 

 

PREPARED FOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT # 
 

DATE 

City of Birmingham 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009 
 
 
 
 
 
13661F‐2‐20 
 
November 15, 2018 



Table of Contents  

 

I

1.0  INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................... 1 

2.0  BACKGROUND ............................................................................................................................. 1 

2.1  SITE DESCRIPTION AND PHYSICAL SETTING ............................................................................ 1 

2.2  SUBJECT PROPERTY HISTORY AND LAND USE ......................................................................... 2 

2.3  ADJACENT PROPERTY LAND USE ............................................................................................. 2 

2.4  PREVIOUS ENVIRONMENTAL INVESTIGATIONS ...................................................................... 3 

3.0  PHASE II ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT ACTIVITIES ............................................................ 4 

3.1  SCOPE OF ASSESSMENT .......................................................................................................... 4 

3.1.1  Soil Evaluation ........................................................................................................ 5 

3.1.2  Groundwater Evaluation ........................................................................................ 5 

3.2  QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL .............................................................................. 5 

3.2.1  Decontamination of Equipment ............................................................................. 5 

3.2.2  Calibration of Field Equipment ............................................................................... 6 

3.2.3  Documentation of Activities ................................................................................... 6 

3.2.4  Sample Preservation Techniques............................................................................ 6 

3.3  LABORATORY ANALYSES AND METHODS ................................................................................ 6 

4.0  EVALUATION AND PRESENTATION OF RESULTS ............................................................................ 7 

4.1  SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS ...................................................................................................... 7 

4.1.1  Soil and Groundwater Conditions based on Published Material ........................... 7 

4.1.2  Soil and Groundwater Conditions based on Field Observations ............................ 7 

4.2  ANALYTICAL LABORATORY RESULTS ........................................................................................ 8 

4.2.1  Soil Analytical Results ............................................................................................. 8 

4.2.2  Groundwater Analytical Results ............................................................................. 9 

5.0  SUMMARY, CONCLUSIONS, AND RECOMMENDATIONS ................................................................ 9 

5.1  SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONCERNS ......................................................................... 9 

5.2  SUMMARY OF SUBSURFACE INVESTIGATION ....................................................................... 10 

5.3  CONCLUSIONS ....................................................................................................................... 10 

5.4  RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................................................ 10 

6.0  LIMITATIONS ............................................................................................................................. 11 

7.0  SIGNATURES OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROFESSIONALS .................................................................. 11 



Table of Contents (continued)       

 

ii 
 

FIGURES 

Figure 1 ................................................................................................................ Topographic Location Map  

Figure 2 ................................................................................ Subject Property Map with Sampling Locations 

Figure 3 ................................................... Subject Property Map with Soil Results Exceeding MDEQ Criteria 

TABLES 

Table 1 ...................................................................................................... Summary of Soil Analytical Results  

Table 2 ...................................................................................... Summary of Groundwater Analytical Results 

Footnotes 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A ............................................................................................................................. Soil Boring Logs 

Appendix B .......................................... Analtyical Laboratory Report and Chain of Custody Documentation



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 1 

 

PHASE II ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT 
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue, Birmingham, Michigan 
AKT Peerless Project No. 13661F‐2‐20 

1.0 Introduction 
City of Birmingham retained AKT Peerless to conduct a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of 
the property located at 333 N. Old Woodward Avenue in Birmingham, Oakland County, Michigan (the 
subject property). This Phase II ESA was conducted in accordance with AKT Peerless’ Proposal for a Phase 
II ESA (Proposal Number PF‐23369), dated October 4, 2018, and is based on ASTM International (ASTM) 
Designation E 1903‐11, “Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments:  Phase II Environmental 
Site Assessment Process.” 

This Phase II ESA scope of work is intended to evaluate the recognized environmental conditions (RECs) 
presented in Section 2.4.   

AKT Peerless’ Phase II ESA report documents the field activities, sampling protocols, and laboratory 
results associated with this assessment. AKT Peerless’ Phase II ESA was performed for the benefit of its 
Client, City of Birmingham, who may rely on the contents and conclusions of this report. 

2.0 Background 

2.1 Site Description and Physical Setting 
The subject property is located in the southwest ¼ of Section 25 in Birmingham (T.2N./R.10E.), Oakland 
County, Michigan. The subject property is located on the west side of N. Old Woodward Avenue, north of 
Willits Street and consists of one tax identification parcel zoned Public Property (PP). See the following 
table for additional subject property details: 

Subject Property Identifiers 

Address 
Tax Identification 

Number 
Owner of Record 

Approximate 
Acreage 

333 N. Old Woodward Avenue*  08‐19‐25‐376‐097  City of Birmingham  3.9 acres 

*Note: According to Oakland County Equalization Division, the subject property lacks a legal address. 

The subject property is improved with one approximately 40,000‐square foot (footprint), five‐deck 
parking deck (the subject building). The exterior of the subject property consists of asphalt street‐level 
parking areas and wooded areas within the Rouge River floodplain. Block/brick walls and/or fencing 
surround the street‐level parking area. Vehicular access to the subject property is restricted by traffic 
control gates. 

Refer to Figure 1 for a topographic site location map. See Figure 2 for a site map.  



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 2 

 

2.2 Subject Property History and Land Use 
The subject property is used for street‐level parking and the subject building consists of a five‐deck 
parking deck. The subject property is accessible to vehicular traffic by traffic control gates fronting N. Old 
Woodward Avenue and N. Bates Street. The undeveloped floodplain on the northwestern portion of the 
subject property is not used for a significant or obvious purpose. 

The following table summarizes the general historical development and use of the subject property, as 
identified by AKT Peerless based on the referenced data sources: 

Subject Property Historical Use Summary 

Time Period  Improvements  Use  Owner / Occupant  Data Source(s) 

1893‐1952  Residential and/or 
commercial 
structures (up to 12 
main structures) 

Residential and/or 
commercial 

Unknown / residential 
and/or commercial 
occupants 

Fire insurance maps 
Aerial photographs 
City directories 
Municipal records 

1956‐1960  Residential and/or 
commercial 
structures (up to 
three main 
structures) 
Parking lot  

Residential and/or 
commercial; 
parking 

Unknown / residential 
and/or commercial 
occupants 

Fire insurance maps 
Aerial photographs 
City directories 
Municipal records 

1963‐1965  Parking lot  Parking  Unknown / National Garages 
Inc. 

Aerial photographs 
City directories 
Municipal records 

1966‐2018  Parking deck 
(subject building); 
parking lot 

Parking  Unknown; City of 
Birmingham / National 
Garages Inc.; Municipal 
Parking 

Aerial photographs 
City directories 
Municipal records 
Interviews 
Site reconnaissance 

2.3 Adjacent Property Land Use 
The following table describes the current uses and/or occupants of the adjoining properties, as identified 
by AKT Peerless: 

Adjoining Property Data 

Direction   Address  Current Use / Occupant 

North  No address identified  Recreation / Booth Park 

Northeast  No address identified  Undeveloped land 

369 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Condominiums / Brookside Residences (under construction) 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 3 

 

Direction   Address  Current Use / Occupant 

East  380 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Commercial / Steinhardt Pesick & Cohen, P.C.; The Law Firm of 
John F. Schaefer 

350 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Commercial / Strength Capital Partners 

344 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Commercial / Morganroth & Morganroth, PLLC 

320 N. Old Woodward Avenue  Commercial / SAIC USA 

Southeast  325 N. Old Woodward Avenue 
and 108‐114 Willits Street 

Commercial / UBS; Fleming’s Prime Steakhouse & Wine Bar; Beal 
Bank; Poggen Pohl; Centigrade; Tilt; Google Inc. 

South  111‐117 Willits Street  Commercial / Cameron’s Steakhouse; other street level and 
commercial office space occupants not identified 

Southwest  336 W. Maple Road  Commercial / McCann Detroit 

300 Willits Street  First Baptist Church 

No address identified   Undeveloped land 

West  300 Warren Court  Single‐family residential / not identified 

Northwest  No address identified  Recreation / Booth Park 

2.4 Previous Environmental Investigations 

On September 28, 2018, AKT Peerless prepared a Phase I ESA for the subject property on behalf of City 
of Birmingham in accordance with United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) Standards 
and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries (AAI) and ASTM Standard Practice E 1527‐13, “Standard 
Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase I Environmental Site Assessment Process.” At the 
time of the assessment, the subject property consisted of one tax identification parcel improved with 
one approximately 40,000‐square foot (footprint), five‐deck parking deck and associated exterior 
features as described in Section 2.1.  

AKT Peerless identified the following RECs in connection with the subject property: 

REC 1 ‐  According to fire insurance maps, the subject property formerly included 12 developed lots, in 
addition to one undeveloped lot, an apparent alley, and a portion of an adjoining developed lot. 
Between approximately 1915 and 1960, up to 12 residential and/or commercial structures were 
located entirely on the subject property. Municipal records and fire insurance maps indicate that 
at least three of these structures, located at 244 and 292 Willits Street and 248 N. Bates Street, 
may have included basements. The origin of the fill material used to fill basements of former 
structures at the subject property, if any, prior to conversion of the southern portion of the 
subject property to a street level parking lot in the mid‐1950s to early‐1960s is unknown. The 
unknown origin of such fill material represents an REC. 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 4 

 

REC 2 ‐  According to fire insurance maps and city directories, a dry cleaner operated on an eastern 
adjoining property located at 324‐332 N. Old Woodward Avenue from at least 1944 until at least 
1960. Historical dry‐cleaning operations typically involved the use of petroleum and/or 
chlorinated solvents. In addition, the eastern adjoining property located at historical address 322 
N. Old Woodward Avenue (located near current address 320 N. Old Woodward Avenue) was 
identified as a Part 201 site in the regulatory database report. Part 201 sites are Michigan sites at 
which contamination has been identified at concentrations exceeding Michigan Department of 
Environmental Quality (MDEQ) Generic Cleanup Criteria. No further information regarding the 
Part 201 site status of the eastern adjoining property was identified. The subject property is 
located at an inferred hydraulically down‐gradient position relative to the eastern adjoining 
property. Therefore, the potential for migration of contamination from the eastern adjoining 
property toward the subject property represents an REC. 

It is important to note that, under Part 201 of the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act (NREPA) Section 20126(4)(c), a property owner is not liable for contamination 
migrating from an off‐site source, unless the owner is responsible for an activity causing the 
release that is the source of the contamination. However, if contamination is identified on the 
subject property, the subject property owner may be required to comply with certain Due Care 
obligations pursuant to Section 20107a(1). 

3.0 Phase II Environmental Site Assessment Activities 
The following sections summarize the site assessment activities conducted by AKT Peerless. 

3.1 Scope of Assessment 

To further evaluate the RECs identified in AKT Peerless’ September 2018 Phase I ESA, AKT Peerless 
conducted a subsurface investigation at the subject property that included: (1) the advancement of five 
soil borings; (2) the installation of one temporary groundwater monitoring well; and (3) the collection of 
six soil samples and one groundwater sample for laboratory analyses. The following samples were 
submitted for laboratory analyses: 

 Six soil samples for volatile organic compounds (VOCs), polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons 
(PNAs), Michigan Ten Metals,1 and/or polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs); and 

 One groundwater sample for VOCs. 

The following table summarizes each REC, the site investigation activities performed to address each 
REC, and the laboratory parameters used to address each REC. 

                                                            

1 The Michigan Ten Metals include arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium (total), copper, lead, mercury, selenium, 
silver, and zinc. 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 5 

 

Summary of Investigation Activity 

REC #  Environmental Concern  Investigation Activity  Analytical Parameters 

1  Use of fill material of unknown origin to 
fill potential former basements 

AKT‐1, AKT‐2, AKT‐3  VOCs, PNAs, Michigan Ten 
Metals, PCBs 

2  Historical dry cleaner/Part 201 site 
located on an eastern adjoining property 

AKT‐4, AKT‐4W, AKT‐5  VOCs 

3.1.1 Soil Evaluation 
On October 23, 2018, AKT Peerless advanced five soil borings at the subject property. AKT Peerless used 
hydraulic drive/direct‐push (Geoprobe®) sampling techniques and followed the guidance outlined in 
ASTM publication E1903‐11, “Standard Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase II 
Environmental Site Assessment Process.” AKT Peerless collected continuous soil samples from the soil 
borings in four‐foot intervals to the maximum depth explored of 15 feet below ground surface (bgs). AKT 
Peerless personnel inspected, field‐screened, and logged the samples collected at each soil boring 
location.  

Refer to Figure 2 for a site map with soil boring locations. Boring logs are provided in Appendix A. 

3.1.2 Groundwater Evaluation 
AKT Peerless encountered groundwater in one soil boring (AKT‐4) advanced at the subject property. AKT 
Peerless installed a temporary groundwater monitoring well at this location. A one‐inch PVC riser with a 
five‐foot screen was utilized for this temporary groundwater monitoring well.  

Refer to Figure 2 for a site map with the temporary groundwater monitoring well location. 

3.2 Quality Assurance/Quality Control 
To ensure the accuracy of data collected during on‐site activities, AKT Peerless implemented proper 
quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) measures. The QA/QC procedures included, but were not 
limited to, (1) decontamination of sampling equipment before and between sampling events, (2) 
calibration of field equipment, (3) documentation of field activities, and (4) sample preservation 
techniques. 

3.2.1 Decontamination of Equipment 

During sample collection, AKT Peerless adhered to proper decontamination procedures. Sampling 
equipment was decontaminated using the following methods to minimize potential cross‐contamination 
of soil samples: 

 Steam‐cleaning or washing and scrubbing the equipment with non‐phosphate detergent 

 Rinsing the equipment  

 Air‐drying the equipment 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 6 

 

3.2.2 Calibration of Field Equipment 

During AKT Peerless’ subsurface investigation activities, a photoionization detector (PID) was used to 
screen all soil samples. The PID was maintained in a calibrated condition using 100 parts per million 
(ppm) isobutylene span gas prior to subsurface investigations. 

3.2.3 Documentation of Activities 

During AKT Peerless’ subsurface investigation activities, subject property conditions (i.e., soil boring 
locations, weather conditions) were documented. AKT Peerless visually inspected the soil and 
groundwater samples and prepared a geologic log for each soil boring. The logs include soil 
characteristics such as (1) color, (2) composition (e.g., sand, clay, or gravel), (3) soil moisture and water 
table depth, and (4) signs of possible contamination (i.e., stained or discolored soil, odors). Soil types 
were classified in accordance with ASTM publication D‐2488, “Unified Soil Classification System.”  All soil 
and groundwater samples were delivered to Fibertec Environmental Services’ analytical laboratory in 
Holt, Michigan under chain‐of‐custody documentation.  

Refer to Figure 2 for a site map with soil boring locations. Boring logs are provided in Appendix A. 

3.2.4 Sample Preservation Techniques 

AKT Peerless collected soil samples according to USEPA Publication SW‐846, “Test Methods for 
Evaluating Solid Waste.” Soil and groundwater samples were collected into laboratory‐supplied 
containers, stored on ice or at approximately four degrees Celsius, and submitted under chain‐of‐custody 
documentation.  

Soil samples collected for VOCs analyses were field preserved with methanol in accordance with USEPA 
Method 5035. Soil samples collected for PNAs, metals, and PCBs analyses were stored in unpreserved 
eight‐ounce wide‐mouth jars. 

Groundwater samples collected from temporary groundwater monitoring wells were collected with a 
peristaltic pump and dedicated tubing. Groundwater samples for VOCs analyses were collected with zero 
headspace into 40‐milliliter (mL) glass vials and preserved with hydrochloric acid.  

3.3 Laboratory Analyses and Methods 

AKT Peerless submitted six soil samples and one groundwater sample for laboratory analyses. The 
following table summarizes the location, depth, matrix, and laboratory analyses for each sample. 

Sample Collection Summary 

Sample Identification 
Sample 
Matrix 

Soil Sample Interval (feet bgs) 
Laboratory Analytical 

Parameter(s) 

AKT‐1  Soil  2’‐4’  VOCs, PNAs, Michigan Ten 
Metals, PCBs 

AKT‐2  Soil  2’‐4’  VOCs, PNAs, Michigan Ten 
Metals, PCBs 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 7 

 

Sample Identification 
Sample 
Matrix 

Soil Sample Interval (feet bgs) 
Laboratory Analytical 

Parameter(s) 

AKT‐3  Soil  2’‐4’  VOCs, PNAs, Michigan Ten 
Metals, PCBs 

AKT‐3  Soil  4’‐6’  VOCs, PNAs, Michigan Ten 
Metals, PCBs 

AKT‐4  Soil  9’‐10’  VOCs 

AKT‐4W  Groundwater  4’‐9’ (well screen depth interval)  VOCs 

AKT‐5  Soil  5’‐6’  VOCs 

The laboratory analyzed the samples for: (1) VOCs in accordance with USEPA Method 8260B; (2) PNAs in 
accordance with USEPA Method 8270E; (3) Michigan Ten Metals in accordance with USEPA Methods 
6020A and 7471B; and 4) PCBs in accordance with USEPA Method 8082A. 

4.0 Evaluation and Presentation of Results 

4.1 Subsurface Conditions 
The following sections summarize the physical soil and groundwater conditions at the subject property. 

4.1.1 Soil and Groundwater Conditions based on Published Material 

According to the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service’s (SCS’s) 
publication, Soil Survey of Oakland County, Michigan, the soil in the area of the subject property is 
classified as the Urban land‐Marlette‐Capac association, described as "urban land and nearly level to 
hilly, well drained to somewhat poorly drained loamy soils; on till plains and moraines." Photo Sheet 106 
of the soil survey depicts the subject property within an area described as "urban land” and “Cohoctah‐
Fox association.” 

According to the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) Geological Survey Division’s 
publication, Quaternary Geology of Southern Michigan, the soil in the area of the subject property is 
lacustrine clay and silt. This soil is described as gray to dark reddish brown and varved in some localities. 
The soil chiefly underlies extensive, flat, low‐lying areas formerly inundated by glacial Great Lakes. Soil 
thickness ranges from ten to 30 feet. Typically, lacustrine clay and silt are associated with low hydraulic 
permeability and restrict the movement of groundwater.  

Site‐specific groundwater information was not identified in published material. 

4.1.2 Soil and Groundwater Conditions based on Field Observations 
During drilling activities, AKT Peerless encountered the following soil types: 

 GRAVEL BASE from below the asphalt pavement to a depth of approximately two feet bgs. 

 FILL from below the gravel base to a depth of approximately four feet bgs, except at soil boring 
location AKT‐5, where the gravel base was underlaid by clay. The fill material encountered at soil 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 8 

 

boring locations AKT‐1, AKT‐2, and AKT‐3, which were advanced within the footprints of former 
structures that may have included basements, was dark brown to black in color and consisted of 
a sandy to clayey matrix containing gravel, red brick, and/or masonry debris. The fill material 
encountered at soil boring location AKT‐4, which was not advanced within the footprint of a 
former building potentially including a basement, was brown in color and consisted of sand and 
gravel. 

 SAND from below the fill to a depth of approximately eight feet bgs, except at soil boring 
locations AKT‐3 and AKT‐5, where the fill or gravel base was underlaid by clay. This sand was 
reddish brown to light brown in color and fine‐ to medium‐grained. Perched groundwater was 
observed within this sand layer at soil boring location AKT‐4. 

 CLAY from below the gravel base, fill, or sand to a depth of 15 feet bgs, the maximum depth 
explored. This clay was brown to gray in color and soft to stiff. 

AKT Peerless encountered groundwater at soil boring location AKT‐4 at a depth of seven feet bgs. The 
groundwater appeared to be perched on the clay layer encountered at nine feet bgs at this soil boring 
location. Shallow groundwater is not continuous across the site and is not used as a drinking water 
source. 

With the exception of the gravel base and fill material encountered, subsurface soils at the subject 
property are consistent with the description of lacustrine clay and silt as described in MDNR Geological 
Survey Division’s publication, Quaternary Geology of Southern Michigan.  

Refer to Figure 2 for a site map with soil boring locations. Boring logs are provided in Appendix A. 

4.2 Analytical Laboratory Results 
AKT Peerless collected soil and groundwater samples for the purpose of evaluating general subsurface 
environmental conditions at the subject property and to support potential future soil management 
planning.  Analytical results were compared to MDEQ Generic Residential Cleanup Criteria (RCC) for soil 
and groundwater (Michigan Administrative Rules 299.46 and 299.44, respectively).   

4.2.1 Soil Analytical Results 
AKT Peerless submitted six soil samples for laboratory analyses of VOCs, PNAs, Michigan Ten Metals, 
and/or PCBs. The results of the laboratory analyses of the soil samples are summarized in the table 
below: 

Summary of Soil Analytical Results 

Parameter 

Chemical 
Abstract 

Service (CAS) 
Number 

Sample Identification 
with Criteria 

Exceedance (depth) 

MDEQ Part 201 
Generic RCC 

Exceeded/Established 
Criteria (µg/kg) 

Maximum 
Concentration 
(µg/kg)/Sample 

Location 

Arsenic  7440‐38‐2  AKT‐1 (2’‐4’) 
AKT‐2 (2’‐4’) 
AKT‐3 (2’‐4’) 
AKT‐3 (4’‐6’) 

DWP / 4,600 
GSIP / 4,600 
DC / 7,600 

11,000 / AKT‐3 (4’‐6’) 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 9 

 

Parameter 

Chemical 
Abstract 

Service (CAS) 
Number 

Sample Identification 
with Criteria 

Exceedance (depth) 

MDEQ Part 201 
Generic RCC 

Exceeded/Established 
Criteria (µg/kg) 

Maximum 
Concentration 
(µg/kg)/Sample 

Location 

Chromium 
(total) 

7440‐47‐3  AKT‐1 (2’‐4’) 
AKT‐2 (2’‐4’) 
AKT‐3 (2’‐4’) 
AKT‐3 (4’‐6’) 

DWP / 30,000 
GSIP / 3,300 

47,000 / AKT‐3 (2’‐4’) 

Mercury  7439‐97‐6  AKT‐1 (2’‐4’)  GSIP / 50  110 / AKT‐1 (2’‐4’) 

Notes: 
Sample identification:  AKT‐# indicates soil boring identification and (#‐#) indicates sample depth interval in feet bgs. 
µg/kg – micrograms per kilogram 
DWP – Drinking Water Protection Criteria   
GSIP – Groundwater to Surface Water Interface Protection Criteria 
DC – Direct Contact Criteria 

 
In addition to the target parameters identified in the table above, various other metals (including 
barium, cadmium, copper, lead, selenium, and zinc) and PNAs [including benzo(a)anthracene, 
benzo(a)pyrene, benzo(b)fluoranthene, benzo(g,h,i)perylene, fluoranthene, phenanthrene, and pyrene] 
were detected in soil samples collected from the subject property at concentrations above analytical 
laboratory method detection limits (MDLs), but below MDEQ Part 201 Generic RCC. VOC constituents 
were not detected in soil samples collected from the subject property at concentrations above analytical 
laboratory MDLs or MDEQ Part 201 Generic RCC. 

Refer to Figure 3 for a site map with soil analytical results exceeding MDEQ Part 201 Generic RCC. Refer 
to Table 1 for a summary of soil analytical results. Refer to Appendix B for a complete analytical 
laboratory report. 

4.2.2 Groundwater Analytical Results 
AKT Peerless submitted one groundwater sample for laboratory analyses of VOCs. Target parameters 
were not detected in the groundwater sample at concentrations above analytical laboratory MDLs or 
MDEQ Part 201 Generic RCC. 
 
Refer to Table 2 for a summary of groundwater analytical results. Refer to Appendix B for a complete 
analytical laboratory report. 

5.0 Summary, Conclusions, and Recommendations 
The following sections summarize the investigation conducted by AKT Peerless at the subject property. 

5.1 Summary of Environmental Concerns 

AKT Peerless identified the following RECs in connection with the subject property during its September 
2018 Phase I ESA: 

 Use of fill material of uknown origin to fill potential former basements. 

 Historical dry cleaner/Part 201 site located on an eastern adjoining property. 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 10 

 

5.2 Summary of Subsurface Investigation 

On October 23, 2018, AKT Peerless conducted a subsurface investigation at the subject property to 
further evaluate the above‐identified RECs. During the subsurface investigation, AKT Peerless (1) 
advanced five soil borings; (2) installed one temporary groundwater monitoring well; and (3) collected 
soil and groundwater samples for laboratory analyses. AKT Peerless submitted soil and groundwater 
samples for laboratory analyses of select parameters, including: VOCs, PNAs, Michigan Ten Metals, and 
PCBs. 

5.3 Conclusions 
AKT Peerless conducted soil and groundwater sampling in areas most likely to be impacted by 
contaminants based on the past use of the subject property and an eastern adjoining property. The 
results of the investigation indicate the following: 

 Arsenic, chromium (total), and/or mercury were detected in soil samples collected from suspect 
fill material or native material directly underlying suspect fill material at concentrations 
exceeding MDEQ Part 201 Generic RCC for DWP, GSIP, and/or DC. Various other metals and PNAs 
were also detected in the suspect fill material at concentrations above analytical laboratory 
MDLs, but below MDEQ Part 201 Generic RCC. VOC constituents were not detected in soil 
samples collected from the subject property at concentrations above analytical laboratory MDLs 
or MDEQ Part 201 Generic RCC. 

 VOC constituents were not detected in the groundwater sample collected from the subject 
property at concentrations above analytical laboratory MDLs or MDEQ Part 201 Generic RCC. 
Shallow groundwater was encountered at only one soil boring location and does not appear to 
be continuous across the subject property. 

5.4 Recommendations 

AKT Peerless recommends the current subject property owner conduct a Section 20107(a) Compliance 
Analysis to assure compliance with Due Care obligations in advance of construction/demolition activities 
associated with the potential redevelopment of the subject property and again following such activities. 
Due Care obligations include: 

 Undertaking measures to prevent exacerbation of existing contamination. 

 Exercising due care by undertaking response activities to mitigate unacceptable exposure to 
hazardous substances, mitigate fire and explosion hazards due to hazardous substances, and 
allow for the intended use of the subject property in a manner that protects health and safety. 

 Taking reasonable precautions against the reasonably foreseeable acts or omissions of a third 
party and the consequences that could result from those acts or omissions. 

 Provide notifications to the MDEQ and others in regard to mitigating fire and explosions hazards, 
discarded or abandoned containers, contamination migrating beyond property boundaries, as 
applicable. 

 Comply with any land use or resource use restrictions established or relied on in connection with 
the response activities at the facility.  

 Not impede the effectiveness or integrity of any land use or resource use restriction employed at 
the facility in connection with response activities. 



 

 PHASE II ESA | 333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE, BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN  Page 11 

 

6.0 Limitations 
The information and opinions obtained in this report are for the exclusive use of City of Birmingham. No 
distribution to or reliance by other parties may occur without the express written permission of AKT 
Peerless. AKT Peerless will not distribute this report without your written consent or as required by law 
or by a Court order. The information and opinions contained in the report are given in light of that 
assignment. The report must be reviewed and relied upon only in conjunction with the terms and 
conditions expressly agreed upon by the parties and as limited therein. Any third parties who have been 
extended the right to rely on the contents of this report by AKT Peerless (which is expressly required 
prior to any third‐party release), expressly agrees to be bound by the original terms and conditions 
entered into by AKT Peerless and City of Birmingham. 

Subject to the above and the terms and conditions, AKT Peerless accepts responsibility for the 
competent performance of its duties in executing the assignment and preparing reports in accordance 
with the normal standards of the profession, but disclaims any responsibility for consequential damages. 
Although AKT Peerless believes that results contained herein are reliable, AKT Peerless cannot warrant or 
guarantee that the information provided is exhaustive or that the information provided by City of 
Birmingham or third parties is complete or accurate. 

7.0 Signatures of Environmental Professionals 
The following individuals contributed to the completion of this report. 

     

Scott Wasielewski 
Senior Environmental Consultant 
AKT Peerless 
Farmington, Michigan Office 
Phone: 248‐615‐1333 
Fax: 248‐615‐1334 
 

  Jessica T. Cory 
Senior Project Manager – Group Leader 
AKT Peerless 
Farmington, Michigan Office 
Phone: 248‐615‐1333 
Fax: 248‐615‐1334 
 



 

     

     

FIGURES 

   



333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN

PROJECT NUMBER: 13661F-2-20

TOPOGRAPHIC LOCATION MAP DRAWN BY:

DATE:
OGO/MST

11/12/2018

FIGURE 1

BIRMINGHAM QUADRANGLE
MICHIGAN - OAKLAND COUNTY

7.5 MINUTE SERIES (TOPOGRAPHIC)

T.2 N.-R.10 E.

1 MILE

1 KILOMETER

7000 FEET100001000

01

01

MICHIGAN
QUADRANGLE LOCATION

IMAGE TAKEN FROM 1968 U.S.G.S. TOPOGRAPHIC MAP
PHOTOREVISED 1981

2000 3000 4000 5000 6000

www.aktpeerless.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E



BOOTH PARK

UNDEVELOPED
LAND

BROOKSIDE RESIDENCES
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

369 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

BOOTH PARK

SINGLE- FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
300 WARREN COURT

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
 300 WILLITS STREET

WILLITS STREET

MCCANN DETROIT
336 W. MAPLE ROAD

CAMERON'S STEAKHOUSE;
OTHER STREET LEVEL AND COMMERCIAL OFFICE SPACE

OCCUPANTS NOT IDENTIFIED
111-117 WILLITS STREET

UBS; FLEMING'S PRIME STEAKHOUSE & WINE BAR; BEAL BANK;
POGGEN POHL; CENTIGRADE; TILT; GOOGLE INC.

325 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
AND 108-114 WILLITS STREET

STEINHARDT PESICK & COHEN, P.C.;
THE LAW FIRM OF JOHN F. SCHAEFER

380 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

STRENGTH CAPITAL PARTNERS
350 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

MORGANROTH & MORGANROTH, PLLC
344 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

SAIC USA
320 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

(INVENTORY; FORMER DRY CLEANERS, c. 1944-1960)

RIVER ROUGE  N. OLD W
OODW

ARD AVENUE

 O
AKL

AND AVEN
UE

SNOW CHUTE TOWER

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
ELECTRIC ROOM, LEVEL 1

STAIR/ELEVATOR TOWER;
ELEVATOR PIT WITH HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT AND SUMP,

AND  STORAGE CLOSET WITH OIL SEPARATOR, ACCESSIBLE AT LEVEL 1

STAIR/ELEVATOR TOWER;
ELEVATOR PIT WITH HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT
ACCESSIBLE AT LEVEL 1

STAIR TOWER; RESTROOM AT LEVEL 1;
FIRE SUPPRESSION PUMP ROOM AT LEVEL 2

SUBJECT BUILDING
333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

FORMER DWELLING
WITH BASEMENT
(c.1915-1940)

FORMER DWELLING
WITH BASEMENT
(c.1915-1954)

FORMER FLATS
WITH BASEMENT

(c.1926-1954)

WOODED
LAND

ASPHALT PARKING LOT

AKT-5

AKT-4/AKT-4W

AKT-3

AKT-1 AKT-2

33
3 

N
. O

LD
 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
U

E
BI

RM
IN

GH
AM

, M
IC

HI
GA

N
PR

O
JE

CT
 N

U
M

BE
R:

 1
36

61
F-

2-
20

SU
BJ

EC
T 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
M

AP
 W

IT
H 

SA
M

PL
IN

G
 L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S

DR
AW

N
 B

Y:

DA
TE

:
O

GO
/M

ST

11
/1

2/
20

18

FI
G

U
RE

 2

80
40

0
SC

AL
E:

1"
 =

 8
0'

LEGEND

w
w

w
.
a
k
t
p
e
e
r
l
e
s
s
.
c
o
m

= PROPERTY LINE
= PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER
= SOIL BORING
= SOIL BORING/MONITOR WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



BOOTH PARK

UNDEVELOPED
LAND

BROOKSIDE RESIDENCES
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION)

369 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

BOOTH PARK

SINGLE- FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
300 WARREN COURT

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
 300 WILLITS STREET

WILLITS STREET

MCCANN DETROIT
336 W. MAPLE ROAD

CAMERON'S STEAKHOUSE;
OTHER STREET LEVEL AND COMMERCIAL OFFICE SPACE

OCCUPANTS NOT IDENTIFIED
111-117 WILLITS STREET

UBS; FLEMING'S PRIME STEAKHOUSE & WINE BAR; BEAL BANK;
POGGEN POHL; CENTIGRADE; TILT; GOOGLE INC.

325 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE
AND 108-114 WILLITS STREET

STEINHARDT PESICK & COHEN, P.C.;
THE LAW FIRM OF JOHN F. SCHAEFER

380 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

STRENGTH CAPITAL PARTNERS
350 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

MORGANROTH & MORGANROTH, PLLC
344 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

SAIC USA
320 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

(INVENTORY; FORMER DRY CLEANERS, c. 1944-1960)

RIVER ROUGE  N. OLD W
OODW

ARD AVENUE

 O
AKL

AND AVEN
UE

SNOW CHUTE TOWER

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
ELECTRIC ROOM, LEVEL 1

STAIR/ELEVATOR TOWER;
ELEVATOR PIT WITH HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT AND SUMP,

AND  STORAGE CLOSET WITH OIL SEPARATOR, ACCESSIBLE AT LEVEL 1

STAIR/ELEVATOR TOWER;
ELEVATOR PIT WITH HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT
ACCESSIBLE AT LEVEL 1

STAIR TOWER; RESTROOM AT LEVEL 1;
FIRE SUPPRESSION PUMP ROOM AT LEVEL 2

SUBJECT BUILDING
333 N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE

FORMER DWELLING
WITH BASEMENT
(c.1915-1940)

FORMER DWELLING
WITH BASEMENT
(c.1915-1954)

FORMER FLATS
WITH BASEMENT

(c.1926-1954)

WOODED
LAND

ASPHALT PARKING LOT

AKT-5

AKT-4/AKT-4W

AKT-3

AKT-1 AKT-2

33
3 

N
. O

LD
 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
U

E
BI

RM
IN

GH
AM

, M
IC

HI
GA

N
PR

O
JE

CT
 N

U
M

BE
R:

 1
36

61
F-

2-
20

SU
BJ

EC
T 

PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
M

AP
 W

IT
H 

SO
IL

 R
ES

U
LT

S 
EX

CE
ED

IN
G

 M
DE

Q
 C

RI
TE

RI
A

DR
AW

N
 B

Y:

DA
TE

:
O

GO
/M

ST

11
/1

2/
20

18

FI
G

U
RE

 3

80
40

0
SC

AL
E:

1"
 =

 8
0'

w
w

w
.
a
k
t
p
e
e
r
l
e
s
s
.
c
o
m

5,300 ug/Kg (1,2)

7,900 ug/Kg (2)

110 ug/Kg (2)

Arsenic

Chromium, Total

Mercury, Total

AKT-1 (2-4')
10/23/2018

5,400 ug/Kg (1,2)

9,600 ug/Kg (2)

Arsenic

Chromium, Total

AKT-2 (2-4')
10/23/2018

AKT-3 (2-4')
10/23/2018

AKT-3 (4-6')
10/23/2018

6,400 ug/Kg (1,2)

47,000 ug/Kg (1,2)

Arsenic

Chromium, Total

11,000 ug/Kg (1,2,3)

20,000 ug/Kg (2)

Arsenic

Chromium, Total

CRITERIA NOTE

(1) - Exceeds Residential Drinking Water Protection Criteria
(2) - Exceeds Groundwater Surface Water Interface Protection Criteria
(3) - Exceeds Residential Direct Contact Criteria

LEGEND

= PROPERTY LINE
= PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER
= SOIL BORING
= SOIL BORING/MONITOR WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T



 

     

     

TABLES 

   



Table 1: Summary of Soil Analytical Results
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, Michigan
AKT Peerless Project No. 13661F-2-20

Metals µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg µg/kg
Arsenic 7440-38-2 5,800 4,600 4,600 NLV NLV 7.2E+5 7,600 NA 11,000 5,300 5,400 6,400 11,000 NS NS
Barium (B) 7440-39-3 75,000 1.3E+6 (G) NLV NLV 3.3E+8 3.7E+7 NA 300,000 32,000 55,000 300,000 55,000 NS NS
Cadmium (B) 7440-43-9 1,200 6,000 (G,X) NLV NLV 1.7E+6 5.5E+5 NA 1,000 150 260 1,000 130 NS NS
Chromium, Total 7440-47-3 18,000 (total) 30,000 3,300 NLV NLV 2.6E+5 2.5E+6 NA 47,000 7,900 9,600 47,000 20,000 NS NS
Copper (B) 7440-50-8 32,000 5.8E+6 (G) NLV NLV 1.3E+8 2.0E+7 NA 22,000 7,500 12,000 22,000 17,000 NS NS
Lead (B) 7439-92-1 21,000 7.0E+5 (G,X) NLV NLV 1.0E+8 4.0E+5 NA 57,000 32,000 32,000 57,000 10,000 NS NS
Mercury, Total 7439-97-6 130 1,700 50 (M); 1.2 48,000 52,000 2.0E+7 1.6E+5 NA 110 110 <50 <50 <50 NS NS
Selenium (B) 7782-49-2 410 4,000 400 NLV NLV 1.3E+8 2.6E+6 NA 240 <200 240 <200 <200 NS NS
Silver (B) 7440-22-4 1,000 4,500 100 (M); 27 NLV NLV 6.7E+6 2.5E+6 NA <100 <100 <100 <100 <100 NS NS
Zinc (B) 7440-66-6 47,000 2.4E+6 (G) NLV NLV ID 1.7E+8 NA 220,000 40,000 52,000 220,000 51,000 NS NS
PCBs
Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) (J,T) 1336-36-3 NA NLL NLL 3.0E+6 2.4E+5 5.2E+6 (T) NA <100 <100 <100 <100 <100 NS NS
Semivolatiles, PNAs
Benzo(a)anthracene (Q) 56-55-3 NA NLL NLL NLV NLV ID 20,000 NA 350 <330 350 330 <330 NS NS
Benzo(a)pyrene (Q) 50-32-8 NA NLL NLL NLV NLV 1.5E+6 2,000 NA 390 <330 <330 390 <330 NS NS
Benzo(b)fluoranthene (Q) 205-99-2 NA NLL NLL ID ID ID 20,000 NA 550 <330 340 550 <330 NS NS
Benzo(g,h,i)perylene 191-24-2 NA NLL NLL NLV NLV 8.0E+8 2.5E+6 NA 480 <330 <330 480 <330 NS NS
Fluoranthene 206-44-0 NA 7.3E+5 5,500 1.0E+9 (D) 7.4E+8 9.3E+9 4.6E+7 NA 920 <330 360 920 <330 NS NS
Phenanthrene 85-01-8 NA 56,000 2,100 2.8E+6 1.6E+5 6.7E+6 1.6E+6 NA 500 <330 <330 500 <330 NS NS
Pyrene 129-00-0 NA 4.8E+5 ID 1.0E+9 (D) 6.5E+8 6.7E+9 2.9E+7 NA 770 <330 <330 770 <330 NS NS
Remaining PNAs Various - - - - - - - - BDL BDL BDL BDL BDL NS NS
Volatiles (VOCs)
VOCs Various - - - - - - - - BDL BDL BDL BDL BDL BDL BDL

Residential Soil 
Volatilization 
to Indoor Air 

Inhalation 
Criteria

(Refer to detailed laboratory 
report for method reference 

data)

Parameters
Chemical 
Abstract 
Service 
Number

Statewide 
Default 

Background 
Levels

Residential 
Drinking Water 

Protection 
Criteria

Groundwater 
Surface Water 

Interface 
Protection 

Criteria

Residential 
Infinite Source 

Volatile Soil 
Inhalation 

Criteria (VSIC)

Residential 
Particulate Soil 

Inhalation 
Criteria

Residential 
Direct Contact 

Criteria

Residential Soil 
Saturation 

Concentration 
Screening 

Levels

AKT-5

Maximum 
Concentration 

Detected

Sample 
Identification

Collection Date

Sample Depth 
Interval

AKT-1 AKT-2 AKT-3 AKT-3 AKT-4

(5' - 6')

10/23/18 10/23/18 10/23/18 10/23/18 10/23/18 10/23/18

(2' - 4') (2' - 4') (2' - 4') (4' - 6') (9' - 10')

Page 1 of 1



Table 2: Summary of Groundwater Analytical Results
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, Michigan
AKT Peerless Project No. 13661F-2-20

Volatiles, VOCs µg/L µg/L µg/L µg/L µg/L µg/L µg/L
VOCs Various - - - - - BDL BDL

Water 
Solubility

Flammability 
and Explosivity 

Screening 
Level

Maximum 
Concentration 

Detected

Sample 
Identificaiton

AKT-4W

Collection Date 10/23/18

Well Screen 
Depth Interval

4'-9'

Residential 
Groundwater 
Volatilization 
to Indoor Air 

Inhalation 
Criteria

(Refer to detailed laboratory 
report for method reference 

data)

Parameters
Chemical 
Abstract 
Service 
Number

Residential 
Drinking Water 

Criteria

Groundwater 
Surface Water 

Interface 
Criteria

Page 1 of 1



Cleanup Criteria Requirements for Response Activity (formerly the Part 201 Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels)

(A) Criterion is the state of Michigan drinking water standard established pursuant to Section 5 of 1976 PA 399, MCL 325.1005.
(B) Background, as defined in R 299.1(b), may be substituted if higher than the calculated cleanup criterion. Background levels may be less than criteria for some inorganic compounds.
(C) The criterion developed under R 299.20 to R 299.26 exceeds the chemical-specific soil saturation screening level (Csat). The person proposing or implementing response activity shall document whether 

additional response activity is required to control free-phase liquids or NAPL to protect against risks associated with free-phase liquids by using methods appropriate for the free-phase liquids present. 
Development of a site-specific Csat or methods presented in R 299.22, R 299.24(5), and R 299.26(8) may be conducted for the relevant exposure pathways.

(D) Calculated criterion exceeds 100 percent, hence it is reduced to 100 percent or 1.0E+9 parts per billion (ppb).
(E) Criterion is the aesthetic drinking water value, as required by Section 20120a(5) of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (NREPA). A notice of aesthetic impact 

may be employed as an institutional control mechanism if groundwater concentrations exceed the aesthetic drinking water criterion, but do not exceed the applicable health-based drinking water value [as 
provided in the table in Footnote (E) in R 299.49].

(F) Criterion is based on adverse impacts to plant life and phytotoxicity.
(G) Groundwater surface water interface (GSI) criterion depends on the pH or water hardness, or both, of the receiving surface water. The final chronic value (FCV) for the protection of aquatic life shall be 

calculated based on the pH or hardness of the receiving surface water. Where water hardness exceeds 400 mg CaCO3/L, use 400 mg CaCO3/L for the FCV calculation. The FCV formula provides values in units of 
ug/L or ppb. The generic GSI criterion is the lesser of the calculated FCV, the wildlife value (WV), and the surface water human non-drinking water value (HNDV). The soil GSI protection criteria for these 
hazardous substances are the greater of 20 times the GSI criterion or the GSI soil-water partition values using the GSI criteria developed with the procedure described in this footnote. [See table in Footnote 
(G) in R 299.49].

(H) Valence-specific chromium data (Cr III and Cr VI) shall be compared to the corresponding valence-specific cleanup criteria. If both Cr III and Cr VI are present in groundwater, the total concentration of both 
cannot exceed the drinking water criterion of 100 ug/L. If analytical data are provided for total chromium only, they shall be compared to the cleanup criteria for Cr VI. Cr III soil cleanup criterion for protection 
of drinking water can only be used at sites where groundwater is prevented from being used as a public water supply, currently and in the future, through an approved land or resource use restriction.

(I) Hazardous substance may exhibit the characteristic of ignitability as defined in 40 C.F.R. §261.21 (revised as of July 1, 2001), which is adopted by reference in these rules.
(J) Hazardous substance may be present in several isomer forms. Isomer-specific concentrations shall be added together for comparison to criteria. 
(K) Hazardous substance may be flammable or explosive, or both.  
(L) Criteria for lead are derived using a biologically based model, as allowed for under Section 20120a(9) of the NREPA, and are not calculated using the algorithms and assumptions specified in pathway-specific 

rules. The generic residential drinking water criterion of 4 ug/L is linked to the generic residential soil direct contact criterion of 400 mg/kg. A higher concentration in the drinking water, up to the state action 
level of 15 ug/L, may be allowed as a site-specific remedy and still allow for drinking water use, under Section 20120a(2) of the NREPA if soil concentrations are appropriately lower than 400 mg/kg. If a site-
specific criterion is approved based on this subdivision, a notice shall be filed on the deed for all property where the groundwater concentrations will exceed 4 ug/L to provide notice of the potential for 
unacceptable risk if soil or groundwater concentrations increase. Acceptable concentrations of site-specific soil and drinking water concentrations are presented in the [table in Footnote (L) in R 299.49].

(M) Calculated criterion is below the analytical target detection limit, therefore, the criterion defaults to the target detection limit.
(N) The concentrations of all potential sources of nitrate-nitrogen (e.g., ammonia-N, nitrite-N, nitrate-N) in groundwater that is used as a source of drinking water shall not, when added together, exceed the 

nitrate drinking water criterion of 10,000 ug/L.  Where leaching to groundwater is a relevant pathway, soil concentrations of all potential sources of nitrate-nitrogen shall not, when added together, exceed the 
nitrate drinking water protection criterion of 2.0E+5 ug/kg. 

(O) The concentration of all polychlorinated and polybrominated dibenzodioxin and dibenzofuran isomers present at a facility, expressed as an equivalent concentration of 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin 
based upon their relative potency, shall be added together and compared to the criteria for 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin. The generic cleanup criteria for 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-dioxin are not 
calculated according to the algorithms presented in R 299.14 to R 299.26. The generic cleanup criteria are being held at the values that the DEQ has used since August 1998, in recognition of the fact that 
national efforts to reassess risks posed by dioxin are not yet complete. Until these studies are complete, it is premature to select a revised slope factor and/or reference dose for calculation of generic cleanup 
criteria

(P) Amenable cyanide methods or method OIA-1677 shall be used to quantify cyanide concentrations for compliance with all groundwater criteria. Total cyanide methods or method OIA-1677 shall be used to 
quantify cyanide concentrations for compliance with soil criteria. Nonresidential direct contact criteria may not be protective of the potential for release of hydrogen cyanide gas. Additional land or resource 
use restrictions may be necessary to protect for the acute inhalation concerns associated with hydrogen cyanide gas.  

(Q) Criteria for carcinogenic polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons were developed using relative potential potencies to benzo(a)pyrene.
(R) Hazardous substance may exhibit the characteristic of reactivity as defined in 40 C.F.R. §261.23 (revised as of July 1, 2001), which is adopted by reference in these rules.  
(S) Criterion defaults to the hazardous substance-specific water solubility limit.
(T) Refer to the federal Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA), 40 C.F.R. §761, subpart D and 40 C.F.R. §761, Subpart G, to determine the applicability of TSCA cleanup standards.  Subpart D and subpart G of 40 

C.F.R. §761 (July 1, 2001) are adopted by reference in these rules. Alternatives to compliance with the TSCA standards listed below are possible under 40 C.F.R. §761 Subpart D.  New releases may be subject to 
the standards identified in 40 C.F.R. §761, Subpart G.  Use Part 201 soil direct contact cleanup criteria in the following table if TSCA standards are not applicable. [See table in Footnote (T) in R 299.49].

(U) Hazardous substance may exhibit the characteristic of corrosivity as defined in 40 C.F.R. §261.22 (revised as of July 1, 2001), which is adopted by reference in these rules. 
(V) Criterion is the aesthetic drinking water value as required by Section 20120(a)(5) of the NREPA. Concentrations up to 200 ug/L may be acceptable, and still allow for drinking water use, as part of a site-specific 

cleanup under Section 20120a(2) and 20120b of the NREPA.
(W) Concentrations of trihalomethanes in groundwater shall be added together to determine compliance with the Michigan drinking water standard of 80 ug/L.  Concentrations of trihalomethanes in soil shall be 

added together to determine compliance with the drinking water protection criterion of 1,600 ug/kg.
(X) The GSI criterion shown in the generic cleanup criteria tables is not protective for surface water that is used as a drinking water source. For a groundwater discharge to the Great Lakes and their connecting 

waters or discharge in close proximity to a water supply intake in inland surface waters, the generic GSI criterion shall be the surface water human drinking water value (HDV) listed in the [table in Footnote (X) 
in R 299.49], except for those HDV indicated with an asterisk. For HDV with an asterisk, the generic GSI criterion shall be the lowest of the HDV, the WV, and the calculated FCV. See formulas in [the table in 
Footnote (G) in R 299.49]. Soil protection criteria based on the HDV shall be as listed in the [table in Footnote (X) in R 299.49], except for those values with an asterisk. Soil GSI protection criteria based on the 
HDV shall be as listed in the [table in Footnote (X) in R 299.49], except for those values with an asterisk. Soil GSI protection criteria for compounds with an asterisk shall be the greater of 20 times the GSI 
criterion or the GSI soil-water partition values using the GSI criteria developed with the procedure described in this footnote. 

(Y) Source size modifiers shown in the [table in Footnote (Y) in R 299.49] shall be used to determine soil inhalation criteria for ambient air when the source size is not one-half acre. The modifier shall be multiplied 
by the generic soil inhalation criteria shown in the table of generic cleanup criteria to determine the applicable criterion. See Footnote (C) [in R 299.49].

(Z) Mercury is typically measured as total mercury. The generic cleanup criteria, however, are based on data for different species of mercury. Specifically, data for elemental mercury, chemical abstract service 
(CAS) number 7439976, serve as the basis for the soil volatilization to indoor air criteria, groundwater volatilization to indoor air, and soil inhalation criteria. Data for methyl mercury, CAS number 22967926, 
serve as the basis for the GSI criterion; and data for mercuric chloride, CAS number 7487947, serve as the basis for the drinking water, groundwater contact, soil direct contact, and the groundwater protection 
criteria. Comparison to criteria shall be based on species-specific analytical data only if sufficient facility characterization has been conducted to rule out the presence of other species of mercury.

(AA) Use 10,000 ug/L where groundwater enters a structure through the use of a water well, sump or other device. Use 28,000 ug/L for all other uses.
(BB) The state drinking water standard for asbestos (fibers greater than 10 micrometers in length) is in units of a million fibers per liter of water (MFL). Soil concentrations of asbestos are determined by polarized 

light microscopy. 
(CC) Groundwater: The generic GSI criteria are based on the toxicity of unionized ammonia (NH3); the criteria are 29 ug/L and 53 ug/L for cold water and warm water surface water, respectively. As a result, the GSI 

criterion shall be compared to the percent of the total ammonia concentration in the groundwater that will become NH3 in the surface water. This percent NH3 is a function of the pH and temperature of the 
receiving surface water and can be estimated using the [table in Footnote (CC) in R 299.49], taken from Emerson, et al., (Journal of the Fisheries Research Board of Canada, Volume 32(12):2382, 1975). The 
generic approach for estimating NH3 assumes a default pH of 8 and default temperatures of 68 °F and 85 °F for cold water and warm water surface water, respectively. The resulting NH3 is 3.8 percent and 7.2 
percent for cold water and warm water, respectively. This default percentage shall be multiplied by the total ammonia-nitrogen (NH3-N) concentration in the groundwater and the resulting NH3 concentration 
compared to the applicable GSI criterion. As an alternative, the maximum pH and temperature data from the specific receiving surface water can be used to estimate, from the [table in Footnote (CC) in R 
299.49], a lower percent unionized ammonia concentration for comparison to the generic GSI.
Soil: The generic soil GSI protection criteria for unionized ammonia are 580 ug/kg and 1,100 ug/kg for cold water and warm water surface water, respectively.

(DD) Hazardous substance causes developmental effects. Residential direct contact criteria are protective of both prenatal and postnatal exposure. Nonresidential direct contact criteria are protective for a 
pregnant adult receptor.

(EE) The [values listed in the table in Footnote (EE) in 299.49] are applicable generic GSI criteria as required by Section 20120e of the NREPA.
(FF)  The chloride GSI criterion shall be 125 mg/L when the discharge is to surface waters of the state designated as public water supply sources or 50 mg/L when the discharge is to the Great Lakes or connecting 

waters. Chloride GSI criteria shall not apply for surface waters of the state that are not designated as a public water supply source, however, the total dissolved solids criterion is applicable. 

(GG)   Risk-based criteria are not available for methane due to insufficient toxicity data. An acceptable soil gas concentration (presented for both residential and nonresidential land uses) was derived utilizing 25 
percent of the lower explosive level for methane. This equates to 1.25 percent or 8.4E+6 ug/m3.

(HH) The residential criterion for sodium is 230,000 ug/L in accordance with the Sodium Advisory Council recommendation and revised Groundwater Discharge Standards.
ID Insufficient data to develop criterion. 
NA A criterion or value is not available or, in the case of background and CAS numbers, not applicable.
NLL Hazardous substance is not likely to leach under most soil conditions.
NLV Hazardous substance is not likely to volatilize under most conditions.
ug/kg Micrograms per kilogram
ug/L Micrograms per liter
NS Not sampled
BDL Below Laboratory Method Detection Limits
BOLD Exceeds highlighted criteria.

R 299.49 FOOTNOTES

FOR GENERIC CLEANUP CRITERIA TABLES
(as last revised by MDEQ on December 30, 2013)



 

     

     

Appendix A 

Soil Boring Logs 

   



Drawn By: S. Wasielewski
11/9/2018

WEATHER:
BORING DEPTH:
DEPTH TO GW:
SCREEN INTERVAL:
SCREEN MATERIAL:

DE
PT

H 
FE

ET

SA
M

PL
E 

IN
TE

RV
AL

%
 R

EC
O

VE
RY

PI
D 

VA
LU

E

U
SC

S 
SO

IL
 C

LA
SS

.

CO
LO

R

M
O

IS
TU

RE

Gray

Dark M
brown

M
SP Reddish M

brown

Light
brown

M
CL Brown M

to
Gray

M

AKT-1

80

<0.1

<0.1

<0.1

<0.1

<0.1

<0.1

6 80

S. Wasielewski; M. Marguin

ASPHALT

FILL: Sand matrix with clay and masonry debris

4

60

10

BORING LOG
333 N. Old Woodward Avenue

Birmingham, Michigan
AKT Peerless Project No: 13661F-2-20

2

DRILLING COMPANY:
TECHNICIAN:
DATE DRILLED:
DRILLING METHOD:

12

14

16

20

18

8

Date:

Not applicable
Not encountered
11 feet bgs
Sunny, 40 °F

Not applicable

GEOLOGIC DESCRIPTION
TEMPORARY WELL 

DIAGRAM

FIELD GEOLOGIST:

AKT Peerless  
B. Fox
10/23/2018
Geoprobe

CLAY: Mottled, medium stiff to stiff

End of Boring at 11 feet bgs

GRAVEL BASE

SAND: Medium-grained, with gravel

Medium-grained



Drawn By: S. Wasielewski
11/9/2018

WEATHER:
BORING DEPTH:
DEPTH TO GW:
SCREEN INTERVAL:
SCREEN MATERIAL:

DE
PT

H 
FE

ET

SA
M

PL
E 

IN
TE

RV
AL

%
 R

EC
O

VE
RY

PI
D 

VA
LU

E

U
SC

S 
SO

IL
 C

LA
SS

.

CO
LO

R

M
O

IS
TU

RE

Gray

Dark M
brown

M
SP Reddish M

brown

Light
brown

M
CL Brown M

to
Gray

M

20

16

18

End of Boring at 11 feet bgs

12

14

10
<0.1

6 Medium-grained

<0.1

8

100
<0.1

80

<0.1

SAND: Medium-grained, with gravel

CLAY: Mottled, medium stiff to stiff

2

<0.1

FILL: Sand matrix with clay, gravel, red brick and 
masonry debris

4

50

<0.1

ASPHALT
GRAVEL BASE

DATE DRILLED: 10/23/2018 Not encountered
DRILLING METHOD: Geoprobe Not applicable
FIELD GEOLOGIST: S. Wasielewski; M. Marguin Not applicable

GEOLOGIC DESCRIPTION
TEMPORARY WELL 

DIAGRAM

DRILLING COMPANY: AKT Peerless  Sunny, 40 °F
TECHNICIAN: B. Fox 11 feet bgs

BORING LOG AKT-2333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
Birmingham, Michigan

AKT Peerless Project No: 13661F-2-20 Date:



Drawn By: S. Wasielewski
11/9/2018

WEATHER:
BORING DEPTH:
DEPTH TO GW:
SCREEN INTERVAL:
SCREEN MATERIAL:

DE
PT

H 
FE

ET

SA
M

PL
E 

IN
TE

RV
AL

%
 R

EC
O

VE
RY

PI
D 

VA
LU

E

U
SC

S 
SO

IL
 C

LA
SS

.

CO
LO

R

M
O

IS
TU

RE

Gray
Dark M

brown /
black

M
CL Gray M

M

BORING LOG AKT-3333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
Birmingham, Michigan

AKT Peerless Project No: 13661F-2-20 Date:
DRILLING COMPANY: AKT Peerless  Sunny, 40 °F
TECHNICIAN: B. Fox 8 feet bgs
DATE DRILLED: 10/23/2018 Not encountered
DRILLING METHOD: Geoprobe Not applicable
FIELD GEOLOGIST: S. Wasielewski; M. Marguin Not applicable

GEOLOGIC DESCRIPTION
TEMPORARY WELL 

DIAGRAM

FILL: Clay matrix with gravel, red brick and masonry

2 debris

<0.1

4

60

<0.1

ASPHALT
GRAVEL BASE

6

<0.1

8

100

<0.1

CLAY: Soft to stiff

End of Boring at 8 feet bgs

10

12

14

20

16

18



Drawn By: S. Wasielewski
11/9/2018

WEATHER:
BORING DEPTH:
DEPTH TO GW:
SCREEN INTERVAL:
SCREEN MATERIAL:

DE
PT

H 
FE

ET

SA
M

PL
E 

IN
TE

RV
AL

%
 R

EC
O

VE
RY

PI
D 

VA
LU

E

U
SC

S 
SO

IL
 C

LA
SS

.

CO
LO

R

M
O

IS
TU

RE

Gray

Brown M PVC 
RISER

M
SP Brown M

M PVC 
SCREEN

S

S
CL Gray M

M

BORING LOG AKT-4333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
Birmingham, Michigan

AKT Peerless Project No: 13661F-2-20 Date:
DRILLING COMPANY: AKT Peerless  Sunny, 40 °F
TECHNICIAN: B. Fox 15 feet bgs
DATE DRILLED: 10/23/2018 7 feet bgs
DRILLING METHOD: Geoprobe 4-9 feet bgs
FIELD GEOLOGIST: S. Wasielewski; M. Marguin PVC

GEOLOGIC DESCRIPTION
TEMPORARY WELL 

DIAGRAM

SAND: Medium-grained, with gravel

2 FILL: Sand and gravel

<0.1

4

50

<0.1

ASPHALT
GRAVEL BASE

80

<0.1

6

<0.1

8

<0.1

80

<0.1

Fine- to medium-grained, with clay

CLAY: Medium stiff to stiff

10

12

20

100
<0.1

<0.1

18

End of Boring at 15 feet bgs

16

14



Drawn By: S. Wasielewski
11/9/2018

WEATHER:
BORING DEPTH:
DEPTH TO GW:
SCREEN INTERVAL:
SCREEN MATERIAL:

DE
PT

H 
FE

ET

SA
M

PL
E 

IN
TE

RV
AL

%
 R

EC
O

VE
RY

PI
D 

VA
LU

E

U
SC

S 
SO

IL
 C

LA
SS

.

CO
LO

R

M
O

IS
TU

RE

Gray

CL Brown M
to

Gray

M

BORING LOG AKT-5333 N. Old Woodward Avenue
Birmingham, Michigan

AKT Peerless Project No: 13661F-2-20 Date:
DRILLING COMPANY: AKT Peerless  Sunny, 40 °F
TECHNICIAN: B. Fox 11 feet bgs
DATE DRILLED: 10/23/2018 Not encountered
DRILLING METHOD: Geoprobe Not applicable
FIELD GEOLOGIST: S. Wasielewski; M. Marguin Not applicable

GEOLOGIC DESCRIPTION
TEMPORARY WELL 

DIAGRAM

Sandy seam

2

<0.1
CLAY: Mottled, medium stiff to stiff

4

80

<0.1

ASPHALT
GRAVEL BASE

6

<0.1

Stiff

8

100
<0.1

100

<0.1

10
<0.1

End of Boring at 11 feet bgs

12

14

20

16

18



 

     

     

Appendix B 

Analytical Laboratory Report and Chain of Custody 
Documentation 



Wednesday, October 31, 2018

13661F-2-20 /13661F-2-20Project Identification:
Fibertec Project Number: 87419 

22725 Orchard Lake Road
AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, Inc. - Farm. Hills

Farmington Hills, MI  48336

Mr. Scott Wasielewski

Thank you for selecting Fibertec Environmental Services as your analytical laboratory.  The samples you submitted have 
been analyzed in accordance with NELAC standards and the results compiled in the attached report.  Any exceptions to 
NELAC compliance are noted in the report.  These results apply only to those samples submitted.  Please note TO-15 
samples will be disposed of 10 calendar days after the reporting date.  All other samples will be disposed of 30 days after 
the reporting date.

Dear Mr. Wasielewski,

Submittal Date: 10/24/2018

If you have any questions regarding these results or if we may be of further assistance to you, please contact me at (517) 
699-0345.

Sincerely,

For Daryl P. Strandbergh  
Laboratory Director

Enclosures

By Stephannie Wallace at 12:04 PM, Oct 31, 2018

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-001

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
2 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-1 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 09:50

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Water (Moisture) Content Dried at 105 ± 5°C Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-001

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-1 (2-4)Method: ASTM D2216-10

%1. 9 1 1.0 10/26/18 MC181026 10/29/18 MC181026Percent Moisture (Water Content)‡ DW

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Michigan 10 Elements by ICP/MS Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-001

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-1 (2-4)Method: EPA 0200.2/EPA 6020A

µg/kg1. 5300 100 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AArsenic JLH

µg/kg2. 32000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ABarium JLH

µg/kg3. 150 50 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ACadmium JLH

µg/kg4. 7900 500 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AChromium JLH

µg/kg5. 7500 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ACopper JLH

µg/kg6. 32000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ALead JLH
µg/kg7. U 200 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ASelenium JLH

µg/kg8. U 100 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ASilver JLH

µg/kg9. 40000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AZinc JLH

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Mercury by CVAAS Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-001

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-1 (2-4)Method: EPA 7471B

µg/kg1. 110 50 9.7 10/26/18 PM18J26B 10/26/18 M718J26AMercury NRV

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-001

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-1 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8082A

µg/kg1. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1016 RDK

µg/kg2. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1221 RDK

µg/kg3. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1232 RDK

µg/kg4. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1242 RDK

µg/kg5. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1248 RDK

µg/kg6. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1254 RDK

µg/kg7. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1260 RDK

µg/kg8. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1262‡ RDK

µg/kg9. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1268‡ RDK

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-001

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
3 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-1 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 09:50

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-001A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-1 (2-4)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg1. U 1000 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcetone DAR

µg/kg2. U 120 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcrylonitrile‡ DAR

µg/kg3. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABenzene DAR

µg/kg4. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromobenzene DAR

µg/kg5. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg6. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromodichloromethane DAR

µg/kg7. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromoform DAR

µg/kg8. U 200 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromomethane DAR

µg/kg9. U 750 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Butanone DAR

µg/kg10. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg11. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Asec-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg12. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atert-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg13. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Disulfide DAR
µg/kg14. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Tetrachloride DAR

µg/kg15. U 61 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg16. U 300 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroethane DAR

µg/kg17. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroform DAR

µg/kg18. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloromethane DAR

µg/kg19. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Chlorotoluene DAR

µg/kg20. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (SIM)‡ DAR

µg/kg21. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg22. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromomethane DAR

µg/kg23. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg24. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg25. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,4-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg26. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADichlorodifluoromethane DAR

µg/kg27. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethane DAR
µg/kg28. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloroethane DAR

µg/kg29. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg30. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg31. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg32. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloropropane DAR

µg/kg33. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg34. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg35. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylbenzene DAR

µg/kg36. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylene Dibromide DAR

µg/kg37. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Hexanone DAR

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-001

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
4 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-1 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 09:50

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-001A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-1 (2-4)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg38. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AIsopropylbenzene DAR

µg/kg39. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A4-Methyl-2-pentanone DAR

µg/kg40. U 120 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMethylene Chloride DAR

µg/kg41. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Methylnaphthalene‡ DAR

µg/kg42. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMTBE DAR

µg/kg43. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ANaphthalene DAR

µg/kg44. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Propylbenzene DAR

µg/kg45. U 61 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AStyrene DAR

µg/kg46. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg47. U 61 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg48. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATetrachloroethene DAR

µg/kg49. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AToluene DAR

µg/kg50. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene DAR
µg/kg51. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg52. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg53. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichloroethene DAR

µg/kg54. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichlorofluoromethane DAR

µg/kg55. U 120 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trichloropropane DAR

µg/kg56. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trimethylbenzene‡ DAR

µg/kg57. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg58. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg59. U 43 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AVinyl Chloride DAR

µg/kg60. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Am&p-Xylene DAR

µg/kg61. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Ao-Xylene DAR

µg/kg62. U 150 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AXylenes‡ DAR

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PNAs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-001

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-1 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8270E

µg/kg1. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAcenaphthene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg2. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAcenaphthylene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg3. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAnthracene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg4. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(a)anthracene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg5. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(a)pyrene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg6. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM) RKP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-001

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
5 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-1 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 09:50

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PNAs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-001

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-1 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8270E

µg/kg7. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(ghi)perylene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg8. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg9. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AChrysene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg10. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ADibenzo(a,h)anthracene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg11. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AFluoranthene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg12. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AFluorene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg13. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg14. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26A2-Methylnaphthalene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg15. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ANaphthalene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg16. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26APhenanthrene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg17. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26APyrene (SIM) RKP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-002

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
6 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-2 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 10:00

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Water (Moisture) Content Dried at 105 ± 5°C Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-002

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-2 (2-4)Method: ASTM D2216-10

%1. 9 1 1.0 10/26/18 MC181026 10/29/18 MC181026Percent Moisture (Water Content)‡ DW

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Michigan 10 Elements by ICP/MS Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-002

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-2 (2-4)Method: EPA 0200.2/EPA 6020A

µg/kg1. 5400 100 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AArsenic JLH

µg/kg2. 55000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ABarium JLH

µg/kg3. 260 50 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ACadmium JLH

µg/kg4. 9600 500 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AChromium JLH

µg/kg5. 12000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ACopper JLH

µg/kg6. 32000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ALead JLH
µg/kg7. 240 200 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ASelenium JLH

µg/kg8. U 100 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ASilver JLH

µg/kg9. 52000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AZinc JLH

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Mercury by CVAAS Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-002

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-2 (2-4)Method: EPA 7471B

µg/kg1. U 50 8.7 10/26/18 PM18J26B 10/26/18 M718J26AMercury NRV

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-002

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-2 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8082A

µg/kg1. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1016 RDK

µg/kg2. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1221 RDK

µg/kg3. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1232 RDK

µg/kg4. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1242 RDK

µg/kg5. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1248 RDK

µg/kg6. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1254 RDK

µg/kg7. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1260 RDK

µg/kg8. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1262‡ RDK

µg/kg9. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1268‡ RDK

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-002

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
7 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-2 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 10:00

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-002A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-2 (2-4)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg1. U 1000 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcetone DAR

µg/kg2. U 120 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcrylonitrile‡ DAR

µg/kg3. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABenzene DAR

µg/kg4. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromobenzene DAR

µg/kg5. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg6. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromodichloromethane DAR

µg/kg7. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromoform DAR

µg/kg8. U 200 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromomethane DAR

µg/kg9. U 750 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Butanone DAR

µg/kg10. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg11. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Asec-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg12. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atert-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg13. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Disulfide DAR
µg/kg14. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Tetrachloride DAR

µg/kg15. U 59 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg16. U 290 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroethane DAR

µg/kg17. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroform DAR

µg/kg18. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloromethane DAR

µg/kg19. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Chlorotoluene DAR

µg/kg20. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (SIM)‡ DAR

µg/kg21. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg22. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromomethane DAR

µg/kg23. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg24. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg25. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,4-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg26. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADichlorodifluoromethane DAR

µg/kg27. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethane DAR
µg/kg28. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloroethane DAR

µg/kg29. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg30. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg31. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg32. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloropropane DAR

µg/kg33. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg34. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg35. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylbenzene DAR

µg/kg36. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylene Dibromide DAR

µg/kg37. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Hexanone DAR

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-002

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
8 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-2 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 10:00

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-002A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-2 (2-4)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg38. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AIsopropylbenzene DAR

µg/kg39. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A4-Methyl-2-pentanone DAR

µg/kg40. U 120 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMethylene Chloride DAR

µg/kg41. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Methylnaphthalene‡ DAR

µg/kg42. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMTBE DAR

µg/kg43. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ANaphthalene DAR

µg/kg44. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Propylbenzene DAR

µg/kg45. U 59 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AStyrene DAR

µg/kg46. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg47. U 59 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg48. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATetrachloroethene DAR

µg/kg49. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AToluene DAR

µg/kg50. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene DAR
µg/kg51. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg52. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg53. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichloroethene DAR

µg/kg54. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichlorofluoromethane DAR

µg/kg55. U 120 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trichloropropane DAR

µg/kg56. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trimethylbenzene‡ DAR

µg/kg57. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg58. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg59. U 41 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AVinyl Chloride DAR

µg/kg60. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Am&p-Xylene DAR

µg/kg61. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Ao-Xylene DAR

µg/kg62. U 150 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AXylenes‡ DAR

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PNAs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-002

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-2 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8270E

µg/kg1. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAcenaphthene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg2. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAcenaphthylene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg3. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAnthracene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg4. 350 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(a)anthracene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg5. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(a)pyrene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg6. 340 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM) GJP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-002

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
9 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-2 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 10:00

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PNAs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-002

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-2 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8270E

µg/kg7. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(ghi)perylene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg8. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg9. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AChrysene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg10. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ADibenzo(a,h)anthracene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg11. 360 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AFluoranthene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg12. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AFluorene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg13. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg14. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26A2-Methylnaphthalene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg15. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ANaphthalene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg16. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26APhenanthrene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg17. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26APyrene (SIM) GJP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-003

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
10 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-3 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:00

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Water (Moisture) Content Dried at 105 ± 5°C Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-003

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (2-4)Method: ASTM D2216-10

%1. 9 1 1.0 10/26/18 MC181026 10/29/18 MC181026Percent Moisture (Water Content)‡ DW

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Michigan 10 Elements by ICP/MS Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-003

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (2-4)Method: EPA 0200.2/EPA 6020A

µg/kg1. 6400 100 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AArsenic JLH

µg/kg2. 300000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ABarium JLH

µg/kg3. 1000 50 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ACadmium JLH

µg/kg4. 47000 500 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AChromium JLH

µg/kg5. 22000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ACopper JLH

µg/kg6. 57000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ALead JLH
µg/kg7. U 200 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ASelenium JLH

µg/kg8. U 100 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ASilver JLH

µg/kg9. 220000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AZinc JLH

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Mercury by CVAAS Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-003

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (2-4)Method: EPA 7471B

µg/kg1. U 50 9.7 10/26/18 PM18J26B 10/26/18 M718J26AMercury NRV

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-003

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8082A

µg/kg1. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1016 RDK

µg/kg2. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1221 RDK

µg/kg3. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1232 RDK

µg/kg4. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1242 RDK

µg/kg5. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1248 RDK

µg/kg6. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1254 RDK

µg/kg7. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1260 RDK

µg/kg8. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1262‡ RDK

µg/kg9. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1268‡ RDK

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-003

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
11 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-3 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:00

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-003A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (2-4)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg1. U 2400 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcetone DAR

µg/kg2. U 480 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcrylonitrile‡ DAR

µg/kg3. U 59 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABenzene DAR

µg/kg4. U 240 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromobenzene DAR

µg/kg5. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg6. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromodichloromethane DAR

µg/kg7. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromoform DAR

µg/kg8. U 480 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromomethane DAR

µg/kg9. U 2400 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Butanone DAR

µg/kg10. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg11. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Asec-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg12. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atert-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg13. U 250 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Disulfide DAR
µg/kg14. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Tetrachloride DAR

µg/kg15. U 240 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg16. U 1200 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroethane DAR

µg/kg17. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroform DAR

µg/kg18. U 250 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloromethane DAR

µg/kg19. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Chlorotoluene DAR

µg/kg20. U 250 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (SIM)‡ DAR

µg/kg21. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg22. U 250 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromomethane DAR

µg/kg23. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg24. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg25. U 240 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,4-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg26. U 480 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADichlorodifluoromethane DAR

µg/kg27. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethane DAR
µg/kg28. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloroethane DAR

µg/kg29. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg30. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg31. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg32. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloropropane DAR

µg/kg33. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg34. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg35. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylbenzene DAR

µg/kg36. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylene Dibromide DAR

µg/kg37. U 2500 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Hexanone DAR

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-003

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
12 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-3 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:00

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-003A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (2-4)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg38. U 250 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AIsopropylbenzene DAR

µg/kg39. U 2500 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A4-Methyl-2-pentanone DAR

µg/kg40. U 480 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMethylene Chloride DAR

µg/kg41. U 950 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Methylnaphthalene‡ DAR

µg/kg42. U 250 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMTBE DAR

µg/kg43. U 330 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ANaphthalene DAR

µg/kg44. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Propylbenzene DAR

µg/kg45. U 240 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AStyrene DAR

µg/kg46. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg47. U 240 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg48. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATetrachloroethene DAR

µg/kg49. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AToluene DAR

µg/kg50. U 900 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene DAR
µg/kg51. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg52. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg53. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichloroethene DAR

µg/kg54. U 240 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichlorofluoromethane DAR

µg/kg55. U 480 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trichloropropane DAR

µg/kg56. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trimethylbenzene‡ DAR

µg/kg57. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg58. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg59. U 170 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AVinyl Chloride DAR

µg/kg60. U 240 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Am&p-Xylene DAR

µg/kg61. U 120 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Ao-Xylene DAR

µg/kg62. U 360 4.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AXylenes‡ DAR

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PNAs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-003

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8270E

µg/kg1. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29AAcenaphthene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg2. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29AAcenaphthylene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg3. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29AAnthracene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg4. 330 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29ABenzo(a)anthracene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg5. 390 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29ABenzo(a)pyrene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg6. 550 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29ABenzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM) GJP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-003

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
13 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-3 (2-4)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:00

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PNAs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-003

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (2-4)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8270E

µg/kg7. 480 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29ABenzo(ghi)perylene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg8. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29ABenzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg9. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29AChrysene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg10. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29ADibenzo(a,h)anthracene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg11. 920 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29AFluoranthene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg12. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29AFluorene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg13. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29AIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg14. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29A2-Methylnaphthalene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg15. U 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29ANaphthalene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg16. 500 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29APhenanthrene (SIM) GJP

µg/kg17. 770 330 20 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/29/18 S618J29APyrene (SIM) GJP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-004

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
14 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-3 (4-6)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:05

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Water (Moisture) Content Dried at 105 ± 5°C Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-004

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (4-6)Method: ASTM D2216-10

%1. 15 1 1.0 10/26/18 MC181026 10/29/18 MC181026Percent Moisture (Water Content)‡ DW

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Michigan 10 Elements by ICP/MS Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-004

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (4-6)Method: EPA 0200.2/EPA 6020A

µg/kg1. 11000 100 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AArsenic JLH

µg/kg2. 55000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ABarium JLH

µg/kg3. 130 50 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ACadmium JLH

µg/kg4. 20000 500 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AChromium JLH

µg/kg5. 17000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ACopper JLH

µg/kg6. 10000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ALead JLH
µg/kg7. U 200 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ASelenium JLH

µg/kg8. U 100 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30ASilver JLH

µg/kg9. 51000 1000 20 10/30/18 PT18J30A 10/30/18 T418J30AZinc JLH

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Mercury by CVAAS Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-004

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (4-6)Method: EPA 7471B

µg/kg1. U 50 0.93 10/26/18 PM18J26B 10/26/18 M718J26AMercury NRV

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-004

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (4-6)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8082A

µg/kg1. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1016 RDK

µg/kg2. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1221 RDK

µg/kg3. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1232 RDK

µg/kg4. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1242 RDK

µg/kg5. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1248 RDK

µg/kg6. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1254 RDK

µg/kg7. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1260 RDK

µg/kg8. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1262‡ RDK

µg/kg9. U 100 5.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SF18J26AAroclor-1268‡ RDK

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-004

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
15 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-3 (4-6)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:05

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-004A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (4-6)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg1. U 1000 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcetone DAR

µg/kg2. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcrylonitrile‡ DAR

µg/kg3. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABenzene DAR

µg/kg4. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromobenzene DAR

µg/kg5. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg6. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromodichloromethane DAR

µg/kg7. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromoform DAR

µg/kg8. U 200 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromomethane DAR

µg/kg9. U 750 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Butanone DAR

µg/kg10. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg11. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Asec-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg12. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atert-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg13. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Disulfide DAR
µg/kg14. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Tetrachloride DAR

µg/kg15. U 67 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg16. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroethane DAR

µg/kg17. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroform DAR

µg/kg18. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloromethane DAR

µg/kg19. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Chlorotoluene DAR

µg/kg20. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (SIM)‡ DAR

µg/kg21. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg22. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromomethane DAR

µg/kg23. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg24. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg25. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,4-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg26. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADichlorodifluoromethane DAR

µg/kg27. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethane DAR
µg/kg28. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloroethane DAR

µg/kg29. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg30. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg31. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg32. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloropropane DAR

µg/kg33. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg34. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg35. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylbenzene DAR

µg/kg36. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylene Dibromide DAR

µg/kg37. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Hexanone DAR

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-004

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
16 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-3 (4-6)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:05

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-004A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (4-6)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg38. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AIsopropylbenzene DAR

µg/kg39. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A4-Methyl-2-pentanone DAR

µg/kg40. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMethylene Chloride DAR

µg/kg41. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Methylnaphthalene‡ DAR

µg/kg42. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMTBE DAR

µg/kg43. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ANaphthalene DAR

µg/kg44. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Propylbenzene DAR

µg/kg45. U 67 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AStyrene DAR

µg/kg46. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg47. U 67 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg48. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATetrachloroethene DAR

µg/kg49. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AToluene DAR

µg/kg50. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene DAR
µg/kg51. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg52. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg53. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichloroethene DAR

µg/kg54. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichlorofluoromethane DAR

µg/kg55. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trichloropropane DAR

µg/kg56. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trimethylbenzene‡ DAR

µg/kg57. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg58. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg59. U 47 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AVinyl Chloride DAR

µg/kg60. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Am&p-Xylene DAR

µg/kg61. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Ao-Xylene DAR

µg/kg62. U 150 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AXylenes‡ DAR

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PNAs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-004

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (4-6)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8270E

µg/kg1. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAcenaphthene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg2. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAcenaphthylene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg3. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AAnthracene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg4. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(a)anthracene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg5. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(a)pyrene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg6. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(b)fluoranthene (SIM) RKP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-004

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
17 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-3 (4-6)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:05

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Polynuclear Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PNAs) Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-004

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-3 (4-6)Method: EPA 3546/EPA 8270E

µg/kg7. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(ghi)perylene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg8. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ABenzo(k)fluoranthene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg9. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AChrysene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg10. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ADibenzo(a,h)anthracene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg11. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AFluoranthene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg12. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AFluorene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg13. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26AIndeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg14. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26A2-Methylnaphthalene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg15. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26ANaphthalene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg16. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26APhenanthrene (SIM) RKP

µg/kg17. U 330 1.0 10/26/18 PS18J26C 10/26/18 SG18J26APyrene (SIM) RKP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-005

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
18 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-4 (9-10)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:45

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Water (Moisture) Content Dried at 105 ± 5°C Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-005

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-4 (9-10)Method: ASTM D2216-10

%1. 15 1 1.0 10/26/18 MC181026 10/29/18 MC181026Percent Moisture (Water Content)‡ DW

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-005A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-4 (9-10)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg1. U 1000 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcetone DAR

µg/kg2. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcrylonitrile‡ DAR

µg/kg3. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABenzene DAR

µg/kg4. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromobenzene DAR

µg/kg5. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg6. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromodichloromethane DAR
µg/kg7. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromoform DAR

µg/kg8. U 200 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromomethane DAR

µg/kg9. U 750 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Butanone DAR

µg/kg10. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg11. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Asec-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg12. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atert-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg13. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Disulfide DAR

µg/kg14. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Tetrachloride DAR

µg/kg15. U 66 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg16. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroethane DAR

µg/kg17. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroform DAR

µg/kg18. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloromethane DAR

µg/kg19. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Chlorotoluene DAR

µg/kg20. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (SIM)‡ DAR
µg/kg21. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg22. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromomethane DAR

µg/kg23. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg24. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg25. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,4-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg26. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADichlorodifluoromethane DAR

µg/kg27. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethane DAR

µg/kg28. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloroethane DAR

µg/kg29. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg30. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-005

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
19 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-4 (9-10)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:45

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-005A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-4 (9-10)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg31. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg32. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloropropane DAR

µg/kg33. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg34. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg35. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylbenzene DAR

µg/kg36. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylene Dibromide DAR

µg/kg37. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Hexanone DAR

µg/kg38. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AIsopropylbenzene DAR

µg/kg39. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A4-Methyl-2-pentanone DAR

µg/kg40. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMethylene Chloride DAR

µg/kg41. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Methylnaphthalene‡ DAR

µg/kg42. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMTBE DAR

µg/kg43. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ANaphthalene DAR
µg/kg44. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Propylbenzene DAR

µg/kg45. U 66 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AStyrene DAR

µg/kg46. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg47. U 66 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg48. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATetrachloroethene DAR

µg/kg49. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AToluene DAR

µg/kg50. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg51. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg52. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg53. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichloroethene DAR

µg/kg54. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichlorofluoromethane DAR

µg/kg55. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trichloropropane DAR

µg/kg56. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trimethylbenzene‡ DAR

µg/kg57. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene DAR
µg/kg58. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg59. U 47 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AVinyl Chloride DAR

µg/kg60. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Am&p-Xylene DAR

µg/kg61. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Ao-Xylene DAR

µg/kg62. U 150 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AXylenes‡ DAR

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-006

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
20 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-4W

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Ground Water

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:40

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments:

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS Ground WaterMatrix:87419-006

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-4WMethod: EPA 5030C/EPA 8260B

µg/L1. U 50 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AAcetone MJP

µg/L2. U 2.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AAcrylonitrile‡ MJP

µg/L3. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ABenzene MJP

µg/L4. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ABromobenzene MJP

µg/L5. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ABromochloromethane MJP

µg/L6. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ABromodichloromethane MJP

µg/L7. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ABromoform MJP

µg/L8. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ABromomethane MJP

µg/L9. U 25 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A2-Butanone MJP

µg/L10. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29An-Butylbenzene MJP

µg/L11. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29Asec-Butylbenzene MJP

µg/L12. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29Atert-Butylbenzene MJP

µg/L13. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ACarbon Disulfide MJP
µg/L14. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ACarbon Tetrachloride MJP

µg/L15. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AChlorobenzene MJP

µg/L16. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AChloroethane MJP

µg/L17. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AChloroform MJP

L+ µg/L18. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AChloromethane MJP

µg/L19. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A2-Chlorotoluene MJP

µg/L20. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (SIM)‡ MJP

µg/L21. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ADibromochloromethane MJP

µg/L22. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ADibromomethane MJP

µg/L23. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,2-Dichlorobenzene MJP

µg/L24. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,3-Dichlorobenzene MJP

µg/L25. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,4-Dichlorobenzene MJP

L+ µg/L26. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ADichlorodifluoromethane MJP

µg/L27. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,1-Dichloroethane MJP
µg/L28. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,2-Dichloroethane MJP

µg/L29. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,1-Dichloroethene MJP

µg/L30. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29Acis-1,2-Dichloroethene MJP

µg/L31. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29Atrans-1,2-Dichloroethene MJP

µg/L32. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,2-Dichloropropane MJP

µg/L33. U 0.50 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29Acis-1,3-Dichloropropene MJP

µg/L34. U 0.50 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29Atrans-1,3-Dichloropropene MJP

µg/L35. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AEthylbenzene MJP

µg/L36. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AEthylene Dibromide MJP

µg/L37. U 50 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A2-Hexanone MJP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-006

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
21 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-4W

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Ground Water

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 11:40

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments:

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS Ground WaterMatrix:87419-006

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-4WMethod: EPA 5030C/EPA 8260B

µg/L38. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AIsopropylbenzene MJP

µg/L39. U 50 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A4-Methyl-2-pentanone MJP

µg/L40. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AMethylene Chloride MJP

µg/L41. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A2-Methylnaphthalene‡ MJP

µg/L42. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AMTBE MJP

µg/L43. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ANaphthalene MJP

µg/L44. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29An-Propylbenzene MJP

µg/L45. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AStyrene MJP

µg/L46. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane MJP

µg/L47. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane MJP

µg/L48. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ATetrachloroethene MJP

µg/L49. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AToluene MJP

µg/L50. U 5.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene MJP
µg/L51. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,1,1-Trichloroethane MJP

µg/L52. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,1,2-Trichloroethane MJP

µg/L53. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ATrichloroethene MJP

µg/L54. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29ATrichlorofluoromethane MJP

µg/L55. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,2,3-Trichloropropane MJP

µg/L56. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,2,3-Trimethylbenzene‡ MJP

µg/L57. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene MJP

µg/L58. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29A1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene MJP

µg/L59. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AVinyl Chloride MJP

µg/L60. U 2.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29Am&p-Xylene MJP

µg/L61. U 1.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29Ao-Xylene MJP

µg/L62. U 3.0 1.0 10/29/18 VM18J29A 10/29/18 VM18J29AXylenes‡ MJP

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-007

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
22 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-5 (5-6)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 12:15

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Water (Moisture) Content Dried at 105 ± 5°C Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-007

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-5 (5-6)Method: ASTM D2216-10

%1. 14 1 1.0 10/26/18 MC181026 10/29/18 MC181026Percent Moisture (Water Content)‡ DW

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-007A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-5 (5-6)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg1. U 1000 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcetone DAR

µg/kg2. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AAcrylonitrile‡ DAR

µg/kg3. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABenzene DAR

µg/kg4. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromobenzene DAR

µg/kg5. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg6. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromodichloromethane DAR
µg/kg7. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromoform DAR

µg/kg8. U 200 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ABromomethane DAR

µg/kg9. U 750 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Butanone DAR

µg/kg10. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg11. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Asec-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg12. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atert-Butylbenzene DAR

µg/kg13. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Disulfide DAR

µg/kg14. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ACarbon Tetrachloride DAR

µg/kg15. U 64 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg16. U 320 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroethane DAR

µg/kg17. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloroform DAR

µg/kg18. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AChloromethane DAR

µg/kg19. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Chlorotoluene DAR

µg/kg20. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane (SIM)‡ DAR
µg/kg21. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromochloromethane DAR

µg/kg22. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADibromomethane DAR

µg/kg23. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg24. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg25. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,4-Dichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg26. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ADichlorodifluoromethane DAR

µg/kg27. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethane DAR

µg/kg28. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloroethane DAR

µg/kg29. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg30. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Laboratory Sample Number: 87419-007

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
23 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Client Identification: AKT Peerless Environ. Svcs, 
Inc. - Farm. Hills

Client Project Name: 13661F-2-20

Client Project No: 13661F-2-20

Sample Description: AKT-5 (5-6)

Sample No:

Sample Matrix: Soil/Solid

Collect Date:

Chain of Custody: 169728

Collect Time: 12:15

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Sample Comments: Soil results have been calculated and reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise noted.

Q:  Qualifier (see definitions at end of report) NA: Not ApplicableDefinitions:

10/23/18

: Parameter not included in NELAC Scope of Analysis.‡

Analysis
Reporting Limit Parameter(s) Result

Preparation
UnitsQ Dilution

Aliquot ID: Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) by GC/MS, 5035 Soil/SolidMatrix:87419-007A

P. Date P. Batch A. Date A. Batch Init.

Description: AKT-5 (5-6)Method: EPA 5035A/EPA 8260B

µg/kg31. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,2-Dichloroethene DAR

µg/kg32. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2-Dichloropropane DAR

µg/kg33. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Acis-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg34. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Atrans-1,3-Dichloropropene DAR

µg/kg35. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylbenzene DAR

µg/kg36. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AEthylene Dibromide DAR

µg/kg37. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Hexanone DAR

µg/kg38. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AIsopropylbenzene DAR

µg/kg39. U 2500 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A4-Methyl-2-pentanone DAR

µg/kg40. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMethylene Chloride DAR

µg/kg41. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A2-Methylnaphthalene‡ DAR

µg/kg42. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AMTBE DAR

µg/kg43. U 330 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ANaphthalene DAR
µg/kg44. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25An-Propylbenzene DAR

µg/kg45. U 64 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AStyrene DAR

µg/kg46. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg47. U 64 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane DAR

µg/kg48. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATetrachloroethene DAR

µg/kg49. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AToluene DAR

µg/kg50. U 250 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene DAR

µg/kg51. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,1-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg52. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,1,2-Trichloroethane DAR

µg/kg53. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichloroethene DAR

µg/kg54. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25ATrichlorofluoromethane DAR

µg/kg55. U 130 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trichloropropane DAR

µg/kg56. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,3-Trimethylbenzene‡ DAR

µg/kg57. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene DAR
µg/kg58. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25A1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene DAR

µg/kg59. U 45 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AVinyl Chloride DAR

µg/kg60. U 100 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Am&p-Xylene DAR

µg/kg61. U 50 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25Ao-Xylene DAR

µg/kg62. U 150 1.0 10/25/18 VJ18J25A 10/25/18 VJ18J25AXylenes‡ DAR

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us


Spike recovery or precision unusable due to dilution.

Definitions/ Qualifiers:

The analyte was detected in the associated method blank.
The analyte was detected at a concentration greater than the calibration range, therefore the result is estimated.
The concentration is an estimated value.

The analyte was not detected at or above the reporting limit.
Matrix Interference has resulted in a raised reporting limit or distorted result.
Results reported on a wet-weight basis.
Value reported is outside QC limits

A:
B:
E:
J:

U:
X:
W:
*:

Analytical Laboratory Report 87419
24 of 24

Order:
Page:
Date: 10/31/18

Laboratory Project Number: 87419

Exception Summary:

Modified MethodM:

Analysis Locations:

Recovery in the associated laboratory sample (LCS) exceeds the upper control limit.  Results may be biased high.L+ :

T104704518-18-7 (TX)
Accreditation Number(s):

1914 Holloway Drive Holt, MI  48842 T: (517) 699-0345
11766 E. Grand River Brighton, MI  48116 T: (810) 220-3300
8660 S. Mackinaw Trail Cadillac, MI  49601 T: (231) 775-8368

lab@fibertec.us

F: (517) 699-0388
F: (810) 220-3311
F: (231) 775-8584

DCSID: G-610.16 (01/06/16) RSN: 87419-181031120005

mailto:lab@fibertec.us




Development of Public Parking 

March 16, 2015 

Planning for  
Future Public  

Parking Needs 

1 

jecker
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT I - 2015 Parking Study

jecker
Typewritten Text

jecker
Typewritten Text

jecker
Typewritten Text

jecker
Typewritten Text

jecker
Typewritten Text



AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE 
 
MEMBERS: 
RICHARD ASTREIN – PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT 
JC CATALDO – CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY 
GILIAN LAZAR – PLANNING BOARD 
SUSAN PEABODY – ADVISORY PARKING COMMITTEE 
JOHANNA SLANGA – MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 
STAFF LIASIONS: 
JANA ECKER, PLANNING DIRECTOR 
PAUL O’MEARA, CITY ENGINEER 
 
 

SUMMER, 2013   Parking demand exceeded capacity. 
 
SUMMER, 2014  City Commission authorizes Parking Study 

2 



MISSION:   
 
STUDY THE CURRENT AND FUTURE PARKING 
ENVIRONMENTS FOR THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
AND THE TRIANGLE DISTRICT, AND MAKE 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE PARKING 
IMPROVEMENTS, IF NEEDED. 
 
  

AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE 

3 



METHOD: 
 
1.A. GATHER DATA 
   B. DETERMINE PARKING GENERATION FACTOR 
   C.  CALCULATE SHORT AND LONG TERM NEEDS 
 
2. REVIEW OPPORTUNITIES FOR PARKING EXPANSION 
 AND PRIORITIZE 

AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE 

4 



AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE 

CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 
 
 Counts taken in late May, early June. 
 Park St. Parking Structure under construction closed up to 200 

parking spaces – results were skewed. 
 New counts taken in late October, early November to observe 

more “normal” operation. 
 Counts focused on peak hours of the week – T, W, Th between 
 noon and 2 PM. 
 Based on usage data, seasonal adjustment not needed. 

 

5 



AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE 

6 



AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE 

PARKING GENERATION FACTOR 
 

Average demand (red dashed line) = 1: 564 sq.ft. 
Design demand (green line) = 1:514 sq.ft.  

PARKING GENERATION FACTOR 
 

Average Demand (red dashed line) = 1: 564 sq.ft. 
Design demand (green line) = 1:514 sq.ft. 

7 



SHORT TERM &  
LONG TERM 
DEVELOPMENT  
PROJECTIONS 

8 



OBSERVED PARKING GENERATION FACTORS BY ZONE 
AVERAGE FOR ENTIRE DISTRICT = 1 VEHICLE PER 564 GROSS SQ.FT. 

9 



EXISTING PARKING SPACES SURPLUS/DEFICIT BY ZONE 

10 



FUTURE PARKING SPACES (SHORT TERM) 
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 

11 



FUTURE PARKING SPACES (LONG TERM) 
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 

12 



EXISTING PARKING SPACE SURPLUS  
USING CURRENT BEHAVIORS 

13 



FUTURE PARKING SPACES SURPLUS/DEFICIT (SHORT TERM) 
USING CURRENT BEHAVIORS 

14 



FUTURE PARKING SPACES SURPLUS/DEFICIT (LONG TERM) 
USING CURRENT BEHAVIORS 

15 



Option: Expand Pierce Street Structure 

DPZ 2014 

16 



View at Pierce and Brown 

Existing View Proposed 2 Story Addition 

17 



View from Townsend Street 

Existing View Proposed 2 Story Addition 

18 



View at Pierce and Merrill 

Existing View Proposed 2 Story Addition 

19 



View from Merrill Street 

Existing View Proposed 2 Story Addition 

20 



View from Brown Street  

Existing View Proposed 2 Story Addition 

21 



Aerial View 

22 



Option: Parking Lot #5 
N. Old Woodward Ave. Structure 

DPZ 2014 23 



Option: Parking Lot #5 
N. Old Woodward Ave. Structure 

New Parking Structure 

New Mixed Use Building 

New Residential Units 

24 



TO ACCEPT THE REPORT OF THE AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE ESTIMATING 
THAT A LONG TERM DEFICIT OF 278 PARKING SPACES IS EXPECTED IN THE LONG 
TERM FOR THE NORTH PORTION OF THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT.  FURTHER, 
TO DIRECT STAFF TO CONDUCT FURTHER PLANNING STUDIES FOR THE N. OLD 
WOODWARD AVENUE PARKING STRUCTURE AND LOT THAT WILL MAXIMIZE THE 
CREATION OF PARKING SPACES WHILE ADHERING TO THE ORIGINAL CONCEPTS 
PRESENTED IN THE DOWNTOWN BIRMINGHAM 2016 PLAN.    
  
AND, AS A SECONDARY PRIORITY, TO ACCEPT THE REPORT OF THE AD HOC 
PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE ESTIMATING THAT A LONG TERM DEFICIT OF 427 
PARKING SPACES IS EXPECTED IN THE LONG TERM FOR THE SOUTH PORTION OF 
THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT.  FURTHER, TO ENDORSE THE EXPANSION OF 
THE PIERCE STREET PARKING STRUCTURE BY TWO LEVELS, THEREBY CREATING 
AN ADDITIONAL 280 PUBLIC PARKING SPACES IN THE PARKING SYSTEM. 
 
MOTION PASSED 4-0. 
 
 
 
 

AD HOC PARKING STUDY RECOMMENDATIONS 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT 

25 



City of Birmingham, Michigan 15 Request for Proposals 

ATTACHMENT J 

COVER SHEET 
In submitting this proposal, as herein described, the Consultant agrees that: 

1. They have carefully examined the specifications and terms of the
Request for Proposal and all other provisions of this form and
understand the meaning, intent, and requirement of it.

2. They will enter into written contract and furnish the item or items
in the time specified in conformance with the specifications and
conditions contained therein for the price quoted by the proponent on
this proposal.

_____________________________________________________________________
BID PREPARED BY                                                                  DATE SUBMITTED 
(Print Name) 

____________________________________________________________
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE                                                      DATE 

____________________________________________________________
TITLE 

____________________________________________________________
COMPANY 

____________________________________________________________
ADDRESS                                                                                  PHONE 

____________________________________________________________
NAME OF PARENT COMPANY 

____________________________________________________________
ADDRESS                                                                                  PHONE 



ATTACHMENT K - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT 

In submitting this proposal, as herein described, the Contractor agrees that: 

1. They have carefully examined the specifications, terms and Agreement of
the Request for Proposal and all other provisions of this document and 
understand the meaning, intent, and requirement of it. 

2. They will enter into a written contract and furnish the item or items in the
time specified in conformance with the specifications and conditions contained 
therein for the price quoted by the proponent on this proposal. 

PREPARED BY 
(Print Name) 

DATE 

TITLE DATE 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

COMPANY 

ADDRESS PHONE 

NAME OF PARENT COMPANY PHONE 

ADDRESS 



ATTACHMENT L - COST PROPOSAL 

In order for the bid to be considered valid, this form must be completed in its 
entirety.  The cost for the Scope of Work as stated in the Request for Proposal 
documents shall be itemized as follows: 

Project Elements 
1. Review of existing conditions,

planning documents and prior studies
2. Identification of Infill Best Practices
3. Prepare & implement Detailed

Conmmunity Engagement Plan
4. Attendance at Meetings
5. Preparation of Strategic Vision Plan

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

TOTAL AMOUNT $ 

Additional Meeting Charge $  per meeting 

Additional Services Recommended (if 
any): 

$  / hour 

$  / hour 

$  / hour 

$  / hour 

$  / hour 

$  / hour 

$  / hour 

Firm Name 

Authorized signature__________________________________  Date______________ 



ATTACHMENT M - IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR 
CERTIFICATION FORM 

Pursuant to Michigan Law and the Iran Economic Sanction Act, 2012 PA 517 (“Act”), 
prior to the City accepting any bid or proposal, or entering into any contract for goods 
or services with any prospective Vendor, the Vendor must certify that it is not an “Iran 
Linked Business”, as defined by the Act. 

By completing this form, the Vendor certifies that it is not an “Iran Linked Business”, as 
defined by the Act and is in full compliance with all provisions of the Act and is legally 
eligible to submit a bid for consideration by the City. 

PREPARED BY 
(Print Name) 

DATE 

TITLE DATE 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

COMPANY 

ADDRESS PHONE 

NAME OF PARENT COMPANY PHONE 

ADDRESS 

TAXPAYER I.D.# 



14 

ATTACHMENT N - AGREEMENT FOR 
STRATEGIC VISION PLAN 

This AGREEMENT, made this _______day of ____________, 2020, by and 
between CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, having its principal municipal office at 151 Martin 
Street, Birmingham, MI (hereinafter sometimes called "City"), and _____________, 
Inc., having its principal office at _____________________ (hereinafter called 
"Contractor"), provides as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City has heretofore advertised for bids for the procurement 
and performance of services required to prepare a strategic vision plan, and 
in connection therewith has prepared a request for sealed proposals (“RFP”), which 
includes certain instructions to bidders, specifications, terms and conditions. 

WHEREAS, the Contractor has professional qualifications that meet the project 
requirements and has made a bid in accordance with such request for cost proposals 
to prepare a strategic vision plan for public property at Willits and N. Old Woodward. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the respective agreements and 
undertakings herein contained, the parties agree as follows: 
1. It is mutually agreed by and between the parties that the documents consisting of

the Request for Proposal to complete a strategic vision plan and the Contractor’s 
cost proposal dated _______________, 2020 shall be incorporated herein by 
reference and shall become a part of this Agreement, and shall be binding upon 
both parties hereto.  If any of the documents are in conflict with one another, 
this Agreement shall take precedence, then the RFP.  

2. The City shall pay the Contractor for the performance of this Agreement in an
amount not to exceed __________________, as set forth in the Contractor’s
____________, 2020 cost proposal.

3. This Agreement shall commence upon execution by both parties, unless the City
exercises its option to terminate the Agreement in accordance with the Request for
Proposals.

4. The Contractor shall employ personnel of good moral character and fitness in
performing all services under this Agreement.

5. The Contractor and the City agree that the Contractor is acting as an independent
contractor with respect to the Contractor's role in providing services to the City
pursuant to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own actions and
neither the Contractor nor its employees shall be construed as employees of the



15 

City.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to imply a joint 
venture or partnership and neither party, by virtue of this Agreement, shall have any 
right, power or authority to act or create any obligation, express or implied, on 
behalf of the other party, except as specifically outlined herein.  Neither the City nor 
the Contractor shall be considered or construed to be the agent of the other, nor 
shall either have the right to bind the other in any manner whatsoever, except as 
specifically provided in this Agreement, and this Agreement shall not be construed 
as a contract of agency.  The Contractor shall not be entitled or eligible to 
participate in any benefits or privileges given or extended by the City, or be deemed 
an employee of the City for purposes of federal or state withholding taxes, FICA 
taxes, unemployment, workers' compensation or any other employer contributions 
on behalf of the City. 

6. The Contractor acknowledges that in performing services pursuant to this
Agreement, certain confidential and/or proprietary information (including, but not
limited to, internal organization, methodology, personnel and financial information,
etc.) may become involved.  The Contractor recognizes that unauthorized exposure
of such confidential or proprietary information could irreparably damage the City.
Therefore, the Contractor agrees to use reasonable care to safeguard the
confidential and proprietary information and to prevent the unauthorized use or
disclosure thereof.  The Contractor shall inform its employees of the confidential or
proprietary nature of such information and shall limit access thereto to employees
rendering services pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor further agrees to
use such confidential or proprietary information only for the purpose of performing
services pursuant to this Agreement.  The Contractor agrees that it will require all
subcontractors to sign a Non-Disclosure Agreement satisfactory to the City Attorney.

7. This Agreement shall be governed by and performed, interpreted and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan.  The Contractor agrees to
perform all services provided for in this Agreement in accordance with and in full
compliance with all local, state and federal laws and regulations.

8. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such
provision shall be severed from this Agreement and all other provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.

9. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties
hereto, but no such assignment shall be made by the Contractor without the prior
written consent of the City.  Any attempt at assignment without prior written
consent shall be void and of no effect.

10. The Contractor agrees that neither it nor its subcontractors will discriminate against
any employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms,
conditions or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to



16 

employment because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight 
or marital status.  The Contractor shall inform the City of all claims or suits asserted 
against it by the Contractor’s employees who work pursuant to this Agreement.  The 
Contractor shall provide the City with periodic status reports concerning all such 
claims or suits, at intervals established by the City. 

11. The Contractor shall not commence work under this Agreement until it has, at its
sole expense, obtained the insurance required under this paragraph. All coverages
shall be with insurance companies licensed and admitted to do business in the State
of Michigan. All coverages shall be with carriers acceptable to the City of
Birmingham.

12. The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Agreement the types of
insurance coverage and minimum limits as set forth below:

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance: Contractor shall procure and maintain during 
the life of this Agreement, Workers' Compensation Insurance, including 
Employers Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the 
State of Michigan. 

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this Agreement, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual 
Liability; (B) Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractors 
Coverage; (D) Broad Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent; (E) 
Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and Underground (XCU) Exclusions, if 
applicable. 

C. Motor Vehicle Liability: Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of 
this Agreement Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including all applicable no-fault 
coverages, with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 
combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include 
all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles.  

D. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the 
following shall be Additional Insureds: The City of Birmingham, including all 
elected and appointed officials, all employee and volunteers, all boards, 
commissions and/or authorities and board members, including employees and 
volunteers thereof. This coverage shall be primary to any other coverage that 
may be available to the additional insured, whether any other available coverage 
by primary, contributing or excess. 



17 

E. Cancellation Notice: Workers' Compensation Insurance, Commercial General 
Liability Insurance and Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance (and Professional 
Liability Insurance, if applicable), as described above, shall include an 
endorsement stating the following: "Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of 
Cancellation or Non-Renewal, shall be sent to: Finance Director, City of 
Birmingham, PO Box 3001, 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 48012-3001.  

F. Proof of Insurance Coverage: Contractor shall provide the City of Birmingham, at 
the time the Agreement is returned for execution, Certificates of Insurance 
and/or policies, acceptable to the City of Birmingham, as listed below.  

1) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers'
Compensation Insurance;

2) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General
Liability Insurance;

3) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability
Insurance;

4) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Professional Liability
Insurance;

5) If so requested, Certified Copies of all policies mentioned above will
be furnished.

G. Coverage Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire during the term of this 
Agreement, Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the 
City of Birmingham at least (10) days prior to the expiration date.  

H. Maintaining Insurance: Upon failure of the Contractor to obtain or maintain such 
insurance coverage for the term of the Agreement, the City of Birmingham may, 
at its option, purchase such coverage and subtract the cost of obtaining such 
coverage from the Agreement amount. In obtaining such coverage, the City of 
Birmingham shall have no obligation to procure the most cost-effective coverage 
but may contract with any insurer for such coverage. 

13. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor and any entity or person
for whom the Contractor is legally liable, agrees to be responsible for any
liability, defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of
Birmingham, its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and
others working on behalf of the City of Birmingham against any and all claims,
demands, suits, or loss, including all costs and reasonable attorney fees
connected therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or
recovered against or from and the City of Birmingham, its elected and appointed
officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the City of
Birmingham, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death
and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is
in any way connected or associated with this Agreement. Such responsibility shall



18 

not be construed as liability for damage caused by or resulting from the sole act 
or omission of its elected or appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others 
working on behalf of the City of Birmingham. 

14. If, after the effective date of this Agreement, any official of the City, or spouse,
child, parent or in-law of such official or employee shall become directly or
indirectly interested in this Agreement or the affairs of the Contractor, the City
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without further liability to the
Contractor if the disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days
after the City has given the Contractor notice of the disqualifying interest.
Ownership of less than one percent (1%) of the stock or other equity interest in
a corporation or partnership shall not be a disqualifying interest.  Employment
shall be a disqualifying interest.

15. If Contractor fails to perform its obligations hereunder, the City may take any
and all remedial actions provided by the general specifications or otherwise
permitted by law.

16. All notices required to be sent pursuant to this Agreement shall be mailed to the
following addresses:

City of Birmingham 
 Attn: Jana L. Ecker  
151 Martin Street  
Birmingham, MI 48009 
248-530-1841 

CONTRACTOR 

17. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the
breach thereof, shall be settled either by commencement of a suit in Oakland
County Circuit Court, the 48th District Court or by arbitration. If both parties
elect to have the dispute resolved by arbitration, it shall be settled pursuant to
Chapter 50 of the Revised Judicature Act for the State of Michigan and
administered by the American Arbitration Association with one arbitrator being
used, or three arbitrators in the event any party’s claim exceeds $1,000,000.
Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an equal share of the
arbitrator’s and administrative fees of arbitration. Such arbitration shall qualify as
statutory arbitration pursuant to MCL§600.5001 et. seq., and the Oakland County
Circuit Court or any court having jurisdiction shall render judgment upon the
award of the arbitrator made pursuant to this Agreement. The laws of the State
of Michigan shall govern this Agreement, and the arbitration shall take place in
Oakland County, Michigan.   In the event that the parties elect not to have the
matter in dispute arbitrated, any dispute between the parties may be resolved by
the filing of a suit in the Oakland County Circuit Court or the 48th District Court.

18. FAIR PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITY:  Procurement for the City of Birmingham
will be handled in a manner providing fair opportunity for all businesses.  This



19 

will be accomplished without abrogation or sacrifice of quality and as determined 
to be in the best interest of the City of Birmingham. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties have caused this Agreement to be 
executed as of the date and year above written. 

WITNESSES: CONTRACTOR 

_______________________________ By:_____________________________ 

Its:  

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

_______________________________ By:_____________________________ 
Pierre Boutros  
Its:  Mayor 

_______________________________ By:_____________________________ 

Alexandria Bingham  
Its:  Acting City Clerk 

Approved: 

________________________________ 
Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 
(Approved as to substance) 

________________________________ 
Timothy J. Currier, City Attorney  
(Approved as to form) 

________________________________ 
Mark Gerber, Director of Finance 
(Approved as to financial obligation) 

________________________________ 
Joseph A. Valentine City Manager 
(Approved as to substance) 



EXCERPT FROM BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
MARCH 10, 2014 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 7:30 P.M 
 

03-58-14 FORMATION OF AN AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE  
City Engineer O’Meara explained that the proposed ad hoc committee would study the possible 
expansion of the Pierce Street Parking Structure and the future parking needs for the Central 
Business District and Triangle District. He noted that the committee would consist of five 
members of existing City boards.  
 
Ms. Ecker confirmed for the Commission that the Planning Board action list includes parking 
requirements. The Commission discussed the monthly permits at the parking structures.  
Commissioner Rinschler suggested the Committee focus on the Central Business District.  
 
City Engineer O’Meara confirmed for Commission Hoff that staff representatives will be 
attending the Ad Hoc Committee meetings.  
 
Commissioner Nickita encouraged the members of the Ad Hoc Committee to consider “out of 
the box” alternatives such as enhancing street parking or a shuttle service.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Hoff, seconded by McDaniel:  
To accept the recommendation of the Advisory Parking Committee, authorizing the formation of 
an Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee that will be formed for a limited time to update the parking 
demand study done in 2000 for the Parking Assessment District, as well as the 2007 parking 
study completed as a part of the Triangle District Master Plan. The goal of the Committee will 
be to determine the long term demand levels for parking throughout the Central Business 
District and Triangle District, and to provide recommendations of how to best use the Auto 
Parking System’s properties at this time, as well as to establish targeted needs for the Triangle 
District. The Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee shall include the following members, with each of 
the suggested boards nominating their representative accordingly: 

• Advisory Parking Committee  
• Corridor Improvement Authority  
• Multi-Modal Transportation Board  
• Planning Board  
• Principal Shopping District 

 
The Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee shall be formed as soon as practical, with the goal of 
finalizing a report of findings and recommendations by July, 2014.  
VOTE: Yeas, 6  
Nays, None  
Absent, 1 (Moore) 



BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
MARCH 16, 2015 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
03-47-15 AD HOC PARKING STUDY COMMITTEE FINAL REPORT AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
City Engineer O’Meara explained that in 2013 the City noticed that parking demand was 
exceeding capacity in all five of the structures. The Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee was 
formed to study the current and future parking environments for the Central Business District 
and the Triangle District and to make recommendations for future parking improvements if 
needed. He discussed the seasonal parking trends of the parking structures and the short and 
long term parking development projections. The Commission commended the Committee on its 
work.  
 
Commissioner Nickita stated that one of the issues is to recognize the existing conditions and 
align them with the overall master plan goals.  
 
Mayor Sherman noted that the recommendation is to create a second committee to develop an 
implementation strategy.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hoff noted that the motion does not mention the Pierce Street area. Mr. 
O’Meara explained that staff felt that, in order to move forward, the North Old Woodward 
property has the most opportunity for further discussion. The Pierce Street Structure only 
involves whether or not two floors are added. He explained that the first resolution includes a 
review of the entire Central Business District which would include the Pierce Street Structure.  
 
Mr. Valentine confirmed for Commissioner Nickita that a formal resolution will be brought to the 
Commission with the specific criteria establishing the steering committee and their specific 
charge.  
 
Mayor Sherman suggested the committee be comprised of only two Commissioners and one 
resident who is not involved in any other board with a background in finance and an interest in 
the downtown.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Rinschler, seconded by Nickita:  
To accept the findings of the Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee estimating that a 
deficit of 278 parking spaces is expected in the long term for the north portion of 
the Central Business District, and a deficit of 427 parking spaces is expected in the 
long term for the south portion of the Central Business District, and directing staff 
to have a full topographic and boundary survey of the existing conditions of the N. 
Old Woodward Ave. property prepared to assist with all future plan preparation, and 



further, to direct staff to provide for the creation of an ad hoc steering committee 
to:  

1. Consider the parking system’s overall parking demands and prioritize the 
projects to finalize the Parking System’s expansion plan for the Central 
Business District.  
2. Determine the parameters of an expansion at the N. Old Woodward Ave. 
Parking Structure site that will provide an appropriate number of parking 
spaces, an extension of Bates St., provide additional development 
opportunities and provide interaction with the adjacent City park land to the 
north in accordance with the Downtown Birmingham 2016 report and the 
Rouge River Trail Corridor Master Plans. 

 
VOTE: Yeas, 6  

Nays, None  
Absent, 1 (Dilgard)  

 
MOTION: Motion by Nickita, seconded by McDaniel:  
To accept the findings of the Ad Hoc Parking Study Committee that a parking facility 
of approximately 400 parking spaces in the long term is recommended to serve the 
north portion of the Triangle District, and a parking facility of approximately 600 to 
700 parking spaces in the long term is recommended to serve the south portion of 
the Triangle District, and directing staff to pursue opportunities in the district for 
consideration, and further endorsing the recommendation that the parking 
assessment district for the Triangle District, once created, be extended north of 
Maple Rd. to include all commercial properties from Woodward Ave. to Adams Rd.  
 
VOTE: Yeas, 6  

Nays, None 
Absent, 1 (Dilgard) 

 



BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES  
AUGUST 10, 2015  

 
08-179-15 DOWNTOWN PARKING SYSTEM EXPANSION PROJECTS PARKING 
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANT SERVICES RFP  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hoff stated that this is an important issue that will affect many people and 
requested the City Engineer to provide an update.  
 
City Engineer O’Meara explained that the Request for Proposal has been written and the City 
will be looking for architects to team up with an urban design professional and a parking 
consultant to meet with the Parking Development Committee three times and the City 
Commission to create massing studies with four options to explore regarding two parking sites, 
North Old Woodward and Pierce, which could be expanded upon or potentially demolished and 
completely replaced. He noted that these would be conceptual plans.  
 
Commissioner Nickita explained this involves urban design issues, architectural issues, costs, 
incorporating a developer of some sort, and land control. This RFP is to get as much of the 
envelope of the issues clear in order to make a solid decision to move forward.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Hoff, seconded by Nickita:  
To endorse the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Downtown Parking System 
Expansion Projects Parking Development Consultant Services to work with the Ad 
Hoc Parking Development Committee (AHPDC), and directing City staff to solicit 
proposals at this time.  
 
VOTE: Yeas, 6  

Nays, None  
Absent, 1 (McDaniel) 



BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES  
OCTOBER 26, 2015  

 

10-249-15 DOWNTOWN PARKING SYSTEM EXPANSION PROJECTS PARKING 
DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANT SERVICES  

City Engineer O’Meara explained that the Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee has 
recommended that a consultant team be hired consisting of an architect, an urban design 
professional, and a parking consultant to work with the Committee in regards to the Pierce 
Street and North Old Woodward parking structure sites in visioning, studies, and cost 
estimating. He noted that an RFP was issued and three firms submitted proposals. The Albert 
Kahn team and Victor Saroki team were interviewed.  

Commissioner McDaniel commented that the Committee worked hard to come to a conclusion. 
Based on his experience on the Shain Park Ad Hoc Committee, the Albert Kahn group was hired 
to do the design work and it did not go well. He stated that Albert Kahn was the higher of the 
two bidders by $12,000, given how close the point scores were, the past experience with Albert 
Kahn, and Saroki’s knowledge of the community, he suggested that Saroki is the way to go.  

Commissioner Rinschler expressed support of Commissioner McDaniel’s comments. He 
commented that with a large firm, a small project becomes cumbersome. The parking issue is a 
big issue for Birmingham, but it is a relatively small project from an architectural view. He noted 
that Albert Kahn is a great firm to hire if there is a fairly large undertaking.  

Mayor Pro Tem Hoff stated that she is a member of the Committee. The Committee worked 
hard and reviewed the proposals, samples and presentations. It was a difficult decision. She 
commented that when a Committee makes a decision and has a hard time doing it, it is not a 
good practice for the Commission to not listen.  

Commissioner Dilgard commented that he was also on the Shain Park Committee. He gave an 
example on the Shain Park lighting plan and noted the lighting had to be retrofit with something 
that fit the community. He noted that the City would be well served with the Saroki firm.  

Commissioner Nickita explained the process of the Committee and noted that it spent a lot of 
time on this decision.  

MOTION: Motion by Hoff, seconded by Nickita:  

To approve the agreement with Albert Kahn Associates, Inc., for the Downtown 
Parking System Expansion Projects Parking Development Consultant Services in the 
amount not to exceed $67,860, charged to account number 585-538.001- 981.0100, 
Parking System General Capital Improvements Account. Further, to approve the 
appropriation and budget amendment as follows:  

 



Auto Parking System Fund  

Revenues:  

Draw from Fund Balance  #585-000.000-400.0000    $67,860  
Total Revenue Adjustments       $67,860  

Expenditures:  

Major Street Public Improvements #585-538.001-981.0100  $67,860  
Total Expenditure Adjustments       $67,860 

 

Mayor Sherman noted that he will not support the motion. He stated that the City would be 
remiss if it did not use the experiences of the Commissioners. With the points being so close, 
experience comes into play and should be relied on.  

Commissioner Moore noted that he will not support the motion. He stated that he would like to 
take advantage of utilizing an applicant with a tremendous amount of institutional history, 
understanding of Birmingham, its architecture, issues, history and has been a part of it such as 
the Saroki firm. With the points so close, he would like to utilize the kind of expertise and 
cultural understanding that Saroki would bring to this project.  
 
Commissioner Nickita stated that he will support the motion. The Committee worked hard on 
this. The decision was so close either team could do a credible job.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hoff agreed that either contractor could do a good job. She expressed support 
of the Committee’s decision.  
 
VOTE: Yeas, 2 (Hoff, Nickita)  

Nays, 5 (Dilgard, McDaniel, Moore, Rinschler, Sherman)  
Absent, None  

 
MOTION: Motion by McDaniel, seconded by Rinschler:  
To approve the contract subject to an agreement being reached with Victor Saroki 
and Associates for the Downtown Parking System Expansion Projects Parking 
Development Consultant Services in an amount not to exceed $55,000 and to 
approve the appropriation and budget amendment.  
 
VOTE: Yeas, 6  

Nays, 1 (Hoff)  
Absent, None 



EXCERPT 
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 

MARCH 13, 2017 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 

7:30 P.M. 
 
03-63-17  REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR N. OLD 

 WOODWARD/BATES STREET PARKING & SITE DEVELOPMENT 
City Planner Ecker has been looking at the parking situation in downtown Birmingham for ways  
to address it.  She described the process to date, changes in parking demands and determining  
future needs. The City Commission established an Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee in 
2015, and they were charged with developing an implementation strategy for addressing future 
parking demands, looking at costs, capacity, needs, impacts, master planning concepts, 
timelines, etc.  The committee has been meeting for the past two years and studying exactly 
what the parking situation is downtown.  A previous committee talked about the Pierce street 
structure versus the North Old Woodard structure as well.  The committee recommended that 
we move forward with the North Old Woodward deck improvements first. The Ad Hoc Parking 
Development Committee also agrees, and the committee has spent the last two years studying 
what the parking demands are, and how many spaces we need to add.  When looking at the 
way office space is changing, everybody is spread out in an open format which creates space 
for more people.  It seems like the new form of office space is creating more demand.  The 
committee determined what would be needed in terms of adding more parking to that north 
end of the district.  They determined a number and started looking as to how they could re-
develop the North Old Woodward structure by, either tearing it down, expanding it, adding on 
levels, etc. The committee considered what can be done to add more parking to that area while 
keeping in mind the Downtown Birmingham 2016 Plan that calls for Bates Street to be extended 
from Willits to North Old Woodward.  We have a Parks plan that shows a trail connection across 
the river to Booth Park.   The committee recommended in January that the Commission 
consider issuing a Request for Qualifications.  This would make it a two stage process.  First, we 
would issue a RFQ.  We would pick those that we think are qualified and they would move to 
the second stage, which would be a Request for Proposals. Only those qualified would be 
invited to submit a proposal under the RFP.  The Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee also 
asked that we send this RFQ out to a real estate consulting firm. Ms. Ecker explained that there 
is a letter from Jones Lang LaSalle (JLL). JLL reviewed it and thought it was well done, and 
suggested that we move forward quickly with this, given the cyclical economy. They also 
indicated they have a potential list of developers available to the City, if needed.  
 
Mayor Nickita explained that we are simply asking for developers to submit something to get a 
sense of whether or not they fall in line with something that would be applicable. He said there 
are a number of iterations to go yet. 
 
Commissioner Boutros asked about time frames for responses.  Planning Director Ecker said the 
deadline for the first phase is April 14, 2017. Deadlines for the second phase have yet to be 
determined.  
 
Commissioner DeWeese pointed out that because it is a Request for Qualifications this  
is about finding the person or persons to produce something we will find useful. 

1  March 13, 2017 

 



 
Victor Saroki of Saroki & Associates said it was apparent that the North Old Woodward deck has 
the best potential.  He said it yields the maximum amount of parking and created a new street 
as well as more development potential for the area.  He worked with Carl Walker, parking 
consultants in Kalamazoo, on the deck designs and the calculations and proposals.  He 
explained the structure is five levels and has about 572 spaces. The surface lot has 173 spaces, 
for a total of 745 spaces.  He described the two schemes, their features and differences.   
 
Discussion followed about the increase in the number of parking spaces.  Mr. Saroki said the 
target numbers proposed were exceeded.   
 
Commissioner Boutros asked if we put two buildings together, would they yield 2,000 spaces.   
Mr. Saroki believes the existing structure is not designed for additional floors on top.  If a new 
structure is built, some of the surface parking is lost.  The new total combined would be 1,088, 
which is less than a new deck.  
 
Commissioner DeWeese suggested we need to remove at least the north section of the old 
garage to make Bates wide enough for sidewalks.  If the garage is kept the way it is now, full 
utilization of Bates would not be possible and not be pedestrian friendly.  He expressed concern 
about how the upper floors of the parking deck would look, and would like that look diminished.  
Mr. Saroki agreed, and said that would be the challenge of the architects and developers 
working on the project.   
 
Commissioner Hoff thought the designs were excellent, and is happy to see an RFQ as a first 
step.  She thinks it is a better way to move forward.  She expressed concern about whether two 
weeks is sufficient time for firms to submit a response to a RFQ.  Mr. Saroki agreed with 
Commissioner Hoff, because it will be a team that will need to be assembled to submit a 
thoughtful proposal, so more time for development is important. 
 
Commissioner Hoff said this project has many challenges, including financing and use of the 
public property.  She feels a group has to come together that is familiar with public/private 
partnerships as well as building and design, and that process may require more time.  She 
suggested using the list that Jones LaSalle provided.   
 
Mr. Saroki suggested the site visit be scheduled three weeks from now.  Mayor Nickita agreed 
that extra time does not have an impact on us.   
 
Planning Director Ecker suggested mid-April for the mandatory meeting, and mid-May for 
qualifications to come back, give or take a month.   
 
MOTION: Motion by Boutros, seconded by Hoff: 
To direct staff to issue the Request for Qualifications for the N. Old Woodward/Bates Street 
Parking and Site Development through the MITN system to solicit qualified firms interested in 
pursuing the development of this area.   
 
Commissioner Hoff would like to amend the motion to include the MITN system, as well as 
other developers locally, regionally, and nationally.   
 
Commissioner Bordman said this is a significant project with many parts.  The group that is 
going to review the responses should include the Parks and Recreation Board, since this RFQ 

2  March 13, 2017 

 



involves Booth Park and the bridge connecting the park and the trail system.  The RFQ needs 
the expertise of the Parks and Recreation Board represented in the review of the RFQ.   
 
Mayor Nickita agreed and said having some additional insight from the Board is a valid point.  It 
was agreed that the Parks and Recreation Board could be incorporated into the RFQ review.   
 
VOTE:  Yeas,    7 
  Nays,    None 
  Absent, None 
  

3  March 13, 2017 

 



EXCERPT 
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 11, 2017 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 

7:30 P.M. 
 
09-249-17 NORTH OLD WOODWARD / BATES STREET PARKING AND SITE 
DEVELOPMENT – REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
From City Planner Ecker’s staff report to City Manager Valentine dated September 6, 2017: 

On March 16, 2017 the City issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) seeking qualified 
developers interested in the N. Old Woodward Parking / Bates Street Extension project. 
 
The City received submittals from four development teams. All were reviewed by City 
staff and all four met the qualifications contained in the RFQ. Accordingly, the City 
Attorney reviewed the financial documentation to determine if all were financially 
qualified. 
 
On July 26, 2017, the Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee adopted a motion finding 
that all four of the development teams that submitted their qualifications were in fact 
qualified to proceed to the next phase. The Committee directed staff to prepare a draft 
Request for Proposals (RFP) for their review at a future meeting. 
 
On September 6, 2017, the Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee reviewed the draft 
RFP. The Ad Hoc Committee requested some changes to clarify the City’s intentions, 
draw attention to the public plaza requirements, reference the Alleys & Passages Plan and 
highlight the desire for a public parking structure that can be repurposed for other uses. 
The Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee voted unanimously to recommend approval of 
the RFP to the City Commission. 

 
Commissioner Bordman was concerned that: 

• The plan did not include parking accommodations for construction site workers. 
• The turn-around time between the release of the RFP and the proposal due date of 

January 3, 2018 is too short and may lead to rushed proposals. 
 

City Planner Ecker explained that parking arrangements for construction site workers are 
generally handled during pre-construction meetings with the developer and city staff, and that 
all four pre-qualified candidates stated before the Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee they 
would only need 90 days to create and submit their proposals.  
 
Commissioner Hoff provided a brief overview of the Ad Hoc Parking Development Committee: 

• It was formed about two years ago to look at the parking situation in Birmingham.  
• The Committee includes a financial representative, a developer representative, members 

of the advisory parking committee, members of the City Commission, and members of 
the Planning Board. 

• Victor Saroki’s firm was hired to come up with a concept plan focusing on the N. Old 
Woodward parking structure and the surrounding area.  Based on the firm’s proposal, 
this is a development project, not just a parking project. The proposal includes: 

4  March 13, 2017 

 



o Demolishing the N. Old Woodward structure and replacing it with a larger one; 
o Developing the surrounding area with business and residential projects; and 
o Continuing Bates north to emerge on Old Woodward. 

• Commissioner Hoff and Mayor Nickita are both on the Committee.  
• The four pre-qualified teams have a multitude of disciplines represented.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Harris asked whether the sale of public land, which under the City Charter 
requires a public vote, needs to be incorporated in the timeline for the bidders.   
 
City Planner Ecker confirmed that it is included under Item E – Submission Requirements and 
Guidelines, on page twelve. A written outline of the terms the development team proposes is 
required, and the terms include purchase and/or lease of land. 
 
Commissioner DeWeese clarified that should there be a lease of public land, and not a sale, that 
only the Commission’s approval is required. City Manager Valentine confirmed. City Planner 
Ecker specified that such leases have been done previously, albeit with smaller parcels.  
 
Mayor Nickita explained that the land lease or sale would include the retail liner of the parking 
deck and the development parcels: one residential, one mixed use. The City would retain 
ownership of the land beneath the parking deck, the street, the sidewalk, the infrastructure, the 
right of way, the public park or space that goes down to the river and the connection to Booth 
Park.   
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Boutros: 
To direct staff to issue the Request for Proposals for the solicitation of qualified development 
teams to plan and construct the North Old Woodward / Bates Street Parking and Site 
Development with the changes noted. 
 
VOTE: Yeas, 7 
 Nays, 0 
 Absent, 0 
 

5  March 13, 2017 

 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Office of the City Manager 

DATE: July 1, 2020 

TO: City Commission 

FROM: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Potential Park Bond Opportunity 

INTRODUCTION: 

Every five to six years, the City’s Parks and Recreation Master Plan is updated to reflect a 
vision for the City’s parks and recreation facilities: their operations, maintenance, and 
enhancements for the next several years.  This plan also forms the basis for potential recreation 
grant funding from the Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) and other agencies 
and foundations.  In addition, municipal funding options are explored, as applicable, to achieve 
the desired improvements.  One such option is the potential for a Parks and Recreation Bond as 
the last bond issuance for park improvements occurred in 2008.  With current bond debt expiring 
in fiscal years 2021 and 2024, there is an opportunity to replace this retiring debt with new debt 
service, which would be less than the debt being retired, and achieve the goals of the Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan, if desired.   

BACKGROUND: 

The last Parks and Recreation Bond was authorized in 2001 and issued in two series; one 
in 2002 in the amount $16,122.688 and another in 2008 in the amount of $4,014,789.  Since 
2002, updates to the Parks and Recreation Master Plan occurred in 2006, 2011 and 2018.  In 
November of 2019, a priority list was presented to the City Commission in follow-up to the most 
recently adopted plan.  In January of 2020 at the City’s Long Range Planning meeting, the 
opportunity for a potential Parks and Recreation Bond was presented as an option for funding 
future parking improvements.  With the onset of COVID-19 this spring, this discussion was tabled 
as the City assessed the economic and operational challenges that were presented in this new 
environment.  At the regular meeting of June 22, 2020, the Commission requested this item be 
brought back for consideration given the opportunity for a November ballot question was 
approaching. 

The filing deadlines for county and local proposals are governed by the State of Michigan 
Secretary of State and a copy of their 2020 Michigan elections dates’ summary is attached.  Ballot 
wording of county or local proposals to be presented at the November general election (November 
3, 2020) must be certified to the County Clerk by 4:00pm on August 11, 2020.  With this 
prerequisite, bond counsel has advised the regular meeting of July 20, 2020 would be the optimal 
meeting to approve ballot language to be placed on the November ballot, should the Commission 
elect to do so.   

6D



2 
 
 

 In anticipation of a local ballot proposal moving forward by the City Commission, draft 
Ballot language has been prepared by bond counsel.  This language is below. 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION BOND PROPOSAL 
 

Shall the City of Birmingham, Oakland County, Michigan, borrow the 
principal sum of not to exceed Eleven Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($11,250,000), and issue its unlimited tax general obligation bonds in one or more 
series, payable over a period not to exceed twenty-one (21) years from the date 
of issuance, to be used by the City for the purpose of paying all or part of the cost 
of acquiring, constructing, furnishing, equipping and renovating parks and 
recreation improvements, including parks, playgrounds and trail system 
improvements and renovations to the Birmingham Sports Ice Arena, including all 
appurtenances and attachments? The estimated millage to be levied in 2021 is 
0.0485 mills ($0.05 per $1,000 of taxable value) and the estimated simple average 
annual millage rate required to retire the bonds is 0.2064 mills ($0.21 per $1,000 
of taxable value).  

 
YES   
NO  

  
 The bonding about of $11,250,000 was derived from the priority list presented in 
November of 2019, which was in the amount of 12,195,000.  In the current fiscal year 2020-2021 
budget, funds have been budgeted in the amount of $2 million to address the needed replacement 
of mechanical equipment at the City’s ice arena.  This reduced the original priority list amount to 
$10,195,000.  This amount did not include bonding costs or allow for any inflationary impacts 
given the timeframe from development of the budget estimates to implementation.  The proposed 
amount of $11,250,000 takes into account bonding costs and inflation and is a not to exceed 
amount.  The intention would be to continue to issue bonds in two series or phases so a planned 
group of projects could be completed before additional bonds were needed to be issued for the 
remaining elements.  The first series could be issued in 2021 when current debt service would be 
retiring and again in 2024 when exist debt service would again be retired.  The retirements of 
existing debt service would be more than the debt service added for a Parks and Recreation Bond 
in the amount of $11,250,000. 
 
 Funding for the first series of bonds would address projects and programs that already 
have concept plans prepared and could be moved forward to implementation rather quickly.  This 
would be in the amount of $4,750,000. The remaining projects would require further work to 
either develop or finalize concept plans and this could be initiated during the first phase.  Then 
for the second phase, projects would be ready for implementation beginning in 2024 when the 
next series of bonds were issued.  This would be in the amount of $6.5 million. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 The opportunity for a Parks and Recreation Bond would be in a not to exceed amount 
established by the ballot language approved by the Commission.  In addition to bond funding, 
other funding opportunities can be explored such as possible state and federal grants, 
crowdfunding initiatives and private contributions.   
 



3 
 
 

 Presuming the full amount is bonded, the impact on the City’s overall debt service would 
be minimal.  Public Act 279 of 1909 sets a debt limit of 10% of the total assessed valuation of 
both real and personal property.  Currently, the City’s debt limit is $344,532,318.  The City’s 
outstanding debt limit as of June 20, 2020 was $9,539,280 or 3% of its debt limit.  Assuming an 
$11,250,000 Parks and Recreation Bond broken into two bond series of approximately $4,750,000 
in 2021 and $6.5 million in 2024 with a 21 year debt service, the average fiscal year millage 
requirement would be .2064 mills.  The impact on the City’s overall debt levy is outlined below. 
 
 

 2020-21 
Required 
Millage 

2021-22 
Required 
Millage 

2022-23 
Required 
Millage 

2023-24 
Required 
Millage 

2024-25 
Required 
Millage 

Existing City 
Debt Levy 

1.0099 .5448 .5140 .5507 .1156 

1st Bond Series 0 .0485 .0476 .0467 .0975 
2nd Bond Series 0 0 0 0 .0740 
Total 1.0099 .5973 .5616 .5974 .2871 
 
 As noted above the existing City debt levy would reduce in 2021 with existing sewer bonds 
being paid off and reduce again in 2024 with the first Parks and Recreation Bond being paid off.  
The average annual impact to the taxpayer with a taxable value of $250,000 is $51.60 (based on 
an average required mill levy of .2064) over a 21 year debt service for the bonds. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
 

Staff have been working with the City’s bond counsel, Miller Canfield, in the preparation 
of the draft bond language.  Bond counsel has also been involved in the development of the bond 
schedules in conjunction with our municipal finance advisors, Bendzinski & Co.  Copies of the 
draft ballot language and bond schedules are attached.   
 
PUBLIC COMMUNCATIONS 
 
 To assist in a public information campaign of a potential Parks and Recreation Bond 
proposal, staff has obtained a proposal from our current contracted communications firm, Van 
Dyke*Horn, to assist with educating the community about the ballot question, if desired.  Van 
Dyke*Horn has worked in close partnership with organizations and coalitions to deliver integrated 
and impactful communications campaigns in support of public policy and ballot initiatives.  A copy 
of their proposal is attached for review.   
 
 Should the Commission wish to engage Van Dyke*Horn, they have proposed a project fee 
of $30,000 to cover the 17-18 week campaign, excluding significant out-of-pocket expenses and 
production costs which are outlined in their proposal.  These expenses could be reimbursable 
under the bond, if it was decided to apply them in this manner. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
 This information has been provided in order to assess if there is a desire to move forward 
with a Parks and Recreation Bond at this time.  The work by the Parks and Recreation Board in 
the development of the Parks and Recreation Master Plan and related priority list carry forward 
the interest of the community for respective park enhancements.  Bonding for these 



4 
 
 

enhancements at this time would take advantage of the City’s AAA bond rating, large debt 
capacity, upcoming diminishing debt service, the appeal for municipal bonds in the market and 
allows for improvements to occur in the near term.  For a November 2020 ballot question, timing 
is essential if the decision is made to proceed.  Additionally, the economic environment resulting 
from COVID-19 may be a consideration as well.   
 
 In order to determine if there is a desire to move forward with a ballot question for a 
Parks and Recreation Bond for this November, it is recommended to set the date of July 20, 2020 
for further discussion and any action to be taken on this effort for this year. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

• Original Parks & Recreation Priority List 
• Revised Parks & Recreation Priority List 
• Schedule of Debt Service and Millage Requirements 
• Draft Bond Resolution 
• 2020 Michigan Election Dates Summary 
• Communication program proposal  

 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 

To set the date of July 20, 2020 to consider approval of a local ballot proposal to be 
presented at the November general election for a parks and recreation bond in support of 
the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 



Attachment A

Phase I  Cost Estimate 

Adams Park Development  $                     700,000 

Booth Park Phase III 

Entry plaza with gardens and seating  $                     300,000 
Ice Arena

New Refrigeration System

Locker Room Expansion  $                  5,100,000 

Springdale Park Playground  $                     350,000 

Crestview Playground  $                     250,000 

Howarth Playground  $                     150,000 

Pickleball  $                     150,000 

Trail Improvements

New Trail Entry/Plazas, Accessible material upgrades,  stream bank 

preservation  $                     300,000 

Total Phase I  $                 7,300,000 

Phase II  Cost Estimate 

Lincoln Well & Pumphouse Park Playground  $                     350,000 

Linden Park Playground  $                     150,000 

Pembroke Playground/Shelter  $                     400,000 

St. James Playground  $                     300,000 

Splash Pad  $                     500,000 
Poppleton Park New Inclusive Playground Area including drainage 

improvements  $                  1,020,000 

Kenning Park

Playground, Fields 1 & 4, New Walking Path  $                  1,200,000 

Springdale Golf Course- new irrigation and cart paths  $                     525,000 

Trail Improvements

Connect Willits to Maple at Museum- New stone steps, accessible 

crushed limestone path, river overlook, benches, retaining walls 

and plant material  $                     450,000 

Total Phase II  $                 4,895,000 

TOTAL:  $               12,195,000 

Recommended Parks & Recreation Bond Priority List

Recommended Parks Rec Bond Priority List updated 10232019



Recommended by the Parks and Recreation Board- November 12, 2019 Parks and Recreation Board Meeting
Reviewed by City Commission at the January 25, 2020 Long Range Plan Meeting

Schedule I  Cost Estimate 
Adams Park Development  $                   700,000 
Booth Park Corner Feature  $                   300,000 
Ice Arena Building Improvements  $                3,100,000 
Pickleball Court  $                   150,000 
Rouge River Trail Corridor Improvements  $                   300,000 
Total Schedule I  $               4,750,000 

Schedule II  Cost Estimate 
Lincoln Well & Pumphouse Park- Inclusive Playgrounds  $                   350,000 
Linden Park Inclusive Playground  $                   150,000 
Pembroke Park Inclusive Playground/Shelter  $                   400,000 
St. James Park Inclusive Playground  $                   300,000 
Springdale Park Inclusive Playground  $                   350,000 
Crestview Park Inclusive Playground  $                   250,000 
Howarth Park Inclusive Playground  $                   150,000 
Splash Pad  $                   500,000 

Poppleton Park Inclusive Playground and Drainage Improvements  $                1,020,000 
Kenning Park Inclusive Playground and Field Improvements  $                1,200,000 
Springdale Golf Course Irrigation Improvements  $                   525,000 
Rouge River Trail Corridor Improvements  $                   450,000 
Total Schedule II  $               6,500,000 

TOTAL:  $             11,250,000 

Includes Bond Issuance Costs and Inflation

Recommended Parks & Recreation Bond Priority List



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

COUNTY OF OAKLAND, STATE OF MICHIGAN

UNLIMITED TAX GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021 AND SERIES 2024

SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE AND MILLAGE  REQUIREMENTS

2021 & 2024 TOTAL
Total Total Total Total Total

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Interest Principal Principal Interest Interest Principal Principal Interest Interest Principal Principal Taxable July 1 Principal Taxable July 1

Beginning Due Interest Due Due & Interest Due Interest Due Due & Interest Due Interest Due Due & Interest & Interest Value Millage & Interest Value Millage

July 1 October 1 Rate October 1 April 1 NEXT Requirements October 1 Rate October 1 April 1 NEXT Requirements October 1 Rate October 1 April 1 NEXT Requirements Requirements in 1,000 Requirement Requirements in 1,000 Requirement

2019 -$            0.000% -$         114,550$     114,550$     -$            2.750% -$         -$                 -$             -$          3.250% -$         -$                 -$             $0 $2,497,255 1 0.0000 $114,550 $2,497,255 1 0.0459

2020 2,460,000    2.000% 114,550   89,950         2,664,500    -              2.750% -           -                   -               -            3.250% -           -                   -               0 2,638,284 1 0.0000 2,664,500 2,638,284 1 1.0099

2021 1,310,000    2.000% 89,950     76,850         1,476,800    -              2.750% 65,313     65,313             130,625       -            3.250% -           -                   -               130,625 2,691,050 0.0485 1,607,425 2,691,050 0.5973

2022 1,270,000    2.000% 76,850     64,150         1,411,000    -              2.750% 65,313     65,313             130,625       -            3.250% -           -                   -               130,625 2,744,871 0.0476 1,541,625 2,744,871 0.5616

2023 1,450,000    5.000% 64,150     27,900         1,542,050    -              2.750% 65,313     65,313             130,625       -            3.250% -           -                   -               130,625 2,799,768 0.0467 1,672,675 2,799,768 0.5974

2024 280,000       4.000% 27,900     22,300         330,200       150,000      2.750% 65,313     63,250             278,563       -            3.250% 105,625    105,625           211,250       489,813 2,855,764 0.1715 820,013 2,855,764 0.2871

2025 280,000       4.000% 22,300     16,700         319,000       150,000      2.750% 63,250     61,188             274,438       -            3.250% 105,625    105,625           211,250       485,688 2,912,879 0.1667 804,688 2,912,879 0.2763

2026 280,000       4.000% 16,700     11,100         307,800       150,000      2.750% 61,188     59,125             270,313       70,000      3.250% 105,625    104,488           280,113       550,425 2,971,137 0.1853 858,225 2,971,137 0.2889

2027 280,000       4.000% 11,100     5,500           296,600       175,000      2.750% 59,125     56,719             290,844       80,000      3.250% 104,488    103,188           287,675       578,519 3,030,559 0.1909 875,119 3,030,559 0.2888

2028 275,000       4.000% 5,500       -               280,500       175,000      2.750% 56,719     54,313             286,031       100,000    3.250% 103,188    101,563           304,750       590,781 3,091,171 0.1911 871,281 3,091,171 0.2819

2029 -              0.000% -           -               -               200,000      2.750% 54,313     51,563             305,875       390,000    3.250% 101,563    95,225             586,788       892,663 3,152,994 0.2831 892,663 3,152,994 0.2831

2030 -              0.000% -           -               -               245,000      2.750% 51,563     48,194             344,756       400,000    3.250% 95,225      88,725             583,950       928,706 3,216,054 0.2888 928,706 3,216,054 0.2888

2031 -              0.000% -           -               -               250,000      2.750% 48,194     44,756             342,950       420,000    3.250% 88,725      81,900             590,625       933,575 3,280,375 0.2846 933,575 3,280,375 0.2846

2032 -              0.000% -           -               -               260,000      2.750% 44,756     41,181             345,938       435,000    3.250% 81,900      74,831             591,731       937,669 3,345,982 0.2802 937,669 3,345,982 0.2802

2033 -              0.000% -           -               -               265,000      2.750% 41,181     37,538             343,719       450,000    3.250% 74,831      67,519             592,350       936,069 3,412,902 0.2743 936,069 3,412,902 0.2743

2034 -              0.000% -           -               -               270,000      2.750% 37,538     33,825             341,363       465,000    3.250% 67,519      59,963             592,481       933,844 3,481,160 0.2683 933,844 3,481,160 0.2683

2035 -              0.000% -           -               -               300,000      2.750% 33,825     29,700             363,525       480,000    3.250% 59,963      52,163             592,125       955,650 3,550,783 0.2691 955,650 3,550,783 0.2691

2036 -              0.000% -           -               -               330,000      2.750% 29,700     25,163             384,863       495,000    3.250% 52,163      44,119             591,281       976,144 3,621,799 0.2695 976,144 3,621,799 0.2695

2037 -              0.000% -           -               -               340,000      2.750% 25,163     20,488             385,650       510,000    3.250% 44,119      35,831             589,950       975,600 3,694,235 0.2641 975,600 3,694,235 0.2641

2038 -              0.000% -           -               -               360,000      2.750% 20,488     15,538             396,025       525,000    3.250% 35,831      27,300             588,131       984,156 3,768,120 0.2612 984,156 3,768,120 0.2612

2039 -              0.000% -           -               -               365,000      2.750% 15,538     10,519             391,056       545,000    3.250% 27,300      18,444             590,744       981,800 3,843,482 0.2554 981,800 3,843,482 0.2554

2040 -              0.000% -           -               -               375,000      2.750% 10,519     5,363               390,881       560,000    3.250% 18,444      9,344               587,788       978,669 3,920,352 0.2496 978,669 3,920,352 0.2496

2041 -              0.000% -           -               -               390,000      2.750% 5,363       -                   395,363       575,000    3.250% 9,344        -                   584,344       979,706 3,998,759 0.2450 979,706 3,998,759 0.2450
7,885,000$  429,000$ 429,000$     8,743,000$  4,750,000$ 919,669$ 854,356$         6,524,025$  $6,500,000 $1,281,475 $1,175,850 $8,957,325 $15,481,350 0.2064 * $24,224,350 0.3492

* Average
1 Actual taxable value

Bonds Dated: 10/01/2019 Bonds Dated: 04/01/2021 Bonds Dated: 04/01/2024

First Interest Payment: 04/01/2020 First Interest Payment: 10/01/2021 First Interest Payment: 10/01/2024

Number of Days: 180 * Number of Days: 180 * Number of Days: 180 *

Subsequent Interest Payment: 10/01/2020 Subsequent Interest Payment: 04/01/2022 Subsequent Interest Payment: 04/01/2025

Number of Days: 180 Number of Days: 180 Number of Days: 180

First Principal Payment: 10/01/2020 First Principal Payment: 10/01/2024 First Principal Payment: 10/01/2026

Projected Interest Rate: 2.75% Projected Interest Rate: 3.25%

2020 Taxable Value (in 1,000s): $2,638,284,320 2020 Taxable Value (in 1,000s): $2,638,284,320

Growth Rate in Taxable Value: 2.00% Growth Rate in Taxable Value: 2.00%

17000 Kercheval Ave, Suite 230, Grosse Pointe, Michigan, 48230

PHONE: (313) 961-8222  FAX: (313) 961-8220
The information contained herein was derived from sources generally recognized as reliable and does not

make any representations as to correctness or completeness and has in no way been altered except to the

extent that some information may be summarized, and is in no way intended to be a solicitation for orders.

$11,250,000

TOTAL MILLAGE

2021 Bond Assumptions: 2016 Existing Bonds: 2024 Bond Assumptions: 

2016 EXISTING BONDS 2024 BONDS2021 BONDS 2021 & 2024 BONDS MILLAGE



DRAFT 7/1/2020 

MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK AND STONE, P.L.C. 
 

RESOLUTION SUBMITTING PARKS AND RECREATION BOND PROPOSAL 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
County of Oakland, State of Michigan 

__________________________________ 
 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the City Commission of the City of Birmingham, County 
of Oakland, State of Michigan, conducted electronically in conformity with Governor Whitmer’s 
Executive Order No. 2020-129, on the 20th day of July, 2020, at 7:30 p.m., prevailing Eastern 
Time. 

 
PRESENT: Members____________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: Members____________________________________________________ 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member _______________ and 
supported by Member __________________. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Commission (the “City Commission”) of the City of Birmingham 

(the “City”) has determined that it is necessary to pay all or part of the cost of acquiring, 
constructing, furnishing, equipping and renovating parks and recreation improvements, including 
parks, playgrounds and trail system improvements and renovations to the Birmingham Sports Ice 
Arena, including all appurtenances and attachments?   (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that the City should borrow money in 

an amount not to exceed Eleven Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($11,250,000), 
and issue unlimited tax general obligation bonds of the City, in such amount for the purpose of 
paying part of the cost of the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that a proposal to issue bonds for the 

Project shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the City at the general election to be held in 
the City on Tuesday, November 3, 2020 (the “Election Date”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in order for the bond proposal to be submitted to the qualified electors, it is 

necessary for the City Commission to certify the ballot wording of the proposal to the City Clerk 
and to the County Clerk of the County of Oakland (the “County Clerk”), as required by Act 116, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended (the “Michigan Election Law”). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The bond proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Bond Proposal”) shall be 

submitted to a vote of the qualified electors of the City on the Election Date. 

2. The ballot wording of the Bond Proposal is hereby certified to the City Clerk and 



 
MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK AND STONE, P.L.C. 

2 
 

the County Clerk for submission to the City’s electors on the Election Date.  The City Clerk is 
hereby authorized and directed to file this Resolution and/or complete any such forms, 
certificates or documents as may be required by the County Clerk to evidence the foregoing 
certification and/or submission by no later than 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, August 11, 2020. 

3. The City Clerk and the County Clerk are hereby directed to (a) post and publish 
notice of last day of registration and notice of election as required by the Michigan Election Law; 
and (b) have prepared and printed, as provided by the Michigan Election Law, ballots for 
submitting the bond proposal at the election, which ballots shall contain the Bond Proposal, or 
the proposition shall be stated as a proposal on the voting machines, which ballots may include 
other matters presented to the electorate on the same date. 

4. The estimated millage rate in the first year and simple average annual millage rate 
set forth in the Bond Proposal, which have been prepared for the City by Bendzinski & Co., 
financial advisors to the City, are reasonable estimates of such millage rates based on current 
assumptions. 

5. The City makes the following declarations for the purpose of complying with the 
reimbursement rules of Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended: 

(a) If the ballot proposal is approved by the electors, the City 
reasonably expects to reimburse itself with proceeds of the Bonds 
for certain costs of the Project which were paid or will be paid 
from the general funds of the City subsequent to sixty (60) days 
prior to today.  

(b) The maximum principal amount of debt expected to be issued for 
the Project, including issuance costs, is $11,250,000. 

(c) A reimbursement allocation of the capital expenditures described 
above with the proceeds of the Bonds will occur not later than 18 
months after the later of (i) the date on which the expenditure is 
paid, or (ii) the date the Project is placed in service or abandoned, 
but in no event more than three (3) years after the original 
expenditure is paid.  A reimbursement allocation is an allocation in 
writing that evidences the City’s use of the proceeds of the Bonds 
to reimburse the City for a capital expenditure made pursuant to 
this resolution. 



 
MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK AND STONE, P.L.C. 

3 
 

6. All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the 
provisions of this resolution, are hereby repealed. 

 
AYES:  Members _________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS: Members _________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

______________________________ 
City Clerk 

 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the attached is a true and complete copy of a resolution 

adopted by the City Commission of the City of Birmingham, County of Oakland, State of 
Michigan, at a regular meeting held on July 20, 2020, and that the meeting was conducted and 
public notice of the meeting was given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, 
as temporarily modified by Governor Whitmer’s Executive Order No. 2020-129 and that the 
minutes of the meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by the 
Act. 

______________________________ 
 
City Clerk 



 

MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK AND STONE, P.L.C. 
A-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION BOND PROPOSAL 

Shall the City of Birmingham, Oakland County, Michigan, borrow the principal sum of 
not to exceed Eleven Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($11,250,000), and issue its 
unlimited tax general obligation bonds in one or more series, payable over a period not to exceed 
twenty-one (21) years from the date of issuance, to be used by the City for the purpose of paying 
all or part of the cost of acquiring, constructing, furnishing, equipping and renovating parks and 
recreation improvements, including parks, playgrounds and trail system improvements and 
renovations to the Birmingham Sports Ice Arena, including all appurtenances and attachments?  
The estimated millage to be levied in 2021 is 0.0485 mills ($0.05 per $1,000 of taxable value) 
and the estimated simple average annual millage rate required to retire the bonds is 0.2064 mills 
($0.21 per $1,000 of taxable value). 

 
 

YES   
 
NO     

 
 
 
 
36085432.1\008626-00031  



 
 
 
 
 

2020 
 

MICHIGAN ELECTION 

DATES 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Jocelyn Benson 
Secretary of State 

Michigan.gov/elections 
 
 
 

 
Includes list of filing 

requirements for federal and 
state elective offices 

 

http://www.michigan.gov/elections


2  

INFORMATION 
 

ELECTIONS: For information on matters relating to elections, contact your county, city or township 
clerk. Information can also be obtained from the Michigan Department of State, Bureau of Elections, 
P.O. Box 20126, Lansing, MI 48901-0726. Phone: (517) 335-3234. Fax: (517) 335-3235. Email: 
Elections@Michigan.gov. Web site: Michigan.gov/Elections. 

 

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE: State candidates, local candidates and political groups have financial 
disclosure obligations under Michigan’s Campaign Finance Act. For information, contact your county 
clerk or the Michigan Department of State, Bureau of Elections. 

 
Candidates running for federal office should contact the Federal Election Commission, 1050 First Street 
N.W., Washington, D.C. 20463. Toll free line: (800) 424-9530. Web site: fec.gov. 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

Summary Calendar for Candidate and Proposal Deadlines Page 3 

Detailed Calendar for Election Administrators Page 6 

Recount Filing Dates Page 12 

Offices to be Elected in 2020 Page 13 

2020 Filing Requirements Page 14 

2020 Calendar Inside Back Cover 

 
 
 

mailto:Elections@Michigan.gov
http://www.michigan.gov/elections
http://www.fec.gov/


3  

 

SUMMARY CALENDAR FOR CANDIDATE AND PROPOSAL DEADLINES 
August 4, 2020 Primary and November 3, 2020 General Election 

Important Dates and Filing Deadlines 
 

 

Refer to Michigan compiled law for cited provisions (Legislature.Mi.Gov.) Dates are subject to 
change through legislative action. If any errors are found, it is the law, itself, which must be 
followed. 

Election Dates 
 

August 4, 2020 State Primary 

November 3, 2020 State General Election 
 

Registration Deadlines 
 

July 20, 2020 Last day to register in any manner other than in-person with the local clerk 
for the August primary. (168.497) 

July 21 through 8:00 p.m. 
August 4, 2020 

In-person registration with local clerk with proof of residency. (168.497) 

October 19, 2020 Last day to register in any manner other than in-person with the local clerk 
for the November general election. (168.497) 

October 20 through 8:00 
p.m. November 3, 2020 

In-person registration with local clerk with proof of residency. (168.497) 

 
 

Filing Deadlines: Candidates 
 

By 5:00 p.m., 
March 23, 2020 

Incumbent Appeals Court, Circuit Court, District Court and Probate Court judges 
file Affidavit of Candidacy and Affidavit of Identity for the August primary. 
Withdrawal deadline elapses at 5:00 p.m. on March 26. (168.409b, 413a, 414, 
433a, 434, 467c and 467d) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
April 21, 2020 

Candidates seeking Appeals Court, Circuit Court, District Court or Probate Court 
judgeships file nonpartisan nominating petitions, Affidavit of Identity and Affidavit 
of Constitutional Qualification for the August primary. Withdrawal deadline 
elapses at 5:00 p.m. on April 24. (168.409b, 409c, 413, 414, 433, 434, 467b and 
467d) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
April 21, 2020 

Candidates seeking a Wayne County Community College Trustee position file an 
Affidavit of Identity and a nonpartisan nominating petition. Withdrawal deadline 
elapses at 4:00 p.m. on April 24. (389.83, 2018 PA 628; 168.303) 

http://legislature.mi.gov/(S(eecdtj02xjex53gqy1elet5e))/mileg.aspx?page=home
http://legislature.mi.gov/(S(eecdtj02xjex53gqy1elet5e))/mileg.aspx?page=home


4  

By 4:00 p.m., 
April 21, 2020 

Candidates for partisan and nonpartisan offices (other than judicial candidates) file 
nominating petitions (or fees if applicable) and Affidavit of Identity for the August 
primary. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 p.m. on April 24. (168.93, 133 and 
163 for federal and state-level offices; assorted other statutes for local offices) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
May 5, 2020 

Candidates for county convention delegate (precinct delegate) file an Affidavit of 
Identity for the August primary. Filing submitted to the clerk of the county in 
which candidate resides. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 p.m. on May 8. 
(168.624, 624a) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
July 6, 2020 

Incumbent Supreme Court Justices file Affidavit of Identity and Affidavit of 
Candidacy forms for the November general election. (168.392a and 558) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 16, 2020 

District Library Board candidates who wish to seek office at the November general 
election file an Affidavit of Identity and a nonpartisan nominating petition. (A 
$100.00 nonrefundable fee may be filed in lieu of a petition.) (Special note: If 
district library includes a school district, District Library Board candidates file by 
4:00 p.m. on August 11, 2020) (397.181) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 16, 2020 

Candidates without political party affiliation seeking partisan offices file qualifying 
petitions and Affidavit of Identity for the November general election. Withdrawal 
deadline elapses at 4:00 p.m. on July 20. (168.590c) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 21, 2020 

Candidates for Local School Board and Community College Trustee file an 
Affidavit of Identity and a nonpartisan nominating petition. (A $100.00 
nonrefundable fee may be filed in lieu of a petition.) Withdrawal deadline elapses 
at 4:00 p.m. on July 24. (168.303; 389.152) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 21, 2020 

Candidates for village offices file an Affidavit of Identity and a nonpartisan 
nominating petition. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 p.m. on July 24. 
(168.381) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 24, 2020 

Write-in candidates other than write-in candidates who seek precinct delegate 
positions file Declaration of Intent forms for the August primary. (168.737a) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 31, 2020 

Write-in candidates who seek precinct delegate positions file Declaration of Intent 
forms with the county clerk for the August primary. (As an alternative, candidates 
for precinct delegate may file the Declaration of Intent form with appropriate 
precinct board on election day before the close of the polls.) (168.737a) 

August 4, 2020 STATE PRIMARY ELECTION 

  



5  

By 4:00 p.m., 
August 11, 2020 

District Library Board candidates (for library districts that include a school district) 
file an Affidavit of Identity and a nominating petition. (A $100.00 nonrefundable 
fee may be filed in lieu of a petition.) Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 p.m. on 
August 14, 2020. (Special note: If district library does not include a school district, 
District Library Board candidates file by 4:00 p.m. on July 16, 2020).  (397.181) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
Oct. 23, 2020 

Write-in candidates file Declaration of Intent forms for the November general 
election. (168.737a) 

 
November 3, 2020 

 
STATE GENERAL ELECTION 

 
 
 

Filing Deadlines: New Parties and State Ballot Proposals 
 

By 5:00 p.m., 
May 27, 2020 

Petitions to place a legislative initiative proposal on the November general 
election ballot filed with the Secretary of State (340,047 valid signatures 
required). (168.471) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
July 6, 2020 

Petitions to place a proposed constitutional amendment on the November general 
election ballot filed with the Secretary of State (425,059 valid signatures 
required). (168.471) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 16, 2020 

New political parties file petitions to qualify for November general election ballot 
(42,506 valid signatures required). (168.685) 

 
 

Filing Deadlines: County and Local Proposals 
 

By 5:00 p.m.,  
April 28, 2020 

Petitions to place county and local questions on the August primary ballot filed 
with county and local clerks. (168.646a) 

By 4:00 p.m.,  
May 12, 2020 Ballot wording of county and local proposals to be presented at the August 

primary certified to county and local clerks; local clerks receiving ballot wording 
forward to county clerk within two days. (168.646a) 

By 5:00 p.m.,  
July 28, 2020 Petitions to place county and local questions on the November general election 

ballot filed with county and local clerks. (168.646a) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
August 11, 2020 Ballot wording of county and local proposals to be presented at the November 

general election certified to county and local clerks; local clerks receiving ballot 
wording forward to county clerk within two days. (168.646a) 



6  

 

DETAILED CALENDAR FOR ELECTION ADMINISTRATORS 
 

-- 2020 ELECTION DATES -- 
AUGUST 4 PRIMARY 

NOVEMBER 3 GENERAL ELECTION 
 

 
 

All listed dates are in 2020 unless otherwise specified. Refer to Michigan compiled law for cited 
provisions (Legislature.Mi.Gov.) Dates are subject to change through legislative action. If any 
errors are found, it is the law, itself, which must be followed. 

 
By Jan. 7 City and township election commissions finalize precinct boundaries for 

2020 election cycle. (168.661) 

By Feb. 6 Last date precinct boundary alterations made for 2020 election cycle can go 
into effect. (168.661) 

By March 1 Democratic and Republican state party chairpersons notify county and 
district committee chairs of county convention delegate (precinct 
delegate) allocation requirements. (168.623a) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
March 23 

Incumbent Appeals Court, Circuit Court, District Court and Probate Court 
judges file Affidavit of Candidacy and Affidavit of Identity for the August 
primary. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 5:00 p.m. on March 26. (168.409b, 
413a, 414, 433a, 434, 467c, 467d) 

By April 1 County political party chairpersons certify number of delegates per 
precinct to county election commissions. (168.623a) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
April 21 

Candidates seeking Appeals Court, Circuit Court, and District Court or 
Probate Court judgeships file nonpartisan nominating petitions, Affidavit 
of Identity and Affidavit of Constitutional Qualification for the August 
primary. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 5:00 p.m. on April 24. (168.409b, 
409c, 413, 414, 433, 434, 467b, 467d) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
April 21 

Candidates for partisan and nonpartisan offices (other than judicial 
candidates) file nominating petitions (or fees if applicable) and Affidavit 
of Identity for the August primary. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 
p.m. on April 24. (168.93, 133, 163 for federal and state-level offices; 
assorted other statutes for local offices) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
April 21 

Candidates seeking a Wayne County Community College Trustee position 
file an Affidavit of Identity and a nonpartisan nominating petition. 
Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 p.m. on April 24. (389.83, 2018 PA 
628; 168.303) 

By April 27 City and township clerks forward names and addresses of partisan and 
nonpartisan candidates to county clerk. (168.321, 349) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
April 28 

Challenges against nominating petitions filed by partisan and nonpartisan 
candidates submitted to filing official. (168.552) 

http://legislature.mi.gov/(S(eecdtj02xjex53gqy1elet5e))/mileg.aspx?page=home
http://legislature.mi.gov/(S(eecdtj02xjex53gqy1elet5e))/mileg.aspx?page=home


7  

By 5:00 p.m., 
April 28 

Petitions to place county and local questions on the August primary ballot 
filed with county and local clerks. (168.646a) 

May 1 Last date a recall petition can be filed for recall question to appear on 
August primary ballot. (168.963) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
May 5 

Candidates for county convention delegate (precinct delegate) file an 
Affidavit of Identity for the August primary. Filing submitted to the clerk of 
the county in which candidate resides. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 
p.m. on May 8. (168.624, 624a) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
May 12 

Ballot wording of county and local proposals to be presented at the August 
primary certified to county and local clerks; local clerks receiving ballot 
wording forward to county clerk within two days. (168.646a) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
May 27 

Petitions to place a legislative initiative proposal on the November general 
election ballot filed with the Secretary of State (340,047 valid signatures 
required). (168.471) 

By June 2 Board of State Canvassers complete canvass of nominating petitions filed 
by candidates for the August primary; Secretary of State certifies candidates 
eligible to appear on August primary ballot to county election commissions 
by June 5. (168.552) 

June 5 Final date cities and townships can establish, move or abolish a polling 
place for the August primary. (168.662) 

By June 5 Democratic and Republican Parties call fall state conventions. (168.591) 

By June 5 Ballot wording for constitutional amendments and legislative referendums, 
which the legislature wishes to place on the August primary ballot, 
presented to Secretary of State. (Art. 12, Sec. 1) 

By June 20 Delivery of military and overseas AV ballots must begin for the August 
election by this date. All requests received since November 5, 2019 from a 
military or overseas voter must be honored for all 2020 elections. 
(168.759a) 

By June 20 County clerks deliver absent voter ballots for the August primary to local 
clerks. (168.714) 

By June 20 County committees of Democratic and Republican Parties call county 
conventions. (168.592) 

June 25 through 
July 14 

Precinct inspectors for August primary appointed by city and township 
election commissions. (168.674) 

By July 6 Notice of voter registration for August primary published. One notice 
required. (168.498) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
July 6 

Incumbent Supreme Court Justices file Affidavit of Identity and Affidavit of 
Candidacy forms for the November general election. (168.392a, 558) 



8 
 

By 5:00 p.m., 
July 6 

Petitions to place a proposed constitutional amendment on the November 
general election ballot filed with the Secretary of State (425,059 valid 
signatures required). (168.471) 

By July 6 Clerk shall post and enter into Qualified Voter File (QVF) the hours the 
clerk’s office will be open on the Saturday or Sunday or both immediately 
before the election to issue and receive absent voter ballots. (168.761b) 

By July 6 Clerk shall post and enter into the QVF any additional locations and hours 
the clerk will be available to issue and receive absent voter ballots, if 
applicable. (168.761b) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 16 

District Library Board candidates who wish to seek office at the November 
general election file an Affidavit of Identity and a nonpartisan nominating 
petition. (A $100.00 nonrefundable fee may be filed in lieu of a petition.) 
(Special note: If district library includes a school district, District Library 
Board candidates file by 4:00 p.m. on August 11). (397.181) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 16 

Candidates without political party affiliation seeking partisan offices file 
qualifying petitions and Affidavit of Identity for the November general 
election. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 p.m. on July 20. (168.590c) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 16 

New political parties file petitions to qualify for November general election 
ballot (42,506 valid signatures required). (168.685) 

July 20 Last day to register in any manner other than in-person with the local 
clerk for the August primary. (168.497) 

July 21 through 
8:00 p.m., 
August 4 

 
In-person registration with local clerk with proof of residency.  (168.497) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 21 

Candidates for Local School Board and Community College Trustee file 
an Affidavit of Identity and a nonpartisan nominating petition. (A 
$100.00 nonrefundable fee may be filed in lieu of a petition.) Withdrawal 
deadline elapses at 4:00 p.m. on July 24. (168.303; 389.152) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 21 

Candidates for village offices file an Affidavit of Identity and a nonpartisan 
nominating petition. Withdrawal deadline elapses at 4:00 
p.m. on July 24. (168.381) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
July 23 

Challenges against qualifying petitions filed by candidates without 
political party affiliation submitted to filing official. (168.552) 

By July 23 City and township clerks forward names and addresses of candidates 
without political party affiliation to county clerk. (168.321, 349) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 24 

Write-in candidates other than write-in candidates who seek precinct 
delegate positions file Declaration of Intent forms for the August primary. 
(168.737a) 

By July 25 County clerks deliver remainder of ballots and election supplies for 
August primary to local clerks. (168.714) 



9 
 

By 5:00 p.m., 
July 28 

Petitions to place county and local questions on the November general election 
ballot filed with county and local clerks. (If governing law sets an earlier 
petition filing deadline, earlier deadline must be observed.) (168.646a) 

By July 28 Notice of August primary published. One notice required. (168.653a) 

By July 30 Public accuracy test must be conducted. (R 168.778) Notice of test must be 
published at least 48 hours before test. (168.798) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
July 31 

Write-in candidates who seek precinct delegate positions file Declaration of 
Intent forms with the county clerk for the August primary. (As an 
alternative, candidates for precinct delegate may file form with appropriate 
precinct board on election day before the close of the polls.) (168.737a) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
July 31 

Electors may obtain an absent voter ballot via First Class mail. (168.759) 

July 31 Last date a recall petition can be filed for recall question to appear on 
November general election ballot. (168.963) 

By 2:00 p.m., 
August 1 

Voters may submit written request to spoil their absent voter ballot and 
receive new ballot by mail. (168.765b) 

Up to 4:00 p.m., 
August 3 

Electors may obtain an absent voter ballot in person in the clerk’s office. 
(168.761) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
August 3 

Voters may submit written request in person to spoil their absent voter 
ballot and receive new ballot in the clerk’s office. (168.765b) 

By August 4 Minor parties hold county caucuses; notify county clerk of nominated 
candidates within one business day after caucus. (168.686a) 

By August 4 Minor parties hold state conventions; notify Secretary of State of 
nominated candidates within one business day after convention. (168.686a)  

Up to 4:00 p.m., 
August 4 

Emergency absentee voting for August primary. (168.759b) 

Up to 8:00 p.m., 
August 4 

Election Day registrants may obtain and vote an absent voter ballot in 
person in the clerk’s office or vote in person in the proper precinct. 
(168.761) 

August 4 STATE PRIMARY ELECTION 
 

By 9:00 a.m., 
August 6 

Boards of county canvassers meet to canvass August primary. (168.821) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
August 11 

District Library Board candidates (for library districts that include a school 
district) file an Affidavit of Identity and a nominating petition. (A $100.00 
nonrefundable fee may be filed in lieu of a petition.) Withdrawal deadline 
elapses at 4:00 p.m. on August 14. (Special note: If district library does not 
include a school district, District Library Board candidates file by 4:00 p.m. 
on July 16.) (397.181) 



10 
 

By 4:00 p.m., 
August 11 

Ballot wording of county and local proposals to be presented at the November 
general election certified to county and local clerks; local clerks receiving 
ballot wording forward to county clerk within two days. (168.646a) 

By August 11 County clerks notify precinct delegates elected at August primary; certify 
delegate names and addresses to chairpersons of county committees. 
(168.608) 

August 12 
through 
August 29 

Democratic and Republican Parties hold fall county conventions. 
(168.592) 

By August 18 Boards of county canvassers complete canvass of August primary; county 
clerks forward results to Secretary of State within 24 hours. (168.581, 822, 
828) 

By August 24 Board of State Canvassers meet to canvass August primary. (168.581) 
By Sept. 4 Democratic and Republican Parties hold fall state conventions. (168.591)  

By Sept. 4 Cities and townships can establish, move or abolish a polling place for 
the November general election. (168.662) 

By Sept. 4 Ballot wording for constitutional amendments and legislative referendums, 
which the legislature wishes to place on the November general election 
ballot, presented to Secretary of State. (Art. 12, Sec. 1) 

 
By Sept. 19 

Delivery of military and overseas AV ballots must begin for the November 
election by this date. All requests received since November 5, 2019 from a 
military or overseas voter must be honored for all 2020 elections. 
(168.759a) 

By Sept. 19 County clerks deliver absent voter ballots for November general election to 
local clerks. (168.714) 

Sept. 24 through 
Oct. 13 

Precinct inspectors for November general election appointed by city and 
township election commissions. (168.674) 

By Oct. 5 Notice of voter registration for November general election published. One 
notice required. (168.498) 



11  

By Oct. 5 Clerk shall post and enter into QVF the hours the clerk’s office will be 
open on the Saturday or Sunday or both immediately before the election to 
issue and receive absent voter ballots. (168.761b) 

By Oct. 5 Clerk shall post and enter into the QVF any additional locations and hours 
the clerk will be available to issue and receive absent voter ballots, if 
applicable. (168.761b) 

Oct. 19 Last day to register in any manner other than in-person with the local 
clerk for the November general election. (168.497) 

Oct. 20 through 
8:00 p.m., Nov. 3 

In-person registration with local clerk with proof of residency.  
(168.497) 

By 4:00 p.m., 
Oct. 23 

Write-in candidates file Declaration of Intent forms for the November 
general election. (168.737a) 

By Oct. 24 County clerks deliver remainder of ballots and election supplies for 
November general election to local clerks. (168.714) 

By Oct. 27 Notice of November general election published. One notice required. 
(168.653a) 

By Oct. 29 Public accuracy test must be conducted. (R 168.778) Notice of test must be 
published at least 48 hours before test. (168.798) 

By 5:00 p.m., 
Oct. 30 

Electors may obtain an absent voter ballot via First Class mail. (168.759) 

By 2:00 p.m., 
Oct. 31 

Voters may submit written request to spoil their absent voter ballot and 
receive new ballot by mail. (168.765b) 

Up to 4:00 p.m., 
Nov. 2 

Electors may obtain an absent voter ballot in person in the clerk’s office. 
(168.761) 

By 4:00 p.m.,  
Nov. 2 

Voters may submit written request in person to spoil their absent voter ballot 
and receive new ballot in the clerk’s office. (168.765b) 

Up to 4:00 p.m., 
Nov. 3 

Emergency absentee voting for November general election. (168.759b) 

Up to 8:00 p.m., 
Nov. 3 

Election Day registrants may obtain and vote an absent voter ballot in 
person in the clerk’s office or vote in person in the proper precinct. 
(168.761) 

Nov. 3 STATE GENERAL ELECTION 

By 9:00 a.m., 
Nov. 5 

Boards of county canvassers meet to canvass November general election. 
(168.821) 

By Nov. 17 Boards of county canvassers complete canvass of November general 
election; county clerks forward results to Secretary of State within 24 
hours. (168.822, 828) 

By Nov. 23 Board of State Canvassers meet to canvass November general election. 
(168.842) 



12  

 

RECOUNT FILING DATES 
 
 

All U.S. Senate, U.S. House and State House Seats 
 

• Districts that lie wholly contained within one (1) county 

* Recount petitions must be filed with the Secretary of State within 48 hours after the 
adjournment of the meeting of the Board of State Canvassers at which the certificate for 
determination for that office was recorded. (168.879) 

 
* Counter petitions must be filed with the Secretary of State at or before 4:00 p.m. on the 

seventh day after the filing of the recount petition. (168.882) 
 

• Districts located in more than one (1) county 

* Recount petitions must be filed with the Secretary of State within 48 hours after the 
Board of State Canvassers completes the canvass. (168.879) 

 
* Counter petitions must be filed with the Secretary of State at or before 4:00 p.m. on the 

seventh day after the filing of the recount petition. (168.882) 
 

Any Other Office Canvassed by the Board of State Canvassers 
 

* Recount petitions must be filed with the Secretary of State within 48 hours after the Board of 
State Canvassers completes the canvass. (168.879) 

 
* Counter petitions must be filed with the Secretary of State at or before 4:00 p.m. on the 

seventh day after the filing of the recount petition. (168.882) 
 

Any Other Office Canvassed by County Boards of Canvassers 
 

* Recount petitions must be filed with the County Clerk within six days after the board of 
County canvassers completes the canvass. (168.866) 

 
* Counter petitions must be filed with the County Clerk within 48 hours after the filing of the 

recount petition. (168.868) 



13  

 

OFFICES TO BE ELECTED IN 2020 
 
 

U.S. President/Vice President 
U.S. Senator (1 seat) 
U.S. Representative in Congress (all 14 districts) 
State Representative (all 110 districts) 

State Board of Education (2 seats) 
University of Michigan Regents (2 seats) 
Michigan State University Trustees (2 seats) 
Wayne State University Governors (2 seats) 
Justice of the Supreme Court 

Judge of the Court of Appeals 
Judge of the Circuit Court 
Judge of the District Court 
Judge of Probate 

County and Township Offices 

Specified City and Village Offices 

Specified School District Positions 



14  

 

 

2020 FILING REQUIREMENTS 
Federal and State Elective Partisan Offices 

Supreme Court Justice 
 

 
 

Petition Filing Information: Democratic and Republican Candidates 
 

• Democratic and Republican candidates can file nominating petitions for the following federal 
and state elective offices: U.S. Senate, U.S. Representative in Congress and State 
Representative (see below for additional elective offices whose Democratic and Republican 
nominees are determined by caucus or convention.) 

 
• Democratic and Republican candidates must file a partisan nominating petition no later than 

4:00 p.m., April 21, 2020. Democratic and Republican candidates who seek the office of 
State Representative may file a $100.00 filing fee in lieu of a petition. 

 
• Democratic and Republican candidates who submit a valid filing for office will be placed on 

the August primary ballot. 
 

Petition Filing Information: Candidates Without Political Party Affiliation 
 

• Candidates without political party affiliation can file for the following federal and state 
elective offices: U.S. President, U.S. Senate, U.S. Representative in Congress, State 
Representative, State Board of Education, University of Michigan Regent, Michigan State 
University Trustee, Wayne State University Governor and Supreme Court Justice. 

 
• Candidates without political party affiliation who seek a partisan office or the office of 

Supreme Court Justice must file a qualifying petition no later than 4:00 p.m., July 16, 2020. 
 

• All signatures submitted on a qualifying petition must have been collected within the 
preceding 180-day period; signatures which are dated more than 180 days prior to the date 
the petition is filed are invalid. 

 
• Candidates without political party affiliation who submit a valid filing will be placed on 

the November general election ballot. 
 

Affidavit of Identity Required of All Candidates 
 

All candidates, except for President, must submit an Affidavit of Identity in duplicate when 
filing for office. Affidavit of Identity forms can be obtained from any filing official or from the 
Department of State’s Bureau of Elections in Lansing (Michigan.gov/Elections.) A candidate 
who fails to comply with this requirement is ineligible to appear on the ballot. 

 
Except for candidates seeking federal elective office or the office of precinct delegate, Michigan 
election law requires any candidate filing an Affidavit of Identity to state on the form that on the 
date the affidavit was executed, all statements, reports, late filing fees and fines required of the 
candidate or any Candidate Committee organized to support the candidate’s election under 
Michigan’s Campaign Finance Act have been filed or paid. If a candidate fails to comply with 

http://www.michigan.gov/elections


15  

this requirement or executes an Affidavit of Identity containing a false statement will be 
disqualified. 

 
Post-Election Campaign Finance Compliance Statement 

 
Except as noted below, Michigan election law requires any candidate elected to office on the 
state, county or local level to file an affidavit prior to assuming office which states that on the 
date the affidavit was executed all statements, reports, late filing fees and fines required of the 
candidate or any Candidate Committee organized to support the candidate’s election under 
Michigan’s Campaign Finance Act have been filed or paid. The affidavit is not required of an 
elected candidate who did not receive or expend more than $1,000.00 during the election cycle. 
In addition, the form does not have to be filed by an individual elected to a federal office or a 
precinct delegate position. 

 
A form developed for distribution to candidates who must comply with the filing requirement 
(“Post-Election Campaign Finance Compliance Statement”) is available through any filing 
official. An elected candidate who is required to file the statement but who fails to submit the 
form is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

 
Signature Requirements; Filing Location 

 
The following lists the petition signature requirements for the offices to be filled in 2020. 

 
NOTE: Minor party candidates are nominated by caucus or convention and appear on the 
November General election ballot. 

 
 

U.S. PRESIDENT 
 

All candidates who seek the office of U.S. President file with the Department of State’s Bureau 
of Elections in Lansing. 

 
 

DEMOCRATIC 

 

REPUBLICAN 
NO POLITICAL PARTY 

AFFILIATION 

MIN MAX 

Nominated at State 
Convention 

Nominated at State 
Convention 

12,000 24,000 

 
A qualifying petition circulated for the office of U.S. President must be signed by at least 100 
registered voters in each of at least ½ of the congressional districts in the state. 

 
A candidate without political party affiliation who files for the office of U.S. President is also 
required to submit the name of his or her running mate and list of presidential electors. For 
complete information, contact the Michigan Department of State’s Bureau of Elections. 



16  

 
 

U.S. SENATOR 
 

All candidates who seek the office of U.S. Senator file with the Department of State’s Bureau of 
Elections in Lansing. 

 
 

 
DEMOCRATIC 

 
REPUBLICAN NO POLITICAL PARTY 

AFFILIATION 

MIN MAX MIN MAX MIN MAX 

15,000 30,000 15,000 30,000 12,000 24,000 
 

A petition submitted for the office of U.S. Senator must be signed by at least 100 registered 
electors in each of at least ½ of the congressional districts in the state. 

 
U.S. REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS 

 
Multi-County Districts: A candidate who seeks the office of U.S. Representative in Congress in 
a multi-county district files with the Department of State’s Bureau of Elections in Lansing. The 
multi-county U.S. House Districts are Districts 1-12 and 14. 

 
Single-County Districts: A candidate who seeks the office of U.S. Representative in Congress 
in District 13 files with the Wayne County Clerk’s office. 

 
 

DEMOCRATIC 
 

REPUBLICAN NO POLITICAL PARTY 
AFFILIATION 

MIN MAX MIN MAX MIN MAX 

1,000 2,000 1,000 2,000 3,000 6,000 

 
  



17  

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN REGENT 

MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY TRUSTEE 
WAYNE STATE UNIVERSITY GOVERNOR 

SUPREME COURT JUSTICE 
 

All candidates who seek the following offices file with the Department of State’s Bureau of 
Elections in Lansing: State Board of Education, University of Michigan Regent, Michigan State 
University Trustee, Wayne State University Governor, Supreme Court Justice (Note: Incumbent 
Supreme Court Justice files by affidavit.) 

 
 

DEMOCRATIC 

 

REPUBLICAN 
NO POLITICAL PARTY 

AFFILIATION 

MIN MAX 

Nominated at State 
Convention 

Nominated at State 
Convention 

12,000 24,000 

 
A petition for one of the above offices must be signed by at least 100 registered electors in each 
of at least half of the congressional districts in the state. 

 
 

STATE REPRESENTATIVE 
 

Multi-County Districts: A candidate who seeks the office of State Representative in a multi- 
county district files with the Department of State’s Bureau of Elections in Lansing. The multi- 
county State House Districts are listed below: 

 
17 32 51 58 59 63 65 66 70 72 78 83 
84 85 86 87 93 97 98 99 100 101 102 103 
105 106 107 108 109 110       

 
Single-County Districts: A candidate who seeks the office of State Representative in a district 
not listed above (single-county districts) files with the county clerk. 

 
 

DEMOCRATIC 
 

REPUBLICAN NO POLITICAL PARTY 
AFFILIATION 

MIN MAX MIN MAX MIN MAX 

200 400 200 400 600 1,200 

 
Democratic and Republican candidates who seek the office of State Representative may file a 
$100.00 filing fee in lieu of a petition. 



 

 

City of Birmingham 

Support City Parks – Bond Proposal  
 

JULY 1, 2020

3011 West Grand Boulevard | Fisher Building, Suite 2225  
Detroit, Michigan 48202 | T: 313.872.2202  

 
VANDYKEHORN.COM 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
Van Dyke●Horn – Your Campaign Partner 

Van Dyke●Horn Public Relations is Michigan’s largest minority‐owned public relations firm, 
headquartered in Detroit with an office in Lansing. Since its founding in 1998, our firm has been 
committed to Southeast Michigan and its diverse communities.  We have earned a reputation in 
Michigan for our award‐winning ability to develop and produce communications strategies that are 
designed to resonate with community needs and interests.  

For more than two decades, Van Dyke●Horn has provided comprehensive communications services to 
education, corporate, government, philanthropic and nonprofit organizations, including successful 
communications campaigns for ballot initiatives and candidates including: 

 The Detroit Institute of Arts’ successful 2012 regional millage effort. 

 The Detroit Public Library’s successful 2014 millage effort. 

 The Detroit Zoological Society’s successful 2006 and 2016 regional millage efforts. 

 MiThrive Coalition to support the Michigan transformational Brownfield Tax Credit 

 MiImpact Coalition to support reinstatement of the Michigan Historic Tax Credit  

 Warren Evans’ successful campaign for Wayne County executive. 

 The official launch of Dave Coulter’s campaign for Oakland County executive. 
 

Below is a list of other relevant and recent clients for which VDH has conducted public information and 
outreach campaigns:

● City of Detroit – Departments of Housing and Revitalization, Innovation and Technology, 

Transportation, and Water and Sewerage 

● Detroit Future City 

● Detroit Wayne County Airport Authority 

● Downtown Detroit Partnership 

● Girls Scouts of Southeast Michigan 

● Invest Detroit 

● John S. and James L. Knight Foundation 

● Public Lighting Authority of Detroit 

● Michigan Future, Inc. 

● State of Michigan – Labor and Economic Opportunity Department 

Our agency’s philosophy is that by being deeply ingrained in our community, we are best positioned to 
build lasting and trusting relationships that lay the groundwork for becoming full partners with our 
clients to develop and lead projects that manifest positive change. We draw on an experienced team of 
14 public relations practitioners who work tirelessly to exceed our clients’ goals.  

 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

Van Dyke●Horn – Our Approach 

Van Dyke●Horn has worked in close partnership with organizations and coalitions to deliver integrated 
and impactful communications campaigns in support of public policy and ballot initiatives.  Our current 
partnership with the City of Birmingham perfectly positions us to provide strategic counsel and 
implementation leading to the approval of a potential bond proposal to support continued 
improvements and upgrades to Birmingham’s public parks and athletic facilities. 

Should the Birmingham City Commission approve a parks bond proposal for the November ballot, we 
will have about three months to plan and launch a public information campaign.   We should plan on a 
somewhat compressed timeline given an apparent strong trend toward absentee voting this year.  The 
campaign will be sequenced as follows: 

 

Research and Key Messaging 

Van Dyke●Horn will work independently and with support from the Birmingham team to gather 
research‐based information on the benefits of public parks and greenspaces from a range of 
perspectives.  For example: 

 The effects of strong public parks on home values 

 The effects of strong public parks/athletic facilities on individual and community quality of life 

 Use of public parks across the age spectrum 

 Positive effects of green space on physical and mental health 

 Usage data on Birmingham public parks 

 Simple explanation of the bond proposal, its effect on the individual homeowner, its impact on 
City finances and the total investment in parks and public spaces 

 Data on the impact of bond approval on an individual tax bill  

We will use the data to develop clear and compelling messages in support of the bond, which will be 
used in interviews and speeches and featured on fact sheets, informational materials, press releases and 
social media posts.   

 

Endorsements 

Maintaining and improving City parks is an initiative that should attract widespread support.  This is 
especially true because the parks bond proposal will follow the retirement of a previous bond limiting 
additional financial exposure, and parks are spread throughout the community, benefitting residents 
and businesses.  In conjunction with the research effort, Van Dyke●Horn will immediately work to 
gather endorsements from across the community to illustrate widespread support for the proposal and 
minimize opposition.  Starting with the Mayor and City Commission, we will work to secure support 
from the Birmingham Shopping District and its members, civic organizations such as The Community 
House, neighborhood associations, the Birmingham Public School District, Birmingham Youth Assistance, 
NEXT, Birmingham sports and athletic associations and the Birmingham YMCA.  As we secure 
endorsements, we will also work with each organization to ensure additional support through social 
media, placards and signage, emails to supporters and coverage in newsletters.   

 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Parks Master Plan 

Birmingham’s Department of Public Services has developed a multi‐year plan for improving parks, green 
spaces and athletic facilities.  Van Dyke●Horn will work with the Birmingham team to develop a brief, 
informational brochure on the parks plan and its timeline.  Research and data on the value of parks will 
help frame the document and provide strong support for a yes vote.   The plan document will be 
prominently featured on the city’s website.  Electronic and print copies will be provided to every 
neighborhood association and copies will be available by request at City Hall and in the Public Services 
Office.  We will work with the Birmingham team to ensure this information is posted to the website and 
updated as needed.     

 

Materials Development and Distribution 

Working within an established production/distribution budget, Van Dyke●Horn will develop educational 
materials that will illustrate the advantages of improving City parks.  Because this is a single, community‐
based effort, we would tend toward communications tools that reach people in their homes and 
neighborhoods such as direct mail and lawn signs.  We will be dealing with a crowded political 
environment leading up to November 3, so it’s important to keep this initiative local and positive, 
demonstrating broad‐based community support whenever possible.  Because of cost and clutter, we 
would limit paid advertising to small, local publications but would develop a print ad template that could 
be dropped into school, church and organizational newsletters at low or no‐cost. Based on budget, we 
would likely concentrate direct mail in September and October.   Based on cost and distribution, lawn 
signs could be made available immediately after Labor Day.  We will manage materials distribution to 
ensure that every Birmingham household receives at pro‐park messages throughout late September and 
October.  

 

Social Media and Email 

Because we work so closely with Birmingham’s social media program Van Dyke●Horn is acutely aware of 
its reach and influence.  We will work pro‐parks, educational messaging into the established social 
media calendar on a weekly basis upon approval of the campaign and increase frequency in the months 
of September and October.  We might ask Mayor Boutros to return to social media to help the 
educational effort, and we could consider including other endorsers on social media, as well.  We will 
develop stories for the September and October e‐newsletters and the fall print newsletter that highlight 
research data and financial impact, and, more importantly, tell stories from Birmingham community 
members about the importance of neighborhood parks and green spaces.  Van Dyke●Horn will use the 
targeted city emails to promote neighborhood‐specific parks improvement, while stressing that parks 
across the community will benefit.  Similarly, we will use the targeted email “affinity” groups to 
disseminate specific messaging about parks and athletic facilities and the need to support them.   We 
may recommend a limited social media advertising buy, but Birmingham’s social media program is well‐
established locally, and we don’t foresee the need for extensive on‐line advertising.  

 

Media Relations 

Van Dyke●Horn will develop a news release and fact sheet on the bond proposal and distribute it to 
local media.  We will conduct targeted follow‐up with local publications that are likely to reach voters at 
home – the Birmingham Bloomfield Eagle, Hometown Life, Downtown Publications, the Oakland Press 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

and Birmingham Life.  We will work with these publications to secure coverage of the issue and an 
endorsement of the bond proposal if endorsements are published.   

We also will provide the press release and fact sheets to larger publications such as the Detroit Free 
Press and the Detroit News and to the major broadcast outlets in the area, but our focus is local and the 
bulk of our efforts will engage those media outlets.    

 

Van Dyke●Horn also will seek out opportunities to place op‐ed pieces and letters to the editor in local 

media.  We can work with endorsers, residents and subject matter experts (real estate values, health 

benefits of parks) to develop these pieces that will both educate the public and encourage support.  

 

Celebrate Birmingham Parks! 

If we are able to gather in a socially responsible manner later this summer or in September,  we may 
consider hosting an event(s) to celebrate Birmingham parks.  We could work with Birmingham yoga 
studios to host yoga classes or local gyms could host fitness activities.  The event(s) would be free and at 
the opening we would provide a brief information session on the parks bond and the importance of 
parks in our community. Lawn signs could be made available for distribution along with educational 
information on parks.  We would work with the Department of Public Services to identify the features 
and amenities available in the host park(s) and remind attendees of the many outdoor opportunities 
available to them within Birmingham.    

 

Get Out the Vote 

As part of our final push to ensure passage and promote voting, we will develop a plan for a coordinated 
social media campaign and support the effort with volunteer phone banking in the final days of October.  
Using voter rolls provided by the City Clerk, we will ask volunteers to call Birmingham residents to 
remind them to vote on Tuesday, November 3 and encourage them to vote for the parks bond.  Van 
Dyke●Horn will develop a simple script for callers.  Calls can be made from home or we can coordinate a 
phone bank at Shain Park, which will allow for social distancing and promote the bond proposal at the 
same time.  This final push will promote the issue to those who have yet to vote and allow us to thank 
those who have already voted for exercising their civic responsibility. 

 

Thank You Voters! 

Following the successful campaign, Van Dyke●Horn will work with the Birmingham communications 
team on a coordinated social media/email/newsletter campaign to thank voters for their support and 
point to parks projects planned in 2021.   Budget and locations permitting, we can also post thank‐you 
banners in some or all City parks.   

 

Tracking Our Efforts 
 
Van Dyke●Horn will take a layered approach tracking each communications initiative and its target 
audience to ensure that we have reached every Birmingham neighborhood.  We will work with 
neighborhood associations and our endorsers to ensure that they are engaged and reaching their 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

audiences effectively.  While we don’t anticipate the budget or need to do polling, we will track social 
media “likes” and reactions to gauge acceptance of the proposal as we move through the campaign 
toward Election Day.  We also will track any organized opposition throughout the campaign and working 
actively to rebut negative comments about the proposal.  
 

Working with the Birmingham team, Van Dyke●Horn will develop a regular schedule of update 
meetings/calls to ensure that you are continually informed of campaign milestones and progress.  We 
will provide you with a full campaign report at the end of the initiative. 
 
 

Van Dyke●Horn – Cost Proposal  
 

Because we have been working with Birmingham and continue to manage your social media efforts, Van 

Dyke●Horn can begin work immediately and efficiently to educate the public on the bond proposal.  
Pending commission approval, we would hope to begin concept development in mid‐July and work 
through the final report on or before November 20.  We propose a project fee of $30,000 to cover the 
17‐18 week campaign.  That fee covers our consulting services, development of campaign themes, 
slogans and text materials and supervision of materials development.  Graphic design, printing, 
photography and video are billed separately as indicated below.  Because of the tight timeline and lean 
budget, we will engage the Birmingham communications team for support as needed.  We will also track 
hours carefully and work with you to ensure that the core initiatives are managed successfully, 
 
Out‐of‐Pocket Expenses 
Agency’s routine out‐of‐pocket expenses—for items such as photocopies, incidental postage, faxes, telephone calls 
and the like—will be covered as part of professional service fees. 
 
Significant out‐of‐pocket expenses, including but not limited to: PR Newswire and media, copying costs (in excess 
of 10 pieces at $.59 per copy), postage charges (in excess of 10 pieces), telephone charges and mileage ($.50 per 
mile), travel and lodging are reimbursable expenses and will be billed in addition to professional fees. Expenses in 
excess of $250 will be submitted to the client as an “expense authorization” for prior approval. All billable 
expenditures will include a 15 percent handling fee. Any large items ordered by our agency under your direction 
and authorization will be billed directly to you. 
 
Production Costs 
Professional service fees do not cover production costs, such as graphic design and artwork charges, photography, 
audio‐visual, printing, catering charges, purchasing advertising time or space, film and video production and 
entertainment. Production costs are reimbursable expenses and will be described in an “expense authorization” 
that will be submitted to you for prior approval and billed in addition to the professional fees.  
 
Conditions 
Van Dyke●Horn has devised many successful communication and media strategies for our clients, and we will 
strive to devise the most effective campaign for this development; however, with the uncertainty of media 
response we cannot guarantee results. 
 
Our agency agrees to respond quickly to client inquiries whether by telephone, in person, fax or email. Our agency 
recognizes the need to maintain the confidentiality of information, work papers and reports, if and when provided 
to our agency by the City of Birmingham and agrees to take the necessary steps to preserve all confidentiality. 
 
Modifications of Agreement 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

This document is intended to be a full and complete agreement between both parties. This agreement can be 
modified only in writing, signed by both parties. 
 
Services Agency will not provide 

Van Dyke●Horn will not participate in any activities we determine to be immoral, illegal or in violation of the Public 
Relations Society of America’s code of professional standards.    
 
Your signature below will authorize our relationship. Please mail or fax to us a signed agreement and keep the other 
for your files. 

________________________             

 

Joe Valentine               Peter Van Dyke 

City of Birmingham             Van Dyke●Horn Public Relations 

 



1 

 MEMORANDUM 

Office of the City Manager 

DATE: July 10, 2020

TO: City Commission 

FROM: Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Request for Closed Session –  Attorney-Client Privilege 

It is requested that the city commission meet in closed session to discuss an Attorney/Client
communication pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act. 

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
1. To meet in closed session to discuss an Attorney/Client communication 

pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act.

(A roll call vote is required and the vote must be approved by a 2/3 majority of the 

commission. The commission will adjourn to closed session after all other business has been 
addressed in open session and reconvene to open session, after the closed session, for 

purposes of taking formal action resulting from the closed session and for purposes of 
adjourning the meeting.) 

6E



Eleanor “Coco” Siewert 
576 Abbey 

Birmingham, MI 48009 
248.642.7024 

e.siewert@wayne.edu 

To:   Mayor Pierre Boutros 
From:  Eleanor Siewert 
Re:   Question on Motion to Close Debate 
Date:    June 16, 2020 

While watching the Birmingham City Commission meeting on June 8, 2002 I noted there were 
questions regarding calling the question or the motion to close debate.    The Commission’s 
adopted rules include the fact that the Commission operates according to Robert’s Rules of Order 
Newly Revised, except when the Commissions own rules take precedence.  In this case the 
Commission does not have an adopted rule on calling the question so Robert’s prevails. 

The request to call the question cannot interrupt a person who is speaking.  It does require a 
second and a two-thirds vote to be adopted.  If a Commissioner calls the question the chair may 
ask “Is there any objection to stopping debate?”  If there is no objection the chair would then 
take the vote on the main issue under consideration.  However, if even one member says they 
object to stopping debate then the chair must ask for a second and take the two-thirds vote.  It is 
very important to note this is not a debatable motion.  Once the process starts no member can 
continue discussion. If the vote on the motion to stop debate fails, then the discussion on the 
main motion may resume.   

On another issue, as a reminder I noted the following sentence in the adopted Commission Rules 
of Procedure.  “Any Commissioner who abstains from voting on a motion, shall state, for the 
record, at the outset of the discussion, both his or her intention to abstain and reason for doing 
so.” 

If it any time, you or any member of the Commission would like to have a refresher or practice 
any aspect of parliamentary procedure I would be pleased to assist. 

8A

mailto:e.siewert@wayne.edu


/

Joe Valentine <jvalentine@bhamgov.org>

Re: Follow up - HELP NEEDED FROM COMMISSIONERS
Joe Valentine <Jvalentine@bhamgov.org> Thu, Jul 2, 2020 at 4:54 PM
To: Adam Wolf <adamwolf732@yahoo.com>
Cc: Mark Gerber <Mgerber@bhamgov.org>, "pboutros@bhamgov.org" <pboutros@bhamgov.org>, "tlonge@bhamgov.org"
<tlonge@bhamgov.org>, "cballer@bhamgov.org" <cballer@bhamgov.org>, "rackyhoff@hotmail.com" <rackyhoff@hotmail.com>,
"bhost@bhamgov.org" <bhost@bhamgov.org>, "mnickita@bhamgov.org" <mnickita@bhamgov.org>, "ssherman@bhamgov.org"
<ssherman@bhamgov.org>

Mr. Wolf,

Thank you for your communication requesting a waiver of the penalty provisions in the City Ordinance.  I will add your communication
to the next City Commission meeting on July 13th so they have the opportunity to discuss it at that time.

Enjoy the holiday weekend.

Best regards,
Joe Valentine

On Thu, Jul 2, 2020 at 4:38 PM Adam Wolf <adamwolf732@yahoo.com> wrote:

Thank you Mark for the response. 

City Commissioners,
Per the note below.  Mr. Gerber has informed me his role of Director of
Finance/Treasurer is not empowered to waive a 15% fee on the cape
seal bill. He stated I needed to share my dispute with each of you to
address this situation.  As I discussed with Theresa and Mark, my wife
attempted to pay this in person and was turned away due to the
Birmingham office not supporting visitors during Covid.  In turn this was
mailed in and check dates 6/9/20.  The check was mailed back to me
and I was informed of the penalty as it was not opened prior to the
requested 6/10/20 date.  This is the first time I have experienced a
municipality who turns away payment to only allow it to be paid later
with a penalty.  Given these times as well as the attempt to pay on time,
I request the Commissioners to waive the 15% fee. I appreciate your
support and assistance.  Any questions please let me know.
I hope you have a safe holiday weekend.
Thank you,
Adam

On Thursday, July 2, 2020, 04:11:41 PM EDT, Mark Gerber <mgerber@bhamgov.org> wrote:

8B

mailto:adamwolf732@yahoo.com
mailto:mgerber@bhamgov.org


/

Mr. Wolf:
Per our discussion earlier today, the only individuals who can change a city ordinance are the city commissioners.

Below are their names and emails per your request:

Pierre Boutros, Mayor  pboutros@bhamgov.org
Therese Longe, Mayor Pro-Tem  tlonge@bhamgov.org
Clinton Baller, Commissioner  cballer@bhamgov.org
Rackeline Hoff, Commissioner  rackyhoff@hotmail.com
Brad Host, Commissioner   bhost@bhamgov.org
Mark Nickita, Commissioner  mnickita@bhamgov.org
Stuart Lee Sherman, Commissioner  ssherman@bhamgov.org

Unless the city commission takes action to waive the penalty, you will be responsible for the 15% penalty.

Best regards,

On Thu, Jul 2, 2020 at 11:38 AM Adam Wolf <adamwolf732@yahoo.com> wrote:
Hi Mark,
Thank you for the time on the phone.  As discussed we need to remove the 15% penalty on the bill for the cape seal.  This bill was
attempted to be paid in person prior to the deadline but my wife was turned away due to Birmingham office not allowing visitors
due to Covid.  It was then placed in the mail and check dated 6/9.  The payment was mailed back by the Treasurer’s office for
arriving after the due date.  As discussed I am happy to continue to pay the cape seal fee and you advised to do this on my tax
bill.  We need to remove the 15% penalty.  Please provide the email of each person empowered to waive this fee so we can
finalize this action.   I appreciate your prompt response.

Thank you for your support,
Adam

-- 
Mark Gerber, CPA
Finance Director/Treasurer
City of Birmingham
151 Martin Street
PO Box 3001
Birmingham, MI  48012-3001
(248) 530-1814 phone
(248) 530-1090 fax

-- 
Joseph A. Valentine
City Manager
City of Birmingham
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48009
(248) 530-1809   Office Direct
(248) 530-1109   Fax
jvalentine@bhamgov.org
Twitter: @JoeValentine151

To get the latest information regarding the City of Birmingham, please sign up for our communication tools by clicking
here www.bit.ly/bhamnews.

mailto:pboutros@bhamgov.org
mailto:tlonge@bhamgov.org
mailto:cballer@bhamgov.org
mailto:rackyhoff@hotmail.com
mailto:bhost@bhamgov.org
mailto:mnickita@bhamgov.org
mailto:ssherman@bhamgov.org
mailto:adamwolf732@yahoo.com
mailto:jvalentine@bhamgov.org
http://www.bit.ly/bhamnews


7/2/2020 Birmingham, MI Code of Ordinances

1/1

(a)

(b)

Sec. 94-12. - Lien until paid.

All special assessments, including installment payments, shall, from the date of the confirmation thereof, constitute a lien on the respective

lots or parcels assessed, and until paid shall be charged against the respective owners of the lots or parcels assessed.

The city treasurer shall annually, on May 1, certify any delinquent special assessment, or any part thereof, together with all accrued interest

and penalty, to the commission; and, it shall be transferred and reassessed, with an additional 15 percent penalty, on the next annual city tax

roll. Such charges so assessed shall be collected in the same manner as general city taxes.

(Ord. No. 1637, 3-24-97; Ord. No. 1834, 4-19-04)



Kate Bongiorno 

684 Puritan Avenue 

Birmingham, MI 48009 

July 10, 2020 

Birmingham City Commission 

151 Martin Street 

Birmingham, MI 48009 

Dear Birmingham City Manager Valentine, City Clerk Allen, and Esteemed Commission 

Members,  

I would like to request and encourage your consideration of the creation of a 15th Birmingham 

City Playground in Quarton Lakes Estates.  

This idea was hatched about a year ago when my friend (and fellow Birmingham resident) and I 

took our kids to visit all 14 Birmingham playgrounds in one day. It took us six hours and we 

enjoyed the variety of landscapes and playscapes and the opportunity to explore Birmingham. On 

our drive home, my kids and I wondered why our neighborhood was missing a neighborhood 

playground?  

I subsequently shared my thoughts with other friends in the neighborhood and one, who I must 

take a moment to spotlight as one of Birmingham’s most loyal citizens, Patricia Andrews, 

suggested that the greenspace adjacent to the beautiful new Fire Station #2 might be a good 

location to build a playground in the neighborhood.   

I could not agree with her more! 

The space next to Fire Station #2 has ample space to create a safe, pleasant, inviting space for 

recreation and relaxation. It has easy pedestrian and bike access from Fairfax, Chesterfield, and 

Maple Roads. In addition, it boasts street parking, complimentary nearby local businesses to visit 

for a snack while playing, a tony new fire station that is well-known by children in the 

neighborhood, and nice, established features of shade, safe distance from the roads, and access to 

the Fire Department in case of emergency.  

This proposed playground space will offer a wonderful place for community connections! 

The churches along Maple Road house many preschools and the playground will offer a 

welcome option for parents with younger siblings who have a couple of hours to play in between 

drop-offs and pick-ups at Quarton, West Maple, Hand-in-Hand and First Kids Preschools. For 

residents who are retired, a beautiful outdoor space with tables and benches will be a terrific 

location to meet up for coffee and conversation or gather for a game of chess, cards, or dominos 

with friends and neighbors... and fresh air.  

8C -

AMENDED



Quarton Lakes Estates is a neighborhood with a population mix of families and retirees. A 

playground and park will create an ideal space for neighbors who otherwise miss one another 

due to different schedules and lifestyles to meet and socialize in a casual, outdoor setting. It 

offers intersections for neighbors to meet and get to know one another, which is vital for creating 

strong, connected neighborhoods and communities. As I shared this idea with my friends and 

neighbors, it was equally embraced by the young and the young at heart, individuals with 

children and those who enjoy being around children. 

The creation of Birmingham’s 15th playground has tremendous merit at face value, but there is 

so much more potential that comes part and parcel with its construction.  

The park could be a great venue for residents to rent for birthday parties, scouts or sports team 

picnics, or school parties. While offering a safe option for social events, it could also generate a 

nominal source of revenue to support maintenance costs. Similarly, a structure such as fence or 

pathway could be constructed through donations and offer a place for residents to donate to their 

local neighborhood gathering space and “leave their mark” with an inscribed fence plank or brick 

or stone.  

The park could also be a great place for the City to offer exciting, low-cost, high-impact events 

such as book readings, concerts, or holiday gatherings to promote community... and even 

spotlight rising poets, musicians, artists, or tastemakers living right next door who might happily 

share their talents with their neighbors on a sunny afternoon at the park?! 

I propose that the space is simple but can impactfully multi-task: picnic tables and benches, 

garbage and recycling cans, a water fountain, a sandbox or Gaga Pit, a mix of toddler and youth, 

ADA inclusive swings, a slide, and basic climbing structure. The space could also potentially 

accommodate a basketball hoop and park exercise equipment that would be equally enjoyed by 

teenage and adult parkgoers and our loyal firefighters during downtime at the Station.  

In addition, I suggest adding features that invite community collaboration: small gardens that 

could be adopted by residents, student groups, or schools; Book Walks that could be guided by 

friends at the ever-improving Baldwin Library; fairy gardens or nooks broadcasting positive, 

inclusive messages; a Little Library; a kiosk or message board where the City or residents could 

post useful, neighborly information (i.e. items for sale, new social groups, events, missing pet 

notices, etc.); and a hallmark feature to make the playground really unique such as a community-

member created Art installation, a fence with love locks, a gazebo, a pine tree where ornaments 

could be displayed for seasonal holidays, or a take something/leave something surprise box. 

The sky's the limit with opportunities to turn the beautiful space flanking Birmingham’s 

impressive new fire station into a place with even more to offer its residents in Quarton Lakes 

Estates.... and the Birmingham community at large! 

Upon presenting the idea around my neighborhood this Spring, I was greeted with great 

enthusiasm by neighbors on many different streets within Quarton Lakes Estates and across all 

demographics. I have attached a list of residents who similarly support the proposal of a 

playground in our neighborhood.  



Moreover, in these uncertain times, I believe a safe, new, exciting open space, out of doors might 

be just what Birmingham needs to inspire hope and offer new opportunities for safe social 

engagement.  

On behalf of my neighbors and myself, thank you for your consideration of this community 

improvement as well as your ongoing dedication to Birmingham, City Manager Valentine, City 

Clerk Allen, and Councilmembers Longe, Host, Hoff, Baller, Boutros, Nickita, and Sherman. 

Sincerely, 

Kate Bongiorno 





NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
ADVISORY PARKING COMMITTEE 

At the regular meeting of Monday, August 10, 2020, the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint three regular members to the Advisory Parking Committee to serve three-year terms expiring 
September 4, 2023 (a large retail representative, a downtown employee member, and a restaurant 
owner), and two alternate members to serve a three-year term to expire 9/4/2023. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s Office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office on or 
before noon on Wednesday, August 5, 2020. These documents will appear in the public agenda for the 
regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and voter on appointments. 

Committee Duties 
The Advisory Parking Committee shall provide guidance to the City Commission in the management of 
Birmingham's Auto Parking System.  The Committee shall recognize parking requirements of the CBD 
and fairly assess the costs to users.  It will provide for attractive, maintained and safe facilities. 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, Article IX, Ethics 
and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

The majority of the members shall be residents. 

• One member shall be a large retail
representative in parking assessment
district.

• One member shall be a downtown
employee member.

• One member shall be a restaurant owner
within the parking assessment district.

• The alternate members shall own
property, own a business or work in the
parking assessment district.

08/05/2020 8/10/2020 

R10A1

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


July 1, 2020 

Mr. Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin Street, P.O. Box 3001 
Birmingham, MI  48012-3001 

Re:   Roberts Rules of Order and the Appropriate Time to Make Motions 

Dear Mr. Valentine: 

I understand that at the City Commission meeting of June 22, 2020 an issue was raised as 
to when is an appropriate time for a motion to be brought forward for consideration of the 
Commission.  In this regard, I have reviewed the Commission’s Rules of Procedure which state 
with respect to conduct of business as follows: 

“Commission meetings shall be governed by the rules contained in the most recent 
edition of Roberts Rules of Order, Newly Revised, in all instances in which they 
are applicable and not inconsistent with the statutes of the United States or the State 
of Michigan or with the charter or adopted by the City of Birmingham or these 
Rules of Procedure.  Commissioners should be recognized by the presiding officer 
before speaking.”   

The City, therefore, has formally adopted Roberts Rules of Order for purposes of governing 
the method by which it shall conduct business.  Roberts Rules of Order provides that in the process 
of establishing an agenda the following: 

“Sessions of permanently organized bodies usually follow an established order of 
business that specifies the sequence in which certain general types or classes of 
business are to be brought up or permitted to be introduced. If the assembly has no 
binding order of business, any member who obtains the floor (see pp. 29-31) can 
introduce any legitimate matter he desires (within the objects of the organization as 
defined in its by-laws) at any time when no business is before the assembly for 
consideration.  A society may follow the order of business given in the manual that 
the bylaws of the organization designate as its parliamentary authority, or it may 
have adopted its own particular order of business.” 

Section 3, Page 25, Roberts Rules of Order, Newly Revised 11th Edition 

The City of Birmingham has not formerly established a binding order of business which 
specifies the sequence in which certain types or classes of business are to be brought up or 
permitted to be introduced.  Therefore, absent such an adoption of the order of business, the City 

R10E1



 
 
Mr. Joseph A. Valentine, City Manager 
July 1, 2020 
Page 2 

 
  
 
 

 

has no binding order of business.  Any person that obtains the floor can introduce any matter that 
he/she desires at any time when no other business is before the Commission for consideration.  
Therefore, if a motion is proffered during Commissioner comments, it is permissible under Roberts 
Rules of Order and Birmingham City Commission procedures. 
 
 If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
    Very truly yours, 
 
    BEIER HOWLETT, P.C. 
 
 
    Timothy J. Currier 
    Birmingham City Attorney 
TJC/jc  



INFORMATION ONLY



INFORMATION ONLY





INFORMATION ONLY




	6C Draft RFP for Arch & Design Services - Willits and N. Old Ww Public Property - 7-9-20 -  FINAL3
	5 - EXHIBITS A - K - History of Project - FINAL.pdf
	20180604 Bates Street - Exhibit K - CC Mins

	Att F, G and H.pdf
	Att F Survey ALTA
	Att G and H
	Att H All Env
	Env Phase 1
	Cover
	Table of Contents
	Executive Summary
	Phase I ESA Text (draft)
	Qualifications
	Figures
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G
	13661F Figures 1-3 CAD Maps 1-17.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Fig 1 TOPO M 1-17

	13661F Figures-Fig 2 SPM 1-17 11x17.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Fig 2 SPM 1-17 11x17


	13661F Figures-Fig 3 SPLM 1-17.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Fig 3 SPLM 1-17




	Env Phase 2
	Cover
	Table of Contents
	Phase II ESA Text
	Figures
	Tables
	Appendix A
	Appendix B





	6D Potential Park Bond Opportunity
	Parks Bond Attachments.pdf
	INFORMATION
	SUMMARY CALENDAR FOR CANDIDATE AND PROPOSAL DEADLINES
	RECOUNT FILING DATES
	Any Other Office Canvassed by the Board of State Canvassers
	Any Other Office Canvassed by County Boards of Canvassers
	OFFICES TO BE ELECTED IN 2020
	2020 FILING REQUIREMENTS
	Petition Filing Information: Candidates Without Political Party Affiliation
	Affidavit of Identity Required of All Candidates
	Post-Election Campaign Finance Compliance Statement
	Signature Requirements; Filing Location
	U.S. PRESIDENT
	U.S. SENATOR
	U.S. REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
	STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN REGENT MICHIGAN STATE UNIVERSITY TRUSTEE WAYNE STATE UNIVERSITY GOVERNOR SUPREME COURT JUSTICE
	STATE REPRESENTATIVE
	Resolution Submitting Parks and Recreation Bond Proposal(36085432_1).pdf
	CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

	Original Park Bond.pdf
	Revised Park Bond.pdf
	Attachment A




	6E CLOSED SESSION REQUEST
	8A Communication - Close Debate (1)
	8B Re_ Follow up - HELP NEEDED FROM COMMISSIONERS
	8C Letter from Ms. Bongiorno
	Quarton Lakes Estates Playground Proposal 07.10.20
	QLE Playground Petition 

	R10A1 APC-NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPT
	R10E1 ltr J. Valentine re Motions at Commission Meetings and Roberts Rules of Order (1)
	zINFO ONLY - BBAC event cancelation
	zINFO ONLY- CONSUMERS ENERGY PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE-U-20702
	zINFO ONLY-DTE PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE-U-20793



